
           

CALENDAR FOR THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY
AND FOR SPECIAL DISTRICTS, AGENCIES, AND AUTHORITIES GOVERNED BY THE BOARD

BOARD CHAMBERS ROOM 107, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING, 651 PINE STREET

MARTINEZ, CALIFORNIA 94553-1229

JOHN GIOIA, CHAIR, 1ST DISTRICT

CANDACE ANDERSEN, VICE CHAIR, 2ND DISTRICT

MARY N. PIEPHO, 3RD DISTRICT

KAREN MITCHOFF, 4TH DISTRICT

FEDERAL D. GLOVER, 5TH DISTRICT

DAVID J. TWA, CLERK OF THE BOARD AND COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, (925) 335-1900

PERSONS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD DURING PUBLIC COMMENT OR WITH RESPECT TO AN ITEM THAT IS ON
THE AGENDA, MAY BE LIMITED TO TWO (2) MINUTES.

A LUNCH BREAK MAY BE CALLED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD CHAIR.

The Board of Supervisors respects your time, and every attempt is made to accurately estimate when an item may be heard by the Board. All times specified for
items on the Board of Supervisors agenda are approximate. Items may be heard later than indicated depending on the business of the day. Your patience is
appreciated.

AGENDA

January 13, 2015

             

9:00 A.M. Convene, Call to Order and Opening Ceremonies

Inspirational Thought- "Motivation is an external, temporary high that pushes you forward.

Inspiration is a sustainable internal glow which pulls you forward." ~Thomas Leonard
 

CONSIDER CONSENT ITEMS (Items listed as C.1 through C.37 on the following agenda) –

Items are subject to removal from Consent Calendar by request of any Supervisor or on request

for discussion by a member of the public. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be

considered with the Discussion Items.
 

PRESENTATIONS (5 Minutes Each)
 

PR.1   PRESENTATION proclaiming January 2015 as Slavery and Human Trafficking

Prevention Month in Contra Costa County. (Supervisor Mitchoff)

 

 

PR.2   PRESENTATION recognizing Julie Bueren, Contra Costa County Public Works

Director, as 2014 Engineer of the Year. (David Twa, County Administrator)

 

 

PR.3   PRESENTATION proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month.

(Kathy Gallagher, Employment and Human Services Director)
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS
 



D. 1 CONSIDER Consent Items previously removed.
 

D. 2 PUBLIC COMMENT (2 Minutes/Speaker)
 

D.3   CONSIDER introducing Ordinance No. 2015-04 to repeal Ordinance No. 2014-10,

which would have adjusted the salary of the Board of Supervisors; waiving

reading and fixing January 20, 2015 for adoption. (Supervisor Gioia)
 

D.4   HEARING to consider approving a rezoning from Multiple Family Residential

(M-12) to Planned Unit District (P-1) and Final Development Plan approval for the

proposed "Westborough" 14-unit condominium project located at 1640-1660 Tice

Valley Boulevard in the Saranap area of unincorporated Walnut Creek, and make

related California Environmental Quality Act findings, as recommended by the

County Planning Commission. (Ruben Hernandez, Department of Conservation

and Development)
 

D.5   HEARING to consider approving a rezoning from Planned Neighborhood

Business to Retail Business District of three parcels, excluding the drainage

easement area, at the Stone Valley Center, located at 3160 Danville Boulevard,

Alamo, and make related California Environmental Quality Act findings, as

recommended by the County Planning Commission. (Aruna Bhat, Department of

Conservation and Development)
 

D.6   CONSIDER approving the Final Emergency Ambulance Request for Proposals

(RFP), directing the Emergency Medical Services Agency to submit the RFP to the

California State EMS Authority and, upon State approval, release the RFP. (EMS

Director Pat Frost, EMS Agency RFP Facilitator Art Lathrop, and RFP Consultant

Rick Keller)
 

D.7   HEARING on the itemized costs of abatement for property located at 3010 Del

Hombe Lane, Walnut Creek, CA (Christina Kohler & Haigoush Heidi Kohler,

Tre, Owners). (Jason Crapo, Conservation and Development Department)
 

D.8   CONSIDER adopting Resolution No. 2015/3, which supersedes Resolution No.

2014/205, regarding compensation and benefits for the County Administrator,

County Elected and Appointed Department Heads, Management, Exempt, and

Unrepresented employees to reflect changes, as recommended by the County

Administrator. (David Twa, County Administrator) 
 

D. 9 CONSIDER reports of Board members.
 

Closed Session

A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS

1. Agency Negotiators: David Twa and Bruce Heid.



Employee Organizations: Contra Costa County Employees’ Assn., Local No. 1; Am. Fed., State,

County, & Mun. Empl., Locals 512 and 2700; Calif. Nurses Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union,

Local1021; District Attorney’s Investigators Assn.; Deputy Sheriffs Assn.; United Prof.

Firefighters, Local 1230; Physicians’ & Dentists’ Org. of Contra Costa; Western Council of

Engineers; United Chief Officers Assn.; Service Empl. Int’l Union United Health Care Workers

West; Contra Costa County Defenders Assn.; Probation Peace Officers Assn. of Contra Costa

County; Contra Costa County Deputy District Attorneys’ Assn.; and Prof. & Tech. Engineers,

Local 21, AFL-CIO.

2. Agency Negotiators: David Twa.

Unrepresented Employees: All unrepresented employees.

B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--EXISTING LITIGATION (Gov. Code, §

54956.9(d)(1))

1. Retiree Support Group of Contra Costa County v. Contra Costa County, U.S. District Court, 

Northern District of California, Case No. C12-00944 JST

2. Daniel Rodriguez v. County of Contra Costa, et al., U.S. District Court, Northern District of

California, Case No. C13-2516 JSC

3. Save Mount Diablo v. Contra Costa County, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court Case

No. N13-0774.

C. LIABILITY CLAIMS

Claimant: Raie Rafat

Agency claimed against: Contra Costa County

 

ADJOURN  
 

CONSENT ITEMS
 

Road and Transportation
 

C. 1   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/19 vacating 788 linear feet of excess County road

identified as Carquinez Scenic Drive, located southeast of the Contra Costa Brick

Works Plant to the westerly end of the previously vacated segment of roadway in

the Port Costa area, as recommended by the Public Works Director. (100% Local

Road Funds)
 

C. 2   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/20 to approve and authorize the Public Works



C. 2   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/20 to approve and authorize the Public Works

Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act

(TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the

total amount of $150,000 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project –

Central County, Bay Point and Walnut Creek areas. (34% TDA Grant Funds; 66%

Local Road Funds)
 

C. 3   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/21 to approve and authorize the Public Works

Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act

(TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the

total amount of $100,000 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project – East

County, Knightsen and Discovery Bay areas. (37% TDA Grant Funds, 63% Local

Road Funds)
 

C. 4   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/22 to approve and authorize the Public Works

Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act

(TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the

total amount of $150,000 for the Pomona Street Pedestrian Safety Improvement

Project, Crockett area. (43% TDA Grant Funds, 57% Local Road Funds)
 

Special Districts & County Airports

 

C. 5   ACCEPT the 2014 status report from the Public Works Director on street light

maintenance by Pacific Gas and Electric Company in coordination with Contra

Costa cities and the County, as recommended by the Transportation, Water and

Infrastructure Committee, Countywide. (100% County Service Area L-100 Funds)
 

C. 6   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute

a contract with A.S. Dutchover & Associates (dba Dutchover & Associates) in an

amount not to exceed $250,000 to provide on-call landscape architecture services

for the period January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2018, Countywide. (100% Special

Revenue Funds)
 

C. 7   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, Contra Costa County Flood

Control and Water Conservation District, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with LSA Associates, Inc., to extend the term from December 31,

2014 to December 31, 2015 with no change to the payment limit of $467,000, to

continue to provide vegetation, rangeland, water quality monitoring, data analysis,

and report writing services in support of the Streambank Vegetation Management

Study, Concord area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B Funds)
 

Claims, Collections & Litigation

 

C. 8   DENY claims filed by Jack Cooper, Enterprise Rent A Car, Shannon O. Murphy



C. 8   DENY claims filed by Jack Cooper, Enterprise Rent A Car, Shannon O. Murphy

Sr., Tamara Salcido, and Sheet Metal & Associates – c/o Shannon O. Murphy Sr.
 

Honors & Proclamations

 

C. 9   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/12 recognizing January 2015 as Eligibility Workers'

Month, as recommended by Employment and Human Services Director.
 

C. 10   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/15 proclaiming January 2015 as Slavery and

Human Trafficking Prevention Month in Contra Costa County, as recommended

by Supervisor Mitchoff.
 

C. 11   ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/14 accepting Contra Costa Regional Medical

Centers' prestigious designation as National Leader in the LGBT (Lesbian, Gay,

Bisexual and Transgender) Healthcare Equality Index 2013-2014 by the Human

Rights Campaign, as recommended by Supervisor Gioia.
 

Appointments & Resignations
 

C. 12   REAPPOINT Brian Amador, Lynette Busby, Jeffrey Peckham, and John Vallor to

the Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council for four year terms

conterminous with Supervisor Mitchoff's term of office, as recommended by

Supervisor Mitchoff. 
 

Intergovernmental Relations

 

C. 13   AUTHORIZE the County to provide the Contra Costa County Employees'

Retirement Association's (CCCERA) workers’ compensation coverage up to the

amount of the County’s self insured retention for workers compensation insurance

at CCCERA's expense, from January 1, 2015 to no later than June 30, 2015, to

allow CCCERA time to meet State requirements for provision of workers’

compensation insurance for its employees, as recommended by the County

Administrator.
 

Personnel Actions

 

C. 14   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21590 to add one Sheriff’s

Specialist (represented) position and cancel one Sheriff’s Director of Support

Services (represented) position in the Office of the Sheriff-Support Services

Bureau. (Cost savings)
 

C. 15   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 20591 to add one Lead Detention



C. 15   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 20591 to add one Lead Detention

Services Worker position (represented) and cancel one Detention Services Worker

position (represented) in the Office of the Sheriff–Custody Services Bureau.

(100% General Fund)
 

C. 16   ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 2015/16 to provide salary increase

adjustments for the County Counsel and Public Defender classifications, as

recommended by the County Administrator. (100% General Fund)
 

Grants & Contracts
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreements between the County and the

following agencies for receipt of fund and/or services:

 

C. 17   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Department

director, or designee, to apply for and accept funding from California Department

of Education in an amount not to exceed $5,000, to fund 60 additional childcare

slots for the final day of the fiscal year, June 30, 2015. (No County match)
 

C. 18   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with the State of California, Office of Service

Integration (OSI), to pay the County an amount not to exceed $361,716 for the

County to provide a subject matter expert to assist the State's OSI on the

implementation of county based services relative to the maintenance of new

in-home support services case management, information and pay-rolling systems

for the period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2017. (No County match)
 

C. 19   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the California Department of Public Health, accept funds

in an amount not to exceed $450,000 to serve as the local lead agency of the

Tobacco Prevention Project for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017, and

certify that the County is in compliance with certain State requirements; and

APPROVE the County's Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan and Budget for FY

2014-2017 for submission to the California Department of Public Health for the

Tobacco Prevention Project. (No County match) 
 

C. 20   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with the California Department of Public Health, Office of

Health Equity, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $9,400 for the Public

Health CalBrace Climate Change Project, through June 30, 2015 (No County

match)
 

C. 21   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to accept



C. 21   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to accept

funding from the Department of Health Care Services, Children Medical Services,

in an amount not to exceed $1,576,781 for the Child Health and Disability

Prevention and the Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care, for the

period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. (Budgeted, 25% General Fund match) 
 

C. 22   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute a

contract with the State of California, Health Benefit Exchange, to pay the County

an amount not to exceed $33,754,425 for the continued operations of the Contra

Costa County Covered California Call Center for the period of February 1, 2015

through June 30, 2017. (No County match)
 

C. 23   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with California Department of Community

Services and Development, including modified indemnification language, to pay

County an amount not to exceed $3,760,243 for Low Income Home Energy

Assistance Programs for the period January 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016.

(No County match)
 

C. 24   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with the California Department of

Education, to increase the payment limit to the County by $148,611 to a new

payment limit of $3,497,960 for childcare and development programs

(CalWORKS Stage 2), with no change to the term of July 1, 2013 through June

30, 2014. (No County match)
 

C. 25   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract amendment with the California Department of

Community Services and Development, including modified indemnification

language, to extend the term through February 28, 2015 with no change to the

payment limit of $790,619, for Community Services Block Grant program

services. (No County match)
 

C. 26   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or

designee, to execute a contract with the California Department of Community

Services and Development, including modified indemnification language, to pay

the County an amount not to exceed $213,583 to provide Community Services

Block Grant program services for the period January 1 through December 31,

2015. (No County match)
 

C. 27   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute

Agreements with the City of Concord and Town of Danville for the provision by

the County of pre-employment screening services for the period of April 1, 2015

through March 31, 2017. (Cost neutral)
 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the



APPROVE and AUTHORIZE execution of agreement between the County and the

following parties as noted for the purchase of equipment and/or services:

 

C. 28   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Women’s Health Partners of California, Inc., in an amount

not to exceed $580,000 to provide obstetrics and gynecology services, for the

period January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016. (100% Contra Costa Health

Plan Enterprise Fund III)
 

C. 29   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Rubicon Programs, Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$110,000 to provide mental health services for CalWORKs clients, for the period

July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015, including an automatic extension through

December 31, 2015 in an amount not to exceed $55,000. (100% CalWORKs)
 

C. 30   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Vincent S. Perez, M.D, effective October 1,

2014, to increase the payment limit by $1,000 to a new payment limit of $314,600,

to provide for reimbursement for travel while performing psychiatric services in

County mental health facilities, with no change in the original term of July 1, 2014

through June 30, 2015. (100% Mental Health Realignment)
 

C. 31   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with the Department of Health Care Services,

effective September 29, 2014, to extend the term from September 30, 2014

through September 30, 2015 and increase the amount payable to County by

$296,920 to a new payment limit of $8,187,671, and to make technical

adjustments to the budget for continuous funding for the AIM (Access for Infants

& Mothers) Program. (No County match)
 

C. 32   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Shelter, Inc. of Contra Costa County in an amount not to

exceed $268,724 to provide services to County residents in the Supportive

Housing Program, for the period September 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015.

(75% McKinney-Vento funds; 25% County)
 

C. 33   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with William W. Chen, M. D., in an amount not to exceed

$410,000 to provide professional Primary Care services, for the period January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2016. (100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise

Fund III)
 

C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to



C. 34   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract with Yaron Friedman, M.D., Inc., in an amount not to exceed

$400,000 to provide obstetrics and gynecology services for the period January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2016. (100% Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise

Fund III )
 

C. 35   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Purchasing Agent, on behalf of the Health

Services Department, to execute a purchase Order with Hyland Software in an

amount of $132,713 for annual software maintenance and licensing for OnBase

Document Management and Image Scanning Software for the period January 1

through December 31, 2015. (100% Enterprise Fund I)
 

C. 36   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Health Services Director, or designee, to

execute a contract amendment with Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc., to extend

the term from December 31, 2014 through March 31, 2015 with no change in the

payment limit of $80,000,000, to continue providing health care services for

Medi-Cal recipients enrolled in the Kaiser Foundation Health Plan. (100% Contra

Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund lll)
 

C. 37   APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Treasurer-Tax Collector, or designee,

to execute a financial services agreement with PFM Asset Management, LLC to

provide asset management services for the purpose of managing the bond proceeds

for the Contra Costa Community College District, effective January 7, 2015.

(100% Bond Proceeds Earnings)
 

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board meets in all its capacities pursuant to Ordinance Code Section 24-2.402, including as the

Housing Authority and the Successor Agency to the Redevelopment Agency. Persons who wish to

address the Board should complete the form provided for that purpose and furnish a copy of any

written statement to the Clerk.

Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and

distributed by the Clerk of the Board to a majority of the members of the Board of Supervisors less

than 72 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine Street, First

Floor, Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553, during normal business hours.

All matters listed under CONSENT ITEMS are considered by the Board to be routine and will be

enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by a

member of the Board or a member of the public prior to the time the Board votes on the motion to

adopt. 

Persons who wish to speak on matters set for PUBLIC HEARINGS will be heard when the Chair

calls for comments from those persons who are in support thereof or in opposition thereto. After

persons have spoken, the hearing is closed and the matter is subject to discussion and action by the

Board. Comments on matters listed on the agenda or otherwise within the purview of the Board of

Supervisors can be submitted to the office of the Clerk of the Board via mail: Board of

Supervisors, 651 Pine Street Room 106, Martinez, CA 94553; by fax: 925-335-1913.



The County will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to

attend Board meetings who contact the Clerk of the Board at least 24 hours before the meeting, at

(925) 335-1900; TDD (925) 335-1915. An assistive listening device is available from the Clerk,

Room 106.

Copies of recordings of all or portions of a Board meeting may be purchased from the Clerk of the

Board. Please telephone the Office of the Clerk of the Board, (925) 335-1900, to make the

necessary arrangements.

Forms are available to anyone desiring to submit an inspirational thought nomination for inclusion

on the Board Agenda. Forms may be obtained at the Office of the County Administrator or Office

of the Clerk of the Board, 651 Pine Street, Martinez, California.

Subscribe to receive to the weekly Board Agenda by calling the Office of the Clerk of the Board,

(925) 335-1900 or using the County's on line subscription feature at the County’s Internet Web

Page, where agendas and supporting information may also be viewed:

www.co.contra-costa.ca.us 

STANDING COMMITTEES

The Airport Committee (Karen Mitchoff and Supervisor Mary N. Piepho) meets quarterly on the

second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. at Director of Airports Office, 550 Sally Ride Drive,

Concord.

The Family and Human Services Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Candace

Andersen) meets on the second Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Finance Committee (Supervisors Mary N. Piepho and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first

Monday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee (Supervisors Federal D. Glover and Karen Mitchoff)

meets on the first Thursday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration

Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

The Internal Operations Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and John Gioia) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 2:30 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Legislation Committee (Supervisors Karen Mitchoff and Federal D. Glover) meets on the first

Thursday of the month at 10:30 a.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

http://www.co.contra-costa.ca.us


The Public Protection Committee (Supervisors John Gioia and Federal D. Glover) meets on the

second Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County Administration Building, 651 Pine

Street, Martinez.

The Transportation, Water & Infrastructure Committee (Supervisors Candace Andersen and Mary

N. Piepho) meets on the first Monday of the month at 1:00 p.m. in Room 101, County

Administration Building, 651 Pine Street, Martinez.

Airports Committee TBD TBD See

above

Family & Human Services Committee TBD TBD See

above

Finance Committee February 2, 2015 10:30

a.m. 

See

above

Hiring Outreach Oversight Committee TBD TBD See

above

Internal Operations Committee TBD TBD See

above

Legislation Committee TBD TBD See

above

Public Protection Committee Special Meeting January

26, 2015 

2:00

p.m. 

See

above

Transportation, Water &

Infrastructure Committee

TBD TBD See

above

PERSONS WHO WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD DURING PUBLIC COMMENT OR

WITH RESPECT TO AN ITEM THAT IS ON THE AGENDA, MAY BE LIMITED TO

TWO (2) MINUTES

A LUNCH BREAK MAY BE CALLED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD CHAIR

AGENDA DEADLINE: Thursday, 12 noon, 12 days before the Tuesday Board meetings.

Glossary of Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order):

Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and

industry-specific language in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. Following is

a list of commonly used language that may appear in oral presentations and written materials

associated with Board meetings:

AB Assembly Bill

ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments



ACA Assembly Constitutional Amendment

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AFSCME American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees

AICP American Institute of Certified Planners

AIDS Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome

ALUC Airport Land Use Commission

AOD Alcohol and Other Drugs

ARRA American Recovery & Reinvestment Act of 2009

BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District

BayRICS Bay Area Regional Interoperable Communications System

BCDC Bay Conservation & Development Commission

BGO Better Government Ordinance

BOS Board of Supervisors

CALTRANS California Department of Transportation

CalWIN California Works Information Network

CalWORKS California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids

CAER Community Awareness Emergency Response

CAO County Administrative Officer or Office

CCCPFD (ConFire) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CCHP Contra Costa Health Plan

CCTA Contra Costa Transportation Authority

CCRMC Contra Costa Regional Medical Center

CCWD Contra Costa Water District

CDBG Community Development Block Grant

CFDA Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CIO Chief Information Officer

COLA Cost of living adjustment

ConFire (CCCFPD) Contra Costa County Fire Protection District

CPA Certified Public Accountant

CPI Consumer Price Index

CSA County Service Area

CSAC California State Association of Counties

CTC California Transportation Commission

dba doing business as

DSRIP Delivery System Reform Incentive Program

EBMUD East Bay Municipal Utility District

ECCFPD East Contra Costa Fire Protection District

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

EMCC Emergency Medical Care Committee

EMS Emergency Medical Services

EPSDT Early State Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment Program (Mental Health)

et al. et alii (and others)

FAA Federal Aviation Administration

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency

F&HS Family and Human Services Committee



First 5 First Five Children and Families Commission (Proposition 10)

FTE Full Time Equivalent

FY Fiscal Year

GHAD Geologic Hazard Abatement District

GIS Geographic Information System

HCD (State Dept of) Housing & Community Development

HHS (State Dept of ) Health and Human Services

HIPAA Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

HIV Human Immunodeficiency Syndrome

HOME Federal block grant to State and local governments designed exclusively to create

affordable housing for low-income households

HOPWA Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS Program

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HR Human Resources

HUD United States Department of Housing and Urban Development

IHSS In-Home Supportive Services

Inc. Incorporated

IOC Internal Operations Committee

ISO Industrial Safety Ordinance

JPA Joint (exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement

Lamorinda Lafayette-Moraga-Orinda Area

LAFCo Local Agency Formation Commission

LLC Limited Liability Company

LLP Limited Liability Partnership

Local 1 Public Employees Union Local 1

LVN Licensed Vocational Nurse

MAC Municipal Advisory Council

MBE Minority Business Enterprise

M.D. Medical Doctor

M.F.T. Marriage and Family Therapist

MIS Management Information System

MOE Maintenance of Effort

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission

NACo National Association of Counties

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

OB-GYN Obstetrics and Gynecology

O.D. Doctor of Optometry

OES-EOC Office of Emergency Services-Emergency Operations Center

OPEB Other Post Employment Benefits

OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Administration

PARS Public Agencies Retirement Services

PEPRA Public Employees Pension Reform Act

Psy.D. Doctor of Psychology

RDA Redevelopment Agency

RFI Request For Information

RFP Request For Proposal

RFQ Request For Qualifications



RN Registered Nurse

SB Senate Bill

SBE Small Business Enterprise

SEIU Service Employees International Union

SUASI Super Urban Area Security Initiative

SWAT Southwest Area Transportation Committee

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership & Cooperation (Central)

TRANSPLAN Transportation Planning Committee (East County)

TRE or TTE Trustee

TWIC Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee

UASI Urban Area Security Initiative

VA Department of Veterans Affairs

vs. versus (against)

WAN Wide Area Network

WBE Women Business Enterprise

WCCTAC West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

PRESENTATION proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month (Kathy Gallagher) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

Since the Great Recession and Health Care Reform there have been unprecedented numbers of people needing

assistance and the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County have stepped up to this challenge to assist those less

advantaged and/or in need of affordable health care to get the services they need. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Eligibility Workers will not be recognized 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

PR.3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Presentation Proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

INTRODUCE Ordinance No. 2015-04 repealing Ordinance No. 2014-10, which would have adjusted the salary of

the Board of Supervisors; WAIVE reading; and FIX January 20, 2015 for adoption. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The estimated cost associated with the 2014 salary ordinance is $235,000, $66,876 of which is pension cost. 

BACKGROUND: 

On November 4, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted Ordinance No. 2014-10, which amended the County

Ordinance Code to adjust salary of members of the Board of Supervisors to an annual amount equivalent to seventy

percent of Superior Court judges’ salaries and provided that, prospectively, Supervisors’ salaries would be adjusted

as necessary to maintain a base salary equivalent to seventy percent of judges’ salaries. Judge’s salaries are linked to

the salary increases of State employees. 

The Supervisors' salaries had not been raised since 2007 and were the lowest in the State for urban counties, and the

second lowest for counties in the Bay Area.

On January 2, 2015, a coalition of labor organizations filed a referendum petition, calling on the Supervisors to

rescind the salary increase and, effectively, suspending the ordinance that was to have taken effect on January 3,

2015. The County Registrar of Voters advised that the petition must contain 25,407 valid signatures in order to be

deemed sufficient. The petition filed on January 2 is estimated to contain approximately 39,000 signatures 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  JOHN GIOIA (510)

231-8686

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: RESCISSION OF SALARY ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10 FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

but the number of valid signatures is yet to be determined by the Elections office. The signature verification is

currently in process.

In recognition of the public expression through the petition process and to avoid the expenditure of time and

resources to verify the petition signatures or hold an election on the matter, the Board will consider rescinding the

salary adjustment ordinance.

The Board will take up at a future meeting the issue of how to proceed on a salary adjustment.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Should the Board of Supervisors elect to uphold the salary adjustment ordinance and the petition is found to be

sufficient, then the Board must submit the ordinance to the voters either at a future regular or special county

election.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Ordinance No. 2015-04 BOS Salary Ordinance Repeal 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

A. OPEN the public hearing and receive testimony;

B. CLOSE the public hearing;

C. FIND that on the basis of the whole record before the County (including the Initial Study and any comments

received) that there is no substantial evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the environment, and

that the September 4, 2014 Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for this project reflects the County’s

independent judgment and analysis; 

D. ADOPT the Mitigated Negative Declaration and the accompanying Mitigation Monitoring Program (MMP) for

purposes of satisfying this project’s compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act;

E. ADOPT the findings contained in County Planning Commission Resolution No. 15-2014 as the basis for the

Board's approval;

F. APPROVE the variance to the Planned Unit (P-1) Zoning District 5-acre minimum lot size requirement; 

G. ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-01 rezoning the 1.12-acre parcel to Planned Unit Development (P-1) from

Multiple-Family Residential (M-12), giving effect to aforementioned rezoning; 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Ruben Hernandez,

674-7785

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Chris Howard, GIS, DCD   

D.4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Interim Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Westborough 14-Unit Condominium Project, Final Development Plan and Rezone, Tice Valley Blvd. Walnut Creek

area, County File #RZ14-3225, DP14-3018



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

H. APPROVE the Westborough Final Development Plan as shown in the plans received by the Department of

Conservation and Development on June 11, 2014;

I. DIRECT the Community Development Division to post a Notice of Determination with the County Clerk.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None. The applicant is responsible for all application processing fees.

BACKGROUND:

I. Executive Summary

This is a hearing on a request for approval of a final development plan and rezone to Planned Unit (P-1) district

for a proposed 14 unit condominium project to be known as the "Westborough" condominiums in the

unincorporated Walnut Creek. The 1.12-acre project site is located at 1640-1660 Tice Valley Boulevard, south of

Olympic Boulevard.

The Westborough condominiums will be two-story, side-by-side units, constructed in clusters of 2, 3 and 4 units

per building. All of the units will be 3 bedroom townhouse style units, with single car garages. The units will be

accessed via a new “U” shaped private roadway accessed from Tice Valley Boulevard. The project will include the

installation of complete site improvements including, landscaping improvements, clean water facilities, roadway

improvements (including 18 guest parking spaces) and storm drain improvements.The project will also entail the

removal of 23 code protected trees and work within the drip line of 11 code protected trees. A variance to the

5-acre minimum lot size requirement of the Planned Unit (P-1) Zoning District is also being requested.

The project was heard by the County Planning Commission on October 28, 2014. At the hearing no public

comments were received in opposition to the project and the Planning Commission approved the vesting tentative

condominium map and adopted a recommendation that the Board of Supervisors approve the rezone to P-1 and

the final development plan. The Planning Commission also made a minor change to a condition of approval in

order to address the proper disposal of green waste generated by the project.

Staff is recommending that the Board approve the Westborough final development plan and adopt the rezoning of

the site to Planned Unit District (P-1) from its existing Multiple Family Residential (M-12) district. 

II. County Planning Commission Hearing

On October 28, 2014 the proposed "Westborough" 14-unit condominium project was heard by the County

Planning Commission. The Planning Commission opened the public hearing whereat the applicant provided some

background and a description of the project, in addition to providing responses to questions presented by the

Commission. After receiving no other public comments the Planning Commission closed the public hearing. After

closing the public hearing, the Commission discussed various aspects of the project including the handling of

"green waste" generated by the project. In order to ensure that the green waste generated by the project is handled

properly, a motion was passed modifying condition of approval #22 to require that all of the green waste is

properly disposed of at a green waste recycling facility. Condition of approval #22 is a standard construction

condition which requires that 50 percent of job site debris be recycled or diverted from landfill disposal. Per the

Commission's motion, condition of approval #22 was modified to require that all (100%) green waste generated

by the project be delivered to a permitted green waste recycling facility and that the developer provide evidence

that the green waste was delivered to such a facility prior to issuance of a grading or building permit.

After adopting the motion to modify condition of approval #22, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to

approve the project as recommended by staff, which included approval of the Westborough vesting tentative

condominium map and a recommendation that the Board of Supervisors approve the rezoning of the site to

Planned Unit District (P-1) and the Westborough final development plan.



III. Environmental Review

In accordance with the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and State and County

CEQA Guidelines, an initial study was prepared for the project to identify any potential environmental impacts.

The initial study identified impacts in the areas of air quality and noise for which mitigation measures were

incorporated into the project reducing the impacts to a less than significant level. On September 4, 2014 the Notice

of Public Review and Intent to adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration was circulated and posted with the County

Recorder's office for a 20-day review period. No public comments were received on the adequacy of the initial

study.

IV. Conclusion

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the rezoning and Final Development Plan as

recommended by the County Planning Commission. The design and location of the Westborough condominiums

is consistent with the surrounding uses and the project will provide new housing in an ideal infill location with

good access to schools, public transportation, freeways and shopping.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Westborough final development plan and rezoning to Planned Unit District (P-1) is not approved, the final

map can not be recorded and the project will not be constructed, preventing the addition of new housing in the

County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Westborough condominiums will provide new housing that is consistent with the following outcome

established in the Children's Report Card: 5) Communities that are safe and provide a high quality of life for

children and families. 

ATTACHMENTS

CPC Resolution No. 15-2014 

CPC Approved Conditions 

CPC Staff Report 

Ordinance No. 2015-01 Map 

Maps 

Initial Study and MMP 

Westborough Final Development Plan 































































































 Olympic Blvd

 Tice Valley Blvd

 Panoramic Way

 Sequoia Ave

 Alder Ave

R-10  

N-B  

M-12  O-1  
R-10  

City of 
Walnut
Creek

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
          (Re-Zoning Land in the 
__________________________ Area) 

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors ordains as follows: 
                    Page ________________ of the County's 2005 Zoning Map (Ord. No. 2005-03) is amended by
re-zoning the land in the above area shown shaded on the map(s) attached hereto and incorporated herein 
(see also Department of Conservation and Development File No. _____________________ .) 
FROM: Land Use District ______________ (_______________________________________) 
TO: Land Use District ______________ (_______________________________________) 
and the Department of Conservation and Development Director shall change the Zoning Map 
accordingly, pursuant to Ordinance Code Sec. 84.2.002. 

                                                         This ordinance becomes effective 30 days after passage, and within
15 days of passage shall be published once with the names of supervisors voting for and against it in
the __________________________________ , a newspaper published in this County.
PASSED on ________________by the following vote:

Supervisor

SECTION II.  EFFECTIVE DATE.

SECTION I:

Aye No Absent Abstain
1. J. Gioia                (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
2. C. Andersen        (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
3. M.N. Piepho        (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
4. K. Mitchoff           (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  )
5. F.D. Glover          (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 

ATTEST: David Twa, County Administrator
and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  __________________________________________________
                                                                                             Chairman of the Board
By__________________________________, Dep.                        (SEAL)

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
RZ14-3225 - Momo Development 2013, LLC

2015 - 01

Saranap

P-13
RZ14-3225

M-12
P-1

Multiple Family Residential
Planned Unit Development

2015-01



































































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

A. OPEN the public hearing and receive testimony on the project;

B. CLOSE the public hearing;

C. FIND that on the basis of the whole record before the County (including the Initial Study and any comments that

may have been received) that there is no substantial evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the

environment, and that the October 2, 2014, Negative Declaration prepared for this project reflects the County's

independent judgment and analysis;

D. ADOPT the Negative Declaration for the purposes of satisfying this project's compliance with the California

Environmental Quality Act;

E. ADOPT the findings contained in County Planning Commission Resolution No. 16-2014 as the basis for the

Board's approval;

F. ADOPT Ordinance No. 2015-02 rezoning that portion of the subject property currently zoned Planned

Neighborhood Business District and S-2 Sign Control Combining District (P-N-B, -S-2) to Retail Business District

(R-B) and -S-2 giving effect to the aforementioned Rezoning.

F. DIRECT Department of Conservation and Development staff to file a Notice of Determination with 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Francisco Avila, (925)

674-7801

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the
Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Chris Howard - DCD/GIS   

D.5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Kopchik, Interim Director, Conservation & Development Department

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Stone Valley Center Rezoning from PNB- S2 to RB- S2 Alamo, County File #RZ14-3227



RECOMMENDATION(S): (CONT'D)

the County Clerk.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None. All County costs are recovered through payment of application processing fees by the project

applicant.

1.

BACKGROUND:

Proposed Project

The subject site consists of three contiguous properties totaling 6.18 acres. Currently, the project area includes

three distinctly different zoning designations: Planned Neighborhood Business District (P-N-B), S-2 Sign Control

Combining District (-S-2) and Single-Family Residential District (R-20). The applicant is requesting to rezone

only that portion of the site zoned Planned Neighborhood Business District (P-N-B, -S-2) to Retail Business

District (R-B, -S-2). No physical development is associated with this rezoning application.

Site/Area Description

The subject site is located at the northeast corner of the Stone Valley Road/Danville Boulevard intersection in

Alamo. The site consists of three parcels, Assessor's parcel numbers: 1) 192-081-004= 3.49 acres, 2)

192-071-064= 2.12 acres and 3) 192-071-030= 0.57 acres. All three parcels are developed with the Stone Valley

Center's retail shops and parking, with the exception of parcel #192-081-004, which also contains a significant

flood drainage channel.

Parcels in the vicinity range in size from 0.1 acres to over 13 acres and tend to be developed with retail business

and/or residential uses. The site is surrounded by properties zoned Planned Unit District (residential), Retail

Business District, and Single-Family Residential District. Much of this commercial corridor incorporates the -S-2

Sign Control Combining District as an overlay district. Generally, the area is characterized by smaller office

buildings and shops along Danville Boulevard while being surrounded by residential properties along the

periphery.

Appropriateness of Proposed Rezone

Background on Rezoning at the Stone Valley Center

In 1965, the subject site was rezoned from Transition Residential Agricultural District and Multiple-Family

Residential District to Planned Neighborhood Business District (P-N-B). As the site was uniquely situated at a

prominent intersection, as well as, the fact that a Shell service station had already been built at the same corner,

Safeway Stores Inc. along with the property owners gained County approval to develop the site with the subject

retail shopping center. Over the years minor modifications to the property such as the addition of a drive-through

espresso hut within the complex have been approved by the County. Currently, the shopping center includes

twelve tenants such as CVS pharmacy, a dry cleaners and a Subway deli.

In 1987, the County initiated a rezoning of the property to the Neighborhood Business District (N-B) from the

current P-N-B zoning district. That effort was met with community opposition and the rezoning effort was

withdrawn; however all other P-N-B zoning districts in the County were successfully eliminated. At that time, the

community argued a more restrictive zoning designation was appropriate for the site due to the shopping center's

proximity to the adjacent residential neighborhood. Although the proposed R-B zoning district allows a broader

range of potential uses, both zoning districts require County approval of a development plan and in some cases the

R-B zoning district requires a development plan/land use permit combination prior to development.

In early 2014, the property owner contacted County staff inquiring whether a farmers market (limited number of

Sundays only) would be an allowable use at the parking lot of this site. As the P-N-B zoning does not allow

outdoor uses, staff was unable to support the request. As a result, the property owner began to inquire as to what



steps were necessary to rezone the site to the R-B district which allows outdoor uses upon issuance of a land use

permit. This rezoning application is a result of the limitations the P-N-B zoning district places on the subject

property.

Existing Zoning Conditions

The parcel is zoned a combination of P-N-B, -S-2 and R-20. As the western portion of the property has been

developed with the subject shopping center, the zoning for that portion of the property is P-N-B and -S-2. The

-S-2 district (Sign Control Combining District) is intended to provide minimum standards to safeguard life, health,

property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, quality of materials, location and

maintenance of all signs and sign structures. No changes to the -S-2 zoning for this site are proposed with this

application.

The southeastern portion of the site (parcel 1) is zoned a combination of P-N-B and R-20. The R-20 district

establishes the development standards for single-family homes and other uses allowed within this zoning district.

However, this R-20 portion of the site overlays the flood control channel (Assessor's maps with easement

boundaries are attached for reference). This rezoning application is only for the portion of the property that is

zoned P-N-B. Thus, the area zoned R-20 (i.e. the flood control channel) will not be affected by the County's

actions related to this rezoning application.

Comparison of Existing and Proposed Zoning Designations

Uses allowed in the P-N-B district are those allowed in both the R-B and Neighborhood Business District (N-B)

(text of P-N-B, R-B and N-B are attached), except that the following are not allowed: 

Residential uses including hotels and motels, except living accommodations of an accessory nature;1.

Non-accessory signs;2.

Roof signs, except gasoline service station signs attached to pump islands or pump island canopies;3.

Cabinet shops, animal hospitals or kennels, animal or poultry husbandry, granaries, dehydration plants,

wineries, canneries, agricultural warehouses, sheet metal shops, pawn shops, mortuaries, cemeteries, or

crematoriums, and lumber yards; and

4.

Those business uses which are not maintained and conducted wholly within enclosed buildings.5.

The primary land uses in the R-B district are generally community based services such as dry cleaners, restaurants

and other residentially compatible uses. As the subject property is clearly located within Alamo's commercial

downtown area, and provides such community based services, the rezoning will result in the property being

consistent with other R-B zoned properties in the immediate vicinity.

The P-N-B zoing does not allow outdoor uses of any type, such as farmers markets and outdoor seating, while the

R-B district allows outdoor uses upon approval of a land use permit. To reiterate, outdoor uses such as

contractor's yards, cabinet shops and lumber yards would require a land use permit from the County. It is most

reasonable to expect that the owner may request and receive approval for low-intensity uses such as outdoor

seating for restaurants during summer months and farmers markets during harvest season.

Staff has prepared a comparison of the development standards of the P-N-B and R-B districts. That comparison is

attached as Table 1 in the staff report to the Planning Commission. A major similarity is that both zoning districts

require approval of a development plan application prior to developing a particular site. It is that review process

that allows County decision makers and the public alike (public comment/appeal process) to determine what uses

are appropriate for the subject site. Therefore, given that both zoning districts are intended to allow neighborhood

service oriented businesses, and the fact that the County has eliminated all other P-N-B zoning districts, the P-N-B

zoning is no longer necessary or appropriate for this site.

General Plan Consistency

Land Use Element - Land Use Designation



The subject property is designated a combination of Commercial (CO) and Single-Family Residential-Low

Density (SL). The SL portion of the site covers the flood control channel and does not impact the retail portion of

the site which is entirely designated as CO. Table 3-5 of the County's 2005-2020 General Plan (Consistency

Between the General Plan and the Zoning Ordinance - attached) outlines which specific zoning districts are

consistent with each General Plan designation, and those which might be considered consistent with the Plan

category, depending on the particular use. As indicated within the table, the General Plan designation of CO is

consistent with the R-B zoning district. As such, the CO designation allows for a broad range of commercial uses

typically found in smaller scale neighborhood, community and thoroughfare commercial districts, including retail

and personal service facilities, limited office, and financial uses. Therefore, the County Planning Commission has

found that the proposed R-B zoning is appropriate for this particular site (Resolution 16-2014, attached).

County Planning Commission Hearing

On November 18, 2014, the proposed rezoning application was heard by the County Planning Commission. The

Planning Commission opened the public hearing whereat the applicant provided some background and a

description of the project, in addition to providing responses to questions presented by the Commission. Several

members of the public attended the hearing and wanted clarification regarding the exact portion of the property to

be rezoned. Staff confirmed that the flood control channel located within the R-20 zoning district portion of the

site was not part of this application. After receiving no other public comments the Planning Commission closed

the public hearing. After closing the public hearing, the Planning Commission discussed various aspects of the

application such as the fact that both the P-N-B and R-B zoning districts require equivalent levels of discretionary

review prior to development. At the conclusion of the discussion, the Planning Commission voted unanimously to

recommend that the Board of Supervisors approve the rezoning application.

Conclusion

The subject property was initially zoned Multiple Residential and Transition Residential Agricultural District and

rezoned to the current P-N-B zoning to allow the establishment of the existing retail shopping center at the site

nearly 50 years ago. The P-N-B zoning district is antiquated and is no longer utilized within the County. Given

that the proposed R-B zoning district requires an equivalent level of County review, the proposed R-B zoning is

preferable because it allows a wider array of uses such as outdoor uses (e.g. farmer's market) desired by the

property owner. Therefore, the County Planning Commission has recommended that the Board of Supervisors

adopt the Negative Declaration for the project and approve County File #RZ14-3227 to rezone the portion of the

property zoned P-N-B/-S-2 to R-B/-S-2.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the Board of Supervisors denies the application, then the zoning district for the subject property would remain

P-N-B and -S-2.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

General Plan Map 

Existing Zoning Map 

Aerial Photo 

Assessor's Maps 

Ordinance Map #2015-02 

CPC Resolution #16-2014 

CPC Approved COA's 

CPC Staff Report 



CPC Staff Report 

Initial Study - CEQA 

P-N-B, R-B, and N-B Ordinance References 

Table 1. - Ordinance Comparison 

Table 3-5, General Plan and Zoning Consistency 



CO
(Commercial)

SL
(Single-Family
Residential -
Low Density)

PS
(Public and

Semi-Public)

ML
(Multiple-Family

Residential -
Low Density)

MM
(Multiple-Family

Residential -
Medium Density)

OS (Open Space)

OF
(Office)

SV
(Single-Family

Residential -
Very Low
Density)

SH (Single-Family
  Residential -
   High Density)

PR
(Parks and
Recreation)

OF 
(Office)

 Linden Ct

§̈¦680

§̈¦680

 Danville Blvd
 Stone Valley Rd

 Lunada Ln

 Las Trampas Rd

 Alamo Sq
 Alamo Way

 Via Romero 

 Via Serena 

 Jackson Way

S Jackson Way

 Via Bonita 

 Gran Via

 Patricia Ln

 Saint Alphonsus Ct

 Alamo Plz
 Gaywood Rd

 Ardith Ln

 Darlene Ct

 Orchard Ct

Map Created 12/17/2014
by Contra Costa County Department of

Conservation and Development, GIS Group
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N  122:07:03.756WI 0 370 740185

Feet This map was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and
Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program.  Some 

base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's
tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for

its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered.  It may be 
reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and 

accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information.

RZ14-3227  General Plan Land Use Designation Map

Legend
SiteParcels
Parcels

General Plan Designation
SV (Single Family Residential - Very Low)
SL (Single Family Residential - Low)
SH (Single Family Residential - High)
ML (Multiple Family Residential - Low)
MM (Multiple Family Residential - Medium)
CO (Commercial)
OF (Office)
PS (Public/Semi-Public)
PR (Parks and Recreation)
OS (Open Space)



R-20
(Single Family
Residential)

R-B -S-2 
(Retail Business - 

Sign Control
Combining District)

M-12
(Multiple Family

Residential)

A-2
(General

Agricultural)

P-1
 (Planned Unit)

M-17
(Multiple Family

Residential)

P-N-B -S-2

O-1
(Limited Office)

N-B -S-2 
(Neighborhood

Business - 
Sign Control

Combining District)

O-1

P-1
(Planned Unit)

§̈¦680

§̈¦680

 Danville Blvd
 Stone Valley Rd

 Las Trampas Rd

 Lunada Ln

 Alamo Sq

 Alamo Way

 Via Romero 

 Jackson Way

 Via Larga 

S Jackson Way

 Via Bonita 

 Patricia Ln

 Saint Alphonsus Ct

 Alamo Plz

 La Colina Dr

S Via Lucia  South Ave
 Elaine Ct

 Ardith Ln

 Darlene Ct

 Woodlyn Rd

 Orchard Ct

 Linden Ct

Map Created 12/17/2014
by Contra Costa County Department of

Conservation and Development, GIS Group
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N  122:07:03.756WI 0 380 760190

Feet This map was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and
Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program.  Some 

base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's
tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for

its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered.  It may be 
reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and 

accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information.

RZ14-3227 Existing Zoning Map

Legend
SiteParcels
Parcels

Zoning Designation
R-20 (Single Family Residential)
R-40 (Single Family Residential)
M-12 (Multiple Family Residential)
M-17 (Multiple Family Residential)
A-2 (General Agriculture)
O-1 (Limited Office)
N-B -S-2 (Neighborhood Business - Sign Control Combining District)
R-B -S-2 (Retail Business - Sign Control Combining District)
P-N-B -S-2 (Planned Neighborhood Business - Sign Control Combining District)
P-1 (Planned Unit)



§̈¦680

§̈¦680

 Danville Blvd
 Stone Valley Rd

 Lunada Ln

 Las Trampas Rd

 Alamo Sq
 Alamo Way

 Via Romero 

 Via Serena 

 Jackson Way

S Jackson Way

 Via Bonita 

 Gran Via

 Patricia Ln

 Saint Alphonsus Ct

 Alamo Plz
 Gaywood Rd

 Ardith Ln

 Darlene Ct

 Orchard Ct

Map Created 12/17/2014
by Contra Costa County Department of

Conservation and Development, GIS Group
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553
37:59:41.791N  122:07:03.756WI 0 375 750187.5

Feet This map was created by the Contra Costa County Department of Conservation and
Development with data from the Contra Costa County GIS Program.  Some 

base data, primarily City Limits, is derived from the CA State Board of Equalization's
tax rate areas. While obligated to use this data the County assumes no responsibility for

its accuracy. This map contains copyrighted information and may not be altered.  It may be 
reproduced in its current state if the source is cited. Users of this map agree to read and 

accept the County of Contra Costa disclaimer of liability for geographic information.

RZ14-3227  Aerial Photo (2011)

Legend
SiteParcels
Parcels







R-20  

R-B -S-2

M-12  

P-1  

P-N-B -S-2
O-1  

R-20  
§̈¦680

 Danville Blvd

 Stone Valley Rd
 Lunada Ln

 Jackson Way

 Alamo Sq

S Jackson W
ay

 Via Larga 

 Saint Alphonsus Ct

 Alamo Plz

 Via Romero 

 Orchard Ct

 Lyman Ln

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
          (Re-Zoning Land in the 
__________________________ Area) 

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors ordains as follows: 
                    Page ________________ of the County's 2005 Zoning Map (Ord. No. 2005-03) is amended by
re-zoning the land in the above area shown shaded on the map(s) attached hereto and incorporated herein 
(see also Department of Conservation and Development File No. _____________________ .) 
FROM: Land Use District ______________ (_______________________________________) 
TO: Land Use District ______________ (_______________________________________) 
and the Department of Conservation and Development Director shall change the Zoning Map 
accordingly, pursuant to Ordinance Code Sec. 84.2.002. 

                                                         This ordinance becomes effective 30 days after passage, and within
15 days of passage shall be published once with the names of supervisors voting for and against it in
the __________________________________ , a newspaper published in this County.
PASSED on ________________by the following vote:

Supervisor

SECTION II.  EFFECTIVE DATE.

SECTION I:

Aye No Absent Abstain
1. J. Gioia                (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
2. C. Andersen        (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
3. M.N. Piepho        (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 
4. K. Mitchoff           (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  )
5. F.D. Glover          (  )                     (  )                         (  )                     (  ) 

ATTEST: David Twa, County Administrator
and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors  __________________________________________________
                                                                                             Chairman of the Board
By__________________________________, Dep.                        (SEAL)

ORDINANCE NO._____________ 
RZ14-3227 - John L. Lineweaver, Trustee, et al

2015 - 02

Alamo

R-15
RZ14-3227

P-N-B -S2
R-B -S-2

Planned Neighborhood Business
Sign Control Combining District

Retail Business
Sign Control Combining District

2015 - 02











COA-1  

FINDINGS & CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR COUNTY FILE #RZ14-3227, JOHN 

LINEWEAVER TRUSTEE, ET. AL. (APPLICANT & OWNER). 

 

FINDINGS 

A. Growth Management Performance Standards 

1. Traffic: The site is accessed directly from Danville Boulevard and Stone Valley Road. 

Approval of the project would not allow for any type of development to automatically 

occur. Thus, there would be no impact to area streets or intersections and no traffic 

report is required. 

2. Water: The subject site currently has water service. Rezoning the site does not change 

the fact that any proposal for future development must comply with all applicable 

ordinances and regulations pertaining to additional water services at the site.    

3. Sewage: The subject site currently has sewer service. Rezoning the site does not 

change the fact that any proposal for future development must comply with all 

applicable ordinances and regulations pertaining to additional water services at the 

site.     

4. Fire Protection: The subject site receives fire protection services from the San Ramon 

Valley Regional Fire Protection District. Simply rezoning the site would not impact fire 

protection services because adequate fire protection improvements and fees are 

typically required when physical development occurs. 

5. Public Protection: The subject site receives public protection services from the Contra 

Costa County Sheriff. Simply rezoning the site would not impact public protection 

services because impacts to such services are mitigated at the time building permits 

are issued on lots created through a subdivision. This application does not trigger the 

need to mitigate such services. 

6. Parks and Recreation: Approval of the proposed project would not increase the 

population in the Alamo area and therefore would not increase the demand for 

neighborhood parks and recreation facilities.   

7. Flood Control and Drainage: The site is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area, 

however, there is a significant flood drainage channel located on the eastern portion of 

the property. Nevertheless, this rezoning application does not involve any new 

construction. Therefore, if drainage improvements were ever necessary, they would be 

required at the time such construction plans were proposed and approved. 

B. Rezone Findings 

Section 26-2.1806 of the County Ordinance Code requires specific findings to be made by 

the planning agency when a request for change in land use district is made; they are as 

follows: 

1. Required Finding: The change proposed will substantially comply with the general plan. 

Project Finding: The Commercial (CO) General Plan land use designation is consistent 

with the Retail Business (R-B) zoning district. Rezoning the subject site from Planned 



County File #RZ14-3227 

Findings & Conditions of Approval  

 

COA-2 

Neighborhood Business District (P-N-B) to the R-B District is consistent with the intent 

and purpose of the CO designation because the subject property would continue to be 

zoned for retail business uses. General Plan policies 3-114 through 3-124 provide 

specific direction for development within the Alamo area. In general, the General Plan 

policies seek to maintain the unique character of each localized community. 

Specifically, policy 3-122 states: Encourage commercial development that is related to 

the needs of the neighborhood and community. Regional scale shopping centers are 

not considered appropriate. Rezoning the site from P-N-B to R-B is consistent with the 

goals and policies contained the General Plan and will continue to allow the 

neighborhood service oriented businesses to operate at the site. No large scale 

modifications to the site have been proposed or considered. For these reasons, 
approval of the rezoning is appropriate and would substantially comply with the 

General Plan.    

2. Required Finding: The use authorized or proposed in this land use district is compatible 

within the district and with uses authorized in adjacent districts.  

Project Finding: The subject site is bordered on the north, west and south by land 

zoned for retail business/office uses (R-B, Limited Office (O-1) and P-1), and on the 

east side by land zoned R-20 Single-Family Residential District (R-20). Most of the uses 

allowed in adjacent R-B and P-1 districts are the same or similar. Uses allowed in the R-

20 district are single-family residences, accessory buildings, care facilities and other 

uses indicative of a residential neighborhood. Given that the proposed R-B district 

allows for retail businesses which serve local communities, the two uses are intrinsically 

compatible as residential communities naturally require certain goods and services 

(e.g., dry cleaners, eateries etc.) to sustain themselves. Additionally, approval of this 

rezoning request will not result in any existing business currently located at this site to 

become a non-conforming use. Thus, the uses allowed in the R-B zone are found to be 
compatible with uses previously authorized for the site and currently established in 

adjacent districts.  

3. Required Finding: Community need has been demonstrated for the use proposed, but 

this does not require demonstration of future financial success. 

Project Finding: Approval of County File #RZ-1084 rezoned the subject property from 

Transition Residential Agricultural District and Multiple Family Residential District to 

Planned Neighborhood District in order to allow the subject shopping center to be 

constructed nearly 50 years ago. The shopping center has been in continuous use and 

has been improved over time. However, the P-N-B district no longer allows the 

flexibility that a modern shopping center requires to be responsive to perspective 

tenants (e.g., farmer’s markets and outdoor seating). The P-N-B district is considered to 

be obsolete and all other P-N-B districts have already been rezoned to more 

appropriate zoning districts many years ago. The property is bordered on three sides 

by properties with similar zoning and on one side by residential zoning which the site 

currently provides services for. Rezoning the site to R-B is therefore justified. 

 



County File #RZ14-3227 

Findings & Conditions of Approval  

 

COA-3 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 

Application Costs: 

 

1. ____ ____ This application is subject to an initial application deposit of $6500.00, 

which was paid with the application submittal, plus time, and material 

costs if the application review expenses exceed 100% of the initial deposit.  

Any additional costs due must be paid within 60 days of the permit 

effective date or prior to use of the permit, whichever occurs first.  

The applicant may obtain current costs by contacting the project planner.  

If you owe additional fees, a bill will be sent to you shortly after permit 

issuance. 

 

2. ____ ____ Within four (4) business days of the final action on this project, the 

applicant is required to pay the applicable California Department of 

Fish & Wildlife (CDFG) filing fee. Payment of this fee is mandated by 

Assembly Bill 3158, which became effective on January 1, 1991. 

Pursuant to Fish & Game Code Section 711.4(c)(3), the project will 

not be operative, vested, or final, and any local permits issued for the 

project will be invalid until either the fee is paid or a signed No Effect 

Determination Form is submitted indicating that the fee is not 

required. Also, if the fee is not paid by the date specified, then the 

30-day statutory time limit to file a legal challenge against the 

approval will automatically extend to 180 days. 

 

ADVISORY NOTES 

THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. IT 

IS PROVIDED TO ALERT THE APPLICANT TO LEGAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE COUNTY AND 

OTHER PUBLIC AGENCIES TO WHICH THIS PROJECT MAY BE SUBJECT. 

A. Notice of 90-day opportunity to protest fees, dedications, reservation, or other exactions 

pertaining to the approval of this permit. 

This notice is intended to advise the applicant that pursuant to Government Code Section 

66000, et seq., the applicant has the opportunity to protest fees, dedications, reservation, 

and/or exactions required as part of this project approval.  The opportunity to protest is 

limited to a 90-day period after the project is approved. 

The ninety (90) day period in which you may protest the amount of any fee or imposition 

of any dedication, reservation, or other exaction required by the approved permit, begins 

on the date this permit was approved.  To be valid, a protest must be in writing pursuant 

to Government Code Section 66020 and delivered to the Department of Conservation & 

Development, Community Development Division within the 90 days of the approval date 

of this permit. 



Department of Conservation and Development 

County Planning Commission 

Tuesday, November 18, 2014 – 7:00 .P.M.    

STAFF REPORT Agenda Item #_____     

 

Project Title: 

 

 

Stone Valley Center Rezone 
 

County File(s): 

 

RZ14-3227 

 

Applicant/Owner: 

 

John L. Lineweaver, Trustee, et. al. 

 

Zoning/General Plan: 

 

Planned Neighborhood Business District (P-N-B), S-2 Sign 

Control Combining District (-S-2) and Single-Family 

Residential District (R-20)/Commercial (CO), Single-Family 

Residential-Low Density (SL) 

 

Site Address/Location: 3160 Danville Boulevard, Alamo/APN’S: 192-081-004, 192-

071-064 & 192-071-030. 
 

California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) Status: 

 

Per California Code of Regulations Section 15070 a Negative 

Declaration (Initial Study) has been prepared for the project. 

 

Project Planner: Francisco Avila, Senior Planner (925) 674-7801 

 

Staff Recommendation: Adopt a motion recommending that the Board of 

Supervisors approve the project. 

 

 

I. PROJECT SUMMARY 

 

The applicant is requesting a rezoning of three properties totaling 6.18 acres from 

P-N-B, -S-2 and R-20 to Retail Business District (R-B), -S-2 and R-20. No physical 

development is associated with this rezoning application. 

 

II. RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends that the County Planning Commission adopt a motion 

recommending that the Board of Supervisors do the following: 

 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 2 of 9 

 

A. FIND, for the purposes of compliance with the provisions of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the State and County CEQA 

Guidelines, that the Initial Study prepared for the project adequately analyzes 

the potential environmental impacts and ADOPT the proposed Negative 

Declaration. 

 

B. ADOPT a motion to rezone the subject properties, Parcels: 192-071-064, 192-

071-030 & 192-081-004, from Planned Neighborhood Business District, Sign 

Control Combining District and R-20 Single-Family Residential District to 

Retail Business District, Sign Control Combining District and R-20 Single-

Family Residential District. 

 

C. Direct Department of Conservation and Development staff to file a Notice of 

Determination with the County Clerk. 

 

III. BACKGROUND 

 

In 1965, the subject site was rezoned from Transition Residential Agricultural 

District and Multiple-Family Residential District to Planned Neighborhood District. 

The impetus of that application was a proposal by Safeway Stores Inc. to construct 

a retail store at this site. Proponents of the application argued that the site was 

uniquely situated at a prominent intersection, as well as, the fact that a Shell 

service station had already been built on the same corner. Opponents of the 

application claimed that residents had purchased their homes in close proximity to 

the site with the understanding that the downtown commercial district was not 

going to be enlarged beyond a “Master Plan” which was in effect at that time. The 

Board of Supervisors approved the rezoning application on July 26, 1966, and 

ultimately the courts sustained that approval by denying an appeal by the Alamo 

Improvement Association. 

 

Subsequently, the site was developed with the subject shopping center and 

associated parking. Over the years minor modifications have been made to the site, 

such as the addition of a drive-through espresso hut, and addition of patio seating 

at one of the restaurants within the complex. In 1987, the County initiated an 

attempt to rezone the property to the R-B zoning District as the P-N-B zoning 

district has since been deemed obsolete by staff. That effort was met with 

neighborhood opposition and the rezoning effort was withdrawn; however all 

other P-N-B zoning districts were successfully eliminated. Currently the shopping 

center includes twelve tenants such as CVS pharmacy, a dry cleaners and a Subway 

deli. 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 3 of 9 

 

In early 2014, the property owner contacted County staff inquiring whether a 

farmers market (limited number of Sundays only) would be an allowable use at the 

parking lot of this site. As the P-N-B does not allow outdoor uses, staff was unable 

to support the request and as a result, the property owner began to inquire as to 

what steps were necessary to rezone the site to the Retail Business District. The R-B 

zoning district allows outdoor uses upon issuance of a land use permit. This 

rezoning application is a result of the unreasonable limitations the P-N-B zoning 

district places on the subject property. 

 

IV. GENERAL INFORMATION 

 

A. General Plan: The subject property has two General Plan designations. The first 

designation is Commercial (CO) and covers the majority of the site. The CO 

designation allows for a broad range of commercial uses typically found in 

smaller scale neighborhood, community and thoroughfare commercial districts, 

including retail and personal service facilities. The following development 

standards apply to uses in this designation: 

 

1. maximum site coverage:  40 percent 

2. maximum building height:  35 feet 

3. maximum floor area ratio:  1.0 

4. average employees per gross acre: 160 employees 

 

The second General Plan designation is Single-Family Residential-Low Density 

(SL). This designation covers a much smaller portion of the subject property 

which consists primarily of the flood control channel on the eastern portion of 

the site. Therefore, that portion of the site designated as SL is not suitable for 

residential development. 

 

B. Zoning: The parcel is zoned a combination of Planned Neighborhood Business 

District (P-N-B), -S-2 Sign Control Combining District (-S-2) and R-20 Single-

Family Residential District (R-20). The western portion of the site has been 

developed with retail business uses and is zoned P-N-B and –S-2.  

 

The –S-2 district is intended to provide minimum standards to safeguard life, 

health, property and public welfare by regulating and controlling the design, 

quality of materials, location and maintenance of all signs and sign structures. 

Essentially, the –S-2 ordinance encourages well designed signs that account for 

the character of the neighborhood and safety of vehicular as well as pedestrian 

traffic. 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 4 of 9 

 

The eastern portion of the site is zoned R-20. The R-20 district establishes the 

development standards for single-family homes and other uses allowed within 

this zoning district. However, this portion of the site overlays the previously 

mentioned flood control channel. As such, it is inconceivable that any 

residential development could be pursued in this location. 

 

C. Environmental Review: A Negative Declaration (ND) (attached) was prepared for 

the project. The ND did not identify any potential environmental impacts 

associated with the project. The public review and comment period for the ND 

extended from October 3, 2014, to October 23, 2014.  No comments were 

received within the comment period. 

 

D. Previous Applications: 

 

1. DP95-3002: A development plan application which allowed the 

construction and operation of an “Espresso To Go” drive through hut 

within the parking lot of the subject shopping center. 

 

2. VR1002-93: A variance application to the development standards for 

new signage at the subject shopping center. The application was 

denied. 

 

3. LP2048-93: This land use permit allowed “take-out” food for several 

tenants with the shopping center. 

 

4. RZ-2757: This was a County Initiated rezoning effort which proposed to 

rezone the site from P-N-B to R-B. Due to neighborhood opposition, 

the application was withdrawn by staff on August 17, 1988. 

 

5. DP3019-85: This development plan application allowed the expansion 

of two buildings at the subject site. 

 

6. DP82-3064: A development plan application which permitted the 

renovation of the subject shopping center. 

 

7. 546-66: This land use permit allowed Safeway Stores Inc. to establish a 

retail store at the subject site. The space Safeway occupied has 

changed tenants and is currently leased by CVS Pharmacy. 

 

 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 5 of 9 

 

8. RZ-1084: This rezoning application converted the subject property 

from Multiple Residential and Transition Residential Agricultural District 

to the current P-N-B zoning. 

 

V. SITE/AREA DESCRIPTION 

 

The subject site is located at the northeast corner of the Stone Valley Road/Danville 

Boulevard intersection in Alamo. The combined property consists of three parcels, 

Assessor’s parcel numbers: 1) 192-081-004=3.49 acres, 2) 192-071-064=2.12 acres 

and 3) 192-071-030=0.57 acres. All three parcels are developed with the Stone 

Valley Center’s retail shops and parking, with the exception of parcel 1 which 

contains a significant flood drainage channel. Parcels in the vicinity range in size 

from 0.1-acre to over 13 acres and tend to be developed with retail business 

and/or residential uses. The site is surrounded by properties zoned Planned Unit 

District (housing), Retail Business District, and R-20 Single-Family Residential 

District. Much of this commercial corridor incorporates the –S-2 Sign Control 

Combining District as an overlay district. The area is characterized by smaller office 

buildings and shops along Danville Boulevard while being surrounded by 

residential properties along the periphery. As this portion of Alamo is generally flat, 

the vast majority of land has been developed leaving few if any remaining locations 

vacant. 

 

VI. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The P-N-B District is an obsolete zoning district that is no longer applied within 

Contra Costa County. In 1966 the subject properties were rezoned from Multiple- 

Family Residential District (M-R-B) and Transition Residential Agricultural District 

(R-H) to P-N-B. This application is in response to the current needs of a modern 

retail business shopping center (e.g., outdoor seating and farmers markets). No 

physical development or site modifications are proposed at this time, and the 

project applicant has not indicated that the proposed rezoning is a precursor to 

substantial changes to the site in the future. No changes to the -S-2 are proposed. 

 

VII. AGENCY COMMENTS 

 

A. Alamo Municipal Advisory Council (AMAC): AMAC staff submitted a 

memorandum dated September 8, 2014, indicating that the project was 

unanimously recommended for approval at their September meeting. 

 

 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 6 of 9 

 

B. Alamo Improvement Association (AIA): AIA staff via a phone conversation 

indicated that the project was recommended for approval at their 

September 2014 meeting. 

 

C. East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD): In a correspondence dated 

August 11, 2014, EBMUD staff indicated that EBMUD operates and 

maintains a 48-inch pipeline located at the southern boundaries of the 

subject property. The correspondence goes on to state that no buildings or 

structures are to be located within this area. As the project does not include 

any proposed physical changes to the property, it is not expected that any 

conflicts would occur with the siting of the pipeline as a result of this 

rezoning project. 

 

D. San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District (Fire District): In a correspondence 

dated August 7, 2014, the Fire District indicated that after reviewing the 

planning application for the subject site, it had no comments on the 

proposed project. 

 

Agency comments were not received from the Central Contra Costa Sanitary 

District. 

 

VIII. STAFF ANALYSIS 

 

Appropriateness of Rezone 

 

Existing Zoning Conditions 

 

County File #RZ-1084 was approved in July of 1966 to rezone the subject site from 

Multiple Residential and Transition Residential Agricultural District to the current P-

N-B zoning. At that time Safeway Stores, Inc. along with the property owner gained 

approval of the County Board of Supervisors to develop the site with a retail 

shopping center. The development was considered appropriate for the area given 

its proximity to the Danville Boulevard/Stone Valley Road intersection and other 

retail businesses adjacent to the site and in the general area. The general footprint 

of that early development is more or less consistent with what exists at the site 

today. 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 7 of 9 

 

Comparison of Existing and Proposed Zoning Designations 

 

Uses allowed in the P-N-B district are those uses allowed in both the R-B and 

Neighborhood Business District (N-B), except the following (P-N-B, R-B, and N-B 

ordinances are attached): 

 

1. Residential uses including hotels and motels, except living 

accommodations of an accessory nature; 

2. Non-accessory signs; 

3. Roof signs, except gasoline service station signs attached to pump islands 

or pump island canopies; 

4. Cabinet shops, animal hospitals or kennels, animal or poultry husbandry, 

granaries, dehydration plants, wineries, canneries, agricultural 

warehouses, sheet metal shops, pawn shops, mortuaries, cemeteries, or 

crematoriums, and lumber yards; and 

5. Those business uses which are not maintained and conducted wholly 

within enclosed buildings. 

 

Although the proposed R-B district allows uses which tend to be more intense, the 

subject property is essentially “built-out” and is in close proximity to single-family 

residences. Any proposed use that was industrial in nature, would require approval 

from the County and must undergo its own environmental review. For those 

reasons it is unlikely that a major change in use would be considered for this site. 

Nevertheless, the primary land uses in the R-B district are generally community 

based services such as dry cleaners, restaurants and other residentially compatible 

uses. As the subject property is clearly located within Alamo’s commercial 

Downtown area, and provides such community based services, the rezoning will 

result in the property being consistent with other R-B zoned properties in the 

immediate vicinity.  

 

Additionally, the P-N-B does not allow outdoor uses of any type, such as farmers 

markets and outdoor seating, while the R-B district allows outdoor uses upon 

approval of a land use permit. Once again, outdoor uses such as contractor’s yards, 

cabinet shops and lumber yards would be unrealistic candidates for the subject 

location due to the potential environmental impacts such as noise, odor and 

vibration. Ultimately, it is most reasonable to expect that the subject site might add 

low-intensity uses such as outdoor seating for restaurants during summer months, 

and farmers markets during harvest season and potentially modifying/upgrading 

the site’s identification signage.  

 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

Table 1. below provides a comparison of the development standards of each 

district. Both zoning districts require approval of a development plan application 

prior to developing a particular site. It is that review process that allows County 

decision makers and the public alike (public comment/appeal process) to 

determine what uses are appropriate for the subject site. Therefore, given that both 

zoning districts are intended to allow neighborhood service oriented businesses, 

and the fact that the P-N-B zone no longer allows the flexibility of a modern retail 

shopping center and the fact that the County has abolished all other zoning 

districts of its kind, the P-N-B zone is no longer necessary or appropriate for this 

site. 

 

Table 1. Zoning Comparison Between P-N-B and R-B,  

Topic PNB R-B R-B, More 
or Less 
Restrictive 

    
Minimum Lot Area Discretionary 3,500 sq.ft. More 
Average Width Discretionary 35 More 
Side Yards Discretionary None Less 
Front Setback Discretionary 10 ft. from 

road/hwy 
 

More 

Building Height Max 2.5 stories or 30 ft. 
to top plate; signs 
= 25 ft. max 

50 ft. Less 

Development Plan Req’d Yes Yes Same 
Lot Coverage 25% Max N/A Less 
Parking 2.5 sq.ft. of 

parking for every 1 
sq.ft. of building 

County Off-Street 
Parking Ordinance 
would apply. 

Less 

    
Variances Allowed? Yes Yes Same 

    

Source: Title 8 Zoning Code 

 

General Plan Consistency 

 

The subject property is designated a combination of Commercial (CO) and Single-

Family Residential-Low Density (SL). The SL portion of the site covers the flood 

control channel and does not impact the retail portion of the site which is entirely 

designated as CO. Table 3-5 (Consistency Between the General Plan and the 



Planning Commission, November 18, 2014  
County File #RZ14-3227 

Page 9 of 9 

 

Zoning Ordinance – attached) outlines which specific zoning districts are consistent 

with each General Plan designation, and those which might be considered 

consistent with the Plan category, depending on the particular use. As indicated 

within that table, the General Plan designation of CO is consistent with the R-B 

zoning district. As such, the CO designation allows for a broad range of commercial 

uses typically found in smaller scale neighborhood, community and thoroughfare 

commercial districts, including retail and personal service facilities, limited office, 

and financial uses. Therefore, the proposed R-B zoning is appropriate for this 

particular site. 

 

IX. CONCLUSION 

 

The subject property was initially zoned Multiple Residential and Transition 

Residential Agricultural District and rezoned to the current P-N-B zoning to allow 

the establishment of the existing retail shopping center at the site. The P-N-B 

zoning district is antiquated and is no longer utilized within the County. Given that 

the proposed R-B zoning district requires an equivalent level of County review, the 

current zoning is unnecessary and inappropriately limits development. Therefore, 

staff recommends that the County Planning Commission adopt a motion 

recommending that the Board of Supervisors adopt the Negative Declaration for 

the project and approve County File #RZ14-3227 to rezone the portion of the 

property zoned P-N-B  to R-B. 



































































RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE the Final Emergency Ambulance Request for Proposal (RFP) with the specific changes as approved by

the Board (EMS Director Pat Frost, EMS Agency RFP Facilitator Art Lathrop, and RFP Consultant Rick Keller).

DIRECT the Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Agency, with the assistance of Fitch and Associates to submit the

RFP to the California State EMS Authority (EMSA) and upon State approval release the RFP unless the State

Authority determines the need for substantive changes which would be brought back to the Board for direction.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No general fund impact

BACKGROUND: 

On December 16, 2014 the Board of Supervisors gave direction to the EMS Agency and Fitch consultants to finalize

the Emergency Ambulance RFP for ERA Zone I, II and V and address Fire and EMS stakeholder comments and

recommendations received at the December 16th Board meeting. The Board requested that each recommendation be

responded to and where possible provide options for the Board to consider for potential inclusion in the RFP. Upon

the final approval, the draft RFP will be prepared for submission to the California State EMS Authority. 

EMS staff/RFP consultant responses are attached with final draft of the RFP for approval posted on the Board website

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Patricia Frost

313-9554

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: J Pigg,   Patricia Frost,   C Rucker   

D.6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Emergency Ambulance Request for Proposal (RFP) for Exclusive Response Areas (ERA) I, II and V 



as of January 7th. All documents associated with this Emergency Ambulance RFP process can be found at

http://cchealth.org/ems/system-review.php#simpleContained8.

Status of RFP Timeline (subject to change)



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Date Action Item

8/5/2014 EMS Agency recommendations for RFP direction associated with EMS Modernization report to BOS

(completed)

9/17/2014 RFP Stakeholder Development Workshop (completed)

9/23/2014 Fire BOS RFP Workshop (completed)

9/25/2014 BOS submission deadline for 10/7 (completed)

10/21/2014 Draft RFP Workshop to BOS including stakeholder input (completed)

12/3/2014 RFP Status Update to EMCC

12/9/2014 Draft RFP Posted to EMS website and distributed to Board and EMS stakeholders with request for

written comment

12/16/2014 Draft RFP to BOS for discussion and direction to finalize

1/7/2015 Final Draft RFP and responses to stakeholder and public comment posted on EMS website and

distributed to Board and EMS Stakeholders

1/13/2015 Final Draft RFP to BOS for discussion and approval

Jan TBD RFP to California EMS Authority (EMSA) for approval

All dates below are to be determined after EMSA approval

Feb TBD EMSA RFP amendment period (if required)

Feb/April 2015 Final RFP to BOS for Approval if EMSA amendment required

Feb/April 2015 Final RFP Released to Bidders

April/May 2015 Proposer's Conference

May/June 2015 Proposals Due

June 2015 Review Panel Evaluation Period

July 2015 Recommendation of Review Panel to Health Officer

July 2015 Health Officer recommendation to BOS Intent to Award

July/Aug 2015 Final Contract Preparation Period

Aug/Sep 2015 Final Contract Approved by BOS

Sept 2015 Ambulance Provider Transition Planning Period

1/1/2016 New Contract Start

Modified 12/16/2014

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Approval and opening of the emergency ambulance RFP for zones I, II and V may be delayed. Delays may

require extension of the Fitch RFP consultant and current emergency ambulance provider contracts may need to

be extended.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Approximately 8-10% of EMS system services are provided to children.

ATTACHMENTS

EMS RFP Draft 12-31-14 

EMS RFP Draft 12-31-14 - Redlined version 

Power Point Presentation EMS RFP 



Page i 

Request for Proposals 

Exclusive Operator for Emergency Ambulance Service
Contra Costa County, California  

 

 

Release Date:  
Proposal Due Date:  

Time: 4:00 PST 
 

Return Location:

Contra Costa County EMS Agency

1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126
Martinez, CA 94553

Attention: Patricia Frost



Page i 

 

Table of Contents 

SECTION I. EMS SYSTEM SUMMARY ________________________________________________________ 1 

A. OVERVIEW _______________________________________________________________________________ 1 
B. EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREAS (EOAS) _____________________________________________________________ 2 
C. PROPOSALS MUST INCLUDE RESPONSE TO TWO SERVICE PLANS _____________________________________________ 2 
D. BACKGROUND ____________________________________________________________________________3
E. OVERVIEW OF EMS SYSTEM ____________________________________________________________________ 4 
F. LOCAL EMS AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES ____________________________________________________________ 7 
G. CONTRA COSTA EMS SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS ________________________________________________________ 7 

1. Call Transfer and Dispatch _______________________________________________________________________________ 7 
2. Call Density Response Zones, Response Time Requirements and Non-performance Penalties 

Established ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 
3. Provider Fatigue __________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 
4. No Subsidy System ________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 

H. RELEVANT INFORMATION REGARDING SERVICE AREAS ____________________________________________________ 8 
1. Historical Service Volume ________________________________________________________________________________ 9 
2. Current Ambulance Service Rates _______________________________________________________________________ 9 
3. ALS Ground Ambulance Transports Not Originating from 9-1-1 _______________________________________ 9 
4. Payer Mix__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

SECTION II. PROCUREMENT INFORMATION _________________________________________________ 10 

A. PERFORMANCE-BASED CONTRACT _______________________________________________________________ 10 
B. NOTICE TO PROPOSERS ______________________________________________________________________ 10 
C. USE OF OWN EXPERTISE AND JUDGMENT ___________________________________________________________ 11 
D. PROCUREMENT TIME LINE ____________________________________________________________________ 11 
E. PROCUREMENT PROCESS ____________________________________________________________________ 11 

1. Pre-proposal Process ____________________________________________________________________________________ 11 
2. Mandatory Proposers’ Conference ______________________________________________________________________ 11 
3. Proposal Submission _____________________________________________________________________________________ 12 
4. Public Proposal Opening ________________________________________________________________________________ 12 
5. Additional Proposer Responsibilities ___________________________________________________________________ 12 
6. Notice of Intent to Award _______________________________________________________________________________ 13 

F. PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS ____________________________________________________________________ 13 
1. Proposal Format _________________________________________________________________________________________13
2. Required Proposal Format ______________________________________________________________________________ 13 

G. PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCESS _______________________________________________________________ 14 
1. Proposal Review Panel __________________________________________________________________________________ 14 
2. Proposal Review Process ________________________________________________________________________________ 15 
3. Method for Competitive Scoring of Price Proposals ____________________________________________________ 17 
4. Independent Financial Analysis _________________________________________________________________________ 17 
5. Post-submission Presentation ___________________________________________________________________________ 17 
6. Investigation _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 18 
7. Notification ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 18 
8. Debriefing ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 18 
9. Protest ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 18 
10. Withdrawal of Proposals ________________________________________________________________________________ 20 
11. Canceling the Procurement Process after Opening ____________________________________________________ 20 
12. Award ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 21 
13. Scoring Criteria __________________________________________________________________________________________ 21 



Table of Contents 

Page ii 

14. RFP Governed by Its Terms ______________________________________________________________________________ 22 
H. SCORING MATRIX _________________________________________________________________________ 22 

SECTION III. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS ___________________________________________________ 23 

A. ORGANIZATIONAL DISCLOSURES ________________________________________________________________ 23 
1. Organizational ownership and legal structure _________________________________________________________ 23 
2. Continuity of business ___________________________________________________________________________________ 23 
3. Licenses and permits ____________________________________________________________________________________ 23 
4. Government investigations ______________________________________________________________________________ 23 
5. Litigation _________________________________________________________________________________________________ 23 

B. EXPERIENCE AS SOLE PROVIDER ________________________________________________________________ 24 
1. Demonstrate Capability in Lieu of Experience _________________________________________________________ 24 
2. Comparable experience _________________________________________________________________________________ 24 
3. Government contracts ___________________________________________________________________________________ 24 
4. Contract Compliance ____________________________________________________________________________________ 24 

C. DEMONSTRATED RESPONSE TIME PERFORMANCE ______________________________________________________ 25 
D. DEMONSTRATED HIGH LEVEL CLINICAL CARE ________________________________________________________ 25 

SECTION IV. CORE REQUIREMENTS _______________________________________________________ 26 

A. TWO SERVICE PLANS ARE TO BE ADDRESSED _________________________________________________________ 26 
B. CONTRACTOR’S FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES _______________________________________________________ 26 

1. Basic Services ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 26 
2. Services Description _____________________________________________________________________________________ 27 

C. CLINICAL ______________________________________________________________________________ 27 
1. Clinical Overview ________________________________________________________________________________________ 27 
2. EMS System Medical Oversight__________________________________________________________________________ 28 
3. Minimum Clinical Levels and Staffing Requirements __________________________________________________ 29 

D. OPERATIONS ____________________________________________________________________________ 32 
1. Operations Overview ____________________________________________________________________________________ 32 
2. Transport Requirement and Limitations _______________________________________________________________ 33 
3. Response Time Performance Requirements ____________________________________________________________ 34 
4. Modifications During the Term of Agreement __________________________________________________________ 36 
5. Response Time Measurement Methodology ____________________________________________________________ 37 
6. Response Time Exceptions and Exception Requests ____________________________________________________ 39 
7. Response-time Performance Reporting Procedures and Penalty Provisions _________________________ 41 
8. Fleet Requirement _______________________________________________________________________________________ 45 
9. Coverage and Dedicated Ambulances, Use of Stations/Posts __________________________________________ 45 

E. PERSONNEL _____________________________________________________________________________ 45 
1. Treatment of Incumbent Work Force ___________________________________________________________________ 45 
2. Character, Competence and Professionalism of Personnel ____________________________________________ 46 
3. Internal Health and Safety Programs __________________________________________________________________ 46 
4. Evolving OSHA & Other Regulatory Requirements _____________________________________________________ 47 
5. Discrimination Not Allowed _____________________________________________________________________________ 47 

F. MANAGEMENT ___________________________________________________________________________ 47 
1. Data and Reporting Requirements _____________________________________________________________________ 47 

G. EMS SYSTEM AND COMMUNITY ________________________________________________________________ 51 
1. Participation in EMS System Development _____________________________________________________________ 51 
2. Accreditation ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 51 
3. Multi-casualty/Disaster Response ______________________________________________________________________ 51 
4. Mutual-aid and Stand-by Services ______________________________________________________________________ 53 
5. Permitted Subcontracting _______________________________________________________________________________ 53 
6. Communities May Contract Directly for Level of Effort ________________________________________________ 53 
7. Supply Exchange and Restock ___________________________________________________________________________ 54 



Table of Contents 

Page iii 

8. Handling Service Inquiries and Complaints ____________________________________________________________ 54 
H. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS __________________________________________________________________ 54 

1. Contractor Payments for Procurement Costs, County Compliance Monitoring, Contract Management, 
and Regulatory Activities (Plan B only) ________________________________________________________________ 54 

2. No System Subsidy _______________________________________________________________________________________ 54 
3. Contractor Revenue Recovery ___________________________________________________________________________ 55 
4. Federal Healthcare Program Compliance Provisions __________________________________________________ 55 
5. State Compliance Provisions ____________________________________________________________________________ 56 
6. Billing/Collection Services ______________________________________________________________________________ 56 
7. Market Rights ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 57 
8. Accounting Procedures __________________________________________________________________________________ 58 
9. County Permit ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 58 
10. Insurance Provisions ____________________________________________________________________________________ 59 
11. Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification / Taxes / Contributions _________________________________ 59 
12. Performance Security Bond _____________________________________________________________________________ 59 
13. Term of Agreement ______________________________________________________________________________________ 60 
14. Earned Extension to Agreement ________________________________________________________________________ 60 
15. Continuous Service Delivery _____________________________________________________________________________ 60 
16. Annual Performance Evaluation ________________________________________________________________________ 60 
17. Default and Provisions for Termination of the Agreement ____________________________________________ 61 
18. Termination ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 62 
19. Emergency Takeover ____________________________________________________________________________________ 62 
20. Transition Planning _____________________________________________________________________________________ 64 
21. LEMSA's Remedies _______________________________________________________________________________________ 64 
22. Provisions for Curing Material Breach and Emergency Take Over ____________________________________ 64 
23. "Lame-duck" Provisions _________________________________________________________________________________ 65 
24. General Provisions _______________________________________________________________________________________ 66 

SECTION V. COMPETITIVE CRITERIA _______________________________________________________ 69 

A. CLINICAL ______________________________________________________________________________ 69 
1. Competitive Criterion: Quality Improvement___________________________________________________________ 69 
2. Competitive Criterion: Clinical and Operational Benchmarking ______________________________________ 72 
3. Competitive Criterion: Dedicated Clinical Oversight Personnel _______________________________________ 74 
4. Competitive Criterion: Medical Direction _______________________________________________________________ 75 
5. Competitive Criteria: Focus on Patients and Other Customers ________________________________________ 76 
6. Competitive Criterion: Continuing Education Program Requirements _______________________________ 77 

B. OPERATIONS ____________________________________________________________________________ 77 
1. Competitive Criterion: Dispatch and Communications ________________________________________________ 77 
2. Competitive Criterion: Vehicles _________________________________________________________________________ 79 
3. Competitive Criterion: Equipment ______________________________________________________________________ 80 
4. Competitive Criterion: Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance _________________________________________ 81 
5. Competitive Criterion: Deployment Planning __________________________________________________________ 82 

C. PERSONNEL _____________________________________________________________________________ 83 
1. Competitive Criterion: Field Supervision _______________________________________________________________ 83 
2. Competitive Criterion: Work Schedules _________________________________________________________________ 83 
3. Competitive Criterion: Internal Risk Management/Loss Control Program ___________________________ 84 
4. Competitive Criterion: Workforce Engagement________________________________________________________85

D. MANAGEMENT ___________________________________________________________________________ 86 
1. Competitive Criterion:  Key Personnel __________________________________________________________________ 86 

E. EMS SYSTEM AND COMMUNITY ________________________________________________________________ 87 
1. Competitive Criterion:  Supporting Improvement in the First Response System _____________________ 87 
2. Competitive Criterion:  Health Status Improvement and Community Education _____________________ 88 

F. INTEGRATION WITH HEALTHCARE PROVIDERS _________________________________________________________ 90 
1. Competitive Criterion:  Collaboration with Healthcare Providers ____________________________________ 90 



Table of Contents 

Page iv 

SECTION VI. FINANCIAL CRITERIA ________________________________________________________ 92
A. FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND STABILITY _____________________________________________________________ 92 
B. FINANCIAL SITUATION DOCUMENTS ______________________________________________________________ 92 

1. Financial Statements ____________________________________________________________________________________92
2. Audited Statements ______________________________________________________________________________________ 92 
3. Financial Commitments _________________________________________________________________________________ 92 
4. Working Capital _________________________________________________________________________________________ 92 
5. Performance Security ___________________________________________________________________________________ 93 
6. Financial Interests _______________________________________________________________________________________ 93 

C. FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS _____________________________________________________________________ 93 
1. Revenue projections _____________________________________________________________________________________ 93 
2. Revenue Flow Projections _______________________________________________________________________________ 93 
3. Expense Projections _____________________________________________________________________________________ 93 
4. One-Time Start Up and Capital Items ___________________________________________________________________ 94 
5. Pro Forma Summary ____________________________________________________________________________________ 94 

D. PRICING _______________________________________________________________________________ 94 

TABLE 1. CONTRA COSTA COUNTY POPULATION CENTERS   ______________________________________________________________ 4
TABLE 2. ESTIMATED PAYER MIX   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 9
TABLE 3. SCORING ALLOCATION   ______________________________________________________________________________________ 21
TABLE 4. PROPOSAL REVIEW SCORING ALLOCATIONS   _________________________________________________________________ 22
TABLE 5. RESPONSE TIME COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAN A ALL CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

ZONES   _________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 36
TABLE 6. RESPONSE TIME COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAN B   _________________________________________________ 36
TABLE 7. COUNTY RESPONSE TIME PENALTIES  _______________________________________________________________________ 42
TABLE 8. OUTLIER RESPONSE TIME PENALTIES   _______________________________________________________________________ 43
TABLE 9. BREACH EVENTS AND PENALTIES   ___________________________________________________________________________ 44

 
APPENDICES:

1. Mandatory Table of Contents 
2. Map of Exclusive Operating Area 
3. Emergency Response Zone Maps 
4. County Ambulance Ordinance 
5. Current Ambulance Zones Map 
6. Call Density Response Areas in EOA 
7. Current Ambulance Rates 
8. Procurement Timeline 
9. Required Forms 
10. Stipulated Ambulance Charges 

11. Subsidy Request Form 
12. Insurance Requirements 
13. Sample Standard County Contract 
14. Basis for Revenue Projections Template 
15. Revenue Flow Projection Template 
16. Expense Budget Templates 
17. One-Time Expense and Capital Budget 

Template 
18. Pro Forma Budget Summary Template 
19. ALS Interfacility Price Sheet 

 
 



Page 1 

 SECTION I. EMS SYSTEM SUMMARY 

A. Overview 
Request for Proposals:  The County of Contra Costa (County) is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. State law confers on the county’s Local Emergency Medical Services Agency (LEMSA) the 
authority to designate exclusive operating areas (EOA) and to select its emergency ambulance 
service providers through a competitive process. (California Health and Safety Code, Section 
1797.224) Contra Costa County is conducting this procurement and is seeking a qualified ambulance 
service provider to deliver these and certain related services in accordance with the expectations set 
forth in this Request for Proposals (RFP). 

Each entity responding to this RFP (Proposer) shall submit a written response (Proposal) setting 
forth the Proposer’s qualifications and plans for meeting or exceeding the performance expectations 
set forth in this RFP. Proposals must be organized to address each of the items and in the exact order 

shown in the “Mandatory Table of Contents for Proposals” in Appendix 1. 

 
The outcome of this RFP will be the selection of a Proposer (Contractor) with whom the County will 
negotiate an exclusive, performance-based agreement (Agreement) for the provision of 1) an 
emergency medical transportation system at a “paramedic Advanced Life Support” (ALS) level of 
service; and 2) non-emergency ALS ambulance transports originating in Contra Costa County. This 
includes the exclusive right and obligation to (i) respond to 9-1-1 calls and other emergency or 
urgent medical call requests made through the County PSAPs public safety agencies, and other 
sources (Emergency Ambulance Requests), (ii) provide care and/or transport patients within the 
emergency medical services (EMS) system, and (iii) provide care and/or transport other patients 
requiring ALS ambulance service, when the transports originate in the EOA. 
 
The performance expectations set forth in this RFP and the performance commitments set forth in 
the selected Proposal will be incorporated in the Agreement as mandatory performance standards. 
 
Policy Goals of the Procurement:  The County’s overarching goals in the conduct of this procurement 
process are to: (1) promote public health and safety by preventing the loss of life; (2) minimize the 
physical pain of patients; (3) reduce the costs associated with catastrophic injury or illness; and (4) 
ensure good value in return for the investments of the customer and the community. 

To achieve these overarching goals, the County is working to promote a quality EMS system that 
includes the following essential elements: 

Prevention and early recognition 
Bystander action/system access 
Medical Dispatch 
Telephone protocols and pre-arrival instructions 
First responder and ambulance dispatch 
First responder services 
Transport ambulance services 



Page 2 

Exchange of health information among providers 
Integration of healthcare providers to improve survival and recovery 
Direct (on-line) medical control 
Receiving facility interface 
Indirect (off-line) medical control 
Independent monitoring 

 
The County is taking a comprehensive systems approach to the overall EMS system of which 
ambulance services are one important part. The RFP accordingly identifies geographic and density-
based response time zones and calls for the Contractor to meet specified response times within 
defined timeframes in each of these zones. 
 
This approach also calls for the County to maintain EMS coordination, oversight, and accountability, 
while allowing the Contractor the flexibility to use its expertise and entrepreneurial talent to manage 
its day-to-day operations. This model is intended to promote high-quality clinical care, efficiency, 
economy, reliability, and operational and financial stability. 
 

B. Exclusive Operating Areas (EOAs) 
Proposers shall submit a Proposal for the designated Exclusive Operating Area (EOA). The 
Designated EOA covers most of the territory of Contra Costa County.  Not included in the Designated 
EOA for this procurement are two smaller EOAs covering the territories of the San Ramon Valley and 
the Moraga-Orinda Fire Protection Districts where paramedic ambulance services are provided by 
the respective fire districts. (See Map of EOA in Appendix 2) 
 
Proposers must agree to provide the services referred to above for the EOA without any qualification 
or variation other than as expressly set forth in this RFP. 
 

C. Proposals Must Include Response to Two Service Plans 
The LEMSA has determined that the interests of the County can best be met by including two (2) 
service plans for the provision of emergency medical services within the EOA. These plans are 
designated Plan A and Plan B. 
 
Plan A includes minor changes in the current system design, performance requirements, and 
measurement zones. Plan B incorporates more changes as proposed in the March 2014 “EMS 
Modernization Project Report” (available at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/system-
review.php#simpleContained4 ) to respond to operational, financial, and clinical trends and findings. 
 
Each proposer is required to respond to both of the Plans. 



Page 3 

D. Background 
The County has historically designated five ambulance zones. Plan A consolidates two of the Zones in 
East County (D & E) while Plan B consolidates two additional Zones (A & B) in West County. The Zone 
maps are included in Appendix 3. 
 
The County has established an ambulance ordinance (83-28) that establishes broad standards for the 
operations, equipment, and personnel of pre-hospital emergency care services A copy of the 
ordinance that may be amended is attached hereto in Appendix 4. 
 
Additionally, requirements that are more specific can be found in the County’s policies, which are 
incorporated into the provider agreements. Any successful proposer will be required to have a 
provider agreement administered by the LEMSA. The County Policies and Procedures can be 
downloaded at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/policies.php. 
 
The EOA is a mix of urban, rural, and wilderness areas. Table 1 (below) lists the county cities and 
communities with their population. 
 

  



Page 4 

Table 1. Contra Costa County Population Centers1

Community 

 

Population  
2013 estimate U.S. 

Census 

ER Zone (*) Notes Rural 
Response Area 

Requirements Included 
Richmond 107,571 A 
San Pablo 29,685 B 
El Cerrito 24,086 B 
El Sobrante 12,669 B 
Kensington 5,077 B 
Pinole 18,902 B 
Hercules 24,848 B 
Rodeo 8,679 B 
Crockett 3,094 B 
Port Costa 190 Rural B 
Concord 125,880 C 
Martinez 37,165 C 
Pleasant Hill 34,127 C 
Pacheco 3,685 C 
Clayton 11,505 C 
Clyde 678 C 
Walnut Creek 66,900 C
Lafayette 25,053 C 
Orinda 18,681 MOFD 
Moraga 16,771 MOFD 
Canyon 842 MOFD 
Alamo 14,570 SRFD 
Danville 43,341 SRFD 
Diablo 1,158 SRFD 
San Ramon 72,313 SRFD 
Blackhawk 9,354 SRFD 
Antioch 107,100 D 
Pittsburg 66,695 D 
Bay Point 21,349 D 
Oakley 38,194 E 
Bethel Island 2,137 Rural E 
Knightsen 1,568 Rural E 
Brentwood 55,000 E 
Discovery Bay 13,352 Rural E 
Byron 1,277 Rural E 
Unincorporated 70,509 NA 

Total 1,094,205   

In conducting a competitive process for the provision of emergency ambulance services, Contra Costa 
County is meeting the mandates of the California EMS Act and the Health and Safety Code, Division 
2.5, available at www.emsa.ca.gov.
 

E. Overview of EMS System 
Contra Costa County's LEMSA, as designated by the County Board of Supervisors pursuant to the 
California EMS Act, is the Contra Costa Health Services Department. The governing body of the 
LEMSA is the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Executive Officer, or Director, is the County Health 
Services Director. Day-to-day activities and oversight of the County's EMS system is carried out by 
the County EMS Agency, which is a division of Contra Costa Health Services. Key positions within the 
County EMS Agency include the County EMS Director, who oversees County EMS activities, and the 

                           
1 Ibid 



Page 5 

County EMS Medical Director, who provides EMS medical oversight pursuant to State law. Both these 
positions report to the Health Services Director, who is the LEMSA director. 
 
A County ambulance ordinance regulates both emergency and non-emergency ambulance service. 
Emergency ambulance service is further regulated through exclusive operating agreements in each of 
the County’s three EOAs. First responder services are provided by six fire districts and three 
municipal fire departments. Most first responder services are provided at the paramedic level in 
accordance with County first responder agreements. Eight hospitals within the county are licensed to 
provide Basic Emergency Services and designated as emergency ambulance receiving centers. One of 
these, John Muir Medical Center in Walnut Creek, is a County-designated Level II Trauma Center. The 
County also has five designated ST-elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) receiving centers and six 
stroke receiving centers. Two air ambulances (CalSTAR and REACH) are based in Contra Costa 
County. 
 
Requests for assistance to medical emergencies typically are made through the 9-1-1 phone system. 
These calls are answered at a primary Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) and, when identified as 
involving a medical emergency, transferred to one of three County-designated medical 
communications centers located at San Ramon Valley Fire (serving San Ramon Valley Fire), 
Richmond Police (serving Richmond and El Cerrito Fire Departments), and Contra Costa County Fire 
(serving Contra Costa County Fire, East Contra Costa County Fire, Rodeo-Hercules Fire, Pinole Fire, 
Crockett-Carquinez Fire, and Moraga-Orinda Fire). 
 
Personnel at the medical communications centers identify the caller’s needs in accordance with EMS 
priority dispatch protocols, dispatch and/or request appropriate EMS resources, and provide pre-
arrival instructions when appropriate. For the areas covered by this RFP, dispatch information, 
including the ambulance request, is transferred to the ambulance service from Contra Costa County 
Fire dispatch or Richmond Police dispatch via the Message Transmission Network (MTN), a direct 
microwave linkage between the medical communications center and ambulance dispatch computer 
systems. The ambulance contractor is responsible for establishing and maintaining the necessary 
hardware and software at the contractor’s dispatch center to integrate with the County MTN. The 
ambulance contractor is also responsible for the actual dispatch of requested ambulance resources 
(specification is available at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/pdf/mtnspec_v1.5.pdf). 
 
The initial response to a potentially life threatening incident includes both a first response unit and a 
paramedic-staffed ambulance. Most fire first response is at the paramedic level. Richmond, East 
Contra Costa County, and Crockett-Carquinez Fire provide first response at the Basic Life Support 
(BLS) level. 
 
Emergency ambulance service is currently provided by the County's three emergency ambulance 
contractors, American Medical Response in the areas covered by this RFP covering about 90 percent 
of the County and by San Ramon Valley Fire and by Moraga-Orinda Fire in their respective districts. 
 
All ambulances responding on emergency calls are required to have one paramedic and one 
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) as minimum staffing. Ambulances may be dispatched Code 3 



Page 6 

(lights and siren) or Code 2 (immediate response without lights or siren) depending on the priority 
assigned by the medical communications center. 
 
Currently, the Designated EOA is divided into five (5) Emergency Response Zones (ERZ’s) for 
calculation of ambulance response times and penalties. The zones, shown in Appendix 5, are: 

ERZ A—The City of Richmond 
ERZ B – West County including the Cities of El Cerrito and Pinole Fire Departments, Rodeo-
Hercules Fire Protection District, Kensington Fire Protection District, Crockett-Carquinez 
Fire Protection District, the portion of the Contra Costa County Fire Protection district 
covering San Palo, El Sobrante, North Richmond, and surrounding unincorporated areas. 
ERZ C—Central County including the area of Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 
covering the Cities of Clayton, Concord, Lafayette, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, and Walnut Creek 
and surrounding unincorporated areas served by Contra Costa County Fire. 
ERZ D—East County including Antioch, Bay Point and Pittsburg and surrounding 
unincorporated areas served by Contra Costa County Fire. 
ERZ E—Far East County including Oakley and Brentwood and unincorporated areas served 
by East Contra Costa County Fire Protection District. 

 
Patient treatment and transport are carried out under State laws and regulations, as well as County 
EMS Agency policies and procedures. These policies may include, in the case of paramedics, making 
contact with a mobile intensive care nurse (MICN) or physician at a designated base hospital to 
obtain direction in management of the patient. Patients are transported to appropriate receiving 
facilities. Hospital destination is based upon patient preference and County EMS protocols. Critical 
patients are normally transported to a nearby emergency department or to a specialty care center 
(trauma, STEMI, stroke), as appropriate. Non-critical patients may be transported to hospitals of 
choice within reasonable travel time. Note that County EMS protocols may require transport of 
certain patients to out-of-county specialty centers or hospital emergency departments. Medical 
helicopter service is available to transport critical patients when ground ambulance transport time 
would be excessive and patients meet helicopter transport criteria. 
 
As a part of the STEMI Receiving Center system, the County, in 2011, began implementation of 12-
lead EKG transmission from the field to receiving hospital. The ambulance contractor will be 
responsible for the continued support of this system. 
 
Further information regarding Contra Costa's EMS system can be found in the Contra Costa County 
Emergency Medical Services Agency's "2013 Annual Program Report" and in the "Emergency Medical 
Services System Plan" approved by the Emergency Medical Care Committee and adopted by the 
County Board of Supervisors. Both of these documents are available at the Emergency Medical 
Services Agency and on the County EMS website at http://cchealth.org/ems/documents.php. 
 

  



Page 7 

F. Local EMS Agency Responsibilities 
It is the LEMSA’s responsibility to: 

Select and enter into an Agreement with the Contractor; 
Provide contract administration and management services for the Agreement; 
Monitor the EMS system’s performance and compliance with the performance based 
specifications applicable to the Contractor; 
Commit to the continued collaboration to provide high quality first response service on life-
threatening incidents; 
Provide medical direction for the system; 
Develop and modify EMS system protocols and procedures; 
Create and sustain coordinated specialty systems of care e.g. Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, Cardiac 
Arrest, etc.; 
Contract with base hospitals to provide on-line medical control; and 
Secure or provide, in the event of Contractor’s default, an alternative EMS delivery system. 

 

G. Contra Costa EMS System Improvements 
Changes and improvements in EMS have occurred during the last 10 years and healthcare has 
changed considerably as has EMS. Numerous studies have been undertaken to ascertain which 
practices will produce the best patient outcomes and what actions will have minimal positive 
impacts. Technology has allowed EMS to improve response times and productivity and to provide 
data for identifying practices that will deliver positive results for the patients and the system. 
 
In preparation for this RFP, the County conducted a review of current practices in collaboration with 
system stakeholders. The process identified improvement opportunities in the Contra Costa EMS 
System. Although it is not the LEMSA’s intent or desire to create the most expensive, high-
performance EMS system in the country, the LEMSA is committed to ensuring that EMS services are 
delivered at the comparable level of quality and performance enjoyed by users in other good quality 
and reliably performing EMS systems. 
 
The LEMSA is pursuing its overall goal to update the local EMS system through incorporating system 
improvements in this RFP and its resulting Agreement. 
 
Changes to the Contra Costa County EMS system are designed to strategically match emergency 
ambulance resource to patient need, and improve care to patients without undue financial or 
operational hardship on the Contractor. 

1. Call Transfer and Dispatch  

The goal for the EMS system is that all Emergency Ambulance Requests for medical assistance be 
promptly transferred (within 60 seconds) from the medical communications centers to the 
Contractor. The goal is also for all calls to be prioritized as to acuity level according to protocols 
approved by the LEMSA. When appropriate, all callers will receive emergency medical pre-arrival 
instructions according to protocols approved by the LEMSA. 



Page 8 

2. Call Density Response Zones, Response Time Requirements and Non-performance 
Penalties Established 

Call Density Response Zones are defined within the EOA. The requirements are based on an analysis 
of the historical volume and density of calls, as well as population density and city boundaries. 
Performance requirements are based on call location and call acuity (Priority 1, 2 or 3) as 
determined through emergency medical dispatch protocols. The details of the response time 
requirements are provided in detail in Section IV.C.3. 
 
The Contractor’s response time clock begins when the call is time stamped as received by the 
Contractor’s dispatch center. 
 
Response time compliance is to be maintained on 90% of all calls. Failure to perform will result in 
financial penalties and may cause the replacement of the Contractor as described in Section IV.C.7. 
 
Appendix 6 includes maps indicating the Call Density Response Zones within the EOA. 

3. Provider Fatigue 

Provider fatigue and the impairment associated with the fatigue pose a significant safety risk for 
patients, partners, and others in the community. Crewmembers working on ambulances in Contra 
Costa County shall not be scheduled to work shifts longer than 24 consecutive hours and shall not 
remain on duty for longer than 36 consecutive hours due to late calls or unscheduled holdovers. A 
rest period of at least 12 consecutive hours between shifts is required. The only exception will be a 
County declared disaster. 

4. No Subsidy System 

The Contra Costa County EMS system operated for years without subsidy to ambulance providers. It 
is the LEMSA’s desire that Contra Costa County emergency ambulance providers will continue to 
operate within the system without additional subsidy, but the financial and operational trends 
identified in the “EMS Modernization Report” indicate that the operational status quo may require 
funding support. Plan A includes the opportunity for quantifying additional funds needed by the 
Contractor during the term of the Agreement, if necessary. Plan B assumes no subsidy from the 
County or LEMSA. 
 

H. Relevant Information Regarding Service Areas 
The LEMSA makes no representations, promises, or guarantees concerning the actual number of 
emergency and non-emergency calls or transports, number of patients or distance of transports 
associated with this procurement. Every effort has been made to provide accurate information, but 
Proposers will need to use their professional judgment and expertise to develop estimates, economic 
models and operational plans and proposals. 



Page 9 

1. Historical Service Volume 

Call volume in the EOA are included in the EMS Agency’s annual report and can be downloaded 
at http://cchealth.org/ems/pdf/annual-report-2013.pdf. Three years of call data including date and 
time of call, priority of call, longitude/latitude, location, and city are available at ##############. 
The location information has been altered to mask actual response locations by randomly adding or 
subtracting a number between one (1) and four (4) from the numerical portion of the street address. 
There has been no independent validation of this data and Proposers are encouraged to use their 
own means to analyze the information to determine response and transport volumes. The LEMSA 
does not guarantee any number of responses or transports. 

2. Current Ambulance Service Rates 

Current providers are required to receive approval of rates from the LEMSA and County. The current 
ambulance service rates are included in Appendix 7. 

3. ALS Ground Ambulance Transports Not Originating from 9-1-1 

Ground ALS ambulance transports originating within the EOA that are not routed through the 
Emergency Ambulance Request (9-1-1) system – specifically the ALS interfacility transports – are 
included in the EOA scope of services. These transports were not previously included in the EOA’s 
exclusivity and the quantity, origins, destinations, and time of calls are not available. The Agreement 
will include such transports, granting the Contractor the exclusive right to provide these services and 
the Proposers should use their own expertise while conducting their due diligence to quantify the 
ALS interfacility transports. 

4. Payer Mix 

The current provider reports the following transport volume and payer mix information in Table 2. 
 

Table 2. Estimated Payer Mix 

Payer Percent of Transports 

Medicare & Medicare HMO 42.9% 

Medi-Cal & Medi-Cal HMO 26.3% 

Insurance 14.4% 

Private Pay & Other 16.4% 

Total 100.0% 

Since the payer mix determines potential revenue recovery and anticipated healthcare changes may 
have a significant impact on the payers, the Agreement will provide that should the Contractor 
demonstrate to the LEMSA’s satisfaction that the insured category is at least three (3) percent lower 
than listed or that the MediCal or self pay category is at least three (3) percentage points higher than 
identified, the variation will be grounds for a rate adjustment as provided in Section IV.G.3.b. For 
example, if Medi-Cal transport percentages exceed 29.3% the Contractor can request a rate 
adjustment. 



Page 10 

 SECTION II. PROCUREMENT INFORMATION 

A. Performance-based Contract 
The result of this procurement will be the award of a performance-based contract. The Agreement 
will require the Contractor to achieve and maintain high levels of performance and reliability. The 
demonstration of effort, even diligent and well-intended effort, will not suffice to meet the 
requirements of the Agreement with respect to prescribed performance requirements. Failure to 
meet specified service standards will result in financial penalties and may lead to termination of the 
Agreement. 
 
The essential areas where performance must be achieved include: 

Ambulance response times; 
Ambulance equipment and supply requirements; 
Ambulance staffing levels including personnel with current and appropriate levels of 
certification/licensure; 
Clinical performance consistent with approved medical standards and protocols; 
Management and field supervision; 
On-going training and continuing education; 
Collaboration with other emergency responders and medical personnel; 
Comprehensive quality improvement and compliance activities and results; 
Accurate and timely reporting; and 
Customer and community satisfaction with the services provided. 

 
The Agreement is not a level-of-effort contract. In submitting its Proposal, the Proposer is agreeing to 
employ whatever level of effort is necessary to achieve the clinical, response time, customer 
satisfaction, quality improvement, and other performance results required by the EMS System 
Specifications. 
 

B. Notice to Proposers 
The issuance of this RFP does not commit the LEMSA to accept proposals, complete the selection 
process, award a contract, or pay any costs incurred in the preparation of a Proposal responding to 
this RFP. The LEMSA reserves the right to reject any or all Proposals received at any point in the 
procurement process, or to cancel the RFP in whole or part if the LEMSA, in its sole discretion, so 
determines. 
 
Submission of a proposal by a Proposer shall constitute an agreement to the provision for public 
announcement. The LEMSA intends to post the Proposals within twenty-four hours (24) of the public 
opening. 
 
Submission of a Proposal to this RFP constitutes a complete waiver of any claims whatsoever against 
the LEMSA or the County that it has violated a Proposer's right to privacy, disclosed trade secrets or 
caused any damage by allowing the Proposal to be made publically available. 



Page 11 

 

C. Use of Own Expertise and Judgment 
Each Proposer must use its own best expertise and judgment in deciding on the methods to be 
employed to achieve and maintain the performance required under the resulting Agreement. As used 
here, “methods” includes, without limitation, compensation programs, shift schedules, personnel 
policies, asset acquisition, supervisory structure, deployment plans, and other business matters that 
comprise the organizations strategies and activities. 
 

D. Procurement Time Line 
The Procurement Time Line is included in Appendix 8 (the Procurement Time Line). Any changes to 
the Procurement Time Line will be published on the LEMSA website and organizations requesting 
the RFP will be notified by the LEMSA. 
 

E. Procurement Process 
Administrative support for this process will be provided to the LEMSA by county Health Services 
Department (HSD). 

1. Pre-proposal Process 

Questions regarding this RFP should be submitted in writing to: 
 

Patricia Frost,  
EMS Director 
Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 123 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Facsimile (925) 646-4379 
Patricia.Frost@hsd.cccounty.us 
 

Questions or requests for clarification regarding the RFP will be accepted prior to the Proposers’ 
Conference, but no later than 4:00 p.m. on the date specified in the Procurement Time Line 
(Appendix 8). 

2. Mandatory Proposers’ Conference 

A Proposers’ conference will be held on the date identified in the Procurement Time Line (Appendix 
8) to allow County staff and consultants to discuss all relevant issues associated with the Request for 
Proposal and to permit Proposers an opportunity to ask questions. Each Proposer will be limited to 
not more than four (4) representatives in attendance. 
 
Proposers shall submit, in writing, any questions about the RFP that they would like answered at the 
Proposers’ Conference no later than three (3) working days before the conference. This will allow for 
a more thorough response. 



Page 12 

 
The Proposers’ Conference may be taped and answers to questions will be posted to the LEMSA 
website following the conference. Oral answers at the conference will not be binding on the LEMSA. 
Any changes or clarifications to the Request for Proposal made following the Proposers’ Conference 
will be distributed to all potential Proposers who attend the Proposer’s Conference and posted on the 
LEMSA website.  The Porposers’ conference is mandatory. 

3. Proposal Submission 

Each Proposer must submit one (1) original and ten (10) copies of its Proposal by 4:00 p.m., Pacific 
Time on the date specified in the Procurement Time Line (the Deadline). A CD-ROM, or other 
electronic storage device, of the Proposal and attachments in Microsoft Word or PDF format shall 
accompany each Proposal. Any Proposals received after the deadline will not be considered. 
Proposals shall remain in effect for a period of one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Deadline. 
Proposals shall be submitted in a sealed container. The outside of the container and each Proposal 
shall be labeled “Exclusive Operator for Emergency Ambulance Service Proposal For Contra Costa 
County, California”and the Proposer’s name. 
 
One (1) original and five (5) copies of the required Financial Documents shall be included in the 
sealed container but placed in a separate, sealed envelope marked with the Proposer’s name and 
labeled “Financial Documents.” The Financial Documents are described in Section VI. 
 
Proposals shall be delivered to: 

 
Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Attention: Patricia Frost 

4. Public Proposal Opening

All proposals received prior to the Deadline shall be marked with a proposal number (EMS-1, EMS-2, 
etc.) and the date and time of receipt and kept unopened and secured in a locked area. Such 
Proposals shall be publicly opened at 1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126, Martinez, CA 94553, at the time 
and date specified in the Procurement Time Line. The RFP number, submission date, general 
description of service being requested, and name of each Proposer will be recorded and read aloud to 
the persons present. The contents of the Proposals shall not be reviewed or disclosed at the public 
opening. 

5. Additional Proposer Responsibilities

At any time following the opening of Proposals, the LEMSA may request a Proposer to provide 
additional information or documentation regarding its Proposal. Proposers will also be requested to 
make a formal oral presentation to the proposal review panel (the Review Panel) and to respond in 
person to questions from the panel. Such requests must be fulfilled by the Proposer or its Proposal 
may be rejected. 



Page 13 

6. Notice of Intent to Award 

The LEMSA will issue a “ Notice of Intent to Award.” At the time of the issuance of the Notice of Intent 
to Award, non-winning proposers’ right to protest will become ripe, and LEMSA staff will begin the 
process of placing the contract award on a future agenda of the Board of Supervisors for 
recommendation. Although the Notice of Intent to Award may tentatively identify a Board of 
Supervisors meeting date upon which the award recommendation will be considered, such date 
selection shall not be binding upon the LEMSA or the County. If there are any delays in the 
procurement timeline, all Proposers will be notified by the LEMSA. 

 

F. Proposal Instructions 

1. Proposal Format 

Proposals should be concise and directly respond to the required information in this RFP. To 
facilitate the evaluation process, Proposals shall be limited in size. 
 
The entire Proposal and exhibits shall be contained within two (2) 2-inch, three-ring binders. One 
binder shall contain the narrative (Proposal Narrative) and the second the exhibits (Proposal 
Exhibits). Excepted from these restrictions are any information submitted in response to Sections 
III.A.4 and 5, below. 
 
The Proposal Narrative shall adhere to the following specifications: 

Easily readable font, no smaller than 10 point; 
Line spacing no smaller than 1 ½ lines; 
Single sided page printing; 
Standard 8 ½” by 11” paper; 
Pages must be numbered sequentially; and 
Pages are limited to 250 pages per binder excluding title page, table of contents, and 
dividers 

 
All attachments and exhibits shall be inserted in the second binder. Each exhibit and attachment shall 
be labeled and referenced in the narrative. 

2. Required Proposal Format 

a) Mandatory Table of Contents 
The Proposal Narrative shall respond to each topic listed in the Mandatory Table of Contents 
in the exact sequence that the topics appear in the Mandatory Table of Contents. The 
Proposal must utilize the stipulated section and heading titles and numbering set forth in the 
Mandatory Table of Contents. The response to each item must contain all of the information 
that the Proposer is providing with respect to that topic. The response may incorporate by 
reference information contained in the Proposal Exhibits, but may not incorporate by 
reference any information contained in other portions of the Proposal Narrative. With the 
exception of information appearing in a Proposal Exhibit that is expressly referenced in a 



Page 14 

response, information not set forth in the portion of the Proposal Narrative clearly identified 
as responding to a specific topic on the Mandatory Table of Contents may be disregarded in 
the rating of the Proposal. Reviewers may disregard information submitted in the Proposal if 
it is not included in the mandated location defined by the Mandatory Table of Contents. 

b) Required Proposal Sections 
The Proposal Narrative shall be divided into the following five sections: 
 

Section I Executive Summary. 
Section II Required Forms as specified in Appendix 9 of this RFP 
Section III Proposer’s demonstration of the appropriate credentials and ability to meet 

the minimum qualifications set forth in Section III of this RFP 
Section IV Proposer’s response to the basic performance and operational 

requirements set forth in Section IV of this RFP (the Core Requirements). 
Failure to commit to each of the Core Requirements may result in the 
Proposal being disqualified and deemed unresponsive. 

Section V Proposer’s response to the competitive criteria set forth in Section V of this 
RFP (the Competitive Criteria). The Competitive Criteria will be reviewed, 
evaluated, and scored in the Proposal review process. 

 
Proposals shall provide all information requested in this RFP in the order that it is requested. 
Performance standards for emergency ambulance service are identified in multiple sections 
of this RFP and shall be addressed in the manner stipulated for each standard. Proposers 
may elect to use reference "exhibits" or "attachments" in the Proposal Narratives to provide 
additional detail. 

 

G. Proposal Evaluation Process 

1. Proposal Review Panel 

The Proposal review process shall be managed by the LEMSA through its Consultant. A multi-
disciplinary panel of four (4) independent EMS professionals shall be selected by the Consultant with 
approval of the LEMSA to evaluate and rank Proposals. A fifth member of the Review Panel will be 
selected by the County and be an independent resident of the County. Meetings of the Review Panel 
will be closed to the public. The outcome of the deliberations of the Review Panel shall be submitted 
to the LEMSA. The LEMSA shall review the submission and may consider any and all other pertinent 
information. 
 
To assure a fair process, members of the Review Panel will be instructed to avoid discussing any 
Proposal or the RFP process with any Proposer or other individual not present during the evaluation 
prior to the public announcement of the outcome of the deliberation. Until the outcome of the 
deliberations of the Review Panel has been submitted to the Health Services Director, Proposers shall 
avoid any communications regarding Proposals or the RFP process with any member of the Review 
Panel, Board of Supervisors, LEMSA or County staff outside of the formal procurement process 



Page 15 

during the period commencing with the release of the RFP until either the expiration of the protest 
period or the resolution of any protest that may be filed. The names of the Review Panel members 
will not be disclosed prior to the RFP submission deadline. If it is determined that a Proposer 
attempted or had such precluded communications, or otherwise at any time attempted to unduly 
influence the selection process except in a manner explicitly approved in the RFP, Proposer’s 
Proposal may be disqualified. 

2. Proposal Review Process 

The review of the proposals will determine whether the Proposers meet minimum requirements and 
qualitifications, verify that the Proposers agree to meet all of the Core Requirements, and score each 
of the Competitive Criterion resulting in points being assigned to each Proposal. 
 
The detailed proposal evaluation process will encompass three stages. 

 
a) The Review Panel will review the documentation provided in each Proposal to 

determine if the Proposer meets the Minimum Qualifications. Each criterion will be 
scored on a pass/fail basis. If the Reviewers identify a Proposal that does not meet 
Minimum Qualifications, the Proposal or Proposals not meeting all Minimum 
Qualifications will be referred to the LEMSA. The LEMSA will make a recommendation to 
the Health Services Director for final determination. Proposals that, in the judgment of 
the Health Services Director, do not meet the minimum requirements for experience, 
qualifications, and financial capabilities will be considered unresponsive and 
disqualified. 

b) The Review Panel will then review the documentation in the Proposals related to the 
Core Requirements. The Proposals must include an affirmative statement agreeing to 
each Core Requirement without qualification. If any Proposer fails to include affirmative 
agreement to the Core Requirements or with the minimum requirements listed in 
Section V (the Minimum Requirements), the Review Panel will refer the nonconforming 
Proposal or Proposals to the LEMSA. The LEMSA will confer with the Health Services 
Director and the Health Services Director will make a final determination. If the 
exceptions to the Core Requirements and Minimum Requirements in the Proposal(s) are 
deemed material in the sole opinion of the Health Services Director, the Proposal will be 
considered unresponsive and disqualified. If the exceptions are not deemed material, the 
Health Services Director may waive the irregularity and allow the proposal review to 
continue or may request additional information from the Proposer to resolve the 
exception. 

c) The Review Panel will then evaluate, compare, and score the Competitive Criteria. 
d) After completion of the Review Panel’s review and scoring of the Proposals, the 

consultants will calculate the points and combine with the pricing points and will 
present the results to the LEMSA for consideration. 

 
The responses to the Competitive Criteria set forth in the Proposals shall be reviewed and rated 
as follows: 



Page 16 

Each member of the Review Panel shall read each Proposal prior to the convening of the 
panel. 
The Review Panel will convene and be provided with an overview of the review and 
rating process. 
The information provided to document the Minimum Qualifications will be reviewed 
and scored as either pass or fail. 
The responses to the Core Requirements and Minimum Requirements will be reviewed 
to confirm an affirmative and unqualified acceptance of the provisions. 
Each criterion of the Competitive Criteria will be evaluated separately (e.g. Clinical 
Offerings, Operational Proposals, etc.). After a full discussion is completed for a specific 
Competitive Criterion, each Review Panel member will complete the individual ranking 
sheet for that Competitive Criterion using the scoring guidelines set forth below. 
The ranking sheet completed by each reviewer will be collected by the Consultant, who 
will enter the ratings into the master score sheet that will be used to calculate the total 
points awarded to each Proposal. 
The scores applicable to pricing will be calculated by the Consultant and combined with 
the scores resulting from the panel’s review. 
Subsequent to the Proposers’ presentations to the Review Panel, the Review Panel will 
reconvene and each Reviewer will be allowed to view and modify any scores awarded to 
a Proposal if he or she believes that information presented or answers received in 
response to Review Panel member inquiries would, in the Reviewer’s sole opinion, 
justify a scoring change for specific criteria. 
After the Review Panel has completed the review of all Proposals, the scores of the 
reviewers will be averaged to determine the total points awarded to each Proposal for 
the Competitive Criteria. 
The Competitive Criteria will include separate scores for each of the two Plans (A and B) 
when applicable. 
The results of the Review Panel and the rankings of the Proposals will be combined with 
the scores derived from the Financial Analysis conducted by a separate, independent 
organization. The combined scores will be forwarded to the Health Services Director. 
The Health Services Director will, after consideration of the Review Panel rankings and 
scores and any other relevant factors, make his or her recommendation to the County 
Board of Supervisors (Board). The Health Services Director shall identify to the Board, as 
the tentative awardee, the Proposal receiving the highest score from the Review Panel 
unless the Health Services Director: (i) identifies a material procedural error in the 
procurement process; (ii) determines that the procurement process has failed to achieve 
the LEMSA’s goals as set forth in this RFP; or (iii) subsequent investigation of Proposer 
receiving the highest score reveals material information for the Health Services Director 
to conclude that the best interests of Contra Costa County and the LEMSA would not be 
served by the recommendation. In the event of any such exception, the Health Services 
Director shall set forth in writing the basis for his or her tentative decision. 
The final decision regarding an award shall rest with the Board. 

 
The consulting firm shall observe and serve as staff to the Review Panel. 



Page 17 

 

3. Method for Competitive Scoring of Price Proposals 

Prices for all calls originating from the 9-1-1 system are predetermined and presented in Appendix 
10. 
 
Points will be awarded only for the proposed pricing of ALS interfacility transports and based on the 
following calculation:  

 
ALS non-emergency transports (not originating from 9-1-1) 

ALS Non-emergency Base Charge $____X
Mileage Charge: multiply the proposed per-mile charge times 12 miles  

____ 
$____Y

Oxygen Charge: multiply the proposed oxygen charge times 90 percent  
____ 

$____Z
 

___ 
 

Weighted Charge $_X+Y+Z_ 

The proposal with the lowest weighted charge will receive the maximum available score assigned to 
pricing under the RFP. Other proposals will be scored by multiplying the percentage by which their 
weighted charge exceeds the lowest proposed weighted charge and subtracting that amount from the 
maximum available score. 
 
For example, the RFP is structured to allow 50 points for price. If the Weighted Charge for Proposal 
#1 is $1,000, for Proposal #2 is $1,100, and for Proposal #3 is $1,500. Proposal #1 has the lowest 
charges, so it receives 50 points for pricing. Proposal #2 exceeds Proposal #1 by 10%, so it receives 
45 points for pricing. Proposal #3 exceeds Proposal #1 by 50%, so it receives 25 points for pricing. 

 

4. Independent Financial Analysis 

The County has engaged an independent entity to analyze, express an opinion, and rate the financial 
aspects of Proposals. This will include expressing an opinion on the Proposers’ financial strength, pro 
forma projections (including revenue and expense projections), the ability of the Proposers to 
identify and fund initial startup costs and the on-going ability of the Proposers to fund losses if 
projections are underestimated. 
 
The criteria evaluated in the Financial Analysis process will be scored with the same 5-point scale 
used by the Review Panel. The scores resulting from the Financial Analysis will be combined with the 
scores resulting from the Review Panel’s findings. 
 

5. Post-submission Presentation 

Proposers will be asked to meet with the Review Panel to present a brief overview of their Proposals 
and answer questions. The date of the Proposers’ presentations is included in the Procurement 
Timeline.  



Page 18 

6. Investigation 

Upon completion of Review Panel evaluations, the Consultant may undertake additional investigation 
to verify claims made by the recommended Proposer during the Proposal evaluation process. Such 
additional investigation may include, without limitation, site visits, reference checks, financial 
inquiry, or any other reasonable means of determining the accuracy and completeness of information 
supplied by the Proposer. 

 
The LEMSA reserves the right to continue its investigation of representations made by a Proposer 
after contract award and throughout the term of the Agreement. The furnishing of false or misleading 
information during the procurement process may constitute a major breach of the Agreement even if 
discovered after contract award. 

7. Notification

Proposers will be notified of the status of their Proposal (recommended for selection, not 
recommended for selection, or disqualified) following completion of the proposal review process. 
Notification will be by electronic mail to the address listed in the Proposal. 
 
If a Proposal is disqualified, the Proposer will be notified, in writing, of the specific reason that 
caused the disqualification. 
 
At the completion of the Review Panel’s evaluation process and the Health Services Director’s receipt 
and consideration of the panel’s deliberations, the Health Services Director will issue a Notice of 
Intent to Award. 

8. Debriefing 

A debriefing shall be held before the award of the Contract upon the timely request of an 
unsuccessful Proposer for the purpose of receiving information concerning the evaluation of the 
Proposer’s submission. The request must be in writing, dated, signed either by the Proposer or a 
legally authorized individual on behalf of the Proposer and be received by the County’s EMS Agency 
at 1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126, Martinez, CA 94553, within three (3) working days following the 
County’s issuance of the “Notice of Intent to Award”. Each requesting Proposer will be allotted a 
maximum of one hour for any debriefing conference. The information provided by the County will be 
based on the Review Panel determinations of the company’s submitted proposal as it relates to the 
evaluation criteria as stated herein. The debriefing may be held, in the discretion of the County, by 
telephone conference call. The debriefing is not the forum to challenge the proposal’s specification, 
requirements, or the selection criteria. 

9. Protest  

Within fourteen (14) calendar days following issuance of the Notice of Intent to Award, non-
successful Proposers shall have the right to file a protest (the Protest). A Proposer filing a Protest 
(Protester) must follow the procedures set forth herein. Protests that do not follow these procedures 
shall not be considered. Notwithstanding any other protest or appeal procedures, the protest 
procedures herein constitute the sole administrative remedy available to the Protesters under this 



Page 19 

RFP. Only entities which were non-successful Proposers shall have standing to file Protests. Any 
Protest not filed and received by the Health Services Director within the fourteen (14) day period 
shall be conclusively deemed waived. 

a) Filing a Protest 
The Protest of the Notice of Intent to Award must be in writing. The written Protest must be 
hand delivered, electronically transmitted, or mailed to: 
 

Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
Patricia Frost, EMS Director 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Facsimile (925) 646-4379 
Patricia.Frost@hsd.cccounty.us 

 
Protests will be considered filed when they have been received at the above address. Upon 
the filing of any protest, the full contents of the protest will promptly be made available to all 
proposers by LEMSA staff. 

b) Contents of Protest 
The written Protest must contain the following information: 1) the name, street address, 
electronic mail address, and telephone and facsimile number of the Protester; 2) signature of 
the Protester or its authorized representative; 3) grounds for the Protest; 4) copies of any 
relevant documents; 5) the form of relief requested; and 6) the method by which the 
Protester would like to receive the initial written Protest decision. The written Protest must 
clearly state the grounds for the Protest. Protests should be concise and logically arranged. 

c) Grounds for Protest 
Protests shall be based only on the following grounds: The Protester believes that its 
proposal should have been selected had the LEMSA followed the procedures and adhered to 
requirements set forth in the RFP. 

d) Protest Resolution Process 

(1)

The initial review of any protest will be conducted by the Health Services Director. Upon 
receipt of the Protest, the Health Services Director will schedule, at the earliest possible 
convenience, meeting(s) between the Protester and appropriate county staff to clarify 
the issues and/or attempt to seek informal resolution. The Health Services Director will 
notify the protesting party and all Proposers of his or her decision in writing. 

Informal Meeting with Health Services Director 

(2)

The Protester may appeal the Health Services Director’s decision by filing a written 
Notice of such Appeal within five (5) business days of the issuance of the Health Services 
Director’s decision. If an Appeal of the Health Services Director’s decisions is filed, the 
Health Services Director shall forward the Protest and Notice of Appeal to the hearing 
officer designated by the County for the hearing of any Appeals filed in connection with 

Formal Review by Independent Hearing Officer 



Page 20 

this RFP within three (3) business days of receipt of the Notice of Appeal. The Health 
Services Director may also forward additional documents or other information to the 
Hearing Officer. 
 
The Hearing Officer shall conduct an independent, de novo review of the Appeal to 
determine whether the grounds for the Appeal have merit. Only the information 
contained in a timely Protest shall be considered by the Hearing Officer, who has the 
authority to request additional information from the Protester, LEMSA, or Director to 
clarify or confirm information submitted in a timely submitted Protest to assist with 
his/her review of the Appeal. The Hearing Officer will issue a written decision on a 
timely submitted Appeal within fifteen (15) calendar days of its receipt; however, the 
time for decision may be extended by the Hearing Officer with advance written notice to 
the Protester and the Director. The decision of the Hearing Officer shall be final. 

e) Remedies 
If the Hearing Officer sustains a Protest in whole or in part, the Hearing Officer shall have the 
sole discretion to determine an appropriate remedy in accordance with applicable laws and 
procedures, including the procedures set forth in this RFP. In determining the appropriate 
remedies, the Hearing Officer may consider the degree of prejudice to other parties or to the 
integrity of the competitive procurement system, the good faith of the parties, the extent of 
performance, the cost to the LEMSA, the urgency of the procurement, and the impact of the 
recommendation(s) on the public’s health and safety. 

f) Stay of Procurement Action during a Protest 
A final award shall not be made while a Protest is pending. However, LEMSA staff may 
otherwise proceed with negotiations toward the contract provided for in this RFP; subject 
the resolution of any Protest. Once the Hearing Officer has issued his/her decision on the 
Protest, if the Protest is denied the procurement process may proceed as though no Protest 
was filed. In addition, in the event that a Protest substantially delays this procurement 
process, the LEMSA may, in its discretion, engage in contracting activities for interim 
ambulance service until the procurement process can move forward and a permanent 
Agreement can become effective. 

10. Withdrawal of Proposals 

Once submitted, Proposals may be withdrawn by the Proposer at any time prior to the Deadline by 
written notice to the LEMSA. 

11. Canceling the Procurement Process after Opening 

The LEMSA may, in its discretion, cancel this procurement process at any time up to the formal 
approval and execution of the Agreement. In the event the LEMSA cancels the procurement, it shall 
set forth the reasons why the public interest is best promoted by such cancellation. 



Page 21 

12. Award 

The decision on contract award will be made by the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors 
following the recommendation from the Health Services Director. If for any reason the selected 
Proposer is unable to enter into the Agreement in a timely manner in accordance with the time 
interval identified in the Procurement Time Line for contract negotiation, the Health Services 
Director, upon direction from the Board, may proceed toward selection of an alternate Proposal, 
cancel the process, or otherwise proceed as may be required in the public interest and consistent 
with applicable law. However, the above action does not eliminate the fact that if the initial awarded 
party is in breach of the contract, the County is entitled to seek any and all damages for such breach, 
including loss of time, cost of resources and attorney fees. 

13. Scoring Criteria 

The goal of this procurement is to select the Contractor based on clinical and operational quality of 
service, while also containing service costs to the public and ensuring financial stability. To achieve 
this end, the Proposals will be scored on three categories; first, Competitive Criteria, which are 
designed to objectively identify Proposals that will provide for higher service quality and cost 
effectiveness. Second, Proposals will be scored based on the service charges to be imposed by the 
Proposer for the ALS interfacility transports. In addition, the financial strength of the Proposer and 
the reasonableness of its financial projections will be scored independently. 
 
Since this process is focused on a comparison of the Proposers’ responses to the Competitive Criteria, 
the review and scoring of the proposals will be based on comparing responses of Proposers to each 
of the criterion. Each criterion will be allocated a specific number of maximum available points. 
 
During the deliberations of the Review Panel, minimum requirements for each of the Competitive 
Criterion will be described to the reviewers and the reviewers will then discuss the item and any 
offerings that have been presented to exceed minimum requirements. Once the discussion is 
completed, each Reviewer will independently evaluate the criterion and mark the rating sheet in the 
applicable category described below. 
 
The points awarded for the criterion will be based on the reviewer’s opinion of each proposal’s 
commitment to the relevant item being reviewed. Five potential ratings will be available for the 
reviewer. They are: 
 

Table 3. Scoring Allocation 

Rating Poor Adequate Good Very Good Excellent 

Percentage of total 
points for criterion

0% 25% 50% 75% 100% 

Each of the Competitive Criteria stipulates minimum requirements that must be addressed and 
accepted by the Proposers. Failure to address and commit to the minimum requirements may result 
in the disqualification of the Proposal as being unresponsive. No points will be awarded to the 



Page 22 

Proposal that offers to only meet the minimum requirements. Points are awarded only to Proposals 
that exceed minimum requirements for a specific criterion. 

14. RFP Governed by Its Terms 

This RFP shall be conducted in accordance with the terms set forth within it. It shall be construed in a 
manner consistent with applicable law and rules including, but not limited to, the California State 
Emergency Medical Services Act, Contra Costa County Ordinances, and published procurement 
guidelines of the California State EMS Authority. Such authorities may be consulted for the resolution 
of ambiguities and to provide terms not expressly provided herein. 
 

H. Scoring Matrix  
The Competitive Criteria are organized in Section V into categories. The maximum points available 
for each category of Competitive Criteria are set forth below. 
 

Table 4. Proposal Review Scoring Allocations 

 Category Title Total Points 

1 Credentials and Qualifications Pass/Fail 

2 Core Requirements Agree/Exception 

3 Competitive Criteria-Minimum Requirements Agree/Exception 

4 Competitive Criteria-Commitment to Clinical Quality 300 

5 Competitive Criteria-Operations Management  300 

6 Competitive Criteria-Commitment to Employees 250 

7 Competitive Criteria-Management and Administration 175

8 Competitive Criteria-Commitment to EMS System and 
Community 

275 

9 Competitive Criteria-Healthcare Integration 275 

10 ALS Interfacility Pricing 75 

11 Financial Qualifications Pass/Fail 

12 Financial Strength and Projections 350 

 TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS 2,000 



Page 23 

 SECTION III. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

A. Organizational Disclosures 
The Proposer must be a single legally established entity, but there are no preclusions of multiple 
organizations forming an entity to respond to this RFP. If such a “joint venture” is proposing on this 
RFP, questions regarding experience, organizational structure, financial strength, and other items in 
this RFP must be answered for each member of the “joint venture.” The Proposer must provide the 
following information about its organization, experience, litigation, licenses, investigations, and other 
items: 

1. Organizational ownership and legal structure 

The Proposer shall describe its legal structure including type of organization, its date, and state of 
formation. 

2. Continuity of business 

The Proposer shall provide the organization’s background and number of years under present 
business name, as well as prior business names. 

3. Licenses and permits 

The Proposer shall provide copies of business or professional licenses, permits or certificates 
required by the nature of the contract work to be performed. If Proposer does not have a local 
operation, examples of state licenses, and local permits for other operational locations may be 
submitted to fulfill this requirement. 

4. Government investigations 

The Proposer shall provide a listing of all federal, state, or local government regulatory investigations, 
findings, actions or complaints and their respective resolutions for the Proposer’s organization and 
any parent or affiliated organization within the last three (3) years. THIS ITEM MAY BE SUBMITTED 
SEPARATELY IN AN ELECTRONIC FORMAT SUCH AS COMPACT DISK OR USB DRIVE and will not 
count against the limits on Proposal length set forth in Section II.F.2. 
 
Proposer must provide documentation that it has resolved all issues arising from government 
investigations including any continued obligations of the Proposer or describe status and expected 
outcome of open investigations. 

5. Litigation 

The Proposer shall provide a listing of all resolved or ongoing litigation involving the Proposer’s 
organization including resolution or status for the last five (5) years. This listing shall include 
litigation brought against the Proposer’s organization or affiliated organization and any litigation 
initiated by the Proposer’s organization or affiliated organization against any governmental entity or 
competing ambulance service. THIS ITEM MAY BE SUBMITTED SEPARATELY IN AN ELECTRONIC 



Page 24 

FORMAT SUCH AS COMPACT DISK OR USB DRIVE and will not count against the limits on Proposal 
length set forth in Section II.F.2. 

 
Proposer must provide documentation that it has resolved all issues arising from litigation or 
describe status of open litigation. 

 

B. Experience as Sole Provider 
The Proposer must demonstrate its experience as a sole provider of paramedic emergency 
ambulance services for a specified area comparable in size and population to the Exclusive Operating 
Area defined in this RFP. A population greater than 300,000 in a service area is acceptable as a 
comparable service area. Documentation shall include: 

1. Demonstrate Capability in Lieu of Experience 

If the Proposer does not have direct comparable experience in being the sole provider of paramedic 
emergency ambulance service, the Proposer must document in detail how it intends to fulfill its 
obligations specified in this RFP. This may be done by providing a comprehensive deployment plan 
identifying the ambulance locations, unit-hour distribution, and procedures from redeploying 
resources based on demand. Alternatively, the Proposer may delineate personnel who have such 
experience and that these individuals will be actively and directly involved in the delivery of services 
in the EOA. 

2. Comparable experience 

The Proposer must document the areas in which it has provided comparable services (as described 
above) in the past five (5) years, the locations of these services, population, description of services 
and a jurisdictional contact. This documentation shall include a letter from a government official 
confirming the ability to provide exclusive emergency paramedic ALS ambulance service and the 
length of time such services have been provided. Proposer shall document that it currently provides 
comparable services for a minimum of three (3) consecutive years. Letters and documentation of sole 
provider status are limited to three jurisdictions. 

3. Government contracts 

The Proposer shall provide a list of exclusive service area emergency ambulance service contracts 
completed or ongoing during the last five (5) years including the term or date of termination of the 
agreement, the services provided, the dollar amount of the agreement and the contracting entity. 

4. Contract Compliance 

The Proposer shall detail any occurrence of its failure or refusal to complete a contract with a 
governmental entity for which the Proposer was providing emergency ambulance services. This shall 
specifically state whether the Proposer or affiliated organization was found in material breach of the 
contract and the reasons why the contract was terminated. If the Proposer has been found in 
material breach of a governmental contract or if the Proposer “walked away” from its obligations 



Page 25 

under a governmental contract within the last five (5) years, the Proposal may be rejected as not 
complying with Minimum Qualifications. 
 

C. Demonstrated Response Time Performance 
The Proposer must provide documentation of its demonstrated ability to meet response time 
requirements similar to those required in this RFP. 
 
Documentation may include reports provided to government oversight entities and letters 
confirming compliance with mandated response times. Internal reports with adequate supporting 
documentation of the methodology used to create the reports may also be submitted. 
 
If the Proposing organization does not have mandated response times in its exclusive emergency 
ambulance service area, the Proposer must submit adequate documentation of plans, procedures, 
and deployment strategies to demonstrate the organization has the knowledge and expertise to 
comply with mandated response times. 

D. Demonstrated High Level Clinical Care 
The Proposer must provide documentation of its demonstrated ability to provide high-level clinical 
care. 
 
Documentation may include descriptions of clinical sophistication and high levels of performance in 
systems in which it operates. The organization should describe how it ensures consistent, high-
quality clinical care and how it is able to verify and document its clinical competency and 
performance improvement activities. This should include clinical protocol compliance, skills 
verification, training methodology and minimum commitments per provider including systematic 
assessment of EMS core performance metrics and clinical guidelines as defined by the Local EMS 
Agency2, California EMS Authority3 and National Association of EMS Officials.4. 

                           
2 http://cchealth.org/ems/quality.php 
3 http://www.emsa.ca.gov/CEMSIS 
4 http://www.nasemso.org/ 



Page 26 

 SECTION IV. CORE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Two Service Plans are to be Addressed 
This RFP includes two separate Service Plans – Plan A and Plan B. Plan A includes minimal changes to 
the current EMS System and Plan B incorporates most of the recommendations found in the EMS 
Modernization Report. The separate requirements of the Service Plans are noted in this Section, Core 
Requirements, and in the Competitive Criteria, and in the Pricing and Financial sections. 
 
The Proposer must respond to and complete all attestations and requirements for each Plan. The 
County will make the determination of which Plan will be used by the EMS System after the selection 
of the highest scoring Proposal. 
 
Each of the elements of the separate Plans are highlighted by using differing font colors in this 
document to facilitate the Proposers’ responses. 

Plan A will be highlighted in “PURPLE” 

Plan B will be highlighted in “GREEN” 

B. Contractor’s Functional Responsibilities
Contractor shall provide all emergency ambulance services originating in the EOA. Emergency 
Ambulance Services are defined as all requests for an immediate paramedic ambulance response 
from 9-1-1, radio communications, other phone numbers, observation, or any other source within 
the EOA. Such Emergency Ambulance Services shall be provided in accordance with the 
requirements of State Health and Safety Code Sections 1797 et seq., Division 48 and of the Contra 
Costa County Ordinance 83-28, and all regulations promulgated there under including any 
amendments or revisions thereof. In performing services under the Agreement, Contractor shall 
work cooperatively with the LEMSA and its EMS Director as the contract administrator (Contract 
Administrator). All references to the Contract Administrator herein shall be construed to also include 
the EMS Director and/or any other LEMSA employee or representative that the EMS Director may 
designate. 

1. Basic Services

In consideration of the LEMSA's referral to Contractor of Ambulance Service requests originating in 
the EOA, Contractor shall perform the following services to the complete satisfaction of LEMSA: 

 
a) Contractor shall provide continuous, around-the-clock, emergency ambulance services, 

without interruption throughout the term of the Agreement. 
b) Contractor shall provide emergency ambulance services without regard to any illegally 

discriminatory classification, including without limitation: the patient's race, color, 
national origin, religious affiliation, sexual orientation, age, sex, or ability to pay. 

c) The Proposal will be retained and incorporated into the Agreement by reference, except 
that in the case of any conflicting provisions, the provisions contained in the Agreement 
shall prevail. 



Page 27 

d) Contractor shall participate in pilot or research programs that the EMS Medical Director 
(defined below) and Contract Administrator may authorize from time to time. The 
Contract Administrator may waive standards contained in the Agreement in the event 
that conflicting standard(s) are established for a pilot program. Any such pilot program 
must be approved by the EMS Medical Director. Contractor agrees that Contractor's 
participation in the pilot projects shall entail no additional cost to the County or the 
LEMSA. Contractor further agrees that Contractor's services provided under pilot 
projects shall be in addition to the other services described in the Agreement. 

2. Services Description

Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing all emergency ambulance services for all residents and 
other persons physically present in the EOA. Such emergency ambulance services shall be provided 
at the paramedic level. 
 
Contractor shall be the sole ground ambulance organization authorized by the LEMSA in the awarded 
service area covered under this RFP to provide Emergency Ambulance Services and ALS interfacility 
ambulance services. All requests for EMS originating in the County and processed through the County 
designated medical communication centers will be referred to Contractor or its subcontractor, as 
provided herein. Contractor may subcontract services only as provided herein and with the prior 
written approval of the LEMSA director. 

 

C. Clinical 

1. Clinical Overview 

The LEMSA’s goal is to provide a clinically sophisticated system that achieves contemporary 
benchmarks of clinical excellence and can continue to do so in a sustainable fashion. The following 
system specifications are drawn from applicable reference sources and are generally consistent with 
the direction provided in the National Highway Traffic Safety document, The EMS Agenda for the 

Future, and the core recommendations of the Institute for Medicine report on EMS: Emergency Medical 

Services: At the Crossroads,5 and the ACEP Stategy for a National EMS Culture of Safety6.  

The clinical goals of progressive EMS systems are guided by the broad outcome measures established 
by the US Public Health Service. These include discomfort is minimized, disability is reduced, death is 
minimized, destitution eliminated, disfigurement is reduced and disease is identified and reduced. In 
addition, there is a focus on meeting the six aims of the Institute of Medicine report on healthcare 
quality, Crossing the Quality Chasm: A New Health System for the 21st Century, which stresses that 
systems should be: safe, effective, patient-centered, timely, efficient, and equitable.78

                           
5. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. (1996). Emergency Medical Services Agenda for the Future. Washington, DC: 
United States Department of Transportation. 

  

Institute of Medicine. (2006). Emergency medical services: At the crossroads. Washington, DC: National Academies of Science. 
6  http://www.emscultureofsafety.org/wp-content/uploads/2013/10/Strategy-for-a-National-EMS-Culture-of-Safety-10-03-
13.pdf 
7 Institute of Medicine. (2001). Crossing the Quality Chasm: A new Health System for the 21st Century. Washington, DC: National 
Academies of Science. 



Page 28 

 

2. EMS System Medical Oversight 

The LEMSA shall furnish medical control services, including the services of a system EMS Medical 
Director (EMS Medical Director) for all system participants’ functions in the EMS System (e.g. medical 
communications, first responder agencies, transport entity, online control physicians). The LEMSA’s 
EMS Medical Director does not relieve the Contractor from employing its own medical director as 
mandated by state and LEMSA requirements. 

a) Medical Protocols 
Contractor shall comply with medical protocols and administrative policies established by 
the LEMSA, as well as other requirements and standards established by the EMS Medical 
Director. 
 
Contractor shall document compliance with system of care operational and medical 
protocols. This documentation shall describe the performance of Contractor as a whole, its 
component parts (e.g. communications and transport), and individual system participants 
(personnel).   
 
Medical protocols shall be reviewed and updated by the LEMSA on a periodic basis with 
input from system participants. Current Medical Protocols are available at the LEMSA 
website. 

b) Direct Interaction with Medical Control 
Contractor personnel functioning under these specifications have the right and professional 
responsibility to interact directly with the system's medical leadership (EMS Medical 
Director, base hospital physicians and LEMSA clinical oversight staff) on all issues related to 
patient care. This personal professional responsibility is essential. 

c) Medical Review/Audits 
The Contractor is required to participate in LEMSA’s continuous quality improvement (CQI) 
program. The goal of the patient safety and medical audit process is to inspect and assure 
compliance of the care delivered with the system’s established clinical care guidelines. 
Evaluation of trends, system variation and random sampling of patient contacts provides 
mechanisms to measure the clinical care provided and enables the EMS Medical Director to 
identify the need for a more targeted or detailed audit. The process also assists in validating 
the effectiveness of ongoing process and outcome measures in monitoring and improving 
care. It is the Contractor's responsibility to comply with the EMS Medical Director 
audit/review process and initiate process measurement and improvement activities based 
on the results of the audit/review. 
 
As part of LEMSA CQI processes or incident investigation, the EMS Medical Director may 
require that any employee of the Contractor attend a medical audit when deemed necessary. 

                                                                                                                                                                
8 Institute of Healthcare Improvement Open School as we are a member organization 
http://www.ihi.org/education/IHIOpenSchool/Courses/Pages/OSInTheCurriculum.aspx#California 



Page 29 

Employees, at their option and expense, may attend any audit involving any incident in 
which they were involved that is being formally reviewed but must maintain the 
confidentiality of the medical audit process. Attendance of every license holder involved in a 
case being reviewed is not required, unless mandated by the EMS Medical Director. 

3. Minimum Clinical Levels and Staffing Requirements 

a) Ambulance Staffing Requirements 
All Ambulances rendering Emergency Ambulance Services under the Agreement shall be 
staffed and equipped to render paramedic level care and transport with a minimum of one 
(1) state licensed and locally accredited Paramedic and one (1) California certified EMT to 
respond to requests from the County designated PSAPs. The paramedic shall be the 
caregiver with ultimate responsibility for all patients. 
 
An “Emergency Ambulance” is defined as a transport ambulance responding to requests for 
emergency medical services staffed with at least one paramedic and one EMT.  
 

b) Personnel Licensure and Certification and Training Requirements 
All of Contractor's ambulance personnel responding to emergency medical requests shall be 
currently and appropriately licensed, accredited and credentialed, as appropriate, to practice 
in Contra Costa County. Contractor shall retain on file at all times copies of the current and 
valid licenses and/or certifications of all emergency medical personnel performing services 
under this Agreement. LEMSA certification/licensure requirements may be downloaded 
from the LEMSA website. At a minimum, the Contractor shall ensure that ambulance 
personnel receive in addition to the required training defined in State and LEMSA policies, 
the following training and/or certifications. 

(1)

Contractor shall staff each ALS ambulance with a minimum of one paramedic certified in 
PreHospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS), International Trauma Life Support (ITLS), or 
the Contractor shall document that each paramedic has satisfactorily completed 
comparable training adequate to ensure competency in the skills included in the PHTLS 
or ITLS curriculum and approved by the EMS Medical Director. Contractor shall retain 
on file at all times, copies of the current training documentation and valid certifications 
of all PHTLS or ITLS qualified paramedics performing services under this Agreement. 

Required Trauma Training 

All paramedics shall be required by Contractor to obtain certification in PHTLS, ITLS, or 
have completed a comparable program within three (3) months of hire or execution of 
the Agreement. 

(2)

Contractor shall staff each ALS ambulance with a minimum of one paramedic certified in 
pediatric Education for Prehospital Personnel (PEPP) or Pediatric Advanced Life 
Support (PALS). All paramedics shall be required by Contractor to complete training 
within six (6) months of hire. Contractor shall retain on file at all times, copies of the 

Required Pediatric Training and Performance 



Page 30 

current training documentation and valid certifications of all PEPP or PALS qualified 
paramedics performing services under this Agreement. 
 
Contractor will supplement required PEPP or PALS training with annual infant and 
pediatric simulation training focused on early recognition and management of pre-
arrest and other life threatening conditions. 
 
Contractor will require all field personnel to review prehospital procedures for Safely 
Surrendered Baby Program. 

(3)

Contractor Quality, Clinical and Supervisory personnel shall complete an IHI Open 
School online certificate in Patient Safety, Quality and Leadership within 18 months of 
hire. Contractor shall retain on file at all times, copies of the current training 
documentation and valid certifications for specified personnel under this Agreement. 

Required Institute of Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Certificate of Patient Safety, Quality and 
Leadership 

(4)

Contractor shall properly orient all field personnel before assigning them to respond to 
emergency medical requests. Such orientation shall include at a minimum, provider 
agency policies and procedures; EMS system overview; EMS policies and procedures; 
radio communications with and between the provider agency, base hospitals, receiving 
hospitals, and County communications centers; map reading skills including key 
landmarks, routes to hospitals and other major receiving facilities within the County and 
in surrounding areas; and ambulance and equipment utilization and maintenance. In 
addition, all frontline personnel must receive continual orientation to customer service 
expectations, cultural awareness, performance improvement and the billing and 
reimbursement process. 

Company and EMS System Orientation and On-Going Preparedness

(5)

Contractor shall train all ambulance personnel and supervisory staff in their respective 
roles and responsibilities under the Contra Costa Multi-Casualty Incident Plan, which is 
on file at the LEMSA, and prepare them to function in the medical portion of the Incident 
Command System. The specific roles of the Contractor and other Public Safety personnel 
will be defined by the relevant plans and command structure. 

Preparation for Multi-casualty Incident 

(6)

Contractor shall provide ambulance personnel with the training, knowledge, 
understanding, and skills to effectively manage patients with psychiatric, drug/alcohol 
or other behavioral or stress related problems, as well as difficult or potentially difficult 
scenes on an on-going basis. Emphasis shall be on techniques for establishing a climate 
conducive to effective field management and for preventing the escalation of potentially 
volatile situations. 

Required Assaultive Behavior Management Training 



Page 31 

(7)

Contractor shall maintain an on-going driver-training program for ambulance personnel. 
The program, the number of instruction hours, and the system for integration into the 
Contractor's operations (e.g., accident review boards, impact of accidents on employee 
performance reviews and compensation, etc.) will be reviewed and is subject to 
approval by the LEMSA initially and on an annual basis thereafter. Training and skill 
proficiency is required at initial employment with annual training refresher and skill 
confirmation. 

Driver Training 

(8)

Contractor shall create a culture focused on infection prevention that focuses on 
aggressive hygiene practices; personal protective equipment and competency-based 
training in donning and doffing PPE (e.g. eye protection, gloves, etc). The Contractor 
shall develop and strictly enforce policies for infection control, cross contamination and 
soiled materials disposal to decrease the chance of communicable disease exposure.  

Infection Control 

Contractor will comply with county local infectious disease reporting program and 
strictly enforce polices for infection prevention and control. These policies shall conform 
to all Federal, State and local statutes, directives and guidelines including, but not 
limited to, CALOSHA and the CDC. It is the county expectation that the Contractor will 
adopt procedures that meet or exceed all requirements for dealing with these matters. 

(9)

Contractor shall establish a repetitive stress and critical incident stress action plan. 
Included shall be an ongoing stress reduction program for its employees and access to 
trained and experienced professional counselors. Plans for these programs shall be 
submitted to the Contract Administrator for approval. 

Critical Incident Stress Management 

(10)

Contractor and Contractor’s employees shall participate in and receive training in 
Incident Command System (ICS) and Homeland Security issues, including participating 
in existing programs available within the County for dealing with terrorist events, 
weapons of mass destruction and other Homeland Security issues. 

Homeland Security 

(11)

Contractor shall provide initial and ongoing training for all personnel regarding 
compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
current rules and regulations enacted by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services. 

HIPAA Compliance 

(12)

Contractor shall provide initial and ongoing compliance training for all personnel. This 
training shall be in accordance with the OIG Compliance Program Guidance for 

Compliance 



Page 32 

Ambulance Suppliers.9 This training is one component of the Compliance Plan required 
of the Contractor.  

Proposer shall describe how it intends to comply with the above training and certification 
requirements. The Proposer will delineate how these programs will be provided, by whom, 
where, and other information to help the LEMSA understand the Proposer’s commitment to 
meet these Core Requirements. 

 

D. Operations 

1. Operations Overview 

The performance specifications set forth in this RFP encourage continuous improvements in the level 
of service provided in Contra Costa County. The RFP provides clarification of expectations and 
accountability. The following provisions define these expectations, core requirements, and activities 
required of the Contractor. 

a) Emergency Response Zones  
The Emergency Response Zones (ERZ) are separately delineated areas, which have two 
levels of ambulance call density. The call density designations are defined as high 
density/urban-suburban and low density/rural. The call density designations within the ERZ 
are distinguished by response times. The Call Density area designations of the ERZ are 
included in Appendix 6. 
 
As previously described, the current system utilizes five (5) ERZ, A through E.  The two Plans 
to be addressed in the response to this RFP have four (4) ERZ in Plan A, and three (3) ERZ 
for Plan B. 
 
Under Plan A, the Designated EOA is divided into four (4) Emergency Response Zones 
(ERZ’s) for calculation of ambulance response times and penalties. The zones, shown in 
Appendix 3, are: 

Zone A – City of Richmond 
Zone B—West County, not including the City of Richmond (Cities of El Cerrito, 
San Pablo, Kensington, Rodeo, Hercules, and Pinole and surrounding 
unincorporated areas, including areas served by Rodeo-Hercules Fire and 
Crockett-Carquinez Fire) 
Zone C—Central County (Cities of Clayton, Concord, Lafayette, Martinez, Pleasant 
Hill, and Walnut Creek and surrounding unincorporated areas served by Contra 
Costa County Fire) 
Zone D—East County (Cities of Antioch and Pittsburg and surrounding 
unincorporated area served by Contra Costa County Fire, Cities of Brentwood 
and Oakley and unincorporated areas served by East Contra Costa County Fire) 

 
                           

9 Federal Register / Vol. 68, No. 56 / Monday, March 24, 2003 



Page 33 

Under Plan B, the Designated EOA is divided into three (3) Emergency Response Zones 
(ERZ’s) for calculation of ambulance response times and penalties.  The zones, shown in 
Appendix 3, are: 

Zone A—West County (Cities of Richmond, El Cerrito, San Pablo, Kensington, 
Rodeo, Hercules, and Pinole and surrounding unincorporated areas, including 
areas served by Rodeo-Hercules Fire and Crockett-Carquinez Fire) 
Zone B—Central County (Cities of Clayton, Concord, Lafayette, Martinez, 
Pleasant Hill, and Walnut Creek and surrounding unincorporated areas served 
by Contra Costa County Fire) 
Zone C—East County (Cities of Antioch and Pittsburg and surrounding 
unincorporated area served by Contra Costa County Fire, Cities of Brentwood 
and Oakley and unincorporated areas served by East Contra Costa County Fire) 

 

b) All Emergency and Non-emergency ALS Ambulance Calls 
The RFP is to result in a contract assigning an exclusive operating area provider for all 
Emergency Ambulance Requests originating within the EOA and received through the 9-1-1 
system as well as those emergency calls received through means other than 9-1-1. The RFP 
also includes ALS interfacility transports originating in Contra Costa County. 

c) Primary Response to Isolated Peripheral Areas of the EOA 
While the Contractor has the exclusive right to all emergency calls originating in the EOA, 
there are areas on the periphery of the County where the nearest paramedic-staffed 
ambulance may be located in an adjacent jurisdiction. In the interest of getting the quickest 
ambulance to the patient, LEMSA requires the Contractor to make a good faith effort to 
execute a satisfactory mutual aid agreement with the agencies responding from a 
neighboring jurisdiction.  The LEMSA will approve an appropriately structured agreement to 
use the closer ambulances. 

d) Substantial Penalty Provisions for Failure to Respond 
The Contractor is to deploy and staff ambulances in a manner that allows for a response to 
all medical emergency dispatches. In the event the Contractor does not respond with an 
ambulance to an emergency medical call, the penalty assessed is substantial, beginning at 
$10,000 per incident. These are rare and isolated events that may never occur and should 
not be confused with late or outlier responses. Examples of Failure to Respond include the 
failure of dispatch to notify a crew to respond to a request for ambulance services, failure of 
a crew to respond to a request from dispatch, and diversion of an ambulance crew to 
another call without reassigning and sending an ambulance to the initial request. 

2. Transport Requirement and Limitations 

As outlined in greater detail in other sections, Contractor has an obligation to respond to all 
emergency medical requests in the County and provide ambulance transport. However, there are 
limitations and flexibilities as described herein. 



Page 34 

a) Destinations
Contractor shall be required to transport patients from all areas of the County, in accordance 
with the LEMSA Medical Control Destination Protocols included in LEMSA’s policy manual. 

b) Prohibition against Influencing Destination Decisions 
Contractor personnel are prohibited from attempting to influence a patient’s destination 
selection other than as outlined in the destination policy. 

3. Response Time Performance Requirements 

“Response times,” as defined in Section IV.D.5 below (Response Time Measurement 
Methodology), are a combination of dispatch, operations, and field operations. Because this 
Agreement is performance based, the LEMSA will not limit Contractor’s flexibility in the methods 
of providing ambulance service. This is based upon Contractor's commitment to conform to the 
Response Time standards set forth below (the Response Time Standards). Therefore, an error on 
Contractor’s part in one phase of its operation (e.g. ambulance dispatch, system deployment plan, 
ambulance maintenance, etc.) shall not be the basis for an exception to Contractor's performance 
in another phase of its operation (e.g. clinical performance or response time performance). 
Appropriate Response Time performance is the result of a coordinated effort of Contractor's 
total operation and therefore, is solely Contractor's responsibility. Response Times shall be 
measured in minutes and integer seconds, and shall be “time stamped” by the medical dispatch 
center as to when the call is transferred to the Contractor and integrated with the time stamping 
of the Contractor’s computer aided dispatch system. The County and the LEMSA will work with 
the Contractor to assure that the Contractor’s dispatch clocks can be synchronized to the medical 
communications center dispatch CADs. 

a) Description of Call Classification 
These Specifications outline four (4) priorities with which Contractor must comply by 
meeting specified Response Times. The call classification as Emergency or Non-Emergency 
and as Priority 1 through 3 is accomplished by presumptive prioritization in accordance 
with the then current Emergency Medical Dispatching protocols as approved by the LEMSA. 
The fourth priority includes ALS non-emergency interfacility transfers originating within the 
EOA.   

b) Response Time Performance Requirements 
The two areas -- designated as high call density (A) and low call density (B) -- will be used 
for Response Time monitoring, reporting, and compliance purposes. Contractor's Response 
Time on requests for emergency medical service originating from within the service area 
shall meet the following performance standards: 

(1)

Priority 1 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 
dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 

Potentially Life Threatening Emergency Response (Priority 1) 

Contractor shall place an Emergency Ambulance on the scene of each life-threatening 
emergency assignment as presumptively designated by the Contractor’s dispatch center 



Page 35 

as Priority 1 within the specified Response Time for that ERZ and call density level on 
not less than 90 percent of all Priority 1 response requests. 
 
The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6 
 
For every presumptively defined life-threatening emergency call exceeding the 
Response Time Standard defined herein, Contractor shall document in writing the cause 
of the extended Response Time and Contractor’s efforts to eliminate recurrence. 

(2)

Priority 2 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 
dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 

Non-Life Threatening Emergency Response (Priority 2)

Contractor shall place an Emergency Ambulance on the scene of each non-life 
threatening emergency assignment as presumptively designated by the Contractor’s 
dispatch center as Priority 2 within the specified Response Time for that ERZ and call 
density level on not less than 90 percent of all Priority 2 response requests as measured 
within any consecutive 30-day period.  
 
The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6. 
 

(3)

Priority 3 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 
dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 

Non Emergency Response (Priority 3) 

Contractor shall place an emergency Ambulance on the scene of each non-emergency 
assignment as presumptively designated by the Contractor’s dispatch center as Priority 
3 within the specified Response Time for that ERZ and call density level on not less than 
90 percent of all Priority 3 response requests as measured within any consecutive 30-
day period.  
 
The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6 
 

(4)

Priority 4 requests for ambulance service are defined as non-emergency transports at 
the ALS level of service. 

Interfacility ALS Non-emergency Transports (Priority 4) 

Contractor shall place an ALS ambulance on the scene of at least 90 percent of all 
Priority 4 scheduled ambulance requests within fifteen minutes zero seconds (15:00) of 
the scheduled time. This standard shall apply to all requests for service where the 
scheduled time for patient pickup is greater than three hours from the time the call is 
received in the Contractor’s Dispatch Center. 
 



Page 36 

If the service receives an emergency request for an ALS interfacility transport, the 
applicable Response Time requirement will be the same as that for Priority 2 level 
requests. 
 
If a request for non-emergency transportation is received without a three-hour notice 
the Response Time requirement will be arrival of the ambulance at the patient location 
within 60 minutes of the time of the request. 

c) Summary of Response Time Requirements 
Tables 5 & 6 summarize the Response Time compliance requirements – also referred to as 
the Response Time Standards - for ambulances in the specified ERZ, density level, and 
priority. 

Table 5. Response Time Compliance Requirements for Plan A 

All Contra Costa County Emergency Response Zones 

Priority 
Level 

ERZ Compliance High Call Density
Urban/Suburban 

Low Call Density 
Rural 

Priority 1 A 90%  N/A 

Priority 1 B, C, D 90%  20:00 

Priority 1 D  
(Bethel Island) 

90% 16:45 20:00 

Priority 2 A, B, C, D 90%   

Priority 3 A, B, C, D 90%   

Priority 4 A, B, C, D 90% +/- 15 minutes (scheduled) 
or  

    N/A 

Table 6. Response Time Compliance Requirements for Plan B 
All Contra Costa County Emergency Response Zones 

Priority 
Level 

ERZ Compliance 
High Call Density
Urban/Suburban 

Low Call Density 
Rural 

Priority 1 A, B, C 90%  20:00 

Priority 2 A, B, C 90%   

Priority 3 A, B, C 90%   

Priority 4 A, B, C 90% 
+/- 15 minutes (scheduled) 

or  
    N/A 

4. Modifications During the Term of Agreement 

The County is planning improvements to medical dispatch during the term of the Agreement. It is 
expected that more specific prioritization of calls will be implemented (i.e. MPDS). At that time 
response time requirements will be modified. 
 



Page 37 

The LEMSA also recognizes that continuing research is being completed related to the continuum of 
care for medical events, including the relevance of time intervals. The LEMSA will work with the 
Contractor to modify response time requirements based on benefits derived by the system’s patients. 
 
Also, call density changes will occur which may expand areas that are categorized as Low Call Density 
necessitating changes to assign these areas the High Call Density desigation. 
 
In summary, it is expected that changes to the Response Time Requirements, ERZs, and Call Density 
designations will be evaluated and implemented during the term of the Agreement. 

5. Response Time Measurement Methodology 

Contractor's Response Times shall be calculated on a monthly basis to determine compliance 
with the standards set forth in Tables 5 & 6 above.  At the end of each calendar month, a date 
within the last 15 days of the month will be randomly selected.  This date will represent the end 
date of the 30-day compliance measurement period.  
 
The Response Time measurement methodology employed can significantly influence operational 
requirements for the EMS system. The following are applicable: 

a) Call Receipt 
The Contractors’ Response Time clock begins at “Call Receipt” which is defined as when the 
communications center that directly dispatches the ambulances receives adequate 
information to identify the location of the call and the priority level, or 30 seconds of receipt, 
whichever is less. 

b) At Scene 
“At Scene” time means the moment the first Emergency Ambulance arrives and stops at the 
exact location where the ambulance shall be parked while the crew exits to approach the 
Patient and notifies Dispatch that it is fully stopped. Only the arrival of a transport capable 
ambulance shall constitute “At Scene.” This does not include a supervisory or other non-
transport capable unit. In situations where the Ambulance has responded to a location other 
than the scene (e.g. staging areas for hazardous materials/violent crime incidents, non-
secured scenes, gated communities or complexes, or wilderness locations), arrival at scene 
shall be the time the Ambulance arrives at the designated staging location or nearest public 
road access point to the patient’s location. 

c) Response Time 
The Response Time is defined as the interval, in exact minutes and seconds, between the Call 
Receipt time and arrival At Scene time, or the time it is cancelled by a public safety agency. 

d) Failure to Report at Scene Time 
In instances when ambulance crews fail to report “At Scene,” the time of the next 
communication between dispatch and the ambulance crew shall be used as the At-Scene 
time. However, Contractor may document the actual arrival time through other means (e.g. 
First Responder, AVL, communications tapes/logs, etc.) so long as an auditable report of any 
edits is produced. 



Page 38 

e) Calculating Upgrades, Downgrades, Reassignments and Canceled Responses
From time to time special circumstances may cause changes in call priority classification. 
Response Time calculations for determination of compliance with Agreement standards and 
penalties for non-compliance will be as follows: 

(1)

If an assignment is upgraded prior to the arrival on scene of the Emergency Ambulance 
(e.g. from Priority 2 to Priority 1), Contractor’s compliance and penalties will be 
calculated based on the shorter of: 

Upgrades 

a) Time elapsed from dispatch to time of upgrade plus the higher priority 
Response Time Standard; or 

b) The lower priority Response Time Standard 

For example, a call is initially dispatched as a Priority 3 (non-emergency) and it is 
upgraded to a Priority 2 (non-life threatening emergency).  The applicable response 
time requirement will be shorter of the Priority 3 Response Time or the sum of the 
elapsed time from Call Receipt to the time of the upgrade plus the Priority 2 Response 
Time. 

(2)

If a call is downgraded prior to arrival on scene of the Emergency Ambulance (e.g. from 
Priority 1 to Priority 2), Contractor’s compliance and penalties will be determined by: 

Downgrades 

a) If the time of the downgrade occurs after the Emergency Ambulance has 
exceeded the higher priority Response Time Standard, the more stringent 
higher priority standard will apply; or  

b) If the time of the downgrade occurs before the Emergency Ambulance has 
exceeded the higher priority Response Time Standard, the less stringent lower 
priority will apply. In all such cases, documentation must be presented for 
validation of the reason why the priority status was downgraded. If the 
downgrade was justified, in the sole discretion of the LEMSA, the longer 
standard will apply. 

(3)

If an Emergency Ambulance is reassigned en route or turned around prior to arrival on 
the scene (e.g. to respond to a higher priority request), compliance and penalties will be 
calculated based on the Response Time Standard applicable to the assigned priority of 
the initial response. The Response Time clock will not stop until the arrival of an 
Emergency Ambulance on the scene from which the Ambulance was diverted. 

Reassignment en route 

(4)

If an assignment is cancelled prior to arrival on the scene by the emergency ambulance, 
Contractor’s compliance and penalties will be calculated based on the elapsed time from 
Call Receipt to the time the call was canceled. 

Canceled Calls 



Page 39 

f) Response Times outside EOA are Excluded
Contractor shall not be held accountable for Emergency Response Time compliance for any 
assignment originating outside the EOA. Responses to requests for service outside the EOA 
will not be counted in the total number of calls used to determine compliance. 

g) Each Incident a Separate Response 
Each incident will be counted as a single response regardless of the number of units that are 
utilized. The Response Time of the first arriving Emergency Ambulance will be used to 
compute the Response Time for that incident. 

h) Response Time Compliance for Individual Emergency Response Zones 
Response time requirements for the Emergency Response Zones shall be reported and 
utilized for compliance purposes. Specifically, all responses in each ERZ for each priority 
level are calculated. These calculations will be used for determination of any penalties. 

i) Equity in Response Times throughout the County 
The LEMSA recognizes that equity in Response Times is largely based upon call and 
population densities within the service area. In developing Response Time Standards, the 
LEMSA has established two (2) call density designations, low and high-density. 
 
The LEMSA may evaluate the call density and zone structure to address changes occurring 
within each zone. Should the call density of any significant contiguous area within the low 
call density zones become equal to or greater than the call density to the adjacent high call 
density zone, then that area will be considered for reclassification for Response Time 
compliance. Response time compliance changes pursuant to this section will be modified by 
readjusting the then current map defining the density designations. 
 
The LEMSA reserves the right to look at any area of the EOA to identify if there are pockets of 
poor Response Time performance and refer such findings to the Contractor for mitigation. 

6. Response Time Exceptions and Exception Requests 

Contractor shall maintain mechanisms for backup capacity, or reserve production capacity to 
increase production should a temporary system overload persist. However, it is understood that 
from time to time unusual factors beyond Contractor’s reasonable control affect the achievement of 
specified Response Times Standards. In the monthly calculation of Contractor's performance to 
determine compliance with the Response Time Standards, every request for Emergency Ambulance 
Services shall be included except as follows: 

a) Multi-casualty Disaster 
The Response Time requirements may be suspended at the sole discretion of the LEMSA 
during a declared multi-casualty incident, medical advisory or disaster in Contra Costa 
County or during a declared disaster in a neighboring jurisdiction to which ambulance 
assistance is being provided as requested by the LEMSA. 



Page 40 

b) Good Cause
The Contract Administrator may allow exceptions to the Response Time Standards for good 
cause as determined at his or her sole discretion. At a minimum, the asserted justification for 
exception must have been a substantial factor in producing a particular excess Response 
Time, and Contractor must have demonstrated a good faith effort to respond to the call(s). 
Good cause for an exception may include, but is not limited to: incorrect or inaccurate 
dispatch information received from the PSAP or calling party; disrupted voice or data radio 
transmission (not due to Contractor equipment or infrastructure); material change in 
dispatched location; unavoidable telephone communications failure; inability to locate 
address due to non-existent address; inability to locate patient due to patient departing the 
scene; delays caused by traffic secondary to the incident; unavoidable delays caused by 
extreme inclement weather (e.g., fog); when units are providing County authorized mutual 
aid; and remote calls or off-road locations. 
 
Remote calls are defined when the patients’ locations are greater than ten (10) road miles 
from the nearest boundary of the high-density area. 
 
Extended delays at hospitals for transferring patients to receiving facility personnel may be 
considered as potential good cause exceptions at the sole discretion of the LEMSA. 
 
Equipment failure, ambulance failure, lost ambulance crews, or other causes deemed to be 
within the Contractor’s control or awareness shall not be grounds to grant an exception to 
compliance with the Response Time Standard. 
 
Contractor is expected to mitigate all and any delays associated with potential or actual work 
actions without interrupting EMS System Service delivery. 

c) Exception Request Procedure 
It is the Contractor’s responsibility to apply to the LEMSA for an exception to a required 
Response Time. 
 
If Contractor feels that any response or group of responses should be excluded from the 
calculation of Response Time compliance due to unusual factors beyond Contractor's 
reasonable control, the Contractor must provide detailed documentation for each actual 
response in question to the LEMSA and request that the LEMSA exclude these runs from 
calculations and late penalties. Any such request must be submitted via the method specified 
by the LEMSA and received by the Contract Administrator within 10 calendar days of the 
completion of the response. A request for an exception received after the 10 days will not be 
considered. The Contract Administrator or designees will review each exception request and 
make a decision for approval or denial. 
 
At the sole discretion of the LEMSA, calls with extended Chute Times (the time interval from 
Dispatch to ambulance En Route) of more than two (2) minutes may be excluded from 



Page 41 

consideration as Exceptions.  All decisions by the Contract Administrator shall be considered 
final. 

 

7. Response-time Performance Reporting Procedures and Penalty Provisions 

a) Response Time Performance Reporting Requirements 

(1)

The Contractor shall document all times necessary to determine total ambulance 
Response Time including, but not limited to, time call received by the dispatch center, 
time location verified, time ambulance crew assigned, time en route to scene, arrival at 
scene time, total on-scene time, time en route to hospital, total time to transport to 
hospital, and arrival at hospital time. Other times may be required to document specific 
activities such as arrival at patient side, times of defibrillation, administration of 
treatments and medications and other instances deemed important for clinical care 
monitoring and research activities. All times shall be recorded on the Patient Care 
Report Form (PCR) and in Contractor’s computer aided dispatch system. The Contractor 
will provide an interface with the computer aided dispatch database and Electronic 
Patient Care Report Form (EPCR) database for the LEMSA to extract and corroborate 
Response Time performance. Contractor may not make changes to times entered into 
the CAD after the event. Only LEMSA personnel may make changes to times within the 
computer. The contractor may request such changes from the LEMSA when errors or 
omissions are discovered. The LEMSA has sole discretion whether changes to times are 
acceptable. 

Documentation of Incident Time Intervals 

(2)

Within 10 business days following the end of each month, the Contractor’s dispatch 
center shall document and report to the LEMSA and the County, in a manner required by 
the LEMSA, information as specified in Section IV.D. 

Response Time Performance Report 

a) Contractor shall use Response Time data in an on-going manner to evaluate 
Contractor's performance and compliance with Response Time Standards in an 
effort to continually improve its Response Time performance levels. 

b) Contractor shall identify the causes of failures of performance, and shall 
document efforts to eliminate these problems on an on-going basis. 

c) Contractor shall provide an explanation for every call exceeding the required 
Response Time interval and describe steps taken to reduce extended responses 
in the future. 

b) Penalty Provisions 
Isolated instances of individual deviations of Response Time compliance shall be treated as 
instances of minor, non-compliance under the Agreement. However, severe or chronic 
deviations of Response Time compliance may constitute a default of the Agreement as 
defined below. 



Page 42 

(1)

Contractor shall pay LEMSA a $250 penalty each time an emergency ambulance is 
dispatched and the ambulance crew fails to report and document on-scene time. The 
Contractor, in order to rectify the failure to report an on-scene time and to avoid the 
penalty may demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Contract Administrator an accurate 
on-scene time. 

Penalty for Failure to Report On-scene Time 

Where an on-scene time for a particular emergency call is not documented or 
demonstrated to be accurate, the Response Time for that call shall be deemed to have 
exceeded the required Response Time for purposes of determining Response Time 
compliance. 

(2)

Contractor shall pay LEMSA a penalty each month that the Contractor fails to comply 
with the Response Time requirements based on the percentage of compliance for all 
responses in the categories represented in Table 7 below. 

Penalty for Failure to Comply with Response Time Requirements 

Failure of the Contractor to achieve at least 88% Response Time compliance in each of 
the ERZ for Emergency Ambulance requests will require that the Contractor submit and 
implement a deployment plan that includes additional staffed ambulance hours aimed to 
achieve 90% compliance with Response Times. 

Table 7. County Response Time Penalties 

Emergency Ambulance Requests - Priority 1 Responses for each
Compliance % 

 of the ERZ 
Penalty 

% < 90% $15,000 
% $25,000 

% $50,000 

Emergency Ambulance Requests - Priority 2 Responses for each
Compliance % 

 of the ERZ 
Penalty 

 $5,000 
 $10,000 

 $15,000 

Emergency Ambulance Requests - Priority 3 Responses for each
Compliance %

 of the ERZ 
Penalty

 $2,500 
 $5,000 

 $7,500 

Non-Emergency ALS Interfacility Transports - Priority 4 Responses for entire EOA 
Compliance % Penalty 

 $4,000 
 $6,000 

 $7,500 



Page 43 

(3)

Penalties are based on measurement of response time performance for all responses 
within the EOA and each ERZ and grouped by priority level. The different density areas 
within each ERZ will be grouped for compliance measurement. Priority 4 responses 
(non-emergency ALS) will be reported for compliance measurement for the entire EOA 
and not included with the priority levels in each ERZ. 

Repetitive Non-Compliance 

The Contractor is required to report performance for each priority level in each ERZ and 
in the designated ambulance zones. Repetitive non-compliance in any given subset is 
defined as three consecutive months or five instances on non-compliance in any twelve-
month period. If the Contractor is repetitively non-compliant in any subset measure, the 
Contractor shall submit a plan of corrective action to LEMSA within 30 days of being 
notified of repetitive non-compliance by LEMSA. Failure to correct repetitive non-
compliance may be considered a material breach of the Agreement. 
 
Any subset of measurement of calls that does not exceed 100 responses in a single 
month shall be added to the next month’s responses and accumulated until the 
minimum of 100 responses is documented at which point compliance determinations 
will be made. 
 

(4)

An “Outlier” Response Time is defined as a Response Time that is excessive for the 
category, such that it represents a potential threat to health and safety (Outlier). A 
penalty shall be imposed for any call for which the actual Response Time equals or 
exceeds the applicable “Outlier Response Time” set forth in Table 8. Penalties shall be 
based on ERZ and the Priority level assigned to the call.  

Penalties for Outlier Responses 

The outlier penalty is in addition to a penalty assessed for failure to meet the Response 
Time compliance requirements. 
 

Table . Outlier Response Time Penalties 

Priority  
Level 

Outlier Response Times Penalty per 
Outlier High Call Density Low Call Density 

Priority 1 >18:59 >29:59 $1,500 

Priority 2 >22:59 >44:59 $1,000 

Priority 3 >29:59 >59:59 $750

Priority 4 >29:59 late for scheduled
>89:59 for non-scheduled  $500

(5)

The LEMSA may impose financial penalties for minor or major breaches of the 
Agreement. For example, the Agreement will include penalties relating to the failure to 

Additional Penalty Provisions 



Page 44 

provide reports and information to the LEMSA by specified due dates, failing to leave 
PCRs documenting patient care at receiving institutions, failure to respond to a request, 
and responding and transporting in a BLS unit when the call requires an ALS response 
and transport. LEMSA may impose a fine of up to $500 per incident for any minor breach 
of the Agreement not specifically addressed in the following Table 9. The following 
specific penalties shall be included in the Agreement: 
 

Table 9. Breach Events and Penalties 

Breach Event Criteria Penalty 

Failure to provide 
timely operational 
reports 

Operational and Response Time reports are 
due on a specific date after end of month 

$50 per report per day received after 
specified due date 

Failure to leave 
completed PCR at 
receiving facility 

100 percent of the LEMSA approved Interim 
Patient Care Report (an abbreviated patient 
care report) will be left at the receiving 
facility prior to departure of the ambulance 
crew. 100 percent of the completed PCRs 
will be provided to receiving facility within 
24 hours 

$50 for every instance when the 
Interim Patient Care Report at a 
minimum, is not left at the receiving 
facility prior to crew departure. A 
penalty of $100 for every completed 
PCR not provided to the facility within 
24 hours of patient delivery. 

Response and 
transport by a BLS unit 
when the Priority level 
calls for the patient to 
be transported by an 
ALS unit 

All 9-1-1/emergency calls shall be 
responded to by an ALS ambulance and the 
patient transported in the ALS unit as 
defined by the LEMSA

$1,000 for every incident in which a 
BLS ambulance responds and 
transports a patient that requires ALS 
care according LEMSA policies. 

Failure to provide 
timely quality 
improvement data and 
reports 

Quality improvement and clinical data and 
reports are due on specific dates 

$50 per report or data submission per 
day received after specified due date 

Failure to provide 
timely unusual 
occurrence reports and 
investigation updates 

Unusual occurrence reports and updates on 
investigations of those events are due within 
a specific time from date of the occurrence 
as defined in LEMSA policies and procedures 

$100 per report per day received after 
the specified time frame from the date 
of the occurrence 

Failure to respond to 
an emergency request 
for an Emergency 
Ambulance 

The contractor shall respond to all official 
Emergency Ambulance Service requests 
within the EOA. Failure to respond is defined 
by the Contractor not sending an ambulance 
en route to an emergency request. 

The LEMSA shall impose a minimum 
fine of $10,000 for each failure to 
respond to an official Emergency 
Ambulance request by the Contractor. 
Failure to respond will be defined as 
any call originating within the EOA for 
which the Contractor fails to dispatch 
and no ambulance responds. Prior to 
imposition of this penalty, LEMSA will 
conduct an investigation of the incident 

Improper certification 
Staffing an ambulance with improperly 
certified personnel 

$250 per call responded to by 
improperly certified employee 

Failure to comply with 
Against Medical Advice 
(AMA) protocol 

Field personnel fails to comply with 
defined LEMSA policy and procedure for 
AMA 

$500 per AMA documentation and 
protocol failure.  



Page 45 

(6)

Contractor may appeal to the LEMSA in writing within 10 business days of receipt of 
notification of the imposition of any penalty or regarding LEMSA's penalty calculations. 
The Contract Administrator will review all such appeals and make the decision to 
eliminate, modify, or maintain the appealed penalty.  

Penalty Disputes 

8. Fleet Requirement

The Contractor is to maintain the number of ALS equipped and fully operating ambulances that 
represent at least 120% of the peak staffing level. For example, if the Contractor’s peak number of 
ambulances is twenty-seven (27), then the Contractor is to maintain a fleet of at least 33 ambulances 
(27 x 120% = 32.4 rounded to 33). If a fraction is derived when multiplying the peak number of units 
by 120%, the number will be rounded up to the next whole integer. (i.e. 32.4 would be rounded to 
33). 

9. Coverage and Dedicated Ambulances, Use of Stations/Posts 

These specifications are for a performance based approach rather than a level of effort undertaking 
involving defined locations. The LEMSA neither accepts nor rejects Proposer’s level of effort 
estimates; rather the LEMSA accepts the Proposer’s commitment to employ whatever level of effort 
is necessary to achieve the Response Time and other performance results required by the terms of 
the Agreement as outlined in these specifications. 
 
Contractor shall deploy ambulance resources in a manner consistent with this goal. 

 

E. Personnel 

1. Treatment of Incumbent Work Force 

A number of dedicated highly trained personnel are currently working in the Contra Costa County 
EMS system. In the event the Contractor turns out to be other than the incumbent provider, every 
effort must be made to ensure a smooth transition and to encourage current EMS personnel to 
remain with the system. To that end, in the event of a change in providers, all current qualified 
ambulance employees working within Contra Costa County (other than owners and executive 
management) are to be considered for preferential hiring by any new Contractor. A new Contractor is 
expected to offer qualified non-supervisory employees (EMTs and paramedics) employment in 
substantially similar positions. Supervisory and mid-management personnel should also be 
considered by the Contractor for employment in order to retain continuity within the system and a 
career path for the committed workforce.  A new Contractor will consider current employee 
scheduling and make reasonable efforts to transition its new employees to its organization as 
smoothly as possible. While a plan for the transition of EMTs and paramedics is an element of this 
RFP, Proposers are encouraged to exceed the minimum requirements and provide the strongest plan 
possible for retention of the incumbent workforce, and additional points will be awarded for plans 
which exceed the minimum requirements. 
 



Page 46 

Employment stability within the EMS system is an important concern of incumbent employees, 
Contra Costa County, and the LEMSA. Incumbent personnel hired will retain "seniority status" earned 
while working full-time in the Contra Costa County EMS system. 
 
Contractor will provide full time employees with a wage and benefit program comparable to the 
employees’ current program. If an incumbent provider is successful, it agrees to maintain, at a 
minimum, current salary and benefit levels for personnel and consistent with offerings included in its 
proposal. 
 
The LEMSA expects that to attract and retain outstanding personnel, Contractor must utilize 
reasonable compensation and scheduling methods. Contractor's economic efficiencies are not to be 
derived from the use of sub-standard compensation. The system in no way intends to restrict the 
ingenuity of Contractor and its employees from working out new and creative compensation (salary 
and benefits) programs. The system’s goal is simply to ensure that Contractor initially and 
throughout the term of the Agreement provides a financial benefit to encourage employee retention 
and recruitment for the system. 
 
Proposer shall describe how it intends to maintain continuity of service in the system by employing 
current personnel and efforts to retain personnel through the term of the Agreement. If the Proposer 
is the current provider, it shall describe how it intends to retain personnel through the term of the 
new Agreement. 

2. Character, Competence and Professionalism of Personnel 

The parties understand that Ambulance services are often rendered in the context of stressful 
situations. The LEMSA expects and requires professional and courteous conduct and appearance at 
all times from Contractor's Ambulance personnel, medical communications personnel, middle 
managers, and top executives. Contractor shall address and correct any occasional departure from 
this standard of conduct. 
 
All persons employed by Contractor in the performance of its work shall be competent and holders of 
appropriate licenses and permits in their respective professions and shall undergo a criminal record 
check in accordance with the State of California requirements. Contractor must independently judge 
the employability and potential liability associated with employing any individual with a past history 
of serious offenses. 

3. Internal Health and Safety Programs 

The Contractor shall implement multiple programs to enhance the safety and health of the work 
force. These shall include driver-training, safety and risk management training. The County requires 
Contractor to have in place, prior to assumption of EMS duties, an aggressive and effective health, 
safety and loss mitigation program. 
 
The Contractor shall provide adequate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and other equipment to 
employees working in hazardous environments such as routine care, rescue operations, motor 
vehicle accidents, etc. At a minimum, personal protective gear shall comply with CALOSHA and EMSA 



Page 47 

#216 and shall include appropriate head, respiratory and flesh protection for employees. Policies and 
procedures should clearly describe the routine use of PPE on all patient encounters. 

4. Evolving OSHA & Other Regulatory Requirements 

It is anticipated, during the term of the Agreement that certain regulatory requirements for 
occupational safety and health including, but not limited to, infection prevention and control, blood-
borne and respiratory pathogens and hazardous materials, may be increased. It is the LEMSA’s 
expectation that Contractor will adopt procedures that meet or perform better than all requirements 
for dealing with these matters. 
 
Contractor shall make available at no cost to its employees all currently recommended 
immunizations and health screening to its high-risk personnel. 

5. Discrimination Not Allowed 

During the performance of the Agreement, Contractor agrees that it will comply with all applicable 
provisions of federal, state, and local laws and regulations prohibiting discrimination. Without 
limiting this, Contractor warrants that it will fully comply with Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of 1964, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and all other regulations 
promulgated there under. Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of race, religion, color, disability, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, or age. 
Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that employment is offered and that employees are 
treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, disability, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation, or age. Such action shall include, but is not limited to, the following: employment-
upgrade, demotion, transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; lay-off or termination; rates of 
pay or other forms of compensation; and selection, including apprenticeship. 
 

F. Management 

1. Data and Reporting Requirements 

The long-term success of any EMS system is predicated upon its ability to both measure and manage 
its affairs. Therefore, the LEMSA will require Contractor to provide detailed operational, clinical, and 
administrative data in a manner that facilitates its retrospective analysis. 

a) Dispatch Computer 
The dispatch computer utilized by Contractor shall include security features preventing 
unauthorized access or retrospective adjustment and full audit trail documentation. The 
LEMSA will be provided access to all data maintained by the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 
system as necessary to analyze demand and determine deployment procedures. The 
Contractor agrees to allow the LEMSA, at Contractor’s expense, to install an interface with 
the CAD to collect and monitor computer-aided dispatch information and patient care 
reports and provide access to the LEMSA to voice recording systems. 
 



Page 48 

The Contractor in conjunction with the LEMSA shall establish procedures to automate the 
monthly reporting requirements and to develop situational status reports that provide alerts 
when system status falls outside expected parameters. 
 
The interface made available to the LEMSA shall provide real-time monitoring of the 
Contractor’s CAD screens and at a minimum provide the location and status of active 
ambulance calls, pending calls, location and status of ambulances and crews. 

b) Essential Patient Care Record and Assignment Data 
Contractor shall utilize an electronic patient care record system (PCR) that is HL7 
compatible, NEMSIS 3 and CEMSIS compliant, meets the requirements of the state EMSA and 
is approved by the LEMSA for patient documentation on all EMS system responses including 
patient contacts, canceled calls, interfacility, and non-transports. The PCR shall be accurately 
completed to include all information required by and established in Title 22, Division 9, 
Chapter 4, Article 8, Section 100171 and information shall be distributed according to 
established County EMS Policies and Procedures. The Contractor shall leave interim and final 
copies of the PCR (electronic or printed) at the receiving hospital upon delivery of each 
patient in accordance with LEMSA policy. 
 
The Contractor shall develop and implement a PCR monitoring process to identify when the 
Interim and Final PCRs are provided to the receiving facilities. The results of the PCR 
delivery performance will be reported to the LEMSA monthly. 
 
The Contractor will support Health Information Exchange (HIE) with hospital medical 
record information systems and create a process for hospitals to view PCRs as soon as they 
are available. 
 
Within 24 hours, Contractor shall provide access for the Contract Administrator and 
receiving hospitals to final patient care records in computer readable format and suitable for 
statistical analysis for all priorities. Records shall contain all information documented on the 
PCR for all EMS system responses including patient contacts, cancelled calls, interfacility, and 
non-transports. 

c) Records 
Contractor shall complete, maintain, and provide to the LEMSA, the ability to view online via 
a secure portal as requested, adequate records and documentation to demonstrate its 
performance compliance and aid LEMSA in improving, modifying, and monitoring the EMS 
system. 

d) Monthly Reports Required 
Contractor shall provide, within 10 business days after the first of each calendar month, 
computer database data in an electronic format and reports pertaining to its performance 
during the preceding month as it relates to the clinical, operational, and financial 
performance stipulated herein. Contractor shall document and report to Contract 
Administrator in writing in a form required by the Contract Administrator. Response time 



Page 49 

compliance and customer complaints/resolutions shall be reported monthly. Reports other 
than Response Time compliance and customer complaints/resolutions may be required less 
frequently than monthly. At the end of each calendar year, no later than November 30 of the 
proceeding year, LEMSA shall provide a list of required reports and their frequency and due 
dates to the Contractor. 
 
Reports in a format approved by the LEMSA shall include, at a minimum: 

(1)

Continuing education compliance reports; 

Clinical 

Summary of clinical/service inquiries and resolutions;
Summary of interrupted calls due to vehicle/equipment failures; and 
Data analysis and details of calls supporting clinical and medical oversight of 
Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, and Cardiac Arrest and other system of care populations. 
Data analysis and details of calls that result in no-transport (Against Medical Advice) 

(2)

Calls and transports, by priority for each Emergency Response Zone and density 
area; 

Operational

A list of each call, sorted by Emergency Response Zone, where there was a failure to 
properly record all times necessary to determine the Response Time; 
Documentation of all patients meeting trauma, STEMI, stroke, or cardiac arrest 
criteria including on-scene time and transport to hospital time; 
Documentation and data analysis of hospital off-load delays, including time unit 
arrived at facility and time patient care was transferred to receiving facility staff and 
duration of off-load delays; 
A list of mutual aid responses to and from system; and 
EMS transports to and from medical aircraft  

(3)

A list of each emergency call dispatched for which Contractor did not meet the 
Response Time standard for each Emergency Response Zone and an explanation of 
why the response was late; 

Response Time Compliance 

Canceled calls; and 
Exception reports and resolution. 

(4)

Within 10 business days following the last day of each month, Contractor shall ensure 
that ambulance Response Time records are available to LEMSA in a computer readable 
format approved by the Contract Administrator and suitable for statistical analysis for 
all ambulance responses originating from requests within the County. The records shall, 
at a minimum, include the following individual data elements: 

Response Time Statistical Data 

unit identifier 
location of call – street address  
location of call –  city, town or unincorporated County 



Page 50 

location of call - longitude 
location of call - latitude 
location of call – Emergency Response Zone 
density area (urban/suburban or rural) 
nature of call (EMD Code) 
response code to scene 
time call received 
time call dispatched 
time unit en route 
time unit upgraded or downgraded 
time unit on-scene 
response code at arrival on scene (for upgrade or downgrade) 
time unit en route to hospital 
time unit at hospital 
time patient handoff to ED staff occurred 
time unit clear and available for next call 
outcome (dry run, transport) 
receiving hospital 
transport code to hospital 
system of care call type (i.e. cardiac arrest, trauma, STEMI, stroke)   
number of patients transported 

(5)

Contractor shall provide LEMSA annually with a list of paramedics, EMTs and 
dispatchers currently employed by Contractor and shall update that list monthly, as 
necessary. 

Personnel Reports 

Contractor shall immediately notify LEMSA when paramedic personnel are no longer 
employed as a paramedic. 

Contractor shall report any termination or suspension for disciplinary cause, resignation 
or retirement in lieu of investigation and/or disciplinary action or removal from related 
duties due to disciplinary actions as required by Title 22, Division 9, Chapter 6, section 
100208.1. 
 
The personnel list shall include, at a minimum, the name, address, telephone number, 
California paramedic license and expiration date or EMT certification and expiration 
date, ACLS expiration date, CPR expiration date, and California Driver's License number 
of each person on the list. 

(6)

Monthly list of meetings with constituents and stakeholders (i.e. community 
engagement) 

Community/Governmental Affairs Report 

Number of conducted community education events including location and hours 
and number of participants, 



Page 51 

Number of individuals taught CPR 
Number of CPR anytime kits and AEDs provided 
Public Relations (PR) activities, first responder recognition, 
Government relations contact report. 

(7)

Contractor shall provide capability for LEMSA, at the Contractor’s expense, to access all 
PCRs and provide a mechanism to create customized reports for LEMSA monitoring and 
review. The electronic access shall also include real-time monitoring of CAD systems. 

Electronic Access 

(8)

Contractor shall provide LEMSA with such other reports and records as may be 
reasonably required by the Contract Administrator. 

Other Reports 

G. EMS System and Community 

1. Participation in EMS System Development 

The LEMSA anticipates further development of its EMS system and regional efforts to enhance 
disaster and mutual-aid response. LEMSA requires that its Contractor actively participate in EMS 
activities, committee meetings, and work groups. Contractor agrees to participate and assist in the 
development of system changes. 

2. Accreditation 

Within 24 months following commencement of the term of the Agreement, the Contractor will attain 
accreditation as an ALS Ambulance Service through the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance 
Services (CAAS) or comparable organization as approved by the LEMSA. The Contractor shall 
maintain its accreditation throughout the term of the Agreement. The LEMSA may levy a penalty of 
$200 for each day that the Contractor is not accredited after the first 24 months whether due to 
failure to obtain accreditation or a lapse thereof. 

3. Multi-casualty/Disaster Response 

Contractor shall cooperate with the LEMSA in rendering emergency assistance during a declared or 
an undeclared disaster or in multi-victim response as identified in the LEMSA plans. Contractor must 
have detailed written plans and procedures to mitigate impacts to and ensure continuous internal 
operations during all potential emergencies, disasters or work actions (i.e. power failure, information 
systems failure, earthquake). 
 
Contractor must have an emergency electrical power system available to provide power to its critical 
command, control, computer and communications systems in the event the normal electrical supply 
is interrupted. This system must be tested periodically per NFPA 110. 



Page 52 

In the event the County declares a disaster within the County, the Contractor will assign a Field or 
Dispatch Manager/Supervisor to deploy to the designated emergency operations center (when 
activated) as a liaison upon request. 
 
In the event the County declares a disaster within the County, or in the event the County directs 
Contractor to respond to a disaster in a neighboring jurisdiction, normal operations may be 
suspended at the discretion of the LEMSA and Contractor shall respond in accordance with the 
disaster plan. Contractor shall use best efforts to maintain primary Emergency services and may 
suspend non-emergency services upon notification on concurrence with the LEMSA. 
 
At a multi-victim scene, Contractor's personnel shall perform in accordance with LEMSA multi-
casualty incident response plan and within Incident Command System (ICS). 
 
Contractor shall not release emergency ambulance assets to another jurisdiction without approval of 
the LEMSA. 
 
During a disaster declared by the County, the LEMSA will determine, on a case-by-case basis, if the 
Contractor may be temporarily exempt from response-time criteria. When Contractor is notified that 
multi-casualty or disaster assistance is no longer required, Contractor shall return all of its resources 
to primary area of responsibility and shall resume all operations as required under the Agreement. 

a) Internal Disaster Response Notification 
Contractor shall develop a plan for immediate recall of personnel during multi-casualty or 
widespread disaster. This plan shall include the capability of Contractor to alert off-duty 
personnel. 

b) Disaster Response Vehicle/Equipment 
Contractor shall maintain a county-controlled, state provided Disaster Medical Support Unit 
(DMSU). In the absence of a DMSU, the Contractor shall provide one vehicle as a disaster response 
vehicle.  This vehicle shall not be an ambulance used in routine, day-to-day operations, but shall be 
kept in good working order and available for emergency response to the scene.  This vehicle may 
be used to carry personnel and equipment to a disaster site.  The following equipment shall be 
stored in this disaster vehicle:  backboards and straps; cervical collars; head immobilization sets 
and foam wedges; PPE, splints for legs and arms; oxygen equipment; extra dressing and bandages; 
advanced life support equipment, especially IV therapy equipment, County approved disaster tags, 
and checklists for medical Incident Command personnel 

c) Incident Notification 
Contractor shall have a mechanism in place to communicate current field information to 
appropriate LEMSA or County Health Services staff during multi-casualties, disaster 
response, hazardous materials incidents, and other unusual occurrences. 

d) Ambulance Strike Team 
Contractor shall be able to deploy an ALS ambulance strike team consistent with State 
Ambulance Strike Team Guidelines. 
 



Page 53 

Contractor shall have staff members trained and certified as Ambulance Strike Team Leaders. 

e) Interagency Training for Exercises/Drills 
Contractor shall participate in LEMSA sanctioned exercises and disaster drills and other 
interagency training. 
 

4. Mutual-aid and Stand-by Services

a) Mutual Aid Requirements 
Contractor shall respond in a mutual aid capacity to other service areas outside of the EOA if 
so directed by Contract Administrator or in accordance with mutual aid agreements. 
Specifically, Contractor shall maintain documentation of the number and nature of mutual 
aid responses it makes and nature of mutual aid responses made by other agencies to calls 
originating within the EOA.  

b) Stand-by Service 
Contractor shall provide, at no charge to the LEMSA or requesting agency, stand-by services 
at the scene of an emergency incident within the EOA when directed by a County designated 
public safety dispatch center upon request of a public safety agency. A unit placed on stand-
by shall be dedicated to the incident. Stand-by periods exceeding eight (8) hours shall be 
approved by Contract Administrator. 

5. Permitted Subcontracting 

The Contractor may contract with providers for ALS interfacility transports/transfers originating 
within the EOA. Contractor may also subcontract for management, administrative services, dispatch, 
and billing and collection activities. Such agreements must be approved by the LEMSA. The sub-
contracting ambulance entities must meet the LEMSA’s minimum requirements for ALS ambulance 
services. The Contractor remains responsible and accountable to meet Response Time and reporting 
requirements and the Contractor is liable to pay any penalties for non-performance by the 
subcontractor. 
 
Contractor may subcontract medical dispatch center services to another agency within or outside of 
the County. Regardless, the Contractor will retain accountability and responsibility for the 
performance of the Dispatch Center. Such agreement must be approved by the LEMSA. 

6. Communities May Contract Directly for Level of Effort 

This RFP and the Agreement are focused on Contractor performance. There are no provisions for a 
level of effort or requiring ambulances to be placed in specific areas of Contra Costa County. 
 
The Contractor may contract directly with cities, communities, or other jurisdictions to have an 
ambulance or other services provided within their community. Such arrangements will support EMS 
System coordination and are subject to the approval of the LEMSA and shall not be at the County’s 
expense. Regardless of such arrangements, there is no change in the exclusive agreement between 



Page 54 

the Contractor and the LEMSA and the Contractor must continue to comply with the performance 
standards of the agreement. 

7. Supply Exchange and Restock 

The Contractor will restock disposable medical supplies on a one-for-one basis based on utilization 
on calls by first response agencies. Contractor will work with first responder agencies to create a 
process of supply exchange and rotation that is cost effective. Contractor has no obligation to restock 
disposable medical supplies of items not in the Contractor’s inventory. This agreement does not limit 
the Contractor from changing supply vendors. 

8. Handling Service Inquiries and Complaints 

Contractor shall create consumer friendly processes to receive customer service complaints and lost 
item and other inquires. Contractor shall log all inquiries and service complaints and will ensure that 
non-clinical issues are followed through to resolution. Contractor shall provide prompt response and 
follow-up to such inquiries and complaints. Contractor’s management team will analyze inquiry 
reports to identify and address any trends. Such responses shall be subject to the limitations imposed 
by patient confidentiality restrictions. 
 
Contractor shall submit to the LEMSA each month a list of all complaints received and their 
appropriate disposition/resolution. Contractor shall submit copies of any inquiries and resolutions of 
a clinical nature to the EMS Medical Director or LEMSA within twenty-four (24) hours. 
 

H. Administrative Provisions 

1. Contractor Payments for Procurement Costs, County Compliance Monitoring, Contract 
Management, and Regulatory Activities (Plan B only) 

For Plan B of this Service Plan, the Contractor will reimburse the LEMSA for a portion of its 
expenses related to conducting this procurement, monitoring and managing the Agreement, 
provision of medical direction and conducting periodic procurements. An annual amount will be 
assessed based on the LEMSA’s costs for the previous fiscal year. The fees will be limited to a 
maximum of seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) per year. 

2. No System Subsidy 

Under Plan B, the Contractor will operate the EMS system without any subsidy from the LEMSA 
or the County. RFP specifications are designed to provide accountability without undue 
operational or financial burden for providers. 
 
Since many of the cost savings recommendations included in the EMS Modernization Report 
were not included in the Plan A requirements and provisions, this RFP allows for a request by 
the Contractor to identify potential subsidies that may be required to comply with all of the Plan 
A provisions. It is the desire of the County to operate a subsidy-free system, but it is recognized 



Page 55 

that fiscal trends of revenue collection and costs along with healthcare system changes may 
require additional financial support to maintain the current performance levels. 
 
Each Proposer must complete the subsidy request form included in Appendix 11. The Subsidy 
Request Form shall be submitted separately with the “Financial Documents.” 

3. Contractor Revenue Recovery 

The primary means of Contractor compensation is through fee-for-service reimbursement of patient 
charges. 

a) Patient Charges 
Contractor shall receive income from patient charges. Contractor shall comply with fee 
schedules and rates stipulated in this RFP (Stipulated Rates) and as subsequently approved 
by the LEMSA. The current rates are included in Appendix 7 and the Stipulated Rates are 
specified in Appendix 10. 

b) Fee Adjustments 
The Contract Administrator will approve annual increases to patient charges based on 
changes in the Consumer Price Index for Medical Services. The annual rate increases will be 
the greater of three (3) percent or the increase of the CPI for any given year. All changes in 
the transport fees must be approved by LEMSA. 
 
In the event changed circumstances substantially impact the Contractor’s costs of providing 
services or there are substantial reductions in revenue caused by factors that are beyond the 
control of Contractor, the Contractor may request increases or decreases in charges to 
patients to mitigate the financial impact of such changed circumstances. No adjustments to 
patient fees will be allowed during the first twelve (12) months of the commencement of the 
Agreement. If Contractor believes an adjustment is warranted, the Contractor may apply to 
the Contract Administrator for a rate adjustment to be effective on or after the first 
anniversary of the Agreement. Applications must be submitted at least sixty (60) days prior 
to the requested effective date. Requests for changes to patient charges shall only be allowed 
on an annual basis corresponding to the anniversary of the Agreement. The Contract 
Administrator shall review the application and forward his or her recommendation to the 
Health Services Director, who shall have the authority to approve or disapprove the request. 
Approval of rate changes is required before they can become effective.  

4. Federal Healthcare Program Compliance Provisions

Contractor shall comply with all applicable Federal laws, rules and regulations for operation of its 
enterprise, ambulance services, and those associated with employees. This includes compliance with 
all laws and regulations relating to the provision of services to be reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, 
and other government funded programs. 

a) Medicare and Medicaid Compliance Program Requirements 
Contractor shall implement a comprehensive Compliance Program for all activities, 
particularly those related to documentation, claims processing, billing and collection 



Page 56 

processes. Contractor’s Compliance Program shall substantially comply with the current  
guidelines and recommendations outlined in the Office of Inspector General (OIG) 
Compliance Program Guidance for Ambulance Suppliers as published in the Federal Register 
on March 24, 2003 (03 FR 14255). 
 
Contractor will engage a qualified entity to conduct a claims review on an annual basis as 
described in the OIG Compliance Guidance. A minimum of 50 randomly selected Medicare 
claims will be reviewed for compliance with CMS rules and regulations, appropriate 
documentation, medical necessity, and level of service. The Contractor will submit the report 
to the LEMSA within 120 days of the end of each contract year. 

b) HIPAA, CAL HIPAA and HITECH Compliance Program Requirements 
Contractor is required to implement a comprehensive plan and develop the appropriate 
policies and procedures to comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability 
and Accountability Act of 1996 and the current rules and regulations enacted by the US 
Department of Health and Human Services. The three major components of HIPAA, CAL 
HIPAA and HITECH include:  

1. Standards for Privacy and Individually Identifiable Health Information 
2. Health Insurance Reform: Security Standards 
3. Health Insurance Reform: Standards for Electronic Transaction Sets and Code 

Standards 

Contractor is responsible for all aspects of complying with these rules and particularly those 
enacted to protect the confidentiality of patient information. Any violations of the HIPAA, 
CAL HIPAA and HITECH rules and regulations will be reported immediately to the LEMSA 
along with Contractor’s actions to mitigate the effect of such violations. 

5. State Compliance Provisions 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable state and local laws, rules and regulations for businesses, 
ambulance services, and those associated with employees. Contractor shall also comply with county 
and LEMSA policies, procedures, and protocols. 

6. Billing/Collection Services 

Contractor shall operate a billing and accounts receivable system that is well documented, easy to 
audit, and which minimizes the effort required of patients to recover from third party sources for 
which they may be eligible. The billing system shall: 

1. electronically generate and submit Medicare and MediCal claims; 
2. itemize all procedures and supplies employed on patient bills; and 
3. be capable of responding to patient and third party payer inquiries regarding 

submission of insurance claims, dates and types of payments made, itemized 
charges, and other inquiries 

The Contractor shall provide for prompt response to any queries or appeals from patients.  The 
Proposer shall describe its methods for receiving, monitoring, and responding to patient issues and 
complaints. 



Page 57 

 
It is expected that the Contractor’s billing and collection services are conducted in a compassionate 
manner and that the Contractor recognizes that many patients may not have the financial resources 
to pay for their ambulance transports. The Proposer shall describe its policies for identifying patients 
that qualify for a financial hardship consideration for discounting or writing off their accounts. 

 
Billing Waivers for Impoverished, Conserved & Vulnerable: Contractor shall establish a consumer 
friendly procedure that allows for responsible party to make payment arrangements. The billing 
manager will review the form and assess an appropriate and acceptable monthly arrangement. 
 
Contractor shall establish a process to reduce the costs of ambulance services to patients who have 
demonstrated inability to pay through completing a “Financial Statement” form. All information 
relating to financial hardship requests shall be kept confidential. The billing manager will review the 
form and assess an appropriate and acceptable monthly arrangement. 
 
Billing Appeals Process: Contractor will create a consumer friendly appeals process in cooperation 
with Contra Costa Health Insurance Counseling and Advocacy Program (HICAP) that allows the 
consumer sufficient time for denied claims to go through governmental and private insurers appeals 
timeframes before being sent to collections.  In the case of Medicare billing the first level of Medicare 
appeals is 120 days. Contractor will, on a monthly basis, document the number of billing waivers, 
appeals in process and average time to process appeals. 
 
Contractor shall not attempt to collect its fees at the time of service. 
 
Contractor shall conduct all billing and collection functions for the EMS system in a professional and 
courteous manner. 

7. Market Rights 

The LEMSA shall not enter into agreements with any other provider for ground response to requests 
for Emergency Ambulance Service or ALS interfacility transports originating within the EOA during 
the term of this Agreement. Furthermore, the LEMSA will make reasonable efforts to ensure the 
Contractor’s exclusivity of ALS interfacility transports originating within the EOA. 
 
The LEMSA reserves the right to enter into separate transport agreements with air ambulance 
providers. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Contract, the LEMSA may provide for air 
transport of patients when such transportation is deemed to be medically in the best interest of the 
patient(s). However, no such agreement shall provide for air transport of non-critical patients or of 
critical patients when a ground ambulance is on-scene and transport time by ground ambulance to 
the most appropriate emergency medical facility equipped, staffed, and prepared to administer care 
appropriate to the needs of the patient is the same as or less than the estimated air transport time. 



Page 58 

8. Accounting Procedures 

a) Invoicing and Payment for Services 
The LEMSA shall render its invoice for any fines or penalties to the Contractor within 30 
business days of the LEMSA’s receipt of the Contractor’s monthly performance reports and 
after approval of the penalties determined by the LEMSA. The Contractor shall pay the 
LEMSA on or before the 30th day after receipt of the invoice. Any disputes of the invoiced 
amounts should be resolved in this thirty-day period. If they have not been resolved to 
LEMSA or Contractor’s satisfaction, the invoice shall be paid in full and subsequent invoices 
will be adjusted to reflect the resolution of disputed amounts. 

b) Financial Reporting 

Contractor will report trends in monthly net revenue, total expenses, number of deployed 
unit hours, cost per unit hour, number of transports, collection rate, average patient charge, 
net revenue/transport, cost/trip, and payer mix on a monthly basis. 

c) Audits and Inspections 
Contractor shall maintain separate financial records for services provided pursuant to the 
Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
With reasonable notification and during normal business hours, LEMSA shall have the right 
to review any and all business records including financial records of Contractor pertaining to 
the Agreement. All records shall be made available to LEMSA at the Contractor’s Contra 
Costa County office or other mutually agreeable location. LEMSA may audit, copy, make 
transcripts, or otherwise reproduce such records including, but not limited to, contracts, 
payroll, inventory, personnel and other records, daily logs and employment agreements. 
 
On an annual basis, the Contractor shall provide the LEMSA with audited financial 
statements by certified public accountants or governmental entity for Contractor's 
ambulance operations in Contra Costa County and/or separate business records of financial 
accounting of any other businesses that share overhead with the Contractor's ambulance 
service operation. 
 
Contractor may be required by the LEMSA to provide the LEMSA with periodic report(s) in 
the format specified by the Contract Administrator to demonstrate billing compliance with 
relevant rules and regulations and adherence with approved and specified rates. 

9. County Permit 

The LEMSA oversees ambulance services within the County. Pursuant to County Ordinance 83-25 
and LEMSA policies, an ambulance company must obtain the appropriate ambulance service permits. 
 
Contra Costa County ambulance permit information and applications are available 
at http://cchealth.org/ems/ambulance-providers.php#simpleContained3 and a copy of the current 
county ordinance can be found on the county’s website.  



Page 59 

10. Insurance Provisions 

Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, 
and thereafter as to matters occurring during the term of this Agreement, the required insurance 
coverage as listed in Appendix 12. If the Proposer is self-insured, the Proposer shall document it’s 
capability to provide similar coverage or assurance of coverage consistent with the insurance 
requirements. The Proposer shall also include a “reserve for losses” in the development of its 
financial budgets submitted with the Financial Documents. 

11. Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification / Taxes / Contributions 

a) Hold Harmelss 
In General, Contractor has the contracted duty (hereinafter "the duty") to indemnify, defend 
and hold harmless, the LEMSA, the County, its Board of Supervisors, officers, employees, 
agents and assigns from and against any and all claims, demands, liability, judgments, 
awards, interest, attorney’s fees, costs, experts’ fees and expenses of whatsoever kind or 
nature, at any time arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of this 
Agreement, whether in tort, contract or otherwise. This duty shall include, but not be limited 
to, claims for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, and contractual damages or 
otherwise alleged to be caused to any person or entity including, but not limited to 
employees, agents and officers of Contractor. 

Contractor’s liability for indemnity under this Agreement shall apply, regardless of fault, to 
any acts or omissions, willful misconduct or negligent conduct of any kind, on the part of the 
Contractor, its agents, subcontractors and employees. The duty shall extend to any allegation 
or claim of liability except in circumstances found by a jury or judge to be the sole and legal 
result of the willful misconduct of the LEMSA or the County. This duty shall arise at the first 
claim or allegation of liability against the LEMSA or the County. Contractor will on request, 
and at its expense, defend any action suit or proceeding arising hereunder. This clause for 
indemnification shall be interpreted to the broadest extent permitted by law.” 

b) Employee Character and Fitness.  
Contractor accepts responsibility for determining and approving the character and fitness of 
its employees (including volunteers, agents, or representatives) to provide the services 
required of Contractor under this Agreement, including completion of a satisfactory 
criminal/background check and periodic rechecks to the extent permitted by law. 
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Paragraph, Contractor shall hold County, 
the LEMSA and their officers, agents and employees harmless from any liability for injuries 
or damages resulting from a breach of this provision or Contractor’s actions in this regard. 

12. Performance Security Bond 

Contractor shall furnish performance security in the amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000) in 
one of the following forms: 

a) A faithful performance bond issued by a bonding company, appropriately licensed and 
acceptable to the LEMSA; or 



Page 60 

b) An irrevocable letter of credit issued pursuant to this provision in a form acceptable to 
the LEMSA and from a bank or other financial institution acceptable to the LEMSA, or 

c) If the Proposer is a governmental entity, the County will waive the performance bond 
requirement. 

13. Term of Agreement 

The initial term of the Agreement ultimately executed by Contractor shall be for a period of five (5) 
years commencing at 12:01 a.m. on [Month Day, 2015] and terminating at midnight, [Month Day, 
2020]. 

14. Earned Extension to Agreement 

If, at the sole judgment and discretion of the LEMSA, the Contractor is deemed to be substantially in 
compliance with the specifications defined in this RFP and the resulting Agreement, the Health 
Services Director may, after seeking a recommendation from the Board of Supervisors, grant an 
extension of the Agreement for up to five (5) additional years. The LEMSA shall make the offer of 
extension by formal written notice to the Contractor at least eighteen (18) months prior to the 
scheduled end of the term of the Agreement. 
 
While it is the intent of the LEMSA to have completed a competitive procurement for selecting the 
Contractor by the end of the term of the Agreement or extension thereof, the LEMSA recognizes that 
healthcare and EMS changes may require a re-design of the EMS System.  In the event that the re-
design is deemed necessary and cannot be completed and changes implemented prior to the end of 
the term of the Agreement, the LEMSA may extend the Agreement for up to an additional thirty-six 
(36) months upon approval of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
If the Contractor does not want to continue providing services to the LEMSA as stipulated in the 
Agreement after the end of the Term, the Contractor must give notice of its intent not to extend the 
Agreement at least seventeen (17) months prior to the scheduled end of the term of the Agreement. 

15. Continuous Service Delivery 

Contractor expressly agrees that, in the event of a default by Contractor under the Agreement, 
Contractor will work with the LEMSA to ensure continuous and uninterrupted delivery of services, 
regardless of the nature or causes underlying such breach. Contractor shall be obligated to use every 
effort to assist the LEMSA to ensure uninterrupted and continuous service delivery in the event of a 
default, even if Contractor disagrees with the determination of default. 

16. Annual Performance Evaluation 

The LEMSA may evaluate the performance of the ambulance Contractor on an annual basis. An 
evaluation report will be provided to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors. 
 
The following information will normally be included in the performance evaluation: 

a) Response Time performance standards assessed with reference to the minimum 
requirements in the Contract; 



Page 61 

b) Clinical performance standards assessed with reference to the minimum requirements 
in the Contract; 

c) Initiation of innovative programs to improve system performance; 
d) Workforce stability, including documented efforts to minimize employee turnover; 
e) Compliance of pricing and revenue recovery efforts with rules and regulations and the 

Agreement; and 
f) Compliance with information reporting requirements 
g) Financial stability and sustainability 

 

17. Default and Provisions for Termination of the Agreement 

The LEMSA shall have the right to terminate or cancel the Agreement or to pursue any appropriate 
legal remedy in the event Contractor materially breaches the Agreement and fails to correct such 
default within seven (7) days following the service on it of a written notice by the LEMSA specifying 
the default or defaults complained of and the date of intended termination of rights absent cure. 

a) Definitions of Breach 
Conditions and circumstances that shall constitute a material breach by Contractor shall 
include, but not be limited to, the following: 

1. Failure of Contractor to operate the ambulance service system in a manner which 
enables the LEMSA or Contractor to remain in substantial compliance with the 
requirements of the applicable federal, state, and county laws, rules, and regulations. 
Minor infractions of such requirements shall not constitute a material breach, but 
such willful and repeated infractions shall constitute a material breach; 

2. Willful falsification of data supplied to the LEMSA by Contractor during the course of 
operations, including by way of example but not by way of exclusion, dispatch data, 
patient report data, Response Time data, financial data, or falsification of any other 
data required under the Agreement, or a willful refusal to provide such data within a 
reasonable time when demanded by the LEMSA; 

3. Chronic and persistent failure by Contractor to maintain equipment in accordance 
with good maintenance practices; 

4. Deliberate, excessive, and unauthorized scaling down of operations to the detriment 
of performance by Contractor during a "lame duck" period as described in Section 
H.23; 

5. Deliberately increasing the cost of providing services, failing to maintain positive 
labor relations, or undertaking any activity designed to make it more difficult for a 
transition to a new Contractor or for a new Contractor’s operation in the event of a 
default or failure of incumbent to prevail during a subsequent bid cycle; 

6. Willful attempts by Contractor to intimidate or otherwise punish employees who 
desire to sign contingent employment contracts with competing Proposers during a 
subsequent bid cycle; 

7. Willful attempts by Contractor to intimidate or punish employees who participate in 
legally protected concerted activities, or who form or join any professional 
associations; 



Page 62 

8. Chronic and persistent failure of Contractor's employees to conduct themselves in a 
professional and courteous manner, or to present a professional appearance; 

9. Failure of Contractor to comply with approved rate setting, billing, and collection 
procedures; 

10. Failure of Contractor to meet Response Time requirements for three consecutive 
measurement periods in a single category and after receiving notice of non-
compliance from Contract Administrator; 

11. Failure of Contractor to comply with the vehicle lease provisions; 
12. Failure of Contractor to cooperate and assist County in the investigation or 

correction of any “Minor Breach” conditions; 
13. Failure to comply with required payment of fines or penalties within sixty (60) days 

written notice of the imposition of such fine or penalty; 
14. Failure to maintain in force throughout the terms of the Agreement, including any 

extensions thereof, the insurance coverage required herein; 
15. Failure to maintain in force throughout the term of the Agreement, including any 

extensions thereof, the performance security requirements as specified herein; 
16. Failure to timely prepare and submit the required annual audit; and  
17. Any other willful acts or omissions of Contractor that endanger the public health 

and safety. 

18. Termination 

a) Written Notice 
The Agreement may be canceled immediately by written mutual consent. 

b) Failure to Perform 
The LEMSA, upon written notice to Contractor, may immediately terminate the Agreement 
should Contractor materially breach any of its obligations under the Agreement. In the event 
of such termination, the LEMSA may proceed with the work in any reasonable manner it 
chooses. The cost to the LEMSA of completing Contractor's performance shall be partially 
supported by securing the funds of the Performance Security Bond, without prejudice to 
LEMSA's rights otherwise to recover its damages or to seek any other remedy. 

19. Emergency Takeover 

In the event LEMSA determines that a material breach, actual or threatened, has or will occur or that 
a labor dispute has prevented performance, and if the nature of the breach is, in the Contract 
Administrator's opinion, such that public health and safety are endangered, and after Contractor has 
been given notice and reasonable opportunity to correct deficiency, the matter shall be presented to 
the Health Services Director. 
 
If the Health Services Director concurs that a material breach has occurred or may occur and that 
public health and safety would be endangered by allowing the Contractor to continue its operations, 
the Contractor shall cooperate fully with the LEMSA to affect an immediate takeover by the LEMSA of 
Contractor's ambulances and crew stations. Such takeover shall be affected within not more than 72 



Page 63 

hours after Health Services Director’s decision and approval by the Board of Supervisors to execute 
the emergency takeover. 
 
In the event of an emergency takeover, the Contractor shall deliver to the LEMSA ambulances and 
associated equipment used in performance of the Contract, including supervisors' vehicles. Each 
ambulance shall be equipped, at a minimum, with the equipment and supplies necessary for the 
operation of ALS ambulances in accordance with LEMSA ALS Policies and Procedures.   
 
Contractor shall deliver ambulances, dispatch and communications systems, facilities and crew 
stations to the LEMSA in mitigation of any damages to LEMSA resulting from the Contractor's breach. 
However, during the LEMSA's takeover of the ambulances and equipment, LEMSA and Contractor 
shall be considered Lessee and Lessor, respectively. Monthly rent payable to the Contractor shall be 
equal to the aggregate monthly amount of the Contractor's debt service on facilities, vehicles and 
equipment as documented by the Contractor at Contract Administrator's request, and verified by the 
County Auditor (provided that the cost of contractor debt service does not exceed the fair market 
value of the rent for the facilities, vehicles and equipment). The County Auditor shall cause the 
disbursement of these payments directly to the Contractor's obligee. In the event an ambulance is 
unencumbered, or a crew station is not being rented, LEMSA shall pay the Contractor fair market 
rental based upon an independent valuation. 
 
Nothing herein shall preclude the LEMSA from seeking to recover from the Contractor such rental 
and debt service payments as elements of damage from a breach of the Agreement. However, the 
Contractor shall not be precluded from disputing the Health Services Director's findings or the nature 
and amount of the LEMSA's damages, if any, through litigation. Failure on the part of the Contractor 
to cooperate fully with the LEMSA to effect a safe/smooth takeover of operations shall itself 
constitute a breach of the Contract, even if it is later determined that the original declaration of 
breach by the Director was made in error. 

 
The LEMSA shall have the right to authorize the use of vehicles and equipment by another entity. 
Should the LEMSA require a substitute contractor to obtain insurance on equipment, or should the 
LEMSA choose to obtain insurance on vehicles/equipment, the Contractor shall be "Named 
Additional Insured" on the policy, along with the appropriate endorsements and cancellation notice. 
 
The LEMSA agrees to return the Contractor's vehicles and equipment to the Contractor in good 
working order, normal wear and tear excepted, at the end of takeover period. For any of the 
Contractor's equipment not so returned, the LEMSA shall pay the Contractor fair market value of 
vehicle and equipment at time of takeover, less normal wear and tear or shall pay the Contractor 
reasonable costs of repair, or shall repair and return vehicles and equipment. 
 
The LEMSA may unilaterally terminate a takeover period at any time and return facilities and 
equipment to the Contractor. The takeover period shall last no longer than the LEMSA judges 
necessary to stabilize the EMS system and to protect the public health and safety by whatever means 
the LEMSA chooses. 
 



Page 64 

All of the Contractor's vehicles and related equipment necessary for provision of ALS services 
pursuant to this Contract are hereby leased to the LEMSA during an emergency takeover period. 
Contractor shall maintain and provide to the LEMSA a listing of all vehicles used in the performance 
of this Contract, including reserve vehicles, their license numbers and name and address of lien 
holder, if any. Changes in lien holder, as well as the transfer, sale, or purchase of vehicles used to 
provide ambulance services hereunder shall be reported to the LEMSA within 30 days of said change, 
sale, transfer, or purchase. Contractor shall inform and provide a copy of takeover provisions 
contained herein to lien holder(s) within five (5) days of emergency takeover. 

20. Transition Planning 

a) Competitive Bid Required 
Contractor acknowledges that the LEMSA intends to conduct a competitive procurement 
process for the provision of Emergency Ambulance Service within LEMSA’s Exclusive 
Operating Area prior to the termination of this Contract. Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that the LEMSA may select a different ambulance service provider to provide 
exclusive Emergency Ambulance Services following said competitive procurement process, 
and to reasonable extension of its obligations hereunder if such extensions are necessary to 
complete such processes including, but not limited to, any reasonable decisions to cancel and 
restart such processes. 

b) Future Bid Cycles 
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that supervisory personnel, EMT's and paramedics, 
working in the EMS system have a reasonable expectation of long-term employment in the 
system, even though Contractors may change. Accordingly, Contractor shall not penalize or 
bring personal hardship to bear upon any of its employees who apply for work on a 
contingent basis with competing Proposers and shall allow without penalty its employees to 
sign contingent employment agreements with competing Proposers at employees' discretion. 
Contractor may prohibit its employees from assisting competing Proposers in preparing 
Proposals by revealing Contractor's trade secrets or other information about Contractor's 
business practices or field operations. 

21. LEMSA's Remedies 

If conditions or circumstances constituting a Default as set forth in Section H.17 exist, the LEMSA 
shall have all rights and remedies available at law or in equity under the Agreement, specifically 
including the right to terminate the Agreement and/or the right to pursue Contractor for damages 
and the right of emergency take-over as set forth in Section IV.H.18. All LEMSA's remedies shall be 
non-cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy available to LEMSA. 

22. Provisions for Curing Material Breach and Emergency Take Over 

In the event the LEMSA determines that there has been a material breach by Contractor of the 
standards and performances as defined in this specification, which breach represents an immediate 
threat to public health and safety, such determination shall constitute a material breach and/or 
default of the Agreement. In the event of a material breach, LEMSA shall give Contractor written 



Page 65 

notice, return receipt requested, setting forth with reasonable specificity the nature of the material 
breach. 
 
Contractor shall have the right to cure such material breach within seven (7) calendar days of receipt 
of such notice and which notice should include the reason why such material breach endangers the 
public's health and safety unless an immediate and grave threat to public health and safety requires 
shorter notice or no notice.  In cases where notice is given, within 24 hours of receipt of such notice, 
Contractor shall deliver to the LEMSA, in writing, a plan of action to cure such material breach.  The 
LEMSA, acting through the Health Services Director or designee, may permit Contractor to 
implement such a plan of action if the plan is acceptable to the LEMSA, and may set such deadlines 
for the completion of such actions as the LEMSA deems appropriate, in its sole and absolute 
discretion. If Contractor fails to cure such material breach within the period allowed for cure (with 
such failure to be determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the LEMSA) or Contractor fails to 
timely deliver the cure plan to the LEMSA, the LEMSA may execute an emergency take-over of 
Contractor's operations. Contractor shall cooperate completely and immediately with the LEMSA to 
affect a prompt and orderly transfer of all responsibilities to the LEMSA. 
 
Contractor shall not be prohibited from disputing any such finding of default through appropriate 
channels, provided, however that such dispute shall not have the effect of delaying, in any way, the 
immediate takeover of operations by the LEMSA. These provisions shall be specifically stipulated and 
agreed to by both parties as being reasonable and necessary for the protection of public health and 
safety, and any legal dispute concerning the finding that a Default has occurred, shall be initiated, and 
shall take place only after the emergency take-over has been completed. 
 
Contractor's cooperation with and full support of such emergency take-over shall not be construed as 
acceptance by Contractor of the findings and default, and shall not in any way jeopardize Contractor's 
right of recovery based upon a later finding in an appropriate forum that the declaration of Default 
was made in error. However, failure on the part of Contractor to cooperate fully with the LEMSA to 
affect a smooth and safe take-over of operations, shall itself constitute a breach of the Agreement, 
even if it was later determined that the original declaration of default by the LEMSA was made in 
error. 
 
For any default by Contractor which does not endanger public health and safety, or for any default by 
the LEMSA, which cannot otherwise be resolved, early termination provisions which may be agreed 
to by the parties will supersede these specifications. 

23. "Lame-duck" Provisions 

Should the Agreement not be renewed, extended or if notice of early termination is given by 
Contractor, Contractor agrees to continue to provide all services required in and under the 
Agreement until the LEMSA or a new entity assumes service responsibilities, even if reasonable 
extension of the Contractor’s Agreement with the LEMSA is necessary. Under these circumstances 
Contractor will, for a period of several months, serve as a lame duck Contractor. To ensure continued 
performance fully consistent with the requirements herein through any such period, the following 
provisions shall apply: 



Page 66 

 
a) Contractor shall continue all operations and support services at the same level of effort 

and performance as were in effect prior to the award of the subsequent Agreement to a 
competing organization including, but not limited to, compliance with provisions hereof 
related to qualifications of key personnel;  

b) Contractor shall make no changes in methods of operation or employee compensation 
that could reasonably be considered to be aimed at cutting Contractor service and 
operating costs to maximize or effect a gain during the final stages of the Agreement or 
placing an undue burden on the subsequent Contractor; 

c) LEMSA recognizes that if another organization should be selected to provide service, 
Contractor may reasonably begin to prepare for transition of service to the new entity. 
The LEMSA shall not unreasonably withhold its approval of Contractor's request to 
begin an orderly transition process, including reasonable plans to relocate staff, scale 
down certain inventory items, etc., as long as such transition activity does not impair 
Contractor's performance during this period; and 

d) Should LEMSA select another organization as a service provider in the future, Contractor 
personnel shall have reasonable opportunities to discuss issues related to employment 
with such organizations without adverse consequence 

24. General Provisions 

a) Assignment 
Contractor shall not assign any portion of the Agreement for services to be rendered without 
written consent first obtained from the LEMSA and any assignment made contrary to the 
provisions of this section may be deemed a default of the Agreement and, at the option of the 
LEMSA, shall not convey any rights to the assignee. 

b) Permits and Licenses 
Contractor shall be responsible for and shall hold any and all required federal, state, or local 
permits or licenses required to perform its obligations under the Agreement. In addition, 
Contractor shall make all necessary payments for licenses and permits for the services and 
for issuance of state permits for all ambulance vehicles used. It shall be entirely the 
responsibility of Contractor to schedule and coordinate all such applications and application 
renewals as necessary to ensure that Contractor is in complete compliance with federal, 
state, and local requirements for permits and licenses as necessary to provide the services 
pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that its employee’s 
state and local certifications as necessary to provide the services, if applicable, are valid and 
current at all times.   

c) Compliance with Laws and Regulations 
All services furnished by Contractor under the Agreement shall be rendered in full 
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules, and 
regulations. It shall be Contractor’s sole responsibility to determine which, and be fully 
familiar with, all laws, rules, and regulations that apply to the services under the Agreement 
and to maintain compliance with those applicable standards at all times. 



Page 67 

d) Private Work
Contractor shall not be prevented from conducting private work that does not interfere with 
the requirements of Agreement.  

e) Retention of Records 
Contractor shall retain all documents pertaining to Agreement for seven (7) years from the 
end of the fiscal year following the date of service; for any further period that is required by 
law; and until all Federal/State audits are complete and exceptions resolved for this 
Agreement's funding period. Upon request, and except as otherwise restricted by law, 
Contractor shall make these records available to authorized representatives of the LEMSA, 
the County, the State of California, and the United States Government.  Any and all records 
received and manufactured by the County under this Agreement shall be deemed County 
Records, for all purposes, including disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, 
Government Code 6250, et seq. 

f) Product Endorsement/Advertising 
Contractor shall not use the name of Contra Costa County for the endorsement of any 
commercial products or services without the expressed written permission of the Contract 
Administrator. 

g) Observation and Inspections 
LEMSA representatives may, at any time, and without notification, directly observe 
Contractor's operations of the Dispatch Center, maintenance facility, or any ambulance post 
location. A LEMSA representative may ride as "third person" on any of Contractor's 
Ambulance units at any time, provided, that in exercising this right to inspection and 
observation, LEMSA representatives shall conduct themselves in a professional and 
courteous manner, shall not interfere with Contractor employee's duties and shall at all 
times be respectful of Contractor's employer/employee relationships. 
 
At any time during normal business hours and as often as may be reasonably deemed 
necessary by the LEMSA, LEMSA representatives may observe Contractor's office operations, 
and Contractor shall make available to County for its examination any and all business 
records, including incident reports, and patient records pertaining to the Agreement. The 
LEMSA may audit, copy, make transcripts, or otherwise reproduce such records for LEMSA 
to fulfill its oversight role. 

h) Omnibus Provision 
Contractor understands and agrees that for seven years following the conclusion of the 
Agreement it may be required to make available upon written request to the Secretary of the 
US Department of Health and Human Services, or any other fully authorized representatives, 
the specifications and subsequent Agreements, and any such books, documents and records 
that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the reasonable costs of services. 

i) Relationship of the Parties 
Nothing in the Agreement shall be construed to create a relationship of employer and 
employee or principal and agent, partnership, joint venture or any other relationship other 



Page 68 

than that of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purpose of 
carrying out the provisions of the Agreement. Contractor is an independent contractor and is 
not an employee of County or LEMSA. Contractor is responsible for all insurance (worker’s 
compensation, unemployment, etc.) and all payroll related tax. Nothing in the Agreement 
shall create any right or remedies in any third party. The Agreement is entered solely for the 
benefit of the County, LEMSA, and Contractor. 

j) Rights and Remedies Not Waived 
Contractor will be required to covenant that the provision of services to be performed by 
Contractor under the Agreement shall be completed without compensation from LEMSA or 
County unless County agrees to a specified subsidy amount proposed under Plan A. The 
acceptance of work under the Agreement shall not be held to prevent LEMSA’s maintenance 
of an action for failure to perform work in accordance with the Agreement. 

k) Consent to Jurisdiction 
Contractor shall consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California 
or a federal court in California in any and all actions and proceedings between the parties 
hereto arising under or growing out of the Agreement. Venue shall lie in Contra Costa County, 
California. 

l) End-term Provisions 
Contractor shall have 90 days after termination of the Agreement in which to supply the 
required audited financial statements and other such documentation necessary to facilitate 
the close out of the Agreement at the end of the term. 

m) Notice of litigation 
Contractor shall agree to notify the LEMSA within 24 hours of any litigation or significant 
potential for litigation of which Contractor is aware. 

n) Cost of Enforcement 
If legal proceedings are initiated by any party to this Agreement, whether for an alleged 
breach of the terms or judicial interpretation thereof, the prevailing party to such action 
shall, in addition to all other lawful remedies, be entitled to recover reasonable attorney’s 
fees, consultant and expert fees, and other such costs, to the extent permitted by the court. 

o) General Contract Provisions 
In addition to the specific contract provisions listed in this document, the written Agreement 
will include general conditions required by the LEMSA in contracts such as those listed 
herein. A Sample of General Contract Provisions and a Business Associates Agreement is 
included in Appendix 13. These provisions will become part of the final agreement with the 
successful Proposer. Any exceptions to the requirements, terms and conditions as stated 
herein, and in the Sample Provisions must be identified separately in the Proposer’s 
response.



Page 69 

 SECTION V. COMPETITIVE CRITERIA 

This section sets forth the performance criteria to be competitively assessed and scored by the 
Review Panel (the Competitive Criteria). 
 
For each Competitive Criterion, the narrative below defines a base level of performance to which 
every Proposer must agree (the Minimum Requirements). This agreement must be unqualified and 
expressly stated in the Proposal. If a Proposer fails to agree to any Minimum Requirement related to 
any Competitive Criterion, the LEMSA may, in its discretion, declare the Proposal unresponsive and 
disqualified. The Proposer must agree to the Minimum Requirements regardless of whether the 
Proposer goes on to propose levels of performance that are higher than contained in the Minimum 
Requirements for a given Competitive Criterion. For Proposers offering to meet, but not exceed, the 
Minimum Requirements for a given Competitive Criterion, the Proposal must set forth the 
information requested below regarding the manner in which the Proposer will meet the performance 
level specified in the Minimum Requirements. 
 
For each Competitive Criterion, Proposers are encouraged to propose levels of performance higher 
than the Minimum Requirements. The narrative describes the policy and operational goals for each 
Competitive Criterion, which the LEMSA is seeking to maximize through competition. It also provides 
guidelines and examples to illustrate how the policy and operational goals might be promoted. 
However, the specific concepts and activities comprising these examples are neither specifically 
required nor exclusive. The Competitive Criteria provide an opportunity for a Proposer to 
differentiate its proposed service from that of other Proposers and to demonstrate the organizational 
capabilities and experience which it would bring to bear if it becomes the Contractor. 
 
Because every Proposer is required to commit to the Minimum Requirements, no points shall be 
awarded in connection with a Competitive Criterion unless a higher level of performance is proposed. 
Points available for each Competitive Criterion for which a higher level of performance is proposed 
shall be scored as set forth in Section II.G. 
 
A goal of this RFP is to increase the levels of communication, cooperation, collaboration, and in some 
cases functional integration among the different entities comprising the EMS and healthcare delivery 
systems for the benefit of the patient. This goal is furthered by various provisions in the Core 
Requirements and in the Minimum Requirements. In addition, certain of the Competitive Criteria 
invite Proposers to propose higher levels of collaboration. 
 

A. Clinical 

1. Competitive Criterion: Quality Improvement 

a) Minimum Requirements—Demonstrable Progressive Clinical Quality Improvement  
LEMSA requires that the Contractor develop and implement a comprehensive quality 
management program that incorporates assuring compliance with the Agreement, minimum 
performance standards, and rules and regulations. The program shall also include structural 



Page 70 

process and outcome indicators as part of a progressive clinicial quality improvement 
process that is integrated with the EMS system’s quality management program. The clinical 
indicators measured by all system participants will be developed through collaborative 
efforts of the first responder agencies, the Contractor, and the LEMSA and based on current 
EMS science and call demand. The LEMSA ultimately will approve and implement the quality 
monitoring and improvement plan to be used in the County by all EMS system participants. 
Proposers should review the LEMSA’s quality management program requirements at 
http://cchealth.org/ems/quality.php. 
 
The LEMSA supports a coordinated system of emergency services that are patient-centered, 
add value to the community served and improve patient outcome. Proposers must commit to 
a clear, concise, and implementable set of processes and practices designed to measure, 
trend and sustain tangible improvements for the patients and other customers served by the 
EMS system, the Proposer’s employees who serve Contra Costa County, and the other 
agencies involved in the Contra Costa County EMS system. 
 
The current level of the scientific research and the large number of variables outside the 
EMS system’s control of patient outcomes limits the ability to define realistic and achievable 
outcome measures. In addition, accessing reliable outcome data may be limited. For these 
reasons, the Contractor will be expected to participate in the collection of both outcome and 
process measures to promote enhanced clinical outcomes. It is anticipated that these 
measures will be utilized and further developed throughout the term of the Agreement. 
 
Fundamental to a progressive clinical quality program is the proactive identification and 
management of potential risks to patient safety to prevent adverse occurrences rather than 
simply reacting when they occur. Contractor is to ensure that an ongoing, proactive program 
for identifying risks to patient safety and reducing medical/health care errors is defined and 
implemented. 
 
Contractor will seek to reduce the risk of sentinel events and medical/health care system 
error-related occurrences by conducting its own proactive risk assessment activities 
(Failure Mode Effect Analysis-FMEA) annually on at least one identified, high-risk process 
and by using available information about sentinel events known to occur in EMS 
organizations that provide similar care and services. This effort is undertaken so that 
processes, functions and services can be designed and redesigned to prevent such 
occurrences in the organization. 
 
Contractor will conduct and document one FMEA annually on at least one identified, high 
risk process. Contractor will redesign the identified process to minimize the risk of that 
failure mode or to protect patients from its effects, teach and implement the redesigned 
process, identify and implement measures of effectiveness and implement a strategy for 
maintaining the effectiveness of the redesigned process over time. 
 



Page 71 

In addition to generally committing to these Minimum Requirements, Proposers shall 
illustrate their ability to achieve them by describing their overall approach to 
comprehensive quality management. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Quality Management 
In the majority of American EMS systems, “quality management” is limited to a retrospective 
evaluation of patient care reports. A growing number of EMS systems, however, are 
expanding the scope of their quality management efforts to include clinical performance 
indicators paired with an education system designed to effect clinical improvements. The 
LEMSA is committed to such a comprehensive model of quality management that, while 
patient centered, encompasses all vital functions within the system. This Competitive 
Criterion encourages Proposers to join in this commitment. 
 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to, those described below. 
 
A Proposal might incorporate the 2013-2014 Baldridge National Quality Program: Health 
Care Criteria for Performance Excellence. A copy of this program can be downloaded at 
www.nist.gov/baldrige/. The core areas addressed by this process provide a solid 
framework for a comprehensive and progressive quality management program. These areas 
include: 

Leadership; 
Strategic Planning; 
Focus on Patients, Other Customers and Markets; 
Measurement, Analysis, and Knowledge Management; 
Workforce Engagement; 
Process Management; and 
Results. 

 
The Proposer’s quality management capability could be supported by providing a list of Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI) for each of the key result areas utilized in Proposer’s 
operations and proposed for Contra Costa County. Include a specific data definition and data 
source for each KPI. 
 
CMS has adopted the “Triple Aim” concept to improve quality of care and the patient 
experience while controlling costs. This program forms the basis for the CMS value based 
purchasing arrangements for healthcare providers. The Proposer may describe how it 
intends to incorporate the “Triple Aim” premises in its quality management activities. More 
about the “Triple Aim” can be reviewed at the Institute for Healthcare Improvement website 
(http://www.ihi.org) and at CMS websites. 
 



Page 72 

2. Competitive Criterion: Clinical and Operational Benchmarking  

It is important for an organization to monitor and measure performance in all aspects of its 
operations. The definition of what activities are to be measured and monitored is an essential 
component. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 
Benchmarking of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), including KPIs focused on clinical care 
is required. These include structure, process and outcome measurements. KPIs will evolve as 
part of ongoing EMS system performance improvement as approved by the EMS Medical 
Director and the LEMSA. KPIs will include State required core metrics in addition to local 
core performance indicators. The Contractor shall provide, on a monthly basis, information 
necessary to benchmark KPIs. KPIs focusing on clinical activities to be measured will include, 
at a minimum: 

1. Response time performance by zone, priority, and County-wide; 
2. Presumptive impressions at dispatch compared to field intervention; 
3. Scene time and total pre-hospital time for time dependent clinical conditions like 

Acute Coronary Syndrome (ACS), stroke, and major trauma; 
4. Cardiac arrest survival in accordance with Utstein protocols; 
5. Fractal measurement of time to first defibrillation; 
6. Compliance with protocols, procedures, timelines, and destinations for ST-Elevation 

Myocardial Infarction (STEMI) patients; 
7. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for patients with pulmonary 

edema and congestive heart failure; 
8. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for patients with asthma or 

seizures; 
9. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for patients with cardiac 

arrest; 
10. Compliance with protocols, procedures, timelines, and destinations for systems of 

care patients (e.g. Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, Cardiac Arrest); 
11. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for assessment of pain relief; 
12. Analysis of high risk, low frequency clinical performance issues and strategies to 

support competent care. 
13. Successful airway management rate by entire system, provider type and individual, 

including EtCO2 detection; 
14. Successful IV application rate by entire system, provider type and individual; 
15. Complaint management; 
16. Paramedic skill retention; 
17. Use of mutual aid; and 
18. Safety. 

 
Contractor will be required to produce a periodic report that describes overall compliance 
with protocols and provides an analysis of which protocols have the most compliance 
challenges. 
 



Page 73 

Proposers should describe their current and proposed benchmarking, KPI monitoring, and 
its method for regularly assessing compliance with EMS Medical Protocols. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 
Measuring and monitoring KPIs on a regular and consistent basis promotes an 
organization’s improvement and development. EMS organizations that are committed to 
improvement not only measure and monitor, but use the results to effect change. Proposers 
can demonstrate a higher level of commitment to measurement, monitoring, benchmarking, 
and improvement by documenting performance indicators that they measure and describing 
the use of the results. 

Non-clinical performance indicators are relevant for operational, financial, or organizational 
advancement. Incorporating such focus areas demonstrates a higher level of commitment to 
performance and improvement.  

Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include but are not limited to those described below. 

The Contractor’s system for benchmarking might include non-clinical KPIs such as: 
 

employee injuries; 
vehicle collisions (>$250 damage) per 100,000 fleet miles; 
critical vehicle/equipment breakdowns (interfering with a response or transport) 
per 100,000 fleet miles; 
consumer satisfaction; 
employee turnover; and 
employee satisfaction. 

 
Other KPI benchmarking might include comparing clinical data published by the National 
Association of EMS Physicians or other national organizations with other similarly designed 
clinically sophisticated systems. The organization’s approach to learning and performance 
improvement using industry and non-industry benchmarking can also demonstrate higher 
levels of capability and commitment. 
 
Participation in, or publishing the results of, peer reviewed research is another strong 
process measure of a system’s ongoing commitment to clinical sophistication. The Proposer 
might demonstrate a higher level of commitment by describing past participation in and 
proposed out-of-hospital research projects. For illustration, such projects might include but 
are not limited to research involving: 
 

Impacts of Public Access Defibrillation (PAD); 
Reduction of “at scene” time; 
Reduction of “at patient” status to first shock or ALS intervention; 
Other research projects as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 



Page 74 

3. Competitive Criterion: Dedicated Clinical Oversight Personnel  

It is LEMSA’s goal that all organizations participating in the Contra Costa County EMS system have 
adequate and competent oversight and management of the clinical services and quality improvement 
activities. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Clinical Leadership Personnel 
A senior manager shall be responsible for oversight and management of the key 
performance indicators and ongoing organization-wide quality management programs. 

The Contractor shall provide a physician (may be part-time) and a full-time Registered 
Nurse or Paramedic with specialized training and experience in quality improvement to 
implement and oversee Contractor’s on-going Quality Management program. These 
individuals shall be responsible for the medical quality assurance evaluation of all services 
provided pursuant to this Agreement. At a minimum, the Contractor shall provide and 
maintain two full-time Clinical and Educational Services positions, in addition to the 
individual identified to oversee the Contractor’s on-going quality managment program. In 
addition, the Contractor shall provide at least one full-time Analyst to evaluate Patient Care 
Reports and eighty (80) compensated hours per month for designated field personnel to 
participate in clinical quality improvement activities. 
 
The LEMSA’s minimum requirement for EMS quality improvement, education and training is 
the IHI Open School Basic Certificate. Information can be found 
at http://www.ihi.org/education/IHIOpenSchool/Courses/Pages/OSInTheCurriculum.aspx. 
Within eighteen months, the full-time staff dedicated to quality management and education 
will have completed an IHI Open School Basic Certificate. 
 
Proposers are required to document their commitment to have the senior members of their 
Contra Costa County operating unit actively participate in the leadership and oversight of the 
EMS quality management system. This commitment includes, but is not limited to, active 
participation of Proposer’s senior leadership in meetings related to EMS and public health 
and safety coordinated by the LEMSA and actively participating in projects designed to 
improve the quality of EMS in the County of Contra Costa. 
 
The Proposer shall describe its commitment of leadership to clinical quality and describe the 
individual to oversee its clinical quality program including a job description and reporting 
relationships. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical Leadership Personnel 
An organization’s commitment is demonstrated by the caliber, qualifications, and expertise 
dedicated to an endeavor. 
 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 

1. Implementing specific programs and activities to fully engage the workforce in 
quality management, such as peer review activities, medical audits, etc.; 



Page 75 

2. The quality management competencies that members of the leadership team will 
possess including their ability to analyze performance data and conduct 
improvement projects; 

3. Methods used to communicate openly with the workforce and to assess the 
effectiveness of this communication; 

4. Activities used by the organization to communicate performance data to the 
members of the workforce involved in the process whose performance is being 
monitored; 

5. Strategies used by the organization’s leadership team to promote legal and ethical 
behavior for themselves and the entire organization; 

6. The organization’s process for handling breaches of ethical behavior; 
7. Activities of the organization’s leadership to promote a culture focused on patient 

and employee safety; 
8. Procedures used by the organization to handle situations that have or may have had 

an adverse impact on patients or the public; 
9. Commitment to patient safety; and 
10. Transparency and public reporting of clinical performance and benchmarks. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Medical Direction 

Ambulance services employ Medical Directors to lead the clinical care services. The involvement, 
commitment, and expertise expected from the Medical Director should directly contribute to the 
Contractors clinical service levels, quality of care and quality management and improvement  

a) Minimum Requirements—Medical Direction 
Proposer shall engage a physician as its Medical Director to oversee the Contractor’s clinical 
activities. The Proposer shall identify its Medical Director and provide a curriculum vita 
outlining his or her experience and qualifications. Proposer shall also provide a job 
description or contract, which specifies expectations as to role, responsibilities and time 
commitment of the Medical Director. These roles are separate and distinct from that of the 
LEMSA Medical Director and have no statutory authority within the EMS system for medical 
oversight. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Medical Direction 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Demonstrate higher levels of Medical Direction commitment by emphasizing the 
individual’s qualifications such as Board Certification in Emergency Medicine, 
completion of the NAEMSP Medical Director’s Course, etc. 

2. Committing the Medical Director to active involvement with the Contractor and its 
employees, training, research, field observation, and pledges to work with the 
LEMSA Medical Director. 

3.  Committing to support its Medical Director in liaising with other members of the 
Contra Costa County medical community to identify and support the system’s 
standard of care and to identify and resolve issues that may arise. 



Page 76 

5. Competitive Criteria: Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

Clinical quality is not measured solely by the patient’s physical outcome. It is important to monitor 
and analyze the entire interaction of the patient and customers within the EMS system. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Focus on Patients and Other Customers 
At a minimum, the Contractor shall have a comprehensive mechanism for handling patient 
and customer complaints or issues. The Proposer shall describe the organization’s 
mechanism for managing complaints. Include methods for receiving, investigating, resolving, 
and tracking complaints. Include the method for analyzing complaint patterns along with 
examples of improvement activities that have resulted from this analysis. 
 
Contractor shall establish and publish a user friendly Customer Access Hotline giving 
internal and external customers and system participants the ability to contact a designated 
liaison of the Contractor’s leadership team to discuss recommendations or suggestions for 
service improvements. The number may either be answered by a designated manager or 
provide an opportunity for the caller to leave a voicemail message. The hotline number will 
be published in the local telephone directory and on the Contractor website and publicized 
at local healthcare facilities, fire stations, and public safety agencies. Members of the 
Contractor’s leadership team are to be automatically notified of any incoming calls. A 
management designee must return the call to the customer within 30 minutes, 90% of the 
time. Incidents that require feedback are to be attended to by the end of the next business 
day. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Focus on Patients and Other Customers 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Identify how the organization determines the desires, needs, and expectations of 
patients and other customers. Include a list of key customer groups other than 
patients. 

2. Discuss the mechanisms the organization uses to incorporate the “voice of the 
customer” in planning processes. 

3. Other aspects of healthcare have documented inequalities in diagnosis and 
treatment based on age, ethnicity, and gender. Describe the organization’s system 
for assuring and monitoring equitable EMS care to traditionally underserved 
patients such as children, the elderly, homeless, substance abusers and mental 
health patients as well as to all patients based on neighborhood, age, gender, and 
ethnicity. 

4. Describe and provide detailed examples of the methods the organization uses to 
assess and monitor the effectiveness at meeting the needs and desires of patients 
and other customers. If possible, provide examples of what you have learned by 
using these monitoring methods and the action you have taken to improve the 
service to patients and other customers. 

5. Most EMS systems engage in infection control practices designed to protect 
providers from acquiring infections. Fewer EMS systems engage in hygiene 



Page 77 

practices that are designed to protect patients from contamination. Describe the 
mechanism for providing infection control for employees, system partners in 
healthcare and patients. 

 

6. Competitive Criterion: Continuing Education Program Requirements 

a) Minimum Requirements— Continuing Education 
Contractor shall provide in-house or sub-contracted in-service training programs designed 
to meet state and LEMSA licensure/certification requirements at no cost to employees. All 
in-service and continuing education programs must comply with state regulations. The EMS 
Medical Director may mandate specific continuing education programs and content 
requirements, and the LEMSA may review and audit any continuing education programs 
offered by the Contractor. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Continuing Education 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Targeting educational content to address local system needs; 
2. Expanded content of training program offerings; 
3. Introduction of innovative educational/training methods; and 
4. Measuring competency with specified skill sets. 

 

B. Operations 

1. Competitive Criterion: Dispatch and Communications

Ambulance Response Times are impacted by the efficiency and reliability of the dispatch system 
referring calls to the sometimes-complex communication chain connecting a local resident or visitor 
who has just dialed 9-1-1 to the ambulance crew, which is asked to respond to the incident address. 
This communication chain varies between different jurisdictions within Contra Costa County. 
 
This RFP is intended to promote a higher level of collaboration between the Contractor and County 
PSAPS, designated dispatch centers and public safety agencies to improve the efficiency and 
reliability of communications between those entities. The goal in this Competitive Criterion is to 
improve efficiency and promote a seamless dispatch process by minimizing the transfer of calls or 
information from the calls. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Dispatch and Communications 
It is anticipated that during the term of the Agreement the County will make significant 
changes in the medical dispatch process. The EMS Modernization Project calls for a single 
medical dispatch center with full implementation of prioritization of ambulance requests. At 
a minimum, the Proposer shall commit to this improvement in the medical call-taking and 
dispatch processes and agree to work with the LEMSA and County to effect such changes. 
The Proposer shall agree to negotiate with the LEMSA and the County in good faith to 
achieve these goals. 



Page 78 

 
The Contractor shall provide a dispatch center and maintain all equipment and software 
(fixed, mobile, linkages) necessary to receive requests for emergency ambulance services 
from County designated dispatch centers. 
 
Staffing levels shall be such that electronic or telephonic notifications from the County 
designated public safety dispatch centers are answered or responded to within fifteen (15) 
seconds, 95% of the time, and that ambulances are dispatched to respond to Emergency 
Requests within thirty (30) seconds, 90% of the time, from the receipt of information 
establishing a location and priority for the response. 
 
The Contractor and its Dispatch Center staff shall maintain a professional relationship and 
level of interaction with other public safety dispatch centers and medical facilities, both 
within and outside of the County. 
 
The Contractor is required to provide CAD to CAD interfaces with the designated medical 
dispatch centers within the County to expedite the transmission of call information in order 
for the Contractor to dispatch its units, based on the “Automated EMS Message Transmission 
Network Specification” available on the EMS website 
at http://cchealth.org/ems/pdf/mtnspec v1.5.pdf.
 
The Contractor shall provide access for LEMSA staff members to access the Contractor’s CAD 
to audit and create reports for system performance monitoring. 

 
Contractor shall be responsible for all mobile radio equipment and cellular phones for use in 
the field including obtaining radio channels and all necessary FCC licenses and other permits 
as may be required for the operation of said system. This will enable Contractor to 
effectively receive communications from the Contractor’s Dispatch Center and shall be 
capable of receiving and replying to such requests for emergency ambulance services by 
voice or data linkage.  

1. Contractor's communications system shall be capable of receiving and transmitting 
all communications necessary to provide emergency ambulance services pursuant 
to this Agreement including communicating with hospitals and other public safety 
agencies as required in a declared disaster situation. Radio equipment used for 
ambulance-to-hospital communications shall be configured so that personnel 
actually providing patient care are able to directly communicate with base or 
receiving hospital staff about the patient. The Contractor’s ambulance crews shall be 
capable of transmitting 12-lead ECGs to receiving facilities. 

2. Contractor shall equip all ambulances and supervisory vehicles used in performance 
of services in Contra Costa County with radio equipment for communications with 
Contractor’s Dispatch Center, East Bay Regional Communications System (EBRCSA), 
and suitable for operation on the (CALCORD) California On-Scene Emergency 
Coordination Radio System. Radios operated on EBRCS shall be P25 Phase 2 



Page 79 

compliant (additional information regarding EBRCSA is available at 
http://www.ebrcsa.org). 

3. Contractor shall operate the two-way radios in conformance with all applicable 
rules and regulations of the Federal Communication Commission (FCC), and in 
conformance with all applicable LEMSA rules and operating procedures. 

4. Contractor shall ensure access to cellular telephones for use on ambulances and 
supervisory units. 

5. Contractor shall equip all ambulances with Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) 
devices. Contractor shall make available to LEMSA designated dispatch centers the 
real-time AVL information for on-duty ambulances and supervisory units within the 
County. 

 
Proposers shall fully describe how they intend to comply with the minimum requirements 
listed above and include a description of the equipment and technology to be used. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Dispatch and Communications 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 

1. Contractor may identify a means and commit to implementation of combined call-
taking and dispatch of ambulances meeting the goals identified in the EMS 
Modernization Project Report in all or part of the EOA. 

2. Contractor may collaborate with existing PSAPs and dispatch centers to locate or 
consolidate PSAP/Dispatch operations. 

3. Other Strategies to Reduce Response Times: Proposers may propose other 
reasonably achievable strategies to be undertaken at the Contractor’s expense, 
which would be likely to materially reduce ambulance Response Times across all or 
any significant part of the EMS system. 

4. Proposer may commit a defined annual amount to contribute to the consolidation of 
the medical dispatch centers. This amount may be stipulated for the Contractor to 
provide call-taking and dispatch with the transfer of callers from County PSAPs or it 
may be an amount contributed to another agency providing call-taking, dispatch, 
and deployment of ambulances. The contribution can include funding, assignment of 
personnel, or the provision of other services. 

2. Competitive Criterion: Vehicles 

Contractor shall acquire and maintain all ambulances and support vehicles necessary to perform its 
services under the Agreement. All costs of maintenance including parts, supplies, spare parts and 
costs of extended maintenance agreements shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Vehicles 
At a minimum, the Contractor shall meet the requirements listed below. 

1. All ambulances shall meet the standards of Title XIII, California Code of Regulations. 
2. Ambulance vehicles used in providing contract services shall bear the markings of 

the County logo and "Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Services" in at least 



Page 80 

four (4) inch letters on both sides. Such vehicles shall display the "9-1-1" emergency 
telephone number and state the level of service, "Paramedic Unit,” on both sides. 

3. Ambulance vehicles shall be marked to identify the company name, but shall not 
display any telephone number other than 9-1-1 or any other advertisement. 

4. Overall design, color, and lettering are subject to the approval of the Contract 
Administrator. 

5. Proposer shall describe the ambulance and supervisory vehicles to be utilized for 
the services covered under the Agreement. 

6. Ambulance replacement shall occur on a regular schedule and the Proposer shall 
identify its policy for the maximum number of years and mileage that an ambulance 
will be retained in the EMS System. 

7. Each ambulance shall be equipped with GPS route navigation capabilities. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Vehicles 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Documenting the type, age, mileage, and configuration of the ambulance fleet and 
supervisory vehicles; and 

2. Installing equipment and selecting vehicles that provide innovations for safety, 
specialized transport capabilities, reduced environmental impact, etc. 

3. Competitive Criterion: Equipment 

Acquisition and maintenance of all equipment including parts, supplies, spare parts, and costs of 
extended maintenance agreements shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Equipment 
Contractor shall have sole responsibility for furnishing all equipment necessary to provide 
required service. All on-board equipment, medical supplies and personal communications 
equipment will meet or exceed the minimum requirements of LEMSA’s Ambulance 
Equipment and Supply List. A listing of the required on-board equipment, medical 
equipment, and supplies can be found on LEMSA’s website. Contractor shall also comply 
with the specific pediatric equipment requirements as specified in EMSA #188, Pediatric 

Equipment for ambulance and First Responders. 
 
Contractor agrees that equipment and supply requirements may be changed with the 
approval of the Contract Administrator due to changes in technology. 
 
LEMSA may inspect Contractor's ambulances at any time, without prior notice. If any 
ambulance fails to meet the minimum in-service requirements contained in the Ambulance 
Equipment and Supply list as determined by the LEMSA, the LEMSA may: 

1. Immediately remove the ambulance from service until the deficiency is corrected if 
the missing item is deemed a critical omission; 

2. Subject the Contractor to a $500.00 penalty; and 
3. The foregoing shall not preclude dispatch of the nearest available ambulance even 

though not fully equipped, in response to a life threatening emergency so long as 



Page 81 

another appropriately equipped ambulance of at least equal level of service is also 
dispatched to the scene. The LEMSA may adopt protocols governing provisional 
dispatch of ambulances not in compliance with minimum in-service requirements 
and Contractor shall comply with these protocols. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Equipment 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include but are not limited to: 

1. Providing equipment or technologies above those required by the minimum 
equipment list. These additional items may include advances in clinical care 
capabilities, opportunities for increasing safety for crewmembers and patients, 
and items to increase ease of work, improve efficiency or make efforts more 
effective. 

2. Providing “smart” technologies that are blue tooth or otherwise compatible with 
data systems and electronic patient care records to improve patient care delivery, 
oversight and enhance performance improvement. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

a) Minimum Requirements—Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 
Contractor shall be responsible for all maintenance of ambulances, support vehicles, and on-
board equipment used in the performance of its work. LEMSA expects that all Ambulances 
and equipment used in the performance of the Agreement will be maintained in an excellent 
manner. Any Ambulance, support vehicle, and/or piece of equipment with any deficiency 
that compromises, or may reasonably compromise its function, must be immediately 
removed from service. 

The appearance of ambulances and equipment impacts customers' perceptions of the 
services provided. Therefore, the LEMSA requires the Ambulances and equipment that have 
defects, even significant visible but only cosmetic damage, be removed from service for 
repair without undue delay. 
 
Contractor must ensure an ambulance maintenance program that is designed and conducted 
to achieve the highest standard of reliability appropriate to a modern high performance 
ambulance service by utilizing appropriately trained personnel, knowledgeable in the 
maintenance and repair of ambulances, developing and implementing standardized 
maintenance practices, and incorporating an automated or manual maintenance program 
record keeping system. 
 
Contractor must ensure all point of care equipment on the ambulance meets CLIA standards 
and submit a description of the program used to assure compliance. 



Page 82 

All costs of maintenance and repairs, including parts, supplies, spare parts and inventories of 
supplies, labor, subcontracted services, and costs of extended warranties, shall be at the 
Contractor’s expense. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Proposer offers to exceed the maintenance standard as outlined in the Standards—
Accreditation of Ambulance services published by the Commission on Accreditation 
of Ambulance services; and/or 

2. The Proposer describes how it will exceed minimum requirements for the testing, 
monitoring, maintaining, and retaining documentation for all bio-medical 
equipment such as complying with the then current and applicable Joint 
Commission on the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) or equivalent 
standard. 

5. Competitive Criterion: Deployment Planning 

The Contractor will be expected to work continuously to refine and improve its coverage and 
deployment plans throughout the term of the Agreement. All plan modifications will be at 
Contractor’s sole discretion and expense. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Deployment Planning 
Contractor shall agree to deploy its ambulances in such a manner to achieve the Response 
Time requirements. The Contractor shall also commit to modify and adjust its deployment 
strategies in the event that Response Time performance is not complying with the standards 
or if it is identified that there are areas of the County which are chronically experiencing 
delayed responses. 

The Proposer shall describe its methods and initial deployment plans to be used in Contra 
Costa County. A description of the methodology used by the organization to monitor and 
modify its plans will also be documented. At a minimum, the Contractor shall identify the 
average number of unit-hours deployed each week, the number of units on-duty by hour-of-
day and day of week, and the posting locations for ambulances. 
 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Deployment Planning 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. The Proposer describing sophisticated processes it has developed or will use to 
achieve exemplary Response Time performance; and/or 

2. The identification and use of technologies or managerial processes to enhance 
Response Time performance. 

3. The Proposer will describe processes to provide real time situational awareness to 
other EMS System stakeholders to facilitate patient care delivery e.g. alerts or visual 
displays. 



Page 83 

C. Personnel 
The LEMSA recognizes that those employed in the Contra Costa County EMS system ultimately 
determine the effectiveness and quality of the service. Proposers are encouraged to focus on 
employees especially as it pertains to safety, workload, advancement opportunities, and 
compensation. 

1. Competitive Criterion: Field Supervision 

The LEMSA recognizes the Contractor’s need to ensure adequate supervision of its personnel and the 
delegation of authority to address day-to-day operational needs. The LEMSA also desires that these 
personnel and operational supervisory responsibilities do not displace the Contractor’s provision of 
direct clinical supervision of the Contractor’s caregivers. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Field Supervision 
Contractor shall provide 24-hours a day on-duty field supervisory coverage in each 
geographic area of the EOA (West, Central and East) within Contra Costa County. An on-duty 
employee or officer must be authorized and capable to act on behalf of the Contractor in all 
operational matters. 
 
The Proposers shall also specifically describe how its Supervisors are able to monitor, 
evaluate, and improve the clinical care provided by the Contractor’s personnel and to ensure 
that on-duty employees are operating in a professional and competent manner. 
 
All field supervisory level staff will have successfully completed ICS 100, 200, 300 & 400, 
NIMS 700 & 800. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Field Supervision 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. The provision of a dedicated supervisor(s) and vehicle(s) for Contra Costa County 
coverage; 

2. Demonstrate that all areas of the EOA have adequate dedicated supervision that is 
committed to supervision and support of field personnel and the community and 
that their administrative tasks are limited in order to allow this high level of 
interaction. 

3. Specialized training for supervisors (i.e. Strike team leadership, patient safety and 
leadership); 

4. Exemplary qualification requirements; and  
5. Other defined activities to support and supervise field personnel. 

2. Competitive Criterion: Work Schedules 

This is a performance-based Agreement and Contractor is encouraged to be creative in delivering 
services. Contractor is expected to support employees by employing reasonable work schedules and 
conditions. 



Page 84 

a) Minimum Requirements—Work Schedules
The LEMSA emphasizes that the Contractor is responsible for conducting the employment 
matters with its employees, including managing personnel and resources fairly and 
effectively in a manner that ensures compliance with the Agreement ultimately executed by 
Contractor. The LEMSA will not otherwise involve itself in Contractor’s 
management/employee relationships. 

Specifically, patient care must not be hampered by impaired motor skills of personnel 
working extended shifts, part-time jobs, voluntary overtime, or mandatory overtime without 
adequate rest. To mitigate fatigue and safety concerns, Contractor’s paramedics and EMTs 
working on an Emergency Ambulance or as a field supervisor should work reasonable 
schedules to ensure that potential fatigue and the resulting safety issues are reduced. 
 
Proposer shall describe its policies and procedures used to monitor employee fatigue and 
impairment. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Work Schedules 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 
 

The delineation of monitoring mechanisms, procedures, and policies designed to ensure 
that employees are not overworked or expected to work for extended time periods that 
may cause fatigue and impair the employee’s ability to perform safely and appropriately. 

3. Competitive Criterion: Internal Risk Management/Loss Control Program  

Education and aggressive prevention of conditions in which accidents occur are the best mechanism 
to avoid injuries to Contractor staff and Patients. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Risk Management 
The LEMSA requires Contractor to implement an aggressive health, safety, and loss 
mitigation program including, at a minimum: 

1. Pre-screening of potential employees (including drug testing); 
2. Initial and on-going driver training; 
3. Lifting technique training; 
4. Review current information related to medical device FDA reportable events, recall, 

equipment failure, accidents; and 
5. Review employee health/infection control related information such as needle sticks, 

employee injuries, immunizations, exposures and other safety/risk management 
issues. 

6. Ensure DEA compliant medication control processes. 
 
Planning for safety and risk mitigation processes will include, at a minimum: 

1. Gathering data on ALL incidents that occur among the Contractor’s workforce; 
2. Devise policies prescribing safe practices and providing intervention in unsafe or 

unhealthy work-related behaviors; 



Page 85 

3. Gather safety information as required by law; 
4. Implement training and corrective action on safety related incidents, as required by 

law; and 
5. Provide safe equipment and vehicles. 

 
Proposer shall describe its risk management program. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Risk Management 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

Implementation of a comprehensive safety and risk management plan that involves 
employees, analyzes processes, monitors safety activities, and incorporates all processes 
into policies, procedures and training programs designed to enhance safety for the 
workforce and patients. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Workforce Engagement 

An experienced, highly skilled, well rested, and satisfied workforce is essential to the provision of 
high quality EMS services. Proposers are encouraged to meet with current system employees 
and their labor representatives prior to submitting proposals. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Workforce Engagement 
At a minimum, the Proposer shall describe and document the following: 

1. Describe the organization’s method for providing system and individual 
performance feedback to employees. 

2. Describe the organization’s mechanism for involving front line employees in quality 
and performance improvement projects. 

3. Describe the credentialing requirements for the employees including but not limited 
to EMT’s, paramedics, supervisors, dispatchers, and mechanics. 

4. Describe the methods to assess, maintain, and develop new skills for employees in 
the workforce. 

5. Describe the organization’s practices to ensure diversity in the workforce. Address 
the organization’s level of diversity alignment with the communities that you serve. 

6. Describe the organization’s practices and policies designed to promote workforce 
harmony and prevent discrimination based on age, national origin, gender, race, 
sexual orientation, religion, and physical ability. 

7. Impaired providers present a significant safety risk for patients, partners, and 
others in the community. Proposers should describe their commitment to ensuring 
that providers are free from the influence of alcohol and intoxicating drugs. 

8. Describe the organization’s processes to ensure harmonious relationships with 
other EMS System stakeholders. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Workforce Engagement 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to the following: 



Page 86 

 
1. The organization’s process for assessing the engagement and satisfaction level of 

employees. Include description of an ongoing process that produces qualitative and 
quantitative KPIs for employee satisfaction. 

2. The method used by the organization for two-way communication between front 
line employees and the leadership team. 

3. The organization’s mechanism for encouraging, gathering, providing feedback on 
and acting on employee improvement suggestions. 

4. The development of a career ladder and professional development process for 
members of the workforce. Include a description of the succession plan for key 
positions. 

5. The method for recognition of workforce patient care excellence and contributions. 

D. Management 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Key Personnel 

a) Minimum Requirements—Key Personnel 
Proposers shall identify the individuals who will fill the key leadership positions for Contra 
Costa County. Provide resumes for the individuals. If the positions have not been filled for 
Contra Costa County, provide the job descriptions that will be used for the positions that 
include minimum qualifications and scope of responsibilities. 
 
Identify out-of-county leadership personnel who will be actively involved in the Contra Costa 
County operations, if applicable. Include their resumes, qualifications, and scope of 
responsibilities. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Key Personnel 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Provision of on-going training for key managers and development programs for EMS 
managers and supervisors offered to those personnel at no cost. While there is no 
specific program regarding the exact content of the development program, 
managers should receive training similar to the content provided in the American 
Ambulance Association's Ambulance Service Manager Certificate Program. 

2. Stability of the Contractor’s leadership team directly correlates with the 
continuation of the performance of the EMS system. The Proposer may describe 
how it will ensure continuity and reduce managerial turnover in the system. 

3. Assignment of key personnel to participate in countywide initiatives e.g. Health 
Information Exchange, Quality Improvement and Community Outreach. 

 



Page 87 

E. EMS System and Community 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Supporting Improvement in the First Response System 

The EMS system in Contra Costa County is collaboration among numerous related and unrelated 
agencies, which are dependent on one another to assure positive outcomes for the individuals 
being served. The LEMSA’s goals regarding this collaborative system include: 1) provide a 
seamless handoff of patients by first responders to the emergency ambulance service; and 2) 
achieve the prevailing industry standard with respect to the provision of training to first 
responders. 
 
The emergency ambulance service can play a role as a partner within the pre-hospital EMS 
system that is concerned with the provision of emergency medical services to people who are 
seriously injured or ill. As a result, the ambulance service provider has, in many communities, 
emerged as the organization charged with facilitating ongoing and enhanced EMS training within 
the EMS system. This is a cost of doing business recognized by ambulance providers across the 
country serves a practical source of such training in most communities. It is also the logical 
source for such training, because the ambulance provider is the entity with a direct role in the 
most EMS responses in the County. 
 
The LEMSA and the County desire to increase collaboration between the first responders and the 
ambulance service. This increased collaboration may take many forms including formal 
agreements or combined work and training activities. The Proposers are not expected to 
negotiate formal agreements with other EMS participants prior to the award of the Agreement. If 
a Proposer proposes to commit to a collaborative arrangement as described in this section, it is 
only necessary to state that commitment and describe the terms on which the Proposer is willing 
to collaborate in the Proposal. 

a) Minimum Requirements—First Response System 
Proposer must commit to:  

1. Exercise its best, good faith efforts to maintain positive working relationships with 
all first response agencies across the EOA; 

2. Make continuing EMS education services available without cost to all first 
responders across the EOA at the level prevailing in the industry; 

3. Restock at the Contractor’s cost basic life support supplies utilized on a one-for-one 
basis, based on utilization on calls by first response agencies; 

4. Provide internship opportunities for EMT or paramedic students, giving preference 
to students from training programs located in Contra Costa County; and 

5. Contractor shall designate from among its employees a single individual as its 
contact person/liaison for the First Response agencies. 

 
Proposers shall describe in detail how they intend to address the Minimum Requirements 
listed above. 



Page 88 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—First Response System
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 
Proposers may propose strategies to strengthen the collaborative interface between the 
Contractor and first responders and to improve the quality and efficiency of the EMS 
response system through support for first responders and other agencies integral to the 
provision of emergency services. Examples of possible strategies include: 

1. Shared medical direction with the provider 
2. Group purchasing arrangements that may allow First Responder agencies to acquire 

medical equipment and non-exchanged supplies at a lower cost 
3. Collaborative training programs 
4. Collaborative strategies to address call surges, including possible coordination of 

responses during MCI and other disaster events. 
5. Coordination between or collaborative continuous quality improvement 

programming 
6. EMS Week Recognition and Awards Program Sponsorship 
7. Coordination of public education initiatives and programming 
8. Coordination of injury and illness prevention programs 
9. Collaborative public information services 
10. Proposers may propose other reasonable achievable strategies to be undertaken at 

the Contractor’s expense, which would be likely to materially expand or enhance the 
capacity of first responder agencies to provide services more effectively or 
economically. 
 
It is recognized that some of the suggestions for a “higher level of commitment” in 
connection with this Competitive Criterion “Supporting Improvement in the First 
Response System” may be relevant to a Proposer’s response to other Competitive 
Criteria or to certain Core Requirements. As noted above, information provided in 
response to other requirements or criteria cannot be taken into account when rating 
the Proposer’s response to this Competitive Criterion. If Proposers desire that 
previously provided information or offerings be considered under this criterion, the 
specific commitments should be repeated in the response to this criterion.  
Proposers desiring to offer a higher level of commitment in response to this 
Competitive Criterion should set forth here a comprehensive description of the 
collaborative working relationship they intend to offer to local first responder 
agencies, including a description of each of the specific components and 
commitments which the Proposer is offering. 

2. Competitive Criterion:  Health Status Improvement and Community Education 

The LEMSA desires that its Contractor take significant steps to improve injury and illness prevention 
and system access through community education programs provided to the school system and 
community groups. It is the LEMSA’s expectation that Contractor will plan such programs working 



Page 89 

collaboratively with other public safety and EMS related groups such as the American Heart 
Association, American Stroke Association, the American Red Cross, and area healthcare organizations. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Community Education 
Contractor will allocate one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) under Plan A and three 
hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) under Plan B annually for community education and 
improvement activities. The Proposer shall describe how these funds will be used for the 
benefit of the Community. 
 
Contractor shall annually plan and implement definitive community education programs, 
which shall include: identification of and presentations to key community groups which 
influence the public perception of the EMS system’s performance, supporting HeartSafe 
Communities initiatives, Public Access Defibrillation programs, conducting citizen and 
school based CPR training events, participation in EMS week and other educational activities 
involving illness and injury prevention, system awareness/access, and appropriate 
utilization of the EMS system. 
 
Proposers shall describe their planned community education program for both Plans A and 
B. 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—Health Status Improvement and Community Education 
Examples of ways in which a Proposer may demonstrate a higher level of commitment in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 
According to the UCSF Center for Health Professions, on a national level, the ethnic 
compositions of the EMT and paramedic workforce does not fully reflect the U.S. population. 
This is of some concern because EMTs are frequently involved in situations where cultural 
understanding is vital, particularly in urban areas. Accordingly, Contractor may collaborate 
with the LEMSA and public health officials to develop and facilitate EMT training programs, 
internships and related opportunities for Contra Costa County residents from racial/ethnic 
and income groups that are underrepresented among health and emergency medical 
professionals. 
 
Proposer may offer to undertake projects that shall demonstrably improve the health status 
in the community. Health status improvement programs targeted to “at-risk populations” 
may include, but are not limited to: seat belt use, child passenger safety program, bike 
helmet and safety program, participation in NTHSA Safe Communities Program, Every 15 
minutes, 9-1-1 awareness, gun safety, hunting safety, Back to Sleep Program, Safely 
Surrendered Baby Program, drowning prevention, earthquake and disaster preparedness, 
concussion prevention programs, equestrian accident prevention, senior safety program, 
and home hazard inspection program. 
 
The impact of health status improvement projects should be statistically demonstrable. For 
example, this includes selecting indicators that can be used to measure the process and 
outcomes of an intervention strategy for health improvement, collecting and analyzing data 



Page 90 

on those indicators, and making the results available to the community to inform 
assessments of the effectiveness of an intervention and the contributions of participating 
entities.  
 
Steps in the health improvement projects may include: 

Analyzing the community’s health issues 
Inventorying resources 
Developing a health improvement strategy 
Establishing accountability for activities 
Monitoring process and outcomes  
Developing partnerships with Public Health, Law and Human Services  

 
Contractor may seek external grant funding for health status improvement projects. 

F. Integration with Healthcare Providers 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

The evolving role of EMS and dramatic changes in the healthcare delivery systems provide a 
challenge and opportunity in Contra Costa County. 

The successful bidder will collaborate with hospitals, healthcare systems, mental health providers, 
County Health Services, and others involved in community health. 
 
It is anticipated that the Contractor will enter into agreements with various healthcare agencies for 
provision of ambulance transportation and other services during the term of the Agreement. The 
Contractor will include the County as party on all such agreements so in the event of a Contractor 
change the agreements will be remain in force within the EOA and/or County. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 
The Proposer will describe its commitment to furthering collaboration with other healthcare 
providers within the EOA and County. The Proposer will also describe its commitment to 
working with the LEMSA and healthcare providers to implement a standardized electronic 
health record to be shared among the caregivers. 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 
Proposer may demonstrate a higher level commitment by: 

1. Commiting to a more significant role in establishing the out-of-hospital electronic 
healthcare record including first responder and ambulance patient care data and its 
immediate dessimination to the receiving facility. This may include the commitment 
of specific software, equipment, and/or funding. 

2. Provide Letters of Interest (LOI) with existing healthcare providers indicating a 
desire to establish services to healthcare systems beyond those covered under this 
RFP. 



Page 91 

3. Identify activities that the Contractor will undertake to create the opportunity for 
expanded mobile health care services to support community health and integrated 
healthcare within the County and the State. 



Page 92 

 SECTION VI. FINANCIAL CRITERIA 

A. Financial Strength and Stability 
The Proposer must provide documentation of its financial strength and stability as a going concern. 
The Proposer must satisfy the LEMSA that it can financially support the services covered in this RFP 
and be able to afford losses that may arise from inaccurate estimates of revenue, expenses, fines, and 
resource requirements necessary to comply with the performance standards identified in this RFP. 
Specifically, the LEMSA desires an understanding of the Proposer’s financial stability, Liquidity 
(solvency), financial leverage (debt), asset efficiency (management or turnover), profitability, 
revenue recovery performance and other financial indicators. 
 
The documents requested in this Section are to be included in separately sealed containers and will 
be evaluated by an independent entity engaged to evaluate the financial components. They will not 
be examined by the Review Panel and will be scored separately. 
 
The information requested in this Section will allow for the determination of the Proposers’ current 
financial situation and allow an assessment of the Proposers’ projected revenue and expenses in 
order to establish reasonableness. 
 

B. Financial Situation Documents 

1. Financial Statements 

Provide year-end financial statements for the last three years and the most recent year-to-date 
financial statements. These should support the organization’s financial ability to perform the services 
included in this RFP and the Proposal. 

2. Audited Statements 

Provide independently audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year. 

3. Financial Commitments 

Provide a list of commitments, and potential commitments, which may impact assets, lines of credit, 
guarantor letters or otherwise affect the responder’s ability to perform the Contract. Identify current 
lines of credit and available funds remaining. Document any potential events, litigation, contract 
failures, judgments, or other actions that may significantly impact the Proposer’s financial situation. 

4. Working Capital 

The Proposer shall describe its working capital sources and quantify the amount it expects to need 
for startup and improvements to the Contra Costa County EMS system. The information shall include 
the estimated amount of start-up capital required to finance administration and ambulance 
operations for the first six (6) months of the Agreement. Include the source of this capital and if any 
part of it will be borrowed, include verification from a financial institution that your organization is 
approved or pre-qualified to borrow sufficient funds. Provide any assurances for such funding from 



Page 93 

parent or related organization in the form of a letter guaranteeing the amount of funding that may be 
necessary for start-up and on-going losses if projections are inadequate. 

5. Performance Security 

The Proposer shall document its method and ability to provide the required performance security. 

6. Financial Interests 

The Proposer shall disclose and describe any financial interests in related businesses. 
 

C. Financial Projections 
The Proposer is required to complete a pro forma budget for the first three (3) years of operation 
under the Agreement. 
 

1. Revenue projections 

All Proposers shall use the same assumptions regarding call volume, payer mix, and charges in the 
preparation of the revenue projections for the first three years. The Proposers will be expected to use 
their experience or consultants to derive the service mix, cash flow projections, CPI increases, and 
per transport collection by payers. 
 
The most recently available payer mix is available in Section I.H.4 of this RFP. The fixed charges are 
included in Appendix 10 and the methodology for determining the annual charge increases is 
described in Section IV.H.3.b. The total call and transport volume is provided in the separate 
electronic CAD files. 
 
The Proposer shall complete the Basis for Revenue Projections included in Appendix 14 
 

2. Revenue Flow Projections 

The revenue generated from ambulance transports is not received the date that the transport occurs. 
All Proposers shall complete the Revenue Flow Projections included in Appendix 15. This is to be 
completed solely based on transports occuring after start-up. An incumbent provider should not 
include revenue derived from transports prior to the contract start date. 
 

3. Expense Projections 

The Proposers’ expenses are going to vary between Plans A and B. Therefore three-year expense 
projections will need to be provided for in each Plan. In addition to the expense budget line items, the 
Proposers shall document their assumptions used to develop the pro formas. The required 
documentation of assumptions and expense budget templates are included in Appendix 16. 
 



Page 94 

4. One-Time Start Up and Capital Items 

The one-time expenses for start-up shall be documented on the template provided in Appendix 17. 
Some of these expenses may not be required on an incumbent provider, but the incumbent should 
complete the value of existing assets in the template. 
 

5. Pro Forma Summary 

The comparison of revenue and expenditures shall be summarized in the template provided in 
Appendix 18. This shall be completed for each plan and for each of the first three years of operation. 

 

D. Pricing 
The Proposer is required to complete and sign the Price Sheet Form for ALS interfacility transports. 
The Price Sheet Form is included in Appendix 19. 

  



Page 95 

  

Appendix 1 

 
 

MANDATORY TABLE OF 

CONTENTS 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 1 

 

Appendix 1
 

Mandatory Table of Contents
 
 

FACE SHEET  (FORM IN APPENDIX 9-EXHIBIT A) 

 SECTION I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 SECTION II.

A. Insurance Certificates (Requirements in Appendix 12) 

SUBMISSION OF REQUIRED FORMS 

B. Debarment and Suspension Certification (Form in Appendix 9-Exhibit B) 

C. References (Form in Appendix 9-Exhibit C) 

D. Investigative Authorization-Individual (Form in Appendix 9-Exhibit D) 

E. Investigative Authorization-Entity (Form in Appendix 9-Exhibit E) 

 SECTION III. QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS 

A. Organizational Disclosures 

1. Organizational ownership and legal structure 

2. Continuity of business 

Supporting documentation required. 

3. Licenses and permits 

Supporting documentation required. 

4. Government investigations 

Supporting documentation required. 

5. Litigation   

Supporting documentation required (May be in electronic format). 

Supporting documentation required. (May be in electronic format) 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 2 

B. EXPERIENCE AS SOLE PROVIDER 

1. Demonstrate Capability in Lieu of Experience 

2. Comparable experience 

Supporting documentation required for applicable qualifications in this section. 

3. Government contracts   

Supporting documentation required. 

4. Contract Compliance  

Supporting documentation required. 

C. Demonstrated Response Time Performance 

Supporting documentation required. 

D. Demonstrated High Level Clinical Care 

Supporting documentation required. 

  
Supporting documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 3 

 

 SECTION IV. CORE REQUIREMENTS  

A. Two Service Plans are to be Addressed 
Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.A. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.A. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

B. Contractor’s Functional Responsibilities 

1. Basic Services 

2. Services Description 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.B. (1.-2.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.B. (1.-2.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 4 

 

C. Clinical 

1. Clinical Overview 

2. Medical Oversight 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.C. (1.-2.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.C. (1.-2.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

3. Minimum Clinical Levels and Staffing Requirements 

 
 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.C.3. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.C.3 as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 5 

 

D. Operations 

1. Operations Overview 
a) Emergency Response Zones 

Attestation for Plan A 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

Attestation for Plan B 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) All Emergency and Non-emergency ALS Ambulance Calls 

 
 

c) Primary Response to Isolated Peripheral Areas of the EOA 

d) Substantial Penalty Provisions for Failure to Respond 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.1. (b.-d.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.1. (b.-d.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 6 

2. Transport Requirement and Limitations 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.2. (a.-b.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.2. (a-b.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

3. Response time Performance Requirements 

 
 

a) Description of Call Classification 

b) Response Time Performance Requirements 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.3. (a.-b.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D3. (a-b.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

c) Summary of Response Time Requirements 

Attestation for Plan A 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.3.c. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.3.c. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 7 

 

Attestation for Plan B 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.3.c. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.3.c. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

4. Modifications During the Term of Agreement 

5. Response Time Measurement Methodology  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.4 and IV.D.5. (a.-i.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.4 and IV.D.5. (a.-i.) 
as delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

6. Response Time Exceptions and Exception Requests  

 
 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.6. (a.-c.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.6. (a.-c.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions: 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 8 

7. Response Time Performance Reporting Procedures and Penalty Provisions   

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D.7. (a.-b.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.D.7. (a.-b.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

8. Fleet Requirement  

 
 

9. Coverage and Dedicated Ambulances, Use of Stations/Posts   

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.D. (8.-9.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV. D. (8.-9.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

E. Personnel  

1. Treatment of Incumbent Work Force 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.E.1. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV. E.1. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions: 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 9 

2. Character, Competence and Professionalism of Personnel  

3. Internal Health and Safety Programs  

4. Evolving OSHA & Other Regulatory Requirements  

5. Discrimination Not Allowed  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.E.(2.-5.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV. E.(2.-5.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

F. Management  

 
 

1. Data and Reporting Requirements 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.F.1. (a.-d.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV. F.1. (a.-d.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 10 

 

G. EMS System and Community 

1. Participation in EMS System Development  

2. Accreditation  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.G. (1.-2.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.G. (1.-2.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

3. Multi-casualty/Disaster Response  

 
 

4. Mutual Aid and Stand-by Services   

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.G. (3.-4.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.G. (3.-4.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

5. Permitted Subcontracting 

 
 

6. Communities May Contract Directly for Level of Effort  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.G. (5.-6.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.G. (5.-6.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions: 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 11 

7. Supply Exchange and Restock 

8. Handling Service Inquiries and Complaints   

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.G. (7.-8.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.G. (7.-8.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

H. Administrative Provisions  

1. Contractor Payments for Procurement Costs, County Compliance Monitoring, Contract 
Management, and Regulatory Activities (Plan B only) 

Attestation for Plan B 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H.1. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H.1.. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

2. No Subsidy System  

Attestation for Plan B 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H.2. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H.2.. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 12 

 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation for Plan A 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H.2. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H.2.. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core Requirements 
may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

3. Contractor Revenue Recovery  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H. 3. (a.-b.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H. 3. (a.-b.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions: 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 13 

4. Federal Healthcare Program Compliance Provisions  

5. State Compliance Provisions  

6. Billing/Collection Services  

7. Market Rights 

8. Accounting Procedures 

99. County Permit..  

10. Insurance Provisions 

 

Insurance documentation required 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H. (4.-10.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.G. (4.-10.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions: 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 14 

11. Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification / Taxes / Contributions  

12. Performance Security Bond  

13. Term of Agreement  

14. Earned Extension to Agreement  

15. Continuous Service Delivery  

16. Annual Performance Evaluation   

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H. (10.-16.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H. (10.-16.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

17. Default and Provisions for Termination of the Agreement  

 
 

18. Termination  

19. Emergency Takeover   

20. Transition Planning  

21. LEMSA's Remedies  

22. Provisions for Curing Material Breach and Emergency Take Over   

23. "Lame duck" Provisions  

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H. (17.-23.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H. (17.-23.). as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

  

 
 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 15 

24. General Provisions 

 

Exceptions to General Provisions of Contract Requires Documentation 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section IV.H.24 (a.-o.) 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section IV.H.24. (a.-o.) as 
delineated below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

 SECTION V. COMPETITIVE CRITERIA 

A. Clinical 

1. Competitive Criterion: Quality Improvement  

a) Minimum Requirements—Demonstrable Progressive Clinical Quality Improvement 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Quality Management 

 
 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 16 

2. Competitive Criterion: Clinical and Operational Benchmarking   

a) Minimum Requirements—Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.2.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.2.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 

3. Competitive Criterion: Dedicated Clinical Oversight Personnel  

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Clinical Leadership Personnel 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.3.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.3.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical Leadership Personnel 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 17 

4. Competitive Criterion: Medical Direction  

a) Minimum Requirements—Medical Direction 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.4.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.4.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Medical Direction 

 
 

5. Competitive Criteria: Focus on Patients and Other Customers  

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.5.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.5.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

 
 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 18 

6. Competitive Criterion: Continuing Education Program Requirements   

a) Minimum Requirements—Continuing Education 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.A.6.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.A.6.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Continuing Education 

 
 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

B. Operations 

1. Competitive Criterion: Dispatch and Communications  

a) Minimum Requirements— Dispatch and Communications 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.B.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.B.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Dispatch and Communications 

 
 

  
Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 19 

2. Competitive Criterion: Vehicles  

a) Minimum Requirements—Vehicles 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.B.2.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.B.2.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Vehicles 

 
 

3. Competitive Criterion: Equipment 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Equipment 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.B.3.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.B.3.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Equipment 

 
 

  
Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 20 

4. Competitive Criterion: Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance  

a) Minimum Requirements— Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.B.4.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.B.4.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

 
 

5. Competitive Criterion: Deployment Planning  

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Deployment Planning 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.B.5.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.B.5.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Deployment Planning 

 
 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 21 

C. Personnel 

1. Competitive Criterion: Field Supervision  

a) Minimum Requirements— Field Supervision 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.C.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.C.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Field Supervision 

 
 

2. Competitive Criterion: Work Schedules   

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Work Schedules 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.C.2.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.C.2.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Work Schedules 

 
 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 22 

3. Competitive Criterion: Internal Risk Management/Loss Control Program 

a) Minimum Requirements—Risk Management 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.C.3.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.C.3.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Risk Management 

 
 

4. Competitive Criterion: Workforce Engagement   

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Workforce Engagement 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.C.4.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.C.4.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Workforce Engagement 

 
 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 23 

D. Management 

1. Key Personnel  

a) Minimum Requirements—Key Personnel 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.D.1 .a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.D.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Key Personnel 

 
 

E. EMS System and Community  

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

1. Supporting Improvement in the First Response System  

a) Minimum Requirements—First Response System 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.E.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.E.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—First Response System 

 
 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 24 

2. Health Status Improvement and Community Education  

a) Minimum Requirements—Community Education 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.E.2.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.E.2.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Health Status Improvement and Community Education 

 
 

F. Integration with Healthcare Providers  

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

1. West Side Healthcare District Area  

a) Minimum Requirements—Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 

Attestation: 
 
_________ Proposer understands and agrees to comply without qualification to provisions, 
requirements, and commitments contained in Section V.F.1.a. 
 
_________ Proposer takes exception to provisions contained in Section V.F.1.a. as delineated 
below.  Proposer recognizes that taking exception with any provision of the Core 
Requirements may result in finding that the Proposal is unresponsive and result in 
disqualification.  
Exceptions:

 

 
 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

 

Supporting narrative and/or documentation required. 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 25 

SEPARATE SUBMISSION: FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS 

A. Financial Documents 
The Proposer shall submit all of the requested financial documents in a separately sealed containt 
labeled “Financial Documents.”  There shall be one (1) original and five (5) copies plus one (1) 
electronic version on a disk or USB memory stick. 

B. Financial Situation Documents 
The Proposer shall submit the following documents and information supporting the following: 

1. Financial Statements 

2. Audited Statements 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

3. Financial Commitments 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

4. Working Capital 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

5. Performance Security 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

6. Financial Interests 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

C. Financial Projections 
Proposers shall submit the following financial projections and assumptions consistent with the 
specified templates contained in the Appendices. 

1. Revenue projections 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 



Appendix 1 Mandatory Table of Contents Page 26 

2. Revenue Flow Projections 

3. Expense Projections 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

4. One-Time Start Up and Capital Items 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

5. Pro Forma Summary 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 

D. ALS Interfacility Pricing 
Proposer shall complete and submit the ALS Interfacility Price Sheet in Appendix 20. 

 

Supporting documentation required. (Separate sealed envelope labeled “Financial Documents”) 



Page 96 

  

Appendix 2 

 

 

MAP OF EXCLUSIVE 

OPERATING AREA  



Appendix 2 Exclusive Operating Areas Page 1 

 



Page 97 

  

Appendix 3 

 
 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

ZONE MAPS  







Page 98 

  

Appendix 4 

 

 

COUNTY AMBULANCE 

ORDINANCE  



































Page 99 

  

Appendix 5 

 

 
CURRENT AMBULANCE 

ZONES MAP  





Page 100 

  

Appendix 6 

 

 

CALL DENSITY 

RESPONSE AREAS IN 
EOA  







Page 101 

  

Appendix 7 

 

 

CURRENT AMBULANCE 

RATES  



 

 
Appendix 7 

 

Contra Costa County 

Current Approved Ambulance Rates 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Base Rate ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $1,957.19 
Mileage Rate (per loaded mile) ------------------------------------------------------------------------ $45.00 
Oxygen ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------$175.00 

 
 
 



Page 102 

  

 

 

 
PROCUREMENT 

TIMELINE  



APPENDIX 8 
PROCUREMENT TIME LINE 

Date Activity 

Month Day, Year Board Approval of RFP 

 RFP Released 

 RFP Questions/Clarifications Due 

 Proposer’s Conference 

 Proposals due at 4 p.m. and Public Proposal Opening 

 Proposer presentations 

 Protest period Begins 

 Presentation to Board; negotiation of contract 
authorized 

 Contract negotiations completed 

 Board approval of contract 

 Startup of new contract  



Page 103 

  

Appendix 9 

 

 

REQUIRED FORMS  



EXHIBIT A 
FACE SHEET 

Page | 1 

***THIS FORM MUST APPEAR AS THE FIRST PAGE OF THE PROPOSAL*** 
 

This is a proposal to contract with Contra Costa County to provide emergency medical and ALS interfacility 
ambulance services. 

Name of Proposer:   

  Dba:   

Type Of Organization:     Corporation     LLC     Partnership     Other _______ 

Date Founded Or Incorporated: __/__/____ 

Legal Address:  
   

   

   

Phone:  (___)____-_____  ext.:_____  Fax:  (___)___-_____  (Required For Notification) 

Federal Tax Identification Number:   

Contact person:   

Title:  

Phone: (___)____-_____           E-Mail:   

Address For Mailings: (If different from above):  
   

   

   

Authorized Signature: _________________________________________ 
Date Submitted: __/___/_____ 

Print Name: 

Title:   

 



EXHIBIT B 
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 

 

Page | 1 

 
The Proposer, under penalty of perjury, certifies that, except as noted below, Proposer, its 
principal, and any named subcontractor: 
 

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of 
ineligibility by any federal agency; 

2. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any 
federal agency within the past three years; 

3. Does not have a proposed debarment pending; and, 
4. Has not been indicted,  convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against it by a court 

of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the 
past three years. 

 
If there are any exceptions to this certification, insert the exceptions in the following space.  
 
Exceptions will not necessary result in denial of award, but will be considered in determining 
Proposer responsibility.  For any exception noted above, indicate below to whom it applies, 
initiating agency, and dates of action. 
 
Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative 
sanctions.  The above certification is part of the Proposal.  Signing this Proposal on the 
signature portion thereof shall also constitute signature of this Certification. 
 
Proposer Name: ______________________________________________________________ 
 
Proposer Signature: ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________________________________ 
 
Date: ___/__/____ 
 



EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

 

Pa
ge

 |
 1

 

 
CU

RR
EN

T 
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

S 
 

Pr
op

os
er

 n
am

e:
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

 
 Co

m
pa

ny
 N

am
e:

 
 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 Co
m

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 

 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 



EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

 

Pa
ge

 |
 2

 

 Co
m

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 

 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 



EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

 

Pa
ge

 |
 3

 

 
FO

RM
ER

 R
EF

ER
EN

CE
S 

 
Pr

op
os

er
 n

am
e:

 _
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
_ 

 Co
m

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 

 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 Co
m

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 

 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 



EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 

RE
FE

RE
N

CE
S 

 

Pa
ge

 |
 4

 

 Co
m

pa
ny

 N
am

e:
 

 

A
dd

re
ss

: 
 

Ci
ty

, S
ta

te
, Z

ip
 C

od
e:

 
 

Co
nt

ac
t P

er
so

n:
 

 

Te
le

ph
on

e 
N

um
be

r:
 

(_
__

_)
 _

__
__

__
 - 

__
__

__
__

_ 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Pr
ov

id
ed

: 
 

D
at

es
/T

yp
e 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
: 

__
_/

__
__

/_
__

__
, 

 



EXHIBIT D 
INVESTIGATIVE AUTHORIZATION – INDIVIDUAL 

 

Page | 1 

 
The undersigned, being ___________ (title) for __________ (entity), which is a prospective 
Contractor to provide Emergency Ambulance Services to Contra Costa County recognizes that 
public health and safety requires assurance of safe, reliable and cost efficient ambulance 
service.  That assurance will require an inquiry into matters which are determined relevant by 
the Contra Costa County EMS Agency or its agents, such as, but not limited to, the character, 
reputation, competence of the entity’s owners and key employees. 
 
The undersigned specifically acknowledges that such inquiry may involve an investigation of his 
or her personal work experience, educational qualifications, moral character, financial stability 
and general background, and specifically agrees that the EMS Agency, or its agents, may 
undertake a personal investigation of the undersigned for the purpose stated.  This 
authorization shall expire six (6) months from the signature date. 
 
AUTHORIZATION FOR SUCH PERSONAL INVESTIGATION IS HEREBY EXPRESSLY GIVEN: 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date: _____/____/_______ 
 
Individual Name 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
STATE OF ______________________________________________ 
COUNTY OF ____________________________________________ 
 
On this _______ day of _______, 20____, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and 
for said County and State, personally appears ________________ to me known to be the 
person described herein and who executed the foregoing Affirmation Statement, and 
acknowledged that he/she executed the same as his/her free act and deed. 
 
Witness my hand and Notarial Seal subscribed and affixed in said County and State, the day and 
year above written. 
 
Notary Public;__________________________________________________ 
 
Notary Public Seal     Commission Expiration Date: ___/___/____ 

 



EXHIBIT E 
INVESTIGATIVE AUTHORIZATION – ENTITY 

 

Page | 1 

 
The undersigned entity, a prospective Contractor to provide Emergency Ambulance Services for 
Contra Costa County recognizes that public health and safety requires assurance of safe, 
reliable and cost-efficient ambulance service. That assurance will require inquiry into aspects of 
entity’s operations determined relevant by the Contra Costa County EMS Agency, or its agents. 
The entity specifically agrees that the Contra Costa County EMS Agency or its agents may 
conduct an investigation for the purpose into, but not limited to the following matters;  
 

1. The financial stability of the entity, including its owners and officers, any information 
regarding potential conflict of interests, past problems in dealing with other clients or 
cities where the entity has rendered service, or any other aspect of the entity 
operations or its structure, ownership or key personnel which might reasonably be 
expected to influence the Contra Costa County EMS Agency’s selection decision.  

2. The entity’s current business practices, including employee compensation and benefits 
arrangements, pricing practices, billings and collections practices, equipment 
replacement and maintenance practices, in-service training programs, means of 
competing with other companies, employee discipline practices, public relations efforts, 
current and potential obligations to other buyers, and genera internal personnel 
relations. 

3. The attitude of current and previous customers of the entity toward the entity’s services 
and general business practices, including patients or families of patients served by the 
entity, physicians or other health care professionals knowledgeable of the entity’s past 
work, as well as other units of local government with which the entity has dealt in the 
past.  

4. Other business in which entity owners and/or other key personnel in the entity 
currently have a business interest. 

5. The accuracy and truthfulness of any information submitted by the entity in connection 
with such evaluation. 



EXHIBIT E 
INVESTIGATIVE AUTHORIZATION – ENTITY 

 

Page | 2 

This authorization shall expire six (6) months from the date of the signature. 
 
AUTHORIZATION FOR SUCH INVESTIGATION IS HEREBY EXPRESSLY GIVEN BY THE ENTITY: 
 
Entity Name: _________________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Representative (Signature): ___________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Representative (Printed):___________________________________ 
 
Title: ______________________________ 
 
Date: __/___/___ 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

STATE OF ______________________________________________________ 
 
COUNTY OF ____________________________________________________ 

 
 
On this _________ day of _______, 20____, before me appeared __________ to me personally 
known, who being by me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the _________ of ___________ and 
that said instrument was signed in behalf of said entity by authority delegated to him/her, and 
said affiant acknowledges said instrument to be the free act and deed of said entity. In 
WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set by hand and affixed my official seal the day and year 
last above written. 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Notary Public 
 
Notary Public Seal    Commission Expiration Date: ___/___/_____ 

 
 



Page 104 

  

Appendix 10 

 

 

STIPULATED 

AMBULANCE CHARGES  



 

 
Appendix 10 

 

Contra Costa County 

Stipulated Ambulance Rates for Year 1 of Contract 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Base Rate ------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $2,100.00 
Mileage Rate (per loaded mile) ------------------------------------------------------------------------ $50.00 
Oxygen ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------$175.00 
Treat and Refused Transport -------------------------------------------------------------------------$450.00 

 
 
 



Page 105 

  

Appendix 11 

 

 

SUBSIDY REQUEST 

FORM  



 

 
Appendix 11 

 

Plan A 

Subsidy Requirements 

 
Proposer shall identify any subsidies required to support the level of service and performance 
requirements for Plan A.  An annual subsidy for each of the first five years of the term of the 
Agreement shall be identified in this submission, if a subsidy is required. 
 
 

Year One Subsidy: -------------------------------------------------------------------- $_________________________ 
 
Year Two Subsidy: ------------------------------------------------------------------- $_________________________ 
 
Year Three Subsidy: ----------------------------------------------------------------- $_________________________ 
 
Year Four Subsidy: ------------------------------------------------------------------- $_________________________ 
 
Year Five Subsidy: ------------------------------------------------------------------- $_________________________ 

 
FIRM: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE: ___/____/_____ 
 
PRINTED NAME: _____________________________________________________________ 
 
TITLE: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 



Page 106 

  

Appendix 12 

 

 

INSURANCE 

REQUIREMENTS  



APPENDIX 12 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Page | 1 

1. EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE: Certificates of insurance are required from a reputable 
insurer evidencing all overages required for the term of any contract that may be 
awarded pursuant to this RFP. 

2. COUNTY NAMED AS ADDITIONAL INSURED: The County’s insurance requirements for 
Additional Insured reads, “All insurance required above with the exception shall be 
endorsed to name as additional insured.” An endorsement is an amendment to a 
contract, such as an insurance policy, by which the original terms are changed. The 
insurance certificate (also known as the “Accord”) carries a disclaimer, “This certificate 
is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate 
holder. This certificate does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the 
policy below.” Additional insured listed in the description box are not a proper risk 
transfer. Any amendment or extension of the coverage such as an additional insured 
should be provided by a separate endorsement page or copy of the policy. 

3. INSURANCE PROVISIONS  
3.1 CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the 

term of this Agreement, and thereafter as to matters occurring during the term 
of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage: 

(a) Workers' Compensation insurance. If and to the extent required by law 

during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide 

workers' compensation insurance for the performance of any of 

CONTRACTOR's duties under this Agreement; including but not 

limited to, coverage for workers' compensation and employer's 

liability and a waiver of subrogation, and shall provide COUNTY 

with certification of all such coverages upon request by COUNTY’s 

Risk Manager.

(b) Liability insurance. CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain in full force 

and effect during the term of this Agreement the following liability 

insurance coverages, issued by a company with an A.M. Best rating 

of A: VII or better:

1. General Liability. Commercial general liability [CGL] insurance coverage 
(personal injury and property damage) of not less than FIVE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000) combined single limit per 
occurrence, covering liability or claims for any personal injury, 
including death, to any person and/or damage to the property of 
any person arising from the acts or omissions of CONTRACTOR or 
any officer, agent, or employee of CONTRACTOR under this 
Agreement. If the coverage includes an aggregate limit, the 



APPENDIX 12 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Page | 2 

aggregate limit shall be no less than twice the per occurrence 
limit. 

2.Professional Liability/Errors and Omissions. Professional liability [or 
errors and omissions] insurance for all activities of CONTRACTOR 
arising out of or in connection with this Agreement in an amount 
not less than THREE MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000) per claim.  

3.Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance. Comprehensive 
automobile liability insurance (Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage) on owned, hired, leased and non-owned vehicles used in 
conjunction with CONTRACTOR's business of not less than THREE 
MILLION DOLLARS ($3,000,000) combined single limit per 
occurrence. 

(c) Certificates. All insurance coverages referenced in 7(b), above, shall 

be evidenced by one or more certificates of coverage or, with the 

approval of COUNTY's Risk Manager, demonstrated by other 

evidence of coverage acceptable to COUNTY's Risk Manager, which 

shall be filed by CONTRACTOR with the County Fire Department 

prior to commencement of performance of any of CONTRACTOR's 

duties; shall reference this Agreement by its COUNTY number or 

title and department; shall be kept current during the term of this 

Agreement; shall provide that COUNTY be given no less than thirty 

(30) days prior written notice of any non-renewal, cancellation, 

other termination, or material change, except that only ten (10) 

days prior written notice shall be required where the cause of non-

renewal or cancellation is non-payment of premium; and shall 

provide that the inclusion of more than one insured shall not 

operate to impair the rights of one insured against another insured, 

the coverage afforded applying as though separate policies had 

been issued to each insured, but the inclusion of more than one 

insured shall not operate to increase the limits of the company's 

liability. For the insurance coverages referenced in 7(b)(1) and (3), 

CONTRACTOR shall also file with the evidence of coverage an 

endorsement from the insurance provider naming COUNTY, its 

officers, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds 

and waiving subrogation, and the certificate or other evidence of 

coverage shall provide that if the same policy applies to activities 

of CONTRACTOR not covered by this Agreement then the limits in 

the applicable certificate relating to the additional insured coverage 

of COUNTY shall pertain only to liability for activities of 

CONTRACTOR under this Agreement, and that the insurance 



APPENDIX 12 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

Page | 3 

provided is primary coverage to COUNTY with respect to any 

insurance or self-insurance programs maintained by COUNTY. The 

additional insured endorsements for the general liability coverage 

shall use Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form No. CG 20 09 11 85 

or CG 20 10 11 85, or equivalent, including (if used together) CG 

2010 10 01 and CG 2037 10 01; but shall not use the following 

forms: CG 20 10 10 93 or 03 94. Upon request of COUNTY’s Risk 

Manager, CONTRACTOR shall provide or arrange for the insurer to 

provide within thirty (30) days of the request, certified copies of 

the actual insurance policies or relevant portions thereof.

(d) Deductibles/Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions 

shall be declared to, and be subject to approval by, COUNTY’s Risk 

Manager, which approval shall not be denied unless the COUNTY's 

Risk Manager determines that the deductibles or self-insured 

retentions are unreasonably large in relation to compensation 

payable under this Agreement and the risks of liability associated 

with the activities required of CONTRACTOR by this Agreement. At 

the option of and upon request by COUNTY’s Risk Manager if the 

Risk Manager determines that such deductibles or retentions are 

unreasonably high, either the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such 

deductibles or self-insurance retentions as respects COUNTY, its 

officers, employees, agents and volunteers or CONTRACTOR shall 

procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related 

investigations, claims administration and defense expenses.



Page 107 

  

Appendix 13

 

 
SAMPLE STANDARD 

COUNTY CONTRACT  



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

1. Compliance with Law.  Contractor is subject to and must comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations with respect to its performance under this Contract, including but not limited to, licensing, 
employment, and purchasing practices; and wages, hours, and conditions of employment, including 
nondiscrimination.

2. Inspection.  Contractor's performance, place of business, and records pertaining to this Contract are subject to 
monitoring, inspection, review and audit by authorized representatives of the County, the State of California, and the 
United States Government.

3. Records.  Contractor must keep and make available for inspection and copying by authorized representatives of the 
County, the State of California, and the United States Government, the Contractor's regular business records and such 
additional records pertaining to this Contract as may be required by the County.

a. Retention of Records.  Contractor must retain all documents pertaining to this Contract for five years from the
date of submission of Contractor's final payment demand or final Cost Report; for any further period that is 
required by law; and until all federal/state audits are complete and exceptions resolved for this Contract's funding 
period.  Upon request, Contractor must make these records available to authorized representatives of the County, 
the State of California, and the United States Government.

b. Access to Books and Records of Contractor, Subcontractor.  Pursuant to Section 1861(v)(1) of the Social 
Security Act, and any regulations promulgated thereunder, Contractor must, upon written request and until the 
expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to this Contract, make available to the County, 
the Secretary of Health and Human Services, or the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized 
representatives, this Contract and books, documents, and records of Contractor necessary to certify the nature and 
extent of all costs and charges hereunder.

Further, if Contractor carries out any of the duties of this Contract through a subcontract with a value or cost of 
$10,000 or more over a twelve-month period, such subcontract must contain a clause to the effect that upon 
written request and until the expiration of five years after the furnishing of services pursuant to such subcontract, 
the subcontractor must make available to the County, the Secretary, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly 
authorized representatives, the subcontract and books, documents, and records of the subcontractor necessary to 
verify the nature and extent of all costs and charges thereunder.

This provision is in addition to any and all other terms regarding the maintenance or retention of records under 
this Contract and is binding on the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives of Contractor.

4. Reporting Requirements.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 7550, Contractor must include in all documents 
and written reports completed and submitted to County in accordance with this Contract, a separate section listing the 
numbers and dollar amounts of all contracts and subcontracts relating to the preparation of each such document or 
written report.  This section applies only if the Payment Limit of this Contract exceeds $5,000.



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

5. Termination and Cancellation.

a. Written Notice.  This Contract may be terminated by either party, in its sole discretion, upon thirty-day advance 
written notice thereof to the other, and may be cancelled immediately by written mutual consent.

b. Failure to Perform.  County, upon written notice to Contractor, may immediately terminate this Contract should 
Contractor fail to perform properly any of its obligations hereunder.  In the event of such termination, County 
may proceed with the work in any reasonable manner it chooses.  The cost to County of completing Contractor's 
performance will be deducted from any sum due Contractor under this Contract, without prejudice to County's 
rights to recover damages.

c. Cessation of Funding.  Notwithstanding any contrary language in Paragraphs 5 and 11, in the event that federal, 
state, or other non-County funding for this Contract ceases, this Contract is terminated without notice.

6. Entire Agreement.  This Contract contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  Except as 
expressly provided herein, no other understanding, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Contract will 
be deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto.

7. Further Specifications for Operating Procedures.  Detailed specifications of operating procedures and budgets 
required by this Contract, including but not limited to, monitoring, evaluating, auditing, billing, or regulatory changes, 
may  be clarified in a written letter signed by Contractor and the department head, or designee, of the county 
department on whose behalf this Contract is made.  No written clarification prepared pursuant to this Section will 
operate as an amendment to, or be considered to be a part of, this Contract.

8. Modifications and Amendments.

a. General Amendments.  In the event that the total Payment Limit of this Contract is less than $100,000 and this 
Contract was executed by the County’s Purchasing Agent, this Contract may be modified or amended by a written 
document executed by Contractor and the County’s Purchasing Agent or the Contra Costa County Board of 
Supervisors, subject to any required state or federal approval.  In the event that the total Payment Limit of this 
Contract exceeds $100,000 or this Contract was initially approved by the Board of Supervisors, this Contract may 
be modified or amended only by a written document executed by Contractor and the Contra Costa County Board 
of Supervisors or, after Board approval, by its designee, subject to any required state or federal approval.

b. Minor Amendments.  The Payment Provisions and the Service Plan may be amended by a written administrative 
amendment executed by Contractor and the County Administrator (or designee), subject to any required state or 
federal approval, provided that such administrative amendment may not increase the Payment Limit of this 
Contract or reduce the services Contractor is obligated to provide pursuant to this Contract.

9. Disputes.  Disagreements between County and Contractor concerning the meaning, requirements, or performance of 
this Contract shall be subject to final written determination by the head of the county department for which this 
Contract is made, or his designee, or in accordance with the applicable procedures (if any) required by the state or 
federal government.

10. Choice of Law and Personal Jurisdiction.



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

a. This Contract is made in Contra Costa County and is governed by, and must be construed in accordance with, the 
laws of the State of California.

b. Any action relating to this Contract must be instituted and prosecuted in the courts of Contra Costa County, State 
of California.

11. Conformance with Federal and State Regulations and Laws.  Should federal or state regulations or laws touching 
upon the subject of this Contract be adopted or revised during the term hereof, this Contract will be deemed amended 
to assure conformance with such federal or state requirements. 

12. No Waiver by County.  Subject to Paragraph 9. (Disputes) of these General Conditions, inspections or approvals, or 
statements by any officer, agent or employee of County indicating Contractor's performance or any part thereof 
complies with the requirements of this Contract, or acceptance of the whole or any part of said performance, or 
payments therefor, or any combination of these acts, do not relieve Contractor's obligation to fulfill this Contract as 
prescribed; nor is the County  thereby prevented from bringing any action for damages or enforcement arising from 
any failure to comply with any of the terms and conditions of this Contract.

13. Subcontract and Assignment.  This Contract binds the heirs, successors, assigns and representatives of Contractor.  
Prior written consent of the County Administrator or his designee, subject to any required state or federal approval, is 
required before the Contractor may enter into subcontracts for any work contemplated under this Contract, or before 
the Contractor may assign this Contract or monies due or to become due, by operation of law or otherwise.

14. Independent Contractor Status.  The parties intend that Contractor, in performing the services specified herein, is 
acting as an independent contractor and that Contractor will control the work and the manner in which it is performed.  
This Contract is not to be construed to create the relationship between the parties of agent, servant, employee, 
partnership, joint venture, or association.  Contractor is not a County employee.  This Contract does not give 
Contractor any right to participate in any pension plan, workers’ compensation plan, insurance, bonus, or similar 
benefits County provides to its employees.  In the event that County exercises its right to terminate this Contract, 
Contractor expressly agrees that it will have no recourse or right of appeal under any rules, regulations, ordinances, or 
laws applicable to employees.

15. Conflicts of Interest.  Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, 
direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state law or that would otherwise conflict in any 
manner or degree with the performance of its services hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that in the 
performance of this Contract, no person having any such interests will be employed by Contractor.  If requested to do 
so by County, Contractor will complete a “Statement of Economic Interest” form and file it with County and will 
require any other person doing work under this Contract to complete a “Statement of Economic Interest” form and file 
it with County.  Contractor covenants that Contractor, its employees and officials, are not now employed by County 
and have not been so employed by County within twelve months immediately preceding this Contract; or, if so 
employed, did not then and do not now occupy a position that would create a conflict of interest under Government 
Code section 1090.  In addition to any indemnity provided by Contractor in this Contract, Contractor will indemnify, 
defend, and hold the County harmless from any and all claims, investigations, liabilities, or damages resulting from or 
related to any and all alleged conflicts of interest.  Contractor warrants that it has not provided, attempted to provide, 
or offered to provide any money, gift, gratuity, thing of value, or compensation of any kind to obtain this Contract.

16. Confidentiality. To the extent allowed under the California Public Records Act, Contractor agrees to comply and to 
require its officers, partners, associates, agents and employees to comply with all applicable state or federal statutes or 
regulations respecting confidentiality, including but not limited to, the identity of persons served under this Contract, 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

their records, or services provided them, and assures that no person will publish or disclose or permit or cause to be 
published or disclosed, any list of persons receiving services, except as may be required in the administration of such 
service.  Contractor agrees to inform all employees, agents and partners of the above provisions, and that any person 
knowingly and intentionally disclosing such information other than as authorized by law may be guilty of a 
misdemeanor.

17. Nondiscriminatory Services.  Contractor agrees that all goods and services under this Contract will be available to 
all qualified persons regardless of age, gender, race, religion, color, national origin, ethnic background, disability, or 
sexual orientation, and that none will be used, in whole or in part, for religious worship.

18. Indemnification.  Contractor will defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless County and its officers and employees 
from any and all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, and liabilities for any damages, fines, sickness, death, or 
injury to person(s) or property, including any and all administrative fines, penalties or costs imposed as a result of an 
administrative or quasi-judicial proceeding, arising directly or indirectly from or connected with the services provided 
hereunder that are caused, or claimed or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, subcontractors, or any persons under its 
direction or control.  If requested by County, Contractor will defend any such suits at its sole cost and expense.  If 
County elects to provide its own defense, Contractor will reimburse County for any expenditures, including 
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.  Contractor’s obligations under this section exist regardless of concurrent 
negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the County or any other person; provided, however, that Contractor is 
not required to indemnify County for the proportion of liability a court determines is attributable to the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the County, its officers and employees.  This provision will survive the expiration 
or termination of this Contract.

19. Insurance.  During the entire term of this Contract and any extension or modification thereof, Contractor shall keep 
in effect insurance policies meeting the following insurance requirements unless otherwise expressed in the Special 
Conditions:

a. Commercial General Liability Insurance. For all contracts where the total payment limit of the contract is 
$500,000 or less, Contractor will provide commercial general liability insurance, including coverage for business 
losses and for owned and non-owned automobiles, with a minimum combined single limit coverage of $500,000 
for all damages, including consequential damages, due to bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death to any person 
or damage to or destruction of property, including the loss of use thereof, arising from each occurrence.  Such 
insurance must be endorsed to include County and its officers and employees as additional insureds as to all 
services performed by Contractor under this Contract.  Said policies must constitute primary insurance as to 
County, the state and federal governments, and their officers, agents, and employees, so that other insurance 
policies held by them or their self-insurance program(s) will not be required to contribute to any loss covered 
under Contractor’s insurance policy or policies.  Contractor must provide County with a copy of the endorsement 
making the County an additional insured on all commercial general liability policies as required herein no later 
than the effective date of this Contract.  For all contracts where the total payment limit is greater than $500,000, 
the aforementioned insurance coverage to be provided by Contractor must have a minimum combined single limit 
coverage of $1,000,000.

b. Workers' Compensation.  Contractor must provide workers' compensation insurance coverage for its employees.

c. Certificate of Insurance.  The Contractor must provide County with (a) certificate(s) of insurance evidencing 
liability and worker's compensation insurance as required herein no later than the effective date of this Contract.  
If Contractor should renew the insurance policy(ies) or acquire either a new insurance policy(ies) or amend the 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

coverage afforded through an endorsement to the policy at any time during the term of this Contract, then 
Contractor must provide (a) current certificate(s) of insurance.  

d. Additional Insurance Provisions. No later than five days after Contractor’s receipt of: (i) a notice of 
cancellation, a notice of an intention to cancel, or a notice of a lapse in any of Contractor’s insurance coverage 
required by this Contract; or (ii) a notice of a material change to Contractor’s insurance coverage required by this 
Contract, Contractor will provide Department a copy of such notice of cancellation, notice of intention to cancel, 
notice of lapse of coverage, or notice of material change.  Contractor’s failure to provide Department the notice as 
required by the preceding sentence is a default under this Contract

20. Notices.  All notices provided for by this Contract must be in writing and may be delivered by deposit in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid.  Notices to County must be addressed to the head of the county department for which 
this Contract is made.  Notices to Contractor must be addressed to the Contractor's address designated herein.  The 
effective date of notice is the date of deposit in the mails or of other delivery, except that the effective date of notice to
County is the date of receipt by the head of the county department for which this Contract is made.

21. Primacy of General Conditions.  In the event of a conflict between the General Conditions and the Special 
Conditions, the General Conditions govern unless the Special Conditions or Service Plan expressly provide otherwise.

22. Nonrenewal.  Contractor understands and agrees that there is no representation, implication, or understanding that the 
services provided by Contractor under this Contract will be purchased by County under a new contract following 
expiration or termination of this Contract, and Contractor waives all rights or claims to notice or hearing respecting 
any failure to continue purchasing all or any such services from Contractor.

23. Possessory Interest.  If this Contract results in Contractor having possession of, claim or right to the possession of 
land or improvements, but does not vest ownership of the land or improvements in the same person, or if this Contract 
results in the placement of taxable improvements on tax exempt land (Revenue & Taxation Code Section 107), such 
interest or improvements may represent a possessory interest subject to property tax, and Contractor may be subject to 
the payment of property taxes levied on such interest.  Contractor agrees that this provision complies with the notice 
requirements of Revenue & Taxation Code Section 107.6, and waives all rights to further notice or to damages under 
that or any comparable statute.

24. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Contract may be construed to create, and the parties do not intend to 
create, any rights in third parties.

25. Copyrights, Rights in Data, and Works Made for Hire.  Contractor will not publish or transfer any materials 
produced or resulting from activities supported by this Contract without the express written consent of the County 
Administrator.  All reports, original drawings, graphics, plans, studies and other data and documents, in whatever 
form or format, assembled or prepared by Contactor or Contractor’s subcontractors, consultants, and other agents in 
connection with this Contract are “works made for hire” (as defined in the Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. Section 101 et 
seq., as amended) for County, and Contractor unconditionally and irrevocably transfers and assigns to Agency all 
right, title, and interest, including all copyrights and other intellectual property rights, in or to the works made for hire.  
Unless required by law, Contractor shall not publish, transfer, discuss, or disclose any of the above-described works 
made for hire or any information gathered, discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement, without 
County’s prior express written consent.  If any of the works made for hire is subject to copyright protection, County 
reserves the right to copyright such works and Contractor agrees not to copyright such works.  If any works made for 
hire are copyrighted, County reserves a royalty-free, irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, and use the works 
made for hire, in whole or in part, without restriction or limitation, and to authorize others to do so.



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

26. Endorsements.  In its capacity as a contractor with Contra Costa County, Contractor will not publicly endorse or 
oppose the use of any particular brand name or commercial product without the prior written approval of the Board of 
Supervisors.  In its County-contractor capacity, Contractor will not publicly attribute qualities or lack of qualities to a 
particular brand name or commercial product in the absence of a well-established and widely accepted scientific basis 
for such claims or without the prior written approval of the Board of Supervisors.  In its County-contractor capacity, 
Contractor will not participate or appear in any commercially produced advertisements designed to promote a 
particular brand name or commercial product, even if Contractor is not publicly endorsing a product, as long as the 
Contractor's presence in the advertisement can reasonably be interpreted as an endorsement of the product by or on 
behalf of Contra Costa County.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may express its views on products to other 
contractors, the Board of Supervisors, County officers, or others who may be authorized by the Board of Supervisors 
or by law to receive such views.

27. Required Audit. (A) If Contractor is funded by $500,000 or more in federal grant funds in any fiscal year from any 
source, Contractor must provide to County, at Contractor's expense, an audit conforming to the requirements set forth 
in the most current version of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.  (B) If Contractor is funded by less 
than $500,000 in federal grant funds in any fiscal year from any source, but such grant imposes specific audit 
requirements, Contractor must provide County with an audit conforming to those requirements.  (C) If Contractor is 
funded by less than $500,000 in federal grant funds in any fiscal year from any source, Contractor is exempt from 
federal audit requirements for that year; however, Contractor's records must be available for and an audit may be 
required by, appropriate officials of the federal awarding agency, the General Accounting Office (GAO), the pass-
through entity and/or the County.  If any such audit is required, Contractor must provide County with such audit.  
With respect to the audits specified in (A), (B) and (C) above, Contractor is solely responsible for arranging for the 
conduct of the audit, and for its cost.  County may withhold the estimated cost of the audit or 10 percent of the 
contract amount, whichever is greater, or the final payment, from Contractor until County receives the audit from 
Contractor.

28. Authorization.  Contractor, or the representative(s) signing this Contract on behalf of Contractor, represents and 
warrants that it has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and to perform the obligations set forth herein.

29. No Implied Waiver.  The waiver by County of any breach of any term or provision of this Contract will not be 
deemed to be a waiver of such term or provision or of any subsequent breach of the same or any other term or 
provision contained herein.



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

Number:

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ATTACHMENT
__________

To the extent, and as long as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act, this HIPAA Business Associate Attachment 
(“Attachment”) supplements and is made a part of the Contract identified as Number _________   (hereinafter referred 
to as “Agreement”) by and between a Covered Entity (Contra Costa County for its Health Services Department, 
hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Business Associate (the Contractor identified in the Agreement, hereinafter 
referred to as “Associate”). 

A. County wishes to disclose certain information to Associate pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, some of 
which may constitute Protected Health Information (“PHI”), defined below. 

B. County and Associate intend to protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI disclosed to Associate 
pursuant to the Agreement as required by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(“HIPAA”), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH Act”), and 
the regulations promulgated thereunder (collectively, the “HIPAA Regulations”), and other applicable laws. 

C. As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule and the Security Rule, defined below, require County to 
enter into a contract containing specific requirements with Associate prior to the disclosure of PHI, as set forth 
in, but not limited to, Title 45, Sections 164.314(a), 164.502(e), and 164.504(e) of the Code of Federal 
Regulations and contained in this Attachment. 

In consideration of the mutual promises below and the exchange of information pursuant to this Attachment, the 
parties agree as follows: 

1. DDefinitions.  As used in this Attachment, the following terms have the following meanings: 

a. BBreach has the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act set forth at 42 U.S.C. Section 17921. 

b. BBusiness Associate (“Associate”) means an individual or entity that provides services, arranges, performs or 
assists in the performance of activities on behalf of the County and who uses or discloses PHI, pursuant to 
the HIPAA Regulations including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17938 and 45 C.F.R. Section 
160.103. 

c. CCovered Entity (“County”) means Contra Costa County for its Health Services Department. 

d. DData Aggregation has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 
45 C.F.R. Section 164.501, as in effect or as amended. 

e. DDesignated Record Set has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited 
to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501, as in effect or as amended. 

f. EElectronic Media is: 
(1) Electronic storage media including memory devices in computers (hard drives) and any 

removable/transportable digital memory medium, such as magnetic tape or disk, optical disk, or digital 
memory card; or 

(2) Transmission media used to exchange information already in electronic storage media.  Transmission 
media include, for example, the Internet (wide-open), extranet (using internet technology to link a 
business with information accessible only to collaborating parties), leased lines, dial-up lines, private 
networks, and the physical movement of removable/transportable electronic storage media.   

g. EElectronic Protected Health Information (ePHI) is any Protected Health Information that is stored in or 
transmitted by electronic media. 

h. EElectronic Health Record has the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act, including, but not 
limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17921. 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

i. HHealth Care Operations has the meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not 
limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501, as in effect or as amended. 

j. PPrivacy Rule means the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information set forth in 45 
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, as in effect or as amended. 

k. PProtected Health Information  (“PHI”) means any information in any form or medium, including oral, 
paper, or electronic: (i) that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an 
individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an individual; and (ii) that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is 
a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual, and shall have the 
meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501.  
Protected Health Information includes electronic Protected Health Information (45 C.F.R. Sections 
160.103, 164.501). 

l. PProtected Information means PHI provided by County to Associate or created or received by Associate on 
behalf of the County in connection with the Agreement. 

m. RRequired by Law has the same meaning given to such term under the Privacy Rule, including, but not limited 
to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.103. 

n. SSecurity Incident means the attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or 
destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system. 

o. SSecurity Rule means the standards for protecting the security of electronic Protected Health Information in 
45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, as in effect or as amended. 

p. UUnsecured PHI shall have the meaning given to such term under the HITECH Act and any guidance issued 
pursuant to said Act including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17932(h). 

Terms used, but not defined, in this Attachment will have the same meanings as those terms are given in the 
HIPAA Privacy Rule.

2. OObligations of Associate. 
a. PPermitted Uses.  Associate shall not use Protected Information except for the purpose of performing 

Associate’s obligations under the Agreement and as permitted under the Agreement and this Attachment, or 
as Required by Law.  Further, Associate shall not use Protected Information in any manner that would 
constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act.   

b. PPermitted Disclosures.  Associate shall not disclose Protected Information in any manner that would 
constitute a violation of the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act if so disclosed by County.  However, Associate 
may disclose Protected Information (i) in a manner permitted pursuant to the Agreement and this 
Attachment, (ii) for the proper management and administration of Associate, (iii) as Required by Law, or (iv) 
for Data Aggregation purposes for the Health Care Operations of County.  To the extent that Associate 
discloses Protected Information to a third party, Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure 
(i) reasonable written assurances from such third party that such Protected Information will be held 
confidential as provided pursuant to this Attachment and only disclosed as Required By Law or for the 
purposes for which it was disclosed to such third party, and (ii) a written agreement from such third party to 
immediately notify Associate or any breaches of confidentiality of the Protected Information, to the extent it 
has obtained knowledge of such breach.  

c. PProhibited Uses and Disclosures.  Associate shall not use or disclose Protected Information for fundraising 
or marketing purposes.  Associate shall not disclose Protected Information to a health plan for payment or 
health care operations purposes if the patient has requested this special restriction, and has paid out-of-
pocket in full for the health care item or services to which the PHI solely relates (42 U.S.C. Section 
17935(a)).  Associate shall not directly or indirectly receive remuneration in exchange for Protected 
Information, except with the prior written consent of County and as permitted by the HITECH Act, 42 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

U.S.C. Section 17935(d)(2); however, this prohibition shall not affect payment by County to Associate for 
services provided pursuant to the Agreement. 

d. AAppropriate Safeguards.  Associate agrees to implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards 
that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Protected 
Information that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of County as required by the 
Agreement or this Attachment and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. Sections 164.308, 164.310, and 164.312.  
Associate shall comply with the policies and procedures and documentation requirements of the Security 
Rule, including, but not limited to, 45 C.F.R. Section 164.316.   

e. RReporting of Improper Use or Disclosure.  Associate will notify County in writing within twenty-four (24) 
hours of its discovery of any security incident or any other use or disclosure of Protected Information not 
permitted by the Agreement or this Attachment of which Associate or its officers, employees or agents 
become aware, without unreasonable delay, and in no case later than ten (10) calendar days after discovery.  
Associate will take (i) prompt corrective action to cure any deficiencies and (ii) any action pertaining to such 
unauthorized disclosure required by applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 

f.  Associate’s Agents.  Associate agrees to ensure that any agents, including subcontractors, to whom it provides 
Protected Information, agree in writing to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Associate with 
respect to such Protected Information and implement the safeguards required by paragraph c, above, with 
respect to ePHI.  Associate agrees to implement and maintain sanctions against agents and subcontractors 
who violate such restrictions and will mitigate the effects of any such violation. 

g. AAccess to Protected Information.  Associate agrees to make Protected Information maintained by Associate 
or its agents or subcontractors in Designated Record Sets available to County for inspection and copying 
within ten (10) days of request by County to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule set 
forth at 45 C.F.R. Section 164.524.  If Associate maintains an Electronic Health Records, Associate shall 
provide such information in electronic format to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the HITECH 
Act, including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(e). 

h. AAmendment of Protected Information.  Within ten (10) days of receipt of a request from County for an 
amendment of Protected Information or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, 
Associate or its agents or subcontractors will make such Protected Information available to County for 
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable County to fulfill its obligations under the 
Privacy Rule set forth at 45 C.F.R. Section 164.526.  If any individual requests an amendment of Protected 
Information directly from Associate or its agents or subcontractors, Associate must notify County within five 
(5) calendar days of the request, without unreasonable delay.  County, and not Associate, will determine if 
and when to deny a request for an amendment of Protected Information maintained by Associate. 

i. AAvailability and Accounting of Information.   Within ten (10) calendar days of notice by County of a request 
for an accounting of disclosure of Protected Information, Associate and its agents or subcontractors shall 
make available to County the information required to provide an accounting of disclosures to enable County 
to fulfill its obligations under the Privacy Rule set forth at 45 C.F.R. Section 164.528, and the HITECH Act, 
including, but not limited to, 42 U.S.C. Section 17935(c), as determined by County.  As set forth in, and as 
limited by, 45 C. F. R. Section 164.528, Associate need not provide an accounting to County of disclosures: 
(i) to carry out treatment, payment or health care operations, as set forth in 45 C.F.R. Section 164.502; (ii) to 
individuals of PHI about them as set forth in 45 C. F. R. 164.502; (iii) to persons involved in the individual’s 
care or other notification purposes as set forth in 45 C. F. R. Section 164.510; (iv) for national security or 
intelligence purposes as set forth in 45 C.F.R. Section 164.512(k)(2); or (v) to correctional institutions or law 
enforcement officials as set forth in 45 C.F.R. Section 164.512(k)(5).  Associate agrees to implement a 
process that allows for an accounting to be collected and maintained by Associate and its agents or 
subcontractors for at least six (6) years prior to the request, but not before the compliance date of the Privacy 
Rule.  However, accounting of disclosures from an Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or 
health care operations purposes are required to be collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to 
the request, and only to the extent that Associate maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this 
requirement.  At a minimum, such information must include: (i) the date of disclosure; (ii) the name of the 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

entity or person who received Protected Information and , if known, the address of the entity or person; (iii) 
a brief description of Protected Information disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement of the purpose of the 
disclosure that reasonably informs the individual of the basis for the disclosure, or a copy of the individual’s 
authorization, or a copy of the written request for disclosure.  In the event that the request for an accounting 
is delivered directly to Associate or its agents or subcontractors, Associate will send the request, in writing, to 
County within five (5) calendar days of receipt.  It will then be County’s responsibility to prepare and deliver 
or otherwise respond to the accounting request.  Associate will not disclose any Protected Information except 
as set forth in Section 2.b. of this Attachment. 

j. GGovernmental Access to Records.  Associate agrees to make its internal practices, books, and records relating 
to the use and disclosure of Protected Information available to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services (the “Secretary”) for purposes of determining Associate’s compliance with the 
HIPAA Privacy Rule.  Associate agrees to provide County with copies of any Protected Information that 
Associate provides to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services at the same time 
Associate provides such Protected Information to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services.  

k. MMinimum Necessary.  Associate and its agents and subcontractors will only request, use, and disclose the 
minimum amount of Protected Information necessary to accomplish the purpose of the request, use, or 
disclosure.  Associate understands and agrees that the definition of “minimum necessary” is in flux and shall 
keep itself informed of guidance issued by the Secretary with respect to what constitutes “minimum 
necessary.” 

l. DData Ownership.  Associate acknowledges that Associate has no ownership rights with respect to Protected 
Information. 

m. RRetention of Protected Information.  Except as provided in Section 3.c. of this Attachment, Associate and its 
subcontractors and agents must retain all Protected Information throughout the term of the Agreement and 
must continue to maintain the information required by Section 2.h. of this Attachment for a period of six (6) 
years after termination or expiration of the Agreement.  However, accounting of disclosures from an 
Electronic Health Record for treatment, payment or health care operations purposes are required to be 
collected and maintained for only three (3) years prior to the request, and only to the extent that Associate 
maintains an electronic health record and is subject to this requirement.   

n. AAssociate’s Insurance.  In addition to any other insurance requirements specified in the Agreement, 
Associate will, at its sole cost and expense, insure its activities in connection with this Attachment.   Associate 
will obtain, keep in force and maintain insurance or equivalent program(s) of self-insurance with appropriate 
limits, as determined by County, at its sole discretion, that will cover losses that may arise from any breach of 
this Attachment, breach of security, or any unauthorized use or disclosure of Protected Information.  It is 
expressly understood and agreed that the insurance required herein does not in any way limit the liability of 
Associate with respect to its activities in connection with this Attachment.  

o. NNotification of Breach.  During the term of the Agreement, Associate shall notify County within twenty-four 
(24) hours of any suspected or actual breach of security, intrusion, or unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI 
of which Associate becomes aware and/or any actual or suspected use or disclosure of data in violation of any 
applicable federal or state laws or regulations.  Associate shall take (i) prompt corrective action to cure any 
such deficiencies; and (ii) any action pertaining to such unauthorized disclosure required by applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations.  In the event the breach was caused, directly or indirectly, by negligent 
misconduct on the part of Associate, Associate’s agents or subcontractors, Associate will be solely responsible 
for all damages resulting from the breach.   

p. BBreach Pattern or Practice by County.  Pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 17934(b), if the Associate knows of a 
pattern of activity or practice of County that constitutes a material breach of violation of the County’s 
obligations under the Agreement or Attachment, the Associate must take reasonable steps to cure the breach 
or end the violation.  If the steps are unsuccessful, the Associate must terminate the Agreement, if feasible, or 
if termination is not feasible, report the problem to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

Human Services.  Associate shall provide written notice to County of any pattern of activity or practice of 
County that Associate believes constitutes a material breach or violation of the County’s obligations under the 
Agreement or Attachment within five (5) days of discovery and shall meet with County to discuss and attempt 
to resolve the problem as one of the reasonable steps to cure the breach or end the violation. 

q. CCertification and Enforcement.  At any time during the term of the Agreement, and without advance notice, 
County and its authorized agents or contractors may examine Associate’s facilities, systems, procedures and 
records as may be necessary to determine the extent to which Associate’s security safeguards comply with 
HIPAA, HITECH Act, other HIPAA Regulations, and this Attachment. 

3. TTermination. 
a. MMaterial Breach.  A breach by Associate of any material provision of this Attachment, as determined by 

County, constitutes grounds for termination of the Agreement pursuant to General Conditions Paragraph 5. 
(Termination and Cancellation), Subsection b. (Failure to Perform), of the Agreement. 

 b. RReasonable Steps to Cure Breach.  If County knows of an activity or practice of Associate that constitutes a 
material breach or violation of Associate’s obligations under the provisions of this Attachment, County may, 
in its sole discretion, terminate the Agreement pursuant to Section 3.a., above, or provide Associate an 
opportunity to cure such breach or end such violation.  If Associate’s efforts to cure such breach or end such 
violation are unsuccessful, County will either (i) terminate the Agreement, if feasible or (ii) if termination of 
the Agreement is not feasible, County will report Associate’s breach or violation to the Secretary of the U.S. 
Department of Health and Human Services. 

c. EEffect of Termination.  Upon termination of the Agreement for any reason, Associate must return or 
destroy, at the exclusive option of County, all Protected Information that Associate, its agents and 
subcontractors, still maintain in any form, and Associate may not retain any copies of such Protected 
Information.  If return or destruction is not feasible, Associate may retain the Protected Information and 
must continue to extend the protections of Sections 2.a., 2.b., 2.c., and 2.d. of this Attachment to such 
information and limit further use of such Protected Information to those purposes that make the return or 
destruction of such Protected Information infeasible.  If Associate destroys the Protected Information, 
Associate must verify in writing to County that such Protected Information has been destroyed.   

4. DDisclaimer.  County makes no warranty or representation that compliance by Associate with this Attachment, 
HIPAA, HITECH Act, or the HIPAA Regulations, will be adequate or satisfactory for Associate’s own 
purposes.  Associate is solely responsible for all decisions made by Associate regarding the safeguarding of PHI. 

5. CChanges to HIPAA and its regulations. 
a. CCompliance with Law.  The parties acknowledge that state and federal laws relating to electronic data security 

and privacy are evolving and that changes to this Attachment may be required to ensure compliance with 
such developments.  The parties agree to take such action(s) as may be necessary to implement the standards 
and requirements of HIPAA, HITECH Act, the HIPAA Regulations, and other applicable state and federal 
laws relating to the security and/or confidentiality of PHI. 

b. NNegotiations.  In the event that a state or federal law, statute, or regulation materially affects the Agreement or 
this Attachment, the parties agree to negotiate immediately and in good faith any necessary or appropriate 
revisions to the Agreement or this Attachment.  If the parties are unable to reach an agreement concerning 
such revisions within the earlier of thirty (30) calendar days after the date of notice seeking negotiations or the 
effective date of a change in law or regulations, or if the change is effective immediately, then County may, in 
its sole discretion, immediately terminate the Agreement upon written notice to Associate. 



 Initials:___________      _____________ 
 Contractor           County Dept. 
 

6. MMiscellaneous Provisions. 
a. AAssistance in Litigation or Administrative Proceedings.  Associate will make itself, and any subcontractors, 

employees or agent assisting Associate in the performance of its obligations under the Agreement, available 
to County, at no cost to County, to testify as witnesses or otherwise, in the event of litigation or administrative 
proceedings against County, its officers or employees, based upon a claimed violation of HIPAA, HITECH 
Act, the HIPAA Regulations, or other laws relating to security and privacy and arising out of the Agreement 
or this Attachment. 

b. NNo Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing express or implied in this Attachment is intended to confer, nor shall 
anything herein confer, upon any person other than County, Associate, and their respective successors or 
assigns, any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities whatsoever. 

c. IInterpretation.  The provisions of this Attachment prevail over any provisions in the Agreement that may 
conflict, or appear to be inconsistent with, any provision of this Attachment.  This Attachment and the 
Agreement will be interpreted as broadly as necessary to implement and comply with HIPAA and the 
Privacy Rule.  The parties agree that any ambiguity in this Attachment will be resolved in favor of a meaning 
that complies, and is consistent, with HIPAA and the Privacy Rule. 

d. NNotice to Secretary.  Associate understands and agrees that if County knows of a pattern of activity or 
practice of Associate that constitutes a material breach or violation of Associate’s obligations under this 
Attachment and the breach or violation continues and termination of the Agreement is not feasible, County 
will report the problem to the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, as required 
by HIPAA, HITECH Act, and the HIPAA regulations. 

e. SSurvival.  The obligations of Associate pursuant to Sections 2.l. and 3.c. of this Attachment survive the 
termination or expiration of the Agreement. 

Form approved by County Counsel [12/2009] 
 



Page 108 

  

Appendix 14 

 
 

BASIS FOR REVENUE 

PROJECTIONS 

TEMPLATE  



# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
# Transports

Total 
Charges

Cash 
Collections

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-Em

ergency
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency
BLS N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
# Transports

Total 
Charges

Cash 
Collections

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-Em

ergency
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency
BLS N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
# Transports

Total 
Charges

Cash 
Collections

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-Em

ergency
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency
BLS N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L

Insurance (Year O
ne)

Insurance (Year Tw
o)

Insurance (Year Three)

M
edicare (Year O

ne)
M

edicare (Year Tw
o)

M
edicare (Year Three)

M
edi-Cal (Year O

ne)
M

edi-Cal (Year Tw
o)

M
edi-Cal (Year Three)



# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
# Transports

Total 
Charges

Cash 
Collections

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-Em

ergency
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency
BLS N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
# Transports

Total 
Charges

Cash 
Collections

# Transports
Total 

Charges
Cash 

Collections
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-Em

ergency
A

LS 1-Em
ergency

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

A
LS 2

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

BLS-Em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

A
LS 1-N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency
BLS N

on-em
ergency

BLS N
on-em

ergency

TO
TA

L
TO

TA
L

TO
TA

L

Totals (Year O
ne)

Totals (Year Tw
o)

Totals (Year Three)

Self Pay (Year O
ne)

Self Pay (Year Tw
o)

Self Pay (Year Three)



Page 109 

  

Appendix 15 

REVENUE FLOW 

PROJECTION TEMPLATE  



To
ta

l 
Ch

ar
ge

s
N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 

Ex
pe

ct
ed

M
on

th
 1

M
on

th
 2

M
on

th
 3

M
on

th
 4

M
on

th
 5

M
on

th
 6

M
on

th
 7

M
on

th
 8

M
on

th
 9

M
on

th
 1

0
M

on
th

 1
1

M
on

th
 1

2

M
on

th
 1

M
on

th
 2

M
on

th
 3

M
on

th
 4

M
on

th
 5

M
on

th
 6

M
on

th
 7

M
on

th
 8

M
on

th
 9

M
on

th
 1

0

M
on

th
 1

1

M
on

th
 1

2

TO
TA

L

Po
rt

io
n 

of
 M

on
th

ly
 N

et
 R

ev
en

ue
 E

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 M

on
th

 R
ec

ei
ve

d

Total and Net Revenue Projected by Month 



Page 110 

  

Appendix 16 

EXPENSE BUDGET 

TEMPLATES  



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 1 (Plan A)



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 2 (Plan A)



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 3 (Plan A)



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 1 (Plan B)



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 2 (Plan B)



ANNUAL EXPENSES
Personnel

Wages
Paramedics -$                              
EMTs -$                              
QI/Training -$                              
Management/Supervisors -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

Overtime Expense -$                              
Benefits -$                              
Other Personnel -$                              

TOTAL PERSONNEL -$                              

General and Administration
Professional Services -$                              
Medical Director Fees -$                              
Consulting Fees -$                              
Billing & Collection Fees/Expenses -$                              
Contract Administration Fees
Office Supplies & Equipment -$                              
Leased equipment -$                              
Occupancy leases, rents -$                              
Utilities and Telephone -$                              
Insurance -$                              
Overhead Expenses -$                              
Taxes and Licenses -$                              
Travel Expenses -$                              
Office Capital Equp Depreciation -$                              
Misc Expenses -$                              

Operations
Dispatch and communication expense -$                              
Information technology expenses -$                              
Training/ QI expenses -$                              
Community Education Expenses -$                              
Vehicles

Fuel, oil, tires, disposable supplies -$                              
Repair and maintenance -$                              
Vehicle lease expense -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Medical 
Medical Equipment -$                              
Pharmaceuticals, oxygen -$                              
Medical Supplies -$                              
Depreciation -$                              

Other Expenses -$                              
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL -$                              

TOTAL EXPENSES -$                              

YEAR 3 (Plan B)



Page 111 

  

Appendix 17 

ONE TIME EXPENSE AND
CAPITAL BUDGET 

TEMPLATE  



A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

Pl
an

 A
Pl

an
 B

N
um

be
r 

of
 S

ta
ff

ed
 A

m
bu

la
nc

e 
at

 P
ea

k 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r 
of

 A
m

bu
la

nc
e 

in
 F

le
et

N
um

be
r 

of
 L

ea
se

d 
A

m
bu

la
nc

es
N

um
be

r 
of

 P
ur

ch
as

ed
 A

m
bu

la
nc

es
N

um
be

r 
of

 E
xi

st
in

g 
A

m
bu

la
nc

es
 fo

r 
CC

C

Q
ty

.
Co

st
/V

al
ue

Q
ty

.
Co

st
/V

al
ue

N
um

be
r 

of
 N

ew
 A

m
bu

la
nc

es
M

ed
ic

al
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
Su

pp
ly

 In
ve

nt
or

y
Le

as
eh

ol
d 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

IT
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

m
ob

ile
)

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

O
ff

ic
e 

Fu
rn

is
hi

ng
/E

qu
ip

m
en

t
Sh

op
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
Sh

op
 S

up
pl

y/
Pa

rt
s 

In
ve

nt
or

y
W

ag
es

 &
 B

en
ef

its
Em

pl
oy

m
en

t C
os

ts
Le

as
es

/R
en

ts
Le

ga
l/

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 S
er

vi
ce

s

O
th

er
 >

 $
10

,0
00

 

TO
TA

L 
O

N
E 

TI
M

E 
CO

ST
S

Pl
an

 A
Pl

an
 B

O
ne

-T
im

e 
Co

st
s



Page 112 

  

 

PRO FORMA BUDGET 

SUMMARY TEMPLATE  



St
ar

t-
U

p 
Co

st
s

Ye
ar

 1
Ye

ar
 2

Ye
ar

 3
St

ar
t-

U
p 

Co
st

s
Ye

ar
 1

Ye
ar

 2
Ye

ar
 3

Re
ve

nu
e

Ex
pe

ns
es

G
ai

n 
(L

os
s)

Pl
an

 A
Pl

an
 B



Page 113 

  

Appendix 19 

ALS INTERFACILITY 

PRICE SHEET  



APPENDIX 19 
ALS Interfacility Charges 

 

Page | 1 

1. Patient Charges shall be submitted on this exhibit in Table A as is.  Proposed patient 
charges should take into consideration the cost of providing care to indigent patients.  
No alterations or changes of any kind are permitted.   

2. The County has adopted a “bundled” rate for ambulance services with a single base 
rate, whereby most fees for service are included in the base rate, with the exception of 
oxygen and mileage. 

3. The patient charges quoted in Table A shall include all taxes and all fees charged to 
patients or third party payers. Proposals should reflect a bundled rate structure and no 
other charges for supplies, equipment, or procedures, or other services will be accepted.  
Contractor shall comply with fee schedule and rates proposed in response to this RFP 
and approved by the County.   

 

Table A - Proposed Charges 

Complete the proposed charge for each item listed below.   

No other patient charges will be considered. 

Ambulance ALS Interfacility Base Rate  

Mileage/mile 

Oxygen 

Treat, Non-transport rate* 

 

 

$______.___ 

$______.___ 

$___175.00_ 

$______.___ 

 
Proposer agrees that the prices quoted are the maximum that will be charged during the 

term of any contract awarded, with the exception of increases or fee adjustments described 
in the RFP. 

FIRM: ___________________________________________________________________ 
SIGNATURE:___________________________________________________________________ 
DATE: ___/____/_____ 
PRINTED NAME: 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
TITLE: ________________________________________________________________________ 



Page 114 



 

Page i 

 
 

 
 

Request for Proposals 

 
Exclusive Operator for Emergency Ambulance Service 

Contra Costa County, California  
 

 
 
 

Release Date:  
Proposal Due Date:  

Time: 4:00 PST 
 

 

 
 

Return Location: 

 
Contra Costa County EMS Agency 

1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126 

Martinez, CA 94553 

Attention: Patricia Frost 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page i 

 

Table of Contents 
 

SECTION I. EMS SYSTEM SUMMARY ________________________________________________________ 1 

A.  OVERVIEW _______________________________________________________________________________ 1 
B. EXCLUSIVE OPERATING AREAS (EOAS) _____________________________________________________________ 2 
C.  PROPOSALS MUST INCLUDE RESPONSE TO TWO SERVICE PLANS _____________________________________________ 2 
D. BACKGROUND ____________________________________________________________________________ 3 
E.  OVERVIEW OF EMS SYSTEM ____________________________________________________________________ 4 
F.  LOCAL EMS AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES ____________________________________________________________ 7 
G. CONTRA COSTA EMS SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS ________________________________________________________ 7 

1.  Call Transfer and Dispatch _______________________________________________________________________________ 7 
2.  Call  Density  Response  Zones,  Response  Time  Requirements  and  Nonperformance  Penalties 

Established ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 
3.  Surplus or Reserve Fleet Requirements __________________________________________________________________ 8 
4.  Provider Fatigue __________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 
5.  No Subsidy System ________________________________________________________________________________________ 8 

H. RELEVANT INFORMATION REGARDING SERVICE AREAS ____________________________________________________ 9 

1.  Historical Service Volume ________________________________________________________________________________ 9 
2.  Current Ambulance Service Rates________________________________________________________________________ 9 
3.  ALS Ground Ambulance Transports Not Originating from 911 _______________________________________ 9 
4.  Payer Mix__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

SECTION II. PROCUREMENT INFORMATION _________________________________________________ 11 

A.  PERFORMANCE-BASED CONTRACT _______________________________________________________________ 11 
B. NOTICE TO PROPOSERS ______________________________________________________________________ 11 
C. USE OF OWN EXPERTISE AND JUDGMENT ___________________________________________________________ 12 
D. PROCUREMENT TIME LINE ____________________________________________________________________ 12 
E.  PROCUREMENT PROCESS ____________________________________________________________________ 12 

1.  Preproposal Process ____________________________________________________________________________________ 12 
2.  Proposers’ Conference ___________________________________________________________________________________ 12 
3.  Proposal Submission _____________________________________________________________________________________ 13 
4.  Public Proposal Opening ________________________________________________________________________________ 13 
5.  Additional Proposer Responsibilities ________________________________________________________________ 1413 
6.  Notice of Intent to Award _______________________________________________________________________________ 14 

F.  PROPOSAL INSTRUCTIONS ____________________________________________________________________ 14 

1.  Proposal Format _________________________________________________________________________________________ 14 
2.  Required Proposal Format ___________________________________________________________________________ 1514 

G. PROPOSAL EVALUATION PROCESS _______________________________________________________________ 15 

1.  Proposal Review Panel __________________________________________________________________________________ 15 
2.  Proposal Review Process ________________________________________________________________________________ 16 
3.  Method for Competitive Scoring of Price Proposals ____________________________________________________ 18 
4.  Independent Financial Analysis _________________________________________________________________________ 18 
5.  Postsubmission Presentation ___________________________________________________________________________ 19 
6.  Investigation _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 19 
7.  Notification ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 19 
8.  Debriefing ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 19 
9.  Protest ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 20 
10.  Withdrawal of Proposals _____________________________________________________________________________ 2221 
11.  Canceling the Procurement Process after Opening ____________________________________________________ 22 
12.  Award ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 22 



Table of Contents 

Page ii 

13.  Scoring Criteria __________________________________________________________________________________________ 22 
14.  RFP Governed by Its Terms ______________________________________________________________________________ 23 

H. SCORING MATRIX _________________________________________________________________________ 23 

SECTION III. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS _________________________________________________ 2524 

A.  ORGANIZATIONAL DISCLOSURES _____________________________________________________________ 2524 

1.  Organizational ownership and legal structure ______________________________________________________ 2524 
2.  Continuity of business ________________________________________________________________________________ 2524 
3.  Licenses and permits _________________________________________________________________________________ 2524 
4.  Government investigations ___________________________________________________________________________ 2524 
5.  Litigation ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 2524 

B. EXPERIENCE AS SOLE PROVIDER _____________________________________________________________ 2625 

1.  Demonstrate Capability in Lieu of Experience ______________________________________________________ 2625 
2.  Comparable experience  ______________________________________________________________________________ 2625 
3.  Government contracts ________________________________________________________________________________ 2625 
4.  Contract Compliance _________________________________________________________________________________ 2625 

C. DEMONSTRATED RESPONSE TIME PERFORMANCE ___________________________________________________ 2726 
D. DEMONSTRATED HIGH LEVEL CLINICAL CARE _____________________________________________________ 2726 

SECTION IV. CORE REQUIREMENTS _____________________________________________________ 2827 

A.  TWO SERVICE PLANS ARE TO BE ADDRESSED ______________________________________________________ 2827 
B. CONTRACTOR’S FUNCTIONAL RESPONSIBILITIES ____________________________________________________ 2827 

1.  Basic Services _________________________________________________________________________________________ 2827 
2.  Services Description __________________________________________________________________________________ 2928 

C. CLINICAL ___________________________________________________________________________ 2928 

1.  Clinical Overview _____________________________________________________________________________________ 2928 
2.  EMS System Medical Oversight_______________________________________________________________________ 3029 
3.  Minimum Clinical Levels and Staffing Requirements _______________________________________________ 3130 

D. OPERATIONS _________________________________________________________________________ 3433 

1.  Operations Overview _________________________________________________________________________________ 3433 
2.  Transport Requirement and Limitations ____________________________________________________________ 3634 
3.  Response Time Performance Requirements _________________________________________________________ 3635 
4.  Modifications During the Term of Agreement _______________________________________________________ 3937 
5.  Response Time Measurement Methodology _________________________________________________________ 3938 
6.  Response Time Exceptions and Exception Requests _________________________________________________ 4140 
7.  Responsetime Performance Reporting Procedures and Penalty Provisions  ______________________ 4342 
8.  Fleet Requirement ____________________________________________________________________________________ 4746 
9.  Coverage and Dedicated Ambulances, Use of Stations/Posts _______________________________________ 4746 

E.  PERSONNEL __________________________________________________________________________ 4746 

1.  Treatment of Incumbent Work Force ________________________________________________________________ 4746 
2.  Character, Competence and Professionalism of Personnel _________________________________________ 4847 
3.  Internal Health and Safety Programs  _______________________________________________________________ 4847 
4.  Evolving OSHA & Other Regulatory Requirements __________________________________________________ 4948 
5.  Discrimination Not Allowed __________________________________________________________________________ 4948 

F.  MANAGEMENT ________________________________________________________________________ 4948 

1.  Data and Reporting Requirements  __________________________________________________________________ 4948 
G. EMS SYSTEM AND COMMUNITY _____________________________________________________________ 5352 

1.  Participation in EMS System Development __________________________________________________________ 5352 
2.  Accreditation  _________________________________________________________________________________________ 5352 
3.  Multicasualty/Disaster Response ___________________________________________________________________ 5352 
4.  Mutualaid and Standby Services ___________________________________________________________________ 5554 
5.  Permitted Subcontracting ____________________________________________________________________________ 5554 
6.  Communities May Contract Directly for Level of Effort _____________________________________________ 5554 



Table of Contents 

Page iii 

7.  Supply Exchange and Restock ________________________________________________________________________ 5655 
8.  Handling Service Inquiries and Complaints _________________________________________________________ 5655 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS _______________________________________________________________ 5655 

1.  Contractor Payments for Procurement Costs, County Compliance Monitoring, Contract Management, 
and Regulatory Activities (Plan B only) _____________________________________________________________ 5655 

2.  No System Subsidy ____________________________________________________________________________________ 5655 
3.  Contractor Revenue Recovery ________________________________________________________________________ 5756 
4.  Federal Healthcare Program Compliance Provisions _______________________________________________ 5756 
5.  State Compliance Provisions _________________________________________________________________________ 5857 
6.  Billing/Collection Services ___________________________________________________________________________ 5857 
7.  Market Rights _________________________________________________________________________________________ 5958 
8.  Accounting Procedures _______________________________________________________________________________ 6059 
9.  County Permit _________________________________________________________________________________________ 6059 
10.  Insurance Provisions  _________________________________________________________________________________ 6160 
11.  Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification / Taxes / Contributions ______________________________ 6160 
12.  Performance Security Bond __________________________________________________________________________ 6160 
13.  Term of Agreement ___________________________________________________________________________________ 6261 
14.  Earned Extension to Agreement _____________________________________________________________________ 6261 
15.  Continuous Service Delivery __________________________________________________________________________ 6261 
16.  Annual Performance Evaluation _____________________________________________________________________ 6261 
17.  Default and Provisions for Termination of the Agreement _________________________________________ 6362 
18.  Termination ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 6463 
19.  Emergency Takeover _________________________________________________________________________________ 6463 
20.  Transition Planning __________________________________________________________________________________ 6665 
21.  LEMSA's Remedies ____________________________________________________________________________________ 6665 
22.  Provisions for Curing Material Breach and Emergency Take Over _________________________________ 6665 
23.  "Lameduck" Provisions ______________________________________________________________________________ 6766 
24.  General Provisions ____________________________________________________________________________________ 6867 

SECTION V. COMPETITIVE CRITERIA _____________________________________________________ 7170 

A.  CLINICAL ___________________________________________________________________________ 7170 

1.  Competitive Criterion: Quality Improvement________________________________________________________ 7170 
2.  Competitive Criterion: Clinical and Operational Benchmarking ___________________________________ 7473 
3.  Competitive Criterion: Dedicated Clinical Oversight Personnel ____________________________________ 7675 
4.  Competitive Criterion: Medical Direction ____________________________________________________________ 7776 
5.  Competitive Criteria: Focus on Patients and Other Customers _____________________________________ 7877 
6.  Competitive Criterion: Continuing Education Program Requirements ____________________________ 7978 

B. OPERATIONS _________________________________________________________________________ 7978 

1.  Competitive Criterion: Dispatch and Communications _____________________________________________ 7978 
2.  Competitive Criterion: Vehicles ______________________________________________________________________ 8180 
3.  Competitive Criterion: Equipment ___________________________________________________________________ 8281 
4.  Competitive Criterion: Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance  ______________________________________ 8382 
5.  Competitive Criterion: Deployment Planning _______________________________________________________ 8483 

C.  PERSONNEL __________________________________________________________________________ 8584 

1.  Competitive Criterion: Field Supervision ____________________________________________________________ 8584 
2.  Competitive Criterion: Work Schedules ______________________________________________________________ 8584 
3.  Competitive Criterion: Internal Risk Management/Loss Control Program ________________________ 8685 
4.  Competitive Criterion: Workforce Engagement _____________________________________________________ 8786 

D. MANAGEMENT ________________________________________________________________________ 8887 

1.  Competitive Criterion:  Key Personnel _______________________________________________________________ 8887 
E.  EMS SYSTEM AND COMMUNITY _____________________________________________________________ 8988 

1.  Competitive Criterion:  Supporting Improvement in the First Response System  __________________ 8988 
2.  Competitive Criterion:  Health Status Improvement and Community Education __________________ 9089 

F.  INTEGRATION WITH HEALTHCARE PROVIDERS ______________________________________________________ 9291 



Table of Contents 

Page iv 

1.  Competitive Criterion:  Collaboration with Healthcare Providers  _________________________________ 9291 

SECTION VI. FINANCIAL CRITERIA ______________________________________________________ 9492 

A.  FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND STABILITY __________________________________________________________ 9492 
B.  FINANCIAL SITUATION DOCUMENTS ___________________________________________________________ 9492 

1.  Financial Statements _________________________________________________________________________________ 9492 
2.  Audited Statements ___________________________________________________________________________________ 9492 
3.  Financial Commitments ______________________________________________________________________________ 9492 
4.  Working Capital ______________________________________________________________________________________ 9492 
5.  Performance Security  ________________________________________________________________________________ 9593 
6.  Financial Interests ____________________________________________________________________________________ 9593 

C.  FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS __________________________________________________________________ 9593 

1.  Revenue projections __________________________________________________________________________________ 9593 
2.  Revenue Flow Projections ____________________________________________________________________________ 9593 
3.  Expense Projections  __________________________________________________________________________________ 9593 
4.  OneTime Start Up and Capital Items ________________________________________________________________ 9694 
5.  Pro Forma Summary _________________________________________________________________________________ 9694 

D. PRICING ____________________________________________________________________________ 9694 

 
TABLE 1. CONTRA COSTA COUNTY POPULATION CENTERS ______________________________________________________________ 4 
TABLE 2. ESTIMATED PAYER MIX _____________________________________________________________________________________ 9 

TABLE 3. SCORING ALLOCATION ___________________________________________________________________________________ 2322 
TABLE 4. PROPOSAL REVIEW SCORING ALLOCATIONS _________________________________________________________________ 23 
TABLE 5. RESPONSE TIME COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAN A ALL CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

ZONES ______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 3837 

TABLE 6. RESPONSE TIME COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PLAN B  ______________________________________________ 3837 
TABLE 7. COUNTY RESPONSE TIME PENALTIES ____________________________________________________________________ 4443 
TABLE 8. OUTLIER RESPONSE TIME PENALTIES ____________________________________________________________________ 4544 
TABLE 9. BREACH EVENTS AND PENALTIES ________________________________________________________________________ 4645 

 

APPENDICES: 
1. Mandatory Table of Contents 
2. Map of Exclusive Operating Area 
3. Emergency Response Zone Maps 
4. County Ambulance Ordinance 
5. Current Ambulance Zones Map 

6. Call Density Response Areas in EOA 
7. Current Ambulance Rates 
8. Procurement Timeline 
9. Required Forms 

10. Stipulated Ambulance Charges 

11. Subsidy Request Form 
12. Insurance Requirements 
13. Sample Standard County Contract 
14. Basis for Revenue Projections Template 
15. Revenue Flow Projection Template 

16. Expense Budget Templates 
17. One‐Time  Expense  and  Capital  Budget 

Template 
18. Pro Forma Budget Summary Template 

19. ALS Interfacility Price Sheet 
 
 



 

Page 1 

 SECTION I. EMS SYSTEM SUMMARY 

A. Overview 

Request for Proposals:   The County of Contra Costa (County) is a political subdivision of the State of 
California. State law confers on the county’s Local Emergency Medical Services Agency (LEMSA) the 
authority  to  designate  exclusive  operating  areas  (EOA)  and  to  select  its  emergency  ambulance 
service  providers  through  a  competitive  process.  (California  Health  and  Safety  Code,  Section 

1797.224) Contra Costa County is conducting this procurement and is seeking a qualified ambulance 
service provider to deliver these and certain related services in accordance with the expectations set 
forth in this Request for Proposals (RFP). 
 

Each  entity  responding  to  this  RFP  (Proposer)  shall  submit  a written  response  (Proposal)  setting 
forth the Proposer’s qualifications and plans for meeting or exceeding the performance expectations 
set  forth  in  this RFP. Proposals must be organized to address each of the items and in the exact order 
shown in the “Mandatory Table of Contents for Proposals” in Appendix 1. 

 
The outcome of this RFP will be the selection of a Proposer (Contractor) with whom the County will 
negotiate  an  exclusive,  performance‐based  agreement  (Agreement)  for  the  provision  of  1)  an 
emergency medical  transportation  system  at  a  “paramedic  Advanced  Life  Support”  (ALS)  level  of 
service; and 2) non‐emergency ALS ambulance  transports originating  in Contra Costa County. This 

includes  the  exclusive  right  and  obligation  to  (i)  respond  to  9‐1‐1  calls  and  other  emergency  or 
urgent  medical  call  requests  made  through  the  County  PSAPs  public  safety  agencies,  and  other 
sources  (Emergency  Ambulance  Requests),  (ii)  provide  care  and/or  transport  patients  within  the 
emergency medical  services  (EMS)  system,  and  (iii)  provide  care  and/or  transport  other  patients 

requiring ALS ambulance service, when the transports originate in the EOA. 
 
The performance expectations set  forth in this RFP and the performance commitments set  forth  in 
the selected Proposal will be incorporated in the Agreement as mandatory performance standards. 

 
Policy Goals of the Procurement:   The County’s overarching goals  in the conduct of this procurement 
process are to: (1) promote public health and safety by preventing the loss of life; (2) minimize the 
physical pain of patients; (3) reduce the costs associated with catastrophic injury or illness; and (4) 
ensure good value in return for the investments of the customer and the community. 
 

To  achieve  these  overarching  goals,  the  County  is working  to  promote  a  quality  EMS  system  that 
includes the following essential elements: 

 Prevention and early recognition 
 Bystander action/system access 

 Medical Dispatch 
 Telephone protocols and pre‐arrival instructions 
 First responder and ambulance dispatch 
 First responder services 

 Transport ambulance services 



 

Page 2 

 Exchange of health information among providers 
 Integration of healthcare providers to improve survival and recovery 
 Direct (on‐line) medical control 

 Receiving facility interface 
 Indirect (off‐line) medical control 
 Independent monitoring 

 

The  County  is  taking  a  comprehensive  systems  approach  to  the  overall  EMS  system  of  which 
ambulance services are one important part. The RFP accordingly identifies geographic and density‐
based  response  time  zones  and  calls  for  the  Contractor  to  meet  specified  response  times  within 
defined timeframes in each of these zones. 

 
This approach also calls for the County to maintain EMS coordination, oversight, and accountability, 
while allowing the Contractor the flexibility to use its expertise and entrepreneurial talent to manage 
its  day‐to‐day  operations.  This model  is  intended  to  promote  high‐quality  clinical  care,  efficiency, 

economy, reliability, and operational and financial stability. 
 

B. Exclusive Operating Areas (EOAs) 

Proposers  shall  submit  a  Proposal  for  the  designated  Exclusive  Operating  Area  (EOA).  The 
Designated EOA covers most of the territory of Contra Costa County.  Not included in the Designated 
EOA for this procurement are two smaller EOAs covering the territories of the San Ramon Valley and 

the Moraga‐Orinda Fire Protection Districts where paramedic ambulance  services  are provided by 
the respective fire districts. (See Map of EOA in Appendix 2) 
 
Proposers must agree to provide the services referred to above for the EOA without any qualification 

or variation other than as expressly set forth in this RFP. 
 

C. Proposals Must Include Response to Two Service Plans 

The LEMSA has determined  that  the  interests  of  the County  can best  be met  by  including  two  (2) 
service  plans  for  the  provision  of  emergency  medical  services  within  the  EOA.  These  plans  are 
designated Plan A and Plan B. 
 

Plan A includes minor changes in the current system design, performance requirements, and 
measurement zones. Plan B incorporates more changes as proposed in the March 2014 “EMS 
Modernization Project Report” (available at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/system‐
review.php#simpleContained4 ) to respond to operational, financial, and clinical trends and findings. 

 
Each proposer is required to respond to both of the Plans. 



 

Page 3 

D. Background 

The County has historically designated five ambulance zones. Plan A consolidates two of the Zones in 
East County (D & E) while Plan B consolidates two additional Zones (A & B) in West County. The Zone 
maps are included in Appendix 3. 
 

The County has established an ambulance ordinance (83‐28) that establishes broad standards for the 
operations,  equipment,  and  personnel  of  pre‐hospital  emergency  care  services  A  copy  of  the 
ordinance that may be amended is attached hereto in Appendix 4. 
 

Additionally,  requirements  that  are more  specific  can be  found  in  the County’s  policies, which  are 
incorporated  into  the  provider  agreements.  Any  successful  proposer  will  be  required  to  have  a 
provider  agreement  administered  by  the  LEMSA.  The  County  Policies  and  Procedures  can  be 
downloaded at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/policies.php. 

 
The EOA  is a mix of urban,  rural,  and wilderness areas. Table 1  (below)  lists  the county cities and 
communities with their population. 
 

   



 

Page 4 

Table 1. Contra Costa County Population Centers1 

Community 
Population  

2013 estimate U.S. 
Census 

ER Zone (*) Notes Rural 
Response Area 

Requirements Included 
Richmond  107,571  A 
San Pablo  29,685  B 
El Cerrito  24,086  B 
El Sobrante  12,669  B 
Kensington  5,077  B 
Pinole  18,902  B 
Hercules  24,848  B 
Rodeo  8,679  B 
Crockett  3,094  B 
Port Costa  190  Rural B 
Concord  125,880  C 
Martinez  37,165  C 
Pleasant Hill  34,127  C 
Pacheco  3,685  C 
Clayton  11,505  C 
Clyde  678  C 
Walnut Creek  66,900  C 
Lafayette  25,053  C 
Orinda  18,681  MOFD 
Moraga  16,771  MOFD 
Canyon  842  MOFD 
Alamo  14,570  SRFD 
Danville  43,341  SRFD 
Diablo  1,158  SRFD 
San Ramon  72,313  SRFD 
Blackhawk  9,354  SRFD 
Antioch  107,100  D 
Pittsburg  66,695  D 
Bay Point  21,349  D 
Oakley  38,194  E 
Bethel Island  2,137  Rural E 
Knightsen  1,568  Rural E 
Brentwood  55,000  E 
Discovery Bay  13,352  Rural E 
Byron  1,277  Rural E 
Unincorporated  70,509  NA 

Total  1,094,205    

 
In conducting a competitive process for the provision of emergency ambulance services, Contra Costa 
County is meeting the mandates of the California EMS Act and the Health and Safety Code, Division 
2.5, available at www.emsa.ca.gov. 

 

E. Overview of EMS System 

Contra  Costa  County's  LEMSA,  as  designated  by  the  County  Board  of  Supervisors  pursuant  to  the 
California  EMS  Act,  is  the  Contra  Costa  Health  Services  Department.  The  governing  body  of  the 
LEMSA is the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Executive Officer, or Director, is the County Health 
Services Director. Day‐to‐day activities and oversight of  the County's EMS system  is carried out by 
the County EMS Agency, which is a division of Contra Costa Health Services. Key positions within the 

County EMS Agency include the County EMS Director, who oversees County EMS activities, and the 

                                                                  
1 Ibid 



 

Page 5 

County EMS Medical Director, who provides EMS medical oversight pursuant to State law. Both these 
positions report to the Health Services Director, who is the LEMSA director. 
 

A  County  ambulance  ordinance  regulates  both  emergency  and  non‐emergency  ambulance  service. 
Emergency ambulance service is further regulated through exclusive operating agreements in each of 
the  County’s  three  EOAs.  First  responder  services  are  provided  by  six  fire  districts  and  three 
municipal  fire  departments.  Most  first  responder  services  are  provided  at  the  paramedic  level  in 

accordance with County first responder agreements. Eight hospitals within the county are licensed to 
provide Basic Emergency Services and designated as emergency ambulance receiving centers. One of 
these, John Muir Medical Center in Walnut Creek, is a County‐designated Level II Trauma Center. The 
County also has five designated ST‐elevation myocardial infarction (STEMI) receiving centers and six 

stroke  receiving  centers.  Two  air  ambulances  (CalSTAR  and  REACH)  are  based  in  Contra  Costa 
County. 
 
Requests for assistance to medical emergencies typically are made through the 9‐1‐1 phone system. 

These calls are answered at a primary Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) and, when identified as 
involving  a  medical  emergency,  transferred  to  one  of  three  County‐designated  medical 
communications  centers  located  at  San  Ramon  Valley  Fire  (serving  San  Ramon  Valley  Fire), 
Richmond Police (serving Richmond and El Cerrito Fire Departments), and Contra Costa County Fire 

(serving Contra Costa County Fire, East Contra Costa County Fire, Rodeo‐Hercules Fire, Pinole Fire, 
Crockett‐Carquinez Fire, and Moraga‐Orinda Fire). 
 
Personnel at the medical communications centers identify the caller’s needs in accordance with EMS 

priority  dispatch  protocols,  dispatch  and/or  request  appropriate  EMS  resources,  and  provide  pre‐
arrival  instructions  when  appropriate.  For  the  areas  covered  by  this  RFP,  dispatch  information, 
including the ambulance request, is transferred to the ambulance service from Contra Costa County 
Fire dispatch or Richmond Police dispatch via  the Message Transmission Network  (MTN), a direct 

microwave linkage between the medical communications center and ambulance dispatch computer 
systems.  The  ambulance  contractor  is  responsible  for  establishing  and maintaining  the  necessary 
hardware  and  software  at  the  contractor’s dispatch  center  to  integrate with  the County MTN. The 
ambulance contractor  is also responsible  for the actual dispatch of requested ambulance resources 

(specification is available at http://www.cchealth.org/ems/pdf/mtnspec_v1.5.pdf). 
 
The initial response to a potentially life threatening incident includes both a first response unit and a 
paramedic‐staffed  ambulance.  Most  fire  first  response  is  at  the  paramedic  level.  Richmond,  East 
Contra Costa County,  and Crockett‐Carquinez  Fire  provide  first  response  at  the Basic Life  Support 

(BLS) level. 
 
Emergency  ambulance  service  is  currently  provided  by  the  County's  three  emergency  ambulance 
contractors, American Medical Response in the areas covered by this RFP covering about 90 percent 

of the County and by San Ramon Valley Fire and by Moraga‐Orinda Fire in their respective districts. 
 
All  ambulances  responding  on  emergency  calls  are  required  to  have  one  paramedic  and  one 
Emergency Medical Technician (EMT) as minimum staffing. Ambulances may be dispatched Code 3 



 

Page 6 

(lights and siren) or Code 2 (immediate response without lights or siren) depending on the priority 
assigned by the medical communications center. 
 

Currently,  the  Designated  EOA  is  divided  into  five  (5)  Emergency  Response  Zones  (ERZ’s)  for 
calculation of ambulance response times and penalties. The zones, shown in Appendix 5, are: 

 ERZ A—The City of Richmond 
 ERZ B – West County including the Cities of El Cerrito and Pinole Fire Departments, Rodeo‐

Hercules  Fire  Protection  District,  Kensington  Fire  Protection  District,  Crockett‐Carquinez 
Fire  Protection  District,  the  portion  of  the  Contra  Costa  County  Fire  Protection  district 
covering San Palo, El Sobrante, North Richmond, and surrounding unincorporated areas. 

 ERZ  C—Central  County  including  the  area  of  Contra  Costa  County  Fire  Protection District 

covering the Cities of Clayton, Concord, Lafayette, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, and Walnut Creek 
and surrounding unincorporated areas served by Contra Costa County Fire. 

 ERZ  D—East  County  including  Antioch,  Bay  Point  and  Pittsburg  and  surrounding 
unincorporated areas served by Contra Costa County Fire. 

 ERZ E—Far East County including Oakley and Brentwood and unincorporated areas served 
by East Contra Costa County Fire Protection District. 

 
Patient treatment and transport are carried out under State laws and regulations, as well as County 

EMS Agency policies and procedures. These policies may include, in the case of paramedics, making 
contact  with  a  mobile  intensive  care  nurse  (MICN)  or  physician  at  a  designated  base  hospital  to 
obtain  direction  in  management  of  the  patient.  Patients  are  transported  to  appropriate  receiving 
facilities. Hospital destination  is based upon patient preference and County EMS protocols. Critical 

patients are normally  transported to a nearby emergency department or  to a specialty care center 
(trauma,  STEMI,  stroke),  as  appropriate.  Non‐critical  patients  may  be  transported  to  hospitals  of 
choice  within  reasonable  travel  time.  Note  that  County  EMS  protocols  may  require  transport  of 
certain  patients  to  out‐of‐county  specialty  centers  or  hospital  emergency  departments.  Medical 

helicopter service  is available to transport critical patients when ground ambulance transport time 
would be excessive and patients meet helicopter transport criteria. 
 
As a part of the STEMI Receiving Center system, the County,  in 2011, began implementation of 12‐

lead  EKG  transmission  from  the  field  to  receiving  hospital.  The  ambulance  contractor  will  be 
responsible for the continued support of this system. 
 
Further information regarding Contra Costa's EMS system can be found in the Contra Costa County 
Emergency Medical Services Agency's "2013 Annual Program Report" and in the "Emergency Medical 

Services  System  Plan"  approved  by  the  Emergency  Medical  Care  Committee  and  adopted  by  the 
County  Board  of  Supervisors.  Both  of  these  documents  are  available  at  the  Emergency  Medical 
Services Agency and on the County EMS website at http://cchealth.org/ems/documents.php. 
 

   



 

Page 7 

F. Local EMS Agency Responsibilities 

It is the LEMSA’s responsibility to: 
 Select and enter into an Agreement with the Contractor; 
 Provide contract administration and management services for the Agreement; 
 Monitor  the  EMS  system’s  performance  and  compliance  with  the  performance  based 

specifications applicable to the Contractor; 
 Commit to the continued collaboration to provide high quality first response service on life‐

threatening incidents; 
 Provide medical direction for the system; 

 Develop and modify EMS system protocols and procedures; 
 Create and sustain coordinated specialty systems of care e.g. Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, Cardiac 

Arrest, etc.; 
 Contract with base hospitals to provide on‐line medical control; and 

 Secure or provide, in the event of Contractor’s default, an alternative EMS delivery system. 
 

G. Contra Costa EMS System Improvements 

Changes  and  improvements  in  EMS  have  occurred  during  the  last  10  years  and  healthcare  has 
changed  considerably  as  has  EMS.  Numerous  studies  have  been  undertaken  to  ascertain  which 
practices  will  produce  the  best  patient  outcomes  and  what  actions  will  have  minimal  positive 
impacts. Technology has  allowed EMS  to  improve  response  times  and productivity  and  to provide 

data for identifying practices that will deliver positive results for the patients and the system. 
 
In preparation for this RFP, the County conducted a review of current practices in collaboration with 
system  stakeholders.  The  process  identified  improvement  opportunities  in  the  Contra  Costa  EMS 

System.  Although  it  is  not  the  LEMSA’s  intent  or  desire  to  create  the  most  expensive,  high‐
performance EMS system in the country, the LEMSA is committed to ensuring that EMS services are 
delivered at the comparable level of quality and performance enjoyed by users in other good quality 
and reliably performing EMS systems. 

 
The LEMSA is pursuing its overall goal to update the local EMS system through incorporating system 
improvements in this RFP and its resulting Agreement. 
 

Changes  to  the  Contra  Costa  County  EMS  system  are  designed  to  strategically  match  emergency 
ambulance  resource  to  patient  need,  and  improve  care  to  patients  without  undue  financial  or 
operational hardship on the Contractor. 

1. Call Transfer and Dispatch  

The  goal  for  the EMS  system  is  that  all  Emergency Ambulance Requests  for medical  assistance be 
promptly  transferred  (within  60  seconds)  from  the  medical  communications  centers  to  the 
Contractor.  The  goal  is  also  for  all  calls  to  be  prioritized  as  to  acuity  level  according  to  protocols 

approved  by  the  LEMSA. When  appropriate,  all  callers will  receive  emergency medical  pre‐arrival 
instructions according to protocols approved by the LEMSA. 



 

Page 8 

2. Call Density Response Zones, Response Time Requirements and Non-performance 
Penalties Established 

Call Density Response Zones are defined within the EOA. The requirements are based on an analysis 
of  the  historical  volume  and  density  of  calls,  as  well  as  population  density  and  city  boundaries. 
Performance  requirements  are  based  on  call  location  and  call  acuity  (Priority  1,  2  or  3)  as 

determined  through  emergency  medical  dispatch  protocols.  The  details  of  the  response  time 
requirements are provided in detail in Section IV.C.3. 
 
The  Contractor’s  response  time  clock  begins  when  the  call  is  time  stamped  as  received  by  the 

Contractor’s dispatch center. 
 
Response time compliance is  to be maintained on 90% of all calls. Failure to perform will result  in 
financial penalties and may cause the replacement of the Contractor as described in Section IV.C.7. 

 
Appendix 6 includes maps indicating the Call Density Response Zones within the EOA. 

3. Surplus or Reserve Fleet Requirements   

Contractor is to maintain the number of ALS equipped and fully operating ambulances that represent 

125% of the peak staffing level. For example,  if  the Contractor’s peak number of ambulances  is 30, 
then the Contractor is to maintain a fleet of at least 38 ambulances (30 x 125% = 37.5 rounded up to 
38). If 125% of peak demand equals a fraction, the fleet requirement is rounded up to the next whole 
ambulance. 

 

4.3. Provider Fatigue 

Provider  fatigue  and  the  impairment  associated with  the  fatigue  pose  a  significant  safety  risk  for 

patients,  partners,  and others  in  the  community.  Crewmembers working  on ambulances  in Contra 
Costa County shall not be scheduled to work shifts  longer  than 24 consecutive hours and shall not 
remain on duty  for  longer than 36 consecutive hours due to  late calls or unscheduled holdovers. A 
rest period of at least 12 consecutive hours between shifts is required. The only exception will be a 

County declared disaster. 

5.4. No Subsidy System 

The Contra Costa County EMS system operated for years without subsidy to ambulance providers. It 

is  the  LEMSA’s  desire  that  Contra  Costa  County  emergency  ambulance  providers  will  continue  to 
operate  within  the  system  without  additional  subsidy,  but  the  financial  and  operational  trends 
identified  in  the  “EMS Modernization Report”  indicate  that  the operational status quo may require 
funding  support.  Plan  A  includes  the  opportunity  for  quantifying  additional  funds  needed  by  the 

Contractor  during  the  term  of  the  Agreement,  if  necessary.  Plan  B  assumes  no  subsidy  from  the 
County or LEMSA. 
 



 

Page 9 

H. Relevant Information Regarding Service Areas 

The  LEMSA makes  no  representations,  promises,  or  guarantees  concerning  the  actual  number  of 
emergency  and  non‐emergency  calls  or  transports,  number  of  patients  or  distance  of  transports 
associated with this procurement. Every effort has been made to provide accurate information, but 
Proposers will need to use their professional judgment and expertise to develop estimates, economic 

models and operational plans and proposals. 

1. Historical Service Volume 

Call volume  in  the EOA are  included  in  the EMS Agency’s annual  report and can be downloaded at 

http://cchealth.org/ems/pdf/annual‐report‐2013.pdf.  Three  years  of  call  data  including  date  and 
time of call, priority of call, longitude/latitude, location, and city are available at ##############. 
The location information has been altered to mask actual response locations by randomly adding or 
subtracting a number between one (1) and four (4) from the numerical portion of the street address. 

There has  been no  independent  validation of  this data  and Proposers  are  encouraged  to  use  their 
own means  to  analyze  the  information  to  determine  response  and  transport  volumes.  The LEMSA 
does not guarantee any number of responses or transports. 

2. Current Ambulance Service Rates 

Current providers are required to receive approval of rates from the LEMSA and County. The current 
ambulance service rates are included in Appendix 7. 

3. ALS Ground Ambulance Transports Not Originating from 9-1-1 

Ground  ALS  ambulance  transports  originating  within  the  EOA  that  are  not  routed  through  the 
Emergency Ambulance Reqeust Request (9‐1‐1) system – specifically the ALS interfacility transports 
–  are  included  in  the EOA scope of  services. These  transports were not previously  included  in  the 
EOA’s  exclusivity  and  the  quantity,  origins,  destinations,  and  time  of  calls  are  not  available.  The 

Agreement will include such transports, granting the Contractor the exclusive right to provide these 
services and  the Proposers should use  their own expertise while conducting  their due diligence  to 
quantify the ALS interfacility transports. 

4. Payer Mix 

The current provider reports the following transport volume and payer mix information in Table 2. 
 

Table 2. Estimated Payer Mix 

Payer  Percent of Transports 

Medicare & Medicare HMO  42.9% 

Medi‐Cal & Medi‐Cal HMO  26.3% 

Insurance  14.4% 

Private Pay & Other  16.4% 

Total  100.0% 



 

Page 10 

 
Since the payer mix determines potential revenue recovery and anticipated healthcare changes may 
have  a  significant  impact  on  the  payers,  the  Agreement  will  provide  that  should  the  Contractor 

demonstrate to the LEMSA’s satisfaction that the insured category is at least three (3) percent lower 
than listed or that the MediCal or self pay category is at least three (3) percentage points higher than 
identified,  the  variation will  be  grounds  for  a  rate  adjustment  as  provided  in  Section  IV.G.3.b.  For 
example,  if  Medi‐Cal  transport  percentages  exceed  29.3%  the  Contractor  can  request  a  rate 

adjustment. 



 

Page 11 

 SECTION II. PROCUREMENT INFORMATION 

A. Performance-based Contract 

The result of  this procurement will be  the award of a performance‐based contract. The Agreement 
will  require  the Contractor  to achieve and maintain high  levels of performance and reliability. The 

demonstration  of  effort,  even  diligent  and  well‐intended  effort,  will  not  suffice  to  meet  the 
requirements  of  the  Agreement  with  respect  to  prescribed  performance  requirements.  Failure  to 
meet specified service standards will result in financial penalties and may lead to termination of the 
Agreement. 
 

The essential areas where performance must be achieved include: 
 Ambulance response times; 
 Ambulance equipment and supply requirements; 
 Ambulance  staffing  levels  including  personnel  with  current  and  appropriate  levels  of 

certification/licensure; 
 Clinical performance consistent with approved medical standards and protocols; 
 Management and field supervision; 
 On‐going training and continuing education; 

 Collaboration with other emergency responders and medical personnel; 
 Comprehensive quality improvement and compliance activities and results; 
 Accurate and timely reporting; and 
 Customer and community satisfaction with the services provided. 

 
The Agreement is not a level‐of‐effort contract. In submitting its Proposal, the Proposer is agreeing to 
employ  whatever  level  of  effort  is  necessary  to  achieve  the  clinical,  response  time,  customer 
satisfaction,  quality  improvement,  and  other  performance  results  required  by  the  EMS  System 

Specifications. 
 

B. Notice to Proposers 

The  issuance  of  this RFP does  not  commit  the  LEMSA  to  accept  proposals,  complete  the  selection 
process, award a contract, or pay any costs incurred in the preparation of a Proposal responding to 
this RFP. The LEMSA  reserves  the  right  to  reject  any or  all  Proposals  received at  any point  in  the 

procurement process, or  to  cancel  the RFP  in whole or part  if  the LEMSA,  in  its  sole discretion,  so 
determines. 
 
Submission  of  a  proposal  by  a  Proposer  shall  constitute  an  agreement  to  the  provision  for  public 
announcement. The LEMSA intends to post the Proposals within twenty‐four hours (24) of the public 

opening. 
 
Submission of a Proposal to this RFP constitutes a complete waiver of any claims whatsoever against 
the LEMSA or the County that it has violated a Proposer's right to privacy, disclosed trade secrets or 

caused any damage by allowing the Proposal to be made publically available. 



 

Page 12 

 

C. Use of Own Expertise and Judgment 

Each  Proposer  must  use  its  own  best  expertise  and  judgment  in  deciding  on  the  methods  to  be 
employed to achieve and maintain the performance required under the resulting Agreement. As used 
here,  “methods”  includes,  without  limitation,  compensation  programs,  shift  schedules,  personnel 

policies, asset acquisition, supervisory structure, deployment plans, and other business matters that 
comprise the organizations strategies and activities. 
 

D. Procurement Time Line 

The Procurement Time Line is included in Appendix 8 (the Procurement Time Line). Any changes to 
the Procurement Time Line will be published on  the LEMSA website and organizations  requesting 

the RFP will be notified by the LEMSA. 
 

E. Procurement Process 

Administrative  support  for  this  process will  be  provided  to  the  LEMSA  by  county Health  Services 
Department (HSD). 

1. Pre-proposal Process 

Questions regarding this RFP should be submitted in writing to: 
 

Patricia Frost,  
EMS Director 

Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 123 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Facsimile (925) 646‐4379 

Patricia.Frost@hsd.cccounty.us 
 

Questions  or  requests  for  clarification  regarding  the  RFP will  be  accepted  prior  to  the  Proposers’ 
Conference,  but  no  later  than  4:00  p.m.  on  the  date  specified  in  the  Procurement  Time  Line 

(Appendix 8). 

2. Mandatory Proposers’ Conference 

It  is  strongly recommended  that Proposers attend  theA Proposers’  conference  that will be held on 

the date identified in the Procurement Time Line (Appendix 8) to allow County staff and consultants 
to discuss all  relevant  issues associated with  the Request  for Proposal and to permit Proposers an 
opportunity to ask questions. Each Proposer will be limited to not more than four (4) representatives 
in attendance. 
 



 

Page 13 

Proposers shall submit, in writing, any questions about the RFP that they would like answered at the 
Proposers’ Conference no later than three (3) working days before the conference. This will allow for 
a more thorough response. 

 
The  Proposers’  Conference may  be  taped  and  answers  to  questions  will  be  posted  to  the  LEMSA 
website following the conference. Oral answers at the conference will not be binding on the LEMSA. 
Any changes or clarifications to the Request for Proposal made following the Proposers’ Conference 

will be distributed to all potential Proposers who attend  the Proposer’s Conference, entities not  in 
attendance  requesting  the  information,  and  posted  on  the  LEMSA  website.    The  Porposers’ 
conference is mandatory. 

3. Proposal Submission 

Each Proposer must submit one (1) original and ten (10) copies of its Proposal by 4:00 p.m., Pacific 
Time  on  the  date  specified  in  the  Procurement  Time  Line  (the  Deadline).  A  CD‐ROM,  or  other 
electronic  storage device,  of  the Proposal  and attachments  in Microsoft Word or PDF  format  shall 

accompany  each  Proposal.  Any  Proposals  received  after  the  deadline  will  not  be  considered. 
Proposals shall remain in effect for a period of one hundred and twenty (120) days after the Deadline. 
Proposals shall be submitted  in a sealed container. The outside of the container and each Proposal 
shall  be  labeled  “Exclusive Operator  for  Emergency Ambulance  Service  Proposal  For  Contra  Costa 

County, California”and the Proposer’s name. 
 
One  (1)  original  and  five  (5)  copies  of  the  required  Financial  Documents  shall  be  included  in  the 
sealed  container  but  placed  in  a  separate,  sealed  envelope marked with  the  Proposer’s  name  and 

labeled “Financial Documents.” The Financial Documents are described in Section VI. 
 
Proposals shall be delivered to: 

 

Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126 
Martinez, CA 94553 
Attention: Patricia Frost 

4. Public Proposal Opening 

All proposals received prior to the Deadline shall be marked with a proposal number (EMS‐1, EMS‐2, 
etc.)  and  the  date  and  time  of  receipt  and  kept  unopened  and  secured  in  a  locked  area.  Such 
Proposals shall be publicly opened at 1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126, Martinez, CA 94553, at the time 

and  date  specified  in  the  Procurement  Time  Line.  The  RFP  number,  submission  date,  general 
description of service being requested, and name of each Proposer will be recorded and read aloud to 
the persons present. The contents of the Proposals shall not be reviewed or disclosed at the public 
opening. 



 

Page 14 

5. Additional Proposer Responsibilities 

At  any  time  following  the  opening  of  Proposals,  the  LEMSA  may  request  a  Proposer  to  provide 

additional information or documentation regarding its Proposal. Proposers will also be requested to 
make a formal oral presentation to the proposal review panel (the Review Panel) and to respond in 
person to questions from the panel. Such requests must be fulfilled by the Proposer or its Proposal 
may be rejected. 

6.  Notice of Intent to Award 

The LEMSA will issue a “ Notice of Intent to Award.” At the time of the issuance of the Notice of Intent 
to Award, non‐winning proposers’ right to protest will become ripe, and LEMSA staff will begin the 

process  of  placing  the  contract  award  on  a  future  agenda  of  the  Board  of  Supervisors  for 
recommendation.  Although  the  Notice  of  Intent  to  Award  may  tentatively  identify  a  Board  of 
Supervisors  meeting  date  upon  which  the  award  recommendation  will  be  considered,  such  date 
selection  shall  not  be  binding  upon  the  LEMSA  or  the  County.  If  there  are  any  delays  in  the 

procurement timeline, all Proposers will be notified by the LEMSA. 
 

F. Proposal Instructions 

1. Proposal Format 

Proposals  should  be  concise  and  directly  respond  to  the  required  information  in  this  RFP.  To 
facilitate the evaluation process, Proposals shall be limited in size. 

 
The entire Proposal  and exhibits  shall be  contained within  two  (2) 2‐inch,  three‐ring binders. One 
binder  shall  contain  the  narrative  (Proposal  Narrative)  and  the  second  the  exhibits  (Proposal 
Exhibits).  Excepted  from  these  restrictions  are  any  information  submitted  in  response  to  Sections 

III.A.4 and 5, below. 
 
The Proposal Narrative shall adhere to the following specifications: 

 Easily readable font, no smaller than 10 point; 

 Line spacing no smaller than 1 ½ lines; 
 Single sided page printing; 
 Standard 8 ½” by 11” paper; 
 Pages must be numbered sequentially; and 

 Pages  are  limited  to  250  pages  per  binder  excluding  title  page,  table  of  contents,  and 
dividers 

 
All attachments and exhibits shall be inserted in the second binder. Each exhibit and attachment shall 

be labeled and referenced in the narrative. 



 

Page 15 

2. Required Proposal Format 

a) Mandatory Table of Contents 

The Proposal Narrative shall respond to each topic listed in the Mandatory Table of Contents 

in  the  exact  sequence  that  the  topics  appear  in  the  Mandatory  Table  of  Contents.  The 
Proposal must utilize the stipulated section and heading titles and numbering set forth in the 
Mandatory Table of Contents. The response to each item must contain all of the information 
that the Proposer is providing with respect to that topic. The response may incorporate by 
reference  information  contained  in  the  Proposal  Exhibits,  but  may  not  incorporate  by 

reference any  information contained  in other portions of  the Proposal Narrative. With  the 
exception of  information appearing  in  a  Proposal  Exhibit  that  is  expressly  referenced  in  a 
response, information not set forth in the portion of the Proposal Narrative clearly identified 
as responding to a specific topic on the Mandatory Table of Contents may be disregarded in 

the rating of the Proposal. Reviewers may disregard information submitted in the Proposal if 
it is not included in the mandated location defined by the Mandatory Table of Contents. 

b) Required Proposal Sections 

The Proposal Narrative shall be divided into the following five sections: 
 

Section I  Executive Summary. 

Section II  Required Forms as specified in Appendix 9 of this RFP 
Section III  Proposer’s demonstration of the appropriate credentials and ability to meet 

the minimum qualifications set forth in Section III of this RFP 
Section IV  Proposer’s  response  to  the  basic  performance  and  operational 

requirements  set  forth  in Section  IV of  this RFP  (the Core Requirements). 
Failure  to  commit  to  each  of  the  Core  Requirements  may  result  in  the 
Proposal being disqualified and deemed unresponsive. 

Section V  Proposer’s response to the competitive criteria set forth in Section V of this 

RFP (the Competitive Criteria). The Competitive Criteria will be reviewed, 
evaluated, and scored in the Proposal review process. 

 
Proposals shall provide all information requested in this RFP in the order that it is requested. 

Performance standards for emergency ambulance service are identified in multiple sections 
of  this RFP  and  shall  be  addressed  in  the manner  stipulated  for  each  standard.  Proposers 
may elect to use reference "exhibits" or "attachments" in the Proposal Narratives to provide 
additional detail. 

 

G. Proposal Evaluation Process 

1. Proposal Review Panel 

The  Proposal  review  process  shall  be  managed  by  the  LEMSA  through  its  Consultant.  A  multi‐
disciplinary panel of four (4) independent EMS professionals shall be selected by the Consultant with 
approval of the LEMSA to evaluate and rank Proposals. A fifth member of the Review Panel will be 

selected by the County and be an independent resident of the County. Meetings of the Review Panel 



 

Page 16 

will be closed to the public. The outcome of the deliberations of the Review Panel shall be submitted 
to the LEMSA. The LEMSA shall review the submission and may consider any and all other pertinent 
information. 

 
To  assure  a  fair  process, members  of  the  Review Panel will  be  instructed  to  avoid  discussing  any 
Proposal or the RFP process with any Proposer or other individual not present during the evaluation 
prior  to  the  public  announcement  of  the  outcome  of  the  deliberation.  Until  the  outcome  of  the 

deliberations of the Review Panel has been submitted to the Health Services Director, Proposers shall 
avoid any communications regarding Proposals or the RFP process with any member of the Review 
Panel,  Board  of  Supervisors,  LEMSA  or  County  staff  outside  of  the  formal  procurement  process 
during the period commencing with the release of the RFP until either the expiration of the protest 

period or the resolution of any protest that may be filed. The names of the Review Panel members 
will  not  be  disclosed  prior  to  the  RFP  submission  deadline.  If  it  is  determined  that  a  Proposer 
attempted  or  had  such  precluded  communications,  or  otherwise  at  any  time  attempted  to  unduly 
influence  the  selection  process  except  in  a  manner  explicitly  approved  in  the  RFP,  Proposer’s 

Proposal may be disqualified. 

2. Proposal Review Process 

The review of the proposals will determine whether the Proposers meet minimum requirements and 

qualitifications , verify that the Proposers agree to meet all of the Core Requirements, and score each 
of the Competitive Criterion resulting in points being assigned to each Proposal. 
 
The detailed proposal evaluation process will encompass three stages. 

 
a) The  Review  Panel  will  review  the  documentation  provided  in  each  Proposal  to 

determine  if  the  Proposer  meets  the  Minimum  Qualifications.  Each  criterion  will  be 
scored  on  a  pass/fail  basis.  If  the  Reviewers  identify  a  Proposal  that  does  not  meet 

Minimum  Qualifications,  the  Proposal  or  Proposals  not  meeting  all  Minimum 
Qualifications will be referred to the LEMSA. The LEMSA will make a recommendation to 
the Health Services Director for final determination. Proposals that,  in the  judgment of 
the  Health  Services  Director,  do  not meet  the minimum  requirements  for  experience, 
qualifications,  and  financial  capabilities  will  be  considered  unresponsive  and 

disqualified. 
b) The Review Panel will  then  review  the documentation  in  the Proposals  related  to  the 

Core  Requirements.  The  Proposals must  include  an  affirmative  statement  agreeing  to 
each Core Requirement without qualification. If any Proposer fails to include affirmative 

agreement  to  the  Core  Requirements  or  with  the  minimum  requirements  listed  in 
Section V (the Minimum Requirements), the Review Panel will refer the nonconforming 
Proposal  or  Proposals  to  the  LEMSA. The  LEMSA will  confer with  the Health  Services 
Director  and  the  Health  Services  Director  will  make  a  final  determination.  If  the 

exceptions to the Core Requirements and Minimum Requirements in the Proposal(s) are 
deemed material in the sole opinion of the Health Services Director, the Proposal will be 
considered unresponsive and disqualified. If the exceptions are not deemed material, the 
Health  Services Director may waive  the  irregularity  and  allow  the proposal  review  to 



 

Page 17 

continue  or  may  request  additional  information  from  the  Proposer  to  resolve  the 
exception. 

c) The Review Panel will then evaluate, compare, and score the Competitive Criteria. 

d) After  completion  of  the  Review  Panel’s  review  and  scoring  of  the  Proposals,  the 
consultants  will  calculate  the  points  and  combine  with  the  pricing  points  and  will 
present the results to the LEMSA for consideration. 

 

The responses to the Competitive Criteria set forth in the Proposals shall be reviewed and rated 
as follows: 

 Each member of the Review Panel shall read each Proposal prior to the convening of the 
panel. 

 The  Review  Panel will  convene  and  be  provided with  an  overview  of  the  review  and 
rating process. 

 The  information  provided  to  document  the  Minimum  Qualifications  will  be  reviewed 
and scored as either pass or fail. 

 The responses to the Core Requirements and Minimum Requirements will be reviewed 
to confirm an affirmative and unqualified acceptance of the provisions. 

 Each  criterion  of  the  Competitive  Criteria  will  be  evaluated  separately  (e.g.  Clinical 
Offerings, Operational Proposals, etc.). After a full discussion is completed for a specific 

Competitive Criterion, each Review Panel member will complete the individual ranking 
sheet for that Competitive Criterion using the scoring guidelines set forth below. 

 The ranking sheet completed by each reviewer will be collected by the Consultant, who 
will enter the ratings into the master score sheet that will be used to calculate the total 

points awarded to each Proposal. 
 The scores applicable to pricing will be calculated by the Consultant and combined with 

the scores resulting from the panel’s review. 
 Subsequent to the Proposers’ presentations to the Review Panel, the Review Panel will 

reconvene and each Reviewer will be allowed to view and modify any scores awarded to 
a  Proposal  if  he  or  she  believes  that  information  presented  or  answers  received  in 
response  to  Review  Panel  member  inquiries  would,  in  the  Reviewer’s  sole  opinion, 
justify a scoring change for specific criteria. 

 After  the  Review  Panel  has  completed  the  review  of  all  Proposals,  the  scores  of  the 
reviewers will be averaged to determine the total points awarded to each Proposal  for 
the Competitive Criteria. 

 The Competitive Criteria will include separate scores for each of the two Plans (A and B) 
when applicable. 

 The results of the Review Panel and the rankings of the Proposals will be combined with 
the  scores  derived  from  the  Financial  Analysis  conducted  by  a  separate,  independent 
organization. The combined scores will be forwarded to the Health Services Director. 

 The Health Services Director will, after consideration of the Review Panel rankings and 

scores and any other relevant  factors, make his or her recommendation  to  the County 
Board of Supervisors (Board). The Health Services Director shall identify to the Board, as 
the tentative awardee,  the Proposal receiving the highest score from the Review Panel 
unless  the  Health  Services  Director:  (i)  identifies  a  material  procedural  error  in  the 



 

Page 18 

procurement process; (ii) determines that the procurement process has failed to achieve 
the LEMSA’s goals as set forth in this RFP; or (iii) subsequent investigation of Proposer 
receiving the highest score reveals material information for the Health Services Director 

to conclude that the best interests of Contra Costa County and the LEMSA would not be 
served by the recommendation. In the event of any such exception, the Health Services 
Director shall set forth in writing the basis for his or her tentative decision. 

 The final decision regarding an award shall rest with the Health Services DirectorBoard. 

 
The consulting firm shall observe and serve as staff to the Review Panel. 

 

3. Method for Competitive Scoring of Price Proposals 

Prices for all calls originating from the 9‐1‐1 system are predetermined and presented in Appendix 
10. 
 

Points will be awarded only for the proposed pricing of ALS interfacility transports and based on the 
following calculation:  

 
ALS nonemergency transports (not originating from 911) 

ALS Non‐emergency Base Charge $____X____ 

Mileage Charge: multiply the proposed per‐mile charge times 12 miles  $____Y____ 

Oxygen Charge: multiply the proposed oxygen charge times 90 percent  $____Z___ 

   

Weighted Charge  $_X+Y+Z_ 

 
The proposal with the lowest weighted charge will receive the maximum available score assigned to 
pricing under the RFP. Other proposals will be scored by multiplying the percentage by which their 
weighted charge exceeds the lowest proposed weighted charge and subtracting that amount from the 

maximum available score. 
 
For example, the RFP is structured to allow 50 points for price. If the Weighted Charge for Proposal 
#1  is $1,000,  for Proposal #2  is $1,100, and for Proposal #3  is $1,500. Proposal #1 has  the  lowest 

charges, so it receives 50 points for pricing. Proposal #2 exceeds Proposal #1 by 10%, so it receives 
45 points for pricing. Proposal #3 exceeds Proposal #1 by 50%, so it receives 25 points for pricing. 

 

4. Independent Financial Analysis 

The County has engaged an independent entity to analyze, express an opinion, and rate the financial 
aspects of Proposals. This will include expressing an opinion on the Proposers’ financial strength, pro 
forma  projections  (including  revenue  and  expense  projections),  the  ability  of  the  Proposers  to 

identify  and  fund  initial  startup  costs  and  the  on‐going  ability  of  the  Proposers  to  fund  losses  if 
projections are underestimated. 
 



 

Page 19 

The criteria evaluated  in  the Financial Analysis process will be scored with  the same 5‐point scale 
used by the Review Panel. The scores resulting from the Financial Analysis will be combined with the 
scores resulting from the Review Panel’s findings. 

 

5. Post-submission Presentation 

Proposers will be asked to meet with the Review Panel to present a brief overview of their Proposals 

and  answer  questions.  The  date  of  the  Proposers’  presentations  is  included  in  the  Procurement 
Timeline.  

6. Investigation 

Upon completion of Review Panel evaluations, the Consultant may undertake additional investigation 
to verify claims made by the recommended Proposer during the Proposal evaluation process. Such 
additional  investigation  may  include,  without  limitation,  site  visits,  reference  checks,  financial 
inquiry, or any other reasonable means of determining the accuracy and completeness of information 

supplied by the Proposer. 
 

The LEMSA reserves  the  right  to  continue  its  investigation of  representations made by a Proposer 
after contract award and throughout the term of the Agreement. The furnishing of false or misleading 

information during the procurement process may constitute a major breach of the Agreement even if 
discovered after contract award. 

7. Notification 

Proposers  will  be  notified  of  the  status  of  their  Proposal  (recommended  for  selection,  not 

recommended  for  selection,  or  disqualified)  following  completion  of  the  proposal  review  process. 
Notification will be by electronic mail to the address listed in the Proposal. 
 
If  a  Proposal  is  disqualified,  the  Proposer  will  be  notified,  in  writing,  of  the  specific  reason  that 

caused the disqualification. 
 
At the completion of the Review Panel’s evaluation process and the Health Services Director’s receipt 
and  consideration  of  the  panel’s  deliberations,  the  Health  Services  Director  will  issue  a  Notice  of 

Intent to Award. 

8. Debriefing 

A  debriefing  shall  be  held  before  the  award  of  the  Contract  upon  the  timely  request  of  an 

unsuccessful  Proposer  for  the  purpose  of  receiving  information  concerning  the  evaluation  of  the 
Proposer’s  submission.  The  request must  be  in writing,  dated,  signed  either  by  the  Proposer  or  a 
legally authorized individual on behalf of the Proposer and be received by the County’s EMS Agency 
at 1340 Arnold Drive,  Suite 126, Martinez, CA 94553, within  three  (3) working days  following  the 

County’s  issuance  of  the  “Notice  of  Intent  to  Award”.  Each  requesting  Proposer will  be  allotted  a 
maximum of one hour for any debriefing conference. The information provided by the County will be 
based on the Review Panel determinations of the company’s submitted proposal as it relates to the 



 

Page 20 

evaluation criteria as stated herein. The debriefing may be held,  in the discretion of  the County, by 
telephone conference call. The debriefing is not the forum to challenge the proposal’s specification, 
requirements, or the selection criteria. 

9. Protest  

Within  fourteen  (14)  calendar  days  following  issuance  of  the  Notice  of  Intent  to  Award,  non‐
successful Proposers  shall have  the  right  to  file  a protest  (the Protest). A Proposer  filing a Protest 

(Protester) must follow the procedures set forth herein. Protests that do not follow these procedures 
shall  not  be  considered.  Notwithstanding  any  other  protest  or  appeal  procedures,  the  protest 
procedures herein constitute  the sole administrative remedy available  to  the Protesters under  this 
RFP.  Only  entities  which  were  non‐successful  Proposers  shall  have  standing  to  file  Protests.  Any 

Protest not  filed and  received by  the Health Services Director within  the  fourteen  (14) day period 
shall be conclusively deemed waived. 

a) Filing a Protest 

The Protest of the Notice of Intent to Award must be in writing. The written Protest must be 
hand delivered, electronically transmitted, or mailed to: 
 

Contra Costa County EMS Agency 
Patricia Frost, EMS Director 
1340 Arnold Drive, Suite 126 
Martinez, CA 94553 

Facsimile (925) 646‐4379 
Patricia.Frost@hsd.cccounty.us 

 
Protests will be considered filed when they have been received at the above address. Upon 

the filing of any protest, the full contents of the protest will promptly be made available to all 
proposers by LEMSA staff. 

b) Contents of Protest 

The written  Protest must  contain  the  following  information:  1)  the  name,  street  address, 
electronic mail address, and telephone and facsimile number of the Protester; 2) signature of 
the Protester or  its authorized representative; 3) grounds  for the Protest; 4) copies of any 

relevant  documents;  5)  the  form  of  relief  requested;  and  6)  the  method  by  which  the 
Protester would like to receive the initial written Protest decision. The written Protest must 
clearly state the grounds for the Protest. Protests should be concise and logically arranged. 

c) Grounds for Protest 

Protests  shall  be  based  only  on  the  following  grounds:  The  Protester  believes  that  its 
proposal should have been selected had the LEMSA followed the procedures and adhered to 

requirements set forth in the RFP. 



 

Page 21 

d) Protest Resolution Process 

(1) Informal Meeting with Health Services Director 

The initial review of any protest will be conducted by the Health Services Director. Upon 
receipt of the Protest, the Health Services Director will schedule, at the earliest possible 

convenience, meeting(s) between  the Protester and appropriate  county  staff  to  clarify 
the issues and/or attempt to seek informal resolution. The Health Services Director will 
notify the protesting party and all Proposers of his or her decision in writing. 

(2) Formal Review by Independent Hearing Officer 

The  Protester  may  appeal  the  Health  Services  Director’s  decision  by  filing  a  written 

Notice of such Appeal within five (5) business days of the issuance of the Health Services 
Director’s decision.  If an Appeal of  the Health Services Director’s decisions  is  filed,  the 
Health Services Director shall  forward the Protest and Notice of Appeal  to  the hearing 
officer designated by the County for the hearing of any Appeals filed in connection with 

this RFP within  three  (3) business days of  receipt of  the Notice of Appeal. The Health 
Services Director may  also  forward  additional  documents  or  other  information  to  the 
Hearing Officer. 
 

The  Hearing  Officer  shall  conduct  an  independent,  de  novo  review  of  the  Appeal  to 
determine  whether  the  grounds  for  the  Appeal  have  merit.  Only  the  information 
contained  in  a  timely  Protest  shall  be  considered  by  the Hearing Officer, who has  the 
authority  to  request  additional  information  from  the Protester,  LEMSA,  or Director  to 

clarify  or  confirm  information  submitted  in  a  timely  submitted  Protest  to  assist  with 
his/her  review  of  the  Appeal.  The  Hearing  Officer  will  issue  a  written  decision  on  a 
timely  submitted Appeal within  fifteen  (15)  calendar days of  its  receipt;  however,  the 
time for decision may be extended by the Hearing Officer with advance written notice to 

the Protester and the Director. The decision of the Hearing Officer shall be final. 

e) Remedies 

If the Hearing Officer sustains a Protest in whole or in part, the Hearing Officer shall have the 
sole discretion to determine an appropriate remedy in accordance with applicable laws and 
procedures,  including the procedures set  forth  in this RFP.  In determining the appropriate 
remedies, the Hearing Officer may consider the degree of prejudice to other parties or to the 

integrity of the competitive procurement system, the good faith of the parties, the extent of 
performance, the cost to the LEMSA, the urgency of the procurement, and the impact of the 
recommendation(s) on the public’s health and safety. 

f) Stay of Procurement Action during a Protest 

A  final  award  shall  not  be  made  while  a  Protest  is  pending.  However,  LEMSA  staff  may 
otherwise proceed with negotiations  toward the contract provided  for  in  this RFP; subject 

the  resolution of  any Protest. Once  the Hearing Officer  has  issued his/her decision on  the 
Protest, if the Protest is denied the procurement process may proceed as though no Protest 
was  filed.  In  addition,  in  the  event  that  a  Protest  substantially  delays  this  procurement 
process,  the  LEMSA  may,  in  its  discretion,  engage  in  contracting  activities  for  interim 



 

Page 22 

ambulance  service  until  the  procurement  process  can  move  forward  and  a  permanent 
Agreement can become effective. 

10. Withdrawal of Proposals 

Once submitted, Proposals may be withdrawn by the Proposer at any time prior to the Deadline by 
written notice to the LEMSA. 

11. Canceling the Procurement Process after Opening 

The  LEMSA may,  in  its  discretion,  cancel  this  procurement  process  at  any  time  up  to  the  formal 
approval and execution of the Agreement. In the event the LEMSA cancels the procurement, it shall 
set forth the reasons why the public interest is best promoted by such cancellation. 

12. Award 

The decision on  contract  award will  be made  by  the Health  Services DirectorContra  Costa County 
Board of Supervisors  following  the recommendation  from the Board of SupervisorsHealth Services 

Director.  If  for any reason  the selected Proposer  is unable  to enter  into  the Agreement  in a  timely 
manner  in accordance with  the  time  interval  identified  in  the Procurement Time Line  for  contract 
negotiation,  the  Health  Services  Director,  upon  direction  from  the  Board,  may  proceed  toward 
selection  of  an  alternate  Proposal,  cancel  the  process,  seek  further  input  from  the  Board,  or 
otherwise  proceed  as  may  be  required  in  the  public  interest  and  consistent  with  applicable  law. 

However, the above action does not eliminate the fact that if the initial awarded party is in breach of 
the contract, the County is entitled to seek any and all damages for such breach, including loss of time, 
cost of resources and attorney fees. 

13. Scoring Criteria 

The goal of this procurement is to select the Contractor based on clinical and operational quality of 
service, while also containing service costs to the public and ensuring financial stability. To achieve 
this  end,  the  Proposals  will  be  scored  on  three  categories;  first,  Competitive  Criteria,  which  are 

designed  to  objectively  identify  Proposals  that  will  provide  for  higher  service  quality  and  cost 
effectiveness.  Second, Proposals will  be  scored based on  the  service  charges  to be  imposed by  the 
Proposer for the ALS interfacility transports. In addition, the financial strength of the Proposer and 
the reasonableness of its financial projections will be scored independently. 

 
Since this process is focused on a comparison of the Proposers’ responses to the Competitive Criteria, 
the review and scoring of the proposals will be based on comparing responses of Proposers to each 
of the criterion. Each criterion will be allocated a specific number of maximum available points. 

 
During  the deliberations  of  the Review Panel, minimum  requirements  for  each of  the  Competitive 
Criterion will  be described  to  the  reviewers  and  the  reviewers will  then discuss  the  item and  any 
offerings  that  have  been  presented  to  exceed  minimum  requirements.  Once  the  discussion  is 

completed, each Reviewer will independently evaluate the criterion and mark the rating sheet in the 
applicable category described below. 
 



 

Page 23 

The  points  awarded  for  the  criterion  will  be  based  on  the  reviewer’s  opinion  of  each  proposal’s 
commitment  to  the  relevant  item  being  reviewed.  Five  potential  ratings  will  be  available  for  the 
reviewer. They are: 

 
Table 3. Scoring Allocation 

Rating  Poor  Adequate  Good  Very Good  Excellent 

Percentage of total 
points for criterion 

0%  25%  50%  75%  100% 

 
Each  of  the  Competitive  Criteria  stipulates  minimum  requirements  that  must  be  addressed  and 
accepted by the Proposers. Failure to address and commit to the minimum requirements may result 

in  the  disqualification  of  the  Proposal  as  being  unresponsive.  No  points  will  be  awarded  to  the 
Proposal that offers to only meet the minimum requirements. Points are awarded only to Proposals 
that exceed minimum requirements for a specific criterion. 

14. RFP Governed by Its Terms 

This RFP shall be conducted in accordance with the terms set forth within it. It shall be construed in a 
manner  consistent with  applicable  law  and  rules  including,  but  not  limited  to,  the  California  State 
Emergency  Medical  Services  Act,  Contra  Costa  County  Ordinances,  and  published  procurement 

guidelines of the California State EMS Authority. Such authorities may be consulted for the resolution 
of ambiguities and to provide terms not expressly provided herein. 
 

H. Scoring Matrix  

The Competitive Criteria are organized  in Section V  into categories. The maximum points available 
for each category of Competitive Criteria are set forth below. 
 

Table 4. Proposal Review Scoring Allocations 

  Category Title  Total Points 

1  Credentials and Qualifications  Pass/Fail 

2  Core Requirements  Agree/Exception 

3  Competitive Criteria‐Minimum Requirements  Agree/Exception 

4  Competitive Criteria‐Commitment to Clinical Quality  300 

5  Competitive Criteria‐Operations Management   300 

6  Competitive Criteria‐Commitment to Employees  250 

7  Competitive Criteria‐Management and Administration   175 

8  Competitive  Criteria‐Commitment  to  EMS  System  and 
Community 

275 

9  Competitive Criteria‐Healthcare Integration  275 

10  ALS Interfacility Pricing  75 

11  Financial Qualifications  Pass/Fail 



 

Page 24 

12  Financial Strength and Projections  350 

  TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS  2,000 



 

Page 25 

 SECTION III. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

A. Organizational Disclosures 

The  Proposer must  be  a  single  legally  established  entity,  but  there  are  no  preclusions  of multiple 
organizations forming an entity to respond to this RFP. If such a “joint venture” is proposing on this 

RFP, questions regarding experience, organizational structure, financial strength, and other items in 
this RFP must be answered for each member of the “joint venture.” The Proposer must provide the 
following information about its organization, experience, litigation, licenses, investigations, and other 
items: 

1. Organizational ownership and legal structure 

The Proposer  shall describe  its  legal  structure  including  type of organization,  its date, and state of 
formation. 

2. Continuity of business 

The  Proposer  shall  provide  the  organization’s  background  and  number  of  years  under  present 
business name, as well as prior business names. 

3. Licenses and permits 

The  Proposer  shall  provide  copies  of  business  or  professional  licenses,  permits  or  certificates 
required  by  the  nature  of  the  contract  work  to  be  performed.  If  Proposer  does  not  have  a  local 
operation,  examples  of  state  licenses,  and  local  permits  for  other  operational  locations  may  be 

submitted to fulfill this requirement. 

4. Government investigations 

The Proposer shall provide a listing of all federal, state, or local government regulatory investigations, 
findings, actions or complaints and their respective resolutions for the Proposer’s organization and 

any parent or affiliated organization within the last three (3) years. THIS ITEM MAY BE SUBMITTED 
SEPARATELY  IN  AN  ELECTRONIC  FORMAT  SUCH AS  COMPACT DISK OR USB DRIVE  and will  not 
count against the limits on Proposal length set forth in Section II.F.2. 
 

Proposer  must  provide  documentation  that  it  has  resolved  all  issues  arising  from  government 
investigations  including any continued obligations of  the Proposer or describe status and expected 
outcome of open investigations. 

5. Litigation 

The  Proposer  shall  provide  a  listing  of  all  resolved  or  ongoing  litigation  involving  the  Proposer’s 
organization  including  resolution  or  status  for  the  last  five  (5)  years.  This  listing  shall  include 
litigation  brought  against  the  Proposer’s  organization  or  affiliated  organization  and  any  litigation 

initiated by the Proposer’s organization or affiliated organization against any governmental entity or 
competing  ambulance  service.  THIS  ITEM MAY BE  SUBMITTED  SEPARATELY  IN  AN  ELECTRONIC 



 

Page 26 

FORMAT SUCH AS COMPACT DISK OR USB DRIVE and will not count against the limits on Proposal 
length set forth in Section II.F.2. 

 

Proposer  must  provide  documentation  that  it  has  resolved  all  issues  arising  from  litigation  or 
describe status of open litigation. 

 

B. Experience as Sole Provider 

The  Proposer  must  demonstrate  its  experience  as  a  sole  provider  of  paramedic  emergency 
ambulance services for a specified area comparable in size and population to the Exclusive Operating 

Area  defined  in  this  RFP.  A  population  greater  than  300,000  in  a  service  area  is  acceptable  as  a 
comparable service area. Documentation shall include: 

1. Demonstrate Capability in Lieu of Experience 

If the Proposer does not have direct comparable experience in being the sole provider of paramedic 
emergency  ambulance  service,  the  Proposer  must  document  in  detail  how  it  intends  to  fulfill  its 
obligations specified in this RFP. This may be done by providing a comprehensive deployment plan 
identifying  the  ambulance  locations,  unit‐hour  distribution,  and  procedures  from  redeploying 

resources  based  on  demand.  Alternatively,  the  Proposer  may  delineate  personnel  who  have  such 
experience and that these individuals will be actively and directly involved in the delivery of services 
in the EOA. 

2. Comparable experience 

The Proposer must document the areas in which it has provided comparable services (as described 
above)  in the past five (5) years, the  locations of  these services, population, description of services 
and  a  jurisdictional  contact.  This  documentation  shall  include  a  letter  from  a  government  official 
confirming  the  ability  to  provide  exclusive  emergency  paramedic  ALS  ambulance  service  and  the 

length of time such services have been provided. Proposer shall document that it currently provides 
comparable services for a minimum of three (3) consecutive years. Letters and documentation of sole 
provider status are limited to three jurisdictions. 

3. Government contracts 

The Proposer  shall provide a  list of  exclusive  service area emergency ambulance  service  contracts 
completed or ongoing during the last five (5) years including the term or date of termination of the 
agreement, the services provided, the dollar amount of the agreement and the contracting entity. 

4. Contract Compliance 

The  Proposer  shall  detail  any  occurrence  of  its  failure  or  refusal  to  complete  a  contract  with  a 
governmental entity for which the Proposer was providing emergency ambulance services. This shall 

specifically state whether the Proposer or affiliated organization was found in material breach of the 
contract  and  the  reasons  why  the  contract  was  terminated.  If  the  Proposer  has  been  found  in 
material  breach  of  a  governmental  contract  or  if  the Proposer  “walked  away”  from  its  obligations 



 

Page 27 

under  a  governmental  contract within  the  last  five  (5)  years,  the Proposal may be  rejected  as  not 
complying with Minimum Qualifications. 
 

C. Demonstrated Response Time Performance 

The  Proposer  must  provide  documentation  of  its  demonstrated  ability  to  meet  response  time 

requirements similar to those required in this RFP. 
 
Documentation  may  include  reports  provided  to  government  oversight  entities  and  letters 
confirming  compliance with mandated  response  times.  Internal  reports with  adequate  supporting 

documentation of the methodology used to create the reports may also be submitted. 
 
If  the  Proposing  organization  does  not  have mandated  response  times  in  its  exclusive  emergency 
ambulance  service  area,  the  Proposer must  submit  adequate  documentation  of  plans,  procedures, 

and  deployment  strategies  to  demonstrate  the  organization  has  the  knowledge  and  expertise  to 
comply with mandated response times. 
 

D. Demonstrated High Level Clinical Care 

The Proposer must provide documentation of its demonstrated ability to provide high‐level clinical 
care. 
 

Documentation may include descriptions of clinical sophistication and high levels of performance in 
systems  in  which  it  operates.  The  organization  should  describe  how  it  ensures  consistent,  high‐
quality  clinical  care  and  how  it  is  able  to  verify  and  document  its  clinical  competency  and 
performance  improvement  activities.  This  should  include  clinical  protocol  compliance,  skills 

verification,  training  methodology  and  minimum  commitments  per  provider  including  systematic 
assessment  of  EMS  core  performance metrics  and  clinical  guidelines  as  defined  by  the  Local  EMS 
Agency2, California EMS Authority3 and National Association of EMS Officials.4. 
 

                                                                  
2 http://cchealth.org/ems/quality.php 
3 http://www.emsa.ca.gov/CEMSIS 
4 http://www.nasemso.org/ 



 

Page 28 

 SECTION IV. CORE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Two Service Plans are to be Addressed 

This RFP includes two separate Service Plans – Plan A and Plan B. Plan A includes minimal changes to 
the  current  EMS  System and Plan B  incorporates most  of  the  recommendations  found  in  the  EMS 

Modernization Report. The separate requirements of the Service Plans are noted in this Section, Core 
Requirements, and in the Competitive Criteria, and in the Pricing and Financial sections. 
 
The  Proposer must  respond  to  and  complete  all  attestations  and  requirements  for  each  Plan.  The 
County will make the determination of which Plan will be used by the EMS System after the selection 

of the highest scoring Proposal. 
 
Each  of  the  elements  of  the  separate  Plans  are  highlighted  by  using  differing  font  colors  in  this 
document to facilitate the Proposers’ responses. 

 Plan A will be highlighted in “PURPLE” 
 Plan B will be highlighted in “GREEN” 

B. Contractor’s Functional Responsibilities 

Contractor  shall  provide  all  emergency  ambulance  services  originating  in  the  EOA.  Emergency 
Ambulance  Services  are  defined  as  all  requests  for  an  immediate  paramedic  ambulance  response 
from 9‐1‐1,  radio  communications,  other phone numbers,  observation,  or  any other  source within 

the  EOA.  Such  Emergency  Ambulance  Services  shall  be  provided  in  accordance  with  the 
requirements of State Health and Safety Code Sections 1797 et  seq., Division 48 and of  the Contra 
Costa  County  Ordinance  83‐28,  and  all  regulations  promulgated  there  under  including  any 
amendments  or  revisions  thereof.  In  performing  services  under  the  Agreement,  Contractor  shall 

work  cooperatively with  the  LEMSA  and  its  EMS Director  as  the  contract  administrator  (Contract 
Administrator). All references to the Contract Administrator herein shall be construed to also include 
the EMS Director and/or any other LEMSA employee or  representative  that  the EMS Director may 
designate. 

1. Basic Services 

In consideration of the LEMSA's referral to Contractor of Ambulance Service requests originating in 
the EOA, Contractor shall perform the following services to the complete satisfaction of LEMSA: 

 

a) Contractor shall provide continuous, around‐the‐clock, emergency ambulance services, 
without interruption throughout the term of the Agreement. 

b) Contractor shall provide emergency ambulance services without regard to any illegally 
discriminatory  classification,  including  without  limitation:  the  patient's  race,  color, 

national origin, religious affiliation, sexual orientation, age, sex, or ability to pay. 
c) The Proposal will be retained and incorporated into the Agreement by reference, except 

that in the case of any conflicting provisions, the provisions contained in the Agreement 
shall prevail. 



 

Page 29 

d) Contractor shall participate in pilot or research programs that the EMS Medical Director 
(defined  below)  and  Contract  Administrator  may  authorize  from  time  to  time.  The 
Contract Administrator may waive standards contained  in  the Agreement  in  the event 

that conflicting standard(s) are established for a pilot program. Any such pilot program 
must  be  approved  by  the  EMS  Medical  Director.  Contractor  agrees  that  Contractor's 
participation  in  the  pilot  projects  shall  entail  no  additional  cost  to  the  County  or  the 
LEMSA.  Contractor  further  agrees  that  Contractor's  services  provided  under  pilot 

projects shall be in addition to the other services described in the Agreement. 

2. Services Description 

Contractor shall be responsible for furnishing all emergency ambulance services for all residents and 

other persons physically present in the EOA. Such emergency ambulance services shall be provided 
at the paramedic level. 
 
Contractor shall be the sole ground ambulance organization authorized by the LEMSA in the awarded 

service area covered under this RFP to provide Emergency Ambulance Services and ALS interfacility 
ambulance services. All requests for EMS originating in the County and processed through the County 
designated medical  communication  centers will  be  referred  to  Contractor  or  its  subcontractor,  as 
provided  herein.  Contractor may  subcontract  services  only  as  provided  herein  and with  the  prior 

written approval of the LEMSA director. 
 

C. Clinical 

1. Clinical Overview 

The  LEMSA’s  goal  is  to  provide  a  clinically  sophisticated  system  that  achieves  contemporary 
benchmarks of clinical excellence and can continue to do so  in a sustainable  fashion. The following 

system specifications are drawn from applicable reference sources and are generally consistent with 
the  direction  provided  in  the  National  Highway  Traffic  Safety  document,  The  EMS Agenda  for the 
Future, and the core recommendations of the Institute for Medicine report on EMS: Emergency Medical 
Services: At the Crossroads,5 and the ACEP Stategy for a National EMS Culture of Safety6.  

 
The clinical goals of progressive EMS systems are guided by the broad outcome measures established 
by the US Public Health Service. These include discomfort is minimized, disability is reduced, death is 
minimized, destitution eliminated, disfigurement is reduced and disease is identified and reduced. In 

addition,  there  is a  focus on meeting  the six aims of  the  Institute of Medicine report on healthcare 
quality,  Crossing  the Quality Chasm: A New Health System  for  the 21st Century,  which  stresses  that 
systems should be: safe, effective, patient‐centered, timely, efficient, and equitable.78  

                                                                  
5. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration. (1996). Emergency Medical Services Agenda for the Future. Washington, DC: 
United States Department of Transportation. 
Institute of Medicine. (2006). Emergency medical services: At the crossroads. Washington, DC: National Academies of Science. 
6  http://www.emscultureofsafety.org/wp‐content/uploads/2013/10/Strategy‐for‐a‐National‐EMS‐Culture‐of‐Safety‐10‐03‐
13.pdf 
7 Institute of Medicine. (2001). Crossing the Quality Chasm: A new Health System for the 21st Century. Washington, DC: National 
Academies of Science. 



 

Page 30 

 

2. EMS System Medical Oversight 

The LEMSA  shall  furnish medical  control  services,  including  the  services  of  a  system EMS Medical 
Director (EMS Medical Director) for all system participants’ functions in the EMS System (e.g. medical 
communications, first responder agencies, transport entity, online control physicians). The LEMSA’s 
EMS Medical Director does not  relieve  the Contractor  from employing  its own medical director  as 

mandated by state and LEMSA requirements. 

a) Medical Protocols 

Contractor  shall  comply with medical protocols  and administrative policies  established by 
the  LEMSA,  as well  as  other  requirements  and  standards  established  by  the  EMS Medical 
Director. 
 

Contractor  shall  document  compliance  with  system  of  care  operational  and  medical 
protocols. This documentation shall describe the performance of Contractor as a whole,  its 
component  parts  (e.g.  communications  and  transport),  and  individual  system  participants 
(personnel).   

 
Medical  protocols  shall  be  reviewed  and  updated  by  the  LEMSA  on  a  periodic  basis  with 
input  from  system  participants.  Current  Medical  Protocols  are  available  at  the  LEMSA 
website. 

b) Direct Interaction with Medical Control 

Contractor personnel functioning under these specifications have the right and professional 

responsibility  to  interact  directly  with  the  system's  medical  leadership  (EMS  Medical 
Director, base hospital physicians and LEMSA clinical oversight staff) on all issues related to 
patient care. This personal professional responsibility is essential. 

c) Medical Review/Audits 

The Contractor is required to participate in LEMSA’s continuous quality improvement (CQI) 

program. The goal of  the patient safety and medical audit process  is  to  inspect and assure 
compliance  of  the  care  delivered  with  the  system’s  established  clinical  care  guidelines. 
Evaluation  of  trends,  system  variation  and  random  sampling  of  patient  contacts  provides 
mechanisms to measure the clinical care provided and enables the EMS Medical Director to 
identify the need for a more targeted or detailed audit. The process also assists in validating 

the  effectiveness  of  ongoing  process  and  outcome measures  in monitoring  and  improving 
care.  It  is  the  Contractor's  responsibility  to  comply  with  the  EMS  Medical  Director 
audit/review process and  initiate process measurement and  improvement activities based 
on the results of the audit/review. 

 
As  part  of  LEMSA  CQI  processes  or  incident  investigation,  the  EMS Medical  Director may 
require that any employee of the Contractor attend a medical audit when deemed necessary. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                    
8 Institute of Healthcare Improvement Open School as we are a member organization 
http://www.ihi.org/education/IHIOpenSchool/Courses/Pages/OSInTheCurriculum.aspx#California 



 

Page 31 

Employees,  at  their  option  and  expense,  may  attend  any  audit  involving  any  incident  in 
which  they  were  involved  that  is  being  formally  reviewed  but  must  maintain  the 
confidentiality of the medical audit process. Attendance of every license holder involved in a 

case being reviewed is not required, unless mandated by the EMS Medical Director. 

3. Minimum Clinical Levels and Staffing Requirements 

a) Ambulance Staffing Requirements 

All  Ambulances  rendering  Emergency  Ambulance  Services  under  the  Agreement  shall  be 
staffed and equipped to render paramedic level care and transport with a minimum of one 

(1) state  licensed and  locally accredited Paramedic and one (1) California certified EMT to 
respond  to  requests  from  the  County  designated  PSAPs.  The  paramedic  shall  be  the 
caregiver with ultimate responsibility for all patients. 
 

An “Emergency Ambulance” is defined as a transport ambulance responding to requests for 
emergency medical services staffed with at least one paramedic and one EMT.  
 

b) Personnel Licensure and Certification and Training Requirements 

All of Contractor's ambulance personnel responding to emergency medical requests shall be 
currently and appropriately licensed, accredited and credentialed, as appropriate, to practice 

in Contra Costa County. Contractor shall retain on file at all times copies of the current and 
valid licenses and/or certifications of all emergency medical personnel performing services 
under  this  Agreement.  LEMSA  certification/licensure  requirements  may  be  downloaded 
from  the  LEMSA  website.  At  a  minimum,  the  Contractor  shall  ensure  that  ambulance 

personnel receive in addition to the required training defined in State and LEMSA policies, 
the following training and/or certifications. 

(1) Required Trauma Training 

Contractor shall staff each ALS ambulance with a minimum of one paramedic certified in 

PreHospital Trauma Life Support (PHTLS), International Trauma Life Support (ITLS), or 
the  Contractor  shall  document  that  each  paramedic  has  satisfactorily  completed 
comparable training adequate to ensure competency in the skills included in the PHTLS 
or  ITLS curriculum and approved by the EMS Medical Director. Contractor shall  retain 

on file at all times, copies of the current training documentation and valid certifications 
of all PHTLS or ITLS qualified paramedics performing services under this Agreement. 
 
All paramedics shall be required by Contractor to obtain certification in PHTLS, ITLS, or 

have completed a comparable program within three (3) months of hire or execution of 
the Agreement. 

(2) Required Pediatric Training and Performance 

Contractor shall staff each ALS ambulance with a minimum of one paramedic certified in 

pediatric  Education  for  Prehospital  Personnel  (PEPP)  or  Pediatric  Advanced  Life 
Support  (PALS).  All  paramedics  shall  be  required  by  Contractor  to  complete  training 
within  six  (6) months of  hire.  Contractor  shall  retain on  file  at  all  times,  copies of  the 



 

Page 32 

current  training  documentation  and  valid  certifications  of  all  PEPP  or  PALS  qualified 
paramedics performing services under this Agreement. 
 

Contractor  will  supplement  required  PEPP  or  PALS  training  with  annual  infant  and 
pediatric  simulation  training  focused  on  early  recognition  and  management  of  pre‐
arrest and other life threatening conditions. 
 

Contractor will  require  all  field personnel  to  review prehospital  procedures  for  Safely 
Surrendered Baby Program. 

(3) Required Institute of Healthcare Improvement (IHI) Certificate of Patient Safety, Quality and 
Leadership 

Contractor  Quality,  Clinical  and  Supervisory  personnel  shall  complete  an  IHI  Open 
School  online  certificate  in  Patient  Safety,  Quailty  Quality  and  Leadership  within  18 
months of hire. Contractor shall retain on file at all times, copies of the current training 
documentation and valid certifications for specified personnel under this Agreement. 

(4) Company and EMS System Orientation and On-Going Preparedness 

Contractor shall properly orient all field personnel before assigning them to respond to 
emergency  medical  requests.  Such  orientation  shall  include  at  a  minimum,  provider 
agency  policies  and  procedures;  EMS  system  overview;  EMS  policies  and  procedures; 
radio communications with and between the provider agency, base hospitals, receiving 

hospitals,  and  County  communications  centers;  map  reading  skills  including  key 
landmarks, routes to hospitals and other major receiving facilities within the County and 
in  surrounding  areas;  and  ambulance  and  equipment  utilization  and maintenance.  In 
addition, all frontline personnel must receive continual orientation to customer service 

expectations,  cultural  awareness,  performance  improvement  and  the  billing  and 
reimbursement process. 

(5) Preparation for Multi-casualty Incident 

Contractor shall train all ambulance personnel and supervisory staff in their respective 

roles and responsibilities under the Contra Costa Multi‐Casualty Incident Plan, which is 
on file at the LEMSA, and prepare them to function in the medical portion of the Incident 
Command System. The specific roles of the Contractor and other Public Safety personnel 
will be defined by the relevant plans and command structure. 

(6) Required Assaultive Behavior Management Training 

Contractor  shall  provide  ambulance  personnel  with  the  training,  knowledge, 
understanding, and skills  to effectively manage patients with psychiatric, drug/alcohol 
or other behavioral or stress related problems, as well as difficult or potentially difficult 

scenes on an on‐going basis. Emphasis shall be on techniques for establishing a climate 
conducive to effective field management and for preventing the escalation of potentially 
volatile situations. 



 

Page 33 

(7) Driver Training 

Contractor shall maintain an on‐going driver‐training program for ambulance personnel. 
The program, the number of  instruction hours, and the system for  integration  into the 

Contractor's operations (e.g., accident review boards,  impact of accidents on employee 
performance  reviews  and  compensation,  etc.)  will  be  reviewed  and  is  subject  to 
approval  by  the  LEMSA  initially  and  on  an  annual  basis  thereafter.  Training  and  skill 
proficiency  is  required  at  initial  employment with  annual  training  refresher  and  skill 

confirmation. 

(8) Infection Control 

Contractor  shall  create  a  culture  focused  on  infection  prevention  that  focuses  on 
aggressive  hygiene  practices;  personal  protective  equipment  and  competency‐based 

training  in  donning  and  doffing  PPE  (e.g.  eye  protection,  gloves,  etc).  The  Contractor 
shall develop and strictly enforce policies for infection control, cross contamination and 
soiled materials disposal to decrease the chance of communicable disease exposure.  
 

Contractor  will  comply  with  county  local  infectious  disease  reporting  program  and 
strictly enforce polices for infection prevention and control. These policies shall conform 
to  all  Federal,  State  and  local  statutes,  directives  and  guidelines  including,  but  not 
limited to, CALOSHA and the CDC.  It  is  the county expectation that  the Contractor will 

adopt procedures that meet or exceed all requirements for dealing with these matters. 

(9) Critical Incident Stress Management 

Contractor  shall  establish  a  repetitive  stress  and  critical  incident  stress  action  plan. 
Included shall be an ongoing stress reduction program for  its employees and access to 
trained  and  experienced  professional  counselors.  Plans  for  these  programs  shall  be 

submitted to the Contract Administrator for approval. 

(10) Homeland Security 

Contractor  and  Contractor’s  employees  shall  participate  in  and  receive  training  in 
Incident Command System (ICS) and Homeland Security  issues,  including participating 

in  existing  programs  available  within  the  County  for  dealing  with  terrorist  events, 
weapons of mass destruction and other Homeland Security issues. 

(11) HIPAA Compliance 

Contractor  shall  provide  initial  and  ongoing  training  for  all  personnel  regarding 

compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the 
current  rules  and  regulations  enacted  by  the  U.S.  Department  of  Health  and  Human 
Services. 

(12) Compliance 

Contractor shall provide initial and ongoing compliance training for all personnel. This 
training  shall  be  in  accordance  with  the  OIG  Compliance  Program  Guidance  for 



 

Page 34 

Ambulance Suppliers.9 This training is one component of the Compliance Plan required 
of the Contractor.  
 

Proposer shall describe how  it  intends  to comply with  the above  training and certification 
requirements. The Proposer will delineate how these programs will be provided, by whom, 
where, and other information to help the LEMSA understand the Proposer’s commitment to 
meet these Core Requirements. 

 

D. Operations 

1. Operations Overview 

The performance specifications set forth in this RFP encourage continuous improvements in the level 
of  service  provided  in  Contra  Costa  County.  The  RFP  provides  clarification  of  expectations  and 

accountability. The following provisions define these expectations, core requirements, and activities 
required of the Contractor. 

a) Emergency Response Zones  

The  Emergency  Response  Zones  (ERZ)  are  separately  delineated  areas,  which  have  two 
levels  of  ambulance  call  density.  The  call  density  designations  are  defined  as  high 
density/urban‐suburban and low density/rural. The call density designations within the ERZ 

are  distinguished  by  response  times.  The  Call  Density  area  designations  of  the  ERZ  are 
included in Appendix 6. 
 
As previously described, the current system utilizes five (5) ERZ, A through E.  The two Plans 

to be addressed in the response to this RFP have four (4) ERZ in Plan A, and three (3) ERZ 
for Plan B. 
 
Under  Plan  A,  the  Designated  EOA  is  divided  into  four  (4)  Emergency  Response  Zones 

(ERZ’s)  for  calculation  of  ambulance  response  times  and  penalties.  The  zones,  shown  in 
Appendix 3, are: 

 Zone A – City of Richmond 
 Zone B—West County,  not  including  the City of Richmond  (Cities of El Cerrito, 

San  Pablo,  Kensington,  Rodeo,  Hercules,  and  Pinole  and  surrounding 
unincorporated  areas,  including  areas  served  by  Rodeo‐Hercules  Fire  and 
Crockett‐Carquinez Fire) 

 Zone C—Central County (Cities of Clayton, Concord, Lafayette, Martinez, Pleasant 
Hill, and Walnut Creek and surrounding unincorporated areas served by Contra 

Costa County Fire) 
 Zone  D—East  County  (Cities  of  Antioch  and  Pittsburg  and  surrounding 

unincorporated  area  served  by  Contra  Costa  County  Fire,  Cities  of  Brentwood 
and Oakley and unincorporated areas served by East Contra Costa County Fire) 

 
                                                                  

9 Federal Register / Vol. 68, No. 56 / Monday, March 24, 2003 



 

Page 35 

Under  Plan  B,  the  Designated  EOA  is  divided  into  three  (3)  Emergency  Response  Zones 
(ERZ’s)  for  calculation  of  ambulance  response  times  and  penalties.    The  zones,  shown  in 
Appendix 3, are: 

 Zone  A—West  County  (Cities  of  Richmond,  El  Cerrito,  San  Pablo,  Kensington, 
Rodeo, Hercules,  and Pinole  and  surrounding  unincorporated  areas,  including 
areas served by Rodeo‐Hercules Fire and Crockett‐Carquinez Fire) 

 Zone  B—Central  County  (Cities  of  Clayton,  Concord,  Lafayette,  Martinez, 

Pleasant Hill, and Walnut Creek and surrounding unincorporated areas served 
by Contra Costa County Fire) 

 Zone  C—East  County  (Cities  of  Antioch  and  Pittsburg  and  surrounding 
unincorporated area  served by Contra Costa County Fire,  Cities of Brentwood 

and Oakley and unincorporated areas served by East Contra Costa County Fire) 
 

b) All Emergency and Non-emergency ALS Ambulance Calls 

The  RFP  is  to  result  in  a  contract  assigning  an  exclusive  operating  area  provider  for  all 
Emergency Ambulance Requests originating within the EOA and received through the 9‐1‐1 
system as well as those emergency calls received through means other than 9‐1‐1. The RFP 

also includes ALS interfacility transports originating in Contra Costa County. 

c) Primary Response to Isolated Peripheral Areas of the EOA 

While  the Contractor has  the exclusive  right  to all  emergency calls originating  in  the EOA, 
there  are  areas  on  the  periphery  of  the  County  where  the  nearest  paramedic‐staffed 
ambulance may be located in an adjacent jurisdiction. In the interest of getting the quickest 

ambulance  to  the  patient,  LEMSA  requires  the  Contractor  to  make  a  good  faith  effort  to 
execute  a  satisfactory  mutual  aid  agreement  with  the  agencies  responding  from  a 
neighboring jurisdiction.  The LEMSA will approve an appropriately structured agreement to 
use  the closer ambulances.In  the  interest of getting  the quickest ambulance  to  the patient, 
LEMSA  will  approve  the  use  of  these  closer  ambulances  contingent  upon  the  Contractor 

executing  a  satisfactory  mutual  aid  agreement  with  the  agencies  responding  from  a 
neighboring jurisdiction. 

d) Substantial Penalty Provisions for Failure to Respond 

The Contractor is to deploy and staff ambulances in a manner that allows for a response to 
all  medical  emergency  dispatches.  In  the  event  the  Contractor  does  not  respond  with  an 

ambulance  to  an  emergency medical  call,  the penalty  assessed  is  substantial,  beginning  at 
$10,000 per  incident. These are rare and  isolated events  that may never occur and should 
not be confused with late or outlier responses. Examples of Failure to Respond include the 
failure of dispatch to notify a crew to respond to a request for ambulance services, failure of 
a  crew  to  respond  to  a  request  from  dispatch,  and  diversion  of  an  ambulance  crew  to 

another call without reassigning and sending an ambulance to the initial request. 



 

Page 36 

2. Transport Requirement and Limitations 

As  outlined  in  greater  detail  in  other  sections,  Contractor  has  an  obligation  to  respond  to  all 

emergency medical  requests  in  the  County  and  provide  ambulance  transport.  However,  there  are 
limitations and flexibilities as described herein. 

a) Destinations 

Contractor shall be required to transport patients from all areas of the County, in accordance 
with the LEMSA Medical Control Destination Protocols included in LEMSA’s policy manual. 

b) Prohibition against Influencing Destination Decisions 

Contractor  personnel  are  prohibited  from  attempting  to  influence  a  patient’s  destination 

selection other than as outlined in the destination policy. 

3. Response Time Performance Requirements 

“Response  times,”  as  defined  in  Section  IV.D.5  below  (Response  Time  Measurement 
Methodology),  are  a  combination  of  dispatch,  operations,  and  field  operations.  Because  this 

Agreement is performance based, the LEMSA will not limit Contractor’s flexibility in the methods 
of providing ambulance service. This is based upon Contractor's commitment to conform to the 
Response Time standards set forth below (the Response Time Standards). Therefore, an error on 
Contractor’s part in one phase of its operation (e.g. ambulance dispatch, system deployment plan, 

ambulance maintenance, etc.) shall not be the basis for an exception to Contractor's performance 
in  another  phase  of  its  operation  (e.g.  clinical  performance  or  response  time  performance). 
Appropriate  Response  Time  performance  is  the  result  of  a  coordinated  effort  of  Contractor's 
total  operation  and  therefore,  is  solely  Contractor's  responsibility.  Response  Times  shall  be 

measured in minutes and integer seconds, and shall be “time stamped” by the medical dispatch 
center as to when the call is transferred to the Contractor and integrated with the time stamping 
of the Contractor’s computer aided dispatch system. The County and the LEMSA will work with 
the Contractor to assure that the Contractor’s dispatch clocks can be synchronized to the medical 

communications center dispatch CADs. 

a) Description of Call Classification 

These  Specifications  outline  four  (4)  priorities  with  which  Contractor  must  comply  by 
meeting specified Response Times. The call classification as Emergency or Non‐Emergency 
and  as  Priority  1  through  3  is  accomplished  by  presumptive  prioritization  in  accordance 
with the then current Emergency Medical Dispatching protocols as approved by the LEMSA. 

The fourth priority includes ALS non‐emergency interfacility transfers originating within the 
EOA.   

b) Response Time Performance Requirements 

The two areas ‐‐ designated as high call density (A) and low call density (B) ‐‐ will be used 
for Response Time monitoring, reporting, and compliance purposes. Contractor's Response 
Time  on  requests  for  emergency medical  service  originating  from within  the  service  area 

shall meet the following performance standards: 



 

Page 37 

(1) Potentially Life Threatening Emergency Response (Priority 1) 

Priority 1 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 
dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 

 
Contractor  shall  place  an Emergency Ambulance  on  the  scene  of  each  life‐threatening 
emergency assignment as presumptively designated by the Contractor’s dispatch center 
as Priority 1 within the specified Response Time for that ERZ and call density  level on 

not less than 90 percent of all Priority 1 response requests. 
 
The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6 
 

For  every  presumptively  defined  life‐threatening  emergency  call  exceeding  the 
Response Time Standard defined herein, Contractor shall document in writing the cause 
of the extended Response Time and Contractor’s efforts to eliminate recurrence. 

(2) Non-Life Threatening Emergency Response (Priority 2) 

Priority 2 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 
dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 
 
Contractor  shall  place  an  Emergency  Ambulance  on  the  scene  of  each  non‐life 

threatening  emergency  assignment  as  presumptively  designated  by  the  Contractor’s 
dispatch center as Priority 2 within  the specified Response Time  for  that ERZ and call 
density level on not less than 90 percent of all Priority 2 response requests as measured 
within any consecutive 30‐day period.  

 
The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6. 
 

(3) Non Emergency Response (Priority 3) 

Priority 3 responses are defined by the dispatch protocols used by the County medical 

dispatch centers as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 
 
Contractor  shall  place  an  emergency Ambulance  on  the  scene  of  each  non‐emergency 
assignment as presumptively designated by the Contractor’s dispatch center as Priority 

3 within the specified Response Time for that ERZ and call density level on not less than 
90 percent of all Priority 3 response requests as measured within any consecutive 30‐
day period.  
 

The applicable Response Time performance requirements are specified in Tables 5 & 6 
 

(4) Interfacility ALS Non-emergency Transports (Priority 4) 

Priority 4  requests  for  ambulance  service are defined as non‐emergency  transports at 

the ALS level of service. 
 



 

Page 38 

Contractor  shall  place  an  ALS  ambulance  on  the  scene  of  at  least  90  percent  of  all 
Priority 4 scheduled ambulance requests within fifteen minutes zero seconds (15:00) of 
the  scheduled  time.  This  standard  shall  apply  to  all  requests  for  service  where  the 

scheduled time  for patient pickup  is greater than three hours  from the  time the call  is 
received in the Contractor’s Dispatch Center. 
 
If  the  service  receives  an  emergency  request  for  an  ALS  interfacility  transport,  the 

applicable  Response  Time  requirement  will  be  the  same  as  that  for  Priority  2  level 
requests. 
 
If  a  request  for non‐emergency  transportation  is  received without a  three‐hour notice 

the Response Time requirement will be arrival of the ambulance at the patient location 
within 60 minutes of the time of the request. 

c) Summary of Response Time Requirements 

Tables 5 & 6 summarize the Response Time compliance requirements – also referred to as 
the  Response  Time  Standards  ‐  for  ambulances  in  the  specified  ERZ,  density  level,  and 
priority. 

Table 5. Response Time Compliance Requirements for Plan A 

All Contra Costa County Emergency Response Zones 

Priority 
Level 

ERZ  Compliance  High Call Density 
Urban/Suburban 

Low Call Density  
Rural 

Priority 1  A  90%  ≤ 10:00  N/A 

Priority 1  B, C, D  90%  ≤ 11:45  ≤ 20:00 

Priority 1  D  
(Bethel Island) 

90%  ≤ 16:45  ≤ 20:00 

Priority 2  A, B, C, D  90%  ≤ 15:00  ≤ 30:00 

Priority 3  A, B, C, D  90%  ≤ 30:00  ≤ 45:00 

Priority 4  A, B, C, D  90%  +/ 15 minutes (scheduled) 
or ≤ 60:00 minutes 

    N/A 

 
Table 6. Response Time Compliance Requirements for Plan B 

All Contra Costa County Emergency Response Zones 

Priority 
Level 

ERZ  Compliance 
High Call Density 
Urban/Suburban 

Low Call Density  
Rural 

Priority 1  A, B, C  90%  ≤ 12:45  ≤ 20:00 

Priority 2  A, B, C  90%  ≤ 15:00  ≤ 30:00 

Priority 3  A, B, C  90%  ≤ 30:00  ≤ 45:00 

Priority 4  A, B, C  90% 
+/ 15 minutes (scheduled) 

or ≤ 60:00 minutes 
    N/A 

 



 

Page 39 

4. Modifications During the Term of Agreement 

The County  is planning  improvements  to medical dispatch during  the  term of  the Agreement.  It  is 

expected  that  more  specific  prioritization  of  calls  will  be  implemented  (i.e.  MPDS).  At  that  time 
response time requirements will be modified. 
 
The LEMSA also recognizes that continuing research is being completed related to the continuum of 

care  for medical  events,  including  the  relevance  of  time  intervals.  The  LEMSA will  work with  the 
Contractor to modify response time requirements based on benefits derived by the system’s patients. 
 
Also, call density changes will occur which may expand areas that are categorized as Low Call Density 

necessitating changes to assign these areas the High Call Density desigation. 
 
In summary, it is expected that changes to the Response Time Requirements, ERZs, and Call Density 
designations will be evaluated and implemented during the term of the Agreement. 

5. Response Time Measurement Methodology 

Contractor's  Response  Times  shall  be  calculated  on  a monthly  basis  to  determine  compliance 
with the standards set  forth  in Tables 5 & 6 above.   At  the end of each calendar month, a date 

within the last 15 days of the month will be randomly selected.  This date will represent the end 
date of the 30‐day compliance measurement period.  
 
The Response Time measurement methodology employed can significantly influence operational 
requirements for the EMS system. The following are applicable: 

a) Call Receipt 

The Contractors’ Response Time clock begins at “Call Receipt” which is defined as when the 
communications  center  that  directly  dispatches  the  ambulances  receives  adequate 
information to identify the location of the call and the priority level, or 30 seconds of receipt, 
whichever is less. 

b) At Scene 

“At Scene” time means the moment the first Emergency Ambulance arrives and stops at the 

exact  location where  the  ambulance  shall  be parked while  the  crew exits  to  approach  the 
Patient and notifies Dispatch that it is fully stopped. Only the arrival of a transport capable 
ambulance  shall  constitute  “At  Scene.”  This  does  not  include  a  supervisory  or  other  non‐
transport capable unit. In situations where the Ambulance has responded to a location other 

than  the  scene  (e.g.  staging  areas  for  hazardous  materials/violent  crime  incidents,  non‐
secured scenes, gated communities or complexes, or wilderness  locations), arrival at scene 
shall be the time the Ambulance arrives at the designated staging location or nearest public 
road access point to the patient’s location. 

c) Response Time 

The Response Time is defined as the interval, in exact minutes and seconds, between the Call 

Receipt time and arrival At Scene time, or the time it is cancelled by a public safety agency. 



 

Page 40 

d) Failure to Report at Scene Time 

In  instances  when  ambulance  crews  fail  to  report  “At  Scene,”  the  time  of  the  next 
communication  between  dispatch  and  the  ambulance  crew  shall  be  used  as  the  At‐Scene 
time. However, Contractor may document the actual arrival time through other means (e.g. 

First Responder, AVL, communications tapes/logs, etc.) so long as an auditable report of any 
edits is produced. 

e) Calculating Upgrades, Downgrades, Reassignments and Canceled Responses 

From  time  to  time  special  circumstances may  cause  changes  in  call  priority  classification. 
Response Time calculations for determination of compliance with Agreement standards and 
penalties for non‐compliance will be as follows: 

(1) Upgrades 

If an assignment is upgraded prior to the arrival on scene of the Emergency Ambulance 
(e.g.  from  Priority  2  to  Priority  1),  Contractor’s  compliance  and  penalties  will  be 
calculated based on the shorter of: 

a) Time  elapsed  from  dispatch  to  time  of  upgrade  plus  the  higher  priority 
Response Time Standard; or 

b) The lower priority Response Time Standard 

For  example,  a  call  is  initially  dispatched  as  a  Priority  3  (non‐emergency)  and  it  is 
upgraded  to  a  Priority  2  (non‐life  threatening  emergency).    The  applicable  response 

time  requirement  will  be  shorter  of  the  Priority  3  Response  Time  or  the  sum  of  the 
elapsed time from Call Receipt to the time of the upgrade plus the Priority 2 Response 
Time. 

(2) Downgrades 

If a call is downgraded prior to arrival on scene of the Emergency Ambulance (e.g. from 
Priority 1 to Priority 2), Contractor’s compliance and penalties will be determined by: 

a) If  the  time  of  the  downgrade  occurs  after  the  Emergency  Ambulance  has 
exceeded  the  higher  priority  Response  Time  Standard,  the  more  stringent 

higher priority standard will apply; or  
b) If  the  time  of  the  downgrade  occurs  before  the  Emergency  Ambulance  has 

exceeded the higher priority Response Time Standard, the less stringent lower 
priority  will  apply.  In  all  such  cases,  documentation  must  be  presented  for 

validation  of  the  reason  why  the  priority  status  was  downgraded.  If  the 
downgrade  was  justified,  in  the  sole  discretion  of  the  LEMSA,  the  longer 
standard will apply. 

(3) Reassignment en route 

If an Emergency Ambulance is reassigned en route or turned around prior to arrival on 
the scene (e.g. to respond to a higher priority request), compliance and penalties will be 
calculated based on the Response Time Standard applicable to the assigned priority of 
the  initial  response.  The  Response  Time  clock  will  not  stop  until  the  arrival  of  an 

Emergency Ambulance on the scene from which the Ambulance was diverted. 



 

Page 41 

(4) Canceled Calls 

If an assignment is cancelled prior to arrival on the scene by the emergency ambulance, 
Contractor’s compliance and penalties will be calculated based on the elapsed time from 

Call Receipt to the time the call was canceled. 

f) Response Times outside EOA are Excluded 

Contractor shall not be held accountable for Emergency Response Time compliance for any 
assignment originating outside the EOA. Responses to requests for service outside the EOA 
will not be counted in the total number of calls used to determine compliance. 

g) Each Incident a Separate Response 

Each incident will be counted as a single response regardless of the number of units that are 

utilized.  The  Response  Time  of  the  first  arriving  Emergency  Ambulance  will  be  used  to 
compute the Response Time for that incident. 

h) Response Time Compliance for Individual Emergency Response Zones 

Response  time  requirements  for  the  Emergency  Response  Zones  shall  be  reported  and 
utilized  for  compliance  purposes.  Specifically,  all  responses  in  each  ERZ  for  each  priority 
level are calculated. These calculations will be used for determination of any penalties. 

i) Equity in Response Times throughout the County 

The  LEMSA  recognizes  that  equity  in  Response  Times  is  largely  based  upon  call  and 

population  densities within  the  service  area.  In  developing Response  Time  Standards,  the 
LEMSA has established two (2) call density designations, low and high‐density. 
 
The LEMSA may evaluate the call density and zone structure to address changes occurring 

within each zone. Should  the call density of any significant contiguous area within  the  low 
call density zones become equal to or greater than the call density to the adjacent high call 
density  zone,  then  that  area  will  be  considered  for  reclassification  for  Response  Time 
compliance. Response time compliance changes pursuant to this section will be modified by 

readjusting the then current map defining the density designations. 
 
The LEMSA reserves the right to look at any area of the EOA to identify if there are pockets of 
poor Response Time performance and refer such findings to the Contractor for mitigation. 

6. Response Time Exceptions and Exception Requests 

Contractor  shall  maintain  mechanisms  for  backup  capacity,  or  reserve  production  capacity  to 
increase  production  should  a  temporary  system  overload  persist.  However,  it  is  understood  that 

from time to time unusual factors beyond Contractor’s reasonable control affect the achievement of 
specified  Response  Times  Standards.  In  the  monthly  calculation  of  Contractor's  performance  to 
determine compliance with the Response Time Standards, every request for Emergency Ambulance 
Services shall be included except as follows: 

a) Multi-casualty Disaster 

The  Response  Time  requirements may  be  suspended  at  the  sole  discretion  of  the  LEMSA 

during  a  declared  multi‐casualty  incident,  medical  advisory  or  disaster  in  Contra  Costa 



 

Page 42 

County  or  during  a  declared  disaster  in  a  neighboring  jurisdiction  to  which  ambulance 
assistance is being provided as requested by the LEMSA. 

b) Good Cause 

The Contract Administrator may allow exceptions to the Response Time Standards for good 

cause as determined at his or her sole discretion. At a minimum, the asserted justification for 
exception must  have  been  a  substantial  factor  in  producing  a  particular  excess  Response 
Time, and Contractor must have demonstrated a good faith effort to respond to the call(s). 
Good  cause  for  an  exception  may  include,  but  is  not  limited  to:  incorrect  or  inaccurate 

dispatch information received from the PSAP or calling party; disrupted voice or data radio 
transmission  (not  due  to  Contractor  equipment  or  infrastructure);  material  change  in 
dispatched  location;  unavoidable  telephone  communications  failure;  inability  to  locate 
address due to non‐existent address; inability to locate patient due to patient departing the 
scene;  delays  caused  by  traffic  secondary  to  the  incident;  unavoidable  delays  caused  by 

extreme inclement weather (e.g.,  fog); when units are providing County authorized mutual 
aid; and remote calls or off‐road locations. 
 
Remote calls are defined when the patients’  locations are greater than ten (10) road miles 

from the nearest boundary of the high‐density area. 
 
Extended delays at hospitals for transferring patients to receiving facility personnel may be 
considered as potential good cause exceptions at the sole discretion of the LEMSA. 

 
Equipment  failure, ambulance failure,  lost ambulance crews, or other causes deemed to be 
within the Contractor’s control or awareness shall not be grounds to grant an exception to 
compliance with the Response Time Standard. 

 
Contractor is expected to mitigate all and any delays associated with potential or actual work 
actions without interrupting EMS System Service delivery. 

c) Exception Request Procedure 

It  is  the  Contractor’s  responsibility  to  apply  to  the  LEMSA  for  an  exception  to  a  required 
Response Time. 

 
If  Contractor  feels  that  any  response  or  group  of  responses  should  be  excluded  from  the 
calculation  of  Response  Time  compliance  due  to  unusual  factors  beyond  Contractor's 
reasonable  control,  the  Contractor  must  provide  detailed  documentation  for  each  actual 

response  in  question  to  the  LEMSA  and  request  that  the  LEMSA  exclude  these  runs  from 
calculations and late penalties. Any such request must be submitted via the method specified 
by  the LEMSA and  received by  the Contract Administrator within 10  calendar days  of  the 
completion of the response. A request for an exception received after the 10 days will not be 

considered. The Contract Administrator or designees will review each exception request and 
make a decision for approval or denial. 
 



 

Page 43 

At the sole discretion of the LEMSA, calls with extended Chute Times (the time interval from 
Dispatch  to  ambulance  En  Route)  of  more  than  two  (2)  minutes  may  be  excluded  from 
consideration as Exceptions.  All decisions by the Contract Administrator shall be considered 

final. 
 

7. Response-time Performance Reporting Procedures and Penalty Provisions 

a) Response Time Performance Reporting Requirements 

(1) Documentation of Incident Time Intervals 

The  Contractor  shall  document  all  times  necessary  to  determine  total  ambulance 
Response Time  including, but not  limited  to,  time call  received by  the dispatch center, 
time location verified, time ambulance crew assigned, time en route to scene, arrival at 
scene  time,  total  on‐scene  time,  time  en  route  to  hospital,  total  time  to  transport  to 

hospital, and arrival at hospital time. Other times may be required to document specific 
activities  such  as  arrival  at  patient  side,  times  of  defibrillation,  administration  of 
treatments  and  medications  and  other  instances  deemed  important  for  clinical  care 
monitoring  and  research  activities.  All  times  shall  be  recorded  on  the  Patient  Care 

Report Form (PCR) and in Contractor’s computer aided dispatch system. The Contractor 
will  provide  an  interface  with  the  computer  aided  dispatch  database  and  Electronic 
Patient  Care Report  Form  (EPCR)  database  for  the  LEMSA  to  extract  and  corroborate 
Response Time performance.  Contractor may not make  changes  to  times  entered  into 

the CAD after the event. Only LEMSA personnel may make changes to times within the 
computer.  The  contractor may  request  such  changes  from  the  LEMSA when  errors  or 
omissions are discovered. The LEMSA has sole discretion whether changes to times are 
acceptable. 

(2) Response Time Performance Report 

Within  10  business  days  following  the  end  of  each  month,  the  Contractor’s  dispatch 
center shall document and report to the LEMSA and the County, in a manner required by 
the LEMSA, information as specified in Section IV.D. 

a) Contractor  shall  use  Response  Time  data  in  an  on‐going  manner  to  evaluate 
Contractor's performance and compliance with Response Time Standards in an 
effort to continually improve its Response Time performance levels. 

b) Contractor  shall  identify  the  causes  of  failures  of  performance,  and  shall 
document efforts to eliminate these problems on an on‐going basis. 

c) Contractor  shall  provide  an  explanation  for  every  call  exceeding  the  required 
Response Time interval and describe steps taken to reduce extended responses 
in the future. 

b) Penalty Provisions 

Isolated instances of individual deviations of Response Time compliance shall be treated as 

instances  of  minor,  non‐compliance  under  the  Agreement.  However,  severe  or  chronic 



 

Page 44 

deviations  of  Response  Time  compliance  may  constitute  a  default  of  the  Agreement  as 
defined below. 

(1) Penalty for Failure to Report On-scene Time 

Contractor  shall  pay  LEMSA  a  $250  penalty  each  time  an  emergency  ambulance  is 
dispatched  and  the  ambulance  crew  fails  to  report  and  document  on‐scene  time.  The 
Contractor,  in  order  to  rectify  the  failure  to  report  an on‐scene  time  and  to  avoid  the 
penalty may demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Contract Administrator an accurate 

on‐scene time. 
 
Where  an  on‐scene  time  for  a  particular  emergency  call  is  not  documented  or 
demonstrated  to be accurate,  the Response Time  for  that call shall be deemed to have 

exceeded  the  required  Response  Time  for  purposes  of  determining  Response  Time 
compliance. 

(2) Penalty for Failure to Comply with Response Time Requirements 

Contractor  shall  pay  LEMSA a penalty  each month  that  the  Contractor  fails  to  comply 

with  the  Response  Time  requirements  based  on  the  percentage  of  compliance  for  all 
responses in the categories represented in Table 7 below. 
 
Failure of the Contractor to achieve at least 88% Response Time compliance in each of 

the ERZ for Emergency Ambulance requests will require that the Contractor submit and 
implement a deployment plan that includes additional staffed ambulance hours aimed to 
achieve 90% compliance with Response Times. 
 

Table 7. County Response Time Penalties 

Emergency Ambulance Requests  Priority 1 Responses for each of the ERZ 

Compliance %  Penalty 

≥ 89% < 90%  $15,000 

≥ 88% < 89%  $25,000 

< 88%  $50,000 

 
Emergency Ambulance Requests  Priority 2 Responses for each of the ERZ 

Compliance %  Penalty 

≥ 89% < 90%  $5,000 

≥ 88% < 89%  $10,000 

< 88%  $15,000 

 
Emergency Ambulance Requests  Priority 3 Responses for each of the ERZ 

Compliance %  Penalty 

≥ 89% < 90%  $2,500 

≥ 88% < 89%  $5,000 

< 88%  $7,500 

 
NonEmergency ALS Interfacility Transports  Priority 4 Responses for entire EOA 



 

Page 45 

Compliance %  Penalty 

≥ 89% < 90%  $4,000 

≥ 88% < 89%  $6,000 

< 88%  $7,500 

 

(3) Repetitive Non-Compliance 

Penalties  are  based  on measurement  of  response  time  performance  for  all  responses 
within the EOA and each ERZ and grouped by priority level. The different density areas 

within  each  ERZ  will  be  grouped  for  compliance  measurement.  Priority  4  responses 
(non‐emergency ALS) will be reported for compliance measurement for the entire EOA 
and not included with the priority levels in each ERZ. 
 

The Contractor is required to report performance for each priority level in each ERZ and 
in  the  designated  ambulance  zones.  Repetitive  non‐compliance  in  any  given  subset  is 
defined as three consecutive months or five instances on non‐compliance in any twelve‐
month period. If the Contractor is repetitively non‐compliant in any subset measure, the 
Contractor  shall  submit  a  plan  of  corrective  action  to  LEMSA within  30  days  of  being 

notified  of  repetitive  non‐compliance  by  LEMSA.  Failure  to  correct  repetitive  non‐
compliance may be considered a material breach of the Agreement. 
 
Any  subset  of  measurement  of  calls  that  does  not  exceed  100  responses  in  a  single 

month  shall  be  added  to  the  next  month’s  responses  and  accumulated  until  the 
minimum of  100  responses  is  documented  at which  point  compliance  determinations 
will be made. 
 

(4) Penalties for Outlier Responses 

An  “Outlier”  Response  Time  is  defined  as  a  Response  Time  that  is  excessive  for  the 
category,  such  that  it  represents  a  potential  threat  to  health  and  safety  (Outlier).  A 
penalty  shall  be  imposed  for  any  call  for  which  the  actual  Response  Time  equals  or 

exceeds  the applicable  “Outlier Response Time” set  forth  in Table 8. Penalties shall be 
based on ERZ and the Priority level assigned to the call.  
 
The outlier penalty is in addition to a penalty assessed for failure to meet the Response 

Time compliance requirements. 
 

Table 8. Outlier Response Time Penalties 

Priority  
Level 

Outlier Response Times  Penalty per 
Outlier High Call Density  Low Call Density 

Priority 1  >18:59  >29:59  $1,500 

Priority 2  >22:59  >44:59  $1,000 

Priority 3  >29:59  >59:59  $750 

Priority 4  >29:59 late for scheduled    $500 



 

Page 46 

>89:59 for non‐scheduled

 

(5) Additional Penalty Provisions 

The  LEMSA  may  impose  financial  penalties  for  minor  or  major  breaches  of  the 

Agreement. For example, the Agreement will include penalties relating to the failure to 
provide  reports  and  information  to  the  LEMSA by  specified due dates,  failing  to  leave 
PCRs documenting patient care at receiving institutions, failure to respond to a request, 
and responding and transporting in a BLS unit when the call requires an ALS response 

and transport. LEMSA may impose a fine of up to $500 per incident for any minor breach 
of  the  Agreement  not  specifically  addressed  in  the  following  Table  9.  The  following 
specific penalties shall be included in the Agreement: 
 

Table 9. Breach Events and Penalties 

Breach Event  Criteria  Penalty 

Failure to provide 
timely operational 
reports 

Operational and Response Time reports are 
due on a specific date after end of month 

$50 per report per day received after 
specified due date 

Failure to leave 
completed PCR at 
receiving facility 

100 percent of the LEMSA approved Interim 
Patient Care Report (an abbreviated patient 
care report) will be left at the receiving 
facility prior to departure of the ambulance 
crew. 100 percent of the completed PCRs 
will be provided to receiving facility within 
24 hours 

$50 for every instance when the 
Interim Patient Care Report at a 
minimum, is not left at the receiving 
facility prior to crew departure. A 
penalty of $100 for every completed 
PCR not provided to the facility within 
24 hours of patient delivery. 

Response and 
transport by a BLS unit 
when the Priority level 
calls for the patient to 
be transported by an 
ALS unit 

All 9‐1‐1/emergency calls shall be 
responded to by an ALS ambulance and the 
patient transported in the ALS unit as 
defined by the LEMSA 

$1,000 for every incident in which a 
BLS ambulance responds and 
transports a patient that requires ALS 
care according LEMSA policies. 

Failure to provide 
timely quality 
improvement data and 
reports 

Quality improvement and clinical data and 
reports are due on specific dates 

$50 per report or data submission per 
day received after specified due date 

Failure to provide 
timely unusual 
occurrence reports and 
investigation updates 

Unusual occurrence reports and updates on 
investigations of those events are due within 
a specific time from date of the occurrence 
as defined in LEMSA policies and procedures 

$100 per report per day received after 
the specified time frame from the date 
of the occurrence 

Failure to respond to 
an emergency request 
for an Emergency 
Ambulance 

The contractor shall respond to all official 
Emergency Ambulance Service requests 
within the EOA. Failure to respond is defined 
by the Contractor not sending an ambulance 
en route to an emergency request. 

The LEMSA shall impose a minimum 
fine of $10,000 for each failure to 
respond to an official Emergency 
Ambulance request by the Contractor. 
Failure to respond will be defined as 
any call originating within the EOA for 
which the Contractor fails to dispatch 
and no ambulance responds. Prior to 
imposition of this penalty, LEMSA will 
conduct an investigation of the incident 

Improper certification 
Staffing an ambulance with improperly 
certified personnel 

$250 per call responded to by 
improperly certified employee 



 

Page 47 

Failure to comply with 
Against Medical Advice 
(AMA) protocol 

Field personnel fails to comply with 
defined LEMSA policy and procedure for 
AMA 

$500 per AMA documentation and 
protocol failure.  

 

(6) Penalty Disputes 

Contractor may  appeal  to  the  LEMSA  in writing within  10  business  days  of  receipt  of 

notification of the imposition of any penalty or regarding LEMSA's penalty calculations. 
The  Contract  Administrator  will  review  all  such  appeals  and  make  the  decision  to 
eliminate, modify, or maintain the appealed penalty.  

8. Fleet Requirement 

The  Contractor  is  to  maintain  the  number  of  ALS  equipped  and  fully  operating  ambulances  that 
represent at  least 120% of the peak staffing  level. For example,  if  the Contractor’s peak number of 
ambulances is twenty‐seven (27), then the Contractor is to maintain a fleet of at least 33 ambulances 
(27 x 120% = 32.4 rounded to 33). If a fraction is derived when multiplying the peak number of units 

by 120%, the number will be rounded up to the next whole integer. (i.e. 32.4 would be rounded to 
33). 

9. Coverage and Dedicated Ambulances, Use of Stations/Posts 

These specifications are for a performance based approach rather than a level of effort undertaking 
involving  defined  locations.  The  LEMSA  neither  accepts  nor  rejects  Proposer’s  level  of  effort 
estimates; rather the LEMSA accepts the Proposer’s commitment to employ whatever level of effort 
is necessary to achieve the Response Time and other performance results required by the terms of 

the Agreement as outlined in these specifications. 
 
Contractor shall deploy ambulance resources in a manner consistent with this goal. 

 

E. Personnel 

1. Treatment of Incumbent Work Force 

A number of dedicated highly  trained personnel are currently working  in  the Contra Costa County 
EMS system.  In  the event  the Contractor  turns out  to be other  than  the  incumbent provider, every 
effort  must  be  made  to  ensure  a  smooth  transition  and  to  encourage  current  EMS  personnel  to 
remain  with  the  system.  To  that  end,  in  the  event  of  a  change  in  providers,  all  current  qualified 

ambulance  employees  working  within  Contra  Costa  County  (other  than  owners  and  executive 
management) are to be considered for preferential hiring by any new Contractor. A new Contractor is 
expected  to  offer  qualified  non‐supervisory  employees  (EMTs  and  paramedics)  employment  in 
substantially  similar  positions.  Supervisory  and  mid‐management  personnel  should  also  be 

considered by the Contractor for employment in order to retain continuity within the system and a 
career  path  for  the  committed  workforce.    A  new  Contractor  will  consider  current  employee 
scheduling  and  make  reasonable  efforts  to  transition  its  new  employees  to  its  organization  as 
smoothly as possible. While a plan for the transition of EMTs and paramedics  is an element of  this 



 

Page 48 

RFP, Proposers are encouraged to exceed the minimum requirements and provide the strongest plan 
possible  for retention of the  incumbent workforce, and additional points will be awarded for plans 
which exceed the minimum requirements. 

 
Employment  stability  within  the  EMS  system  is  an  important  concern  of  incumbent  employees, 
Contra Costa County, and the LEMSA. Incumbent personnel hired will retain "seniority status" earned 
while working full‐time in the Contra Costa County EMS system. 

 
Contractor  will  provide  full  time  employees  with  a  wage  and  benefit  program  comparable  to  the 
employees’  current  program.  If  an  incumbent  provider  is  successful,  it  agrees  to  maintain,  at  a 
minimum, current salary and benefit levels for personnel and consistent with offerings included in its 

proposal. 
 
The  LEMSA  expects  that  to  attract  and  retain  outstanding  personnel,  Contractor  must  utilize 
reasonable compensation and scheduling methods. Contractor's economic efficiencies are not to be 

derived  from  the use  of  sub‐standard  compensation. The  system  in no way  intends  to  restrict  the 
ingenuity of Contractor and its employees from working out new and creative compensation (salary 
and  benefits)  programs.  The  system’s  goal  is  simply  to  ensure  that  Contractor  initially  and 
throughout the term of the Agreement provides a financial benefit to encourage employee retention 

and recruitment for the system. 
 
Proposer shall describe how it intends to maintain continuity of service in the system by employing 
current personnel and efforts to retain personnel through the term of the Agreement. If the Proposer 

is the current provider,  it shall describe how it  intends to retain personnel through the term of the 
new Agreement. 

2. Character, Competence and Professionalism of Personnel 

The  parties  understand  that  Ambulance  services  are  often  rendered  in  the  context  of  stressful 
situations. The LEMSA expects and requires professional and courteous conduct and appearance at 
all  times  from  Contractor's  Ambulance  personnel,  medical  communications  personnel,  middle 
managers,  and  top executives. Contractor  shall  address and correct any occasional departure  from 
this standard of conduct. 

 
All persons employed by Contractor in the performance of its work shall be competent and holders of 
appropriate licenses and permits in their respective professions and shall undergo a criminal record 
check in accordance with the State of California requirements. Contractor must independently judge 

the employability and potential liability associated with employing any individual with a past history 
of serious offenses. 

3. Internal Health and Safety Programs 

The  Contractor  shall  implement multiple  programs  to  enhance  the  safety  and  health  of  the work 
force. These shall include driver‐training, safety and risk management training. The County requires 
Contractor  to have  in place, prior  to assumption of EMS duties,  an aggressive and effective health, 
safety and loss mitigation program. 



 

Page 49 

 
The Contractor shall provide adequate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and other equipment to 
employees  working  in  hazardous  environments  such  as  routine  care,  rescue  operations,  motor 

vehicle accidents, etc. At a minimum, personal protective gear shall comply with CALOSHA and EMSA 
#216 and shall include appropriate head, respiratory and flesh protection for employees. Policies and 
procedures should clearly describe the routine use of PPE on all patient encounters. 

4. Evolving OSHA & Other Regulatory Requirements 

It  is  anticipated,  during  the  term  of  the  Agreement  that  certain  regulatory  requirements  for 
occupational safety and health including, but not limited to, infection prevention and control, blood‐
borne  and  respiratory  pathogens  and  hazardous  materials,  may  be  increased.  It  is  the  LEMSA’s 

expectation that Contractor will adopt procedures that meet or perform better than all requirements 
for dealing with these matters. 
 
Contractor  shall  make  available  at  no  cost  to  its  employees  all  currently  recommended 

immunizations and health screening to its high‐risk personnel. 

5. Discrimination Not Allowed 

During the performance of the Agreement, Contractor agrees that  it will comply with all applicable 

provisions  of  federal,  state,  and  local  laws  and  regulations  prohibiting  discrimination.  Without 
limiting this, Contractor warrants that it will fully comply with Title VI and VII of the Civil Rights Act 
of  1964,  as  amended,  the  Americans  with  Disabilities  Act  (ADA)  and  all  other  regulations 
promulgated  there  under.  Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or  applicant  for 
employment because of race, religion, color, disability, national origin, sex, sexual orientation, or age. 

Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that employment is offered and that employees are 
treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, disability, national origin, sex, 
sexual orientation, or age. Such action shall include, but is not limited to, the following: employment‐
upgrade, demotion, transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; lay‐off or termination; rates of 

pay or other forms of compensation; and selection, including apprenticeship. 
 

F. Management 

1. Data and Reporting Requirements 

The long‐term success of any EMS system is predicated upon its ability to both measure and manage 

its affairs. Therefore, the LEMSA will require Contractor to provide detailed operational, clinical, and 
administrative data in a manner that facilitates its retrospective analysis. 

a) Dispatch Computer 

The  dispatch  computer  utilized  by  Contractor  shall  include  security  features  preventing 
unauthorized  access  or  retrospective  adjustment  and  full  audit  trail  documentation.  The 
LEMSA will be provided access to all data maintained by the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) 

system  as  necessary  to  analyze  demand  and  determine  deployment  procedures.  The 
Contractor agrees  to allow the LEMSA, at Contractor’s expense,  to  install an  interface with 



 

Page 50 

the  CAD  to  collect  and  monitor  computer‐aided  dispatch  information  and  patient  care 
reports and provide access to the LEMSA to voice recording systems. 
 

The Contractor  in  conjunction with  the LEMSA shall  establish procedures  to automate  the 
monthly reporting requirements and to develop situational status reports that provide alerts 
when system status falls outside expected parameters. 
 

The  interface  made  available  to  the  LEMSA  shall  provide  real‐time  monitoring  of  the 
Contractor’s  CAD  screens  and  at  a  minimum  provide  the  location  and  status  of  active 
ambulance calls, pending calls, location and status of ambulances and crews. 

b) Essential Patient Care Record and Assignment Data 

Contractor  shall  utilize  an  electronic  patient  care  record  system  (PCR)  that  is  HL7 
compatible, NEMSIS 3 and CEMSIS compliant, meets the requirements of the state EMSA and 

is approved by the LEMSA for patient documentation on all EMS system responses including 
patient contacts, canceled calls, interfacility, and non‐transports. The PCR shall be accurately 
completed  to  include  all  information  required  by  and  established  in  Title  22,  Division  9, 
Chapter  4,  Article  8,  Section  100171  and  information  shall  be  distributed  according  to 

established County EMS Policies and Procedures. The Contractor shall leave interim and final 
copies  of  the  PCR  (electronic  or  printed)  at  the  receiving  hospital  upon  delivery  of  each 
patient in accordance with LEMSA policy. 
 

The Contractor shall develop and implement a PCR monitoring process to identify when the 
Interim  and  Final  PCRs  are  provided  to  the  receiving  facilities.  The  results  of  the  PCR 
delivery performance will be reported to the LEMSA monthly. 
 

The  Contractor  will  support  Health  Information  Exchange  (HIE)  with  hospital  medical 
record information systems and create a process for hospitals to view PCRs as soon as they 
are available. 
 

Within  24  hours,  Contractor  shall  provide  access  for  the  Contract  Administrator  and 
receiving hospitals to final patient care records in computer readable format and suitable for 
statistical analysis for all priorities. Records shall contain all information documented on the 
PCR for all EMS system responses including patient contacts, cancelled calls, interfacility, and 

non‐transports. 

c) Records 

Contractor shall complete, maintain, and provide to the LEMSA, the ability to view online via 
a  secure  portal  as  requested,  adequate  records  and  documentation  to  demonstrate  its 
performance compliance and aid LEMSA in  improving, modifying, and monitoring the EMS 
system. 

d) Monthly Reports Required 

Contractor  shall  provide,  within  10  business  days  after  the  first  of  each  calendar  month, 

computer database data  in an electronic  format and  reports pertaining  to  its performance 



 

Page 51 

during  the  preceding  month  as  it  relates  to  the  clinical,  operational,  and  financial 
performance  stipulated  herein.  Contractor  shall  document  and  report  to  Contract 
Administrator  in writing  in a  form required by  the Contract Administrator. Response  time 

compliance and customer complaints/resolutions shall be reported monthly. Reports other 
than Response Time compliance and customer complaints/resolutions may be required less 
frequently than monthly. At the end of each calendar year, no later than November 30 of the 
proceeding year, LEMSA shall provide a list of required reports and their frequency and due 

dates to the Contractor. 
 
Reports in a format approved by the LEMSA shall include, at a minimum: 

(1) Clinical 

 Continuing education compliance reports; 
 Summary of clinical/service inquiries and resolutions; 
 Summary of interrupted calls due to vehicle/equipment failures; and 
 Data  analysis  and  details  of  calls  supporting  clinical  and  medical  oversight  of 

Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, and Cardiac Arrest and other system of care populations. 
 Data analysis and details of calls that result in no‐transport (Against Medical Advice) 

(2) Operational 

 Calls  and  transports,  by  priority  for  each  Emergency  Response  Zone  and  density 

area; 
 A list of each call, sorted by Emergency Response Zone, where there was a failure to 

properly record all times necessary to determine the Response Time; 
 Documentation  of  all  patients  meeting  trauma,  STEMI,  stroke,  or  cardiac  arrest 

criteria including on‐scene time and transport to hospital time; 
 Documentation  and  data  analysis  of  hospital  off‐load  delays,  including  time  unit 

arrived at facility and time patient care was transferred to receiving facility staff and 
duration of off‐load delays; 

 A list of mutual aid responses to and from system; and 

 EMS transports to and from medical aircraft  

(3) Response Time Compliance 

 A  list  of  each  emergency  call  dispatched  for  which  Contractor  did  not  meet  the 
Response Time standard for each Emergency Response Zone and an explanation of 

why the response was late; 
 Canceled calls; and 
 Exception reports and resolution. 

(4) Response Time Statistical Data 

Within 10 business days  following the  last day of each month, Contractor shall ensure 
that ambulance Response Time records are available to LEMSA in a computer readable 
format approved by the Contract Administrator and suitable  for statistical analysis  for 
all ambulance responses originating from requests within the County. The records shall, 

at a minimum, include the following individual data elements: 



 

Page 52 

 unit identifier 
 location of call – street address  
 location of call –  city, town or unincorporated County 

 location of call ‐ longitude 
 location of call ‐ latitude 
 location of call – Emergency Response Zone 
 density area (urban/suburban or rural) 

 nature of call (EMD Code) 
 response code to scene 
 time call received 
 time call dispatched 

 time unit en route 
 time unit upgraded or downgraded 
 time unit on‐scene 
 response code at arrival on scene (for upgrade or downgrade) 

 time unit en route to hospital 
 time unit at hospital 
 time patient handoff to ED staff occurred 
 time unit clear and available for next call 

 outcome (dry run, transport) 
 receiving hospital 
 transport code to hospital 
 system of care call type (i.e. cardiac arrest, trauma, STEMI, stroke)   

 number of patients transported 

(5) Personnel Reports 

Contractor  shall  provide  LEMSA  annually  with  a  list  of  paramedics,  EMTs  and 
dispatchers  currently  employed  by  Contractor  and  shall  update  that  list  monthly,  as 

necessary. 
 
Contractor  shall  immediately  notify  LEMSA when  paramedic  personnel  are  no  longer 
employed as a paramedic. 
 

Contractor shall report any termination or suspension for disciplinary cause, resignation 
or retirement in lieu of investigation and/or disciplinary action or removal from related 
duties due to disciplinary actions as required by Title 22, Division 9, Chapter 6, section 
100208.1. 

 
The personnel  list  shall  include,  at  a minimum,  the name,  address,  telephone number, 
California  paramedic  license  and  expiration  date  or  EMT  certification  and  expiration 
date, ACLS expiration date, CPR expiration date, and California Driver's License number 

of each person on the list. 



 

Page 53 

(6) Community/Governmental Affairs Report 

 Monthly  list  of  meetings  with  constituents  and  stakeholders  (i.e.  community 
engagement) 

 Number  of  conducted  community  education  events  including  location  and  hours 
and number of participants, 

 Number of individuals taught CPR 
 Number of CPR anytime kits and AEDs provided 

 Public Relations (PR) activities, first responder recognition, 
 Government relations contact report. 

(7) Electronic Access 

Contractor shall provide capability for LEMSA, at the Contractor’s expense, to access all 

PCRs and provide a mechanism to create customized reports for LEMSA monitoring and 
review. The electronic access shall also include real‐time monitoring of CAD systems. 

(8) Other Reports 

Contractor  shall  provide  LEMSA  with  such  other  reports  and  records  as  may  be 

reasonably required by the Contract Administrator. 
 

G. EMS System and Community 

1. Participation in EMS System Development 

The  LEMSA  anticipates  further  development  of  its  EMS  system  and  regional  efforts  to  enhance 
disaster  and mutual‐aid  response.  LEMSA  requires  that  its  Contractor  actively  participate  in  EMS 

activities,  committee meetings, and work groups. Contractor agrees  to participate and assist  in  the 
development of system changes. 

2. Accreditation 

Within 24 months following commencement of the term of the Agreement, the Contractor will attain 
accreditation as an ALS Ambulance Service through the Commission on Accreditation of Ambulance 
Services  (CAAS)  or  comparable  organization  as  approved  by  the  LEMSA.  The  Contractor  shall 
maintain its accreditation throughout the term of the Agreement. The LEMSA may levy a penalty of 

$200  for  each  day  that  the  Contractor  is  not  accredited  after  the  first  24 months whether  due  to 
failure to obtain accreditation or a lapse thereof. 

3. Multi-casualty/Disaster Response 

Contractor shall cooperate with the LEMSA in rendering emergency assistance during a declared or 

an undeclared disaster or in multi‐victim response as identified in the LEMSA plans. Contractor must 
have detailed written plans and procedures  to mitigate  impacts  to and ensure  continuous  internal 
operations during all potential emergencies, disasters or work actions (i.e. power failure, information 
systems failure, earthquake). 

 



 

Page 54 

Contractor must have an emergency electrical power system available to provide power to its critical 
command, control, computer and communications systems in the event the normal electrical supply 
is interrupted. This system must be tested periodically per NFPA 110. 

 
In the event the County declares a disaster within the County,  the Contractor will assign a Field or 
Dispatch  Manager/Supervisor  to  deploy  to  the  designated  emergency  operations  center  (when 
activated) as a liaison upon request. 

 
In  the  event  the  County  declares  a  disaster within  the  County,  or  in  the  event  the  County  directs 
Contractor  to  respond  to  a  disaster  in  a  neighboring  jurisdiction,  normal  operations  may  be 
suspended  at  the  discretion  of  the  LEMSA  and  Contractor  shall  respond  in  accordance  with  the 

disaster  plan.  Contractor  shall  use  best  efforts  to  maintain  primary  Emergency  services  and may 
suspend non‐emergency services upon notification on concurrence with the LEMSA. 
 
At  a  multi‐victim  scene,  Contractor's  personnel  shall  perform  in  accordance  with  LEMSA  multi‐

casualty incident response plan and within Incident Command System (ICS). 
 
Contractor shall not release emergency ambulance assets to another jurisdiction without approval of 
the LEMSA. 

 
During a disaster declared by the County, the LEMSA will determine, on a case‐by‐case basis,  if  the 
Contractor may be temporarily exempt from response‐time criteria. When Contractor is notified that 
multi‐casualty or disaster assistance is no longer required, Contractor shall return all of its resources 

to primary area of responsibility and shall resume all operations as required under the Agreement. 

a) Internal Disaster Response Notification 

Contractor  shall develop a plan  for  immediate  recall of personnel during multi‐casualty or 
widespread  disaster.  This  plan  shall  include  the  capability  of  Contractor  to  alert  off‐duty 
personnel. 

b) Disaster Response Vehicle/Equipment 

Contractor  shall  maintain  a  county‐controlled,  state  provided  Disaster  Medical  Support  Unit 
(DMSU). In the absence of a DMSU, the Contractor shall provide one vehicle as a disaster response 
vehicle.  This vehicle shall not be an ambulance used in routine, day‐to‐day operations, but shall be 
kept in good working order and available for emergency response to the scene.  This vehicle may 
be used to carry personnel and equipment to a disaster site.   The following equipment shall be 
stored in this disaster vehicle:  backboards and straps; cervical collars; head immobilization sets 

and foam wedges; PPE, splints for legs and arms; oxygen equipment; extra dressing and bandages; 
advanced life support equipment, especially IV therapy equipment, County approved disaster tags, 
and checklists for medical Incident Command personnel 

c) Incident Notification 

Contractor  shall  have  a mechanism  in  place  to  communicate  current  field  information  to 
appropriate  LEMSA  or  County  Health  Services  staff  during  multi‐casualties,  disaster 
response, hazardous materials incidents, and other unusual occurrences. 



 

Page 55 

d) Ambulance Strike Team 

Contractor  shall  be  able  to  deploy  an  ALS  ambulance  strike  team  consistent  with  State 
Ambulance Strike Team Guidelines. 
 

Contractor shall have staff members trained and certified as Ambulance Strike Team Leaders. 

e) Interagency Training for Exercises/Drills 

Contractor  shall  participate  in  LEMSA  sanctioned  exercises  and  disaster  drills  and  other 
interagency training. 
 

4. Mutual-aid and Stand-by Services 

a) Mutual Aid Requirements 

Contractor shall respond in a mutual aid capacity to other service areas outside of the EOA if 
so  directed  by  Contract  Administrator  or  in  accordance  with  mutual  aid  agreements. 
Specifically, Contractor  shall maintain documentation of  the number and nature of mutual 
aid responses it makes and nature of mutual aid responses made by other agencies to calls 

originating within the EOA.  

b) Stand-by Service 

Contractor shall provide, at no charge to the LEMSA or requesting agency, stand‐by services 
at the scene of an emergency incident within the EOA when directed by a County designated 
public safety dispatch center upon request of a public safety agency. A unit placed on stand‐
by  shall  be  dedicated  to  the  incident.  Stand‐by  periods  exceeding  eight  (8)  hours  shall  be 

approved by Contract Administrator. 

5. Permitted Subcontracting 

The  Contractor  may  contract  with  providers  for  ALS  interfacility  transports/transfers  originating 

within the EOA. Contractor may also subcontract for management, administrative services, dispatch, 
and  billing  and  collection  activities.  Such  agreements  must  be  approved  by  the  LEMSA.  The  sub‐
contracting ambulance entities must meet  the LEMSA’s minimum requirements  for ALS ambulance 
services. The Contractor remains responsible and accountable to meet Response Time and reporting 

requirements  and  the  Contractor  is  liable  to  pay  any  penalties  for  non‐performance  by  the 
subcontractor. 
 
Contractor may subcontract medical dispatch center services to another agency within or outside of 

the  County.  Regardless,  the  Contractor  will  retain  accountability  and  responsibility  for  the 
performance of the Dispatch Center. Such agreement must be approved by the LEMSA. 

6. Communities May Contract Directly for Level of Effort 

This RFP and the Agreement are focused on Contractor performance. There are no provisions for a 

level of effort or requiring ambulances to be placed in specific areas of Contra Costa County. 
 



 

Page 56 

The  Contractor  may  contract  directly  with  cities,  communities,  or  other  jurisdictions  to  have  an 
ambulance or other services provided within their community. Such arrangements will support EMS 
System coordination and are subject to the approval of the LEMSA and shall not be at the County’s 

expense. Regardless of  such arrangements,  there  is no change  in  the exclusive agreement between 
the Contractor  and  the LEMSA and  the Contractor must  continue  to  comply with  the performance 
standards of the agreement. 

7. Supply Exchange and Restock 

The Contractor will restock disposable medical supplies on a one‐for‐one basis based on utilization 
on  calls  by  first  response  agencies.  Contractor will work with  first  responder  agencies  to  create  a 
process of supply exchange and rotation that is cost effective. Contractor has no obligation to restock 

disposable medical supplies of items not in the Contractor’s inventory. This agreement does not limit 
the Contractor from changing supply vendors. 

8. Handling Service Inquiries and Complaints 

Contractor shall create consumer friendly processes to receive customer service complaints and lost 
item and other inquires. Contractor shall log all inquiries and service complaints and will ensure that 
non‐clinical issues are followed through to resolution. Contractor shall provide prompt response and 
follow‐up  to  such  inquiries  and  complaints.  Contractor’s  management  team  will  analyze  inquiry 

reports to identify and address any trends. Such responses shall be subject to the limitations imposed 
by patient confidentiality restrictions. 
 
Contractor  shall  submit  to  the  LEMSA  each  month  a  list  of  all  complaints  received  and  their 
appropriate disposition/resolution. Contractor shall submit copies of any inquiries and resolutions of 

a clinical nature to the EMS Medical Director or LEMSA within twenty‐four (24) hours. 
 

H. Administrative Provisions 

1. Contractor Payments for Procurement Costs, County Compliance Monitoring, Contract 
Management, and Regulatory Activities (Plan B only) 

For  Plan  B  of  this  Service  Plan,  the  Contractor will  reimburse  the  LEMSA  for  a  portion  of  its 
expenses  related  to  conducting  this  procurement,  monitoring  and  managing  the  Agreement, 
provision of medical direction and conducting periodic procurements. An annual amount will be 

assessed based on  the LEMSA’s  costs  for  the previous  fiscal  year. The  fees will be  limited  to a 
maximum of seven hundred and fifty thousand dollars ($750,000) per year. 

2. No System Subsidy 

Under Plan B, the Contractor will operate the EMS system without any subsidy from the LEMSA 

or  the  County.  RFP  specifications  are  designed  to  provide  accountability  without  undue 
operational or financial burden for providers. 
 



 

Page 57 

Since  many  of  the  cost  savings  recommendations  included  in  the  EMS Modernization  Report 
were not  included  in  the Plan A requirements and provisions,  this RFP allows  for a request by 
the Contractor to identify potential subsidies that may be required to comply with all of the Plan 

A provisions. It is the desire of the County to operate a subsidy‐free system, but it is recognized 
that  fiscal  trends  of  revenue  collection  and  costs  along  with  healthcare  system  changes  may 
require additional financial support to maintain the current performance levels. 
 

Each Proposer must complete  the subsidy  request  form  included  in Appendix 11. The Subsidy 
Request Form shall be submitted separately with the “Financial Documents.” 

3. Contractor Revenue Recovery 

The primary means of Contractor compensation is through fee‐for‐service reimbursement of patient 
charges. 

a) Patient Charges 

Contractor  shall  receive  income  from  patient  charges.  Contractor  shall  comply  with  fee 
schedules and rates stipulated in this RFP (Stipulated Rates) and as subsequently approved 
by  the LEMSA. The  current  rates  are  included  in Appendix 7  and  the  Stipulated Rates  are 

specified in Appendix 10. 

b) Fee Adjustments 

The  Contract  Administrator  will  approve  annual  increases  to  patient  charges  based  on 
changes in the Consumer Price Index for Medical Services. The annual rate increases will be 
the greater of three (3) percent or the increase of the CPI for any given year. All changes in 
the transport fees must be approved by LEMSA. 

 
In the event changed circumstances substantially impact the Contractor’s costs of providing 
services or there are substantial reductions in revenue caused by factors that are beyond the 
control  of  Contractor,  the  Contractor  may  request  increases  or  decreases  in  charges  to 

patients to mitigate the financial  impact of such changed circumstances. No adjustments to 
patient fees will be allowed during the first twelve (12) months of the commencement of the 
Agreement. If Contractor believes an adjustment is warranted, the Contractor may apply to 
the  Contract  Administrator  for  a  rate  adjustment  to  be  effective  on  or  after  the  first 

anniversary of the Agreement. Applications must be submitted at least sixty (60) days prior 
to the requested effective date. Requests for changes to patient charges shall only be allowed 
on  an  annual  basis  corresponding  to  the  anniversary  of  the  Agreement.  The  Contract 
Administrator  shall  review  the application and  forward his or her  recommendation  to  the 

Health Services Director, who shall have the authority to approve or disapprove the request. 
Approval of rate changes is required before they can become effective.  

4. Federal Healthcare Program Compliance Provisions 

Contractor  shall  comply with all  applicable Federal  laws,  rules and  regulations  for operation of  its 
enterprise, ambulance services, and those associated with employees. This includes compliance with 
all laws and regulations relating to the provision of services to be reimbursed by Medicare, Medicaid, 
and other government funded programs. 



 

Page 58 

a) Medicare and Medicaid Compliance Program Requirements 

Contractor  shall  implement  a  comprehensive  Compliance  Program  for  all  activities, 
particularly  those  related  to  documentation,  claims  processing,  billing  and  collection 
processes.  Contractor’s  Compliance  Program  shall  substantially  comply  with  the  current  

guidelines  and  recommendations  outlined  in  the  Office  of  Inspector  General  (OIG) 
Compliance Program Guidance for Ambulance Suppliers as published in the Federal Register 
on March 24, 2003 (03 FR 14255). 
 

Contractor will  engage a qualified entity  to conduct a claims review on an annual basis as 
described  in  the OIG Compliance Guidance. A minimum of 50  randomly  selected Medicare 
claims  will  be  reviewed  for  compliance  with  CMS  rules  and  regulations,  appropriate 
documentation, medical necessity, and level of service. The Contractor will submit the report 
to the LEMSA within 120 days of the end of each contract year. 

b) HIPAA, CAL HIPAA and HITECH Compliance Program Requirements 

Contractor  is  required  to  implement  a  comprehensive  plan  and  develop  the  appropriate 
policies  and procedures  to  comply with  the provisions of  the Health  Insurance Portability 
and  Accountability  Act  of  1996  and  the  current  rules  and  regulations  enacted  by  the  US 
Department  of  Health  and  Human  Services.  The  three  major  components  of  HIPAA,  CAL 

HIPAA and HITECH include:  

1. Standards for Privacy and Individually Identifiable Health Information 
2. Health Insurance Reform: Security Standards 
3. Health  Insurance  Reform:  Standards  for  Electronic  Transaction  Sets  and  Code 

Standards 

Contractor is responsible for all aspects of complying with these rules and particularly those 
enacted  to  protect  the  confidentiality  of  patient  information.  Any  violations  of  the HIPAA, 
CAL HIPAA and HITECH rules and regulations will be  reported  immediately  to  the LEMSA 
along with Contractor’s actions to mitigate the effect of such violations. 

5. State Compliance Provisions 

Contractor shall comply with all applicable state and local laws, rules and regulations for businesses, 
ambulance services, and those associated with employees. Contractor shall also comply with county 

and LEMSA policies, procedures, and protocols. 

6. Billing/Collection Services 

Contractor  shall  operate a billing and accounts  receivable  system  that  is well documented,  easy  to 

audit,  and which minimizes  the  effort  required of patients  to  recover  from  third party  sources  for 
which they may be eligible. The billing system shall: 

1. electronically generate and submit Medicare and MediCal claims; 
2. itemize all procedures and supplies employed on patient bills; and 

3. be  capable  of  responding  to  patient  and  third  party  payer  inquiries  regarding 
submission  of  insurance  claims,  dates  and  types  of  payments  made,  itemized 
charges, and other inquiries 



 

Page 59 

The  Contractor  shall  provide  for  prompt  response  to  any  queries  or  appeals  from  patients.    The 
Proposer shall describe its methods for receiving, monitoring, and responding to patient issues and 
complaints. 

 
It is expected that the Contractor’s billing and collection services are conducted in a compassionate 
manner and that the Contractor recognizes that many patients may not have the financial resources 
to pay for their ambulance transports. The Proposer shall describe its policies for identifying patients 

that qualify for a financial hardship consideration for discounting or writing off their accounts. 
 

Billing Waivers  for  Impoverished,  Conserved  &  Vulnerable:  Contractor  shall  establish  a  consumer 
friendly  procedure  that  allows  for  responsible  party  to  make  payment  arrangements.  The  billing 

manager will review the form and assess an appropriate and acceptable monthly arrangement. 
 
Contractor shall establish a process to reduce the costs of ambulance services to patients who have 
demonstrated  inability  to  pay  through  completing  a  “Financial  Statement”  form.  All  information 

relating to financial hardship requests shall be kept confidential. The billing manager will review the 
form and assess an appropriate and acceptable monthly arrangement. 
 
Billing Appeals Process:  Contractor will  create  a  consumer  friendly  appeals  process  in  cooperation 

with  Contra  Costa  Health  Insurance  Counseling  and  Advocacy  Program  (HICAP)  that  allows  the 
consumer sufficient time for denied claims to go through governmental and private insurers appeals 
timeframes before being sent to collections.  In the case of Medicare billing the first level of Medicare 
appeals  is  120 days.  Contractor will,  on  a monthly  basis,  document  the number  of  billing waivers, 

appeals in process and average time to process appeals. 
 
Contractor shall not attempt to collect its fees at the time of service. 
 

Contractor shall conduct all billing and collection functions for the EMS system in a professional and 
courteous manner. 

7. Market Rights 

The LEMSA shall not enter into agreements with any other provider for ground response to requests 

for Emergency Ambulance Service or ALS interfacility transports originating within the EOA during 
the  term  of  this  Agreement.  Furthermore,  the  LEMSA  will  make  reasonable  efforts  to  ensure  the 
Contractor’s exclusivity of ALS interfacility transports originating within the EOA. 
 

The  LEMSA  reserves  the  right  to  enter  into  separate  transport  agreements  with  air  ambulance 
providers.  Notwithstanding  any  other  provision  of  this  Contract,  the  LEMSA  may  provide  for  air 
transport of patients when such transportation is deemed to be medically in the best interest of the 
patient(s). However, no such agreement shall provide for air transport of non‐critical patients or of 

critical patients when a ground ambulance is on‐scene and transport time by ground ambulance to 
the most appropriate emergency medical facility equipped, staffed, and prepared to administer care 
appropriate to the needs of the patient is the same as or less than the estimated air transport time. 



 

Page 60 

8. Accounting Procedures 

a) Invoicing and Payment for Services 

The  LEMSA  shall  render  its  invoice  for  any  fines  or  penalties  to  the  Contractor within  30 

business days of the LEMSA’s receipt of the Contractor’s monthly performance reports and 
after  approval  of  the  penalties  determined  by  the  LEMSA.  The  Contractor  shall  pay  the 
LEMSA on or before  the 30th day after receipt of  the  invoice. Any disputes of  the  invoiced 
amounts  should  be  resolved  in  this  thirty‐day  period.  If  they  have  not  been  resolved  to 
LEMSA or Contractor’s satisfaction, the invoice shall be paid in full and subsequent invoices 

will be adjusted to reflect the resolution of disputed amounts. 

b) Financial Reporting 

Contractor will  report  trends  in monthly net  revenue,  total  expenses, number of deployed 
unit hours, cost per unit hour, number of transports,. collection rate, average patient charge, 
net revenue/transport, cost/trip, and payer mix on a monthly basis. 

c) Audits and Inspections 

Contractor  shall maintain  separate  financial  records  for  services provided pursuant  to  the 

Agreement in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
With reasonable notification and during normal business hours, LEMSA shall have the right 
to review any and all business records including financial records of Contractor pertaining to 

the  Agreement.  All  records  shall  be  made  available  to  LEMSA  at  the  Contractor’s  Contra 
Costa  County  office  or  other  mutually  agreeable  location.  LEMSA  may  audit,  copy,  make 
transcripts,  or  otherwise  reproduce  such  records  including,  but  not  limited  to,  contracts, 
payroll, inventory, personnel and other records, daily logs and employment agreements. 

 
On  an  annual  basis,  the  Contractor  shall  provide  the  LEMSA  with  audited  financial 
statements  by  certified  public  accountants  or  governmental  entity  for  Contractor's 
ambulance operations in Contra Costa County and/or separate business records of financial 

accounting  of  any  other  businesses  that  share  overhead with  the  Contractor's  ambulance 
service operation. 
 
Contractor may be required by the LEMSA to provide the LEMSA with periodic report(s) in 
the  format specified by the Contract Administrator to demonstrate billing compliance with 

relevant rules and regulations and adherence with approved and specified rates. 

9. County Permit 

The  LEMSA  oversees  ambulance  services within  the  County.  Pursuant  to  County Ordinance  83‐25 

and LEMSA policies, an ambulance company must obtain the appropriate ambulance service permits. 
 
Contra  Costa  County  ambulance  permit  information  and  applications  are  available  at 
http://cchealth.org/ems/ambulance‐providers.php#simpleContained3  and  a  copy  of  the  current 

county ordinance can be found on the county’s website.  



 

Page 61 

10. Insurance Provisions 

Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect throughout the term of this Agreement, 

and  thereafter  as  to matters  occurring  during  the  term of  this  Agreement,  the  required  insurance 
coverage as  listed  in Appendix 12.  If  the Proposer  is  self‐insured,  the Proposer  shall document  it’s 
capability  to  provide  similar  coverage  or  assurance  of  coverage  consistent  with  the  insurance 
requirements.  The  Proposer  shall  also  include  a  “reserve  for  losses”  in  the  development  of  its 

financial budgets submitted with the Financial Documents. 

11. Hold Harmless / Defense / Indemnification / Taxes / Contributions 

a) Hold Harmelss 

In General,. Contractor has the contracted duty (hereinafter "the duty") to indemnify, defend 
and  hold  harmless,  the  LEMSA,  the  County,  its  Board  of  Supervisors,  officers,  employees, 

agents  and  assigns  from  and  against  any  and  all  claims,  demands,  liability,  judgments, 
awards,  interest,  attorney’s  fees,  costs,  experts’  fees  and  expenses  of  whatsoever  kind  or 
nature,  at  any  time  arising  out  of  or  in  any  way  connected  with  the  performance  of  this 
Agreement, whether in tort, contract or otherwise. This duty shall include, but not be limited 

to,  claims  for bodily  injury, property damage, personal  injury,  and contractual damages or 
otherwise  alleged  to  be  caused  to  any  person  or  entity  including,  but  not  limited  to 
employees, agents and officers of Contractor. 
 

Contractor’s liability for indemnity under this Agreement shall apply, regardless of fault, to 
any acts or omissions, willful misconduct or negligent conduct of any kind, on the part of the 
Contractor, its agents, subcontractors and employees. The duty shall extend to any allegation 
or claim of liability except in circumstances found by a jury or judge to be the sole and legal 

result of the willful misconduct of the LEMSA or the County. This duty shall arise at the first 
claim or allegation of  liability against the LEMSA or the County. Contractor will on request, 
and at  its expense, defend any action suit or proceeding arising hereunder. This clause for 
indemnification shall be interpreted to the broadest extent permitted by law.” 

b) Employee Character and Fitness.  

Contractor accepts responsibility for determining and approving the character and fitness of 

its  employees  (including  volunteers,  agents,  or  representatives)  to  provide  the  services 
required  of  Contractor  under  this  Agreement,  including  completion  of  a  satisfactory 
criminal/background  check  and  periodic  rechecks  to  the  extent  permitted  by  law. 
Notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary  in  this Paragraph, Contractor  shall  hold County, 

the LEMSA and their officers, agents and employees harmless from any liability for injuries 
or damages resulting from a breach of this provision or Contractor’s actions in this regard. 

12. Performance Security Bond 

Contractor shall  furnish performance security  in  the amount of  two million dollars ($2,000,000)  in 
one of the following forms: 

a) A faithful performance bond issued by a bonding company, appropriately  licensed and 
acceptable to the LEMSA; or 



 

Page 62 

b) An irrevocable letter of credit issued pursuant to this provision in a form acceptable to 
the LEMSA and from a bank or other financial institution acceptable to the LEMSA, or 

b)c) If  the Proposer  is a governmental entity,  the County will waive  the performance bond 

requirement.. 

13. Term of Agreement 

The initial term of the Agreement ultimately executed by Contractor shall be for a period of five (5) 

years  commencing  at  12:01  a.m.  on  [Month Day,  2015]  and  terminating  at midnight,  [Month Day, 
2020]. 

14. Earned Extension to Agreement 

If, at the sole judgment and discretion of the LEMSA, the Contractor is deemed to be substantially in 
compliance  with  the  specifications  defined  in  this  RFP  and  the  resulting  Agreement,  the  Health 
Services  Director  may,  after  seeking  a  recommendation  from  the  Board  of  Supervisors,  grant  an 
extension of  the Agreement  for up  to  five  (5) additional  years. The LEMSA  shall make  the offer of 

extension  by  formal  written  notice  to  the  Contractor  at  least  eighteen  (18)  months  prior  to  the 
scheduled end of the term of the Agreement. 
 
While  it  is  the  intent of  the LEMSA to have completed a competitive procurement  for selecting  the 

Contractor by the end of the term of the Agreement or extension thereof, the LEMSA recognizes that 
healthcare and EMS changes may require a re‐design of  the EMS System.    In  the event  that  the re‐
design is deemed necessary and cannot be completed and changes implemented prior to the end of 
the term of the Agreement, the LEMSA may extend the Agreement for up to an additional thirty‐six 
(36) months upon approval of the Board of Supervisors. 

 
If  the  Contractor  does  not want  to  continue  providing  services  to  the  LEMSA  as  stipulated  in  the 
Agreement after the end of the Term, the Contractor must give notice of its intent not to extend the 
Agreement at least seventeen (17) months prior to the scheduled end of the term of the Agreement. 

15. Continuous Service Delivery 

Contractor  expressly  agrees  that,  in  the  event  of  a  default  by  Contractor  under  the  Agreement, 
Contractor will work with the LEMSA to ensure continuous and uninterrupted delivery of services, 

regardless of the nature or causes underlying such breach. Contractor shall be obligated to use every 
effort to assist the LEMSA to ensure uninterrupted and continuous service delivery in the event of a 
default, even if Contractor disagrees with the determination of default. 

16. Annual Performance Evaluation 

The  LEMSA  may  evaluate  the  performance  of  the  ambulance  Contractor  on  an  annual  basis.  An 
evaluation report will be provided to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors. 
 

The following information will normally be included in the performance evaluation: 
a) Response  Time  performance  standards  assessed  with  reference  to  the  minimum 

requirements in the Contract; 



 

Page 63 

b) Clinical performance standards assessed with reference to the minimum requirements 
in the Contract; 

c) Initiation of innovative programs to improve system performance; 

d) Workforce stability, including documented efforts to minimize employee turnover; 
e) Compliance of pricing and revenue recovery efforts with rules and regulations and the 

Agreement; and 
f) Compliance with information reporting requirements 

g) Financial stability and sustainability 
 

17. Default and Provisions for Termination of the Agreement 

The LEMSA shall have the right to terminate or cancel the Agreement or to pursue any appropriate 
legal  remedy  in  the  event  Contractor materially  breaches  the  Agreement  and  fails  to  correct  such 
default within seven (7) days following the service on it of a written notice by the LEMSA specifying 
the default or defaults complained of and the date of intended termination of rights absent cure. 

a) Definitions of Breach 

Conditions  and  circumstances  that  shall  constitute  a  material  breach  by  Contractor  shall 

include, but not be limited to, the following: 
1. Failure of Contractor  to operate  the ambulance service  system  in a manner which 

enables  the  LEMSA  or  Contractor  to  remain  in  substantial  compliance  with  the 
requirements of the applicable federal, state, and county laws, rules, and regulations. 

Minor  infractions of  such  requirements  shall not  constitute a material breach, but 
such willful and repeated infractions shall constitute a material breach; 

2. Willful falsification of data supplied to the LEMSA by Contractor during the course of 
operations, including by way of example but not by way of exclusion, dispatch data, 

patient report data, Response Time data, financial data, or falsification of any other 
data required under the Agreement, or a willful refusal to provide such data within a 
reasonable time when demanded by the LEMSA; 

3. Chronic and persistent  failure by Contractor  to maintain equipment  in accordance 

with good maintenance practices; 
4. Deliberate, excessive, and unauthorized scaling down of operations to the detriment 

of performance by Contractor during a "lame duck" period as described  in Section 
H.23; 

5. Deliberately  increasing  the  cost  of  providing  services,  failing  to maintain  positive 
labor relations, or undertaking any activity designed to make it more difficult for a 
transition to a new Contractor or for a new Contractor’s operation in the event of a 
default or failure of incumbent to prevail during a subsequent bid cycle; 

6. Willful  attempts  by  Contractor  to  intimidate  or  otherwise  punish  employees who 
desire to sign contingent employment contracts with competing Proposers during a 
subsequent bid cycle; 

7. Willful attempts by Contractor to intimidate or punish employees who participate in 
legally  protected  concerted  activities,  or  who  form  or  join  any  professional 

associations; 



 

Page 64 

8. Chronic and persistent failure of Contractor's employees to conduct themselves in a 
professional and courteous manner, or to present a professional appearance; 

9. Failure  of  Contractor  to  comply with  approved  rate  setting,  billing,  and  collection 

procedures; 
10. Failure  of  Contractor  to meet  Response  Time  requirements  for  three  consecutive 

measurement  periods  in  a  single  category  and  after  receiving  notice  of  non‐
compliance from Contract Administrator; 

11. Failure of Contractor to comply with the vehicle lease provisions; 
12. Failure  of  Contractor  to  cooperate  and  assist  County  in  the  investigation  or 

correction of any “Minor Breach” conditions; 
13. Failure to comply with required payment of fines or penalties within sixty (60) days 

written notice of the imposition of such fine or penalty; 
14. Failure  to maintain  in  force  throughout  the  terms of  the Agreement,  including any 

extensions thereof, the insurance coverage required herein; 
15. Failure  to maintain  in  force  throughout  the  term of  the Agreement,  including  any 

extensions thereof, the performance security requirements as specified herein; 
16. Failure to timely prepare and submit the required annual audit; and  
17. Any  other willful  acts  or  omissions  of  Contractor  that  endanger  the  public  health 

and safety. 

18. Termination 

a) Written Notice 

The Agreement may be canceled immediately by written mutual consent. 

b) Failure to Perform 

The LEMSA, upon written notice to Contractor, may  immediately terminate the Agreement 
should Contractor materially breach any of its obligations under the Agreement. In the event 
of  such  termination,  the  LEMSA may  proceed with  the work  in  any  reasonable manner  it 

chooses.  The  cost  to  the  LEMSA of  completing Contractor's  performance  shall  be partially 
supported  by  securing  the  funds  of  the  Performance  Security  Bond,  without  prejudice  to 
LEMSA's rights otherwise to recover its damages or to seek any other remedy. 

19. Emergency Takeover 

In the event LEMSA determines that a material breach, actual or threatened, has or will occur or that 
a  labor  dispute  has  prevented  performance,  and  if  the  nature  of  the  breach  is,  in  the  Contract 
Administrator's opinion, such that public health and safety are endangered, and after Contractor has 

been given notice and reasonable opportunity to correct deficiency, the matter shall be presented to 
the Health Services Director. 
 
If  the Health Services Director concurs  that a material breach has occurred or may occur and  that 

public health and safety would be endangered by allowing the Contractor to continue its operations, 
the Contractor shall cooperate fully with the LEMSA to affect an immediate takeover by the LEMSA of 
Contractor's ambulances and crew stations. Such takeover shall be affected within not more than 72 



 

Page 65 

hours after Health Services Director’s decision and approval by the Board of Supervisors to execute 
the emergency takeover. 
 

In  the event of an emergency  takeover,  the Contractor  shall deliver  to  the LEMSA ambulances and 
associated  equipment  used  in  performance  of  the  Contract,  including  supervisors'  vehicles.  Each 
ambulance  shall  be  equipped,  at  a  minimum,  with  the  equipment  and  supplies  necessary  for  the 
operation of ALS ambulances in accordance with LEMSA ALS Policies and Procedures.   

 
Contractor  shall  deliver  ambulances,  dispatch  and  communications  systems,  facilities  and  crew 
stations to the LEMSA in mitigation of any damages to LEMSA resulting from the Contractor's breach. 
However,  during  the  LEMSA's  takeover  of  the  ambulances  and  equipment,  LEMSA  and  Contractor 

shall be considered Lessee and Lessor, respectively. Monthly rent payable to the Contractor shall be 
equal  to  the  aggregate monthly  amount  of  the  Contractor's  debt  service  on  facilities,  vehicles  and 
equipment as documented by the Contractor at Contract Administrator's request, and verified by the 
County Auditor  (provided  that  the  cost of  contractor debt  service does not  exceed  the  fair market 

value  of  the  rent  for  the  facilities,  vehicles  and  equipment).  The  County  Auditor  shall  cause  the 
disbursement of  these payments directly  to  the Contractor's obligee.  In  the event an ambulance  is 
unencumbered,  or  a  crew  station  is  not  being  rented,  LEMSA  shall  pay  the Contractor  fair market 
rental based upon an independent valuation. 

 
Nothing herein shall preclude  the LEMSA  from seeking  to  recover  from the Contractor such rental 
and  debt  service  payments  as  elements  of  damage  from a  breach  of  the Agreement. However,  the 
Contractor shall not be precluded from disputing the Health Services Director's findings or the nature 

and amount of the LEMSA's damages, if any, through litigation. Failure on the part of the Contractor 
to  cooperate  fully  with  the  LEMSA  to  effect  a  safe/smooth  takeover  of  operations  shall  itself 
constitute  a  breach  of  the  Contract,  even  if  it  is  later  determined  that  the  original  declaration  of 
breach by the Director was made in error. 

 
The LEMSA shall  have  the  right  to authorize  the use of  vehicles  and equipment by  another  entity. 
Should the LEMSA require a substitute contractor to obtain  insurance on equipment, or should the 
LEMSA  choose  to  obtain  insurance  on  vehicles/equipment,  the  Contractor  shall  be  "Named 

Additional Insured" on the policy, along with the appropriate endorsements and cancellation notice. 
 
The  LEMSA  agrees  to  return  the  Contractor's  vehicles  and  equipment  to  the  Contractor  in  good 
working  order,  normal  wear  and  tear  excepted,  at  the  end  of  takeover  period.  For  any  of  the 
Contractor's  equipment  not  so  returned,  the  LEMSA  shall  pay  the  Contractor  fair market  value  of 

vehicle  and  equipment  at  time of  takeover,  less  normal wear  and  tear  or  shall  pay  the Contractor 
reasonable costs of repair, or shall repair and return vehicles and equipment. 
 
The  LEMSA  may  unilaterally  terminate  a  takeover  period  at  any  time  and  return  facilities  and 

equipment  to  the  Contractor.  The  takeover  period  shall  last  no  longer  than  the  LEMSA  judges 
necessary to stabilize the EMS system and to protect the public health and safety by whatever means 
the LEMSA chooses. 
 



 

Page 66 

All  of  the  Contractor's  vehicles  and  related  equipment  necessary  for  provision  of  ALS  services 
pursuant  to  this  Contract  are  hereby  leased  to  the  LEMSA  during  an  emergency  takeover  period. 
Contractor shall maintain and provide to the LEMSA a listing of all vehicles used in the performance 

of  this  Contract,  including  reserve  vehicles,  their  license  numbers  and  name  and  address  of  lien 
holder,  if  any.  Changes  in  lien holder,  as well  as  the  transfer,  sale,  or purchase of  vehicles used  to 
provide ambulance services hereunder shall be reported to the LEMSA within 30 days of said change, 
sale,  transfer,  or  purchase.  Contractor  shall  inform  and  provide  a  copy  of  takeover  provisions 

contained herein to lien holder(s) within five (5) days of emergency takeover. 

20. Transition Planning 

a) Competitive Bid Required 

Contractor  acknowledges  that  the  LEMSA  intends  to  conduct  a  competitive  procurement 
process  for  the  provision  of  Emergency  Ambulance  Service  within  LEMSA’s  Exclusive 

Operating  Area  prior  to  the  termination  of  this  Contract.  Contractor  acknowledges  and 
agrees  that  the  LEMSA  may  select  a  different  ambulance  service  provider  to  provide 
exclusive Emergency Ambulance Services  following said competitive procurement process, 
and to reasonable extension of its obligations hereunder if such extensions are necessary to 

complete such processes including, but not limited to, any reasonable decisions to cancel and 
restart such processes. 

b) Future Bid Cycles 

Contractor  acknowledges  and  agrees  that  supervisory  personnel,  EMT's  and  paramedics, 
working in the EMS system have a reasonable expectation of  long‐term employment in the 
system, even though Contractors may change. Accordingly, Contractor shall not penalize or 

bring  personal  hardship  to  bear  upon  any  of  its  employees  who  apply  for  work  on  a 
contingent basis with competing Proposers and shall allow without penalty its employees to 
sign contingent employment agreements with competing Proposers at employees' discretion. 
Contractor  may  prohibit  its  employees  from  assisting  competing  Proposers  in  preparing 

Proposals  by  revealing  Contractor's  trade  secrets  or  other  information  about  Contractor's 
business practices or field operations. 

21. LEMSA's Remedies 

If  conditions  or  circumstances  constituting  a Default  as  set  forth  in  Section H.17  exist,  the  LEMSA 
shall  have  all  rights  and  remedies  available  at  law  or  in  equity  under  the  Agreement,  specifically 
including the right  to  terminate  the Agreement and/or  the right  to pursue Contractor  for damages 
and the right of emergency take‐over as set  forth in Section IV.H.18. All LEMSA's remedies shall be 

non‐cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy available to LEMSA. 

22. Provisions for Curing Material Breach and Emergency Take Over 

In  the  event  the  LEMSA  determines  that  there  has  been  a  material  breach  by  Contractor  of  the 

standards and performances as defined in this specification, which breach represents an immediate 
threat  to  public  health  and  safety,  such  determination  shall  constitute  a  material  breach  and/or 
default  of  the  Agreement.  In  the  event  of  a material  breach,  LEMSA  shall  give  Contractor written 



 

Page 67 

notice, return receipt requested, setting forth with reasonable specificity the nature of the material 
breach. 
 

Contractor shall have the right to cure such material breach within seven (7) calendar days of receipt 
of such notice and which notice should include the reason why such material breach endangers the 
public's health and safety unless an immediate and grave threat to public health and safety requires 
shorter notice or no notice.  In cases where notice is given, within 24 hours of receipt of such notice, 

Contractor shall deliver to the LEMSA, in writing, a plan of action to cure such material breach.  The 
LEMSA,  acting  through  the  Health  Services  Director  or  designee,  may  permit  Contractor  to 
implement such a plan of action if the plan is acceptable to the LEMSA, and may set such deadlines 
for  the  completion  of  such  actions  as  the  LEMSA  deems  appropriate,  in  its  sole  and  absolute 

discretion. If Contractor fails to cure such material breach within the period allowed for cure (with 
such failure to be determined in the sole and absolute discretion of the LEMSA) or Contractor fails to 
timely  deliver  the  cure  plan  to  the  LEMSA,  the  LEMSA  may  execute  an  emergency  take‐over  of 
Contractor's operations. Contractor shall cooperate completely and immediately with the LEMSA to 

affect a prompt and orderly transfer of all responsibilities to the LEMSA. 
 
Contractor  shall  not be prohibited  from disputing  any  such  finding of default  through appropriate 
channels, provided, however that such dispute shall not have the effect of delaying,  in any way, the 

immediate takeover of operations by the LEMSA. These provisions shall be specifically stipulated and 
agreed to by both parties as being reasonable and necessary for the protection of public health and 
safety, and any legal dispute concerning the finding that a Default has occurred, shall be initiated, and 
shall take place only after the emergency take‐over has been completed. 

 
Contractor's cooperation with and full support of such emergency take‐over shall not be construed as 
acceptance by Contractor of the findings and default, and shall not in any way jeopardize Contractor's 
right of recovery based upon a later finding in an appropriate forum that the declaration of Default 

was made in error. However, failure on the part of Contractor to cooperate fully with the LEMSA to 
affect  a  smooth and safe  take‐over of operations,  shall  itself  constitute a breach of  the Agreement, 
even  if  it was  later determined  that  the original declaration of default by  the LEMSA was made  in 
error. 

 
For any default by Contractor which does not endanger public health and safety, or for any default by 
the LEMSA, which cannot otherwise be resolved, early termination provisions which may be agreed 
to by the parties will supersede these specifications. 

23. "Lame-duck" Provisions 

Should  the  Agreement  not  be  renewed,  extended  or  if  notice  of  early  termination  is  given  by 
Contractor,  Contractor  agrees  to  continue  to  provide  all  services  required  in  and  under  the 
Agreement  until  the  LEMSA  or  a  new  entity  assumes  service  responsibilities,  even  if  reasonable 

extension of  the Contractor’s Agreement with  the  LEMSA  is  necessary. Under  these  circumstances 
Contractor will, for a period of several months, serve as a lame duck Contractor. To ensure continued 
performance  fully  consistent with  the  requirements herein  through any  such period,  the  following 
provisions shall apply: 



 

Page 68 

 
a) Contractor shall continue all operations and support services at the same level of effort 

and performance as were in effect prior to the award of the subsequent Agreement to a 

competing organization including, but not limited to, compliance with provisions hereof 
related to qualifications of key personnel;  

b) Contractor shall make no changes  in methods of operation or employee compensation 
that  could  reasonably  be  considered  to  be  aimed  at  cutting  Contractor  service  and 

operating costs to maximize or effect a gain during the final stages of the Agreement or 
placing an undue burden on the subsequent Contractor; 

c) LEMSA  recognizes  that  if  another  organization  should  be  selected  to  provide  service, 
Contractor may reasonably begin to prepare for transition of service to the new entity. 

The  LEMSA  shall  not  unreasonably  withhold  its  approval  of  Contractor's  request  to 
begin  an  orderly  transition  process,  including  reasonable  plans  to  relocate  staff,  scale 
down  certain  inventory  items,  etc.,  as  long  as  such  transition  activity  does  not  impair 
Contractor's performance during this period; and 

d) Should LEMSA select another organization as a service provider in the future, Contractor 
personnel shall have reasonable opportunities to discuss issues related to employment 
with such organizations without adverse consequence 

24. General Provisions 

a) Assignment 

Contractor shall not assign any portion of the Agreement for services to be rendered without 
written  consent  first  obtained  from  the  LEMSA  and  any  assignment made  contrary  to  the 
provisions of this section may be deemed a default of the Agreement and, at the option of the 
LEMSA, shall not convey any rights to the assignee. 

b) Permits and Licenses 

Contractor shall be responsible for and shall hold any and all required federal, state, or local 

permits  or  licenses  required  to  perform  its  obligations  under  the  Agreement.  In  addition, 
Contractor shall make all necessary payments for licenses and permits for the services and 
for  issuance  of  state  permits  for  all  ambulance  vehicles  used.  It  shall  be  entirely  the 
responsibility of Contractor to schedule and coordinate all such applications and application 

renewals  as  necessary  to  ensure  that  Contractor  is  in  complete  compliance  with  federal, 
state, and  local requirements for permits and  licenses as necessary to provide the services 
pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that its employee’s 
state and local certifications as necessary to provide the services, if applicable, are valid and 

current at all times.   

c) Compliance with Laws and Regulations 

All  services  furnished  by  Contractor  under  the  Agreement  shall  be  rendered  in  full 
compliance  with  all  applicable  federal,  state,  and  local  laws,  ordinances,  rules,  and 
regulations.  It  shall  be  Contractor’s  sole  responsibility  to  determine  which,  and  be  fully 
familiar with, all laws, rules, and regulations that apply to the services under the Agreement 

and to maintain compliance with those applicable standards at all times. 



 

Page 69 

d) Private Work 

Contractor shall not be prevented from conducting private work that does not interfere with 
the requirements of Agreement.  

e) Retention of Records 

Contractor shall retain all documents pertaining to Agreement for seven (7) years from the 
end of the fiscal year following the date of service; for any further period that is required by 

law;  and  until  all  Federal/State  audits  are  complete  and  exceptions  resolved  for  this 
Agreement's  funding  period.  Upon  request,  and  except  as  otherwise  restricted  by  law, 
Contractor shall make these records available  to authorized representatives of  the LEMSA, 
the County, the State of California, and the United States Government.   Any and all records 

received  and manufactured  by  the  County  under  this  Agreement  shall  be  deemed  County 
Records, for all purposes, including disclosure pursuant to the California Public Records Act, 
Government Code 6250, et seq. 

f) Product Endorsement/Advertising 

Contractor  shall  not  use  the  name  of  Contra  Costa  County  for  the  endorsement  of  any 
commercial products or services without the expressed written permission of the Contract 

Administrator. 

g) Observation and Inspections 

LEMSA  representatives  may,  at  any  time,  and  without  notification,  directly  observe 
Contractor's operations of the Dispatch Center, maintenance facility, or any ambulance post 
location.  A  LEMSA  representative  may  ride  as  "third  person"  on  any  of  Contractor's 
Ambulance  units  at  any  time,  provided,  that  in  exercising  this  right  to  inspection  and 

observation,  LEMSA  representatives  shall  conduct  themselves  in  a  professional  and 
courteous  manner,  shall  not  interfere  with  Contractor  employee's  duties  and  shall  at  all 
times be respectful of Contractor's employer/employee relationships. 
 

At  any  time  during  normal  business  hours  and  as  often  as  may  be  reasonably  deemed 
necessary by the LEMSA, LEMSA representatives may observe Contractor's office operations, 
and  Contractor  shall  make  available  to  County  for  its  examination  any  and  all  business 
records,  including  incident  reports,  and  patient  records  pertaining  to  the  Agreement.  The 

LEMSA may audit, copy, make transcripts, or otherwise reproduce such records for LEMSA 
to fulfill its oversight role. 

h) Omnibus Provision 

Contractor  understands  and  agrees  that  for  seven  years  following  the  conclusion  of  the 
Agreement it may be required to make available upon written request to the Secretary of the 
US Department of Health and Human Services, or any other fully authorized representatives, 

the specifications and subsequent Agreements, and any such books, documents and records 
that are necessary to certify the nature and extent of the reasonable costs of services. 

i) Relationship of the Parties 

Nothing  in  the  Agreement  shall  be  construed  to  create  a  relationship  of  employer  and 
employee or principal and agent, partnership, joint venture or any other relationship other 



 

Page 70 

than  that  of  independent  parties  contracting  with  each  other  solely  for  the  purpose  of 
carrying out the provisions of the Agreement. Contractor is an independent contractor and is 
not an employee of County or LEMSA. Contractor is responsible for all  insurance (worker’s 

compensation,  unemployment,  etc.)  and  all  payroll  related  tax.  Nothing  in  the  Agreement 
shall create any right or remedies in any third party. The Agreement is entered solely for the 
benefit of the County, LEMSA, and Contractor. 

j) Rights and Remedies Not Waived 

Contractor will  be  required  to  covenant  that  the provision of  services  to be performed by 

Contractor under the Agreement shall be completed without compensation from LEMSA or 
County  unless  County  agrees  to  a  specified  subsidy  amount  proposed  under  Plan  A.  The 
acceptance of work under the Agreement shall not be held to prevent LEMSA’s maintenance 
of an action for failure to perform work in accordance with the Agreement. 

k) Consent to Jurisdiction 

Contractor shall consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of California 

or a  federal court  in California  in any and all actions and proceedings between  the parties 
hereto arising under or growing out of the Agreement. Venue shall lie in Contra Costa County, 
California. 

l) End-term Provisions 

Contractor  shall  have  90  days  after  termination  of  the  Agreement  in which  to  supply  the 
required audited financial statements and other such documentation necessary to facilitate 

the close out of the Agreement at the end of the term. 

m) Notice of litigation 

Contractor  shall  agree  to notify  the LEMSA within 24 hours of  any  litigation or  significant 
potential for litigation of which Contractor is aware. 

n) Cost of Enforcement 

If  legal  proceedings  are  initiated  by  any  party  to  this  Agreement,  whether  for  an  alleged 
breach  of  the  terms  or  judicial  interpretation  thereof,  the  prevailing  party  to  such  action 
shall,  in addition  to all other  lawful  remedies, be entitled  to  recover  reasonable attorney’s 

fees, consultant and expert fees, and other such costs, to the extent permitted by the court. 

o) General Contract Provisions 

In addition to the specific contract provisions listed in this document, the written Agreement 
will  include  general  conditions  required  by  the  LEMSA  in  contracts  such  as  those  listed 
herein.  A  Sample  of  General  Contract  Provisions  and  a  Business  Associates  Agreement  is 

included in Appendix 13. These provisions will become part of the final agreement with the 
successful  Proposer.  Any  exceptions  to  the  requirements,  terms  and  conditions  as  stated 
herein,  and  in  the  Sample  Provisions  must  be  identified  separately  in  the  Proposer’s 
response. 
 



 

Page 71 

 SECTION V. COMPETITIVE CRITERIA 

This  section  sets  forth  the  performance  criteria  to  be  competitively  assessed  and  scored  by  the 

Review Panel (the Competitive Criteria). 
 
For  each  Competitive  Criterion,  the  narrative  below  defines  a  base  level  of  performance  to which 
every Proposer must agree (the Minimum Requirements). This agreement must be unqualified and 

expressly stated in the Proposal. If a Proposer fails to agree to any Minimum Requirement related to 
any Competitive Criterion, the LEMSA may, in its discretion, declare the Proposal unresponsive and 
disqualified.  The  Proposer  must  agree  to  the  Minimum  Requirements  regardless  of  whether  the 
Proposer goes on to propose levels of performance that are higher than contained in the Minimum 

Requirements for a given Competitive Criterion. For Proposers offering to meet, but not exceed, the 
Minimum  Requirements  for  a  given  Competitive  Criterion,  the  Proposal  must  set  forth  the 
information requested below regarding the manner in which the Proposer will meet the performance 
level specified in the Minimum Requirements. 
 

For each Competitive Criterion, Proposers are encouraged to propose  levels of performance higher 
than the Minimum Requirements. The narrative describes the policy and operational goals for each 
Competitive Criterion, which the LEMSA is seeking to maximize through competition. It also provides 
guidelines  and  examples  to  illustrate  how  the  policy  and  operational  goals  might  be  promoted. 

However,  the  specific  concepts  and  activities  comprising  these  examples  are  neither  specifically 
required  nor  exclusive.  The  Competitive  Criteria  provide  an  opportunity  for  a  Proposer  to 
differentiate its proposed service from that of other Proposers and to demonstrate the organizational 
capabilities and experience which it would bring to bear if it becomes the Contractor. 

 
Because  every  Proposer  is  required  to  commit  to  the Minimum  Requirements,  no  points  shall  be 
awarded in connection with a Competitive Criterion unless a higher level of performance is proposed. 
Points available for each Competitive Criterion for which a higher level of performance is proposed 

shall be scored as set forth in Section II.G. 
 
A goal of this RFP is to increase the levels of communication, cooperation, collaboration, and in some 
cases functional integration among the different entities comprising the EMS and healthcare delivery 

systems  for  the  benefit  of  the  patient.  This  goal  is  furthered  by  various  provisions  in  the  Core 
Requirements  and  in  the Minimum  Requirements.  In  addition,  certain  of  the  Competitive  Criteria 
invite Proposers to propose higher levels of collaboration. 
 

A. Clinical 

1. Competitive Criterion: Quality Improvement 

a) Minimum Requirements—Demonstrable Progressive Clinical Quality Improvement  

LEMSA  requires  that  the  Contractor  develop  and  implement  a  comprehensive  quality 
management program that incorporates assuring compliance with the Agreement, minimum 
performance standards, and rules and regulations. The program shall also include structural 



 

Page 72 

process  and  outcome  indicators  as  part  of  a  progressive  clinicial  quality  improvement 
process that is integrated with the EMS system’s quality management program. The clinical 
indicators  measured  by  all  system  participants  will  be  developed  through  collaborative 

efforts of the first responder agencies, the Contractor, and the LEMSA and based on current 
EMS science and call demand. The LEMSA ultimately will approve and implement the quality 
monitoring and improvement plan to be used in the County by all EMS system participants. 
Proposers  should  review  the  LEMSA’s  quality  management  program  requirements  at 

http://cchealth.org/ems/quality.php. 
 
The LEMSA supports a coordinated system of emergency services that are patient‐centered, 
add value to the community served and improve patient outcome. Proposers must commit to 

a  clear,  concise,  and  implementable  set  of  processes  and  practices  designed  to  measure, 
trend and sustain tangible improvements for the patients and other customers served by the 
EMS  system,  the  Proposer’s  employees  who  serve  Contra  Costa  County,  and  the  other 
agencies involved in the Contra Costa County EMS system. 

 
The  current  level  of  the  scientific  research  and  the  large  number  of  variables  outside  the 
EMS system’s control of patient outcomes limits the ability to define realistic and achievable 
outcome measures.  In addition,  accessing  reliable outcome data may be  limited.  For  these 

reasons, the Contractor will be expected to participate in the collection of both outcome and 
process  measures  to  promote  enhanced  clinical  outcomes.  It  is  anticipated  that  these 
measures will be utilized and further developed throughout the term of the Agreement. 
 

Fundamental  to  a  progressive  clinical  quality  program  is  the  proactive  identification  and 
management of potential risks to patient safety to prevent adverse occurrences rather than 
simply reacting when they occur. Contractor is to ensure that an ongoing, proactive program 
for identifying risks to patient safety and reducing medical/health care errors is defined and 

implemented. 
 
Contractor will  seek  to  reduce  the  risk  of  sentinel  events  and medical/health  care  system 
error‐related  occurrences  by  conducting  its  own  proactive  risk  assessment  activities 

(Failure Mode Effect Analysis‐FMEA)  annually  on  at  least  one  identified,  high‐risk process 
and  by  using  available  information  about  sentinel  events  known  to  occur  in  EMS 
organizations  that  provide  similar  care  and  services.  This  effort  is  undertaken  so  that 
processes,  functions  and  services  can  be  designed  and  redesigned  to  prevent  such 
occurrences in the organization. 

 
Contractor will  conduct  and document one FMEA annually  on  at  least  one  identified,  high 
risk  process.  Contractor  will  redesign  the  identified  process  to  minimize  the  risk  of  that 
failure  mode  or  to  protect  patients  from  its  effects,  teach  and  implement  the  redesigned 

process,  identify  and  implement  measures  of  effectiveness  and  implement  a  strategy  for 
maintaining the effectiveness of the redesigned process over time. 
 



 

Page 73 

In  addition  to  generally  committing  to  these  Minimum  Requirements,  Proposers  shall 
illustrate  their  ability  to  achieve  them  by  describing  their  overall  approach  to 
comprehensive quality management. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Quality Management 

In the majority of American EMS systems, “quality management” is limited to a retrospective 
evaluation  of  patient  care  reports.  A  growing  number  of  EMS  systems,  however,  are 
expanding  the  scope  of  their  quality  management  efforts  to  include  clinical  performance 
indicators  paired with  an  education  system  designed  to  effect  clinical  improvements.  The 

LEMSA  is  committed  to  such  a  comprehensive  model  of  quality  management  that,  while 
patient  centered,  encompasses  all  vital  functions  within  the  system.  This  Competitive 
Criterion encourages Proposers to join in this commitment. 
 
Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 

this area may include, but are not limited to, those described below. 
 
A  Proposal might  incorporate  the  2013‐2014  Baldridge  National  Quality  Program:  Health 
Care  Criteria  for  Performance  Excellence.  A  copy  of  this  program  can  be  downloaded  at 

www.nist.gov/baldrige/.  The  core  areas  addressed  by  this  process  provide  a  solid 
framework for a comprehensive and progressive quality management program. These areas 
include: 

 Leadership; 

 Strategic Planning; 
 Focus on Patients, Other Customers and Markets; 
 Measurement, Analysis, and Knowledge Management; 
 Workforce Engagement; 

 Process Management; and 
 Results. 

 
The Proposer’s quality management capability could be supported by providing a list of Key 

Performance  Indicators  (KPI)  for  each  of  the  key  result  areas  utilized  in  Proposer’s 
operations and proposed for Contra Costa County. Include a specific data definition and data 
source for each KPI. 
 

CMS  has  adopted  the  “Triple  Aim”  concept  to  improve  quality  of  care  and  the  patient 
experience while  controlling  costs. This program  forms  the basis  for  the CMS value based 
purchasing  arrangements  for  healthcare  providers.  The  Proposer  may  describe  how  it 
intends to incorporate the “Triple Aim” premises in its quality management activities. More 

about the “Triple Aim” can be reviewed at the Institute for Healthcare Improvement website 
(http://www.ihi.org) and at CMS websites. 
 



 

Page 74 

2. Competitive Criterion: Clinical and Operational Benchmarking  

It  is  important  for  an  organization  to  monitor  and  measure  performance  in  all  aspects  of  its 

operations.  The  definition  of  what  activities  are  to  be  measured  and  monitored  is  an  essential 
component. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 

Benchmarking of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs), including KPIs focused on clinical care 
is required. These include structure, process and outcome measurements. KPIs will evolve as 
part  of  ongoing  EMS  system  performance  improvement  as  approved  by  the  EMS Medical 

Director and  the LEMSA. KPIs will  include State  required  core metrics  in  addition  to  local 
core performance indicators. The Contractor shall provide, on a monthly basis, information 
necessary to benchmark KPIs. KPIs focusing on clinical activities to be measured will include, 
at a minimum: 

1. Response time performance by zone, priority, and County‐wide; 
2. Presumptive impressions at dispatch compared to field intervention; 
3. Scene  time  and  total  pre‐hospital  time  for  time dependent  clinical  conditions  like 

Acute Coronary Syndrome (ACS), stroke, and major trauma; 

4. Cardiac arrest survival in accordance with Utstein protocols; 
5. Fractal measurement of time to first defibrillation; 
6. Compliance with protocols, procedures, timelines, and destinations for ST‐Elevation 

Myocardial Infarction (STEMI) patients; 

7. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for patients with pulmonary 
edema and congestive heart failure; 

8. Compliance with protocols, procedures,  and  timelines  for patients with asthma or 
seizures; 

9. Compliance  with  protocols,  procedures,  and  timelines  for  patients  with  cardiac 
arrest; 

10. Compliance with protocols,  procedures,  timelines,  and destinations  for  systems of 
care patients (e.g. Trauma, STEMI, Stroke, Cardiac Arrest); 

11. Compliance with protocols, procedures, and timelines for assessment of pain relief; 
12. Analysis  of  high  risk,  low  frequency  clinical  performance  issues  and  strategies  to 

support competent care. 
13. Successful airway management rate by entire system, provider type and individual, 

including EtCO2 detection; 
14. Successful IV application rate by entire system, provider type and individual; 
15. Complaint management; 
16. Paramedic skill retention; 

17. Use of mutual aid; and 
18. Safety. 

 
Contractor will be required to produce a periodic report that describes overall compliance 
with  protocols  and  provides  an  analysis  of  which  protocols  have  the  most  compliance 

challenges. 
 



 

Page 75 

Proposers should describe  their current and proposed benchmarking, KPI monitoring, and 
its method for regularly assessing compliance with EMS Medical Protocols. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical and Operational Benchmarking 

Measuring  and  monitoring  KPIs  on  a  regular  and  consistent  basis  promotes  an 

organization’s  improvement  and  development.  EMS  organizations  that  are  committed  to 
improvement not only measure and monitor, but use the results to effect change. Proposers 
can demonstrate a higher level of commitment to measurement, monitoring, benchmarking, 
and improvement by documenting performance indicators that they measure and describing 

the use of the results. 
 
Non‐clinical performance indicators are relevant for operational, financial, or organizational 
advancement. Incorporating such focus areas demonstrates a higher level of commitment to 
performance and improvement.  

 
Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include but are not limited to those described below. 
 

The Contractor’s system for benchmarking might include non‐clinical KPIs such as: 
 

 employee injuries; 
 vehicle collisions (>$250 damage) per 100,000 fleet miles; 

 critical  vehicle/equipment  breakdowns  (interfering with  a  response  or  transport) 
per 100,000 fleet miles; 

 consumer satisfaction; 
 employee turnover; and 

 employee satisfaction. 
 
Other  KPI  benchmarking might  include  comparing  clinical  data  published  by  the National 
Association of EMS Physicians or other national organizations with other similarly designed 

clinically  sophisticated  systems. The organization’s  approach  to  learning  and performance 
improvement using  industry and non‐industry benchmarking can also demonstrate higher 
levels of capability and commitment. 
 

Participation  in,  or  publishing  the  results  of,  peer  reviewed  research  is  another  strong 
process measure of a system’s ongoing commitment to clinical sophistication. The Proposer 
might  demonstrate  a  higher  level  of  commitment  by  describing  past  participation  in  and 
proposed out‐of‐hospital research projects. For illustration, such projects might include but 

are not limited to research involving: 
 

 Impacts of Public Access Defibrillation (PAD); 
 Reduction of “at scene” time; 

 Reduction of “at patient” status to first shock or ALS intervention; 
 Other research projects as approved by the EMS Medical Director. 



 

Page 76 

3. Competitive Criterion: Dedicated Clinical Oversight Personnel  

It  is LEMSA’s goal  that all organizations participating  in  the Contra Costa County EMS system have 

adequate and competent oversight and management of the clinical services and quality improvement 
activities. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Clinical Leadership Personnel 

A  senior  manager  shall  be  responsible  for  oversight  and  management  of  the  key 
performance indicators and ongoing organization‐wide quality management programs. 
 

The  Contractor  shall  provide  a  physician  (may  be  part‐time)  and  a  full‐time  Registered 
Nurse  or  Paramedic  with  specialized  training  and  experience  in  quality  improvement  to 
implement  and  oversee  Contractor’s  on‐going  Quality  Management  program.  These 
individuals shall be responsible for the medical quality assurance evaluation of all services 

provided  pursuant  to  this  Agreement.  At  a  minimum,  the  Contractor  shall  provide  and 
maintain  two  full‐time  Clinical  and  Educational  Services  positions,  in  addition  to  the 
individual  identified  to  oversee  the  Contractor’s  on‐going  quality managment  program.  In 
addition, the Contractor shall provide at least one full‐time Analyst to evaluate Patient Care 

Reports  and  eighty  (80)  compensated  hours  per month  for  designated  field  personnel  to 
participate in clinical quality improvement activities. 
 
The LEMSA’s minimum requirement for EMS quality improvement, education and training is 

the  IHI  Open  School  Basic  Certificate.  Information  can  be  found  at 
http://www.ihi.org/education/IHIOpenSchool/Courses/Pages/OSInTheCurriculum.aspx. 
Within eighteen months, the full‐time staff dedicated to quality management and education 
will have completed an IHI Open School Basic Certificate. 

 
Proposers are required to document their commitment to have the senior members of their 
Contra Costa County operating unit actively participate in the leadership and oversight of the 
EMS  quality management  system.  This  commitment  includes,  but  is  not  limited  to,  active 

participation of Proposer’s senior  leadership  in meetings related to EMS and public health 
and  safety  coordinated  by  the  LEMSA  and  actively  participating  in  projects  designed  to 
improve the quality of EMS in the County of Contra Costa. 
 

The Proposer shall describe its commitment of leadership to clinical quality and describe the 
individual  to oversee  its clinical quality program  including a  job description and reporting 
relationships. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Clinical Leadership Personnel 

An organization’s commitment is demonstrated by the caliber, qualifications, and expertise 
dedicated to an endeavor. 

 
Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 

1. Implementing  specific  programs  and  activities  to  fully  engage  the  workforce  in 

quality management, such as peer review activities, medical audits, etc.; 



 

Page 77 

2. The  quality management  competencies  that members  of  the  leadership  team will 
possess  including  their  ability  to  analyze  performance  data  and  conduct 
improvement projects; 

3. Methods  used  to  communicate  openly  with  the  workforce  and  to  assess  the 
effectiveness of this communication; 

4. Activities  used  by  the  organization  to  communicate  performance  data  to  the 
members  of  the  workforce  involved  in  the  process  whose  performance  is  being 

monitored; 
5. Strategies used by the organization’s  leadership team to promote  legal and ethical 

behavior for themselves and the entire organization; 
6. The organization’s process for handling breaches of ethical behavior; 

7. Activities of  the organization’s  leadership  to promote a  culture  focused on patient 
and employee safety; 

8. Procedures used by the organization to handle situations that have or may have had 
an adverse impact on patients or the public; 

9. Commitment to patient safety; and 
10. Transparency and public reporting of clinical performance and benchmarks. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Medical Direction 

Ambulance  services  employ Medical  Directors  to  lead  the  clinical  care  services.  The  involvement, 
commitment,  and  expertise  expected  from  the  Medical  Director  should  directly  contribute  to  the 
Contractors clinical service levels, quality of care and quality management and improvement  

a) Minimum Requirements—Medical Direction 

Proposer shall engage a physician as its Medical Director to oversee the Contractor’s clinical 
activities.  The  Proposer  shall  identify  its  Medical  Director  and  provide  a  curriculum  vita 

outlining  his  or  her  experience  and  qualifications.  Proposer  shall  also  provide  a  job 
description  or  contract,  which  specifies  expectations  as  to  role,  responsibilities  and  time 
commitment of the Medical Director. These roles are separate and distinct from that of the 
LEMSA Medical Director and have no statutory authority within the EMS system for medical 

oversight. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Medical Direction 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Demonstrate  higher  levels  of  Medical  Direction  commitment  by  emphasizing  the 

individual’s  qualifications  such  as  Board  Certification  in  Emergency  Medicine, 
completion of the NAEMSP Medical Director’s Course, etc. 

2. Committing the Medical Director to active involvement with the Contractor and its 
employees,  training,  research,  field  observation,  and  pledges  to  work  with  the 

LEMSA Medical Director. 
3.  Committing  to  support  its Medical Director  in  liaising with other members of  the 

Contra  Costa  County  medical  community  to  identify  and  support  the  system’s 
standard of care and to identify and resolve issues that may arise. 



 

Page 78 

5. Competitive Criteria: Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

Clinical quality is not measured solely by the patient’s physical outcome. It  is  important to monitor 

and analyze the entire interaction of the patient and customers within the EMS system. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

At a minimum, the Contractor shall have a comprehensive mechanism for handling patient 
and  customer  complaints  or  issues.  The  Proposer  shall  describe  the  organization’s 
mechanism for managing complaints. Include methods for receiving, investigating, resolving, 
and  tracking  complaints.  Include  the method  for  analyzing  complaint  patterns  along with 

examples of improvement activities that have resulted from this analysis. 
 
Contractor  shall  establish  and  publish  a  user  friendly  Customer  Access  Hotline  giving 
internal and external customers and system participants the ability to contact a designated 

liaison of  the Contractor’s  leadership  team to discuss recommendations or suggestions  for 
service  improvements.  The  number may  either  be  answered  by  a  designated manager  or 
provide an opportunity for the caller to leave a voicemail message. The hotline number will 
be published in the local telephone directory and on the Contractor website and publicized 

at  local  healthcare  facilities,  fire  stations,  and  public  safety  agencies.  Members  of  the 
Contractor’s  leadership  team  are  to  be  automatically  notified  of  any  incoming  calls.  A 
management designee must return the call  to the customer within 30 minutes, 90% of  the 
time. Incidents that require feedback are to be attended to by the end of the next business 

day. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Focus on Patients and Other Customers 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Identify  how  the  organization  determines  the  desires,  needs,  and  expectations  of 

patients  and  other  customers.  Include  a  list  of  key  customer  groups  other  than 
patients. 

2. Discuss  the  mechanisms  the  organization  uses  to  incorporate  the  “voice  of  the 
customer” in planning processes. 

3. Other  aspects  of  healthcare  have  documented  inequalities  in  diagnosis  and 
treatment based on age,  ethnicity,  and gender. Describe  the organization’s  system 
for  assuring  and  monitoring  equitable  EMS  care  to  traditionally  underserved 
patients  such  as  children,  the  elderly,  homeless,  substance  abusers  and  mental 

health patients  as well  as  to  all  patients based on neighborhood,  age,  gender,  and 
ethnicity. 

4. Describe  and  provide  detailed  examples  of  the methods  the  organization  uses  to 
assess  and monitor  the  effectiveness at meeting  the needs and desires of patients 

and  other  customers.  If  possible,  provide  examples  of  what  you  have  learned  by 
using  these  monitoring  methods  and  the  action  you  have  taken  to  improve  the 
service to patients and other customers. 

5. Most  EMS  systems  engage  in  infection  control  practices  designed  to  protect 

providers  from  acquiring  infections.  Fewer  EMS  systems  engage  in  hygiene 



 

Page 79 

practices  that  are  designed  to  protect  patients  from  contamination.  Describe  the 
mechanism  for  providing  infection  control  for  employees,  system  partners  in 
healthcare and patients. 

 

6. Competitive Criterion: Continuing Education Program Requirements 

a) Minimum Requirements— Continuing Education 

Contractor shall provide  in‐house or sub‐contracted  in‐service  training programs designed 
to meet state and LEMSA  licensure/certification requirements at no cost  to employees. All 

in‐service and continuing education programs must comply with state regulations. The EMS 
Medical  Director  may  mandate  specific  continuing  education  programs  and  content 
requirements,  and  the  LEMSA may  review  and  audit  any  continuing  education  programs 
offered by the Contractor. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Continuing Education 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Targeting educational content to address local system needs; 
2. Expanded content of training program offerings; 
3. Introduction of innovative educational/training methods; and 

4. Measuring competency with specified skill sets. 
 

B. Operations 

1. Competitive Criterion: Dispatch and Communications 

Ambulance  Response  Times  are  impacted  by  the  efficiency  and  reliability  of  the  dispatch  system 

referring calls to the sometimes‐complex communication chain connecting a local resident or visitor 
who has just dialed 9‐1‐1 to the ambulance crew, which is asked to respond to the incident address. 
This communication chain varies between different jurisdictions within Contra Costa County. 
 

This RFP is intended to promote a higher level of collaboration between the Contractor and County 
PSAPS,  designated  dispatch  centers  and  public  safety  agencies  to  improve  the  efficiency  and 
reliability  of  communications  between  those  entities.  The  goal  in  this  Competitive  Criterion  is  to 
improve efficiency and promote a seamless dispatch process by minimizing  the  transfer of calls or 

information from the calls. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Dispatch and Communications 

It  is  anticipated  that  during  the  term  of  the  Agreement  the  County  will  make  significant 
changes  in  the medical dispatch process. The EMS Modernization Project  calls  for  a  single 
medical dispatch center with full implementation of prioritization of ambulance requests. At 
a minimum,  the Proposer shall  commit  to  this  improvement  in  the medical call‐taking and 

dispatch processes and agree  to work with  the LEMSA and County  to effect  such  changes. 
The  Proposer  shall  agree  to  negotiate  with  the  LEMSA  and  the  County  in  good  faith  to 
achieve these goals. 



 

Page 80 

 
The  Contractor  shall  provide  a  dispatch  center  and maintain  all  equipment  and  software 
(fixed,  mobile,  linkages)  necessary  to  receive  requests  for  emergency  ambulance  services 

from County designated dispatch centers. 
 
Staffing  levels  shall  be  such  that  electronic  or  telephonic  notifications  from  the  County 
designated public safety dispatch centers are answered or responded to within fifteen (15) 

seconds,  95%  of  the  time,  and  that  ambulances  are  dispatched  to  respond  to  Emergency 
Requests  within  thirty  (30)  seconds,  90%  of  the  time,  from  the  receipt  of  information 
establishing a location and priority for the response. 
 

The Contractor and  its Dispatch Center staff shall maintain a professional relationship and 
level  of  interaction  with  other  public  safety  dispatch  centers  and  medical  facilities,  both 
within and outside of the County. 
 

The Contractor  is  required  to  provide CAD  to CAD  interfaces with  the designated medical 
dispatch centers within the County to expedite the transmission of call information in order 
for the Contractor to dispatch its units, based on the “Automated EMS Message Transmission 
Network  Specification”  available  on  the  EMS  website  at 

http://cchealth.org/ems/pdf/mtnspec v1.5.pdf. 
 
The Contractor shall provide access for LEMSA staff members to access the Contractor’s CAD 
to audit and create reports for system performance monitoring. 

 
Contractor shall be responsible for all mobile radio equipment and cellular phones for use in 
the field including obtaining radio channels and all necessary FCC licenses and other permits 
as  may  be  required  for  the  operation  of  said  system.  This  will  enable  Contractor  to 

effectively  receive  communications  from  the  Contractor’s  Dispatch  Center  and  shall  be 
capable  of  receiving  and  replying  to  such  requests  for  emergency  ambulance  services  by 
voice or data linkage.  

1. Contractor's communications system shall be capable of receiving and transmitting 

all  communications necessary  to provide emergency ambulance  services pursuant 
to  this Agreement  including communicating with hospitals and other public safety 
agencies  as  required  in  a  declared  disaster  situation.  Radio  equipment  used  for 
ambulance‐to‐hospital  communications  shall  be  configured  so  that  personnel 
actually  providing  patient  care  are  able  to  directly  communicate  with  base  or 

receiving hospital staff about the patient. The Contractor’s ambulance crews shall be 
capable of transmitting 12‐lead ECGs to receiving facilities. 

2. Contractor shall equip all ambulances and supervisory vehicles used in performance 
of services  in Contra Costa County with radio equipment for communications with 

Contractor’s Dispatch Center, East Bay Regional Communications System (EBRCSA), 
and  suitable  for  operation  on  the  (CALCORD)  California  On‐Scene  Emergency 
Coordination  Radio  System.  Radios  operated  on  EBRCS  shall  be  P25  Phase  2 



 

Page 81 

compliant  (additional  information  regarding  EBRCSA  is  available  at 
http://www.ebrcsa.org). 

3. Contractor  shall  operate  the  two‐way  radios  in  conformance  with  all  applicable 

rules  and  regulations  of  the  Federal  Communication  Commission  (FCC),  and  in 
conformance with all applicable LEMSA rules and operating procedures. 

4. Contractor  shall  ensure  access  to  cellular  telephones  for  use  on  ambulances  and 
supervisory units. 

5. Contractor  shall  equip  all  ambulances  with  Automatic  Vehicle  Location  (AVL) 
devices. Contractor shall make available to LEMSA designated dispatch centers the 
real‐time AVL information for on‐duty ambulances and supervisory units within the 
County. 

 
Proposers shall  fully describe how they  intend to comply with the minimum requirements 
listed above and include a description of the equipment and technology to be used. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Dispatch and Communications 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 

1. Contractor may  identify a means and commit to  implementation of combined call‐
taking  and  dispatch  of  ambulances  meeting  the  goals  identified  in  the  EMS 
Modernization Project Report in all or part of the EOA. 

2. Contractor may  collaborate with  existing  PSAPs  and  dispatch  centers  to  locate  or 

consolidate PSAP/Dispatch operations. 
3. Other  Strategies  to  Reduce  Response  Times:  Proposers  may  propose  other 

reasonably  achievable  strategies  to  be  undertaken  at  the  Contractor’s  expense, 
which would be likely to materially reduce ambulance Response Times across all or 

any significant part of the EMS system. 
4. Proposer may commit a defined annual amount to contribute to the consolidation of 

the medical dispatch centers. This amount may be stipulated  for the Contractor  to 
provide call‐taking and dispatch with the transfer of callers from County PSAPs or it 

may  be  an  amount  contributed  to  another  agency  providing  call‐taking,  dispatch, 
and deployment of ambulances. The contribution can include funding, assignment of 
personnel, or the provision of other services. 

2. Competitive Criterion: Vehicles 

Contractor shall acquire and maintain all ambulances and support vehicles necessary to perform its 
services  under  the  Agreement.  All  costs  of maintenance  including  parts,  supplies,  spare  parts  and 
costs of extended maintenance agreements shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Vehicles 

At a minimum, the Contractor shall meet the requirements listed below. 

1. All ambulances shall meet the standards of Title XIII, California Code of Regulations. 
2. Ambulance vehicles used  in providing contract services shall bear the markings of 

the County logo and "Contra Costa County Emergency Medical Services"  in at  least 



 

Page 82 

four (4) inch letters on both sides. Such vehicles shall display the "9‐1‐1" emergency 
telephone number and state the level of service, "Paramedic Unit,” on both sides. 

3. Ambulance  vehicles  shall  be marked  to  identify  the  company  name,  but  shall  not 

display any telephone number other than 9‐1‐1 or any other advertisement. 
4. Overall  design,  color,  and  lettering  are  subject  to  the  approval  of  the  Contract 

Administrator. 
5. Proposer  shall  describe  the  ambulance  and  supervisory  vehicles  to be utilized  for 

the services covered under the Agreement. 
6. Ambulance  replacement  shall  occur  on  a  regular  schedule  and  the  Proposer  shall 

identify  its  policy  for  the maximum number  of  years  and mileage  that  an  ambulance 
will be retained in the EMS System. 

7. Each ambulance shall be equipped with GPS route navigation capabilities. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Vehicles 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Documenting  the  type,  age, mileage,  and  configuration of  the  ambulance  fleet  and 
supervisory vehicles; and 

2. Installing  equipment  and  selecting  vehicles  that  provide  innovations  for  safety, 
specialized transport capabilities, reduced environmental impact, etc. 

3. Competitive Criterion: Equipment 

Acquisition  and maintenance  of  all  equipment  including  parts,  supplies,  spare  parts,  and  costs  of 
extended maintenance agreements shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Equipment 

Contractor shall have sole responsibility  for  furnishing all equipment necessary to provide 
required  service.  All  on‐board  equipment, medical  supplies  and  personal  communications 
equipment  will  meet  or  exceed  the  minimum  requirements  of  LEMSA’s  Ambulance 

Equipment  and  Supply  List.  A  listing  of  the  required  on‐board  equipment,  medical 
equipment,  and  supplies  can  be  found  on  LEMSA’s  website.  Contractor  shall  also  comply 
with  the  specific  pediatric  equipment  requirements  as  specified  in  EMSA  #188,  Pediatric 
Equipment for ambulance and First Responders. 

 
Contractor  agrees  that  equipment  and  supply  requirements  may  be  changed  with  the 
approval of the Contract Administrator due to changes in technology. 
 

LEMSA  may  inspect  Contractor's  ambulances  at  any  time,  without  prior  notice.  If  any 
ambulance fails to meet the minimum in‐service requirements contained in the Ambulance 
Equipment and Supply list as determined by the LEMSA, the LEMSA may: 

1. Immediately remove the ambulance from service until the deficiency is corrected if 

the missing item is deemed a critical omission; 
2. Subject the Contractor to a $500.00 penalty; and 
3. The foregoing shall not preclude dispatch of the nearest available ambulance even 

though not  fully  equipped,  in  response  to  a  life  threatening  emergency  so  long  as 



 

Page 83 

another appropriately equipped ambulance of at  least equal  level of service is also 
dispatched  to  the  scene.  The  LEMSA  may  adopt  protocols  governing  provisional 
dispatch of  ambulances not  in  compliance with minimum  in‐service  requirements 

and Contractor shall comply with these protocols. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Equipment 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include but are not limited to: 
 

1. Providing  equipment  or  technologies  above  those  required  by  the  minimum 
equipment  list.  These  additional  items  may  include  advances  in  clinical  care 
capabilities,  opportunities  for  increasing  safety  for  crewmembers  and  patients, 
and  items  to  increase  ease  of  work,  improve  efficiency  or  make  efforts  more 
effective. 

2. Providing “smart” technologies that are blue tooth or otherwise compatible with 
data systems and electronic patient care records to improve patient care delivery, 
oversight and enhance performance improvement. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

a) Minimum Requirements—Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

Contractor shall be responsible for all maintenance of ambulances, support vehicles, and on‐
board equipment used  in the performance of  its work. LEMSA expects that all Ambulances 
and equipment used in the performance of the Agreement will be maintained in an excellent 
manner.  Any  Ambulance,  support  vehicle,  and/or  piece  of  equipment with  any  deficiency 

that  compromises,  or  may  reasonably  compromise  its  function,  must  be  immediately 
removed from service. 
 
The  appearance  of  ambulances  and  equipment  impacts  customers'  perceptions  of  the 

services provided. Therefore, the LEMSA requires the Ambulances and equipment that have 
defects,  even  significant  visible  but  only  cosmetic  damage,  be  removed  from  service  for 
repair without undue delay. 
 

Contractor must ensure an ambulance maintenance program that is designed and conducted 
to  achieve  the  highest  standard  of  reliability  appropriate  to  a  modern  high  performance 
ambulance  service  by  utilizing  appropriately  trained  personnel,  knowledgeable  in  the 
maintenance  and  repair  of  ambulances,  developing  and  implementing  standardized 

maintenance  practices,  and  incorporating  an  automated  or manual maintenance  program 
record keeping system. 
 
Contractor must ensure all point of care equipment on the ambulance meets CLIA standards 

and submit a description of the program used to assure compliance. 
 



 

Page 84 

All costs of maintenance and repairs, including parts, supplies, spare parts and inventories of 
supplies,  labor,  subcontracted  services,  and  costs  of  extended  warranties,  shall  be  at  the 
Contractor’s expense. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. Proposer offers to exceed the maintenance standard as outlined in the Standards—
Accreditation of Ambulance services published by the Commission on Accreditation 

of Ambulance services; and/or 
2. The Proposer describes how  it will exceed minimum requirements  for  the  testing, 

monitoring,  maintaining,  and  retaining  documentation  for  all  bio‐medical 
equipment  such  as  complying  with  the  then  current  and  applicable  Joint 
Commission on the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations (JCAHO) or equivalent 

standard. 

5. Competitive Criterion: Deployment Planning 

The  Contractor  will  be  expected  to  work  continuously  to  refine  and  improve  its  coverage  and 

deployment  plans  throughout  the  term  of  the  Agreement.  All  plan  modifications  will  be  at 
Contractor’s sole discretion and expense. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Deployment Planning 

Contractor shall agree to deploy  its ambulances  in such a manner to achieve the Response 
Time requirements. The Contractor shall also commit  to modify and adjust  its deployment 
strategies in the event that Response Time performance is not complying with the standards 

or  if  it  is  identified  that  there  are  areas  of  the  County which  are  chronically  experiencing 
delayed responses. 
 
The Proposer shall describe  its methods and initial deployment plans to be used  in Contra 

Costa  County.  A  description  of  the methodology  used  by  the  organization  to monitor  and 
modify  its plans will  also be documented. At  a minimum,  the Contractor  shall  identify  the 
average number of unit‐hours deployed each week, the number of units on‐duty by hour‐of‐
day and day of week, and the posting locations for ambulances. 

 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Deployment Planning 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

1. The  Proposer  describing  sophisticated  processes  it  has  developed  or  will  use  to 
achieve exemplary Response Time performance; and/or 

2. The  identification  and  use  of  technologies  or  managerial  processes  to  enhance 
Response Time performance. 

3. The Proposer will describe processes to provide real time situational awareness to 
other EMS System stakeholders to facilitate patient care delivery e.g. alerts or visual 

displays. 



 

Page 85 

C. Personnel 

The  LEMSA  recognizes  that  those  employed  in  the  Contra  Costa  County  EMS  system  ultimately 
determine  the  effectiveness  and  quality  of  the  service.  Proposers  are  encouraged  to  focus  on 
employees  especially  as  it  pertains  to  safety,  workload,  advancement  opportunities,  and 
compensation. 

1. Competitive Criterion: Field Supervision 

The LEMSA recognizes the Contractor’s need to ensure adequate supervision of its personnel and the 
delegation of authority to address day‐to‐day operational needs. The LEMSA also desires that these 

personnel and operational supervisory responsibilities do not displace the Contractor’s provision of 
direct clinical supervision of the Contractor’s caregivers. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Field Supervision 

Contractor  shall  provide  24‐hours  a  day  on‐duty  field  supervisory  coverage  in  each 
geographic area of the EOA (West, Central and East) within Contra Costa County. An on‐duty 
employee or officer must be authorized and capable to act on behalf of the Contractor in all 

operational matters. 
 
The  Proposers  shall  also  specifically  describe  how  its  Supervisors  are  able  to  monitor, 
evaluate, and improve the clinical care provided by the Contractor’s personnel and to ensure 

that on‐duty employees are operating in a professional and competent manner. 
 
All  field  supervisory  level  staff will  have  successfully  completed  ICS  100,  200,  300 & 400, 
NIMS 700 & 800. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Field Supervision 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 

this area may include, but are not limited to: 
1. The provision of a dedicated supervisor(s) and vehicle(s)  for Contra Costa County 

coverage; 
2. Demonstrate that all areas of the EOA have adequate dedicated supervision that  is 

committed  to  supervision  and  support  of  field  personnel  and  the  community  and 
that  their  administrative  tasks  are  limited  in  order  to  allow  this  high  level  of 
interaction. 

3. Specialized  training  for  supervisors  (i.e.  Strike  team  leadership, patient  safety and 

leadership); 
4. Exemplary qualification requirements; and  
5. Other defined activities to support and supervise field personnel. 

2. Competitive Criterion: Work Schedules 

This  is  a  performance‐based Agreement  and Contractor  is  encouraged  to  be  creative  in  delivering 
services. Contractor is expected to support employees by employing reasonable work schedules and 
conditions. 



 

Page 86 

a) Minimum Requirements—Work Schedules 

The LEMSA emphasizes  that  the Contractor  is  responsible  for  conducting  the employment 
matters  with  its  employees,  including  managing  personnel  and  resources  fairly  and 
effectively in a manner that ensures compliance with the Agreement ultimately executed by 

Contractor.  The  LEMSA  will  not  otherwise  involve  itself  in  Contractor’s 
management/employee relationships. 
 
Specifically,  patient  care  must  not  be  hampered  by  impaired  motor  skills  of  personnel 

working extended shifts, part‐time jobs, voluntary overtime, or mandatory overtime without 
adequate  rest. To mitigate  fatigue and safety  concerns, Contractor’s paramedics and EMTs 
working  on  an  Emergency  Ambulance  or  as  a  field  supervisor  should  work  reasonable 
schedules to ensure that potential fatigue and the resulting safety issues are reduced. 
 

Proposer  shall  describe  its policies and procedures used  to monitor employee  fatigue  and 
impairment. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Work Schedules 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to: 

 
The delineation of monitoring mechanisms, procedures, and policies designed to ensure 
that employees are not overworked or expected to work for extended time periods that 
may cause fatigue and impair the employee’s ability to perform safely and appropriately. 

3. Competitive Criterion: Internal Risk Management/Loss Control Program  

Education and aggressive prevention of conditions in which accidents occur are the best mechanism 
to avoid injuries to Contractor staff and Patients. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Risk Management 

The  LEMSA  requires  Contractor  to  implement  an  aggressive  health,  safety,  and  loss 

mitigation program including, at a minimum: 
1. Pre‐screening of potential employees (including drug testing); 
2. Initial and on‐going driver training; 
3. Lifting technique training; 
4. Review current information related to medical device FDA reportable events, recall, 

equipment failure, accidents; and 
5. Review employee health/infection control related information such as needle sticks, 

employee  injuries,  immunizations,  exposures  and  other  safety/risk  management 
issues. 

6. Ensure DEA compliant medication control processes. 
 
Planning for safety and risk mitigation processes will include, at a minimum: 

1. Gathering data on ALL incidents that occur among the Contractor’s workforce; 

2. Devise  policies  prescribing  safe  practices  and  providing  intervention  in  unsafe  or 
unhealthy work‐related behaviors; 



 

Page 87 

3. Gather safety information as required by law; 
4. Implement training and corrective action on safety related incidents, as required by 

law; and 

5. Provide safe equipment and vehicles. 
 
Proposer shall describe its risk management program. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Risk Management 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 

this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

Implementation  of  a  comprehensive  safety  and  risk  management  plan  that  involves 
employees, analyzes processes, monitors safety activities, and incorporates all processes 
into  policies,  procedures  and  training  programs  designed  to  enhance  safety  for  the 

workforce and patients. 

4. Competitive Criterion: Workforce Engagement 

An experienced, highly skilled, well rested, and satisfied workforce is essential to the provision of 

high  quality  EMS  services.  Proposers  are  encouraged  to meet with  current  system  employees 
and their labor representatives prior to submitting proposals. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Workforce Engagement 

At a minimum, the Proposer shall describe and document the following: 
1. Describe  the  organization’s  method  for  providing  system  and  individual 

performance feedback to employees. 

2. Describe the organization’s mechanism for involving front line employees in quality 
and performance improvement projects. 

3. Describe the credentialing requirements for the employees including but not limited 
to EMT’s, paramedics, supervisors, dispatchers, and mechanics. 

4. Describe the methods to assess, maintain, and develop new skills for employees in 
the workforce. 

5. Describe the organization’s practices to ensure diversity in the workforce. Address 
the organization’s level of diversity alignment with the communities that you serve. 

6. Describe  the  organization’s  practices  and  policies  designed  to promote workforce 
harmony  and  prevent  discrimination  based  on  age,  national  origin,  gender,  race, 
sexual orientation, religion, and physical ability. 

7. Impaired  providers  present  a  significant  safety  risk  for  patients,  partners,  and 

others in the community. Proposers should describe their commitment to ensuring 
that providers are free from the influence of alcohol and intoxicating drugs. 

8. Describe  the  organization’s  processes  to  ensure  harmonious  relationships  with 
other EMS System stakeholders. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment— Workforce Engagement 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 

this area may include, but are not limited to the following: 



 

Page 88 

 
1. The  organization’s  process  for  assessing  the  engagement  and  satisfaction  level  of 

employees. Include description of an ongoing process that produces qualitative and 

quantitative KPIs for employee satisfaction. 
2. The method  used  by  the  organization  for  two‐way  communication  between  front 

line employees and the leadership team. 
3. The  organization’s  mechanism  for  encouraging,  gathering,  providing  feedback  on 

and acting on employee improvement suggestions. 
4. The  development  of  a  career  ladder  and  professional  development  process  for 

members  of  the  workforce.  Include  a  description  of  the  succession  plan  for  key 
positions. 

5. The method for recognition of workforce patient care excellence and contributions. 

D. Management 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Key Personnel 

a) Minimum Requirements—Key Personnel 

Proposers shall identify the individuals who will fill the key leadership positions for Contra 
Costa County. Provide resumes  for  the  individuals.  If  the positions have not been  filled  for 
Contra  Costa  County,  provide  the  job  descriptions  that will  be  used  for  the  positions  that 

include minimum qualifications and scope of responsibilities. 
 
Identify out‐of‐county leadership personnel who will be actively involved in the Contra Costa 
County  operations,  if  applicable.  Include  their  resumes,  qualifications,  and  scope  of 

responsibilities. 

b) Higher Levels of Commitment—Key Personnel 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

1. Provision of on‐going training for key managers and development programs for EMS 

managers and supervisors offered to those personnel at no cost. While  there  is no 
specific  program  regarding  the  exact  content  of  the  development  program, 
managers should  receive  training similar  to  the content provided  in  the American 
Ambulance Association's Ambulance Service Manager Certificate Program. 

2. Stability  of  the  Contractor’s  leadership  team  directly  correlates  with  the 
continuation  of  the  performance  of  the  EMS  system.  The  Proposer  may  describe 
how it will ensure continuity and reduce managerial turnover in the system. 

3. Assignment  of  key  personnel  to  participate  in  countywide  initiatives  e.g.  Health 

Information Exchange, Quality Improvement and Community Outreach. 
 



 

Page 89 

E. EMS System and Community 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Supporting Improvement in the First Response System 

The EMS system in Contra Costa County is collaboration among numerous related and unrelated 
agencies, which are dependent on one another  to assure positive outcomes  for  the  individuals 

being  served.  The  LEMSA’s  goals  regarding  this  collaborative  system  include:  1)  provide  a 
seamless  handoff  of  patients  by  first  responders  to  the  emergency  ambulance  service;  and  2) 
achieve  the  prevailing  industry  standard  with  respect  to  the  provision  of  training  to  first 
responders. 

 
The  emergency  ambulance  service  can  play  a  role  as  a  partner  within  the  pre‐hospital  EMS 
system that  is  concerned with  the provision of emergency medical  services  to people who are 
seriously  injured or  ill. As a  result,  the ambulance service provider has,  in many communities, 

emerged as the organization charged with facilitating ongoing and enhanced EMS training within 
the EMS system. This is a cost of doing business recognized by ambulance providers across the 
country  serves  a  practical  source  of  such  training  in  most  communities.  It  is  also  the  logical 
source  for such training, because the ambulance provider  is the entity with a direct role  in the 

most EMS responses in the County. 
 
The LEMSA and the County desire to increase collaboration between the first responders and the 
ambulance  service.  This  increased  collaboration  may  take  many  forms  including  formal 
agreements  or  combined  work  and  training  activities.  The  Proposers  are  not  expected  to 

negotiate formal agreements with other EMS participants prior to the award of the Agreement. If 
a Proposer proposes to commit to a collaborative arrangement as described in this section, it is 
only necessary to state that commitment and describe the terms on which the Proposer is willing 
to collaborate in the Proposal. 

a) Minimum Requirements—First Response System 

Proposer must commit to:  
1. Exercise its best, good faith efforts to maintain positive working relationships with 

all first response agencies across the EOA; 
2. Make  continuing  EMS  education  services  available  without  cost  to  all  first 

responders across the EOA at the level prevailing in the industry; 
3. Restock at the Contractor’s cost basic life support supplies utilized on a one‐for‐one 

basis, based on utilization on calls by first response agencies; 
4. Provide internship opportunities for EMT or paramedic students, giving preference 

to students from training programs located in Contra Costa County; and 

5. Contractor  shall  designate  from  among  its  employees  a  single  individual  as  its 
contact person/liaison for the First Response agencies. 

 
Proposers shall describe  in detail how they  intend  to address  the Minimum Requirements 

listed above. 



 

Page 90 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—First Response System 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

Proposers  may  propose  strategies  to  strengthen  the  collaborative  interface  between  the 
Contractor  and  first  responders  and  to  improve  the  quality  and  efficiency  of  the  EMS 
response  system  through  support  for  first  responders  and  other  agencies  integral  to  the 
provision of emergency services. Examples of possible strategies include: 

1. Shared medical direction with the provider 
2. Group purchasing arrangements that may allow First Responder agencies to acquire 

medical equipment and non‐exchanged supplies at a lower cost 
3. Collaborative training programs 
4. Collaborative  strategies  to  address  call  surges,  including  possible  coordination  of 

responses during MCI and other disaster events. 
5. Coordination  between  or  collaborative  continuous  quality  improvement 

programming 
6. EMS Week Recognition and Awards Program Sponsorship 

7. Coordination of public education initiatives and programming 
8. Coordination of injury and illness prevention programs 
9. Collaborative public information services 
10. Proposers may propose other reasonable achievable strategies to be undertaken at 

the Contractor’s expense, which would be likely to materially expand or enhance the 
capacity  of  first  responder  agencies  to  provide  services  more  effectively  or 
economically. 
 

It  is recognized that some of the suggestions for a “higher level of commitment” in 
connection with  this  Competitive  Criterion  “Supporting  Improvement  in  the  First 
Response System” may be  relevant  to a Proposer’s  response  to other Competitive 
Criteria or  to certain Core Requirements. As noted above,  information provided  in 

response to other requirements or criteria cannot be taken into account when rating 
the  Proposer’s  response  to  this  Competitive  Criterion.  If  Proposers  desire  that 
previously provided information or offerings be considered under this criterion, the 
specific  commitments  should  be  repeated  in  the  response  to  this  criterion.  

Proposers  desiring  to  offer  a  higher  level  of  commitment  in  response  to  this 
Competitive  Criterion  should  set  forth  here  a  comprehensive  description  of  the 
collaborative  working  relationship  they  intend  to  offer  to  local  first  responder 
agencies,  including  a  description  of  each  of  the  specific  components  and 

commitments which the Proposer is offering. 

2. Competitive Criterion:  Health Status Improvement and Community Education 

The LEMSA desires that its Contractor take significant steps to improve injury and illness prevention 
and  system  access  through  community  education  programs  provided  to  the  school  system  and 

community groups.  It  is  the LEMSA’s expectation that Contractor will plan such programs working 



 

Page 91 

collaboratively  with  other  public  safety  and  EMS  related  groups  such  as  the  American  Heart 
Association, American Stroke Association, the American Red Cross, and area healthcare organizations. 

a) Minimum Requirements—Community Education 

Contractor will  allocate one hundred  thousand dollars  ($100,000) under Plan A and  three 

hundred thousand dollars ($300,000) under Plan B annually  for community education and 
improvement  activities.  The  Proposer  shall  describe  how  these  funds will  be  used  for  the 
benefit of the Community. 
 

Contractor  shall  annually  plan  and  implement  definitive  community  education  programs, 
which  shall  include:  identification  of  and  presentations  to  key  community  groups  which 
influence  the  public  perception  of  the  EMS  system’s  performance,  supporting  HeartSafe 
Communities  initiatives,  Public  Access  Defibrillation  programs,  conducting  citizen  and 
school based CPR training events, participation in EMS week and other educational activities 

involving  illness  and  injury  prevention,  system  awareness/access,  and  appropriate 
utilization of the EMS system. 
 
Proposers shall describe their planned community education program for both Plans A and 

B. 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—Health Status Improvement and Community Education 

Examples of ways  in which  a Proposer may demonstrate  a higher  level  of  commitment  in 
this area may include, but are not limited to those described below. 
 

According  to  the  UCSF  Center  for  Health  Professions,  on  a  national  level,  the  ethnic 
compositions of the EMT and paramedic workforce does not fully reflect the U.S. population. 
This  is of some concern because EMTs are frequently  involved in situations where cultural 
understanding is vital, particularly in urban areas. Accordingly, Contractor may collaborate 
with the LEMSA and public health officials to develop and facilitate EMT training programs, 

internships and related opportunities for Contra Costa County residents from racial/ethnic 
and  income  groups  that  are  underrepresented  among  health  and  emergency  medical 
professionals. 
 

Proposer may offer to undertake projects that shall demonstrably improve the health status 
in  the  community.  Health  status  improvement  programs  targeted  to  “at‐risk  populations” 
may  include,  but  are  not  limited  to:  seat  belt  use,  child  passenger  safety  program,  bike 
helmet  and  safety  program,  participation  in NTHSA  Safe  Communities  Program,  Every  15 

minutes,  9‐1‐1  awareness,  gun  safety,  hunting  safety,  Back  to  Sleep  Program,  Safely 
Surrendered  Baby  Program,  drowning  prevention,  earthquake  and  disaster  preparedness, 
concussion  prevention  programs,  equestrian  accident  prevention,  senior  safety  program, 
and home hazard inspection program. 

 
The impact of health status improvement projects should be statistically demonstrable. For 
example,  this  includes  selecting  indicators  that  can  be  used  to  measure  the  process  and 
outcomes of an intervention strategy for health improvement, collecting and analyzing data 



 

Page 92 

on  those  indicators,  and  making  the  results  available  to  the  community  to  inform 
assessments  of  the  effectiveness  of  an  intervention  and  the  contributions  of  participating 
entities.  

 
Steps in the health improvement projects may include: 

 Analyzing the community’s health issues 
 Inventorying resources 

 Developing a health improvement strategy 
 Establishing accountability for activities 
 Monitoring process and outcomes  
 Developing partnerships with Public Health, Law and Human Services  

 
Contractor may seek external grant funding for health status improvement projects. 

F. Integration with Healthcare Providers 

1. Competitive Criterion:  Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

The  evolving  role  of  EMS  and  dramatic  changes  in  the  healthcare  delivery  systems  provide  a 

challenge and opportunity in Contra Costa County. 
 
The  successful bidder will  collaborate with hospitals, healthcare  systems, mental health providers, 
County Health Services, and others involved in community health. 
 

It is anticipated that the Contractor will enter into agreements with various healthcare agencies for 
provision  of  ambulance  transportation  and  other  services  during  the  term  of  the  Agreement.  The 
Contractor will  include  the County as party on all  such agreements so  in  the event of a Contractor 
change the agreements will be remain in force within the EOA and/or County. 

a) Minimum Requirements— Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

The Proposer will describe its commitment to furthering collaboration with other healthcare 
providers within  the  EOA and County.  The  Proposer will  also  describe  its  commitment  to 
working with  the LEMSA and healthcare providers  to  implement a standardized electronic 
health record to be shared among the caregivers. 

b) Higher Level of Commitment—Collaboration with Healthcare Providers 

Proposer may demonstrate a higher level commitment by: 

1. Commiting  to  a more  significant  role  in  establishing  the  out‐of‐hospital  electronic 
healthcare record including first responder and ambulance patient care data and its 
immediate dessimination to the receiving facility. This may include the commitment 
of specific software, equipment, and/or funding. 

2. Provide  Letters  of  Interest  (LOI)  with  existing  healthcare  providers  indicating  a 
desire to establish services to healthcare systems beyond those covered under this 
RFP. 



 

Page 93 

3. Identify activities  that  the Contractor will undertake  to  create  the opportunity  for 
expanded mobile health care services to support community health and integrated 
healthcare within the County and the State. 



 

Page 94 

 SECTION VI. FINANCIAL CRITERIA 

A. Financial Strength and Stability 

The Proposer must provide documentation of its financial strength and stability as a going concern. 
The Proposer must satisfy the LEMSA that it can financially support the services covered in this RFP 

and be able to afford losses that may arise from inaccurate estimates of revenue, expenses, fines, and 
resource requirements necessary to comply with the performance standards  identified  in this RFP. 
Specifically,  the  LEMSA  desires  an  understanding  of  the  Proposer’s  financial  stability,  Liquidity 
(solvency),  financial  leverage  (debt),  asset  efficiency  (management  or  turnover),  profitability, 
revenue recovery performance and other financial indicators. 

 
The documents requested in this Section are to be included in separately sealed containers and will 
be evaluated by an independent entity engaged to evaluate the financial components. They will not 
be examined by the Review Panel and will be scored separately. 

 
The information requested in this Section will allow for the determination of the Proposers’ current 
financial  situation  and  allow  an  assessment  of  the  Proposers’  projected  revenue  and  expenses  in 
order to establish reasonableness. 

 

B. Financial Situation Documents 

1. Financial Statements 

Provide  year‐end  financial  statements  for  the  last  three  years  and  the  most  recent  year‐to‐date 
financial statements. These should support the organization’s financial ability to perform the services 

included in this RFP and the Proposal. 

2. Audited Statements 

Provide independently audited financial statements for the most recent fiscal year. 

3. Financial Commitments 

Provide a list of commitments, and potential commitments, which may impact assets, lines of credit, 
guarantor letters or otherwise affect the responder’s ability to perform the Contract. Identify current 
lines  of  credit  and  available  funds  remaining.  Document  any  potential  events,  litigation,  contract 

failures, judgments, or other actions that may significantly impact the Proposer’s financial situation. 

4. Working Capital 

The Proposer shall describe its working capital sources and quantify the amount it expects to need 

for startup and improvements to the Contra Costa County EMS system. The information shall include 
the  estimated  amount  of  start‐up  capital  required  to  finance  administration  and  ambulance 
operations for the first six (6) months of the Agreement. Include the source of this capital and if any 
part of it will be borrowed, include verification from a financial institution that your organization is 

approved or pre‐qualified to borrow sufficient funds. Provide any assurances for such funding from 



 

Page 95 

parent or related organization in the form of a letter guaranteeing the amount of funding that may be 
necessary for start‐up and on‐going losses if projections are inadequate. 

5. Performance Security 

The Proposer shall document its method and ability to provide the required performance security. 

6. Financial Interests 

The Proposer shall disclose and describe any financial interests in related businesses. 
 

C. Financial Projections 

The Proposer  is required to complete a pro  forma budget  for the  first  three (3) years of operation 
under the Agreement. 
 

1. Revenue projections 

All Proposers shall use the same assumptions regarding call volume, payer mix, and charges  in the 
preparation of the revenue projections for the first three years. The Proposers will be expected to use 
their experience or  consultants  to derive  the service mix,  cash  flow projections, CPI  increases,  and 

per transport collection by payers. 
 
The most recently available payer mix is available in Section I.H.4 of this RFP. The fixed charges are 
included  in  Appendix  10  and  the  methodology  for  determining  the  annual  charge  increases  is 

described  in  Section  IV.H.3.b.  The  total  call  and  transport  volume  is  provided  in  the  separate 
electronic CAD files. 
 
The Proposer shall complete the Basis for Revenue Projections included in Appendix 14 

 

2. Revenue Flow Projections 

The revenue generated from ambulance transports is not received the date that the transport occurs. 

All  Proposers  shall  complete  the Revenue Flow Projections  included  in Appendix 15.  This  is  to  be 
completed  solely  based  on  transports  occuring  after  start‐up.  An  incumbent  provider  should  not 
include revenue derived from transports prior to the contract start date. 
 

3. Expense Projections 

The  Proposers’  expenses  are  going  to  vary  between  Plans  A  and  B.  Therefore  three‐year  expense 
projections will need to be provided for in each Plan. In addition to the expense budget line items, the 
Proposers  shall  document  their  assumptions  used  to  develop  the  pro  formas.  The  required 

documentation of assumptions and expense budget templates are included in Appendix 16. 
 



 

Page 96 

4. One-Time Start Up and Capital Items 

The one‐time expenses for start‐up shall be documented on the template provided in Appendix 17. 

Some of  these expenses may not be required on an  incumbent provider, but  the  incumbent should 
complete the value of existing assets in the template. 
 

5. Pro Forma Summary 

The  comparison  of  revenue  and  expenditures  shall  be  summarized  in  the  template  provided  in 
Appendix 18. This shall be completed for each plan and for each of the first three years of operation. 

 

D. Pricing 

The Proposer is required to complete and sign the Price Sheet Form for ALS interfacility transports. 

The Price Sheet Form is included in Appendix 19. 
   



 

Page 97 

 
 

   

Appendix 1 

 

 

MANDATORY TABLE OF 

CONTENTS 



 

Page 98 

 
   

Appendix 2 

 

 

MAP OF EXCLUSIVE 

OPERATING AREA  



 

Page 99 

 
   

Appendix 3 

 

 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

ZONE MAPS  



 

Page 100 

 
   

Appendix 4 

 

 

COUNTY AMBULANCE 

ORDINANCE  



 

Page 101 

 
   

Appendix 5 

 

 

CURRENT AMBULANCE 

ZONES MAP  



 

Page 102 

 
   

Appendix 6 

 

 

CALL DENSITY 

RESPONSE AREAS IN 

EOA  



 

Page 103 

 
   

Appendix 7 

 

 

CURRENT AMBULANCE 

RATES  



 

Page 104 

 
   

Appendix 8 

 

 

PROCUREMENT 

TIMELINE  



 

Page 105 

 
   

Appendix 9 

 

 

REQUIRED FORMS  



 

Page 106 

 
   

Appendix 10 

 

 

STIPULATED 

AMBULANCE CHARGES  



 

Page 107 

 
   

Appendix 11 

 

 

SUBSIDY REQUEST 

FORM  



 

Page 108 

 
   

Appendix 12 

 

 

INSURANCE 

REQUIRMENTS  



 

Page 109 

 
   

Appendix 13 

 

 

SAMPLE STANDARD 

COUNTY CONTRACT  



 

Page 110 

 
   

Appendix 14 

 

 

BASIS FOR REVENUE 

PROJECTIONS 

TEMPLATE  



 

Page 111 

 
   

Appendix 15 

 

 

REVENUE FLOW 

PROJECTION TEMPLATE  



 

Page 112 

 
   

Appendix 16 

 

 

EXPENSE BUDGET 

TEMPLATES  



 

Page 113 

 
   

Appendix 17 

 

 

ONE TIME EXPENSE AND 

CAPITAL BUDGET 

TEMPLATE  



 

Page 114 

 
   

Appendix 18 

 

 

PRO FORMA BUDGET 

SUMMARY TEMPLATE  



 

Page 115 

 
   

Appendix 19 

 

 

ALS INTERFACILITY 

PRICE SHEET  



 

Page 116 

 



DISCUSSION
TO FINALIZE

RFP PROVISIONS



• The final decision regarding an award shall rest with the 
Health Services Director Board. (Pg. 18, Section II.G.2)

• The decision on contract award will be made by the 
Health Services Director Contra Costa County Board of 
Supervisors following the recommendation from the 
Board of Supervisors Health Services Director. If for any 
reason the selected Proposer is unable to enter into the 
Agreement in a timely manner in accordance with the 
time interval identified in the Procurement Time Line for 
contract negotiation, the Health Services Director, 
upon direction from the Board, may proceed toward 
selection of an alternate Proposal, cancel the process, 
seek further input from the Board …  (Pg. 22, Section II.G.12)

CCEMS CHANGES

2



ALS INTERFACILITY 
TRANSPORTS

• Included due to stakeholder input from healthcare 
facilities and CCEMS need for greater 
accountability

• Recommend no changes to draft RFP to:
 Include ALS interfacility transports as part of 

EOA services
 Control pricing by scoring price in RFP
 Mandate performance provisions in RFP for 

quality and response times

3



RESPONSE TIMES

• The RFP requires Proposers to submit 2 plans
 Plan A largely retains current response times but 

expands high density area in East County
 Plan B allows for a 60 second increase in all high 

density areas of the EOA

• Recommend no changes to RFP other than small 
revisions to maps included in Appendix 6
 County will be able to select response time 

performance levels based on evaluation of 
Plans A and B.

4



RESPONSE TO ISOLATED 
AREAS

• While the Contractor has the exclusive right to all emergency 
calls originating in the EOA, there are areas on the periphery 
of the County where the nearest paramedic-staffed 
ambulance may be located in an adjacent jurisdiction. In 
the interest of getting the quickest ambulance to the patient, 
the LEMSA will approve the use of these closer ambulances 
contingent upon the Contractor executing a satisfactory 
mutual aid agreement with the agencies responding from a 
neighboring jurisdiction requires the Contractor to make a 
good faith effort to execute a satisfactory mutual aid 
agreement with the agencies responding from a 
neighboring jurisdiction.  The LEMSA will approve an 
appropriately structured agreement to use the closer 
ambulances. (Pg. 35, Section IV D.1.c)

5



IDENTIFICATION OF 
CLOSEST AMBULANCE

• In Response to the comment to identify closest 
ambulance, this is addressed in minimum 
requirements of the competitive criteria of the RFP

• “Contractor shall equip all ambulances with 
Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) devices. 
Contractor shall make available to LEMSA 
designated dispatch centers the real-time AVL 
information for on-duty ambulances and 
supervisory units within the County.” (Pg 81, Section 
V.B.1)

6



FLEET SIZE

• Fleet size was corrected to be 120% of 
peak staffing.

7



PROPOSERS’ 
CONFERENCE

• The RFP has been changed to make the 
Proposers’ Conference Mandatory. 
(Pg. 12-13, Section  II.E.2)

8



SCORING MATRIX

• Request to include some form of first responder 
reimbursement as a competitive criterion that would be 
awarded additional points in scoring

• Consider revising scoring matrix II.H to allocate 300 
points to ‘Commitment to EMS System and Community’ 
and 250 points to ‘Healthcare Integration’

9



PERFORMANCE SECURITY
• Contractor shall furnish performance security in the 

amount of two million dollars ($2,000,000) in one of the 
following forms: (Page 62-62, Section IV.H.12)

 A faithful performance bond issued by a bonding 
company, appropriately licensed and acceptable to the 
LEMSA; or

 An irrevocable letter of credit issued pursuant to this 
provision in a form acceptable to the LEMSA and from a 
bank or other financial institution acceptable to the 
LEMSA, or

 If the Proposer is a governmental entity, the County will 
waive the performance bond requirement.
(Non-public bidders will incur costs that fire districts would 
not)

10



REVENUE EVALUATION

• Commenter wanted to ensure that additional federal 
and state reimbursement would be included in the 
evaluation of the financial information.

• Response:
• Revenue from all sources will be documented and 

evaluated in the independent review of the Financial 
Documents

11



HIGHER LEVEL 
COMPETITIVE CRITERIA –

FIRST RESPONDERS
• Shared medical direction with the provider

• Group purchasing arrangements that may allow First 
Responder agencies to acquire medical equipment 
and non-exchanged supplies at a lower cost

• Collaborative training programs

• Collaborative strategies to address call surges, 
including possible coordination of responses during 
MCI and other disaster events.

• Coordination between or collaborative continuous 
quality improvement programming

12



HIGHER LEVEL 
COMPETITIVE CRITERIA –

FIRST RESPONDERS
• EMS Week Recognition and Awards Program 

Sponsorship

• Coordination of public education initiatives and 
programming

• Coordination of injury and illness prevention programs

• Collaborative public information services

• Proposers may propose other reasonable achievable 
strategies to be undertaken at the Contractor’s 
expense, which would be likely to materially expand 
or enhance the capacity of first responder agencies 
to provide services more effectively or economically.

13



OPTIONS FOR 
CONSIDERATION

POTENTIAL ADDITIONAL EXAMPLES

• If fire districts within the EOA impose a first responder 
fee, the Contractor may negotiate with the districts to 
provide billing and collection services for these fees.
(Recommend including as an additional higher level 
example)

• In the Contractor’s response for Plan B, the contractor 
may provide additional support to the ALS and BLS 
first responders.  This support may include financial 
and/or provision of services to the first responders. 
(Concern regarding imposing costs on non-public 
entities that would not be incurred in a fire proposal 
and potential anti-kickback issues)

14



INDEPENDENT COUNTY 
REVIEWER

• Options for selection

• CAO’s office recommends to the Board 
a reviewer and an alternate for BOS 
consideration

• Supervisors may identify reviewer and 
alternate

15



INDEPENDENT OBSERVERS

• Option for consideration is to identify 2 
independent observers to be present during the 
Review Panel’s deliberations.

• They would not participate in discussion or 
scoring but would be able to report back to the 
BOS regarding the process

• May be recommended  for selection by 
groups/associations
(i.e. Medical Society, County and City Managers, etc.)

16



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

1. OPEN the hearing on the costs of abating a public nuisance on the real property located at 3010 Del Hombre Lane,

Walnut Creek, California, Contra Costa County (APN 148-170-001); RECEIVE and CONSIDER the attached

itemized report on the abatement costs and any objections thereto from the property owner or other persons with a

legal interest in the property; and CLOSE the hearing.

2. DETERMINE the cost of all abatement work and all administrative costs to be $27,979.43.

3. ORDER the itemized report confirmed and DIRECT that it be filed with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.

4. ORDER the costs to be specially assessed against the above-referenced property and AUTHORIZE the recordation

of a Notice Of Abatement Lien. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No net fiscal impact. The costs as determined above will be added to the tax roll as a special assessment on this

property and will be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary county taxes are collected. 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa County Ordinance Code Article 14-6.4 and California Government Code Section 25845 authorize the

recovery of abatement costs in public nuisance cases, the recordation of a Notice of Abatement Lien, and inclusion of

abatement costs on the tax roll as a special assessment, upon approval of the Board of Supervisors.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  Greg Wixom

925-674-7737

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc:

D.7

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Jason Crapo, County Building Official

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Cost confirmation hearing for real property located at 3010 Del Hombre Lane, Walnut Creek, CA



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

The Notice and Order to abate was posted on the above-referenced property for a vacant unsecured structure

whose premises contained waste, rubbish, debris, excessive vegetation and car parts and was served on the

property owner and all persons known to be in possession of the property by certified mail on April 8, 2014.

The property owner did not file an appeal of the Notice and Order to Abate. The County Abatement Officer abated

the nuisance on May 14, 2014.

The property owner was billed for the actual cost of the abatement and all administrative costs; including

extraordinary costs for hazardous materials, solvents, petro-chemicals, tires, mattresses and appliances which

were removed from the house and property. The bill was sent by first-class mail to the property owner on May 27,

2014. The property owner did not pay the bill within 45 days of the date of mailing.

Notice of this Cost Hearing was sent to the property owner by certified mail by the Clerk of the Board. For proof

of service, see Clerk of the Board at 651 Pine Street, Room 106, Martinez, CA.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved the County will not be able to recover costs for abatement on code violations for this property.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Itemized costs 

Before and After Photos 



  CONTRA COSTA COUNTY 
 
 
DATE:  December 2, 2014 
 
TO:  Clerk of the Board 
 
FROM:  Department of Conservation & Development 
  By: Tyrone Ridgle, Building Inspector II 
   
RE:  Itemized Report of Abatement Costs 
                                                                   
The following is an itemized report of the costs of abatement for 
the below described property pursuant to C.C.C. Ord. Code ' 14-
6.428. 

 
OWNER:   Christina Kohler 
           Haigoush Heidi Kohler, Tre 
 
POSSESSOR: N/A 
 
MORTGAGE HOLDER: N/A 
 
ABATEMENT ORDERED DATE:  April 8, 2014 
 
ABATEMENT COMPLETED DATE: May 14, 2014, 2014 
 
SITE ADDRESS: 3010 Del Hombre Lane, Walnut Creek, CA 
APN #:148-170-001 

 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:  Residential 
 
 
 
AMOUNT OF ABATEMENT COSTS (CCC ORDINANCE CODE 14-6.428) 
 
ITEM                   EXPLANATION                   COST 
Notice to Comply $ 250.00 
Site Visits (4 x $100 ea) $ 400.00 
PIRT (Title Search)  $ 150.00 
Certified Letter & Regular Mailings $ 19.93 
Photos $ 82.00 
Contractor hired for abatement                         $ 26677.50 

Final Site Inspection to Confirm Compliance $ 200.00 
Compliance Report and Board Hearing $ 200.00 
                                                 Total $ 27979.43 
 
 
Abatement costs can be paid at or mailed to Department of 
Conservation and Development, Building Inspection Division, 30 
Muir Rd., Martinez, CA 94553. 
 
 



Before Photos























After Photos

















RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/3, which supersedes Resolution No. 2014/205, regarding compensation and benefits for

the County Administrator, County Elected and Appointed Department Heads, Management, Exempt, and

Unrepresented employees to reflect changes, as recommended by the County Administrator. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The terms and conditions set forth in this action are cost neutral. 

BACKGROUND: 

Historically, the wages and benefits granted by the County to its department heads, managers, and unrepresented

employees have paralleled the wages and benefits negotiated by the County with its various labor organizations. In

summary, the modifications described below modify the benefits for specified groups of unrepresented employees to

be consistent with those of their companion bargaining groups; modify sections to correctly recognize recently

created, classified, or eliminated classifications(including the elimination of CCCERA classifications); and make

technical non-substantive corrections.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance

Director (925) 335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Human Resources Transactions   

D.8

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Revised Management Benefits Resolution No. 2015/3, which Supersedes Resolution No. 2014/2005



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

The attached Management Resolution has been modified in the following ways: 

Section 5.11 County Subvention for Retirement Chief Executive Officer, has been removed. 1.

Section 5.12 414H2 Participation was renumbered as section 5.11.2.

Section 6 New Retirement Plan, subsection (D) regarding persons employed as staff as CCCERA was

omitted, and former subsection (E) became (D).

3.

Technical, non-substantive corrections to section numbers were made in paragraph 12.4.

Section 14, Annual Management Administrative Leave, references to and provisions regarding the

Retirement Chief Executive Officer were removed.

5.

Section 16, subsection (B) and ( C), provisions for vacation sales by CCCERA staff and the Retirement

Chief Executive Officer, were removed.

6.

Section 21, Executive Automobile Allowance, the Director of EHSD was removed from the list of eligible

positions in subsection (B). Provisions regarding the Retirement Chief Executive Officer were omitted from

subsection (C).

7.

The Retirement Chief Executive Officer was removed from the list of appointed department heads in

section 24.

8.

Section 44, Probation-Safety Employees Retirement Tiers; Contribution Towards Cost of Enhanced

Retirement Benefit, the classification of Institutional Supervisor II (7KGA) was added.

9.

The Retirement General Counsel was removed from the list of attorney classes specified in sections 30.12

and 31.12.

10.

A new classification, District Attorney Director of Forensic and Technical Services (6KDC), was added to

the list of classifications eligible for certain District Attorney Inspector pay differentials in sections 34 and

35 and covered by the retirement provisions in section 36.

11.

Section 56, which provided pay differentials for Retirement classifications, was removed.12.

Job codes were corrected throughout the resolution.13.

All Exhibits were updated with current classification information. Specifically, Exhibit A, Management

Exempt and Unrepresented, was modified to include the classifications of Institutional Supervisor II and

District Attorney Director of Forensic and Technical Services. In addition, all Retirement classifications

were removed from Exhibit A.

14.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the action is not taken, the Management Resolution will not accurately include and exclude specified

classifications and benefits.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/3 

Management Resolution No. 2015/3 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/3

In The Matter Of: Benefits and Other Compensation for County Elected and Appointed Department Heads, Management,

Exempt, and Unrepresented Employees for the Period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2016 and Until Further Order

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors acting solely in its capacity as the governing board of the County of Contra Costa

RESOLVES THAT:

Effective upon adoption and continuing to June 30, 2016, and until further order of the Board, the Board adopts the attached

program of compensation and benefits for County Elected and Appointed Department Heads, Management Employees, Exempt

Employees, and Unrepresented Employees. Except for Resolution No. 2002/608 (excluding inconsistent provisions concerning

the amount of employee contributions for retirement benefits), as amended, this Resolution supersedes all previous resolutions

providing compensation and benefits for the employees listed herein, including but not limited to Resolution No. 2014/205.

Unless expressly provided otherwise, this Resolution is subject to the provisions of resolutions providing general and pay equity

salary adjustments, Administrative Bulletins, the 1937 County Employees Retirement Act, the Public Employees Pension Reform

Act, the County Salary Regulations, and the County Personnel Management Regulations. This Resolution does not authorize

compensation and benefits for any employees of the Contra Costa Superior Court, the Contra Costa County Employees

Retirement Association or for any management employee who is represented by an employee organization with a Memorandum

of Understanding. Management and Unrepresented employees include employees in Classified, Project, and Exempt

classifications. Unless otherwise expressly provided, compensation and benefits under this Resolution are authorized only for

permanent and project employees who work full-time or part-time, twenty (20) or more hours per week. The full text of this

Resolution is attached. Also attached are the following exhibits:

I. BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT, EXEMPT AND UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES are provided for those classes

listed in Exhibit A.

II. BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT AND EXEMPT EMPLOYEES are provided for those classes listed in Exhibit A,

except for the classes listed in Exhibit B.

III. BENEFITS FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED DEPARTMENT HEADS are provided for those classes listed in 

Exhibit C.

IV. SPECIAL BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT OR CLASS are provided as

indicated in each section.

V. DEPARTMENT HEADS AND THEIR CHIEF ASSISTANTS for purposes of Section 23 are listed in Exhibit D.

VI. CALPERS HEALTH PLAN CLASSES for purposes of Section 2 are listed in Exhibit E.

Contact:  Lisa Driscoll, County Finance Director (925)

335-1023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Human Resources Transactions   



TABLE OF CONTENTS
Resolution No. 2015/3

I.  Benefits for Management, Exempt, and Unrepresented Employees

1. Leaves With and Without Pay

1.10 Holidays (list of holidays observed by the County)
1.11  Definitions
1.12  Holidays Observed
1.13  Holidays - Flexible, Alternate, 9/80, and 4/10 Work Schedules
1.14  Holidays Observed- Part-Time Employees
1.15  No Overtime Pay, Holiday Pay, or Comp Time
1.16  Personal Holiday Credit
1.17  Vacation
1.18  Sick Leave
1.19  Part-Time Employees

 1.20  Family Care Leave
1.21  Leave Without Pay - Use of Accruals

2. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits

2.10 Application

2.A. Employees in Classifications Who Receive Health Care Coverage from
County Plans

2.11 Health Plan Coverages
2.12  Monthly Premium Subsidy
2.13  Retirement Coverage
2.14  Layoff and Other Loss of Coverage
2.15  Health Plan Coverages and Provisions
2.16  Family Member Eligibility Criteria

2.B. Employees in Classifications Who Receive Health Care Coverage from
CalPERS

2.17  CalPERS Controls  
2.18  Contra Costa Health Plan (CCHP)
2.19  CalPERS Health Plan Monthly Premium Subsidy
2.20  CalPERS Retirement Coverage
2.21  CalPERS Premium Payments

i
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



2.22  Dental Plan - CalPERS Participants

2.C. All Employees

2.23  Dual Coverage
2.24  Life Insurance Benefit Under Health and Dental Plans
2.25  Supplemental Life Insurance
2.26  Catastrophic Leave Bank
2.27  Health Care Spending Account
2.28  PERS Long-Term Care
2.29  Dependent Care Assistance Program
2.30  Premium Conversion Plan
2.31  Prevailing Section

3. Personal Protective Equipment

3.10  Safety Shoes
3.11  Safety Eyeglasses

4. Mileage Reimbursement

5. Retirement Contributions

5.10  No County Subvention
5.11  414H2 Participation

6. New Retirement Plan

7. Training

7.10  Career Development Training Reimbursement
7.11  Management Development Policy

8. Bilingual Pay Differential

9. Higher Pay for Work in a Higher Classification

10.  Workers’ Compensation and Continuing Pay

10.10 Waiting Period
10.11  Continuing Pay
10.12  Physician Visits
10.13  Labor Code §4850 Exclusion

ii
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



11. Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

11.10 Overtime Exempt Exclusion
11.11  Overtime
11.12  Length of Service Credits
11.13  Mirror Classifications
11.14  Deep Classes
11.15  Administrative Provisions

II.  Benefits for Management and Exempt Employees

12. Management Longevity Pay

12.10 Ten Years of Service
12.11  Fifteen Years of Service

13. Deferred Compensation

14. Annual Management Administrative Leave

15. Management Life Insurance

16. Vacation Buy Back

17. Professional Development Reimbursement

18. Sick Leave Incentive Plan

19. Video Display Terminal (VDT) Users Eye Examination

20. Long-Term Disability Insurance

III.  Benefits for Elected and Appointed Department Heads

21.  Executive Automobile Allowance

22.  Executive Life Insurance

23.  Executive Professional Development Reimbursement

24.  Appointed Department Heads

iii
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



25.  Elected Department Heads

26.  Elected Department Head Benefits

IV.  Special Benefits for Management Employees by Department or Class

27. Accounting Certificate Differential

28. Animal Services Search Warrant

29. Animal Services Uniform Allowance

30. Attorney State Bar Dues and Professional Development Reimbursement

30.10 State Bar Dues Reimbursement
30.11 Professional Development Reimbursement
30.12 Eligible Classes

31. Attorney Management Administrative Leave and Additional Longevity Pay

31.10 Attorney Management Administrative Leave
31.11 Additional Longevity Pay at 20 Years of County Service
31.12 Eligible Classes

32. Assessor Education Differential

33. Certified Elections/Registration Administrator Certification Differential

34. District Attorney Inspectors Longevity Differential

35. District Attorney Inspector P.O.S.T.

36. District Attorney Investigator - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers;
Contribution Toward Cost of Enhanced Retirement Benefit

36.10 Safety Tier A
36.11 Safety PEPRA Tier 
36.12 Employees with more than 30 years of Service
36.13 Eligible Classes

37. Engineer Continuing Education Allowance

iv
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



38. Engineer Professional Development Reimbursement

39. Library Department Holidays

40. Library Differentials

41. Nursing Shift Coordinator-Per Diem Differentials

42. Nursing Shift Coordinator-Per Diem Overtime

43. Podiatrists Unrepresented Status

44. Probation - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers; Contribution Toward Cost of
Enhanced Retirement Benefit

44.10  Safety Tier A
44.11 Safety PEPRA Tier
44.12 Eligible Classes

45. Real Property Agent Advanced Certificate Differential

46. Sheriff Sworn Management P.O.S.T.

47. Sheriff Continuing Education Allowance

48. Sheriff Emergency Services Standby Differential

49. Sheriff Law Enforcement Longevity Differential

50. Sheriff Uniform Allowance

51. Sheriff - Detention Division Meals

52. Sheriff - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers

52.10 Safety Tier A
52.11 Safety Tier C
52.12  Safety PEPRA Tier
52.13 Employees with more than 30 years of Service
52.14 Retirement Tier Elections
52.15 Eligible Classes

v
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



53. Safety Employees Retirement Tiers (Miscellaneous Safety Classifications)

53.10  Safety Tier A
53.11  Safety PEPRA Tier
53.12 Eligible Classes

54. Treasurer-Tax Collector Professional Development Differential

55. Executive Assistant to the County Administrator Differential

[end]

H:\HR\mgmt reso\2015-3\2015-3  table of contents.wpd

vi
RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



I. BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT, EXEMPT, AND UNREPRESENTED EMPLOYEES

1. Leaves With and Without Pay

1.10 Holidays: The County will observe the following holidays during the term covered
by this Resolution:

New Year’s Day Labor Day
Martin Luther King Jr. Day Veterans’ Day
Presidents’ Day Thanksgiving Day
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving
Independence Day Christmas Day

Such other days as the Board of Supervisors may designate by Resolution as
holidays.

Any holiday observed by the County that falls on a Saturday is observed on the
preceding Friday and any holiday that falls on a Sunday is observed on the
following Monday.

1.11 Definitions:

Regular Work Schedule: The regular work schedule is eight (8) hours per day,
Monday through Friday, inclusive, for a total of forty (40) hours per week.

Flexible Work Schedule: A flexible work schedule is any schedule that is not a
regular, alternate, 9/80, or 4/10 work schedule and where the employee is not
scheduled to work more than 40 hours in a “workweek” as defined below.

Alternate Work Schedule: An alternate work schedule is any work schedule
where the employee is regularly scheduled to work five (5) days per week, but
the employee’s regularly scheduled days off are NOT Saturday and Sunday.

4/10 Work Schedule: A 4/10 work schedule is four (4) ten hour days in a seven
(7) day period, for a total of forty (40) hours per week.

9/80 Work Schedule: A 9/80 work schedule is where an employee works a
recurring schedule of thirty six (36) hours in one calendar week and forty four
(44) hours in the next calendar week, but only forty (40) hours in the designated
workweek.  In the thirty six hour (36) calendar week, the employee works four (4)
nine (9) hour days and has the same day of the week off that is worked for eight
(8) hours in the forty four (44) hour calendar week.  In the forty four (44) hour
calendar week, the employee works four (4) nine (9) hour days and one eight (8)
hour day.

1 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Workweek for Employees on Regular, Flexible, Alternate, and 4/10 Schedules: 
For employees on regular, flexible, alternate, and 4/10 schedules, the workweek
begins at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and ends at 12 midnight on Sunday.  For
employees who work in a twenty-four (24) hour facility in the Contra Costa
Regional Medical Center and who are not on a 9/80 work schedule, the
workweek begins at 12:01 a.m. Sunday and ends at 12:00 midnight on Saturday.

Workweek for Employees on a 9/80 Schedule: The 9/80 workweek begins on the
same day of the week as the employee’s eight (8) hour work day and regularly
scheduled 9/80 day off.  The start time of the workweek is four (4) hours and one
(1) minute after the start time of the eight (8) hour work day.  The end time of the
workweek is four (4) hours after the start time of the eight (8) hour  work day. 
The result is a workweek that is a fixed and regularly recurring period of seven
(7) consecutive  twenty four (24) hour periods (168 hours).

1.12 Holidays Observed: Employees are entitled to observe a holiday (day off work),
without a reduction in pay, whenever a holiday is observed by the County. 

1.13 Holidays - Flexible, Alternate, 9/80, and 4/10 Work Schedules: When a holiday
falls on the regularly scheduled day off of any employee who is on a flexible,
alternate, 9/80, or 4/10 work schedule, the employee is entitled to take the day
off, without a reduction in pay, in recognition of the holiday.  These employees
are entitled to request another day off in recognition of their regularly scheduled
day off.  The requested day off must be within the same month and workweek
as the holiday and it must be pre-approved by the employee’s supervisor.  If the
day off is not approved by the supervisor, it is lost.  If the approved day off is a
nine (9) hour workday, the employee must use one (1) hour of non-sick-leave
accruals.  If the approved day off is a ten (10) hour workday, the employee must
use two (2) hours of non-sick-leave accruals.  If the employee does not have any
non-sick-leave accrual balances, leave without pay (AWOP) will be authorized. 
 

1.14 Holiday Observed - Part-Time Employees: When a holiday is observed by the
County, each part-time employee is entitled to observe the holiday in the same
ratio as his/her number of position hours bears to forty (40) hours, multipled by
8 hours, without a reduction in pay.  For example, a part-time employee whose
position hours are 24 per week is entitled to 4.8 hours off work on a holiday
(24/40 multipled by 8=4.8).  Hereafter, the number of hours produced by this
calculation will be referred to as the “part-time employee’s holiday hours.”

When the number of hours in a part-time employee’s scheduled work day that 
falls on a holiday (“scheduled work hours”) is less than the employee’s part-time 
employee’s holiday hours,the employee also is entitled to receive flexible pay at
the rate of one (1.0) times his/her base rate of pay (not including differentials)
for the difference between the employee’s scheduled work hours and the
employee’s part-time employee’s holiday hours.

When the number of hours in a part-time employee’s scheduled work day that
falls on a holiday (scheduled work hours) is more than the employee’s part-time

2 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



employee’s holiday hours, the employee must use non-sick leave accruals for
the difference between the employee’s scheduled work hours and the
employee’s part-time employee’s holiday hours.  If the employee does not have
any non-sick leave accrual balances, leave without pay (AWOP) will be
authorized.

1.15 No Overtime Pay, Holiday Pay, or Comp Time: Unrepresented, management,
and exempt employees are not entitled to receive overtime pay, holiday pay,
overtime compensatory time, or holiday compensatory time.  Employees who
are unable or not permitted to observe a holiday (take the day off), are
authorized to receive overtime pay ONLY IF the employee is on the Overtime
Exempt Exclusion List (see Section 11).

1.16 Personal Holiday Credit: 

A.  County Librarian.  The County Librarian is entitled to accrue two (2) hours
of personal holiday credit each month.  The County Librarian may accrue no
more than twenty four (24) hours of personal holiday credit.  On separation
from County service, the County Librarian will be paid for any unused
personal holiday credit hours at his/her then current rate of pay, up to a
maximum of twenty four (24) hours.

B.  Other Employees.  Employees are entitled to accrue two (2) hours of
personal holiday credit each month.  This time is prorated for part time
employees.  No employee may accrue more than forty (40) hours of personal
holiday credit.  On separation from County service, employees are paid for any
unused personal holiday credit hours at the employee’s then current rate of pay,
up to a maximum of forty (40) hours.

1.17 Vacation: Employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation credit not to exceed
the maximum cumulative hours as follows:

Length of Service

Monthly
Accrual
Hours

Maximum 
Cumulative

Hours

Under 11 years 10 240

11 years 10-2/3 256

12 years 11-1/3 272

13 years 12 288

14 years 12-2/3 304

15 through 19 years 13-1/3 320

20 through 24 years 16-2/3 400

25 through 29 years 20 480

30 years and up 23-1/3 560

3 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



However, for the Director of Employment and Human Services (job code XAA2,
County Welfare Director) only, the monthly accrual amount is 12 hours for the
first 13 years of County service and the maximum cumulative hours is 240 for
the first 11 years of County service.  Thereafter, the Director is subject to the
maximums set forth in the above chart.    

Each employee is eligible to accrue increased vacation hours on the first day of
the month following the employee’s Service Award Date.

An employee’s Service Award Date is the first day of his/her temporary,
provisional, or permanent appointment to a position in the County.  If an
employee is first appointed to a temporary or provisional position and then later
appointed to a permanent position, the Service Award Date for that employee
is the date of the first day of the temporary or provisional appointment.

1.18 Sick Leave: Employees are entitled to accrue paid sick leave credit in
accordance with the provisions of the County Salary Regulations and
Administrative Bulletin No. 411.7 (Sick Leave Policy) adopted on October 17,
1997, as periodically amended.

1.19 Part-Time Employees: Part-time employees are entitled to accrue paid vacation
and sick leave credit on a pro-rata basis.

1.20 Family Care Leave: The provisions of Section 1006.3 of the Personnel
Management Regulations and Resolution No. 94/416, as amended, relating to
Leaves of Absence and Family Care Medical Leave apply to all employees
covered by this Resolution, except that such employees are not entitled to
Family Care or Medical Leave on a calendar year basis.  Instead, such
employees are entitled to at least eighteen (18) weeks of leave in a “rolling”
twelve (12) month period, which period is to be measured backward from the
date the employee uses FMLA leave.

1.21 Leave Without Pay - Use of Accruals: The provisions of Section 1006.6 of the
Personnel Management Regulations, as amended, relating to the use of
accruals while on leave without pay, apply to all employees covered by this
Resolution.

2. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits

2.10 Application:  

a. Employees in classifications who receive health care coverage from County
Plans: The following Sections apply to all employees in classifications
covered by this Resolution who receive health care coverage from County
Plans and do not receive health plan coverage through CalPERS: Section
2.11 “Health Plan Coverages,” Section 2.12 “County Health and Dental Plan
Contribution Rates,” Section 2.13 “Retirement Coverage,” Section 2.14
“Layoff and Other Loss of Coverage,” Section 2.15 “Health Plan Coverages

4 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



and Provisions,” and Section 2.16 “Family Member Eligibility.”

b. Employees in classifications who receive health care coverage from
CalPERS: The following Sections apply to all employees in the classifications
listed in Exhibit E: Section 2.17 “CalPERS Controls,” Section 2.18 “Contra
Costa Health Plan (CCHP),” Section 2.19 “CalPERS Health Plan Monthly
Premium Subsidy,” Section 2.20 “CalPERS Retirement Coverage,” Section
2.21 “CalPERS Premium Payments,” and Section 2.22 “Dental Plan -
CalPERS Participants.”

c. General provisions:  The following Sections apply to all employees in all the
classifications covered by this Resolution: Section 2.23 “ Dual Coverage,”
Section 2.24 “Life Insurance Benefit Under Health and Dental Plans,” Section
2.25 “Supplemental Life Insurance,” Section 2.26 “Catastrophic Leave Bank,”
Section 2.27 “Health Care Spending Account,” Sections 2.28 “PERS Long-
Term Care,” Section 2.29 “Dependent Care Assistance Program,” Section
2.30 “Premium Conversion Plan,” and Section 2.31 “Prevailing Section.”

2.A. Employees In Classifications Who Receive Health Care Coverage From
County Plans

2.11 Health Plan Coverages:  The County will provide the medical and dental
coverage for Management, Exempt, and Unrepresented employees and for their
eligible family members, expressed in one of the Health Plan contracts and one
of the Dental Plan contracts between the County and the following providers:

a. Contra Costa Health Plans (CCHP)
b. Kaiser Permanente Health Plan
c. Health Net
d. Delta Dental
e. DeltaCare (PMI)

2.12 Monthly Premium Subsidy: 

a. For each health and/or dental plan, the County’s monthly premium subsidy
is a set dollar amount and is not a percentage of the premium charged by the 
plan.  The County will pay the following monthly premium subsidy:

1. Contra Costa County Health Plan, (CCHP), Plan A
Single: $509.92
Family: $1,214.90

2. Contra Costa County Health Plan, (CCHP) Plan B
Single: $528.50
Family: $1,255.79

3. Kaiser Permanente Health Plan

5 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Single: $478.91
Family: $1,115.84

4. Health Net HMO
Single: $627.79
Family: $1,540.02

5. Health Net PPO
Single: $604.60
Family: $1,436.25

6. Delta Dental with CCHP A or B
Single: $41.17
Family: $93.00

7. Delta Dental with Kaiser or Health Net
Single: $34.02
Family: $76.77

8. Delta Dental without a Health Plan
Single: $43.35
Family: $97.81

9. DeltaCare (PMI) with CCHP A or B
Single: $25.41
Family: $54.91

10. DeltaCare (PMI) with Kaiser or Health Net
Single: $21.31
Family: $46.05

11. DeltaCare (PMI) without a Health Plan
Single: $27.31
Family: $59.03

b. If the County contracts with a health or dental plan that is not listed above,
the County will determine the monthly dollar premium subsidy that it will pay
to that health plan for employees and their eligible family members.

c. In the event that the County premium subsidy amounts are greater than one
hundred percent (100%) of the applicable premium of any health or dental
plan, for any plan year, the County’s contribution will not exceed one hundred
percent (100%) of the applicable plan premium.

2.13 Retirement Coverage:

a. Upon Retirement:

6 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



1.  Upon retirement and for the term of this resolution, eligible employees
and their eligible family members may remain in their County health/dental
plan, but without County-paid life insurance coverage, if immediately before
their proposed retirement the employees and dependents are either active
subscribers to one of the County contracted health/dental plans or if while on
authorized leave of absence without pay, they have retained continuous
coverage during the leave period.  The County will pay the health/dental plan
monthly premium subsidies set forth in Section 2.12(a) for eligible retirees
and their eligible family members.

2.  Any person who becomes age 65 on or after January 1, 2009 and who is
eligible for Medicare must immediately enroll in Medicare Parts A and B.

3.  For employees hired on or after January 1, 2009 and their eligible family
members, no monthly premium subsidy will be paid by the County for any
health or dental plan after they separate from County employment. 
However, any such eligible employee who retires under the Contra Costa
County Employees’ Retirement Association (“CCCERA”) may retain
continuous coverage of a county health and/or dental plan provided that (I)
he or she begins to receive a monthly retirement allowance from CCCERA
within 120 days of separation from County employment and (ii) he or she
pays the full premium cost under the health and/or dental plan without any
County premium subsidy.  This provision does not apply to any member of
the Board of Supervisors who was a County employee when elected to the
Board of Supervisors with a County employee hire date that is earlier than
January 1, 2009. 

b. Employees Who File For Deferred Retirement: Employees, who resign and
file for a deferred retirement and their eligible family members, may continue
in their County group health and/or dental plan under the following conditions
and limitations.

1.  Health and dental coverage during the deferred retirement period is totally
at the expense of the employee, without any County contributions.

2. Life insurance coverage is not included.

3. To continue health and dental coverage, the employee must:

     i. be qualified for a deferred retirement under the 1937 Retirement Act
     provisions;
     ii. be an active member of a County group health and/or dental plan at
     the time of filing their deferred retirement application and elect to
     continue plan benefits;
     iii. be eligible for a monthly allowance from the Retirement System and
     direct receipt of a monthly allowance within twenty-four (24) months of
     application for deferred retirement; and

7 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



  iv. file an election to defer retirement and to continue health benefits
     hereunder with the County Benefits Division within thirty (30) days
     before separation from County service.

4.  Deferred retirees who elect continued health benefits hereunder and their
eligible family members may maintain continuous membership in their
County health and/or dental plan group during the period of deferred
retirement by paying the full premium for health and dental coverage on or
before the 10  of each month, to the Contra Costa County Auditor-Controller. th

When the deferred retirees begin to receive retirement benefits, they will
qualify for the same health and/or dental coverage pursuant to subsection (a)
above, as similarly situated retirees who did not defer retirement.

5.  Deferred retirees may elect retiree health benefits hereunder without
electing to maintain participation in their County health and/or dental plan
during their deferred retirement period.  When they begin to receive
retirement benefits, they will qualify for the same health and/or dental
coverage pursuant to subsection (a) above, as similarly situated retirees who
did not defer retirement, provided  reinstatement to a County group health
and/or dental plan will only occur following a three (3) full calendar month
waiting period after the month in which their retirement allowance
commences.

6.  Employees who elect deferred retirement will not be eligible in any event
for County health and/or dental plan subvention unless the member draws
a monthly retirement allowance within twenty-four (24) months after
separation from County service.

7.  Deferred retirees and their eligible family members are required to meet
the same eligibility provisions for retiree health/dental coverage as similarly
situated retirees who did not defer retirement.

8.  This subpart b “Employees Who File for Deferred Retirement” does not
apply to any employee in any classification listed in Exhibit E.

c. Employees Hired After December 31, 2006 - Eligibility for Retiree Health
Coverage:  All employees hired after December 31, 2006 are eligible for
retiree health/dental coverage pursuant to subsections (a) and (b), above,
upon completion of fifteen (15) years of service as an employee of Contra
Costa County.  For purposes of retiree health eligibility, one year of service
is defined as one thousand (1,000) hours worked within one anniversary
year.  The existing method of crediting service while an employee is on an
approved leave of absence will continue for the duration of this Resolution.

d. Subject to the provisions of Section 2.13, subparts (a), (b), and (c), and upon
retirement and for the term of this resolution, the following employees (and
their eligible family members) are eligible to receive a monthly premium

8 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



subsidy for health and dental plans or are eligible to retain continuous
coverage of such plans: County Elected and Appointed Department Heads,
Management Employees, Exempt Employees, Unrepresented Employees,
and each employee who retired from a position or classification that was
unrepresented at the time of his or her retirement.

e. For purposes of this Section 2.13 only, “eligible family members” does not
include Survivors of employees or retirees.

2.14 Layoff and Other Loss of Coverage:

a. If a husband and wife both work for the County and one (1) of them is laid
off, the remaining employee, if eligible, will be allowed to enroll or transfer
into the health and/or dental coverage combination of his/her choice.

b. An eligible employee who loses medical or dental coverage through a
spouse or partner not employed by the County will be allowed to enroll or
transfer 
into the County health and/or dental plan of his/her choice within thirty (30)
days of the date coverage is no longer afforded under the spouse’s plan.

2.15 Health Plan Coverages and Provisions: The following provisions are applicable
to County Health and Dental Plan participation:

a. Health, Dental and Life Participation by Other Employees: Permanent part-
time employees working nineteen (19) hours per week or less and
permanent-intermittent employees may participate in the County Health
and/or Dental plans (with the associated life insurance benefit) at the
employee’s full expense.

b. Employee Contribution Deficiencies: The County’s contributions to the Health
Plan and/or Dental Plan premiums are payable for any month in which the
employee is paid.  If an employee’s compensation in any month is not
sufficient to pay the employee share of the premium, the employee must
make up the difference by remitting the unpaid amount to the Auditor-
Controller.  The responsibility for this payment rests solely with the
employee.

c. Leave of Absence: The County will continue to pay the County shares of
health and/or dental plan premiums for enrolled employees who are on an
approved paid or unpaid leave of absence for a period of thirty (30) days or
more provided the employee’s share of the premiums is paid by the
employee.

d. Coverage Upon Separation: An employee who separates from County
employment is covered by his/her County health and/or dental plan through
the last day of the month in which he/she separates.  Employees who
separate from County employment may continue group health and/or dental

9 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



plan coverage to the extent provided by the COBRA laws and regulations.

2.16 Family Member Eligibility Criteria: The following persons may be enrolled as the
eligible Family Members of a medical and/or dental plan Subscriber:

A. Health Insurance

1. Eligible Dependents:

a.   Employee’s legal spouse
b.   Employee’s qualified domestic partner
c.   Employee’s child to age 26
d.  Employee’s disabled child who is over age 26, unmarried, and
incapable of sustaining employment due to a physical or mental
disability that existed prior to the child attainment of age 19.

2. “Employee’s child” includes natural child, step-child, adopted child, 
child of a qualified domestic partner, and a child specified in a
Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or similar court
order.

B.  Dental Insurance

1. Eligible Dependents:

a.  Employee’s legal spouse
b.  Employee’s qualified domestic partner
c.  Employee’s unmarried child who is:

(1) under age 19; or
(2) Age 19 or above, but under age 24; and who

i. Resides with the employee for more than 50%
of the year, excluding time living at school; and

ii. Receives at least 50% of support from
employee; and

iii. Is enrolled and attends school on a full-time
basis, as defined by the school.

d.  Employee’s disabled child who is over age 19, unmarried, and
incapable of sustaining employment due to a physical or mental
disability that existed prior to the child’s attainment of age 19. 

2. “Employee’s child” includes natural child, step-child, adopted child,
child of a qualified domestic partner, and a child specified in a
Qualified Medical Child Support Order (QMCSO) or similar court
order.

2.B. Employees In Classifications Who Receive Health Care Coverage From

10 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



CalPERS
 

2.17 CalPERS Controls: The CalPERS health care program, as regulated by the
Public Employees’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA), regulations issued
pursuant to PEMHCA, and the administration of PEMHCA by CalPERS, controls
on all health plan issues for employees who receive health care coverage from
CalPERS, including, but not limited to, eligibility, benefit plans, benefit levels,
minimum premium subsidies, and costs.

2.18 Contra Costa Health Plan (CCHP): Because CCHP has met the minimum
standards required under PEMHCA and is approved as an alternative CalPERS
plan option, employees and COBRA counterparts may elect to enroll in CCHP
under the CalPERS plan rules and regulations.

2.19 CalPERS Health Plan Monthly Premium Subsidy: The County’s subsidy to the
CalPERS monthly health plan premiums is as provided below.  The employee
must pay any CalPERS health plan premium costs that are greater than the
County’s subsidies identified below.

a. County Health Plan Premium Subsidy.  Beginning on January 1, 2010, and
for each calendar year thereafter, the amount of the County premium
subsidy that is paid for employees and eligible family members is a set dollar
amount and is not a percentage of the premium charged by the plan.  The
County will pay the CalPERS statutory minimum employer monthly health
plan premium subsidy or the following monthly health plan premium subsidy,
whichever is greater:

Employee/Retiree/Survivor Only $478.69
Employee/Retiree/Survivor & One Dependent $957.38
Employee/Retiree/Survivor & Two or more Dependents $1228.67

b. In the event that the County health plan premium subsidy amounts are
greater than one hundred percent (100%) of the applicable premium of any
health plan, for any plan year, the County’s contribution will not exceed one
hundred percent (100%) of the applicable health plan premium. 

 

2.20 CalPERS Retirement Coverage: Government Code section 22892 applies to all
employees in those classifications listed in Exhibit E.

2.21 CalPERS Premium Payments: Employee participation in any CalPERS health
plan is contingent upon the employee authorizing payroll deduction by the
County of the employee’s share of the premium cost.  If an employee’s
compensation in any month (including during a leave of absence) is not sufficient
to pay the employee’s share of the premium, the employee must pay the
difference to the Auditor-Controller.  The responsibility for this payment rests

11 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



solely with the employee.

2.22 Dental Plan - CalPERS Participants:

a. Employees in the classifications listed in Exhibit E may participate in any
available County Group Dental Plan.  The County may change dental plan
providers at any time during the term of this resolution.

b. Dental Plan Monthly Premium Subsidy.  On and after January 1, 2010, the
provisions of Section 2.12 “Monthly Premium Subsidy,” relating to the County
subsidies for dental coverage, apply to all classifications listed in Exhibit E.

c. As to dental coverage only, the following Sections apply to all classifications
listed in Exhibit E: Section 2.13 “Retirement Coverage,” Section 2.14 “Layoff
and Other Loss of Coverage,” Section 2.15 “Health Plan Coverages and
Provisions,” and Section 2.16 “Family Member Eligibility Criteria.”

2.C. All Employees

2.23     Dual Coverage:

a. Each employee and retiree may be covered by only a single County health
(or dental) plan, including a CalPERS plan.  For example, a County
employee may be covered under a single County health and/or dental plan
as either the primary insured or the dependent of another County employee
or retiree, but not as both the primary insured and the dependent of another
County employee or retiree.

b. All dependents, as defined in Section 2.16,  Family Member Eligibility
Criteria,  may be covered by the health and/or dental plan of only one spouse
or one domestic partner.  For example, when both husband and wife are
County employees, all of their eligible children may be covered as
dependents of either the husband or the wife, but not both.

c. For purposes of this Section 2.23 only, “County” includes the County of
Contra Costa and all special districts governed by the Board of Supervisors,
including but not limited to, the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District.

2.24 Life Insurance Benefit Under Health and Dental Plans: For employees who are
enrolled in the County’s program of medical or dental coverage as either the
primary or the dependent, term life insurance in the amount of ten thousand
dollars ($10,000) will be provided by the County.

2.25 Supplemental Life Insurance: In addition to the life insurance benefits provided
by this resolution, employees may subscribe voluntarily and at their own expense
for supplemental life insurance.  Employees may subscribe for an amount not
to exceed five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000), of which one hundred

12 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



thousand ($100,000) is a guaranteed issue, provided the election is made within
the required enrollment periods.

2.26 Catastrophic Leave Bank: All employees are included in the Catastrophic Leave
Bank and may designate a portion of accrued vacation, compensatory time,
holiday compensatory time, or personal holiday credit to be deducted from the
donor’s existing balances and credited to the bank or to a specific eligible
employee.

a. The County Human Resources Department operates a Catastrophic Leave
Bank which is designed to assist any County employee who has exhausted
all paid accruals due to a serious or catastrophic illness, injury, or condition
of the employee or family member.  The program establishes and maintains
a Countywide bank wherein any employee who wishes to contribute may
authorize that a portion of his/her accrued vacation, compensatory time,
holiday compensatory time or personal holiday credit be deducted from those
account(s) and credited to the Catastrophic Leave Bank.  Employees may
donate hours either to a specific eligible employee or to the bank.  Upon
approval, credits from the Catastrophic Leave Bank may be transferred to a
requesting employee’s sick leave account so that employee may remain in
paid status for a longer period of time, thus partially ameliorating the financial
impact of the illness, injury or condition.  Catastrophic illness or injury is
defined as a critical medical condition, a long-term major physical impairment
or disability that manifests itself during employment.

b. The plan is administered under the direction of the Director of Human
Resources.  The Human Resources Department is responsible for receiving
and recording all donations of accruals and for initiating transfer of credits
from the Bank to the recipient’s sick leave account.  Disbursement of
accruals is subject to the approval of a six (6) member committee composed
of three (3) members appointed by the County Administrator and three (3)
members appointed by the majority representative employee organizations. 
The committee will meet once a month, if necessary, to consider all requests
for credits and will make determinations as to the appropriateness of the
request.  The committee will determine the amount of accruals to be
awarded for employees whose donations are non-specific.  Consideration of
all requests by the committee will be on an anonymous requester basis.

c. Hours transferred from the Catastrophic Leave Bank to a recipient will be in
the form of sick leave accruals and will be treated as regular sick leave
accruals.

d. To receive credits under this plan, an employee must have permanent
status, have exhausted all time off accruals to a level below eight (8) hours
total, have applied for a medical leave of absence, and have medical
verification of need.

13 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



e. Donations are irrevocable unless the donation to the eligible employee is
denied.  Donations may be made in hourly blocks with a minimum donation
of not less than four (4) hours from balances in the vacation, holiday,
personal holiday, compensatory time or holiday compensatory time
accounts.  Employees who elect to donate to a specific individual will have
seventy-five percent (75%) of their donation credited to the individual and
twenty-five percent (25%) credited to the Catastrophic Leave Bank.

f. Time donated will be converted to a dollar value and the dollar value will be
converted back to sick leave accruals at the recipient’s base hourly rate when
disbursed.  Credits will not be on a straight hour-for-hour basis.  All
computations will be on a standard 173.33 basis, except that employees on
other than a forty (40) hour week will have hours prorated according to their
status.

g. Each recipient is limited to a total of one thousand forty (1040) hours or its
equivalent per catastrophic event; each donor is limited to one hundred
twenty (120) hours per calendar year.

h. All appeals from either a donor or recipient will be resolved on a final basis
by the Director of Human Resources.

I. No employee has any entitlement to catastrophic leave benefits.  The award
of Catastrophic Leave is at the sole discretion of the committee, both as to
amounts of benefits awarded and as to persons awarded benefits.  Benefits
may be denied, or awarded for less than six (6) months.  The committee may
limit benefits in accordance with available contributions and choose from
among eligible applicants on an anonymous basis those who will receive
benefits, except for hours donated to a specific employee.  In the event a
donation is made to a specific employee and the committee determines the
employee does not meet the Catastrophic Leave Bank criteria, the donating
employee may authorize the hours to be donated to the bank or returned to
the donor’s account.

j. Any unused hours transferred to a recipient will be returned to the
Catastrophic Leave Bank.

2.27 Health Care Spending Account: After six (6) months of permanent employment,
full time and part time (20/40 or greater) employees may elect to participate in
a Health Care Spending Account (HCSA) Program designated to qualify for tax
savings under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code, but such savings are
not guaranteed.  The HCSA Program allows employees to set aside a
predetermined amount of money from their pay, before taxes, for health care
expenses not reimbursed by any other health benefit plans.  HCSA dollars may
be expended on any eligible medical expenses allowed by Internal Revenue
Code Section 125.  Any unused balance is forfeited and cannot be recovered by
the employee.  

14 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



2.28 PERS Long-Term Care: The County will deduct and remit monthly premiums to
the PERS Long-Term Care Administrator for employees who are eligible and
voluntarily elect to purchase long-term care at their personal expense through
the PERS Long-Term Care Program.

2.29 Dependent Care Assistance Program: The County will continue to offer the
option of enrolling in a Dependent Care Assistance Program (DCAP) designed
to qualify for tax savings under Section 129 of the Internal Revenue Code, but
such savings are not guaranteed.  The program allows employees to set aside
up to five thousand dollars ($5,000) of annual salary (before taxes) per calendar
year to pay for eligible dependent care (child and elder care) expenses.  Any
unused balance is forfeited and cannot be recovered by the employee.

2.30 Premium Conversion Plan: The County will continue to offer the Premium
Conversion Plan (PCP) designed to qualify for tax savings under Section 125 of
the Internal Revenue Code, but tax savings are not guaranteed.  The program
allows employees to use pre-tax dollars to pay health and dental premiums.

2.31 Prevailing Section: To the extent that any provision of this Section (Section 2. 
Health, Dental, and Related Benefits) is inconsistent with any provision of any
other County enactment or policy, including but not limited to Administrative
Bulletins, the Salary Regulations, the Personnel Management Regulations, or
any other resolution or order of the Board of Supervisors, the provision(s) of this
Section (Section 2. Health, Dental, and Related Benefits) will prevail.

3. Personal Protective Equipment: The County will reimburse employees for safety
shoes and prescription safety eyeglasses in those Management, Exempt and
Unrepresented classifications which the County Administrator has determined eligible
for such reimbursement. 

3.10 Safety Shoes.  The County will reimburse eligible employees for the purchase
and repair of safety shoes in an amount not to exceed two hundred seventy-five
dollars ($275) for each two (2) year period beginning on January 1, 2002.  There
is no limit on the number of shoes or repairs allowed.

3.11 Safety Eyeglasses.  The County will reimburse eligible Management, Exempt
and Unrepresented employees for prescription safety eyeglasses which are
approved by the County and are obtained from an establishment approved by
the County.

4. Mileage Reimbursement: The County will pay a mileage allowance for the use of
personal vehicles on County business at the rate allowed by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) as a tax deductible expense, adjusted to reflect changes in this rate on
the date it becomes effective or the first of the month following announcement of the
changed rate by the IRS, whichever is later.

15 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



5. Retirement Contributions: 

5.10 No County Subvention.  Effective on October 1, 2011,  employees are
responsible for the payment of one hundred percent (100%) of the employees’
basic retirement benefit contributions determined annually by the Board of
Retirement of the Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association
without the County paying any part of the employees’ contribution.  Employees
are also responsible for the payment of the employees’ contributions to the
retirement cost-of-living program as determined annually by the Board of
Retirement without the County paying any part of the employees’ contributions. 
Except as provided in Section 36 (District Attorney Investigator - Safety Employees
Retirement Tier) Section 44 (Probation - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers) and
Section 53 (Safety Employees Retirement Tiers- Miscellaneous Safety
Classifications), the County is responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of the
employer’s retirement contributions determined annually by the Board of
Retirement.

5.11 414H2 Participation.  The County will continue to implement Section 414(h) (2)
of the Internal Revenue Code which allows the County Auditor–Controller to
reduce the gross monthly pay of employees by an amount equal to the
employee’s total contribution to the County Retirement System before Federal
and State income taxes are withheld, and forward that amount to the Retirement
system.  This program of deferred retirement contribution will be universal and
non-voluntary as required by statute.

6. New Retirement Plan:

A. PEPRA for Employees who become CCCERA Members on or after January 1,
2013. For employees who, under the California Public Employees Pension Reform
Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297, Statutes of 2012), become New
Members of the Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association
(CCCERA) on or after January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by
PEPRA.  To the extent that this resolution conflicts with any provision of PEPRA,
PEPRA governs.

B.  COLA.  For employees hired by the County on and after January 1, 2014, who,
under PEPRA, become New Members of CCCERA, the cost of living adjustment to
the retirement allowance will not exceed two percent (2%) per year, and the cost of
living adjustment will be banked.

C. DISABILITY STANDARD.  For employees, who under PEPRA, become New
Members of CCCERA, the disability provisions are the same as the current Tier III
disability provisions.

16 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



D. This section 6 does not apply to employees who are safety members of the Contra
Costa County Employees Retirement Association.   

7. Training:

7.10 Career Development Training Reimbursement: All full-time employees
(excluding attorney classes) are eligible for career development training
reimbursement not to exceed seven hundred fifty dollars ($750) per fiscal year. 
The reimbursement of training expenses includes books and is governed by any
Administrative Bulletins on Travel or Training.

7.11 Management Development Policy: Employees are authorized to attend
professional training programs, seminars, and workshops, during normal work
hours at the discretion of their Department Head, for the purpose of developing
knowledge, skills, and abilities in the areas of supervision, management, and
County policies and procedures.  Up to thirty (30) hours of such training time is
recommended annually.

a. Departments are encouraged to provide for professional development
training exceeding thirty (30) hours annually for people newly promoted to
positions of direct supervision.

b. To encourage personal and professional growth, the County provides
reimbursement for certain expenses incurred by employees for job-related
training (required training and career development training/education). 
Provision for eligibility and reimbursement is identified in Administrative
Bulletin 112.9.

c. The Department Head is responsible for authorization of individual
professional development reimbursement requests.  Reimbursement is
through the regular demand process with demands being accompanied by
proof of payment (copy of invoice or canceled check).

8. Bilingual Pay Differential:   A monthly salary differential will be paid to incumbents of
positions requiring bilingual proficiency as designated by the Appointing Authority and
the Director of Human Resources.  The differential will be prorated for employees
working less than full time and/or on an unpaid leave of absence during any given
month.  The differential is one hundred dollars ($100.00) per month.

Designation of positions for which bilingual proficiency is required is the sole prerogative
of the County, and such designations may be amended or deleted at any time.

9. Higher Pay for Work in a Higher Classification: The County Salary Regulations
notwithstanding, when an employee is required to work in a higher paid classification,
the employee will receive the higher compensation for such work, pursuant to the
County Salary Regulations, plus any differentials and incentives the employee would
have received in his/her regular position.  Unless the Board has by Resolution otherwise
specified, the higher pay entitlement will begin on the completion of the 40th

17 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



consecutive hour in the assignment, retroactive to the beginning of the second full day
of work in the assignment.

10. Workers’ Compensation and Continuing Pay: For all accepted workers’
compensation claims filed with the County during calendar year 2007, employees will
receive eighty percent (80%) of their regular monthly salary during any period of
compensable temporary disability not to exceed one (1) year.  For all accepted
workers’ compensation claims filed with the County on or after January 1, 2008,
employees will receive seventy five percent (75%) of their regular monthly salary
during any period of compensable temporary disability not to exceed one (1) year. 
Pay based on accepted workers’ compensation claims filed before January 1, 2007,
but after December 31, 1999, will be paid as provided in Resolution No. 2006/22. 
Pay based on accepted workers’ compensation claims filed before January 1, 2000,
will be paid as provided in resolution No. 96/488.  If workers’ compensation benefits
become taxable income, the County will restore the former benefit level, one
hundred percent (100%) of regular monthly salary.

10.10 Waiting Period: There is a three (3) calendar day waiting period before workers’
compensation benefits commence.  If the injured worker loses any time on the
date of injury, that day counts as day one (1) of the waiting period.  If the injured
worker does not lose time on the date of the injury, the waiting period is the first
three (3) days following the date of the injury.  The time the employee is
scheduled to work during this waiting period will be charged to the employee’s
sick leave and/or vacation accruals.  In order to qualify for workers’
compensation the employee must be under the care of a physician.  Temporary
compensation is payable on the first three (3) days of disability when the injury
necessitates hospitalization, or when the disability exceeds fourteen (14) days.

10.11 Continuing Pay: A permanent employee will receive the applicable percentage
of regular monthly salary in lieu of workers’ compensation during any period of
compensable temporary disability not to exceed one year.  “Compensable
temporary disability absence” for the purpose of this Section, is any absence due
to work-connected disability which qualifies for temporary disability
compensation under workers’ compensation law set forth in Division 4 of the
California Labor Code.  When any disability becomes medically permanent and
stationary, the salary provided by this Section will terminate.  No charge will be
made against sick leave or vacation for these salary payments.  Sick leave and
vacation rights do not accrue for those periods during which continuing pay is
received.  Employees are entitled to a maximum of one (1) year of continuing
pay benefits for any one injury or illness.

Continuing pay begins at the same time that temporary workers’ compensation
benefits commence and continues until either the member is declared medically
permanent/stationary, or until one (1) year of continuing pay, whichever comes

18 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



first, provided the employee remains in an active employed status.  Continuing
pay is automatically terminated on the date an employee is separated from
County service by resignation, retirement, layoff, or the employee is no longer
employed by the County.  In these instances, employees will be paid workers’
compensation benefits as prescribed by workers’ compensation laws.  All
continuing pay must be cleared through the County Administrator’s Office, Risk
Management Division.

10.12 Physician Visits: Whenever an employee who has been injured on the job and
has returned to work is required by an attending physician to leave work for
treatment during working hours, the employee is allowed time off, up to three (3)
hours for such treatment, without loss of pay or benefits.  Said visits are to be
scheduled contiguous to either the beginning or end of the scheduled workday
whenever possible.  This provision applies only to injuries/illnesses that have
been accepted by the County as work related.

10.13 Labor Code §4850 Exclusion: The foregoing provisions for workers’
compensation and continuing pay are inapplicable in the case of employees
entitled to benefits under Labor Code Section 4850.

11. Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

11.10 Overtime Exempt Exclusion: Employees in unrepresented, management,
and exempt classifications are overtime exempt and are not eligible for
overtime pay, holiday pay, overtime compensatory time, or holiday
compensatory time.  Instead, these employees are awarded Annual
Management Administrative Leave in recognition of the extra burden their job
responsibilities may sometimes place on their work schedules.  However,
unrepresented, management, and exempt employees may be made eligible
for overtime pay if their names are placed on the Overtime Exempt Exclusion
List by the County Administrator’s Office.  Employees on the Overtime
Exempt Exclusion List are authorized to receive overtime pay, only.  These
employees are NOT eligible for holiday pay, overtime compensatory time, or
holiday compensatory time.  Employees on the Overtime Exempt Exclusion
List are also NOT eligible for Annual Management Administrative Leave for
the quarter they are on the Overtime Exempt Exclusion List.  The policies
and procedures for the Overtime Exempt Exclusion List are set forth in the
County Administrator’s memo of November 6, 2002, as may be amended.

Employees may be approved for placement on the Overtime Exempt
Exclusion List if and when they are assigned to a special or temporary
project or task that requires persistent, excess work hours, without relief from
their regular job duties. Overtime pay will not be authorized as a means to
address normal staffing or operational issues.

19 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



11.11 Overtime: Employees on the Overtime Exempt Exclusion List will be
compensated at one and one-half (1.5) times their base rate of pay
(excluding differentials) for authorized work exceeding eight (8) hours in a
day or forty (40) hours in a week.

11.12 Length of Service Credits: Length of service credit dates from the beginning
of the last period of continuous County employment, including temporary,
provisional and permanent status and absences on an approved leave of
absence; except that when an employee separates from a permanent
position in good standing and is subsequently re-employed in a permanent
County position within two (2) years from the date of separation, the period
of separation will be bridged.  Under these circumstances, the service credits
will include all credits accumulated at the time of separation but will not
include the period of separation.  The service credits of an employee are
determined from employee status records maintained by the Human
Resources Department.

11.13 Mirror Classifications: As determined in the sole discretion of the Director of
Human Resources, employees in unrepresented job classifications that
mirror Management, represented or unrepresented job classifications may
receive the salary and fringe benefits that are received by employees in the 
mirror classification.

11.14 Deep Classes: No provision of this Resolution regarding terms and
conditions of employment supersedes any provision of any Deep Class
Resolution.

11.15 Administrative Provisions: The County Administrator may establish
guidelines, bulletins or directives as necessary to further define or implement
the provisions of this resolution.

II. BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT AND EXEMPT EMPLOYEES
Management and Exempt employees will receive the benefits set forth in Part I and also the
following additional benefits:

12. Management Longevity Pay:

12.10  Ten Years of Service: 

a. Employees who have completed ten (10) years of service for the County are
eligible to receive a two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity differential
effective on the first day of the month following the month in which the
employee qualifies for the ten (10) year service award.  

20 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



b. In lieu of subsection a, employees in positions ineligible to receive vacation
or sick leave accruals or to convert a portion of those accruals to cash under
the terms of this Resolution are eligible to receive a five percent (5%)
longevity differential upon the completion of ten years of service effective on
the first day of the month following the month in which the employee qualifies
for the ten (10) year service award.  

c. Effective April 1, 2007, this section does not apply to members of the Board
of Supervisors, except those members who earned this benefit while serving
on the Board of Supervisors and were receiving this benefit as of March 31,
2007.

d. Effective November 1, 2007, for employees who were employed by Contra
Costa County, became employees of the Contra Costa Superior Court by
operation of law, and thereafter are rehired by Contra Costa County in the
classification of District Attorney Manager of Law Offices (JJGE), eligibility
for this longevity differential will be determined by adding together all service
time with Contra Costa County and all service time with the Contra Costa
Superior Court.  If this sum is more than ten (10) years, this longevity
differential will only be paid prospectively from the date the employee is
rehired by Contra Costa County.

12.11 Fifteen Years of Service: 

a. Employees who have completed fifteen (15) years of service for the County
are eligible to receive an additional two and one-half percent (2.5%) longevity
differential effective on the first day of the month following the month in which
the employee qualifies for the fifteen (15) year service award.  For
employees who completed fifteen (15) years of service on or before January
1, 2007, this longevity differential will be paid prospectively only from January
1, 2007. 

b. In lieu of subsection a, employees in positions ineligible to receive vacation
or sick leave accruals or to convert a portion of those accruals to cash under
the terms of this Resolution are eligible to receive an additional two and one-
half percent (2.5%) longevity differential upon the completion of fifteen (15)
years of service effective on the first day of the month following the month
in which the employee qualifies for the fifteen (15) year service award.  For
employees who completed fifteen years of service on or before January 1,
2007, this longevity differential will be paid prospectively only from January
1, 2007. 

c. This section does not apply to employees who are eligible to receive the
District Attorney Inspectors Longevity Differential set forth in Section 34 or
the Sheriff Law Enforcement Longevity Differential set forth in Section 49.

21 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



d. Effective April 1, 2007, this section does not apply to members of the Board
of Supervisors, except those members who earned this benefit while serving
on the Board of Supervisors and were receiving this benefit as of March 31,
2007.

e. Effective November 1, 2007, for employees who were employed by Contra
Costa County, became employees of the Contra Costa Superior Court by
operation of law, and thereafter are rehired by Contra Costa County in the
classification of District Attorney Manager of Law Offices (JJGE), eligibility
for this longevity differential will be determined by adding together all service
time with Contra Costa County and all service time with the Contra Costa
Superior Court.  If this sum is more than fifteen (15) years, this longevity
differential will only be paid prospectively from the date the employee is
rehired by Contra Costa County.   

13. Deferred Compensation: 

A.  Deferred Compensation Incentive.  The County will contribute eighty-five dollars
($85) per month to each employee who participates in the County’s Deferred
Compensation Plan.  To be eligible for this Deferred Compensation Incentive, the
employee must contribute to the deferred compensation plan as indicated below.

Employees with
Current Monthly

Salary of:

Qualifying Base
Contribution 

Amount

Monthly Contribution
Required to Maintain

Incentive Program Eligibility

$2,500 and below
$2,501 – 3,334
$3,335 – 4,167
$4,168 – 5,000
$5,001 – 5,834
$5,835 – 6,667
$6,668 and above

$250
$500
$750

$1,000
$1,500
$2,000
$2,500

$50
$50
$50
$50
$100
$100
$100

Employees who discontinue contributions or who contribute less than the required
amount per month for a period of one (1) month or more will no longer be eligible for
the eighty-five dollar ($85) Deferred Compensation Incentive.  To reestablish
eligibility, employees must again make a Base Contribution Amount as set forth
above based on current monthly salary.  Employees with a break in deferred
compensation contributions either because of an approved medical leave or an
approved financial hardship withdrawal will not be required to reestablish eligibility. 
Further, employees who lose eligibility due to displacement by layoff, but maintain
contributions at the required level and are later employed in an eligible position, will
not be required to reestablish eligibility.

B.  Special Benefit for Permanent Employees Hired on and after January 1, 2009. 

22 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



1.  Beginning on April 1, 2009 and for the term of this resolution, the County will
contribute one hundred and fifty dollars ($150) per month to an employee’s
account in the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other tax-
qualified savings program designated by the County, for employees who meet
all of the following conditions:

a.  The employee must be hired by Contra Costa County on or after January
1, 2009.  

b.  The employee must be appointed to a permanent position.  The position
may be either full time or part time, but if it is part time, it must be
designated, at a minimum, as 20 hours per week.

c.  The employee must have been employed by Contra Costa County for at
least 90 calendar days.

d.  The employee must contribute a minimum of twenty-five dollars ($25) per
month to the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan, or other
tax-qualified savings program designated by the County.

e.  The employee must complete and sign the required enrollment form(s)
for his/her deferred compensation account and submit those forms to the
Human Resources Department, Employee Benefits Services Unit.

f.  The employee may not exceed the annual maximum contribution amount
allowable by the United States Internal Revenue Code.

C.  No Cross Crediting.  The amounts contributed by the employee and the County
pursuant to Subsection B do not count towards the “Qualifying Base Contribution
Amount” or the “Monthly Contribution Required to Maintain Incentive Program
Eligibility” in Subsection A.  Similarly, the amounts contributed by the employee and
the County pursuant to Subsection A do not count towards the employee’s $25 per
month minimum contribution required by Subsection B.

D.  Maximum Annual Contribution.  All of the employee and County contributions set
forth in Subsections A and B will be added together to ensure that the annual
maximum contribution to the employee’s deferred compensation account does not
exceed the annual maximum contribution rate set forth in the United States Internal
Revenue Code.

E.  Eligibility for Loan Program.  All employees are eligible to apply for loans from
the Contra Costa County Deferred Compensation Plan loan program  established
by the Board of Supervisors on June 26, 2012, by Resolution No. 2012/298.

14. Annual Management Administrative Leave: 

23 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



A. On January 1  of each year, all full-time management and exempt st

employees in paid status will be credited with ninety four (94) hours of paid
Management Administrative Leave.   All Management Administrative Leave time
is non-accruable and all balances will be zeroed out on December 31 of each
year.

B. Permanent part-time employees are eligible for Management Administrative
Leave on a prorated basis, based upon their position hours.  Permanent-
intermittent employees are not eligible for Management Administrative Leave.

C. Employees appointed (hired or promoted) to management or exempt 
positions are eligible for Management Administrative Leave on the first day of
the month following their appointment date and will receive Management
Administrative Leave on a prorated basis for that first year.

D.  Management and exempt employees on the Overtime Exempt Exclusion List
are authorized to receive overtime pay; therefore, their Management
Administrative Leave will be reduced by 25% each time the employee is
on the List.  The 25% reduction will be deducted from the employee's
current leave balance, but if there is no balance, it will be deducted from 
future awarded Annual Management Administrative Leave.  This section does
not apply to the unrepresented, management, and exempt attorneys of the
Offices of the District Attorney, County Counsel, and Public Defender.  (See
Section 31.)

15. Management Life Insurance:  Employees are  covered at County expense by term
life insurance in the amount of fifty seven thousand dollars ($57,000) in addition to
the insurance provided in Section 2.24.

16. Vacation Buy Back:

A. Employees Hired Before April 1, 2011:

1.  Employees hired before April 1, 2011, may elect payment of up to one-third
(1/3) of their annual vacation accrual, subject to the following conditions: (1) the
choice can be made only once every thirteen (13) months and there must be at
least 12 full months between each election; (2) payment is based on an hourly
rate determined by dividing the employee’s monthly salary by 173.33; and (3) the
maximum number of vacation hours that may be paid in any one sale is one-
third (1/3) of the annual accrual.

2.  Lump Sum Payments.  Where a lump-sum payment is made to employees
as a retroactive general salary adjustment for a portion of a calendar year that
is subsequent to the exercise by an employee of the vacation buy-back provision
herein, that employee’s vacation buy-back will be adjusted to reflect the

24 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



percentage difference in base pay rates upon which the lump-sum payment was
computed, provided that the period covered by the lump-sum payment includes
the effective date of the vacation buy-back.

B. Employees Hired On and After April 1, 2011 and the County Librarian:

1.  Employees hired on and after April 1, 2011, and the County Librarian may not
elect payment of their vacation accruals, unless the employee was eligible for a
Vacation Buy Back benefit before being promoted into any classification covered
by this Resolution. 

17. Professional Development Reimbursement: Employees (excluding Department
Heads, their Chief Assistant(s), Engineering Managers, and all Attorney classes) are
eligible for reimbursement of up to six hundred twenty-five dollars ($625) for each
two (2) year period beginning on January 1, 1999, for memberships in professional
organizations, subscriptions to professional publications, attendance fees at job-
related professional development activities and purchase of job-related computer
hardware and software (excludes automation connectivity, support, or subscription
fees) from a standardized County-approved list or with Department Head approval,
provided each employee complies with the provisions of the Computer Use and
Security Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors and the applicable manuals. 
In order to receive reimbursement, the employee must have been in an eligible
classification when the expense was incurred. 

Each professional development reimbursement request must be approved by the
Department Head and submitted through the regular demand process.  Demands
must be accompanied by proof of payment (copy of invoice or receipt).  Certification
regarding compliance with the County’s computer use and security policy may be
required.  Questions regarding the appropriateness of a request will be answered
by the Office of the County Administrator.

18. Sick Leave Incentive Plan: Employees may be eligible for a payoff of a part of
unused sick leave accruals at separation.  This program is an incentive for
employees to safeguard sick leave accruals as protection against wage loss due to
time lost for injury or illness.  Payoff must be approved by the Director of Human
Resources, and is subject to the following conditions:

A. The employee must have resigned in good standing.

B. Payout is not available if the employee is eligible to retire.

C. The balance of sick leave at resignation must be at least seventy percent
(70%) of accruals earned in the preceding continuous period of employment
excluding any sick leave use covered by the Family and Medical Leave Act,
the California Family Rights Act, or the California Pregnancy Disability Act.

25 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



D. Payout is by the following schedule:

Years of Payment
Continuous Service

Payment of Unused
Sick Leave Payable

3 – 5 years
5 – 7 years
7 plus years

30%
40%
50%

E. No payoff will be made pursuant to this section unless the Contra Costa
County Employees’ Retirement Association has certified that an employee
requesting a sick leave payoff has terminated membership in, and has
withdrawn his or her contributions from, the Retirement Association.

F. It is the intent of the Board of Supervisors that payments made pursuant to
this section are in lieu of County retirement benefits resulting from
employment by this County or by Districts governed by this Board.

19. Video Display Terminal (VDT) Users Eye Examination: Employees are eligible
to receive an annual eye examination on County time and at County expense
provided that the employee regularly uses a video display terminal at least an
average of two (2) hours per day as certified by their department.

Employees certified for examination under this program must make their request
through the Benefits Service Unit of the County Human Resources Department. 
Should prescription VDT eyeglasses be prescribed for the employee following the
examination, the County agrees to provide, at no cost, basic VDT eye wear
consisting of a ten dollar ($10) frame and single, bifocal or trifocal lenses. 
Employees may, through individual arrangement between the employee and the
employees’ doctor and solely at the employee’s expense, include blended lenses
and other care, services or materials not covered by the Plan.

20. Long-Term Disability Insurance: The County will continue in force the Long-Term
Disability Insurance program with a replacement limit of eighty-five (85%) of total
monthly base earnings reduced by any deductible benefits.

III. BENEFITS FOR ELECTED AND APPOINTED DEPARTMENT HEADS
Department Heads will receive the benefits set forth in Part I and Part II and the following
additional benefits:

21. Executive Automobile Allowance: 

A.  Elected Department Heads

26 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



The below-listed elected Department Heads are eligible to receive a $600 per month
automobile allowance plus mileage for miles driven outside Contra Costa County at
the rate per mile allowed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a deductible
expense.  Receipt of this automobile allowance means that the elected Department
Head must use a private automobile for County business.

Assessor (DAA1)
Auditor–Controller (SAA1) 
Clerk–Recorder (ALA1)
District Attorney-Public Administrator (2KA1)
Treasurer–Tax Collector (S5A1)

The Sheriff-Coroner (6XA1) is eligible to receive a $500 per month automobile
allowance plus mileage for miles driven inside and outside of Contra Costa County
at the rate per mile allowed by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a deductible
expense.  Receipt of this automobile allowance means that the Sheriff-Coroner must
use a private automobile for County business.

B.  Appointed Department Heads appointed prior to February 1, 2012

The below-listed Department Heads who were appointed to their positions prior to
February 1, 2012 are eligible to receive a $600 per month automobile allowance plus
mileage for miles driven outside Contra Costa County at the rate per mile allowed
by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) as a deductible expense.  Receipt of this
automobile allowance means that the appointed Department Head must use a
private automobile for County business.

County Administrator (ADA2)
Chief Assistant County Administrator (ADB1)
County Counsel (2EA1)
County Probation Officer (7AA1)
Director of Animal Services (BJA1)
Director of Child Support Services (SMA1)
Director of Conservation and Development (4AA1)
Director of Health Services (VCA1)
Director of Information Technology (LTA1)
Public Defender (25A1)
Public Works Director (NAA1)

C. Appointed Department Heads appointed on and after February 1, 2012

Every appointed Department Head is ineligible to receive an automobile allowance.
  

D. Temporary Loss of Vehicle

If use of a County vehicle is temporarily required as the result of an emergency,
such as an accident or mechanical failure to the recipient’s personal automobile, a

27 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



County vehicle may be used if approved by the County Administrator or his/her
designee.  The user’s department will be charged for the costs of the temporary use
of the County vehicle.  Further, the user of the County vehicle will not receive his/her
automobile allowance while using the County vehicle. 

22. Executive Life Insurance: In lieu of the insurance provided under Section 15,
Department Heads are covered at County expense by term life insurance in the
amount of sixty thousand dollars ($60,000) additional to the insurance provided
under Section 2.12.

23. Executive Professional Development Reimbursement: Department Heads and
those chief assistants listed in Exhibit D (excluding Attorney classes) are eligible for
reimbursement of up to nine hundred twenty-five dollars ($925) for each two (2) year
period beginning January 1, 1999 for memberships in professional organizations,
subscriptions to professional organizations, subscriptions to professional
publications, attendance fees at job-related professional development activities, and
purchase of job-related computer hardware and software, such as blackberries, I-
phones, and treos (excluding automation connectivity, support, or subscription fees)
from a standardized County-approved list or with Department Head approval,
provided each employee complies with the provisions of the Computer Use and
Security Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors and the applicable manuals. 
In order to receive reimbursement, the employee must have been in an eligible
classification when the expense was incurred.

Each executive professional development reimbursement request must be approved
by the Department Head and submitted through the regular demand process. 
Demands must be accompanied by proof of payment (copy of invoice or receipt). 
Certification regarding compliance with the County’s computer use and security
policy may be required.  Questions regarding the appropriateness of a request will
be determined by the Office of the County Administrator.

24. Appointed Department Heads: The Appointed Department Heads are the
Agricultural Commissioner/Director of Weights and Measures, Chief Assistant
County Administrator, County Counsel, County Finance Director, County Librarian,
County Probation Officer, County Veteran’s Services Officer, Director of
Employment and Human Services, Director of Animal Services, Director of Child
Support Services, Director of Conservation and Development, Director of Health
Services, Director of Human Resources, Director of Information Technology, Public
Defender, and the Public Works Director.  (The Fire Chief of the Contra Costa
County Fire Protection District is also an appointed Department Head, but the
benefits for the Fire Chief are set forth in a separate Fire Management Resolution.)

25. Elected Department Heads: The Elected Department Heads are the Assessor,
Auditor–Controller, Clerk–Recorder, District Attorney–Public Administrator,
Sheriff–Coroner, and Treasurer–Tax Collector.

28 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



26. Elected Department Head Benefits:  Elected Department Heads will receive only
the following benefits under Parts I, II, and III, together with such benefits as may
be authorized under Part IV:

A. All Elected Department Heads will receive the benefits set forth in Part I,
Sections 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, and 11.12.

B. Elected Department Heads will receive the benefits set forth in Part I, Section 2
in accordance with the following:

1.  Those Elected Department Heads who were County employees when elected
to County office with a County employee hire date that is earlier than January 1,
2009, will receive the benefits set forth in Part I, Section 2, except the provisions
set forth in Section 2.13 (a) (3) do not apply.

2.  Those Elected Department Heads who were County employees when elected
to County office with a County employee hire date that is on or after January 1,
2009, will receive all of the benefits set forth in Part I, Section 2.

 
3.  Those Elected Department Heads who were not County employees when
elected to County office will receive all of the benefits set forth in Part I, Section
2.

C. All Elected Department Heads will receive the benefits set forth in Part II,
Sections 13 and 20.

D. Elected Department Heads will not receive the benefits set forth in Part II,
Section 12, except for those Elected Department Heads who are in their elected
office and receiving longevity pay as of October 1, 2010.

E. As compensation for not accruing paid vacation credit, in addition to the benefits
of Part II, Section 13, twelve thousand dollars ($12,000) as a deferred
compensation contribution will be added to the elected department head’s
deferred compensation account effective July 1 of each year (commencing July
1, 2007).  If after July 1, but prior to June 30 of the next succeeding year, for any
reason, the elected department head’s occupancy of office terminates and/or
expires, the elected department head is entitled to an additional deferred
compensation account contribution prorated from July 1 to include the time
period the elected department head served prior to the next June 30.  Further,
if, for any reason, all or part of such deferred compensation cannot be paid into
a deferred compensation account the elected department head is entitled to an
equivalent lump-sum payment.  None of the County’s twelve thousand dollar
($12,000) contribution may be used to establish eligibility and qualification to
receive the additional eighty-five dollars ($85) monthly Deferred Compensation
Incentive contribution otherwise provided by the County.

F. All Elected Department Heads will receive the benefits set forth in Part III,

29 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Sections 21, 22, and 23.

G. A County employee who becomes a County elected official may receive
payment for unused vacation accruals only at the rate of pay that the elected
official last earned as a County employee.  The elected official may not be paid
for unused vacation accruals at the rate of pay earned as an elected official. 

H. Only the Board of Supervisors is authorized to prescribe the compensation of
County elected officials pursuant to Government Code section 25300.

IV. SPECIAL BENEFITS FOR MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEES BY DEPARTMENT OR CLASS

27. Accounting Certificate Differential:  Incumbents of Management professional
accounting, auditing or fiscal officer positions who possess one of the following
certifications in good standing will receive a differential of five percent (5%) of base
monthly salary: (1) A valid Certified Public Accountant (CPA) license issued by the
State of California, Department of Consumer Affairs, Board of Accountancy; (2) a
Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) certification issued by the Institute of Internal
Auditors; (3) a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) certification issued by the
Institute of Management Accountants; or (4) a Certified Government Financial
Manager (CGFM) certification issued by the Association of Government
Accountants.

28. Animal Services Search Warrant:  Employees in the management class of Deputy
Director of Animal Services (BJD1) will be compensated for time spent in assisting
law enforcement agencies in the serving of search warrants.  The amount of special
compensation per incident is one hundred dollars ($100) and it will continue to be
equal to that paid to Animal Services Officers for performing this duty.  Only
employees involved in actual entry team activities will be so compensated.  The
department continues to retain the sole right to select and assign personnel to such
search warrant duty.

29. Animal Services Uniform Allowance:  The uniform allowance for employees in the
management class of Deputy Director of Animal Services (BJD1) is eight hundred
dollars ($800) effective July 1, 2001, payable one-twelfth (1/12) of the yearly total
in monthly pay warrants.  Any other increase in the Uniform Allowance, which may
be granted to Animal Services Officers while this Resolution is in effect, is granted
to the Animal Services Management classes.

30. Attorney State Bar Dues and Professional Development Reimbursement:  

30.10 State Bar Dues Reimbursement.  The County will reimburse employees in the
classes set forth below for California State Bar Membership dues (but not
penalty fees) and, if annually approved in advance by the Department Head,

30 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



fees for criminal and/or civil specialization.

30.11 Professional Development Reimbursement.  The County will reimburse
employees in the classes listed in Section 30.12 up to a maximum of seven
hundred dollars ($700) each fiscal year for the following types of expenses:

A. Purchase of job-related computer hardware and software.
B. Membership dues in legal professional associations.
C. Purchase of legal publications.
D. Training and travel costs for job-related educational courses.
E. Legal on-line computer services.

Any unused accrual may be carried forward to the next fiscal year up to a
maximum of eight hundred dollars ($800).  

30.12 Eligible Classes.
This section applies only to the following classifications:

Assistant County Counsel-Exempt (2ED1)

Assistant District Attorney-Exempt (2KD3)

Assistant Public Defender-Exempt (25D2)

Chief Asst. County Counsel-Exempt (2ED2)

Chief Asst. Deputy District Atty-Exempt (2KD2)

Chief Assistant Public Defender-Exempt (25D1)

Chief Trial Deputy Public Defender (25DB)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Advanced (2ETG)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Standard (2ETF)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Basic (2ETE)

County Counsel (2EA1)

Deputy County Counsel-Advanced (2ETK)

Deputy County Counsel-Standard (2ETJ)

Deputy County Counsel-Basic (2ETH)

Deputy County Counsel- Advanced- Exempt (2ET3) 

Deputy County Counsel- Standard- Exempt (2ET2)

Deputy County Counsel-Basic- Exempt (2ET1)

District Attorney-Public Administrator (2KA1)

Public Defender (25A1)

Senior Deputy District Attorney-Exempt (2KD1)

Senior Financial Counsel-Exempt (2ED3)

Supervising Attorney-Child Support Services (29HA)

Attorney Basic-Child Support Services (29VA)

Attorney Advanced-Child Support Services (29TA)

31 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Attorney Entry-Child Support Services (29WA)

31. Attorney Management Administrative Leave and Additional Longevity Pay:

31.10  Attorney Management Administrative Leave.

A. On January 1  of each year, the employees in the classes set forth belowst

who are in paid status, excluding fixed-term employees and contract
attorneys, will be credited with ninety four (94) hours of Management
Administrative Leave.  Management Administrative Leave must be used
during the calendar year in which it is credited and any unused hours may
not be carried forward.

B. Attorneys appointed between January 1  and June 30 , inclusive, are eligiblest th

for ninety four (94) hours of Management Administrative Leave on the first
succeeding January 1  and annually thereafter.  Attorneys appointed on orst

after July 1  are eligible for seventy one (71) hours of Managementst

Administrative Leave on the first succeeding January 1  and are eligible forst

ninety four (94) hours annually thereafter.

C. Permanent part time attorneys are eligible for Management Administrative
Leave on a prorated basis, based upon their position hours, beginning on
January 1  following their appointment and in the same proportion on eachst

January 1  thereafter.  Permanent-intermittent attorneys are not entitled tost

Management Administrative Leave.  Any attorney on a leave of absence will
have his/her Management Administrative Leave hours pro rated upon his/her
return.

D. Unrepresented, management, and exempt attorneys on the Overtime
Exempt Exclusion List are authorized to receive overtime pay; therefore, their
Management Administrative Leave will be reduced by 25% each time the
attorney is on the List.  The 25% reduction will be deducted from the
employee’s current leave balance, but if there is no balance, it will be
deducted from future awarded Management Administrative Leave.

31.11 Additional Longevity Pay at 20 Years of County Service.

In addition to the Longevity Pay provided in Section 12 of this resolution,
employees in the classes set forth below are eligible to receive an additional two
percent (2%) longevity differential effective on the first day of the month following
the month in which the employee qualifies for the twenty (20) year service
award, beginning on November 1, 2012.  For those employees who have twenty
years of service on or before November 1, 2012, this longevity differential will be
paid prospectively only from November 1, 2012.

31.12 Eligible Classes.
This section applies only to the following classifications:

32 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Assistant County Counsel-Exempt (2ED1)

Assistant District Attorney-Exempt (2KD3)

Assistant Public Defender-Exempt (25D2)

Chief Asst. County Counsel-Exempt (2ED2)

Chief Asst. Deputy District Atty-Exempt (2KD2)

Chief Assistant Public Defender-Exempt (25D1)

Chief Trial Deputy Public Defender (25DB)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Advanced (2ETG)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Standard (2ETF)

Civil Litigation Attorney-Basic (2ETE)

County Counsel (2EA1)

Deputy County Counsel-Advanced (2ETK)

Deputy County Counsel-Standard (2ETJ)

Deputy County Counsel-Basic (2ETH)

Deputy County Counsel- Advanced- Exempt (2ET3) 

Deputy County Counsel- Standard- Exempt (2ET2)

Deputy County Counsel-Basic- Exempt (2ET1)

Public Defender (25A1)

Senior Deputy District Attorney-Exempt (2KD1)

Senior Financial Counsel-Exempt (2ED3)

Supervising Attorney-Child Support Services (29HA)

Attorney Basic-Child Support Services (29VA)

Attorney Advanced-Child Support Services (29TA)

Attorney Entry-Child Support Services (29WA)

32. Assessor Education Differential:  Employees in the management class of
Assistant County Assessor-Exempt (DAB1) are entitled to a salary differential of two
and one-half percent (2.5%) of base monthly salary for possession of a certification
for educational achievement from at least one of the following:

A. American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers Residential Member designation.
B. State Board of Equalization Advanced Appraiser Certification.
C. International Association of  Assessing Officers Residential Evaluation

Specialist.
D. Society of Auditor-Appraiser Master Auditor-Appraiser designation.
E. Society of Real Estate Appraisers Senior Residential Appraiser designation.
F. Any other certification approved by the County Assessor and the Director of

Human Resources.

33. Certified Elections/Registration Administrator Certification Differential:
Employees in the classification of Clerk-Recorder (ALA1) are entitled to receive a
monthly differential in the amount of five percent (5%) of base monthly salary for

33 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



possession of a valid Certified Elections/Registration Administrator Certificate issued
by The Election Center-Professional Education Program.  Verification of eligibility
is by the County Administrator or designee.  Eligibility for receipt of the differential
begins on the first day of the month following the month in which the County
Administrator verifies eligibility.

34. District Attorney Inspectors Longevity Differential: Incumbents of the classes
of District Attorney Chief of Inspectors–Exempt (6KD1), District Attorney Director of
Forensic and Technical Services (6KDC), District Attorney Lieutenant of Inspectors
(6KNB), and Lieutenant of Inspectors–Welfare Fraud (6KWG) are eligible for a
differential of five percent (5%) of base monthly salary when the following conditions
are satisfied: The employee has (1) four (4) years of experience as a peace officer
with Contra Costa County; (2) fifteen (15) years of P.O.S.T. experience; and (3) has
reached the age of thirty-five (35).

35. District Attorney Inspector P.O.S.T.:  Incumbents of the classes of District
Attorney Lieutenant of Inspectors (6KNB), District Attorney Director of Forensic and
Technical Services (6KDC), District Attorney Lieutenant of Inspectors–Welfare
Fraud (6KWG) and District Attorney Chief of Inspectors–Exempt (6KD1) who
possess the appropriate certificates beyond the minimum P.O.S.T. qualifications
required in their class may qualify for one of the following career incentive
allowances:

A. A career incentive allowance of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of base monthly
salary will be paid to DA Lieutenant of Inspectors, DA Director of Forensic and
Technical Services, and DA Lieutenant of Inspectors-Welfare Fraud for the
possession of an Advanced P.O.S.T. certificate.  This allowance will be paid to
the DA Chief of Inspectors-Exempt for possession of a Management and/or
Executive P.O.S.T. Certificate.

B. A career incentive allowance of five percent (5%) of base monthly salary will be
paid to DA Lieutenant of Inspectors, DA Director of Forensic and Technical
Services, and DA Lieutenant of Inspectors–Welfare Fraud for possession of an
Advanced P.O.S.T. certificate and an approved Baccalaureate Degree.  This
allowance will be paid to the DA Chief of Inspectors for possession of a
Management and/or Executive P.O.S.T. certificate and possession of an
approved Baccalaureate Degree.

C. A career incentive allowance of seven and one-half percent (7.5%) of base
monthly salary will be paid to DA Lieutenant of Inspectors, DA Director of
Forensic and Technical Services, and DA Lieutenant of Inspectors–Welfare
Fraud for the possession of an Advanced P.O.S.T. certificate and possession of
an approved Master’s Degree.  This allowance will be paid to the DA Chief of
Inspectors–Exempt for possession of an approved Management and/or
Executive P.O.S.T. certificate and possession of an approved Master’s Degree. 
No contining education is required in order to be entitled to any of the foregoing
allowances.

34 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



36. District Attorney Investigator - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers;
Contribution Toward Cost of Enhanced Retirement Benefit :

36.10 Safety Tier A.  The retirement formula of “3 percent at 50" applies to employees
in the classifications set forth below who become members of the Contra Costa
County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or before December
31, 2012 or who, under PEPRA,  become reciprocal members of CCCERA, as
determined by CCCERA.  The cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the retirement
allowances of these employees will not exceed three percent (3%) per year.  The
final compensation of these employees will be based on a twelve (12)
consecutive month salary average.  This retirement benefit is known as Safety
Tier A.

1.  Until July 1, 2012, each employee in Tier A will pay nine percent (9%) of his
or her retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of
Safety Tier A retirement benefits.  

2.  Effective on July 1, 2012, each employee in Tier A will pay three percent (3%)
of his/her retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost
of Safety Tier A retirement benefits.

3.  Effective on June 30, 2016, these payments will cease.

The payments set forth above will be made on a pre-tax basis in accordance
with applicable tax laws.  “Retirement base” means base salary and other
payments, such as salary differential and flat rate pay allowances, used to
compute retirement deductions. 

36.11 Safety PEPRA Tier.  For employees who become safety New Members of the
Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or after
January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by the California Public
Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297,
Statutes of 2012) and Safety Option Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies.  For
employees hired on or after July 1, 2014, who under PEPRA, become safety
New Members of CCCERA, the cost of living adjustment to the retirement
allowance will not exceed two percent (2%) per year and will be banked.  To the
extent that this resolution conflicts with any provision of PEPRA, PEPRA
governs.

   
36.12 Employees with more than 30 years of Service.  Commencing on July 1, 2007,

eligible employees in the classifications set forth below and designated by the
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association as safety members
with credit for more than thirty (30) years of continuous service as safety
members, will not make payments from their retirement base to pay part of the
employer’s contribution towards the cost of Safety Tier A.

36.13 Eligible Classes.

35 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



  
This section applies only to the following classifications:

 
 District Attorney Chief of Inspectors-Exempt (6KD1)
 District Attorney Lieutenant of Inspectors (6KNB)
 Lieutenant of Inspectors-Welfare Fraud (6KWG)

District Attorney Director of Forensic and Technical Services (6KDC)

37. Engineer Continuing Education Allowance:  Employees in the classification of
Deputy Public Works Director-Exempt (NAD0) are eligible to receive a one year
Continuing Education Allowance of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of base monthly
salary if they complete at least (60) hours of approved education or training or at
least three (3) semester units of approved college credit or approved combination
thereof, subject to the following conditions.

A. The specific education or training must be submitted in writing by the
employee to the Public Works Director or his designee prior to beginning the
course work.

B. The education or training must be reviewed and approved in advance by the
Public Works Director or his designee as having a relationship to the
technical or managerial responsibilities of the employee’s current or potential
County job classifications.

C. Employees who qualify for this allowance do so for a period of only twelve
(12) months, commencing on the first day of the month after proof of
completion is received and approved by the Public Works Director or his
designee.  This allowance automatically terminates at the end of the twelve
(12) month period.

38. Engineer Professional Development Reimbursement: Employees in the
classification of Engineering Managers will be allowed reimbursement for qualifying
professional development expenses and professional engineering license fees
required by the employee’s classification up to a total of seven hundred dollars
($700) for each two (2) year period beginning on January 1, 2000.  Effective July 1,
2007, the allowable reimbursement amount will be increased by one hundred fifty
dollars ($150) for a total of eight hundred fifty dollars ($850).  Effective on January
1, 2008,  Engineering Managers will be allowed reimbursement for qualifying
professional development expenses and professional engineering license fees
required by the employee’s classification up to a total of nine hundred dollars ($900)
for each two (2) year period. 

 
Allowable expenses include the following activities and materials directly related to
the profession in which the individual is engaged as a County employee:

A. Membership dues to professional organizations.
B. Registration fees for attendance at professional meetings, conferences and

36 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



seminars.
C. Books, journals and periodicals.
D. Tuition and text book reimbursement for accredited college or university classes.
E. Professional license fees required by the employee’s classification.
F. Application and examination fees for registration as a professional engineer,

architect or engineer-in-training.
G. Certain job-related instruments, job-related computer hardware and software

from a standardized County approved list or with Department Head approval,
provided each Engineer complies with the provisions of the Computer Use and
Security Policy adopted by the Board of Supervisors and the applicable manuals.

Individual professional development reimbursement requests require the approval
of the Department Head.  Reimbursement occurs through the regular demand
process with demands being accompanied by proof of payment (copy of invoice or
canceled check).

In order to receive reimbursement, the employee must have been in an eligible
classification when the expense was incurred.

39. Library Department Holidays:  For all management and unrepresented employees
in the County Library Department, the day after Thanksgiving is deleted as a holiday
and the day before Christmas is added as a holiday.

40. Library Differentials: The classifications of Library Student Assistant Exempt
(3KW2) and Library Aide Exempt (3KW4) may earn the following differential pays
under the following circumstances:

A.  Employees in the above-listed classes who work between the hours of 6:00p.m.
and 9:00p.m. at any County library are entitled to a differential of five percent (5%)
of the employee’s base rate of pay (not including differentials).

B.  Employees in the above-listed classes who work on Saturday are entitled to a
differential of five percent (5%) of the employee’s base rate of pay (not including
differentials).  This differential does not apply to any overtime hours worked on a
Saturday.

C.  Employees in the above-listed classes who work on a Sunday are entitled to a
differential of seven and one half percent (7.5%) of the employee’s base rate of pay
(not including differentials).

41. Nursing Shift Coordinator-Per Diem Differentials:  The classification of Nursing
Shift Coordinator-Per Diem (VWHD) may earn the following differential pays under
the following circumstances:

A.  Evening Shift. An employee will receive a shift differential of twelve percent
(12%) of the employee’s base hourly rate of pay for the employee’s entire shift
designation when the employee works four (4) or more hours between 5:00 p.m. and

37 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



11:00 p.m.  In order to receive the shift differential, the employee must start work
between 11:00 a.m. and midnight on the day the shift is scheduled to begin.  Hours
worked in excess of the employee’s shift designation will count towards qualifying
for the shift differential, but the employee will not be paid the shift differential on any
hours worked in excess of the employee’s shift designation.

B.  Night Shift. An employee will receive a shift differential of fifteen percent (15%)
of the employee’s base hourly rate of pay for the employee’s entire shift designation
when the employee works works four (4) or more hours between 11:00 p.m. and
8:00 a.m.  In order to receive the shift differential, the employee must start work
between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and midnight or midnight and 8:00 a.m. on the day
the shift is scheduled to begin.  Hours worked in excess of the employee’s shift
designation will count towards qualifying for the shift differential, but the employee
will not be paid the shift differential on any hours worked in excess of the employee’s
shift designation.

C.  Shift Differential.  An employee will receive a shift differential of five percent (5%)
for a maximum of eight (8) hours per work day and/or forty (40) hours per workweek
when the employee works four (4) or more hours between 5:00 p.m. and 9:00 a.m. 
In order to receive the shift differential, the employee must start work between the
hours of midnight and 5:00 a.m., or 11:00 a.m. and midnight on the day the shift is
scheduled to begin.  Hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours in a workday will
count toward qualifying for the shift differential, but the employee will not be paid the
shift differential on any excess hours worked.

D.  Code Gray/STAT Team Differential.  An employee in the above-listed class who
is assigned by hospital administration to respond to emergency Code Gray calls as
a member of the STAT Team is entitled to a differential of ten percent (10%) of the
employee’s base rate of pay (not including differentials).

 
42. Nursing Shift Coordinator-Per Diem Overtime:  Employees in the classification

of Nursing Shift Coordinator - Per Diem (VWHD) who work on a holiday are entitled
to receive overtime pay at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) times his/her hourly rate
for all hours worked on the holiday, up to a maximum of eight (8) hours.

43. Podiatrists- Unrepresented Status:  In addition to all general benefits afforded
unrepresented employees in Section I of this Resolution, the class of Exempt
Medical Staff Podiatrist (VPS2) is also eligible for the following benefits:

Educational Leave.  Each permanent full-time employee with at least one (1) year
of service is entitled to five (5) days leave with pay each year to attend courses,
institutions, workshops or classes which meet requirements for American Medical
Association Category One Continuing Medical Education.  Requests must be
submitted for approval in advance to the Medical Director and Service Chief. 
Permanent part-time employees are entitled to educational leave under this section
on a pro-rated basis.

38 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Long-Term Disability Insurance:  The County will continue the Long-Term Disability
Insurance program with a replacement limit of eighty-five percent (85%) of total
monthly base earnings reduced by any deductible benefits.  

Malpractice Coverage.  The County will provide coverage under the Continuing
Practice Physician’s Insurance Plan.

Paid Personal Leave.  Permanent full-time employees with three (3) years of service
will be credited with five (5) days of non-accruable paid personal leave effective
January 1 of each calendar year.  Balances not used will be returned to zero (0) at
the end of each year.  Permanent part-time employees are entitled to paid personal
leave under this section on a pro-rated basis.

44. Probation - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers; Contribution Toward Cost of
Enhanced Retirement Benefit:  

44.10 Safety Tier A.  The retirement formula of “3 percent at 50" applies to employees
in the classifications set forth below who become Safety members of the Contra
Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or before
December 31, 2012 or who, under PEPRA,  become reciprocal members of
CCCERA, as determined by CCCERA.  The cost of living adjustment (COLA)
to the retirement allowances of these employees will not exceed three percent
(3%) per year.  The final compensation of these employees will be based on a
twelve (12) consecutive month salary average.  

1.  Until July 1, 2012, each employee in Tier A will pay nine percent (9%) of
his/her retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of
Tier A retirement benefits.  

2.  For the period of July 1, 2012 through and including December 31, 2014,
each employee in Tier A will pay four and one half percent (4.5%) of his/her
retirement base to pay  part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of Tier A
retirement benefits. 

3.  For the period of January 1, 2015 through and including June 29, 2015, each
employee will pay two and one quarter percent (2.25%) of his/her retirement
base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of Tier A retirement
benefits. 

4.  Effective on June 30, 2015, each employee’s payment of two and one quarter
percent (2.25%) of his/her retirement base to pay part of the employer’s
contribution for the cost of Tier A retirement benefits will cease.

The payments set forth above will be made on a pre-tax basis in accordance
with applicable tax laws.  “Retirement base” means base salary and other
payments, such as salary differential and flat rate pay allowances, used to
compute retirement deductions.

39 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



44.11 Safety PEPRA Tier.  For employees who become Safety New Members of the
Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or after
January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by the California Public
Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297,
Statutes of 2012) and Safety Option Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies.  To the
extent that this resolution conflicts with any provision of PEPRA, PEPRA
governs.

44.12 Eligible Classes.
  This section applies only to the following classifications:

Assistant County Probation Officer-Exempt (7AB1)
County Probation Officer-Exempt (7AA1)
Chief Deputy Probation Officer (7ADC)

                           Institutional Supervisor II (7KGA)
                           Probation Manager (7AGB)
                           Probation Director (7BFA)

45. Real Property Agent Advanced Certificate Differential: Employees in the
classifications of Assessor (DAA1), Assistant County Assessor (DAB1), and Real
Estate Manager-Exempt (DYD1) are entitled to receive a monthly differential in the
amount of five percent (5%) of base monthly salary for possessing and maintaining
either a valid Senior Member Certificate issued by the International Executive
Committee of the International Right of Way Association (IRWA) or a certification
issued by the Building Owners and Managers Institute (BOMI) with a designation as
either a Real Property Administrator (RPA) or Facilities Management Administrator
(FMA).   Verification of eligibility will be by the Department Head or his/her designee. 
Eligibility for receipt of the differential begins on the first day of the month following
the month in which eligibility is verified by the Department Head.

All employees who qualify for the Senior Member certificate must recertify every five
(5) years with the International Right of Way Association in order to retain the Senior
Member designation and continue to receive the differential.  In order to recertify,
a Senior Member must accumulate seventy-five (75) hours of approved education
which may include successfully completing courses, attending educational seminars
or teaching approved courses.

All employees who qualify for the RPA or FMA designation must recertify every
three (3) years with BOMI in order to retain the RPA or FMA designation and
continue to receive this differential.  In order to retain certification, an employee must
achieve eighteen (18) points of continuing professional development, which may
include successfully completing courses, attending educational seminars, or 
teaching approved courses related to the industry.

46. Sheriff Sworn Management P.O.S.T.:  

A. Incumbents of the classes of Sheriff-Coroner (6XA1), Undersheriff–Exempt

40 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



(6XB4), Assistant Sheriff- Exempt (6XB2) and Commander–Exempt (6XD1) who
possess the appropriate certificates beyond the minimum P.O.S.T. qualifications
required in their class may qualify for one, and only one, of the following career
incentive allowances:

1. A career incentive allowance of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of
monthly base pay will be awarded for the possession of a Management
and/or Executive P.O.S.T. Certificate and possession of an approved
Baccalaureate Degree.

2. A career allowance of five percent (5%) of monthly base pay will be
awarded for the possession of a Management and/or Executive
P.O.S.T. Certificate and possession of an approved Master’s Degree.

B. Incumbents in the class of Chief of Police-Contract Agency-Exempt who
possess the appropriate certificates beyond the minimum P.O.S.T. qualifications
required in their class may qualify for one, and only one, of the following career
incentive allowances:

1. A career incentive allowance of two and one-half percent (2.5%) of
monthly base pay will be awarded for the possession of an Advanced
P.O.S.T. Certificate.

2. A career incentive allowance of five percent (5%) will be awarded for the
possession of an Advanced P.O.S.T. Certificate and possession of an
approved Baccalaureate or Master’s Degree. 

47. Sheriff Continuing Education Allowance:  Sheriff’s Department employees in the
classifications of Sheriff’s Fiscal Officer (APSA) and Sheriff’s Chief of Management
Services (APDC) are eligible to receive a Continuing Education Allowance of two
and one-half percent (2.5%) of base monthly salary for any fiscal year in which they
complete at least sixty (60) hours of education or training or at least three(3)
semester units of college credit or a combination thereof, approved by the
department, subject to all of the following conditions:

A. An application must be submitted in advance, to the Sheriff’s Department
prior to the fiscal year in which the education or training will occur.

B. The education or training must be directly related to the technical or
Management duties of the employee’s job.

C. The course must be reviewed and approved in advance by the Sheriff’s
Department Standards and Resources Bureau.

D. The employee must show evidence of completion with a passing grade.

48. Sheriff Emergency Services Standby Differential:  Employees in the

41 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



classification  of Emergency Planning Specialist–Exempt (9GS1) who perform
standby duty for the Office of Emergency Services at least one (1) week per month,
are entitled to receive a differential in the amount of two and one-half percent (2.5%)
of base monthly salary.

49. Sheriff Law Enforcement Longevity Differential:  

49.10.  15 years of sworn County service.  Incumbents in the classifications of
Undersheriff (6XB4), Assistant Sheriff- Exempt (6XB2), Commander (6XD1), and
Chief of Police-Contract Agency-Exempt (6XF1) are eligible for a differential of five
percent (5%) of base monthly salary upon completion of fifteen (15) years of County
service as a full-time, permanent, sworn law enforcement officer.  

49.11.  20 years of sworn County service.  Incumbents in the classifications of
Undersheriff (6XB4), Assistant Sheriff- Exempt (6XB2), Commander (6XD1), and
Chief of Police-Contract Agency-Exempt (6XF1) are eligible for a differential of two
percent (2%) of base monthly salary upon completion of twenty (20) years of County
service as a full-time, permanent, sworn law enforcement officer.  For employees
who completed twenty (20) years of such service on or before September 1, 2013,
this longevity differential will be paid prospectively only from September 1, 2013.

50. Sheriff Uniform Allowance:  The Sheriff-Coroner (6XA1), Undersheriff (6XB4,
Assistant Sheriff- Exempt (6XB2), Commander (6XD1), Chief of Police-Contract
Agency-Exempt (6XF1) and non-sworn management employees in the Sheriff-
Coroner’s Department will be paid a uniform allowance in the amount of eight
hundred seventy-two dollars ($872) per year effective July 1, 2007, payable one-
twelfth (1/12) of the yearly total in monthly pay warrants.  The non-sworn
management employees eligible for this uniform allowance are: Sheriff’s Fiscal
Officer (APSA) and Sheriff’s Chief of Management Services (APDC).

51. Sheriff - Detention Division Meals: Employees assigned to the Detention Division
will have fifteen dollars ($15.00) per month deducted from their pay checks in
exchange for meals provided by the Department.  The employee may choose not
to eat facility food.  In that case, no fees will be deducted.

52. Sheriff - Safety Employees Retirement Tiers:

52.10. Safety Tier A.  The retirement formula of “3 percent at 50" applies to employees
in the classifications set forth below, who are employed by the County as of
December 31, 2006.  The cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the retirement
allowances of these employees will not exceed three percent (3%) per year.  The
final compensation of these employees will be based on a twelve (12)
consecutive month salary average. Safety Tier A is closed to all employees
initially hired by Contra Costa County after December 31, 2006.

52.11 Safety Tier C.  The retirement formula of “3 percent at 50" applies to employees
in the classifications set forth below, who are hired by the County after

42 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



December 31, 2006 and on or before December 31, 2012, or who, under
PEPRA,  become reciprocal members of CCCERA, as determined by CCCERA. 
The cost of living adjustment (COLA) to the retirement allowances of these
employees will not exceed two percent (2%) per year.  The final compensation
of these employees will be based on a thirty-six (36) consecutive month salary
average.  

52.12 Safety PEPRA Tier. For employees who become Safety New Members of the
Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or after
January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by the California Public
Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297,
Statutes of 2012) and Safety Option Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies.  The cost
of living adjustment to the retirement allowances of these employees will not
exceed two percent (2%) per year and will be banked.  To the extent that this
resolution conflicts with any provision of PEPRA, PEPRA governs. 

52.13 Employees with more than 30 years of Service.  Commencing January 1, 2007,
employees in the classifications set forth below  and designated by the Contra
Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association as safety members with credit
for more than thirty (30) years of continuous service as safety members, will not
make payments from their retirement base to pay part of the employer’s
contribution towards the cost of Safety Tier A.

52.14 Retirement Tier Elections.  If members of the Deputy Sheriffs’ Association have
the opportunity to elect different retirement tiers, employees in the classifications
set forth below and employed by the County as of December 31, 2012, will be
offered the same opportunity to elect the new Safety PEPRA Tier at the same
time and on the same terms and conditions as are applicable to members of the
Deputy Sheriffs’ Association.

52.15 Eligible Classes.

This section applies only to the following classifications:

Sheriff-Coroner (6XA1)
Undersheriff- Exempt (6XB4)
Assistant Sheriff-Exempt (6XB2)                     
Commander (6XD1)
Chief of Police-Contract Agency-Exempt (6XF1)

53. Safety Employees Retirement Tiers (Miscellaneous Safety Classifications)
Benefit

53.10 Safety Tier A.  The retirement formula of “3 percent at 50" applies to employees
in the classifications set forth below who become Safety members of the Contra

43 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or before
December 31, 2012, or who under PEPRA, become reciprocal members of
CCCERA as determined by CCCERA. The cost of living adjustment (COLA) to
the retirement allowances of these employees will not exceed three percent (3%)
per year.  The final compensation of these employees will be based on a twelve
(12) consecutive month salary average. 

1.  Until September 1, 2013, each employee in Tier A will pay nine percent (9%)
of his/her retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost
of Tier A retirement benefits.

2.  For the period September 1, 2013, through and including December 31,
2014, each employee in Tier A will pay four and one half (4.5%) of his/her
retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of Tier A
retirement benefits.

3.  For the period January 1, 2015, through and including June 30, 2015, each
employee in Tier A will pay two and a quarter percent (2.25%) of his/her
retirement base to pay part of the employer’s contribution for the cost of the Tier
A retirement benefit.

4.  Effective June 30, 2015, these payments will cease 

The payments set forth above will be made on a pre-tax basis in accordance
with applicable tax laws.  “Retirement base” means base salary and other
payments, such as salary differential and flat rate pay allowances used to
compute retirement deductions.

53.11 Safety PEPRA Tier. For employees who become safety New Members of the
Contra Costa County Employees Retirement Association (CCCERA) on or after
January 1, 2013, retirement benefits are governed by the California Public
Employees Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) (Chapters 296 and 297,
Statutes of 2012) and Safety Option Plan Two (2.7% @ 57) applies.  For
employees hired by the County on or after January 1, 2014, who under PEPRA,
become safety New Members of CCCERA, the cost of living adjustment to the
retirement allowance will not exceed two percent (2%) per year and will be
banked.  To the extent that this resolution conflicts with any provision of PEPRA,
PEPRA governs.

 
53.12 Eligible Classes.

  This section applies only to the following classifications:

Assistant Chief Public Service Officer (64BA)
Director of Hazardous Materials Program-Exempt (VLD2)

54. Treasurer-Tax Collector Professional Development Differential:   Treasurer-Tax
Collector employees in one of the classifications listed below are eligible to receive

44 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



a monthly differential equivalent to five percent (5%) of base salary for possession
of at least one (1) of the following specified professional certifications and for
completion of required continuing education requirements associated with the
individual certifications.  Verification of eligibility for any such differential must be
provided to the Auditor in writing by the Treasurer-Tax Collector or his/her designee. 
Under this program, no employee may receive more than a single five percent (5%)
differential at one time, regardless of the number of certificates held by that
employee.

This section applies only to the following classifications:

Treasurer-Tax Collector (S5A1)
Treasurer’s Investment Officer-Exempt (S5S3)
Assistant County Treasurer-Exempt (S5B4)
Assistant County Tax Collector (S5DF)
Chief Deputy Treasurer Tax Collector-Exempt (S5B2)

Qualifying Certificates:

Certified Cash Manager (C.C.M.)
Certified Financial Planner (C.F.P.)
Certified Government Planner (C.G.F.P.)
Certified Treasury Manager (C.T.M.)
Chartered Financial Analyst (C.F.A.)

55. Executive Assistant to the County Administrator Differential.  At the discretion of the
County Administrator, an employee in the classification of Executive Assistant II to the
County Administrator- Exempt (J3H2) is eligible to receive a monthly differential
equivalent to five percent (5%) of base salary while the employee is performing work on 
special project assignments.  Verification of eligibility for any such differential must be
provided to the Auditor in writing by the County Administrator or his/her designee. 

 

          [EXHIBITS ATTACHED]

45 of 45

RESOLUTION NO. 2015/3



Exhibit A

Job Code Classification
AP7A ADMINISTRATIVE AIDE-DEEP CLASS
AP73 ADMINISTRATIVE AIDE-PROJECT
AP9A ADMINISTRATIVE INTERN-DEEP CLS
APDB ADMINISTRATIVE SVCS OFFICER
XQD2 AGING/ADULT SVCS DIRECTOR-EX
VHD1 ALCOHOL/OTHER DRUG SVCS DIR-EX
VAB1 AMBULATORY CARE CHF EXC OFC-EX
BKS1 ANIMAL CLINIC VETERINARIAN-EX
JJNG ASSESSOR'S CLERICAL STAFF MNGR
VCS1 ASSIST TO HLTH SVC DIR - EX
9MD3 ASSISTANT DIRECTOR-PROJECT
BAB1 ASST AGR COM/WTS/MEAS-EXEMPT
64BA ASST CHIEF PUBLIC SVC OFFICER
7AB1 ASST CO PROB OFF - EXEMPT
ADB4 ASST COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
DAB1 ASST COUNTY ASSESSOR-EXE
SAB1 ASST COUNTY AUDITOR CONTROLLE
2ED1 ASST COUNTY COUNSEL-EXEMPT
3AB1 ASST COUNTY LIBRARIAN-EXEMPT
ALB3 ASST COUNTY RECORDER-EXEMPT
ALB1 ASST COUNTY REGISTRAR-EXEMPT
S5DF ASST COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR
S5B4 ASST COUNTY TREASURER-EXEMPT
VCB1 ASST DIR OF HEALTH SVCS
AGB1 ASST DIR OF HUMAN RESOURCES-EX
XAD7 ASST DIR-POLICY & PLANNING-EX
2KD3 ASST DISTRICT ATTORNEY-EXEMPT
LBD4 ASST HS IT DIR-APP DEV-EX
LBD2 ASST HS IT DIR-CUSTOMER SUPP-E
LBD7 ASST HS IT DIR-INFO SECURITY-E
LBD3 ASST HS IT DIR-INFRASTRUCT-EX
LBD1 ASST HS IT DIR-PROJECT MGMT-EX
25D2 ASST PUBLIC DEFENDER-EXEMPT
AJDP ASST RISK MANAGER
6XB2 ASST SHERIFF-EXEMPT
ADBA ASST TO THE COUNTY ADMIN
29TA ATTORNEY ADVANCE-CHLD SPPT SVC
29VA ATTORNEY BASIC-CHILD SPPT SVCS
29WA ATTORNEY ENTRY-CHILD SPPT SVCS
J995 BD OF SUPVR ASST-CHIEF ASST
J992 BD OF SUPVR ASST-GEN OFFICE
J993 BD OF SUPVR ASST-GEN SECRETARY
J994 BD OF SUPVR ASST-SPECIALIST
ADT2 CAPITAL FACILITIES ANALYST-PRJ
VPD4 CCHP MEDICAL DIRECTOR-EXEMPT

Resolution No. 20015/3 Page 1 of 5



Exhibit A

Job Code Classification
VCB2 CCRMC CHIEF EXEC OFC - EXEMPT
5ABD CHF, ANEX AND ECON STM PROG
SAGC CHIEF ACCOUNTANT
JJDA CHIEF ASSISTANT CLERK-BOS
2ED2 CHIEF ASST COUNTY COUNSEL
SMBA CHIEF ASST DIRECTOR/DCSS
2KD2 CHIEF ASST DISTRICT ATTORNEY-E
25D1 CHIEF ASST PUBLIC DEFENDER
SFDB CHIEF AUDITOR
7ADC CHIEF DEP PROBATION OFFICER
AXD1 CHIEF DEP PUBLIC ADMIN-EXEMPT
S5B2 CHIEF DEP TREASURE/TAX COLL-EX
XAB1 CHIEF DEPUTY DIRECTOR-EXEMPT
NAB1 CHIEF DEPUTY PW DIRECTOR-EX
VCB3 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER-CCHP-E
6EH1 CHIEF INVESTIGATOR PD-EXEMPT
S5BC CHIEF INVESTMENT OFFICER
VPS4 CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER - EXEMPT
VWD2 CHIEF NURSING OFFICER-EXEMPT
AGD3 CHIEF OF LABOR RELATIONS - EX
VWD1 CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER-EXEMP
6XF1 CHIEF POLICE-CONTRACT AGNCY-EX
ADS2 CHIEF PUBLIC COMMUN OFFICER-EX
VAB2 CHIEF QUALITY OFFICER-EXEMPT
25DB CHIEF TRIAL DEPUTY PUBLIC DEF
9JS2 CHILD NUTRT DIV NUTRI-PROJECT
9JS3 CHILD NUTRT FOOD OPER SUPV-PRJ
9CDA CHILD SPPRT SVCS MANAGER
XAD5 CHILDREN AND FAMILY SVCS DIR-E
9MH1 CHILDREN SVCS MGR-PROJECT
2ETG CIVIL LITIG ATTY-ADVANCED
2ETE CIVIL LITIG ATTY-BASIC LVL
2ETF CIVIL LITIG ATTY-STANDARD
6XD1 COMMANDER-EXEMPT
CCD1 COMMUNITY SVCS DIRECTOR-EXEMPT
CCHA COMMUNITY SVCS PERSONNEL ADMIN
9J71 COMMUNITY SVCS PERSONNEL TECH
9MS7 COMPREHENSIVE SVCS ASST MGR-PR
9MS3 COMPREHENSIVE SVCS MAN -PRJ
NAF1 COUNTY SURVEYOR-EXEMPT
CJH3 CS MENTAL HLTH CLIN SUPV-PROJ
APDD DA CHIEF OF ADMINISTRATIVE SVC
6KD1 DA CHIEF OF INSPECTORS-EXEMPT
6KDC DA DIR OF FORENSIC & TECH SVCS
6KNB DA LIEUTENANT OF INSPECTORS

Resolution No. 20015/3 Page 2 of 5



Exhibit A

Job Code Classification
JJGE DA MANAGER OF LAW OFFICES
JJHG DA OFFICE MANAGER
J3T7 DA PROGRAM ASSISTANT-EXEMPT
4AD1 DEP DIR OF CONSERV & DEV-EX
APSA DEPARTMENTAL FISCAL OFFICER
ADSH DEPTL COMM & MEDIA REL COORD
LTD2 DEPUTY CIO-GIS-EXEMPT
JJHD DEPUTY CLERK-BOARD OF SUPV
ADDG DEPUTY CO ADMINISTRATOR
ALB2 DEPUTY CO CLERK-RECORDER-EX
2ETK DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-ADVANCED
2ET3 DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-ADVANCED-EX
2ETH DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-BASIC
2ET1 DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-BASIC-EXEMPT
2ETJ DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-STANDARD
2ET2 DEPUTY CO COUNSEL-STANDARD-EX
3AFE DEPUTY CO LIBRARIAN-PUB SVCS
3AFG DEPUTY CO LIBRARIAN-SUPT SVCS
LWS1 DEPUTY DIR CHF INFO SEC OFC-EX
5AB2 DEPUTY DIR COM DEV/CURR-EX
5AH2 DEPUTY DIR COM DEV/TRANS-EX
LTD1 DEPUTY DIR/INFO TECHNOLOGY-EXE
BJD1 DEPUTY DIRECTOR ANIMAL SVC-EX
XAD8 DEPUTY DIR-WORKFORCE SVC-EX
2KWF DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-FT-FL
VCD2 DEPUTY EXECUTIVE DIR/CCHP-EX
NAD8 DEPUTY GENERAL SVCS DIRECTOR/E
NAD0 DEPUTY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR-E
6XW3 DEPUTY SHERIFF RESERVE-EXEMPT
6XWC DEPUTY SHERIFF-PER DIEM
6XW1 DEPUTY SPEC IN CO SVC AREA P-1
VRG1 DIR MKTG/MEM SVCS & PR-CCHP-EX
VQD4 DIR OF MENTAL HEALTH SVCS-EX
VAD1 DIR OF PATIENT FIN SVCS-EXEMPT
ADD5 DIR OFFICE CHILD SVCS - EX
9BD1 DIRECTOR OF AIRPORTS
VLD1 DIRECTOR OF ENV HEALTH SVCS-EX
VLD2 DIRECTOR OF HAZ MAT PROGRAM-EX
5AB1 DIRECTOR OF REDEVEL-EXEMPT
SMD1 DIRECTOR OF REVENUE COLLECTION
ADSB DIRECTOR OFFICE OF COMM/MEDIA
XASJ EHS CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
XAD6 EHS DIRECTOR OF ADMIN-EXEMPT
X762 EHS WORKFORCE DEV YOUTH WKR-PJ
XAGB EHSD PERSONNEL OFFICER

Resolution No. 20015/3 Page 3 of 5



Exhibit A

Job Code Classification
VBSC EMERGENCY MEDICAL SVS DIRECTOR
9GS1 EMERGENCY PLANNING SPEC-EXEMPT
AGD2 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS MANAGER
AGSC EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SPECIALIST
AJHA EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SUPERVISOR
AJDB EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPT OFFICER
J3V2 EXEC ASST I TO CO ADMINIS-EX
J3H2 EXEC ASST II TO CO ADMINIS-EX
J3T6 EXEC SECRETARY/ MERIT BOARD
J3T5 EXEC SECRETARY-EXEMPT
J3TJ EXECUTIVE SECRETARY-DCSS
VPS2 EXEMPT MED STF PODIATRIST
APDE FIRE DISTRICT CHIEF/ADMIN SVCS
6CW1 FORENSIC ANALYST-PROJECT
VASH HEALTH EQUITY PROGRAM MANAGER
VRGC HEALTH PLAN DIR COMP & GOV REL
VCS3 HEALTH PLAN SERVICES ASST-EX
LBB3 HEALTH SVCS IT DIRECTOR-EX
VCN2 HEALTH SVCS PERSNL OFFICER-EX
VQHA HLTH/HUMAN SVC RES & EVAL MGR
AGSE HR SYSTEMS ANALYST
AGTG HR SYSTEMS SPECIALIST
AGVF HUMAN RESOURCES CONSULTANT
AGDF HUMAN RESOURCES PROJECT MNGR
AG7B HUMAN RESOURCES TECHNICIAN
7KGA INST SUPERVISOR II
VTWB INTERIM PERMIT NURSE
ADSI LABOR RELATIONS ANALYST I
ADSJ LABOR RELATIONS ANALYST II
AGVD LABOR RELATIONS ANALYST II
AD7C LABOR RELATIONS ASSISTANT
ADD6 LABOR RELATIONS MANAGER-EXEMPT
5ASF LAND INFORMATION BUS OPS MNGR
2YWB LAW CLERK I
2YVA LAW CLERK II
2YTA LAW CLERK III
64WB LAW ENFORCE TRNG INSTR-PER DM
AJTA LEAD EXAMINATION PROCTOR
3KW4 LIBRARY AIDE-EXEMPT
3KW2 LIBRARY STUDENT ASSISTANT-EX
6KWG LIEUTENANT OF INSP-WELF FRAUD
ADVB MANAGEMENT ANALYST
ADD4 MANAGER CAP FAC/DEBT MGMT-EX
VCA2 MEDICAL DIRECTOR
VPD1 MH MEDICAL DIRECTOR-EX

Resolution No. 20015/3 Page 4 of 5



Exhibit A

Job Code Classification
V07A MICROBIOLOGIST TRAINEE
VWHD NURSING SHIFT COORD - PER DIEM
SAHM PAYROLL SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATOR
ARVA PERSONNEL SERVICES ASST II
ARTA PERSONNEL SERVICES ASST III
AGDE PERSONNEL SERVICES SUPERVISOR
AP7B PERSONNEL TECHNICIAN
ADS5 PRIN MANAGEMENT ANALYST - PROJ
ADNC PRINCIPAL L/R ANALYST
ADHB PRINCIPAL MANAGEMENT ANALYST
7BFA PROBATION DIRECTOR
7AGB PROBATION MANAGER
STD1 PROCUREMENT SVCS MANAGER-EX
ADS1 PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER
APDF PUBLIC WORKS CHIEF OF ADM SVCS
5AH4 REDEVELOPMENT PROJ MANAGER-PRJ
VPD5 RESIDENCY DIRECTOR-EXEMPT
AJD1 RISK MANAGER
AJH1 RISK MGMT TRAINING COORD-PRJ
AVS4 SBDC BUSINESS CONSULTANT-PRJ
AVD3 SBDC DIRECTOR-PROJECT
CCG1 SCHOOL READINESS PROG COOR-PRJ
J3S2 SECRETARY TO UNDERSHERIFF
NSGA SENIOR LAND SURVEYOR
ADTD SENIOR MANAGEMENT ANALYST
APDC SHERIFF'S CHF OF MGNT SVCS
J3T0 SHERIFF'S EXECUTIVE ASST-EX
ADB5 SPECIAL ASST TO THE CO ADMN-EX
ADDH SR DEPUTY COUNTY ADMNISTRATOR
2KD1 SR DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-EX
2ED3 SR FINANCIAL COUNSELOR-EXEMPT
AGTF SR HUMAN RESOURCES CONSULTANT
NK7A STUDENT AIDE-CIVIL ENGINEER
999E STUDENT WORKER-DEEP CLASS
29HA SUPERVISING ATTORNEY-DCSS
S5S3 TREASURER'S INVEST OFFICER-EX
6XB4 UNDERSHERIFF-EXEMPT
EBW1 VOTER EDU & ENGMT ASST - PRJ
EBV1 VOTER EDU & ENGMT SPEC-PRJ
9KN3 WEATHERIZATION/HM REPAIR SUPV
XAD4 WORKFORCE INV BD EXC DIR-EX
XAD3 WORKFORCE SVCS DIRECTOR-EXEMPT

Resolution No. 20015/3 Page 5 of 5



Exhibit B

Job Code Classification
9JS2 CHILD NUTRT DIV NUTRI-PROJECT
2KWF DEPUTY DISTRICT ATTORNEY-FT-FL
6XW3 DEPUTY SHERIFF RESERVE-EXEMPT
6XWC DEPUTY SHERIFF-PER DIEM
6XW1 DEPUTY SPEC IN CO SVC AREA P-1
X762 EHS WORKFORCE DEV YOUTH WKR-PJ
VPS2 EXEMPT MED STF PODIATRIST
6CW1 FORENSIC ANALYST-PROJECT
VTWB INTERIM PERMIT NURSE
2YWB LAW CLERK I
2YVA LAW CLERK II
2YTA LAW CLERK III
64WB LAW ENFORCE TRNG INSTR-PER DM
AJTA LEAD EXAMINATION PROCTOR
3KW4 LIBRARY AIDE-EXEMPT
3KW2 LIBRARY STUDENT ASSISTANT-EX
V07A MICROBIOLOGIST TRAINEE
VWHD NURSING SHIFT COORD - PER DIEM
NK7A STUDENT AIDE-CIVIL ENGINEER
999E STUDENT WORKER-DEEP CLASS
EBW1 VOTER EDU & ENGMT ASST - PRJ

Resolution No. 2015/3 Page 1 of 1



Exhibit C

Job Code Classification
BAA1 AGRICULTURAL COM-DIR WTS/MEAS
DAA1 ASSESSOR
SAA1 AUDITOR-CONTROLLER
ADA1 BD OF SUPVR MEMBER
ADB1 CHIEF ASST COUNTY ADMIN
LTA1 CHIEF INFO OFF/DIR OF INFO TEC
ALA1 CLERK RECORDER
ADA2 COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
2EA1 COUNTY COUNSEL
ADB6 COUNTY FINANCE DIRECTOR-EX
3AAA COUNTY LIBRARIAN
7AA1 COUNTY PROBATION OFFICER-EX
96A1 COUNTY VETERANS' SVCS OFFICER
2KA1 DA PUBLIC ADMININSTATOR
4AA1 DIR OF CONSERVATION & DEVLP-EX
BJA1 DIRECTOR OF ANIMAL SERVICES
SMA1 DIRECTOR OF CHILD SUPPORT SVCS
NAA2 DIRECTOR OF GENERAL SERVICES-E
VCA1 DIRECTOR OF HEALTH SERVICES
AGA2 DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RESOURCES-EX
XAA2 DIRECTOR-EHSD-EXEMPT
25A1 PUBLIC DEFENDER
NAA1 PW DIRECTOR
6XA1 SHERIFF-CORONER
S5A1 TREASURER-TAX COLLECTOR

Resolution No. 2015/3 Page 1 of 1



Exhibit D

Department Head
Job 

Code Chief Assistant Department Head
Job 

Code
Agricultural Commissioner/Director of Weights and 
Measures 

BAA1 Chief Deputy Agricultural Commissioner/Sealer of 
Weights and Measures

BAB1

Assessor DAA1 Assistant County Assessor DAB1
Director of Human Resources AGA2 Assistant Director of Human Resources AGB1
Auditor-Controller SAA1 Assistant County Auditor-Controller SAB1
Board of Supervisors Member ADA1 No Chief Assistant
Chief Information Officer/Director of Information 
Technology 

LTA1 Deputy Chief Information Officer - GIS-Exempt LTD2

Clerk Recorder ALA1 Assistant County Registrar ALB1
Assistant County Recorder ALB3
Deputy County Clerk-Recorder-Exempt ALB2

County Administrator ADA2 Chief Assistant County Administrator ADB1
County Finance Director ADB6

County Counsel 2EA1 Excluded Classification
County Librarian 3AAA Deputy County Librarian - Public Services                     3AFE

Deputy County Librarian - Support Services 3AFG
County Probation Officer 7AA1 Asst County Probation Officer 7AB1
County Veterans' Services Officer 96A1 No Chief Assistant
County Welfare Director XAA2 Aging/Adult Svcs Director XQD2

Children and Family Svcs Director XAD5
Community Svcs Director CCD1
EHS Director of Admin XAD6
Workforce Inv Bd Exec Director XAD4

Director of Animal Services BJA1 Deputy Director of Animal Services BJDF
Director of Child Support Services SMA1 Chief Assistant Director of Child Support Services SMBA
Director of Conservation and Development 4AA1 Deputy Director of Community 

Development/Transportation Planning      
5AH2

Deputy Director of Conservation and Development 4AD1
Director of Health Services VCA1 No Chief Assistant
District Attorney-Public Administrator 2KA1 Excluded Classification
Public Defender 25A1 Excluded Classification
Public Works Director NAA1 Deputy Public Works Director NAD0
Sheriff-Coroner 6XA1 Undersheriff 6XB4
Treasurer-Tax Collector S5A1 Chief Deputy Treasurer-Tax Collector S5B2

Resolution No. 2015/3 Page 1 of 1



Exhibit E

Job Code Classification
6XF1 CHIEF POLICE-CONTRACT AGNCY-EX
6XB2 ASST SHERIFF-EXEMPT
6XB4 UNDERSHERIFF-EXEMPT
6XD1 COMMANDER-EXEMPT
6XA1 SHERIFF-CORONER

Resolution No. 2015/3 Page 1 of 1



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/19 vacating a 788-linear-foot segment of excess road right of way identified as

Carquinez Scenic Drive, located southeast of the Contra Costa Brick Works Plant to the westerly end of the

previously vacated segment of the roadway in the Port Costa area, pursuant to Division 9, Part 3, Chapter 4 of the

Streets and Highways Code. Project No.: 0676-6P0040 CP #11-08.

DIRECT the Real Estate Division of the Public Works Department to record a certified copy of the Resolution in the

office of the County Recorder. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Local Road Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

In 1953, the California Highway Commission, by resolution recorded September 9, 1953 in Book 2215 Page 279,

relinquished to Contra Costa County (County) Carquinez Road (formerly State Route 14) between Crockett and

Martinez. Carquinez Road was later renamed Carquinez Scenic Drive and was maintained as a County street. The

County no longer requires the above-described segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive for County street purposes. For at

least the past five years, no 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Jessica Dillingham (925)
313-2224

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 1

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/19 vacating a portion of excess County road right of way, Port Costa area. 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

County funds have been used to maintain that segment of roadway as a County street. East Bay Regional Park

District (EBRPD) is pursuing its project to convert a segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive into a Class I multi-use

bicycle/pedestrian trail. The County has previously vacated its interest in other sections of Carquinez Scenic Drive

to enable EBRPD to complete its project. EBRPD has requested that the County vacate an approximately

788-linear-foot segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive located southeast of the Contra Costa Brick Works Plant to the

westerly end of the previously vacated segment of the roadway in the Port Costa area. EBRPD owns property on

both sides of this segment of roadway, the boundaries of which extend to the centerline of the roadway. 

Public Works Department staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution to vacate the

above-described segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive. Public Works Department staff have concluded that it can

be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that this action may have a significant adverse effect on the

environment.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The County would be liable for the above-described section of Carquinez Scenic Drive, which no longer is

required for County street purposes. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/19 

Exhibit A 



Recorded at the request of: Contra Costa County

Return To: Contra Costa County Public Works Department, Real Estate Division, Jessica Dillingham

THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:
John Gioia, District I SupervisorCandace Andersen, District II SupervisorMary N. Piepho, District III SupervisorKaren Mitchoff,

District IV SupervisorFederal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/19 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/19 to vacate a segment of excess road right of way, Port Costa Area, District V.  Project

No.:0676-6P0040 CP #11-08

WHEREAS, in 1953, the California Highway Commission, by resolution recorded September 9, 1953 in Book 2215 Page 279,

relinquished to Contra Costa County (County) Carquinez Road (formerly State Route 14) between Crockett and Martinez.

Carquinez Road was later renamed Carquinez Scenic Drive and was maintained as a County street.

WHEREAS, in 1983, the Board of Supervisors authorized the closure of a 1.7-mile section of Carquinez Scenic Drive, due to

storm damage.

WHEREAS, the East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD) is pursuing its project of converting the above-described segment of

Carquinez Scenic Drive into a Class I multi-use bicycle/pedestrian trail. The County has previously vacated segments of

Carquinez Scenic Drive to enable EBRPD to proceed with its project. EBRPD is now requesting that the County vacate an

approximate 788-linear-foot segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive, located southeast of the Contra Costa Brick Works Plant to the

westerly end of the previously vacated segment of roadway.

WHEREAS, the County no longer requires the above-described segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive for County street purposes.

For at least the past five years, no County funds have been used to maintain that segment of roadway as a County street.

WHEREAS, Public Works Department staff have concluded that it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that

vacating the above-described segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive may have a significant adverse effect on the environment, CP #

11-08.

WHEREAS, there are no known public facilities within the above-described segment of roadway to be vacated.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors, that:   

1. The segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive that is described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and depicted in

Exhibit B, attached hereto and incorporated herein, is hereby VACATED, pursuant to Division 9, Part 3, Chapter 4 of the Streets

and Highways Code. 

  

2. The Board DIRECTS the Public Works Director, or designee, to cause a certified copy of this resolution to be recorded in the

office of the County Clerk-Recorder.  On and after the date this resolution is recorded, the above-described segment of

Carquinez Scenic Drive is not a County street. 



Carquinez Scenic Drive is not a County street. 

  

3. The Board FINDS that vacating the above-described segment of Carquinez Scenic Drive does not have a significant effect on

the environment, and is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, Article

5, Section 15061, subd. (b)(3). 

 

Contact:  Jessica Dillingham (925) 313-2224

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and
entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:









RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/20 to approve and authorize the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a

2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation

Commission in the total amount of $150,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements

Project – Central County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The project is funded by 34% TDA Grant Funds and 66% Local Road Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this project is to construct pedestrian crosswalk enhancements to improve pedestrian safety and

increase driver awareness at existing crosswalks located at four schools in Central Contra Costa County. Crosswalks

were chosen due to their close proximity to schools and site locations where the existing crossings are uncontrolled.

Without a stop sign or traffic signal, drivers tend to travel at higher speeds at uncontrolled crosswalks and are a

safety concern near schools where anticipated pedestrian traffic is higher and drivers may have difficulty seeing

students. Improvements include installation of Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFBs) and Americans 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925)
313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 2

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements

Project – Central County



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

with Disabilities Act (ADA) curb ramps, where feasible. Four school locations were selected:

1. Shore Acres Elementary School located on Marina Road in Bay Point;

2. Riverview Middle School located on Pacifica Avenue in Bay Point;

3. Parkmead Elementary School located on Magnolia Way in unincorporated Walnut Creek; and,

4. Northgate High School located on Castle Rock Road in unincorporated Walnut Creek.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Delay in approving the project may jeopardize a potential funding source for the project and ultimately delay

improvements.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/20 

Attachment A 

Attachment B 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/20

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING and AUTHORIZING the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the total amount of

$150,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project – Central County.

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq.,

authorizes the submission of claims to a regional transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the

benefit and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional transportation planning agency for the San

Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC Resolution No. 4108, entitled “Transportation Development Act, Article 3, Pedestrian

and Bicycle Projects,” which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests for the allocation of “TDA Article 3”

funding; and

WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funding be submitted as part of

a single, countywide coordinated claim from each county in the San Francisco Bay region; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA desires to submit a request to MTC for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds

to support the projects described in Attachment B to this resolution, which are for the exclusive benefit and/or use of pedestrians

and/or bicyclists;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA declares it is eligible to request an

allocation of TDA Article 3 funds pursuant to Section 99234 of the Public Utilities Code, and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might adversely affect the project or projects described in

Attachment B to this resolution, or that might impair the ability of the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA to carry out the project;

and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the project has been reviewed by the Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) of COUNTY OF CONTRA

COSTA; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA attests to the accuracy of and approves the statements in Attachment A

to this resolution; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution and its attachments, and any accompanying supporting materials shall be

forwarded to the congestion management agency, countywide transportation planning agency, or county association of

governments, as the case may be, of CONTRA COSTA COUNTY for submission to MTC as part of the countywide coordinated

TDA Article 3 claim.

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925) 313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

5



 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:



 
Resolution No. 2015/20 

Attachment A 

Re:   Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

Transportation Development Act Article 3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funding 

Findings 
Page 1 of 1 

1. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA is not legally impeded from submitting a request to the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation of Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Article 3 funds, nor is the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA legally impeded from undertaking the 

project(s) described in “Attachment B” of this resolution.   

2. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the 

project(s) described in Attachment B. 

3. A review of the project(s) described in Attachment B has resulted in the consideration of all pertinent 

matters, including those related to environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances, attendant to the 

successful completion of the project(s).   

4. Issues attendant to securing environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances for the projects 

described in Attachment B have been reviewed and will be concluded in a manner and on a schedule that 

will not jeopardize the deadline for the use of the TDA funds being requested. 

5. That the project(s) described in Attachment B comply with the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq.).   

6. That as portrayed in the budgetary description(s) of the project(s) in Attachment B, the sources of funding 

other than TDA are assured and adequate for completion of the project(s).   

7. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are for capital construction and/or design engineering; 

and/or for the maintenance of a Class I bikeway which is closed to motorized traffic; and/or for the 

purposes of restriping Class II bicycle lanes; and/or for the development or support of a bicycle safety 

education program; and/or for the development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities 

plan, and an allocation of TDA Article 3 funding for such a plan has not been received by the COUNTY 

OF CONTRA COSTA within the prior five fiscal years.   

8. That the project(s) described in Attachment B is included in a locally approved bicycle, pedestrian, transit, 

multimodal, complete streets, or other relevant plan.  

9. That any project described in Attachment B that is a bikeway meets the mandatory minimum safety design 

criteria published in Chapter 1000 of the California Highway Design Manual.  

10. That the project(s) described in Attachment B will be completed before the funds expire. 

11. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA agrees to maintain, or provide for the maintenance of, the 

project(s) and facilities described in Attachment B, for the benefit of and use by the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
October 2014 TDA Article 3 Model Resolution for Claimants     Page 5 

 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/21 to approve and authorize the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a

2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation

Commission in the total amount of $100,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements

Project – East County. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The project is funded by 37% TDA Funds and 63% Local Road Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this project is to construct pedestrian crosswalk enhancements to improve pedestrian safety and

increase driver awareness at existing crosswalks located at three schools in East County. Crosswalks were chosen

due to their close proximity to schools and site locations where the existing crossings are uncontrolled. Without a

stop sign or traffic signal, drivers tend to travel at higher speeds at uncontrolled crosswalks and are a safety concern

near schools where anticipated pedestrian traffic is higher and drivers may have difficulty seeing students.

Improvements include installation of Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFBs) and Americans with Disabilities Act

(ADA) curb ramps, where feasible. Three school locations were selected:

1. Knightsen Elementary School located on Delta Road in Knightsen.

2. Timber Point Elementary School located on Newberry 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925)
313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 3

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements

Project – East County



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Lane in Discovery Bay.

3. Discovery Bay Elementary School located on Willow Lake Road in Discovery Bay.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Delay in approving the project may jeopardize a potential funding source for the project and ultimately delay

improvements.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/21 

Attachment A 

Attachment B 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/21

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING and AUTHORIZING the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the total amount of

$100,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project – East County.

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq.,

authorizes the submission of claims to a regional transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the

benefit and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional transportation planning agency for the San

Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC Resolution No. 4108, entitled “Transportation Development Act, Article 3, Pedestrian

and Bicycle Projects,” which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests for the allocation of “TDA Article 3”

funding; and

WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funding be submitted as part of

a single, countywide coordinated claim from each county in the San Francisco Bay region; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA desires to submit a request to MTC for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds

to support the projects described in Attachment B to this resolution, which are for the exclusive benefit and/or use of pedestrians

and/or bicyclists;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA declares it is eligible to request an

allocation of TDA Article 3 funds pursuant to Section 99234 of the Public Utilities Code, and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might adversely affect the project or projects described in

Attachment B to this resolution, or that might impair the ability of the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA to carry out the project;

and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the project has been reviewed by the Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) of COUNTY OF CONTRA

COSTA; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA attests to the accuracy of and approves the statements in Attachment A

to this resolution; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution and its attachments, and any accompanying supporting materials shall be

forwarded to the congestion management agency, countywide transportation planning agency, or county association of

governments, as the case may be, of CONTRA COSTA COUNTY for submission to MTC as part of the countywide coordinated

TDA Article 3 claim.

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925) 313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

5



 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:



 
Resolution No. 2015/21 

Attachment A 

Re:   Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

Transportation Development Act Article 3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funding 

Findings 
Page 1 of 1 

1. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA is not legally impeded from submitting a request to the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation of Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Article 3 funds, nor is the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA legally impeded from undertaking the 

project(s) described in “Attachment B” of this resolution.   

2. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the 

project(s) described in Attachment B. 

3. A review of the project(s) described in Attachment B has resulted in the consideration of all pertinent 

matters, including those related to environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances, attendant to the 

successful completion of the project(s).   

4. Issues attendant to securing environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances for the projects 

described in Attachment B have been reviewed and will be concluded in a manner and on a schedule that 

will not jeopardize the deadline for the use of the TDA funds being requested. 

5. That the project(s) described in Attachment B comply with the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq.).   

6. That as portrayed in the budgetary description(s) of the project(s) in Attachment B, the sources of funding 

other than TDA are assured and adequate for completion of the project(s).   

7. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are for capital construction and/or design engineering; 

and/or for the maintenance of a Class I bikeway which is closed to motorized traffic; and/or for the 

purposes of restriping Class II bicycle lanes; and/or for the development or support of a bicycle safety 

education program; and/or for the development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities 

plan, and an allocation of TDA Article 3 funding for such a plan has not been received by the COUNTY 

OF CONTRA COSTA within the prior five fiscal years.   

8. That the project(s) described in Attachment B is included in a locally approved bicycle, pedestrian, transit, 

multimodal, complete streets, or other relevant plan.  

9. That any project described in Attachment B that is a bikeway meets the mandatory minimum safety design 

criteria published in Chapter 1000 of the California Highway Design Manual.  

10. That the project(s) described in Attachment B will be completed before the funds expire. 

11. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA agrees to maintain, or provide for the maintenance of, the 

project(s) and facilities described in Attachment B, for the benefit of and use by the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
October 2014 TDA Article 3 Model Resolution for Claimants     Page 5 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/22 to approve and authorize the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a

2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation

Commission in the total amount of $150,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pomona Street Pedestrian Safety

Improvement Project. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The project is funded by 43% TDA Grant Funds and 57% Local Road Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The purpose of this project is to improve pedestrian safety along Pomona Street in Crockett by improving several

existing uncontrolled crosswalks in the vicinity of John Swett High School, Carquinez Middle School, and the

Crockett Community Center.

Pomona Street is one of the busiest streets in Crockett, connecting the downtown area to Interstate 80. Several recent

collisions involving pedestrians have occurred along Pomona Street and the community has requested improvements

along the roadway. The project proposes to add bulb-outs/curb extensions, along with Americans with Disabilities

Act (ADA) 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925)
313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 4

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015/2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pomona Street Pedestrian Safety

Improvement Project.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

curb ramps, and Rectangular Rapid Flash Beacons (RRFBs) at the existing crossings at the Pomona Street/3rd

Avenue and Pomona Street/Rolph Avenue intersections. It will also install ADA curb ramps and RRFBs at two

mid-block crossings – one on Rolph Avenue north of Pomona Street and one on Pomona Street east of Rolph

Avenue. The project will help increase visibility of, and safety to, students near schools as well as increase driver

awareness of pedestrians in the area.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Delay in approving the project may jeopardize a potential funding source for the project and ultimately delay

improvements.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/22 

Attachment A 

Attachment B 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

John Gioia

Candace Andersen

Mary N. Piepho

Karen Mitchoff

Federal D. Glover

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/22

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING and AUTHORIZING the Public Works Director, or designee, to submit a 2015/2016

Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the total amount of

$150,000 for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 for the Pomona Street Pedestrian Safety Improvement Project.

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Transportation Development Act (TDA), Public Utilities Code (PUC) Section 99200 et seq.,

authorizes the submission of claims to a regional transportation planning agency for the funding of projects exclusively for the

benefit and/or use of pedestrians and bicyclists; and

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), as the regional transportation planning agency for the San

Francisco Bay region, has adopted MTC Resolution No. 4108, entitled “Transportation Development Act, Article 3, Pedestrian

and Bicycle Projects,” which delineates procedures and criteria for submission of requests for the allocation of “TDA Article 3”

funding; and

WHEREAS, MTC Resolution No. 4108 requires that requests for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funding be submitted as part of

a single, countywide coordinated claim from each county in the San Francisco Bay region; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA desires to submit a request to MTC for the allocation of TDA Article 3 funds

to support the projects described in Attachment B to this resolution, which are for the exclusive benefit and/or use of pedestrians

and/or bicyclists;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA declares it is eligible to request an

allocation of TDA Article 3 funds pursuant to Section 99234 of the Public Utilities Code, and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that there is no pending or threatened litigation that might adversely affect the project or projects described in

Attachment B to this resolution, or that might impair the ability of the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA to carry out the project;

and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the project has been reviewed by the Bicycle Advisory Committee (BAC) of COUNTY OF CONTRA

COSTA; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA attests to the accuracy of and approves the statements in Attachment A

to this resolution; and furthermore, be it

RESOLVED, that a certified copy of this resolution and its attachments, and any accompanying supporting materials shall be

forwarded to the congestion management agency, countywide transportation planning agency, or county association of

governments, as the case may be, of CONTRA COSTA COUNTY for submission to MTC as part of the countywide coordinated

TDA Article 3 claim.

Contact:  Angela Villar, (925) 313-2016

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

5



 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:



 
Resolution No. 2015/22 

Attachment A 

Re:   Request to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2015/2016 

Transportation Development Act Article 3 Pedestrian/Bicycle Project Funding 

Findings 
Page 1 of 1 

1. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA is not legally impeded from submitting a request to the 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission for the allocation of Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

Article 3 funds, nor is the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA legally impeded from undertaking the 

project(s) described in “Attachment B” of this resolution.   

2. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA has committed adequate staffing resources to complete the 

project(s) described in Attachment B. 

3. A review of the project(s) described in Attachment B has resulted in the consideration of all pertinent 

matters, including those related to environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances, attendant to the 

successful completion of the project(s).   

4. Issues attendant to securing environmental and right-of-way permits and clearances for the projects 

described in Attachment B have been reviewed and will be concluded in a manner and on a schedule that 

will not jeopardize the deadline for the use of the TDA funds being requested. 

5. That the project(s) described in Attachment B comply with the requirements of the California 

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Sections 21000 et seq.).   

6. That as portrayed in the budgetary description(s) of the project(s) in Attachment B, the sources of funding 

other than TDA are assured and adequate for completion of the project(s).   

7. That the project(s) described in Attachment B are for capital construction and/or design engineering; 

and/or for the maintenance of a Class I bikeway which is closed to motorized traffic; and/or for the 

purposes of restriping Class II bicycle lanes; and/or for the development or support of a bicycle safety 

education program; and/or for the development of a comprehensive bicycle and/or pedestrian facilities 

plan, and an allocation of TDA Article 3 funding for such a plan has not been received by the COUNTY 

OF CONTRA COSTA within the prior five fiscal years.   

8. That the project(s) described in Attachment B is included in a locally approved bicycle, pedestrian, transit, 

multimodal, complete streets, or other relevant plan.  

9. That any project described in Attachment B that is a bikeway meets the mandatory minimum safety design 

criteria published in Chapter 1000 of the California Highway Design Manual.  

10. That the project(s) described in Attachment B will be completed before the funds expire. 

11. That the COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA agrees to maintain, or provide for the maintenance of, the 

project(s) and facilities described in Attachment B, for the benefit of and use by the public. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
October 2014 TDA Article 3 Model Resolution for Claimants     Page 5 





RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ACCEPT the 2014 status report from the Public Works Director on street light maintenance by Pacific Gas and

Electric Company (PG&E) in coordination with the Cities and the County, as recommended by the Transportation,

Water and Infrastructure Committee (TWIC), Countywide. (All Districts) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% County Service Area L-100 Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

Each year, the TWIC reviews and monitors the implementation of the Letter of Understanding with PG&E for the

maintenance of PG&E street lights in Contra Costa County. The Letter of Understanding (LOU), dated February

2008, from PG&E to the County, states the commitment of PG&E for open communication and responsive service

levels and actions in resolving issues related to street light performance. Communication channels have continued to

remain open by conducting regular discussions at street light coordination meetings with the County, its constituent

Cities and Towns and regularly reporting to TWIC.

On December 4, 2014, Public Works staff submitted and discussed the attached annual report on PG&E Coordination

with Cities and County for Street Light Maintenance (Attachment). The Committee requested that this report be

forwarded to the Board of Supervisors.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Susan Cohen, Special

Districts, 925-313-2160

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: W. Lai, Division Manager, Engineering Services,   B. Balbas, Deputy Public Works Director,   T. Guarino, PG&E,   J. Duffy, Special Districts,   J.

Cunningham, Dept of Conservation Development   

C. 5

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: ACCEPT the 2014 Status Report on Street Light Maintenance by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E).



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Items reviewed at quarterly PG&E Coordination meetings in 2014 included 1) Street Light Vandalism (copper

wire theft); 2) Street Light Maintenance and Cost-saving Measures; 3) Light Emitting Diode (LED) Financing

and the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) Rate Schedules; and, the 4) Group Lamp Replacement of

Street Lights per the Letter of Understanding (LOU) with PG&E. Meetings took place at the City of Pittsburg,

City of San Ramon and Contra Costa County Public Works Department.

Recommendations approved by TWIC include the following:

1. PG&E, Cities and the County should continue to coordinate on the LED replacement projects

throughout the County.

2. PG&E, Cities and the County should continue to coordinate on and pursue changes to the LOU

to reflect the challenges of 2014 and beyond.

3. PG&E Street Light Coordination meetings should continue on a regular basis as noted in the

PG&E Letter of Understanding (LOU) dated February 22, 2008.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The Board of Supervisors would not accept the report as recommended by the Transportation, Water and

Infrastructure Committee in December 2014.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment - Report to TWIC 











RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute a Consulting Services Agreement

with A.S. Dutchover & Associates (dba Dutchover & Associates) in an amount not to exceed $250,000, to provide

on-call landscape architecture services, for the period January 1, 2015 to March 31, 2018, Countywide. (All Districts)

Project No.: Various 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Special Revenue Funds. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Public Works Department is involved in the development and review of landscape improvement projects

throughout the County. As part of this regular work, consultant services are required to augment Public Works staff

and provide special technical assistance on an on-call basis. After a solicitation process, Dutchover & Associates was

one of five firms selected to provide landscape architecture services. These services include the managing, inspecting

and overseeing of developer and County landscape projects, as well as performing the duties of a landscape designer,

landscape architect, landscape plan checker, landscape construction field inspector, grounds and facilities inspector

and/or playground safety inspector. The consultant will be involved in projects primarily for areas within the

Countywide Landscaping District (LL-2) and County Service Areas (CSAs). 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Susan Cohen, Special

Districts, 925-313-2160

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of
the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: W. Lai, Division Manager, Engineering Services,   Public Works, Finance Division,   V. Skerritt, Special Districts   

C. 6

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: APPROVE a contract with A.S. Dutchover & Associates for On-Call Landscape Architect Services, Countywide. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Without the approval of the Board of Supervisors, this Consulting Services Agreement would not be executed. This

would delay implementation of landscape improvements within various special districts in the County, and may

delay approval of right of way landscape improvements in private developments.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chief Engineer, Contra Costa County Flood Control and Water Conservation

District (FC District), or designee, to execute a contract amendment with LSA Associates, Inc., to extend the

termination date from December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2015, with no change to the payment limit of $467,000,

to continue to provide vegetation, rangeland, water quality monitoring, data analysis, and report writing services in

support of the Streambank Vegetation Management Study, Concord area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B

Funds) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This project is funded by Flood Control Zone 3B (100%). 

BACKGROUND: 

This study consists of comparing the standard herbicide application method used by the FC District to manage

vegetation growth adjacent to Flood Control maintained channels with grazing by sheep or goats to manage the

vegetation growing adjacent to the stream low-flow channel and below the top of the bank of the channel. The study

will be used to help the FC District 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Dan Jordan (925)
313-2023

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc: M. Carlson, Flood Control,   C. Sellgren, Flood Control,   D. Jordan, Flood Control,   C. Windham, Flood Control   

C. 7

  

To: Contra Costa County Flood Control District Board of Supervisors

From: Julia R. Bueren, Public Works Director/Chief Engineer

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Approve extension to a contract with LSA Associates, Inc., Concord area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B

Funds) Project No. 7520-6D8333



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

make a business decision regarding when and where to use each of these vegetation management techniques in the

future.

The study was delayed due to drier than usual conditions. This extension will allow the completion of the final report.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to approve the contract will delay the completion of the study.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

DENY claims filed by Jack Cooper, Enterprise Rent A Car, Shannon O. Murphy Sr., Tamara Salcido, and Sheet

Metal & Associates – c/o Shannon O. Murphy Sr.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

none

BACKGROUND: 

*

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Joellen Balbas
925.335.1906

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stacey M. Boyd, Deputy

cc:

C. 8

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: claims



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/12 recognizing January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month, as recommended by

Employment and Human Services Director. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

Since the Great Recession and Health Care Reform there have been unprecedented numbers of people needing

assistance and the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County have stepped up to this challenge to assist those less

advantaged and/or in need of affordable health care to get much needed services. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

Eligibility Workers will not be recognized for their work. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

None 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Earl Maciel 3-1648

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 9

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: In the Matter of Proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/12 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/12

In the Matter of Proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month

 

WHEREAS, the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County are experts in the primary benefit programs of

CalFresh, CalWORKs, Welfare-to-Work, Medi-Cal, General Assistance, Foster Care, Adoption Assistance

Program, and KinGAP; and 

WHEREAS, all programs have complex applications, and eligibility and case management processes; and 

WHEREAS, Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County interview customers to obtain critical information

by which to determine eligibility as well as assist customers to receive benefits to which they may be

entitled; and 

WHEREAS, Eligibility Workers conduct home visits to aged and severely impaired individuals to

determine Medi-Cal eligibility for In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) applicants and recipients in Contra

Costa County; and 

WHEREAS, given the Department’s “no wrong door” policy, the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa

County have evolved  and continue to evolve into multi-program workers; and 

WHEREAS, Eligibility Workers issue timely payments to caregivers and ensure access to Medi-Cal for

children in Contra Costa County; and  

WHEREAS, with Health Care Reform and the “no wrong door” service policy, the Eligibility Workers in

Contra Costa County have expanded duties due to those now eligible for services and health care coverage;

and 

WHEREAS, since the Great Recession and Health Care Reform there have been unprecedented numbers of

people needing assistance and the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County have stepped up to this

challenge to assist those less advantaged and/or in need of affordable health care.WHEREAS, since the

Great Recession and Health Care Reform there have been unprecedented numbers of people needing

assistance and the Eligibility Workers in Contra Costa County have stepped up to this challenge to assist

those less advantaged and/or in need of affordable health care.

Now, Therefore, Be it Resolved: The Board of Supervisors recognizes the Eligibility Workers of Contra Costa County for their

hard work in assisting the unprecedented number of people needing program and benefits assistance and health care coverage.  

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Laura Case 925-521-7100

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 10

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Proclaiming January, 2015 as Slavery and Human Trafficking Prevention Month in Contra Costa County



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/15 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/15

Proclaiming January, 2015 as Slavery and Human Trafficking Prevention Month in Contra Costa County 

 

WHEREAS, human trafficking is a form of modern-day slavery in which force, fraud or coercion is used to

control victims for the purpose of commercial sexual or labor exploitation;  that occurs in every industry

and affects women, children and men of all backgrounds; and 

  

WHEREAS, human trafficking is a lucrative industry and the fastest growing criminal industry in the

world; and uses violent and exploitive tactics to prey upon vulnerable members of our communities; and 

WHEREAS, the crime of human trafficking violates an individual's privacy, dignity, security and humanity

due to the systematic use of physical, emotional, sexual, psychological and economic exploitation, control

and/or abuse; and 

  

WHEREAS, the impact of human trafficking is wide-ranging, directly affecting foreign nationals as well as

domestic men, women, children, and society as a whole; victims experience trauma, violence, manipulation

and sometimes death at the hand of their traffickers; and 

  

WHEREAS, it is often the most vulnerable members of our communities who are victimized by human

trafficking, with perpetrators exploiting that vulnerability for their own needs and gains; targeting an estimated

1.2 million victims nationally each year with over half of those being forced into the sex industry and 98% of those victims being

female; and 

  

WHEREAS, the County's Zero Tolerance for Domestic Violence Initiative acknowledges that fighting

modern slavery is a shared community responsibility and therefore has worked with numerous public and

private agencies to establish the Zero Tolerance for Human Trafficking Coalition, in order to strengthen the

County’s comprehensive response to human trafficking initiated by county departments, law enforcement

agencies, and numerous community and faith-based organizations; and continuing to build its collaboration

by linking with local, regional and federal agencies; and 

  

WHEREAS, Contra Costa County is working to raise awareness so individuals will become more informed,

and take action to end human trafficking in their communities. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County does hereby proclaim January,

2015 as SLAVERY AND HUMAN TRAFFICKING PREVENTION MONTH, and urges all residents to actively participate in

the efforts to both raise awareness of and end all forms of human trafficking in our communities. Let us make it known that

slavery has no place in this county, this nation or this world. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 



I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Kate Rauch 510-231-8691

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc:

C. 11

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Accepting Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers Designation as National Leader LGBT Healthcare Equality Index

2013-2014 by the Human Rights Campaign 



ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No.

2015/14 



In the matter of: Resolution No. 2015/14

Accepting the prestigious National Leader 2013-2014 designation by the Human Rights Campaign (the largest LGBT

advocacy organization in the United States) in the Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, and Transgender (LGBT) Healthcare Equality

Index for the Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers and the Behavioral Health Division.

 

Whereas, Sylvia Mathews Burwell, U.S, Secretary of Health and Human Services, recognized The

Healthcare Equality Index (HEI) as an important tool for insuring that LGBT people are treated with

respect and quality, appropriate care in healthcare settings; and 

Whereas, in Lambda Legal’s 2010 study “When Health Care Isn’t Caring,” 73% of transgender respondents

and 29% of lesbian, gay and bisexual respondents reported that they believed they would be treated poorly

by medical staff because of their LGBT status; and 

Whereas, Contra Costa Health Services started the LGBT Pride Initiative in 2009 to create greater

inclusion, visibility and sensitivity to LGBT patients, client and staff, and the Pride Initiative has worked to

meet all of the criteria of the Leadership designation determined by the Human Rights Campaign; and 

Whereas, more same-sex families are identifying themselves to the US Census now than ever before with

Contra Costa County as 15th in the state’s 58 counties with the most same –sex couples per capita,

according to the 2010 US Census; and 

Whereas, Contra Costa Regional Medical Center and Behavioral Health Division met all Core Four criteria

to obtain the status of National Leader for LGBT patient-centered care, earning the coveted status Leader in

LGBT Healthcare Equality; and 

Whereas, only 427 medical facilities in the entire United States won the designation of Leader in LGBT

Healthcare Equality, and only two public hospitals in California have earned this designation including

Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers; and 

Whereas to achieve the HEI Leader designation Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers documented that

they had adopted and publicized foundational policies for LGBT equity and inclusion; and 

Whereas, all senior leadership and staff at Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers and BehavioralHealth

Division participated in trainings on LGBT patient-centered care; and 

Whereas, the HEI Core Four criteria also ensures compliance for the Contra Costa Regional Medical

Centers with legal, CMS and Joint Commission requirements.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Supervisors of Contra Costa County accepts the designation of Leader in LGBT

Healthcare Equality for the Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers. 

___________________

JOHN GIOIA

Chair, 

District I Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

CANDACE ANDERSEN MARY N. PIEPHO

District II Supervisor District III Supervisor

 

___________________ ___________________

KAREN MITCHOFF FEDERAL D. GLOVER

District IV Supervisor District V Supervisor

 

I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken 
and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date 
shown.

 
ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

 

David J. Twa, 

 
By: ____________________________________, Deputy



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

REAPPOINT the following individuals to the Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council to a term ending on

January 4, 2019:

Brian Amador

697 Glosgow Circle

Danville, CA 94526

Lynette Busby

1350 Treat Blvd. #180

Walnut Creek, CA 94597

Jeffrey Peckham

15 Floss Court

Walnut Creek, CA 94597

John Vallor

3410 Perada Drive

Walnut Creek, CA 94598

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Laura Case 925-521-7100

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: June McHuen, Deputy

cc:

C. 12

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Reappointments to the Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council



FISCAL IMPACT:

None

BACKGROUND:

The Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council was established to advise the Board of Supervisors on local

government services for the community, as requested by the Board; and provide input and reports to the Board,

county staff or any county hearing body on issues of concern to the community, and shall advise the Board of

Supervisors on land-use planning matters affecting the Contra Costa Centre community, such as land-use

designations, General Plan amendments, environmental-impact reports, negative declarations, rezonings, land use

permits, preliminary and final development plans, variances, etc. The Council shall also represent the community

before the County Planning Commission, the Zoning Administrator, and the County Board of Supervisors on such

land use, planning, and zoning matters. The Council may not represent the community before other public entities

and agencies. It is understood that the Board of Supervisors is the final decision-making authority with respect to

issues concerning the Contra Costa Centre community and that the Council shall serve solely in an advisory capacity

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

The seats on the Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council will be vacant.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

AUTHORIZE the County to provide the Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association's (CCCERA)

workers’ compensation coverage up to the amount of the County’s self insured retention for workers compensation

insurance at CCCERA's expense, from January 1, 2015 to no later than June 30, 2015, to allow CCCERA time to

meet State requirements for provision of workers’ compensation insurance for its employees. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The cost of the workers compensation coverage will be paid by CCCERA to the County at the same rate charged for

the first six (6) months of the current 2014-15 fiscal year. 

BACKGROUND: 

Prior to January 1, 2015, County employees working at CCCERA were employees of the county, and the County was

responsible for providing state-mandated workers compensation benefits for them. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Sharon Hymes-Offord, Risk

Manager (925) 335-1442

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the
minutes of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Stephanie L. Mello, Deputy

cc: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer/CCCERA,   Robert Campbell, Auditor-Controller,   Sharon Hymes-Offord, Risk Manager   

C. 13

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association Workers Compensation Coverage



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

> 

With the passage of State Senate Bill 673 (Chapter 244), effective January 1, 2015, staff to CCCERA are no longer

County employees, and now are employees of CCCERA. CCCERA, as the employer must provide the

state-mandated workers compensation benefits to its employees injured within the scope and course of their

employment with CCCERA. The State of California prescribes how an employer must meet its obligations to provide

workers' compensation benefits. CCCERA is taking steps to meet its obligations and will complete this process no

later than June 30, 2015. To assist CCCERA while it comes into compliance, the County would agree to provide

CCCERA's workers compensation coverage up to the amount of the County’s self-insured retention for workers

compensation, effective January 1, 2015 but not to extend beyond June 30, 2015. The cost of the workers

compensation coverage will be paid by CCCERA to the County at the same rate charged for the first six (6) months

of the current 2014-15 fiscal year.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association employees will not have workers compensation coverage

effective January 1, 2015.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 21590 to add one Sheriff's Specialist (64VE) (represented) position at

salary plan and grade VN5 1285 ($3,932-$4,779) and cancel one Sheriff’s Director of Support Services (6AFE)

(represented) vacant position #14696 in the Professional Standards – Support Services Bureau. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$55,913.00 annual savings to the Office of the Sheriff General Fund. $12,849.00 annual retirement cost savings. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Sheriff’s Director of Support Services in Professional Standards directs the activities of the Backgrounds Unit.

The Office of the Sheriff would like to realign the Unit to provide a wider range of interchangeable functions, which a

Sheriff’s Specialist would provide. The ability of the Sheriff’s Specialist to participate in functions of the Background

Investigation will enhance the capability of the Unit to complete the Backgrounds process more timely. This

classification will report to the Sergeant, who will review and guide the process, ultimately making recommendations

to the Captain. The role of the Sheriff’s Director of Support Services will be supplanted by the Sergeant and Captain

in Professional Standards. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Lori Brown (925)
335-1552

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Mary Jane Robb,   Barbara Vargen,   Lori Brown,   Tanya Williams,   James Hicks   

C. 14

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Sheriff’s Specialist position and cancel one Sheriff’s Director of Support Services position in the Support

Services Bureau.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to implement the proposed position change will impede the Office of the Sheriff’s ability to make sound

fiscal decisions while meeting the performance objectives of the Professional Standards Backgrounds Unit.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21590 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21590 

DATE  12/11/2014 
Department No./ 

Department  Office of the Sheriff Budget Unit No. 0255  Org No. 2500  Agency No. 25 

Action Requested:  Add one Sheriff’s Specialist (64VE) position  and cancel one Sheriff’s Director of Support Services (6AFE) 
position in the Professional Standards – Support Services Bureau.  

Proposed Effective Date:  1/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:        

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  ($44,869.00) Net County Cost  ($44,869.00) 

Total this FY  ($22,434.50) N.C.C. this FY  ($22,434.50) 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  $44,869.00 annual savings, $23,076.00 is retirement 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Mary Jane Robb 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Tim Ewell 12/22/2014 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  12/30/2014 
Add one Sheriff's Specialist (64VE) (represented) position at salary plan and grade VN5 1285 ($3,932-$4,779) and cancel one 
Sheriff’s Director of Support Services (6AFE) (represented) vacant position #14696 in the Professional Standards – Support 
Services Bureau. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Tanya Williams 12/30/2014 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   1/6/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Tim Ewell 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 1/6/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Position Adjustment Resolution No. 20591 to add one Lead Detention Services Worker (64TB)

(represented) position at salary plan and grade QS5 1061 ($3,089 - 3,755) and cancel one Detention Service Worker

(64VD) (represented) vacant position #3023 at salary plan and grade QS5 0913 ($2,668-$3,243) in the Office of the

Sheriff–Custody Services Bureau. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

$9,853.00 annual cost increase to the Office of the Sheriff’s General fund. Retirement costs will increase $2,244.00

annually. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Office of the Sheriff Detention Facilities currently lacks a position classification which enables the Detention

Services Unit to provide weekend supervision to the 24 hour, 7 day per week facilities. Replacing a Detention

Services Worker position with a Lead Detention Services Worker will align staffing and supervision with the

Detention Facility service model. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Lori Brown (925)
335-1552

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Mary Jane Robb,   Barbara Vargen,   Lori Brown,   Tanya Williams,   James Hicks   

C. 15

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Add one Lead Detention Services Worker position and cancel one Detention Services Worker position – Custody

Services Bureau. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Failure to implement the proposed position change will impact the Office of the Sheriff’s ability to ensure

adequate services to the 24 hour, 7 day week Detention Facilities. Lack of weekend supervisory coverage

contributes to an unsafe working environment; which impacts public safety.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

No impact.

ATTACHMENTS

P300 No. 21591 



POSITION ADJUSTMENT REQUEST  
 NO.  21591 

DATE  12/12/2014 
Department No./ 

Department  Office of the Sheriff Budget Unit No. 0300  Org No. 2590  Agency No. 25 

Action Requested:  Add one Lead Detention Services Worker (64TB) position  and cancel one Detention Services Worker 
(64VD) position - Custody Services Bureau.  

Proposed Effective Date:  1/1/2015 

Classification Questionnaire attached: Yes    No    /  Cost is within Department’s budget: Yes     No  

Total One-Time Costs (non-salary) associated with request:        

Estimated total cost adjustment (salary / benefits / one time): 

Total annual cost  $9,853.00 Net County Cost  $ 9,853.00 

Total this FY  $4,927.00 N.C.C. this FY  $4,927.00 

SOURCE OF FUNDING TO OFFSET ADJUSTMENT  $9,853.00 annual increase, $2,244.00 retirement increase 

 
Department must initiate necessary adjustment and submit to CAO. 
Use additional sheet for further explanations or comments. 
  Mary Jane Robb 
 ______________________________________ 

               (for) Department Head 
 
REVIEWED BY CAO AND RELEASED TO HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 
 Tim Ewell 12/22/2014 
       ___________________________________      ________________ 
                  Deputy County Administrator              Date 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT RECOMMENDATIONS      DATE  12/30/2014 
Add one Lead Detention Services Worker (64TB) (represented) position at salary plan and grade QS5 1061 ($3,089 - 3,755) 
and cancel one Detention Service Worker (64VD) (represented) vacant position #3023 at salary plan and grade QS5 0913 
($2,668-$3,243) in the Office of the Sheriff–Custody Services Bureau. 
 
Amend Resolution 71/17 establishing positions and resolutions allocating classes to the Basic / Exempt salary schedule. 

Effective:     Day following Board Action. 
       (Date) Tanya Williams 12/30/2014 
       ___________________________________        ________________ 

         (for) Director of Human Resources   Date 
 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION: DATE   1/6/2015 
  Approve Recommendation of Director of Human Resources 
  Disapprove Recommendation of Director of Human Resources Tim Ewell 
  Other:  ____________________________________________ ___________________________________ 

                 (for) County Administrator 
 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ACTION:             David J. Twa, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
Adjustment is APPROVED      DISAPPROVED        and County Administrator 
 
DATE        BY        
 

APPROVAL OF THIS ADJUSTMENT CONSTITUTES A PERSONNEL / SALARY RESOLUTION AMENDMENT 
 

POSITION ADJUSTMENT ACTION TO BE COMPLETED BY HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOLLOWING BOARD ACTION 

Adjust class(es) / position(s) as follows: 
 

      
 
P300 (M347) Rev 3/15/01 



REQUEST FOR PROJECT POSITIONS 
 

Department       Date 1/6/2015    No.  xxxxxx 
 
1.   Project Positions Requested: 

      
 
2.   Explain Specific Duties of Position(s) 

      
 
3.  Name / Purpose of Project and Funding Source (do not use acronyms i.e. SB40 Project or SDSS Funds) 

      
 
4.  Duration of the Project:  Start Date       End Date        
     Is funding for a specified period of time (i.e. 2 years) or on a year-to-year basis? Please explain. 

      
 
5.  Project Annual Cost 
 

a.  Salary & Benefits Costs:         b. Support Costs:        
           (services, supplies, equipment, etc.) 

 
c.  Less revenue or expenditure:        d. Net cost to General or other fund:        
 

6.  Briefly explain the consequences of not filling the project position(s) in terms of: 
a. potential future costs   d. political implications 
b. legal implications   e. organizational implications 
c. financial implications 

      
 
7.   Briefly describe the alternative approaches to delivering the services which you have considered. Indicate why these 

alternatives were not chosen. 
      

 
8.   Departments requesting new project positions must submit an updated cost benefit analysis of each project position at the 

halfway point of the project duration. This report is to be submitted to the Human Resources Department, which will 
forward the report to the Board of Supervisors. Indicate the date that your cost / benefit analysis will be submitted 
      

 
9.  How will the project position(s) be filled? 

 a. Competitive examination(s) 
 b. Existing employment list(s) Which one(s)?       
 c. Direct appointment of: 

 1. Merit System employee who will be placed on leave from current job 
 2. Non-County employee 

 
Provide a justification if filling position(s) by C1 or C2 

 
 

USE ADDITIONAL PAPER IF NECESSARY 
 
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

ADOPT Resolution No. 2015/16 to provide salary increase adjustments for the County Counsel (2EA1) and Public

Defender (25A1) classifications, effective January 1, 2015.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Upon approval, this action will result in an annual cost of approximately $73,227, including approximate pension

costs of $17,793. 

BACKGROUND: 

On July 29, 2014, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 2014/260, which provided salary increase

adjustments for elected department heads. As an elected official classification, the District Attorney-Public

Administrator was included in the salary increase adjustment, which resulted in an annual salary of $234,000. In

order to maintain internal parity between all executive attorney classifications in the County, the salaries of the

County Counsel and Public Defender classes should be increased to be consistent with the salary of the District

Attorney-Public Administrator classification.

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

Contact:  David Twa, County

Administrator (925) 335-1080

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes
of the Board of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Human Resources   

C. 16

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David Twa, County Administrator

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Resolution No. 2015/16 to Provide a Salary Increase Adjustment for County Counsel and Public Defender Classes



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this action is not approved, the County could be detrimentally impacted by the potential loss of highly trained

personnel.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.

ATTACHMENTS

Resolution No. 2015/16 



THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 

and for Special Districts, Agencies and Authorities Governed by the Board

Adopted this Resolution on 01/13/2015 by the following vote:

AYE:

NO:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

RECUSE:

Resolution No. 2015/16

In the matter of: adopting Resolution No. 2015/16 to provide salary increase adjustments for County Counsel and Public

Defender classifications.

The Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors acting in its capacity as the Governing Body of the County of Contra Costa and

all districts of which it is the ex-officio governing Board RESOLVES THAT:

Effective January 1, 2015, increase the annual base rates of the following department head attorney classifications:

County Counsel (2EA1) to a salary range with the top step equivalent to an annual amount of $234,000, and1.

Public Defender (25A1) to a salary range with the top step equivalent to an annual amount of $234,000.2.

Contact:  David Twa, County Administrator (925)

335-1080

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: , Deputy

cc: Harjit S. Nahal, Assistant Auditor-Controller,   Human Resources   



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Department director, or designee, to apply for

and accept funding from California Department of Education with a payment limit not to exceed $5,000, to fund 60

additional childcare slot for the final day of the fiscal year, June 30,2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

No County match

78% Federal / CFDA #93.596

22% State

Federal funds passed through State Department of Education 

BACKGROUND: 

The Department was notified by the California Department of Education (CDE) in August 2014 of the availability of

restoration funding for existing General Childcare and Development contractors. The Department seeks funding to

add 60 toddler slots for one day in the following county operated programs: Balboa Children's Center, Richmond;

Las Deltas Children's Center, Oakley; Contra Costa College Children's Center, San 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  J. Bhambra, (925)
681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Ressie Dayco,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 17

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: California Dept of Education General Childcare & Development restoration grant



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Pablo; Los Nogales Children's Center, Bay Point. If awarded, the services for additional slots will begin on June 30,

2015 and the additional slot will be included in a new contract beginning July 1, 2015, once the 2015-16 CDE

contract is awarded. This board order addresses the 2014-15 CDE award.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, Department will not receive restoration funds to operate the program.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Department of Education General Childcare & Development funding supports three of the community outcomes

established in the Children's Report Card: 1) "Children Ready for and Succeeding in School"; 3) "Families that are

Economically Self-sufficient"; and, 4) "Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing" by offering comprehensive

services, including high quality early childhood education, nutrition, and health services to low-income children

throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment and Human Services Director, or designee, to execute an contract

(Agreement 79131354) with the State of California Office of Systems Integration to pay County an amount not to

exceed $361,716 for County provision of a subject matter expert consultant services for the period January 1, 2015

through December 31, 2017. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

County to receive reimbursement funding not to exceed $361,716 from the State of California Office of Systems

Integration, for travel, wages, and benefits of the SME services provided to State by County. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Employment and Human Services Department requests authorization to execute a contract with the State of

California,Office of Systems Integration, to provide County subject matter expert (SME) services. In consideration

for those services provided by the County SME, the State will pay the County for salary and benefits of the SME.

The SME will perform analytical and technical services relative to the maintenance of new in-home support services

case management, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Elaine Burres, 313-1717

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc:

C. 18

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: County Provision of Subject Matter Expert Consultant Services to the State of California Office of Systems

Integration



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

information and pay-rolling systems to the State OSI.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

State would be forced to seek SME elsewhere.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

A. Approve and Authorize the Health Services Director or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Grant

Award #29-396-15 with the California Department of Public Health, to approve the certification page that certifies

the County's compliance with certain State requirements for the Tobacco Prevention Project and accept funds payable

to County in amount not to exceed $450,000 for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2017, and

B. Approve the County's Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan (CTCP) and Budget for FY 2014-2017 for

submission to the California Department of Public Health. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The total amount of allocated funds for fiscal year 2014-2017 shall not exceed a total of $450,000 from the California

Department of Public Health for the Tobacco Prevention Project, Local Lead Agency. No County match required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The State has designated Contra Costa County as "the Local Lead Agency", and Public Health Division's Prevention

Program is coordinating countywide tobacco control activities, including the facilitation and staffing of a Tobacco

Control Coalition. 

The goal of this Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan (CTCP), County #29-396-15, is to reduce secondhand smoke, 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Wendel Brunner, MD.
313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: D Morgan,   C Rucker   

C. 19

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Award #29-396-15 County’s Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan (CTCP) and Budget for FY 2014-2017 with

California Department of Public Health 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

to counter Pro-Tobacco influences and to reduce access to tobacco products in Contra Costa County. The project also

works with community organizations to adopt tobacco prevention as part of their organizational mission. The local

Tobacco Prevention Coalition established the Project priorities.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the County will not receive funds to continue reducing secondhand smoke, countering

Pro-Tobacco influences or reducing access to tobacco products in Contra Costa County.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Grant

Award #28-869 from the California Department of Public Health, Office of Health Equity, a government agency, to

pay the County an amount not to exceed $9,400, for the Public Health CalBRACE Climate Change Project, for the

period from July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this Grant Award will result in an amount not to exceed $9,400 from the California Department of Public

Health, Office of Health Equity for the CalBRACE Climate Change Project. No County funds required.

BACKGROUND: 

The CalBRACE funding will support the work of the Public Health Climate Change Working Committee by

focusing on identifying vulnerabilities to climate change in the County, and providing program linkages to leverage

existing programs to improve climate change resilience 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V Supervisor

Contact:  Wendel Brunner, M.D.
313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of

Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 20

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Award #28-869 from the California Department of Public Health, Office of Health Equity 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

for County residents. The goal of this Project will be to conduct and complete a heat vulnerability study related to

health risk and disseminate findings. 

Approval of Grant Award #28-869 will support the Public Health CalBRACE Climate Change Project through June

30, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this Award is not approved, the County’s Public Health Division will not receive funding to support the

CalBRACE Climate Change Project.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to accept, on behalf of the County, Grant Award

#29-338-19, from the Department of Health Care Services, Children Medical Services, payable to the County in an

amount not to exceed $1,576,781, for the Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP) and the Health Care

Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC), for the period from July 1, 20143 through June 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this grant award will result in $1,576,781 of funding from the California Department of Health Care

Services State and the Federal Financial Participation for the County’s Child Health and Disability Prevention

(CHDP) and the Health Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC) projects. A county match of $389,972

in County General Funds is required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The CHDP Program carries out State mandates regarding early and periodic screening, diagnosis and treatment and

case coordination of health and dental services for children on Medi-Cal or within the 200% poverty level. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Wendel Bruner, M.D.
313-6712

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: J Pigg ,   C Rucker   

C. 21

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Grant Award #29-338-19 from the Department of Health Care Services, Children Medical Services 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

These services are federally required and consistent with approved standards of medical practice. The CHDP program

is responsible for provider certifications, network and resource development, training, outreach, care coordination,

follow up and communications with medical and dental providers. 

Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing. This program works closely with community

providers, other health related agencies, Managed Care, County Departments including Employment and Human

Services, Probation, and Community Services as well as other Health Services Divisions to provide a wide variety of

health related consultation services. 

The goal of the Program is to provide access to Contra Costa County low income children for periodic wellness care,

provide further diagnosis and treatment for medical and dental problems found, assist with enrollment into a

comprehensive plan, provide case coordination, follow up, and liaison to various resources, and provide case

management and payment for care for children ages 0-21. The HCPCFC program carries out federal and state

mandates for children in foster care and the juvenile justice system. 

Approval of Grant Award #29-338-19 is necessary for the continuation of this long standing state and federal funding

that supports these ongoing Public Health Programs: Child Health and Disability Prevention (CHDP and the Health

Care Program for Children in Foster Care (HCPCFC) through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, the County will not receive funding to support the CHDP and the HCPCFC programs

to comply with State and Federal requirements.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute a contract with the State of

California, Health Benefit Exchange, to pay the County an amount not to exceed $33,754,425 for the continued

operations of the Contra Costa County Covered California Call Center for the period of February 1, 2015 through

June 30, 2017. (No County match) 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State reimbursement, via Federal funds, authorized under the Affordable Care Act. No County general purpose

revenue will be used to support the Call Center.

This contract provides for reimbursement by the State of California for all costs incurred by the County in the

operations of the Call Center. The costs over the period of the contract are:

February 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015 - $5,575,464

July 1, 2015 through June 30,2016 - $13,766,962

July 1, 2016 through June 30,2017 - $14,411,999 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Wendy Therrian,
925-313-1593

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc:

C. 22

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract for Operations of the Covered California Call Center



BACKGROUND:

The Department has successfully operated the Contra Costa County Covered California Call Center which is

otherwise known as the “7Cs” Call Center. The 7Cs Call Center is the only County-operated Covered California

Call Center in the State and has been operated by the Department under contract with the Health Benefit

Exchange (HBEX) since March 2013. 

The first launch of Covered California Call Centers was initiated by the Employment & Human Services

Department (EHSD) when the Department undertook the first “soft” launch of the 7Cs Call Center in August

2013 taking informational statewide calls from interested Covered California customers. On October 1, 2013, the

Center (one of three Covered California Call Centers in the State) began all operational activities by taking

statewide calls and in providing health care coverage plan enrollment during this initial Open Enrollment period

under the Affordable Care Act (ACA). 

The 7Cs Call Center handles an average (over a seven month period) of over 158,000 calls per month and close to

200,000 calls per month during the open enrollment period.

With the approval of the contract recommended in this Board Order, the operations of the 7Cs Call Center will

continue to the next 29 months, providing jobs to County residents, and assisting residents throughout the State in

obtaining health care coverage. Some changes contained in this contract, compared to the current contract which

expires on January 31, 2015, include the following: 

The original contract did not allow for the reimbursement of overtime costs. The new contract allows for

reimbursement of all costs associated with overtime work performed by paid staff when that overtime has

been requested by the State.

1.

The identification of other services to be provided at the Center (beyond determining eligibility) including

health care plan enrollment and certification; addressing questions/discrepancies in health care plans,

coverage, or payments, or to assist with broker assistance; and, in determining the status of either paper or

on-line applications. We perform this work already.

2.

Deleted existing references in Exhibit A pertaining to the ratio of Customer Service Agents (CSAs) to

Supervisors and the ratio of Supervisors to Managers for performance and cost purposes.

3.

Included chat and email as other means of customer communication with the 7Cs CSAs beyond phone calls.4.

Allowing for reimbursement for the time our CSAs log-on and off the CalHEERs and CRM systems.5.

Informing us in advance (when feasible) of any system or technology problems which may affect Call

Center operations, service levels, or performance.

6.

Deleted the training certification as a pre-requisite for CSAs to take calls.7.

Inclusion of a new section on Background Investigations (to be directly discussed with Covered California)

in which we are to submit the background investigations conducted on our 7Cs Call Center staff (again, this

new requirement requires a more direct discussion).

8.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

Should the Board of Supervisors decide not to approve the recommended contract, the Contra Costa County

Covered California Call Center would be shut down. The State of California would absorb the workload at their

call center locations.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The five community outcomes established in the Children’s Report Card are supported by the operations of the

7C’s call center. The five outcomes are: (1) Children Ready for and Succeeding in School; (2) Children and

Youth Healthy and Preparing for Productive Adulthood; (3) Families that are Economically Self Sufficient; (4)

Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing; and (5) Communities that are Safe and Provide a High Quality of

Life for Children and Families. By providing the opportunity for children and families to obtain and retain health

care coverage, children are more likely to achieve all five of these outcomes.

ATTACHMENTS

DRAFT Covered California Contract 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STANDARD AGREEMENT AMENDMENT 
STD. 213 A (Rev 6/03)  
 
X CHECK HERE IF ADDITIONAL PAGES ARE 

ATTACHED 
41 Pages AGREEMENT NUMBER AMENDMENT NUMBER 

 
 
 

12-E9053 A2 
REGISTRATION  NUMBER 
      

 
 

1. This Agreement is entered into between the State Agency and Contractor named below: 
 STATE AGENCY’S NAME 

 California Health Benefit Exchange 
 CONTRACTOR’S NAME 

 Contra Costa County 
2. The term of this     
 Agreement is February 1, 2013 Through June 30, 2017  
3. The maximum amount of this $33,754,425.00 
 Agreement after this 

amendment is: 
Thirty-three million seven hundred fifty-four thousand four hundred twenty-five dollars 
and no cents 

4. The parties mutually agree to this amendment as follows.  All actions noted below are by this reference made a 
part of the Agreement and incorporated herein:  

  
I. Purpose:  The purpose of this amendment is to extend the term of the contract, 

add additional funds and update and revise all exhibits.  
 

II. Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Payment Provisions, (5 Pages) - is hereby 
revised and replaced in its entirety. 
 
 

 
  

 

 

 All other terms and conditions shall remain the same. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto. 

CONTRACTOR 
CALIFORNIA 

Department of General Services 
Use Only 

CONTRACTOR’S NAME (If other than an individual, state whether a corporation, partnership, etc.) 

Contra Costa County 
 

BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING 

John Gioia, Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 ADDRESS 

40 Douglas Drive 
Martinez, CA  94553 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
AGENCY NAME 

California Health Benefit Exchange 
BY (Authorized Signature) DATE SIGNED (Do not type) 

  

PRINTED NAME AND TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING   Exempt per:GC Sec 100505 
 LaVonne Coen, Deputy Chief Operations Officer 

ADDRESS 

1601 Exposition Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95815 
  



 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 1 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 

The Scope of Work consists of the following items, and is the basis of the work identified in 
Section 3, General Statement and Purpose of Work, of the HBEX12 County Service Center 
Request for Offer (RFO): 
 
A. STATEMENT OF WORK: 

Contra Costa County (County) shall provide staff and facilities to perform work as follows: 

1. STAFFING:  

a. The County shall provide, located at the County site: 

1) A minimum of one hundred and sixty two (162) full-time equivalents 
(FTEs) Customer Service Agents (CSAs), also referred to as Call 
Center staff.  The number of permanent full-time and permanent 
intermittent CSAs will be determined based upon call center demand 
and direction from the Health Benefit Exchange (Exchange), as 
specified under this contract.    It is understood that the permanent 
intermittent CSA assignments will require reduced hours or a variance 
from a full-time schedule during non-open enrollment periods. 

2) Sufficient front-line supervisors to meet an overall operational average 
of one-to-fifteen (1:15) ratio of supervisors to (CSAs).  As the Exchange 
Service Center operations are further refined, the County shall conform 
to staffing ratios consistent with Exchange-operated facilities. 

3) Sufficient Operations management staff to provide an overall 
operational average of one-to-six (1:6) ratio of Operations Managers to 
supervisors.  As the Exchange Service Center operations are further 
refined, the County shall conform to staffing ratios consistent with 
Exchange-operated facilities. A minimum of one (1) dedicated 
Operations Manager is required to be working at all times when the call 
center is open.  

4) One (1) dedicated Exchange Call Center Manager, one (1) dedicated 
Exchange Call Center Quality Control Manager, one (1) dedicated 
Exchange Call Center Training Coordinator, and one (1) dedicated 
Exchange Call Center Quality Assurance Monitor. The Exchange Call 
Center Manager, Exchange Call Center Quality Control Manager, and 
the Exchange Call Center Training Coordinator are accountable for the 
site’s overall performance.  

5) A single, named individual designated as the Site Director or Exchange 
Call Center Manager, with dotted line accountability to the Exchange 
service center management. This role may be leveraged with other 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 2 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
County personnel; however, allocation to County Service Center shall 
be sufficient to meet Exchange needs. 

The Exchange shall not restrict County hiring conditions, processes, or any other 
matters relative to the employment of staff under this contract such as required 
attendance at County or Department trainings, meetings, and any necessary 
work activities or accommodations.  This includes the compensation of County 
Exchange staff including the granting of cost of living adjustments as part of the 
County’s collective bargaining processes 

2. QUALITY OF WORK: 

Customer Service Agents must meet minimum training and performance 
requirements as set forth by the Exchange in order to be permitted to take and 
handle customer inquiries including phone calls, emails, and web chats. 
 
a. County shall commit to a formal performance management program that 

measures key performance metrics.  Performance will be tracked by the 
Exchange and measured on the individual customer service agent, 
supervisor, manager, and site on a regular basis.  This will include Average 
Handle Time, Schedule Adherence, Quality Adherence, and Customer 
Satisfaction.  Any other key performance metrics to be measured or 
evaluated as requirements by the Exchange under this contract must be 
shared, discussed, and agreed-to by the County. 

3. TASKS AND RESPONSIBILITIES – the County shall: 

a. Conduct Customer Service Agent training using, at a minimum, the 
Exchange provided training curriculum. The Exchange agrees to provide 
updated training curriculum, modules, and materials in a timely manner to 
conduct this training.  Based on direction from the Exchange, the County 
will certify satisfactory training completion. 

b. Maintain call center hours of operation identical to the Exchange Service 
Center hours of operation in subparagraphs 1 and 2 below.   

1) Open Enrollment periods: Monday – Friday 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., and 
Saturday, 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

2) Non-Open Enrollment periods: Monday – Friday 8:00 a.m. – 6:00 p.m., 
and Saturday 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.  

3) The County is responsible for any local work rules changes required to 
conform to the Exchange Service Center hours of operation. 

4) The County may start work shifts at 7:45 a.m. to allow CSAs to be 
logged into all systems including the Automated Call Distribution (ACD) 
telephony system, the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
system, and the California Healthcare Eligibility, Enrollment and 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 3 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
Retention System (CalHEERS) to be ready to receive calls, emails, and 
chats promptly at 8:00 a.m.  The County may also allow 30 minutes 
following the end of shifts for CSAs to end their calls and complete all 
wrap-up activities including systems log-off.  

c. Utilize the Service Center desktop utilized by the Exchange Service 
Center(s.) This is currently the California Healthcare Eligibility, Enrollment, 
and Retention System (CalHEERS), but may include other systems and 
technologies as determined by the Exchange. The Exchange shall provide, 
manage, maintain and upgrade, as may be determined necessary by the 
Exchange, call center technologies required to deliver multi-channel and 
customer service tools on the desktop (e.g., CalHEERS, Customer 
Relationship Management (CRM) system, Automated Call Distribution 
(ACD) system, et al) needed to take and handle customer calls for the 
Exchange, consistent with Exchange enterprise wide standards.  The 
County will be informed in a timely manner of any system or technology 
problems which may affect Call Center operations, service levels, or 
performance.  As appropriate, this notification will include direction, 
resolution and timing, plans of action and timeframes, and any necessary 
work-arounds that may be required. 

d. Utilize CalHEERS to determine eligibility and health care plan enrollment 
and certification; and to provide other customer services as may be 
necessary including renewals, addressing questions and discrepancies in 
health care plans, coverage or payments; or to assist with broker 
assistance, and in determining the status of either paper or on-line 
applications. 

e. Adhere to the Exchange protocols and scripts (knowledgebase) for contact 
handling. 

f. Provide staff on the dedicated queues with next available agent to support 
the Exchange Service Center. When staff are logged into the dedicated 
Exchange queue, they shall work on Exchange Service Center work only. 

g. Enable the CSA to handle a call, chat, or email through the potential life 
cycle, that is, from inquiry to eligibility through to plan enrollment.  Other 
customer services such as those identified in Section 3.d above may be 
provided based on direction from the Exchange. 

h. Commit one or more liaison resources to work with the centralized 
Exchange Command Center. The centralized Exchange Command Center 
provides all workforce management forecasting, schedules and monitoring 
across all Exchange and County service center sites. 

i. Adhere to the Exchange Command Service Center workforce management 
forecast and scheduling requirements. 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 4 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
j. Work collaboratively with the Exchange Service Center staff in the 

development and refinement of training materials and curriculum, quality 
assurance programs and knowledge-based tools. This may require travel 
and travel costs for the dedicated staff for which reimbursement will be 
provided by the Exchange according to County Travel Reimbursement 
guidelines and policies. 

k. Allow access to on-site operations by Exchange Service Center staff or 
approved consultants during normal business hours of operation for 
scheduled and unscheduled visits.  To the extent possible, and to allow for 
optimum security at the Call Center, the Exchange Service Center will give 
prior notice of those Exchange Service Center staff and consultants who 
will be visiting the Center including the names, dates, times, and purposes 
of the visits.  The County reserves the right to request identification 
verification of visiting Exchange Service Center staff and consultants if the 
identity of these visitors is unknown. 

l. Provide all facilities, including furniture, cubes, office supplies, etc., to 
perform the required work, including any facilities and resources for 
training. Provide wiring from the point of presence to the workstation. Voice 
and Data technology shall be provided by the Exchange; however the 
facility must be capable of supporting such technology. 

1) The facilities shall include space for up to two (2) desktop/technology 
support staff provided by the Exchange. 

m. Designate a single person (e.g., site director) to whom all project 
communications may be addressed and who has the authority to act on all 
aspects of the contract for services. This person will be responsible for the 
overall project and will be the contact for all invoice and County staffing 
issues. 

n. Meet the Exchange Service Center timelines for continued operation of the 
Call Center.  The following key milestone dates are planned, but may 
change: 

1) HBEX contract approval by December 31, 2014. 

2) County Board of Supervisor approval of the contract on January 13, 
2015 

3) Effective start date of the contract on February 1, 2015 with an 
operational start date of February 2, 2015.  

o. The parties acknowledge that the County operates a subsidized 
employment program which provides employment, training, and supervision 
targeted to CalWORKs recipients. The goal of the subsidized employment 
program is to provide supervised work and enrichment activities leading to 
unsubsidized employment for CalWORKs clients. 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 5 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
It is agreed that CalWORKs clients may be placed at the Exchange Call 
Center in paid subsidized employment slots to provide Center support. 
CalWORKs clients placed at the Center will be covered under signed 
worksite agreements and will be subsidized by CalWORKs funds during the 
worksite placement period.  CalWORKs clients placed at the Exchange call 
center shall not displace any current represented County employees nor 
violate any provisions listed in Exhibit C, Section U. 

The Exchange shall not incur any direct costs related to the employment of 
individuals employed through the CalWORKs program. 

4. PROJECT REPRESENTATIVES: 

The representatives for this project, during the term of this Agreement, shall be: 
 

Exchange Program Representative County Representative: 
Carene Carolan  
California Health Benefit Exchange 
1601 Exposition Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
(916) 437-5020  - T 
Carene.Carolan@covered.ca.gov 

Wendy Therrian 
Contra Costa County Employment & 
Human Services Department 
40 Douglas Drive 
Martinez, CA 94553 
(925) 313-1593 - T 
(925) 313-1575 - F 
wtherria@ehsd.cccounty.us  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 



Ex
hi

bi
t B

 - 
A

tta
ch

m
en

t 1
 - 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
Li

ne
 It

em
 B

ud
ge

t

Li
ne

 It
em

 D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

In
di

re
ct

 
C

os
t p

er
 

FT
E

FT
Es

Fi
sc

al
 1

4-
15

 
A

nn
ua

l 
Es

tim
at

e

FY
 1

4-
15

 F
eb

. 
20

15
-J

un
e 

20
15

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
15

-2
01

6 
(2

%
 C

O
LA

 o
n 

O
H

, 3
%

 o
n 

S&
B

)

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r 

20
16

-2
01

7 
(2

%
 C

O
LA

 o
n 

O
H

, 3
%

 o
n 

S&
B

)

To
ta

l
C

on
tr

ac
t

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
O

ve
rh

ea
d

1
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ie

s
40

,6
00

$ 
   

   
  

16
,9

17
$ 

   
   

  
41

,4
12

$ 
   

   
  

42
,2

40
$ 

   
   

  
10

0,
56

9
$ 

   
   

2
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n/
Te

le
ph

on
e 

C
ha

rg
es

6,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
70

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
63

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
76

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
,1

01
$ 

   
   

  
3

M
in

or
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

/O
ffi

ce
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

6,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

15
,3

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,6
06

$ 
   

   
  

37
,1

56
$ 

   
   

  
4

M
in

or
 C

om
pu

te
r E

qu
ip

m
en

t
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

24
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,8
62

$ 
   

   
  

5
R

en
ts

, L
ea

se
s,

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 - 
E

qu
ip

m
en

t
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
  

6,
25

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

15
,3

00
$ 

   
   

  
15

,6
06

$ 
   

   
  

37
,1

56
$ 

   
   

  
6

R
eq

ue
st

ed
 B

ld
g 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

-O
ut

si
de

 o
f l

ea
se

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t

10
,5

00
$ 

   
   

  
4,

37
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
10

,7
10

$ 
   

   
  

10
,9

24
$ 

   
   

  
26

,0
09

$ 
   

   
  

7
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 m
ile

ag
e 

an
d 

tra
ve

l r
el

at
ed

 e
xp

en
se

s
6,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

12
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

24
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
14

,8
62

$ 
   

   
  

8
N

on
-C

o.
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

  
10

,4
17

$ 
   

   
  

25
,5

00
$ 

   
   

  
26

,0
10

$ 
   

   
  

61
,9

27
$ 

   
   

  
9

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

 C
ha

rg
e

6,
83

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

2,
84

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
97

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
11

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

16
,9

38
$ 

   
   

  
10

O
th

er
 T

el
ec

om
 C

ha
rg

es
4,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
1,

66
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

08
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

16
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

90
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
11

In
te

rd
ep

ar
tm

en
ta

l C
ha

rg
es

 - 
D

ire
ct

9,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

3,
75

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
18

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
36

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

22
,2

94
$ 

   
   

  

12
C

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
C

os
t A

llo
ca

tio
n 

A
-8

7 
(b

ill
ed

 a
nn

ua
lly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 C
al

l 
C

en
te

r F
TE

s 
on

 b
oa

rd
))

17
1,

08
8

$ 
   

   
71

,2
87

$ 
   

   
  

17
4,

51
0

$ 
   

   
17

8,
00

0
$ 

   
   

42
3,

79
7

$ 
   

   

13
Li

ab
ili

ty
 c

ha
rg

es
 fr

om
 R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t (

bi
lle

d 
an

nu
al

ly
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

ac
tu

al
 

C
al

l C
en

te
r F

TE
s 

on
 b

oa
rd

)
29

,0
80

$ 
   

   
  

12
,1

17
$ 

   
   

  
29

,6
61

$ 
   

   
  

30
,2

54
$ 

   
   

  
72

,0
32

$ 
   

   
  

14

P
ro

ra
te

d 
sh

ar
e 

of
 G

en
er

al
 A

dm
in

 S
up

po
rt 

S
ta

ff 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 o
ve

rh
ea

d 
co

st
s 

- I
nd

ire
ct

 C
os

t R
at

e 
(IC

R
) w

ill
 b

e 
bi

lle
d 

qu
ar

te
rly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ac

tu
al

 C
al

l 
C

en
te

r F
TE

s
5,

95
1

$ 
 

18
4

   
   

   
1,

09
2,

11
6

$ 
   

45
5,

04
8

$ 
   

   
1,

12
4,

87
9

$ 
   

1,
15

8,
62

5
$ 

   
2,

73
8,

55
3

$ 
   

15
B

ui
ld

in
g 

Le
as

e
40

4,
58

0
$ 

   
  

16
8,

57
5

$ 
   

  
40

4,
58

0
$ 

   
  

65
2,

26
0

$ 
   

  
1,

22
5,

41
5

$ 
  

Su
bt

ot
al

 O
ve

rh
ea

d 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

C
os

ts
 &

 In
di

re
ct

 O
ve

rh
ea

d 
St

af
fin

g
1,

84
1,

30
2

$ 
  

76
7,

20
9

$ 
   

  
1,

88
0,

95
7

$ 
  

2,
16

9,
41

3
$ 

  
4,

81
7,

58
0

$ 
  

D
ire

ct
 B

ill
ed

 S
ta

ff
16

D
ire

ct
 C

al
l C

en
te

r C
le

ric
al

 S
up

po
rt

3
   

   
   

  
20

9,
96

0
$ 

   
   

87
,4

83
$ 

   
   

  
21

6,
25

9
$ 

   
   

22
2,

74
7

$ 
   

   
52

6,
48

9
$ 

   
   

17
C

le
ric

al
 S

up
er

vi
so

r w
ith

 B
ld

g 
di

ffe
re

nt
ia

l
1

   
   

   
  

11
4,

00
7

$ 
   

   
47

,5
03

$ 
   

   
  

11
7,

42
7

$ 
   

   
12

0,
95

0
$ 

   
   

28
5,

88
0

$ 
   

   
18

S
ec

re
ta

ry
 fo

r D
iv

is
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 &

 C
al

l C
en

te
r

1
   

   
   

  
69

,9
34

$ 
   

   
  

29
,1

39
$ 

   
   

  
72

,0
32

$ 
   

   
  

74
,1

93
$ 

   
   

  
17

5,
36

4
$ 

   
   

19
Le

ad
 D

iv
is

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 (I
nc

lu
de

s 
a 

5%
 d

iff
er

en
tia

l)
1

   
   

   
  

96
,2

38
$ 

   
   

  
40

,0
99

$ 
   

   
  

99
,1

25
$ 

   
   

  
10

2,
09

9
$ 

   
   

24
1,

32
3

$ 
   

   
20

C
us

to
m

er
 S

vc
 A

ge
nt

 II
29

   
   

   
2,

14
4,

07
8

$ 
   

89
3,

36
6

$ 
   

   
2,

20
8,

40
0

$ 
   

2,
27

4,
65

2
$ 

   
5,

37
6,

41
9

$ 
   

21
C

us
to

m
er

 S
vc

 A
ge

nt
 I

70
   

   
   

4,
45

5,
29

9
$ 

   
1,

85
6,

37
5

$ 
   

4,
58

8,
95

8
$ 

   
4,

72
6,

62
7

$ 
   

11
,1

71
,9

59
$ 

 
22

C
us

to
m

er
 S

vc
 A

ge
nt

 I-
P

er
m

an
en

t I
nt

er
m

itt
en

t
63

   
   

   
2,

56
5,

84
7

$ 
   

1,
06

9,
10

3
$ 

   
2,

64
2,

82
2

$ 
   

2,
72

2,
10

7
$ 

   
6,

43
4,

03
2

$ 
   

23
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ge

nt
 S

up
er

vi
so

rs
12

   
   

   
1,

31
7,

18
3

$ 
   

54
8,

82
6

$ 
   

   
1,

35
6,

69
8

$ 
   

1,
39

7,
39

9
$ 

   
3,

30
2,

92
4

$ 
   

24
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

C
al

l C
en

te
r Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 M
on

ito
r

1
   

   
   

  
99

,9
72

$ 
   

   
  

41
,6

55
$ 

   
   

  
10

2,
97

1
$ 

   
   

10
6,

06
0

$ 
   

   
25

0,
68

6
$ 

   
   

25
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

C
al

l C
en

te
r T

ra
in

in
g 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 (S
D

S
)

1
   

   
   

  
12

5,
91

4
$ 

   
   

52
,4

64
$ 

   
   

  
12

9,
69

1
$ 

   
   

13
3,

58
2

$ 
   

   
31

5,
73

8
$ 

   
   

26
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

C
al

l C
en

te
r Q

ua
lit

y 
C

on
tro

l M
gr

 (D
iv

is
io

n 
M

gr
.)

1
   

   
   

  
15

8,
06

8
$ 

   
   

65
,8

62
$ 

   
   

  
16

2,
81

0
$ 

   
   

16
7,

69
4

$ 
   

   
39

6,
36

6
$ 

   
   

27
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

C
al

l C
en

te
r M

an
ag

er
 (D

iv
is

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

)
1

   
   

   
  

18
3,

31
1

$ 
   

   
76

,3
80

$ 
   

   
  

18
8,

81
0

$ 
   

   
19

4,
47

5
$ 

   
   

45
9,

66
5

$ 
   

   
Su

bt
ot

al
 D

ire
ct

 S
al

ar
ie

s 
&

 B
en

ef
its

11
,5

39
,8

11
$ 

4,
80

8,
25

5
$ 

  
11

,8
86

,0
05

$ 
12

,2
42

,5
85

$ 
28

,9
36

,8
45

$ 

To
ta

l C
on

tr
ac

t b
y 

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r

5,
57

5,
46

4
$ 

  
13

,7
66

,9
62

$ 
14

,4
11

,9
99

$ 
33

,7
54

,4
25

$ 

C
ov

er
ed

 C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 C

al
l C

en
te

r C
on

tr
ac

t L
in

e 
Ite

m
 B

ud
ge

t

C
O

N
TR

A
C

T

12
-E

90
53

 A
2

C
A

 H
ea

lth
 B

en
ef

it 
E

xc
ha

ng
e/

C
on

tra
 C

os
ta

 C
ou

nt
y



Exhibit B - Attachment 2 - Budget Detail & Metrics

Line Item Description
Indirect 

Cost 
per FTE

FTEs
Fiscal 14-15 

Annual 
Estimate

FY 14-15 Feb. 
2015-June 

2015

Fiscal Year 
2015-2016 

(2% COLA on 
OH, 3% on 

S&B)

Fiscal Year 
2016-2017 

(2% COLA on 
OH, 3% on 

S&B)

Total
Contract

Operating Overhead
1 Office Supplies 40,600$         16,917$         41,412$         42,240$         100,569$       
2 Communication/Telephone Charges 6,500$           2,708$           6,630$           6,763$           16,101$         
3 Minor Furniture/Office Equipment 15,000$         6,250$           15,300$         15,606$         37,156$         
4 Minor Computer Equipment 6,000$           2,500$           6,120$           6,242$           14,862$         
5 Rents, Leases, Maintenance - Equipment 15,000$         6,250$           15,300$         15,606$         37,156$         
6 Requested Bldg Maintenance-Outside of lease agreement 10,500$         4,375$           10,710$         10,924$         26,009$         
7 Employee mileage and travel related expenses 6,000$           2,500$           6,120$           6,242$           14,862$         
8 Non-Co. Professional Services 25,000$         10,417$         25,500$         26,010$         61,927$         
9 Information Security Charge 6,838$           2,849$           6,975$           7,114$           16,938$         
10 Other Telecom Charges 4,000$           1,667$           4,080$           4,162$           9,909$           
11 Interdepartmental Charges - Direct 9,000$           3,750$           9,180$           9,364$           22,294$         

12
Countywide Cost Allocation A-87 (billed annually based on 
actual Call Center FTEs on board)) 171,088$       71,287$         174,510$       178,000$       423,797$       

13
Liability charges from Risk Management (billed annually based 
on actual Call Center FTEs on board) 29,080$         12,117$         29,661$         30,254$         72,032$         

14

Prorated share of General Admin Support Staff and associated 
overhead costs - Indirect Cost Rate (ICR) will be billed 
quarterly based on actual Call Center FTEs 5,951$  184         1,092,116$    455,048$       1,124,879$    1,158,625$    2,738,553$    

Subtotal Operating Overhead 1,436,722$    598,634$       1,476,377$    1,517,153$    3,592,165$    

Direct Billed Staff
16 Direct Call Center Clerical Support 3             209,960$       87,483$         216,259$       222,747$       526,489$       
17 Clerical Supervisor with Bldg differential 1             114,007$       47,503$         117,427$       120,950$       285,880$       
18 Secretary for Division Manager & Call Center 1             69,934$         29,139$         72,032$         74,193$         175,364$       
19 Lead Division Manager (Includes a 5% differential) 1             96,238$         40,099$         99,125$         102,099$       241,323$       

Subtotal Direct Billed Staff 490,139$       204,225$       504,843$       519,988$       1,229,056$    

Customer Service & Supervisory Staff
20 Customer Svc Agent II 29           2,144,078$    893,366$       2,208,400$    2,274,652$    5,376,419$    

Customer Svc Agent II Salary 1,237,349$   515,562$      1,274,469$   1,312,704$   3,102,735$   
Customer Svc Agent II Benefits 906,729$      377,804$      933,931$      961,949$      2,273,683$   

21 Customer Svc Agent I 70           4,455,299$    1,856,375$    4,588,958$    4,726,627$    11,171,959$  
Customer Svc Agent I Salary 2,571,156$   1,071,315$   2,648,291$   2,727,739$   6,447,345$   
Customer Svc Agent I Benefits 1,884,143$   785,060$      1,940,667$   1,998,887$   4,724,614$   

22 Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent 63           2,565,847$    1,069,103$    2,642,822$    2,722,107$    6,434,032$    
Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent Salary 2,314,702$   964,459$      2,384,143$   2,455,667$   5,804,270$   
Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent Benefits 251,145$     104,644$     258,679$     266,440$     629,763$      

23 Customer Service Agent Supervisors 12           1,317,183$    548,826$       1,356,698$    1,397,399$    3,302,924$    
Customer Service Agent Supervisors Salary 760,147$      316,728$      782,951$      806,440$      1,906,119$   
Customer Service Agent Supervisors Benefits 557,036$      232,098$      573,747$      590,959$      1,396,805$   
Subtotal Customer Service & Supervisory Staff 10,482,407$  4,367,670$    10,796,879$  11,120,786$  26,285,334$  

Customer Service & Supervisory Staff
24 Exchange Call Center Quality Assurance Monitor 1             99,972$         41,655$         102,971$       106,060$       250,686$       
25 Exchange Call Center Training Coordinator (SDS) 1             125,914$       52,464$         129,691$       133,582$       315,738$       
26 Exchange Call Center Quality Control Mgr (Division Mgr.) 1             158,068$       65,862$         162,810$       167,694$       396,366$       
27 Exchange Call Center Manager (Division Manager) 1             183,311$       76,380$         188,810$       194,475$       459,665$       

Subtotal Direct Salaries & Benefits 567,265$       236,360$       584,283$       601,811$       1,422,455$    

Building Lease
15 Building Lease 404,580$      168,575$      404,580$      652,260$      1,225,415$    

Subtotal Building Lease 404,580$      168,575$      404,580$      652,260$      1,225,415$    

Total Contract by Fiscal Year 5,575,464$   13,766,962$ 14,411,999$ 33,754,425$  

Ratio's & Metrics

Operating Overhead as a percent of CSR & Supervisory Salaries 20.9% 20.9% 20.8% 20.8% 20.8%
Direct Billed Staff as a percent of CSR & Supervisory Salaries 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1% 7.1%
Overalll Overhead Allocation 28.0% 28.0% 27.9% 27.9% 27.9%
Operating Overhead 1,436,722$    598,634$       1,476,377$    1,517,153$    3,592,165$    
Direct Billed Staff 490,139$       204,225$       504,843$       519,988$       1,229,056$    
CSR & Supervisory Salaries 6,883,354$    2,868,064$    7,089,855$    7,302,550$    17,260,469$  

Benefit Rate Full Time CSRs 73.3% 73.3% 73.3% 73.3% 73.3%
Benefit Rate Part Time CSRs 10.8% 10.8% 10.8% 10.8% 10.8%

Average CSR II Monthly Salary 3,556$           3,556$           3,662$           3,772$           3,689$           
Average CSR I Monthly Salary 3,061$           3,061$           3,153$           3,247$           3,176$           
Average CSR Supervisor Monthly Salary 5,279$           5,279$           5,437$           5,600$           5,477$           
Average CSR I PI Monthly Salary 2,448$           2,448$           2,521$           2,597$           2,540$           

Average CSR II Hourly Salary 24.24$           24.24$           24.97$           25.72$           25.15$           
Average CSR I Hourly Salary 20.87$           20.87$           21.50$           22.14$           21.65$           
Average CSR Supervisor Hourly Salary 35.99$           35.99$           37.07$           38.18$           37.35$           
Average CSR I PI Hourly Salary 20.87$           20.87$           21.50$           22.15$           21.66$           

Yearly Hours Full Time 1,760             733                1,760             1,760             4,253             
Yearly Hours Part Time 1,407             586                1,407             1,407             3,400             

Average Hourly Rate for Full Time CSR's & Supervisor's 26.22$           26.22$           27.01$           27.82$           27.21$           
Average Hourly Rate for Part Time CSR's 20.88$           20.88$           21.50$           22.15$           21.66$           

Average Loaded Hourly Rate for Full Time CSR's & Supervisor's 52.77$           52.77$           54.34$           55.96$           54.74$           
Average Loaded Hourly Rate for Part Time CSR's 28.98$           28.98$           29.84$           30.73$           30.06$           

Overall Average Loaded Blended Hourly Rate 42.21$           42.21$           43.46$           44.75$           43.78$           

Full Time CSR's as a percent of CSR Total 44%

Covered California Call Center Contract Line Item Budget

CONTRACT

12-E9053 A2
CA Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County



Exhibit B - Attachment 3 - Sample Monthly Invoice Template

Line Item Description Positons FTEs
Current
Month

Charges

State Fiscal
Year-to-Date

Contract
To-Date

Operating Overhead
1 Office Supplies 3,368$           20,208$         60,625$         
2 Communication/Telephone Charges 542$              3,250$           9,750$           
3 Minor Furniture/Office Equipment 1,250$           7,500$           22,500$         
4 Minor Computer Equipment 500$              3,000$           9,000$           
5 Rents, Leases, Maintenance - Equipment 1,250$           7,500$           22,500$         
6 Requested Bldg Maintenance-Outside of lease agreement 875$              5,250$           15,750$         
7 Employee mileage and travel related expenses 500$              3,000$           9,000$           
8 Non-Co. Professional Services 2,083$           12,500$         37,500$         
9 Information Security Charge 570$              3,419$           10,257$         
10 Other Telecom Charges 333$              2,000$           6,000$           
11 Interdepartmental Charges - Direct 750$              4,500$           13,500$         

12
Countywide Cost Allocation A-87 (billed annually based on actual Call Center 
FTEs on board)) 14,257$         85,544$         256,632$       

13
Liability charges from Risk Management (billed annually based on actual Call 
Center FTEs on board) 2,423$           14,540$         43,619$         

14

Prorated share of General Admin Support Staff and associated overhead costs -
Indirect Cost Rate (ICR) will be billed quarterly based on actual Call Center 
FTEs 184         91,010$         546,058$       1,638,173$    

Subtotal Operating Overhead 119,712$      718,269$       2,154,807$   

Direct Billed Staff
16 Direct Call Center Clerical Support 3           17,497$         104,980$       314,940$       
17 Clerical Supervisor with Bldg differential 1           9,501$           57,004$         171,011$       
18 Secretary for Division Manager & Call Center 1           5,828$           34,967$         104,901$       
19 Lead Division Manager (Includes a 5% differential) 1           8,020$           48,119$         144,357$       

Subtotal Direct Billed Staff 40,845$        245,070$       735,209$      

Customer Service & Supervisory Staff
20 Customer Svc Agent II 29 29         178,673$      1,072,039$    3,216,117$   

Customer Svc Agent II Salary 103,112$       618,675$       1,856,024$    
Customer Svc Agent II Benefits 75,561$         453,365$       1,360,094$    
Customer Svc Agent II Hours 147                880$              2,640$           

21 Customer Svc Agent I 70 70         371,275$      2,227,650$    6,682,949$   
Customer Svc Agent I Salary 214,263$       1,285,578$    3,856,734$    
Customer Svc Agent I Benefits 157,012$       942,072$       2,826,215$    
Customer Svc Agent I Hours 147                880$              2,640$           

22 Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent 79 63         213,821$      1,282,924$    3,848,771$   
Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent Salary 192,892$       1,157,351$    3,472,053$    
Customer Svc Agent I-Permanent Intermittent Benefits 20,929$        125,573$       376,718$      
Customer Svc Agent I - PI Hours 117              704$              2,111$          

23 Customer Service Agent Supervisors 12         109,765$      658,592$       1,975,775$   
Customer Service Agent Supervisors Salary 63,346$         380,074$       1,140,221$    
Customer Service Agent Supervisors Benefits 46,420$         278,518$       835,554$       
Customer Svc Agent Supervisors Hours 147                880$              2,640$           

Subtotal Customer Service & Supervisory - Staff Salaries & Benefits 873,534$      5,241,204$    15,723,611$ 

Subtotal Customer Service & Supervisory - Hours 557              3,344             10,031         

Customer Service & Supervisory Staff
24 Exchange Call Center Quality Assurance Monitor 1           8,331$           49,986$         149,958$       
25 Exchange Call Center Training Coordinator (SDS) 1           10,493$         62,957$         188,871$       
26 Exchange Call Center Quality Control Mgr (Division Mgr.) 1           13,172$         79,034$         237,102$       
27 Exchange Call Center Manager (Division Manager) 1           15,276$         91,656$         274,967$       

Subtotal Direct Salaries & Benefits 47,272$        283,633$       850,898$      

Overtime - Customer Service & Supervisory Staff
Customer Service Agent OT Salary -$              -$               -$              
Customer Service Agent OT Benefits -$              -$               -$              
Subtotal OT Salaries & Benefits -$              -$               -$              

Subtotal OT Hours -               -                 -               

Building Lease
15 Building Lease 33,715$        202,290$       606,870$      

Subtotal Building Lease 33,715$        202,290$       606,870$      

Total 1,115,077$   6,690,465$    20,071,394$ 

Covered California Call Center Contract 

Month Ending: June 30, 2015
CONTRACT TO DATE

12-E9053 A2
CA Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2           Page 1 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contract Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT B 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 
 

BUDGET DETAIL AND PAYMENT PROVISIONS 
 
A.    GENERAL PAYMENT PROVISIONS: 

1. Subject to the Maximum Amount, payments to Contra Costa County for all 
services provided under the contract shall only be for costs defined in the 
Approved Line Item Budget (Attachment 1) that are actually incurred in the 
performance of the Contractor’s obligations under this contract.  Subject to future 
adjustments in wage and benefit rates, annual adjustments to which are detailed 
in the Approved Line Item Budget (Attachment 1), and subject to the Maximum 
Amount of this Contract, the California Health Benefit Exchange will pay Contra 
Costa County for all services, work, expenses or costs provided or incurred by 
the County as identified in the Approved Budget. 

Costs for Customer Service Agents (CSAs) will be billed at an hourly rate for 
actual costs for all time in a pay status.  The actual costs include indirect and 
overhead costs such as benefits, administrative overhead and nonproductive 
time such as vacation, sick leave and holidays.   

CSAs that begin their shift at 7:45 a.m. (and are physically present at the Call 
Center) in order to ensure they are logged into all systems and available to take 
calls, emails, and/or chat sessions at 8:00 a.m. shall be considered in pay status 
and logged on for purposes of payment reimbursement.  CSAs will also be 
allowed 30 minutes following the end of their shifts to end calls, complete any 
wrap-up activities and log-off of systems.  These actions will also be considered 
in pay status and logged-on activities for purposes of payment reimbursement.   

2.         Payment for Customer Service Agents, Supervisors, the Call Center Manager, 
the Call Center Quality Control Manager, the Call Center Training Coordinator, 
and the Call Center Quality Assurance Monitor shall be for the actual costs, 
including benefits. Only positions actually filled shall be reimbursed. Subject to 
Exhibit E, Section F (Force Majeure), the County is entitled to payment for CSAs 
for time not logged into the Exchange ACD queue if the County’s agents are 
prepared to log in but are unable to do so because the Exchange’s technology 
system is inoperable, through no fault of the County. 

3.         Pre-approved overtime costs shall be reimbursed at one-and-a-half times the 
hourly rate of payment for Customer Service Agents and Supervisors.    

4.        The Exchange shall reimburse the County for reasonable additional operational 
costs based on the County’s actual costs.  The County shall provide line-item 
detail and business justification for all additional operational costs not included in 
the existing budget.    
Examples of additional costs include: 

a. Hiring and recruiting efforts 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2           Page 2 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contract Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT B 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 
 

b. Facility tenant improvements and maintenance not covered by the facility 
lease 

c. Facility furnishings and ergonomic equipment  

d. Office equipment (other than service center technology that the Exchange 
is supplying), such as copiers, printers, shredders, etc. 

e. Facility required for training (if not otherwise provided by the Exchange) 

5.  The Exchange shall provide, manage, maintain and upgrade, as may be 
determined necessary by the Exchange call center technologies required to 
deliver multi-channel and customer service tools on the desktop (e.g., 
CalHEERS, Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system, Automated Call 
Distribution (ACD), et al) needed to take and handle customer calls for the 
Exchange consistent with Exchange enterprise wide standards. The Exchange 
shall bear the costs to provide and manage the technologies, but shall not 
reimburse the County for any direct or indirect costs related to the technologies 
identified in this paragraph. 

B. INVOICING AND PAYMENT 

The Maximum Amount payable under this agreement shall not exceed $33,754,425.  
Attachment 1 to Exhibit B – Budget Detail and Cost Worksheet summarizes all costs to 
be reimbursed by the Exchange. 

 
1. Shown below are the amounts that cannot be exceeded for each state fiscal 

year. 

2014/2015- (February 1, 2015 through June 30, 2015 (to be determined) 
$5,575,464 
2015/2016- $13,766,962 
2016/2017- $14,411,999 

 
2. For services satisfactorily rendered, and upon receipt and approval of the 

invoice(s), the Exchange agrees to pay the County for said services identified in 
the Approved Line Item Budget.  

 
3. The County shall submit an invoice by calendar month, 45 days following the end 

of the month, supported by County financial records to be made available for 
inspection upon request.  

 
 

 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2           Page 3 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contract Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT B 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 
 

4. Invoices shall be submitted in a format consistent with Attachment 3 to Exhibit B  
and include the Agreement Number and CFDA Code 93.525 and shall be 
submitted in triplicate not more frequently than monthly in arrears to: 

California Health Benefit Exchange 
Attn: Accounts Payable 
1601 Exposition Blvd.  

Sacramento, CA  95815 
 

 Any invoices submitted without the above-referenced information may be returned to the 
County for further re-processing. 

 
5. The State Exchange shall send payments to:  

Contra Costa County  
Department of Employment & Human Services 

Attn:  Fiscal Unit 
40 Douglas Drive 

Martinez, CA 94553 
  

C. FEDERAL FUNDING AND QUALIFIED HEALTH PLAN (QHP) ASSESSMENT    
CONTINGENCY CLAUSE 
 
1. If the receipt of federal grant funds and the collection of fees assessed from 

QHPs are collectively not sufficient to provide the funds for this program, this 
Agreement shall be of no further force and effect. In this event, the Exchange 
shall have no liability to pay any funds whatsoever to County or to furnish any 
other considerations under this Agreement and County shall not be obligated to 
perform any provisions of this Agreement, under the 90-day cancellation clause 
in Exhibit D, Section B. 

2. The Exchange has the option to invalidate the Agreement under the 90-day 
cancellation clause in Exhibit D, Section B or to amend the Agreement to reflect 
any reduction of funds 

D. PROMPT PAYMENT CLAUSE  
 

Payment will be made in accordance with, and within the time specified in, Government 
Code Chapter 4.5, commencing with Section 927.  

 
E. REVIEW 
 

The California Health Benefit Exchange reserves the right to review service levels and 
billing procedures as they impact charges against this Agreement. 

 
 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2           Page 4 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contract Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT B 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 
 

F. FINAL BILLING  

Invoices for services must be received by the Exchange within 60 days following the end 
of the contract term.  The final invoice must include the statement “Final Billing.” 

G. NONRESIDENT TAX WITHHOLDINGS 

Payments to all nonresidents may be subject to withholding.  Nonresident payees 
performing services in California or receiving rent, lease, or royalty payments from 
property (real or personal) located in California will have seven percent of their total 
payments withheld for state income taxes.  However, no withholding is required if total 
payments to the payee are $1,500 or less for the calendar year. 

H. BUDGET FLEXIBILITY  

While conforming with the Maximum Amount payable under this agreement, line items, 
as listed in Attachment 1 to Exhibit B, may be adjusted by the County by up to 10 
percent per fiscal year without prior approval by the Exchange and must be identified in 
all subsequent financial reports submitted to the Exchange.  The cumulative total of all 
line item adjustments per fiscal year allowed without prior Exchange approval cannot 
exceed $1,000,000.  Line item adjustments over 10 percent or cumulative adjustments in 
excess of $1,000,000 per fiscal year will require Exchange approval. There must be a 
business justification for any shifts made and reported to the Exchange.  Line item shifts 
may be requested by either the Exchange or the County in writing and must not increase 
or decrease the total contract amount allocated. Line item shifts in excess of the amount 
delegated to the County must be approved in writing by the Chief Financial Officers, or 
his or her designee in the month prior to the month in which it would apply. If the contract 
is formally amended, any line item shifts agreed to by the parties must be included in the 
amendment. 

I. MUTUAL FINANCIAL RECONCILIATION 

The parties mutually understand that this Call Center is operated by the County under 
contract with the Exchange and that the County is specifically prohibited from spending 
any County General Funds to support the operation of this Call Center.   

The County’s authorization to enter into this contract with the Exchange requires that the 
establishment and operations costs are equal to the amount of the reimbursement 
provided by the Exchange. The parties specifically agree that there will be at least a 
quarterly process as described in Exhibit D Section G (2) where all costs and 
reimbursements from the Exchange to the County will be reviewed and any costs under 
the contract or approved under Section H in this Exhibit (Budget Flexibility) that have not 
been previously reimbursed by the Exchange, and are not contested, will be reimbursed 
within 90 days of the completion of the process.  Furthermore, if any costs reimbursed 
by the Exchange that exceeded the County’s costs will be credited back to the Exchange 
on the next subsequent invoice.  



Agreement 12-E9053 A2           Page 5 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contract Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT B 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 
 

At the termination of this contract for any cause, the parties shall reconcile costs and 
reimbursements and settle any outstanding undisputed amounts within 90 days.  

Failure by the Exchange or County to provide such payment is a breach of this contract. 

Exhibit B Attachment 1 – Budget Detail and Cost Worksheet 
 
 

Exhibit B Attachment 2 - Budget Detail & Metrics Worksheet 
   
 

Exhibit B Attachment 3 – Sample Monthly Invoice Template 
   

 
  



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 1 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
A. APPROVAL: 

This Agreement is of no force or effect until signed by both parties.  

B. AMENDMENT: 

This Agreement may be amended by mutual consent of the parties. No alteration or 
variation of the terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed 
by the parties. No oral understanding or Agreement not incorporated in the Agreement is 
binding on any of the parties.  

C. ASSIGNMENT: 

This Agreement is not assignable by the County, either in whole or in part, without the 
consent of the Exchange in the form of a formal written amendment.  

D. AUDIT: 

County agrees that the awarding department (“the State Exchange”) and the Bureau of 
State Audits, Health and Human Services or their designated representatives, shall have 
the right to review and to copy any records and supporting documentation directly 
pertaining to the performance of this Agreement. County agrees to maintain such records 
for possible audit for a minimum of ten (10) years after final payment, unless a longer 
period of records retention is stipulated. County also reserves the right to send all 
records/documents necessary to be retained under this contract to the Exchange for their 
records retention and retrieval.  County agrees to allow the auditor(s) access to such 
records during normal business hours and to allow interviews of any employees who might 
reasonably have information related to such records. Further, County agrees to include the 
same right of the State Exchange to audit records and interview staff in any subcontract 
related to performance of this Agreement. (45 CFR Section 155.1210,GC 8546.7, PCC 
10115 et seq., CCR Title 2, Section 1896).  

E. INDEMNIFICATION: 

If a legal action or proceeding is instituted against the State, related to County’s 
performance under this Agreement, County will indemnify the State from and against the 
County’s share of liability for any damage, injury or death of or to any person or the 
property of any person, including attorneys’ fees, that a court determines is directly 
attributable to the willful misconduct or the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the 
County its officers or employees in carrying out its responsibilities under this 
Agreement.  County’s obligations under this section are subject to the limitation that, under 
no circumstance shall County have any liability to State or to any other person or entity not 
a party to this Agreement, for consequential or special damages, or for any claims, causes 
of action or damages based on loss of use, revenue, profits or business opportunities 
(collectively referred to herein as “Consequential Damages”).   

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 2 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
F.    DISPUTES: 

Disputes shall be administered in accordance with Paragraph A of Exhibit D of this 
Agreement.  During any dispute, County shall continue with the responsibilities under 
this Agreement, unless directed otherwise by the Exchange in writing.  

G. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: 

County, and the agents and employees of County, in the performance of this Agreement, 
shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees or agents of the 
Exchange except for purposes of Civil Code Section 1798.24.  

H. RECYCLING CERTIFICATION: 

The County shall certify in writing under penalty of perjury, if not exact, percentage of 
recycled content, both post-consumer waste and secondary waste as defined in the 
Public Contract Code, Sections 12200, in materials, goods, or supplies offered or 
products used in the performance of this Agreement, regardless of whether the product 
meets the required recycled product percentage as defined in the Public Contract Code, 
Section 12209. County may certify that the product contains zero recycled content. 

I. NON-DISCRIMINATION CLAUSE: 

During the performance of this Agreement, County and its subcontractors, as well as 
their agents and employees, shall not unlawfully discriminate, harass, or allow 
harassment against any employee or applicant for employment because of sex, sexual 
orientation, race, color, ancestry, religious creed, national origin, physical disability 
(including HIV and AIDS), mental disability, medical condition (including health 
impairments related to or associated with a diagnosis of cancer for which a person has 
been rehabilitated or cured), age (over 40), marital status, and use of family and medical 
care leave pursuant to state or federal law. County and subcontractors, as well as their 
agents and employees, shall ensure that the evaluation and treatment of their 
employees and applicants for employment are free from such discrimination and 
harassment. The County and subcontractors, as well as their agents and employees, 
shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government 
Code Section 12990 (a-f) et seq.) and the applicable regulations promulgated 
thereunder (Title 2, California Code of Regulations, Section 7285 et seq.). The 
applicable regulations of the Fair Employment and Housing Commission implementing 
Government Code Section 12990 (a-f), set forth in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated into this Agreement by reference 
and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. County and its subcontractors shall give 
written notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they 
have a collective bargaining or other Agreement.  

County shall include the nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all 
subcontracts to perform work under the Agreement.  

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 3 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
J. CERTIFICATION CLAUSES: 

1. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: 

County will comply with the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1990 and will provide a drug-free workplace by taking the following actions:  

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited and specifying actions to be taken against employees for 
violations.  

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:  

1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;  

2) The person’s or organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free 
workplace;  

3) Any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance 
programs; and  

4) Penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse 
violations.  

c. Every employee who works on this contract will:  

1) Receive a copy of the County’s drug-free workplace policy statement; 
and  

2) Agree to abide by the terms of the County’s statement as a condition of 
employment on the Agreement.  

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments 
under the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and County may 
be ineligible for award of any future Exchange agreements if the Exchange 
determines that any of the following has occurred: (1) the County has made false 
certification, or violated the certification by failing to carry out the requirements as 
noted above. (GC 8350 et seq.)  

  
2. DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA:  

a. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: 

County acknowledges the following provisions regarding current or former 
state employees. If County has any questions on the status of any person 
rendering services or involved with the Agreement the County shall contact 
the State immediately for clarification.  

1) Current State Employees (PCC 10410):  



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 4 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
a) No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity 

or enterprise from which the officer or employee receives 
compensation or has a financial interest and which is sponsored 
or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

b) No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as 
an independent contractor with any state agency to provide goods 
or services.  

2) Former State Employees (PCC 10411):  

a) For the two (2)-year period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract in which he or she engaged in any of the negotiations, 
transaction, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-
making process relevant to the contract while employed in any 
capacity by any state agency.  

b) For the twelve (12)-month period from the date he or she left state 
employment, no former state officer or employee may enter into a 
contract with any state agency if he or she was employed by that 
state agency in a policy-making position in the same general 
subject area as the proposed contract within the twelve (12)-
month period prior to his or her leaving state service.  

3)  If County violates any provisions of the above paragraphs, such action 
by County shall render this Agreement void. (PCC 10420).  

4) Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if 
they do not receive payment other than payment of each meeting of 
the board or commission, payment for preparatory time and payment 
for per diem. (PCC 10430 (e)).  

b. LABOR CODE/WORKERS’ COMPENSATION: 

County acknowledges the provisions of law which require every employer 
to be insured against liability for Worker’s Compensation or to undertake 
self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and County agrees to 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the 
work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700.)  

c. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: 

County certifies that it complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA) of 1990, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued 
pursuant to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.)  

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 5 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
d.     NAME CHANGE: 

County acknowledges that an amendment is required to change the 
County’s name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal 
documentation of the name change the Exchange will process the 
amendment. Payment of invoices presented with a new name cannot be 
paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

e. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA: 

1) County acknowledges that, when agreements are to be performed in 
the state by corporations, the Exchange will verify that the contractor 
is currently qualified to do business in California in order to ensure 
that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.  

2) “Doing business” is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively 
engaging in any transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary 
gain or profit. Although there are some statutory exceptions to 
taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within the state 
not be subject to the franchise tax.  

3) Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of 
California) must be in good standing in order to be qualified to do 
business in California. Agencies will determine whether a corporation 
is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary of State.  

f. RESOLUTION: 

A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the Exchange 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local 
governing body which by law has authority to enter into an agreement, 
authorizing execution of the agreement.  

g. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: 

County acknowledges that, under the State laws, the County shall not be: 
(1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated 
by the State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) 
subject to cease and desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to 
Section 13301 of the Water Code for violation of waste discharge 
requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally determined to be in 
violation or provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution.  

h.   PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD 204: 

County acknowledges that this form must be completed by all contractors 
that are not another state agency or other government entity.  

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 6 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
K. TIMELINESS: 

Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  

L. COMPENSATION:  

The consideration to be paid County, as provided herein, shall be in compensation for all 
of County's expenses incurred in the performance hereof, including travel, per diem, and 
taxes, unless otherwise expressly so provided.  

M. GOVERNING LAW:  

This Agreement shall be administered, construed, and enforced according to the laws of 
the State of California (without regard to any conflict of law provisions) to the extent such 
laws have not been preempted by applicable federal law. Any suit brought hereunder 
(including any action to compel arbitration or to enforce any award or judgment rendered 
thereby) shall be brought in the state or federal courts sitting in Sacramento, California, 
the parties hereby waiving any claim or defense that such forum is not convenient or 
proper. Each party agrees that any such court shall have in personam jurisdiction over it 
and consents to service of process in any manner authorized by California law.  

N. ANTITRUST CLAIMS:  

The County by signing this agreement hereby certifies that if these services or goods are 
obtained by means of a competitive bid, the County shall comply with the requirements 
of the Government Codes sections set out below.  

1. The Government Code Chapter on Antitrust claims contains the following 
definitions:  

a. "Public purchase" means a purchase by means of competitive bids of 
goods, services, or materials by the State or any of its political subdivisions 
or public agencies on whose behalf the Attorney General may bring an 
action pursuant to subdivision (c) of Section 16750 of the Business and 
Professions Code.  

b. "Public purchasing body" means the State or the subdivision or agency 
making a public purchase. Government Code Section 4550.  

2. In submitting a bid to a public purchasing body, the bidder offers and agrees that 
if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the purchasing body all rights, title, and 
interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton 
Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with 
Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), 
arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to 
the purchasing body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and 
become effective at the time the purchasing body tenders final payment to the 
bidder. Government Code Section 4552.  



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 7 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
3. If an awarding body or public purchasing body receives, either through judgment 

or settlement, a monetary recovery for a cause of action assigned under this 
chapter, the assignor shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for actual legal 
costs incurred and may, upon demand, recover from the public body any portion 
of the recovery, including treble damages, attributable to overcharges that were 
paid by the assignor but were not paid by the public body as part of the bid price, 
less the expenses incurred in obtaining that portion of the recovery. Government 
Code Section 4553.  

4. Upon demand in writing by the assignor, the assignee shall, within one year from 
such demand, reassign the cause of action assigned under this part if the 
assignor has been or may have been injured by the violation of law for which the 
cause of action arose and (a) the assignee has not been injured thereby, or (b) 
the assignee declines to file a court action for the cause of action. See 
Government Code Section 4554.  

O. CHILD SUPPORT COMPLIANCE ACT:  

In accordance with the Child Support Compliance Act,  

1. The County acknowledges the importance of child and family support obligations 
and shall fully comply with all applicable state and federal laws relating to child 
and family support enforcement, including, but not limited to, disclosure of 
information and compliance with earnings assignment orders, as provided in 
Chapter 8 (commencing with section 5200) of Part 5 of Division 9 of the Family 
Code; and  

2. The County, to the best of its knowledge is fully complying with the earnings 
assignment orders of all employees and is providing the names of all new 
employees to the New Hire Registry maintained by the California Employment 
Development Department. 

P. UNENFORCEABLE PROVISION: 

Should one or more provisions of this contract be held by any court to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remaining shall nevertheless remain and continue in full force and 
effect.  

Q. UNION ORGANIZING: 

By signing this Agreement, County hereby acknowledges the applicability of 
Government Code Section 16645 through Section 16649 to this Agreement and agrees 
to the following:  

1. County will not assist, promote or deter union organizing by employees 
performing work on a state service contract, including a public works contract.  

2. No state funds received under this agreement will be used to assist, promote or 
deter union organizing.  



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 8 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
3. County will not, for any business conducted under this agreement, use any state 

property to hold meetings with employees or supervisors, if the purpose of such 
meetings is to assist, promote or deter union organizing, unless the state 
property is equally available to the general public for holding meetings.  

4. If County incurs costs, or makes expenditures to assist, promote or deter union 
organizing, County will maintain records sufficient to show that no reimbursement 
from state funds has been sought for these costs, and that County shall provide 
those records to the Attorney General upon request.  

5. County will be liable to the Exchange for the amount of any funds expended in 
violation of the requirements of Government Section 16645 through Section 
16649. 

R.  DOMESTIC PARTNERS: 

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, no state agency may enter into any contract 
for the acquisition of goods or services in the amount of one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000) or more with a contractor who, in the provision of benefits, discriminates 
between employees with spouses and employees with domestic partners, or 
discriminates between employees with spouses or domestic partners of a different sex 
and employees with spouses or domestic partners of the same sex, or discriminates 
between same-sex and different-sex domestic partners of employees or between same-
sex and different-sex spouses of employees. 

S.  LEGAL SERVICES REQUIREMENTS: 

 For all contracts that provide legal services: 

1. The contractor shall agree to adhere to legal cost and billing guidelines 
designated by the state agency. 

2. The contractor shall adhere to litigation plans designated by the state agency. 
3. The contractor shall adhere to case phasing of activities designated by the state 

agency. 
4. The contractor shall submit and adhere to legal budgets as designated by the 

state agency. 
5. The contractor shall maintain legal malpractice insurance in an amount not less 

than the amount designated by the state agency. 
6. The contractor shall submit to legal bill audits and law firm audits if requested by 

the state agency. The audits may be conducted by employees or designees of 
the state agency or by any legal cost control providers retained by the state 
agency for that purpose. 
 

T.  MINIMUM PRO-BONO CERTIFICATION: 

For all contracts over $50,000 that provide legal services, the County agrees to make a 
good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of pro bono legal services during 
each year of the contract equal to the less of 30 multiplied by the number of full time 
attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the number of hours prorated on an 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 9 of 9 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT C 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full year or 10% of its contract with 
the Exchange. Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a 
State contract for legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the 
award of future contracts with the State for legal services. 

U.  PRIORITY HIRING CONSIDERATIONS FOR RECIPIENTS OF AID: 

If this Contract includes services in excess of $200,000, the County shall give priority 
consideration in filling vacancies in positions funded by the Contract to qualified 
recipients of aid under Welfare and Institutions Code Section 11200 in accordance with 
Pub. Contract Code §10353. This requirement shall not interfere with or require a 
violation of a collective bargaining agreement, a federal affirmative action obligation for 
hiring disabled veterans of the Vietnam era, or nondiscrimination compliance laws of 
California and does not require the employment of unqualified recipients of aid. 

V. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY RIGHTS   

Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is intended or shall be interpreted to create 
or confer any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever in any third party. 

W.  BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION 
  

The County shall submit to the Department of Justice the fingerprint images and related 
information of all applicants and employees for the purposes of receiving a record of 
state or federal convictions, and also information as to the existence and content of a 
record of state or federal arrests for which the Department of Justice establishes that the 
person is free on bail or his or her recognizance pending trial or appeal. The County 
shall also receive subsequent arrest notifications pursuant to section 11105.2 of the 
Penal Code. The County shall ensure that no employee or applicant of the County 
Service Center shall have access to the information systems of the Exchange or any 
protected information of the Exchange pursuant to section 1043(a) of the Government 
Code that has a disqualifying offense pursuant to Exchange rules in section 6456(e) of 
Title 10 of the California Code of Regulations. Employees or applicants with any 
offenses which indicate unfitness for performing the duties and responsibilities of the 
class or position shall not be employed in the County Service Center. 

 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2       Page 1 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT D 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
A.    DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROVISIONS 

1. This section is applicable where the County disputes an interpretation of this 
agreement made by the Exchange.  The parties shall deal in good faith and 
attempt to resolve disputes informally.  If the dispute persists, County may submit 
a Written Notice of Dispute to the Exchange Project Representative within 15 
calendar days after the date of the action causing the dispute.  The Written 
Notice of Dispute shall contain the following information:  

a. the decision or issue under dispute; 

b. the reason(s) County believes the decision or position taken by the 
Exchange is in error (if applicable, reference pertinent contract provisions); 

c. identification of all documents and substance of all oral communication 
which support County’s position; and 
 

d. the dollar amount in dispute, if applicable. 

2. Upon receipt of the Written Notice of Dispute, the Exchange Project 
Representative, within 15 calendar days after receipt of the Notice, shall issue a 
Project Representative’s Written Decision regarding the dispute.  The Project 
Representative’s Written Decision must include the following information: 

a. a reference to pertinent contract provisions, if applicable; 

b. a statement of the factual areas of agreement or disagreement; and 

c. a statement of the representative’s decision with supporting rationale 

3. No later than fifteen (15) working days following receipt of the Project 
Representative’s Written Decision, the County may send a Written Appeal of 
Project Representative’s Decision to the Exchange Executive Director.  No later 
than thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the County’s Written Appeal of 
Project Representative’s Decision, the Executive Director shall then issue a Final 
Decision of Dispute, specifying the reasons for denial.  If the Executive Director 
does not issue a Final Decision of Dispute within said thirty (30) day period, the 
appeal will be deemed denied by the Executive Director. The Executive 
Director’s Final Decision of Dispute shall be conclusive and binding regarding the 
dispute unless County commences an action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
to contest such decision within 30 days following the date of the final decision. 

4. Pending the final resolution of any dispute arising under, related to or involving 
this Agreement, the County shall diligently proceed with the performance of this 
Agreement, including the delivery of goods or providing of services in accordance 
with the Exchange’s instructions. County’s failure to diligently proceed in 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2       Page 2 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT D 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

accordance with the Exchange’s instructions shall be deemed a material breach 
of this Contract. 

B. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE   

This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party upon ninety (90) days 
written notice to the other party.  If either party terminates this Agreement without cause, 
the County shall wind down and cease its services under this Agreement as quickly and 
efficiently as possible, without performing unnecessary services or activities, and by 
minimizing negative effects on the Exchange from such winding down of services. If this 
Agreement is so terminated by either party, the Exchange shall be liable for payment in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement for services rendered in accordance with 
the requirements of this Agreement before the effective date of termination. Additionally, 
the Exchange agrees to compensate County for reasonable and necessary costs that 
were incurred by County in performance of this Agreement as a result of the Exchange’s 
termination without cause, for undepreciated or unamortized equipment and software 
licenses, early termination of leases, and other reasonable and necessary expenses 
related to performance of this Agreement, subject to the Exchange’s availability of State 
and Federal funds and receipt of supporting documentation from County. Under no 
circumstances shall the Exchange reimburse such reasonable and necessary expenses 
related to performance of this Agreement in the event the Exchange terminates this 
Agreement without cause in an amount that exceeds the cumulative of three (3) billing 
months or $4,000,000. 

C. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

The Exchange may terminate this Agreement and be relieved of any payments should 
the County fail to perform the requirements of this Agreement at the time and in the 
manner herein provided, unless otherwise agreed to by the Exchange in writing. Such 
right of termination shall be without prejudice to any other remedies available to the 
State. Before terminating for cause, the Exchange must provide County with a Written 
Notice of Breach identifying the breaches of this Agreement. If, after 30 calendar days of 
the Written Notice of Breach, County fails to cure any material breaches of this 
Agreement which are described in the Written Notice of Breach, this Agreement may be 
terminated in whole or in part, with a Notice of Termination, effective after 30 calendar 
days from the Notice of Termination.  

Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination for this Agreement, the County shall immediately 
discontinue all activities affected, unless the Notice of Termination directs otherwise, and 
the Exchange may proceed with the work in any manner deemed proper by the 
Exchange. In such event, the Exchange shall pay the County only the reasonable value 
of the services rendered. 

 
D. REMEDIES 

County and Exchange waive their respective rights to trial by jury of any claim or cause 
of action arising out of this Agreement.  County and Exchange shall have no liability for 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2       Page 3 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT D 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

damages to one another or to any other person or entity resulting from any violation of 
this Agreement. 

 
E. A-133 AUDIT 

To the extent applicable, pursuant to Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 
A-133 §___.200 “Audit Requirements”, non-federal entities that expend $500,000 or 
more in a year in Federal awards from all sources combined shall have a single or 
program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the provisions of OMB 
Circular A-133. All OMB Circular A-133 audit reports shall meet the reporting 
requirements established in OMB §___.320 “Report Submission” and a copy shall be 
forwarded to the California Health Benefit Exchange. 

F. ALLOWABLE COSTS 

Determination of allowable costs will be made in accordance with the applicable Federal 
cost principles, including OMB Circular A-87.  Disallowed costs are those charges 
determined to not be allowed in accordance with the applicable Federal cost principles 
or other conditions contained in this Agreement. 

G. PERIODIC BUSINESS REVIEW 

1. REGULAR OPERATIONAL MEETINGS  

Throughout the Term, the Exchange and County shall convene for regular 
meetings at least quarterly to review County’s performance under this 
Agreement. Exchange Representative(s) and County Representatives and such 
additional appropriate personnel of each Party shall attend the regular 
operational meetings, which shall take place at mutually agreeable locations, or if 
mutually agreed, by telephone conference call or video conference. The 
attendees shall address, at a minimum:  

a. Performance Standards and other operational issues as identified in the 
most recent Reports ("Weekly Performance Reports" and "Monthly 
Performance Reports"); 

b. Issues for escalation to the QBRs (as defined in Section 3 immediately 
below); 

c. Delinquent actions of either Party; 

d. Program status; 

e. Forecasts; and 

f. Upcoming audits or compliance reviews. 

 

 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2       Page 4 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT D 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

2. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

Within 60 days after the end of each quarter (e.g., May 31 for the quarter ending 
March 31), County shall prepare Quarterly Financial Reports reconciling 
budgeted expenses and actual costs as well as reconciling actual costs and 
amount billed both by month and for the quarter. These amounts will be 
reconciled in accordance with Exhibit B, Section J. The Quarterly Financial 
Reports shall provide financial data consistent with the format contained in 
Exhibit B - Attachment 2 - Line Item Reconciliation. 

 
3. QUARTERLY BUSINESS REVIEWS (QBR) 

Throughout the Term, the Exchange and County shall also convene quarterly 
leadership oversight meetings ("Quarterly Business Reviews" or “QBRs”).  All 
such meetings shall take place at mutually agreeable locations, or if mutually 
agreed, by telephone conference call or video conference. These meetings shall 
be attended by Exchange Representative(s) and County Representatives (or 
their designees), as well as senior leadership from the Exchange and County 
with appropriate levels of expertise regarding the Services. The attendees of the 
QBRs shall:  

a. Review  

1) periodic reports and trends from the Exchange Representative(s) and 
County Representative(s) 

2) monthly performance reports 

b. Advise with respect to strategic and tactical decisions regarding the 
establishment, budgeting and implementation of the Exchange's priorities 
and plans for the Services; 

c. Review County’s overall performance under this Agreement; 

d. Review long-term planning with respect to matters related to this 
Agreement;  

e. Consider whether any updates are required to the list of Developed Marks, 
Developed Materials or Procedures Manual; and  

f. consider such other issues or matters related to the Services or this 
Agreement as either Party may from time to time desire. 

4. MEETING AGENDA 

For each meeting described in this Section, the County Representative(s) and 
Exchange Representative(s) shall agree to distribute an agenda sufficiently in 
advance of the meeting to allow meeting participants a reasonable opportunity to 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2       Page 5 of 5 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT D 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

prepare for the meeting. The County Representative(s) and Exchange 
Representative(s) shall also prepare, circulate and maintain meeting minutes for 
the meetings described in this Section. 

H. RETENTION AND ACCESS REQUIREMENTS FOR RECORDS (45 CFR 92.42) 

County agrees to comply with the standards set forth in 45 CFR 92.42.  
 
I. Service Center Lease 

The lease agreement for the County Service Center site shall not exceed the amount as 
reflected in the executed lease dated April 16, 2013.     
 
The County Service Center site shall be located at:  
 
2500 Bates Avenue 
Concord, CA  94520-1208. 

 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2            Page 1 of 3 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT E 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 
1. All deliverables as defined in the Scope of Work originated or prepared by the County 

pursuant to this agreement including papers, reports, charts, and other documentation, 
but not including County’s administrative communications and records relating to this 
Agreement, shall upon delivery and acceptance by the California Health Benefit 
Exchange become the exclusive property of the California Health Benefit Exchange 
and may be copyrighted by the California Health Benefit Exchange. 

 
2. All inventions, discoveries or improvements of the techniques or programs or materials 

developed pursuant to this agreement shall be the property of California Health Benefit 
Exchange.  The California Health Benefit Exchange agrees to grant a nonexclusive 
royalty-free license for any such invention, discovery, or improvement to the County 
and further agrees that the County may sublicense additional persons on the same 
royalty-free basis. 

 
3. This Agreement shall not preclude the County from developing materials outside this 

Agreement, which are competitive, irrespective of their similarity to materials which 
might be delivered to the California Health Benefit Exchange pursuant to this 
Agreement.  All preexisting intellectual property, copyrights, trademarks and products 
shall be the sole property of the County. 

 
B. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 The County agrees to protect the personal information of all individuals by following 
applicable federal and Exchange privacy and security requirements. 

 
All financial, statistical, personal, technical, and other data and information related to the 
California Health Benefit Exchange’s operations that are not publicly available and that 
become available to County shall be protected during or after its relationship with the 
California Health Benefit Exchange by County from unauthorized use and disclosure. 
County agrees that County shall not use any Confidential Information for any purpose 
other than carrying out the provisions of the Agreement. 
 
Confidential Information includes, but is not limited to, all proprietary information of the 
California Health Benefit Exchange including without limitation: the Deliverables; trade 
secrets; know-how; concepts; methods; techniques; designs; drawings; specifications; 
computer programs, including the  Exchange’s software; support materials; information 
regarding the Exchange’s business operations and plans; client, customer, or supplier 
lists; pricing information; marketing plans or information; or other records concerning the 
Exchange’s finances, contracts, services, or personnel. 
 
At the conclusion of its relationship with the California Health Benefit Exchange, County 
shall return any and all records or copies of records relating to the California Health 
Benefit Exchange, or its business, or its Confidential Information. County shall take such 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2            Page 2 of 3 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT E 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 

steps as may be reasonably necessary to prevent disclosure of Confidential Information to 
others and shall not disclose Confidential Information to others without the prior written 
consent of the California Health Benefit Exchange. County agrees that Confidential 
Information disclosed to it under the terms of this Agreement may be disclosed only to its 
employees or agents who have a need to know such Confidential Information. 
 
This Agreement not to disclose Confidential Information will continue to apply after 
termination of this Agreement, and until such time as the Confidential Information 
becomes public knowledge through no fault of County. County will report to the California 
Health Benefit Exchange any and all unauthorized disclosures of Confidential Information. 
County acknowledges that any publication or disclosure of Confidential Information to 
others may cause immediate and irreparable harm to the California Health Benefit 
Exchange, and if County should publish or disclose Confidential Information to others, 
California Health Benefit Exchange shall be entitled to injunctive relief or any other 
remedies to which it is entitled under law or equity, without posting a bond. 

 
C. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision in this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable in any jurisdiction, the other 
provisions herein shall remain in full force and effect in such jurisdiction and shall be 
liberally construed in order to effectuate the purpose and intent of this Agreement, and the 
invalidity or unenforceability of any provision in this Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not 
affect the validity or enforceability of any such provision in any other jurisdiction. 
 

D. WAIVER OF BREACH 

The waiver by the California Health Benefit Exchange of any breach by County of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be construed as a waiver of any 
subsequent breach by County. 

 
E. COUNTY LIMITATIONS 

County acknowledges that, in governmental contracting, even the appearance of a conflict 
of interest is harmful to the interest of the Exchange. Thus, County agrees to refrain from 
any practices, activities or relationships that could reasonably be considered to be in 
conflict with County's fully performing County’s obligations to the Exchange under the 
terms of this Contract. County shall inquire about and require disclosure by its Staff and 
Subcontractors of all activities that may create an appearance of conflict. In the event that 
County is uncertain whether the appearance of a conflict of interest may reasonably exist, 
County shall submit to the Exchange Project Manager a full disclosure statement setting 
forth the relevant details of any activity which the County reasonably believes may have 
the appearance of a conflict of interest for the Exchange's consideration and direction. 
Failure to promptly submit a disclosure statement setting forth the relevant details for the 
Exchange consideration and direction shall be grounds for Termination of this Contract. 

Consistent with the Public Contract Code Section 10365.5, no person, firm or subsidiary 
who has been awarded a consulting services contract may submit a bid, nor be awarded a 
contract, for the provision of the services, procurement of goods or supplies, or any other 



Agreement 12-E9053 A2            Page 3 of 3 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 

 
EXHIBIT E 

(Public Entity Agreement) 
 

related action that is required, suggested, or otherwise deemed appropriate in the product 
of the consulting service contract.  This does not apply to: 

 
(a) Any person, firm, or subsidiary thereof who is awarded a subcontract of a 

consulting services contract which amounts to no more than 10 percent of the total 
monetary value of the consulting services contract. 

 
(b) Consulting services contracts subject to Chapter 10 (commencing with Section 

4525) of Division 5 of Title 1 of the Government Code. 
 

Additionally, County agrees that its employees will present Qualified Health Plan offerings 
to Service Center Customers in a neutral and unbiased manner. 
 

F. FORCE MAJEURE 

Neither County nor the Exchange shall be liable or responsible for delays or failures in 
performance resulting from events beyond the reasonable control of such party and 
without fault or negligence of such party. Such events shall include but not be limited to 
acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war, epidemics, acts of government, fire, power 
failures, nuclear accidents, earthquakes, unusually severe weather, acts of terrorism, or 
other disasters, whether or not similar to the foregoing, and acts or omissions or failure to 
cooperate of the other party or third parties (except Subcontractors). 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2              Page 1 of 4 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

Exhibit F 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 

 
A. PERFORMANCE STANDARDS AND REMEDY FOR NON-PERFORMANCE: 

1. Performance Standards are defined by Service Level Agreements (SLAs) in this 
contract. The initial Performance Standards are established by Table F-1 – “Initial 
Service Level Agreement.”  

2. Service Level Agreements will be continuously monitored, measured, and 
recalibrated, as determined necessary by the Exchange. The Exchange may add 
or delete Performance Standards that will be measured and monitored across all 
Exchange Service Center operations.  These additional Performance Standards 
will first be discussed with the County for review and acceptance.  

3. Throughout this contract term, the parties will work together to evaluate and 
refine Service Level expectations and key Performance Indicators as defined in 
Table F-1.   

4. Failure to Meet Performance Standards  

a. Performance Standards will be discussed during regular Operational 
Meetings set forth in Exhibit D, Section G. 

b. Root Cause Analysis / Corrective Action.  In the event of the County’s 
failure to meet any Service Level in any calendar month (whether or not the 
failure is excused), the County will promptly develop a Corrective Action 
Plan as defined below  

1) A Corrective Action Plan should at least include the following 
information:  

a) Investigation: a report of the investigation of the root cause of the 
problem; 

b) Root Cause Identification: identification of the root cause of the 
problem; 

c)   Remedy: where applicable, a plan that identifies a remedy for the 
cause of the failure to meet a Service Level 

d)   Implementation Plan: a detailed report of the measures taken by 
the County to prevent recurrences if the performance failure is 
otherwise likely to recur, and 

e)   Recommendations: recommendations to the Exchange for 
improvements in procedures. 

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2              Page 2 of 4 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

Exhibit F 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
c. Independent of whether the County has submitted a Root Cause Analysis, 

at its sole discretion, the Exchange may determine that the County has 
failed to remedy a Performance Standard and the Exchange may send a 
Corrective Action Notice to the County regarding the failure to meet a 
Performance Standard. 

1)  In response to a Corrective Action Notice, the County must create and 
implement a Corrective Action Plan as defined above to cure such 
failure within 30 days after receiving a Corrective Action Notice from 
the Exchange.  

2)  At the Exchange’s sole discretion, the 30-day correction period may 
be extended an additional 30 days if the actions required to correct 
the failure are unusually complex, provided that the County has 
demonstrated significant progress in implementing the Corrective 
Action Plan to correct the failure by the end of the initial 30-day 
correction period.  

3)  In the event the County does not correct the deficiency in accordance 
with this subsection, the Exchange in its discretion may terminate this 
Agreement for cause subject to Exhibit D, Section C, with the 
exception that no additional cure period will be required before 
termination. This remedy shall not apply to the extent that the 
County’s failure to meet the Performance Standards is attributable to 
an event described in Exhibit E, Section F (Force Majeure.) 

 

 

 

 

 



A
gr

ee
m

en
t 1

2-
E

90
53

  A
2 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
P

ag
e 

3 
of

 4
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 H

ea
lth

 B
en

ef
it 

E
xc

ha
ng

e/
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
 

Ex
hi

bi
t F

 
(P

ub
lic

 E
nt

ity
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t) 
 

Ta
bl

e 
F-

1 
– 

In
iti

al
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

G
en

er
al

. 
Th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

 S
ch

ed
ul

e 
ta

bl
e 

se
ts

 f
or

th
 t

he
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 I

nd
ic

at
or

s 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

s.
  

In
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
th

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
, 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

w
ill 

us
e 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

ly
 R

ea
so

na
bl

e 
E

ffo
rts

 to
 m

ee
t (

or
 e

xc
ee

d)
 th

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 L

ev
el

s.
 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
LE

VE
L 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

at
eg

or
y 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
ef

in
iti

on
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
To

ol
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 

C
on

ta
ct

 
H

an
dl

in
g 

P
ho

ne
 C

al
l 

A
ve

ra
ge

 
H

an
dl

e 
Ti

m
e 

A
ve

ra
ge

 H
an

dl
e 

Ti
m

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f t
im

e 
it 

ta
ke

s 
ag

en
ts

 to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

a 
ca

ll,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
w

ra
p 

tim
e.

  A
ve

ra
ge

 H
an

dl
e 

Ti
m

e 
sh

al
l b

e 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f t

im
e,

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 m
in

ut
es

, 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 b
y 

di
vi

di
ng

 (i
) t

he
 c

um
ul

at
iv

e 
le

ng
th

 o
f a

ll 
in

bo
un

d 
ca

lls
 (a

s 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

) h
an

dl
ed

 b
y 

ag
en

ts
, a

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

fro
m

 th
e 

tim
e 

a 
ca

ll 
is

 a
ns

w
er

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
ag

en
t u

nt
il 

th
e 

tim
e 

th
e 

ca
ll 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 a

fte
r-

ca
ll 

w
or

k 
is

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 h
ol

d 
tim

e 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ca
ll)

, b
y 

(ii
) t

he
 to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f i

nb
ou

nd
 c

al
ls

 (a
s 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
) a

ns
w

er
ed

 b
y 

ag
en

ts
. 

AC
D

 
   

M
on

th
ly

 
P

ho
ne

 A
H

T 
S

LA
: G

en
er

al
 

In
qu

iry
 –

 4
20

 
se

co
nd

s/
7 

m
in

ut
es

; 
A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
E

nr
ol

lm
en

t –
 

18
00

 
se

co
nd

s/
30

 
m

in
ut

es
; 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

Q
ui

ck
 S

or
t -

 3
60

 
se

co
nd

s/
6 

m
in

ut
es

; 
O

ng
oi

ng
 

S
up

po
rt 

– 
48

0 
 

se
co

nd
s/

8 
m

in
ut

es
;  

To
ta

l 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
tim

e:
 

51
 m

in
ut

es
  

   



A
gr

ee
m

en
t 1

2-
E

90
53

  A
2 

 
 

 
 

   
   

   
P

ag
e 

4 
of

 4
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 H

ea
lth

 B
en

ef
it 

E
xc

ha
ng

e/
C

on
tra

 C
os

ta
 C

ou
nt

y 
 

Ex
hi

bi
t F

 
(P

ub
lic

 E
nt

ity
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t) 
 Se

rv
ic

e 
C

at
eg

or
y 

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
In

di
ca

to
r 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t D
ef

in
iti

on
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
To

ol
 

M
ea

su
re

m
en

t 
Fr

eq
ue

nc
y 

 S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

el
 

 
S

ch
ed

ul
e 

A
dh

er
en

ce
 

S
ch

ed
ul

e 
A

dh
er

en
ce

 
P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 

M
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

im
e 

an
 a

ge
nt

 is
 

ac
tiv

el
y 

lo
gg

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
A

C
D

 Q
ue

ue
 c

om
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
fo

re
ca

st
ed

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 ti

m
e 

th
e 

ag
en

t i
s 

su
pp

os
ed

 to
 

be
 lo

gg
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

A
C

D
 Q

ue
ue

. 

A
C

D
 

M
on

th
ly

 
90

%
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

ad
he

re
nc

e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

Q
ua

lit
y 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f a

ge
nt

 
in

te
ra

ct
io

ns
 w

ith
 c

on
su

m
er

s,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 c

on
su

m
er

s,
 a

dh
er

en
ce

 to
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, t

he
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 d

at
a 

en
try

 
in

to
 th

e 
sy

st
em

s 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 d
at

a 
at

tri
bu

te
s 

an
d 

cu
st

om
er

 re
la

tio
ns

 s
ki

lls
. T

he
 

E
xc

ha
ng

e 
sh

al
l m

on
ito

r a
 m

in
im

um
 o

f t
en

 (1
0)

 A
ge

nt
 

in
te

ra
ct

io
ns

 p
er

 m
on

th
.  

Fo
r e

ac
h 

m
on

ito
re

d 
ca

ll,
 th

e 
E

xc
ha

ng
e 

sh
al

l c
om

pl
et

e 
a 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
fo

rm
 th

at
 

ra
te

s 
th

e 
A

ge
nt

’s
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. T

he
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

sh
al

l 
ra

te
 e

ac
h 

A
ge

nt
’s

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 a

 fa
ir,

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 m
an

ne
r. 

 A
t t

he
 E

xc
ha

ng
e 

re
qu

es
t, 

fro
m

 ti
m

e 
to

 ti
m

e,
 th

e 
pa

rti
es

 s
ha

ll 
co

nd
uc

t 
ca

lib
ra

tio
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 in
 w

hi
ch

 a
 s

am
pl

in
g 

of
 c

al
ls

 w
ill

 
be

 jo
in

tly
 m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

pa
rti

es
 to

 
en

su
re

 c
on

si
st

en
cy

 in
 th

e 
ra

tin
g 

of
 A

ge
nt

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

. T
he

 a
ve

ra
ge

 s
co

re
 re

ce
iv

ed
 b

y 
ea

ch
 

A
ge

nt
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
t p

er
io

d 
sh

al
l b

e 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

su
m

 o
f s

uc
h 

av
er

ag
e 

sc
or

es
 s

ha
ll 

be
 d

iv
id

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r o
f A

ge
nt

’s
 w

ho
se

 
ca

lls
 w

er
e 

m
on

ito
re

d 
an

d 
sc

or
ed

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l Q
ua

lit
y 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
A

ve
ra

ge
 S

co
re

.  

N
IC

E
 (o

r 
eq

ui
va

le
nt

 
to

ol
) 

M
on

th
ly

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

A
ve

ra
ge

 S
co

re
 

of
 a

t l
ea

st
 8

5%
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

 
S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

Tr
ac

ki
ng

  
To

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t 
S

ur
ve

y 
E

va
lu

at
io

ns
  

M
on

th
ly

/Q
ua

rte
rly

/
YT

D
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
In

de
x 

(C
S

I) 
sc

or
e 

>=
 T

B
D

 
 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 1 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
PRIVACY & SECURITY REQUIREMENTS 

 
A. Purpose of Exhibit  

 
1. This Exhibit sets forth the privacy and security requirements that apply to all Personally 

Identifiable Information (PII) that Contractor obtains, maintains, transmits, uses or 
discloses from the California Health Benefit Exchange (“Exchange” aka Covered 
California) pursuant to this Agreement. 
 

2. The parties agree to all terms and conditions of this Exhibit in order to ensure the 
integrity, security, and confidentiality of the information exchanged pursuant to this 
Agreement, and to allow disclosure and use of such information only as permitted by law 
and only to the extent necessary to perform functions and activities pursuant to this 
Agreement.   
 

3. This Exhibit establishes requirements in accordance with applicable federal and state 
privacy and security laws including, but not limited to, the Information Practices Act 
(California Civil Code section 1798 et seq.), the federal Patient Protection and Affordable 
Care Act (P.L. 111-148), as amended by the federal Health Care and Education 
Reconciliation Act of 2010 (P.L. 111-152) (herein, the “Affordable Care Act”), and its 
implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. Sections 155.260 and 155.270 (the “Exchange 
Privacy and Security Rules”) and, where applicable, the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (42 U.S.C. section 1320d-d8) and the Health Information Technology 
for Economic and Clinical Health Act and their implementing regulations at 45 C.F.R. 
Parts 160 and 164 (collectively, “HIPAA”). 
 

B. Definitions 
 

1.  The following definitions shall apply to this Exhibit:  
 
  a. Breach: Shall mean either:  i) the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized 

disclosure, unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term 
referring to situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other 
than authorized purpose have access or potential access to PII, whether 
physical, or electronic; or ii) a reasonable belief that unauthorized acquisition of 
PII that compromises the security, confidentiality or integrity of the PII has 
occurred   

 
b. Disclosure:  The release, transfer, provision of access to, or divulging in  
      any other manner of PII outside the entity holding the information. 

 
c. Federal Tax Information or FTI:  Any return or return information as defined 

under the Internal Revenue Service Code, 26 U.S.C. section 6103(b)(1) and (2), 
received from the IRS or secondary source, such as SSA, Federal Office of Child 
Support Enforcement or Bureau of Fiscal Service.  FTI includes any information 
created by the recipient that is derived from return or return information.  (IRS 
Pub. 1075, § 1.4.1) 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 2 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

d. Personal Information or PI: Information that identifies or describes an individual, 
including, but not limited to, his or her name, social security number, physical 
description, home address, home telephone number, education, financial 
matters, and medical or employment history. It includes statements made by, or 
attributed to, the individual. (California Civil Code section 1798.3)  

 
e. Personally Identifiable Information or PII:  Information which can be used to 

distinguish or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security 
number, biometric records, etc. alone, or when combined with other personal or 
identifying information which is linked or linkable to a specific individual, such as 
date and place of birth, mother’s maiden name, etc. (OMB M-07-16.) PII includes 
Federal Tax Information (FTI), Personal Information (PI) and Protected Health 
Information (PHI).   
 

f. Protected Health Information or PHI: Individually Identifiable Health Information 
that is transmitted by electronic media, maintained in electronic media, or is 
transmitted or maintained in any other form or medium, as defined in 45 C.F.R. 
section 160.103.   

 
g. Security Incident:  The act of violating an explicit or implied security policy, 

which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access 
to a system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the 
unauthorized use of a system for the processing or storage of data; and 
changes to system hardware, firmware, or software characteristics without the 
owner's knowledge, instruction, or consent. Incidents include the loss of data 
through theft or device misplacement, loss or misplacement of hardcopy 
documents, and misrouting of mail, all of which may have the potential to put the 
data at risk of unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction. 
Adverse events such as floods, fires, electrical outages, and excessive heat are 
not considered incidents. (Computer Matching Agreement, Agreement No. 
2013-11, p.5.) 

 
C. Applicable Laws 
 

Contractor shall comply with any and all federal and state privacy and security laws, as well 
as applicable rules and regulations pertaining to the Exchange including, but not limited to, 
those arising under the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and its 
implementing regulations.  To the extent a conflict arises between any laws or other 
requirements, Contractor agrees to comply with the applicable requirements imposing the 
more stringent privacy and security standards. 

 
1. Exchange Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. section 155.260).  
 

a. In accessing, collecting, using or disclosing PII in performing functions for the 
Exchange as authorized by this Agreement, Contractor shall only use or disclose 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 3 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
PII to the minimum extent such information is necessary to perform such 
functions.  
 

b. Contractor shall establish and implement privacy and security standards that are 
consistent with the principles of 45 C.F.R. section 155.260(a)(3) as set forth 
below in subsections (i) through (viii):  

 
i. Individual access.  Individuals shall be provided with a simple and timely 

means to access and obtain their PII in a readable form and format; 
 

ii. Correction. Individuals shall be provided with a timely means to dispute 
the accuracy or integrity of their PII and to have erroneous information 
corrected or to have a dispute documented if their requests are denied;  
 

iii. Openness and transparency. Contractor shall be open and transparent 
regarding its policies, procedures, and technologies that directly affect 
individuals and/or their PII; 
 

iv. Individual choice.  Individuals shall be provided a reasonable opportunity 
and capability to make informed decisions about the collection, use, and 
disclosure of their PII;  
 

v. Collection, use and disclosure limitations. PII shall be created, collected, 
used, and/or disclosed only to the extent necessary to accomplish a 
specified purpose(s) and never to discriminate inappropriately; 
 

vi. Data quality and integrity.  Contractor will take reasonable steps to ensure 
that PII is complete, accurate, and up-to-date to the extent necessary for 
Contractor’s intended purposes and has not been altered or destroyed in 
an unauthorized manner;  

 
vii. Safeguards.  PII will be protected with reasonable operational, 

administrative, technical, and physical safeguards to ensure its 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability and to prevent unauthorized or 
inappropriate access, use, or disclosure; and,  
 

viii. Accountability.  Contractor will use appropriate monitoring and other 
means and methods to assure accountability with these principles and to 
report and mitigate non-adherence and breaches.   

  
2. California Information Practices Act.   Contractor shall comply with the applicable privacy 

and security provisions of the Information Practices Act of 1977, California Civil Code 
section 1798 et seq. and shall provide assistance to the Exchange as may be 
reasonably necessary for the Exchange to comply with these provisions (Civil Code 
section 1798 et seq.).  
 

 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 4 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
3. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”). 

 
a. Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that the Exchange is not a health 

care provider, a health care plan, or a health care clearinghouse.  Accordingly, 
the parties mutually acknowledge and agree that, for purposes of this 
Agreement, the Exchange is not a Covered Entity as such term is specifically 
defined in HIPAA.  
 

b. Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that where the Exchange 
performs a function required under applicable law pursuant to 45 C.F.R. section 
155.200, it is not acting as a Business Associate of any other Covered Entity and 
Contractor is not acting as the Exchange’s Business Associate, as such terms 
are specifically defined in HIPAA.  
 

c. For certain programs related to the administration of the Medi-Cal Program, the 
Exchange has agreed to be the Business Associate of the Department of Health 
Care Services (DHCS). Therefore, to the extent that Contractor performs 
services related to the administration of the Medi-Cal program, contractor is the 
Exchange’s subcontractor, and therefore, also a Business Associate as that term 
is specifically defined in HIPAA. Accordingly, if in performing functions pursuant 
to this Agreement Contractor accesses or uses PII that was provided to the 
Exchange by DHCS or for the purposes of the Medi-Cal program, Contractor 
shall comply with the applicable terms and conditions of HIPAA.   
 

4.   IRS Code section 6103 and Publication 1075.  Per the Exchange Privacy and Security 
Rules (45 CFR 155.260 (a)(4)(iii), return information shall be kept confidential under 26 U.S. 
Code section 6103.  As described by IRS publication 1075, conforming to the guidelines set 
forth in that publication meets the safeguard requirements of 26 U.S. Code section 
6103(p)(4) for FTI.  

  
5. Intentionally Omitted. 

 
D. Consumer Rights 
 

1. Accounting of Disclosures 
 

a. Contractor shall assist the Exchange in responding to accounting requests by 
individuals that are made to the Exchange under the Information Practices Act 
(Civil Code section 1798.25-29) and if Protected Health Information is involved, 
pursuant to HIPAA, 45 C.F.R. section 164.528.  
 

b. The obligation of Contractor to provide an accounting of disclosures as set forth 
herein survives the expiration or termination of this Agreement with respect to 
accounting requests made after such expiration or termination. 
 

2. Copies of Records Requests  
 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 5 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
Regardless of whether a request is made to the Exchange or to Contractor, Contractor 
shall respond to the request with respect to the record Contractor and its subcontractors 
maintain, if any, in a manner and time frame consistent with requirements specified in 
the Information Practices Act (Civil Code sections 1798.30-1798.34) and if Protected 
Health Information is involved, with HIPAA (45 C.F.R section 164.524). 

 
3. Requests to Amend Records 

 
a. Contractor shall make any amendments to Personally Identifiable information in a 

record that the Exchange directs or agrees to, whether at the request of the 
Exchange or an Individual. 
 

b. Regardless of whether a request to amend records is made to the Exchange or 
to Contractor, Contractor shall respond to the request with respect to the record 
Contractor and its subcontractors maintain in a manner and time frame 
consistent with requirements specified in the Information Practices Act (Civil 
Code section 1798.35) and if Protected Health Information is involved, with 
HIPAA (45 C.F.R. section 164.526).  
 

4. Requests to Restrict Use and Disclosure of Personally Identifiable Information 
 

a. Contractor shall reasonably comply with any requests to restrict the use and 
disclosure of Personally Identifiable Information. 

 
b. If Protected Health Information is involved, Contractor shall respond to the 

request in a manner and time frame consistent with requirements specified in 
HIPAA (45 C.F.R. section 164.522). 

 
5. Confidential Communications Request  

 
a. Upon receipt of written notice, Contractor shall reasonably comply with any 

requests to utilize an alternate address, email, or telephone number when 
communicating with the individual. 
 

b. If the request is denied, a written response shall be sent to the individual stating 
the reasons for denying the request. 
 

c. If Protected Health Information is involved, Regardless of whether a request is 
made to the Exchange or to Contractor, Contractor shall respond to the request 
in a manner and time frame consistent with requirements specified in HIPAA (45 
C.F.R. section 164. 522 (b)(1)). 

 
6. In responding to any requests from individuals, Contractor shall verify the identity of the 

person making the request to ensure that the person is the individual who is the subject 
of the PII or has authority to make requests concerning the PII before responding to the 
request.   
 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 6 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
7. In the event any individual submits any of these requests directly from Contractor, 

Contractor shall within five (5) calendar days forward such request to the Exchange. 
 

E.  Security Controls and Safeguards 
 

1. Safeguards:  
 

a. At a minimum, contractor shall establish and implement operational, technical, 
administrative and physical safeguards that are consistent with any applicable 
laws to ensure 

 
i. The confidentiality, integrity, and availability of personally identifiable 

information created, collected, used, and/or disclosed by the Exchange; 
 

ii. Personally identifiable information is only used by or disclosed to those 
authorized to receive or view it; 
 

iii. Return information, as such term is defined by section 6103(b)(2) of the 
Code, is kept confidential under section 6103 of the Code; 
 

iv. Personally identifiable information is protected against any reasonably 
anticipated threats or hazards to the confidentiality, integrity, and 
availability of such information; 
 

v. Personally identifiable information is protected against any reasonably 
anticipated uses or disclosures of such information that are not permitted 
or required by law; and 
 

vi. Personally identifiable information is securely destroyed or disposed of in 
an appropriate and reasonable manner and in accordance with retention 
schedules.  

 
b. Encryption: Contractor shall encrypt all PII that is in motion or at rest, including 

but not limited to data on portable media devices, using commercially reasonable 
means, consistent with applicable Federal and State laws, regulations and 
agency guidance, including but not limited to the U.S. Department of Health and 
Human Services guidance specifying the technologies and methodologies that 
render PII unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals 
for purposes of the breach notification requirements or issued by the National 
Institute for Standards and Technology (“NIST”) concerning the protection of 
identifiable data such as PII. Data centers shall be encrypted or shall otherwise 
comply with industry data security best practices. 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 7 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
 

   c.  Hardware:  Contractor shall ensure that any and all hardware, including but not 
limited to personal computers, laptops, jump-drives, smart phones or other 
devices upon which PII is stored is secured, password-protected and only 
accessible by Contractor or Contractor’s agents, employees or sub-contractors in 
accordance with the terms of this Exhibit.  Contractor shall at all times remove 
and permanently delete any and all PII before any such hardware is transferred 
or sold to a third-party or is otherwise subject to any change in ownership or 
control.   

  
d.   Contractor shall update these safeguards as appropriate and as requested    
      by the Exchange. 
 

F. Policies and Procedures:  
 

1. Contractor shall implement and maintain written policies and procedures to ensure the 
privacy and security of PII stored, maintained, or accessed in compliance with this 
agreement and any applicable laws. Such policies shall address 
 

a. Implementation of consumer rights as required by this Exhibit; 
 

b. Reasonable safeguards as required by this Exhibit;  
 

c. Monitoring, periodically assessing, and updating security controls and related 
system risks to ensure the continued effectiveness of those controls;  
 

d. Training employees, contractors, and subcontractors;   
 

2. Upon request, Contractor shall provide the Exchange with a written policies and 
procedures adopted by Contractor to meet its obligations under this Section. 

 
G.  Subcontractors  

 
1. Contractor shall be bound by and be responsible for the acts and omissions of its 

subcontractors, agents or vendors in the exchange of data with the Exchange. 
Contractor shall take reasonable steps to ensure compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement by its subcontractors, agents and vendors.  
 

2. Contractor agrees to enter into written contracts with its agents and contractors 
(collectively, "subcontractors") that obligate Contractor’s subcontractors to abide by the 
same privacy and security standards and obligations that Contractor has agreed to in 
this agreement. 
 

3. Contractor represents and agrees that it shall only request that the Exchange transmit 
data to subcontractors with whom it has such agreements and only to the extent such 
information is necessary to carry out the purposes authorized by this Agreement. 
 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 8 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
4. Upon request, Contractor shall provide the Exchange with a copy of any written 

agreement or contract entered into by Contractor and its subcontractors to meet the 
obligations of Contractor under this Exhibit. 

 
H.  Breaches & Security Incidents 

 
1. Contractor shall immediately report to the Exchange Privacy Officer at 

PrivacyOfficer@covered.ca.gov any actual or suspected Breaches or Security Incidents 
involving PII created or received under this Agreement. Contractor’s report shall contain 
the following information to the extent applicable and known at that time:  
 

a. A brief description of what happened including the date of the incident and the 
date of the discovery of the incident;  

 
b. The names or identification numbers of the individuals whose PII has been, or is 

reasonably believed to have been accessed, acquired, used or disclosed 
 

c. A description of the types of PII that were involved in the incident, as applicable; 
 

d. Information regarding any information system intrusion and any systems 
potentially compromised; 

 
e. A brief description of Contractor’s investigation and mitigation plan; and 

 
f. Any other information necessary for the Exchange to conduct an investigation 

and include in notifications to the individual(s) or relevant regulatory authorities 
under applicable privacy and security requirements. 

 
2. Upon completion of the initial report, contractor shall immediately commence an 

investigation in accordance with applicable law to:  
 

a. Determine the scope of the incident; 
 

b. Mitigate harm that may result from the incident; and  
 

c. Restore the security of the system to prevent any further harm or incidents. 
 

3. Contractor shall cooperate with the Exchange in investigating the actual or suspected 
incident and in meeting the Exchange’s obligations, if any, under applicable laws.   
 

4. Contractor shall mitigate to the extent practicable any harmful effect of any Incident that 
is known or reasonably discoverable to Contractor.   
 

5. After conducting its investigation, and within fifteen (15) calendar days, unless an 
extension is granted by the Exchange, Contractor shall file a complete report with the 
information listed above in subsection (1), if available. Contractor shall make all 
reasonable efforts to obtain all relevant information and shall provide an explanation if 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 9 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
any information cannot be obtained. The complete report shall include a corrective 
action plan that describes the steps to be taken to prevent any future reoccurrence of the 
incident.   
 

6. Contractor shall cooperate with the Exchange in developing content for any public 
statements and shall not give any public statements without the express written 
permission of the Exchange.   
 

7. If a Breach requires  notifications and reporting under applicable laws, and the cause of 
the Breach is attributable to Contractor, its agents or subcontractors, Contractor shall:   
 

a. Be fully responsible for providing breach notifications and reporting as required 
under applicable laws;  
 

b. Pay any costs of such Breach notifications as well as any costs or damages 
associated with the incident; and 

 
c. Should the Exchange in its sole discretion determine that credit monitoring is an 

appropriate remedy, arrange for and bear the reasonable, out-of-pocket cost of 
providing to each such affected individual one (1) year of credit monitoring 
services from a nationally recognized supplier of such services. 

 
8. If Contractor determines that an impermissible acquisition, use, or disclosure of PII does 

not require breach notifications or reporting, it shall document its assessment and 
provide such documentation to the Exchange within one week of its completion. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Exchange reserves the right to reject Contractor’s 
assessment and direct Contractor to treat the incident as a Breach.  

          
I.   Right to Inspect 

 
The Exchange may inspect the facilities, systems, books, and records of Contractor to 
monitor compliance with this Exhibit at any time. Contractor shall promptly remedy any 
violation reported to it by the Exchange and shall certify the same to the Exchange 
Privacy Officer in writing.  The fact that the Exchange inspects, fails to inspect, fails to 
detect violations of this Exhibit or detects but fails to notify Contractor of the violation or 
require remediation is not a waiver of the Exchange’s rights under this Agreement and 
this Exhibit. 
 

J.   Indemnification 
 

Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend the Exchange from and against 
any and all costs (including mailing, labor, administrative costs, vendor charges, and any 
other costs the Exchange determines to be reasonable), losses, penalties, fines, and 
liabilities arising from or due to Contractor’s failure to comply with the requirements of 
this Exhibit, including a breach or other non-permitted use or disclosure of PII by 
Contractor or its subcontractors or agents, including without limitation. Such 
indemnification shall be conditioned upon the Exchange giving notice of any claims to 



Agreement 12-E9053  A2  Page 10 of 10 
California Health Benefit Exchange/Contra Costa County 
 

EXHIBIT G 
(Public Entity Agreement) 

 
Contractor after discovery thereof.  If Contractor should publish or disclose PII to others, 
the Exchange shall be entitled to injunctive relief or any other remedies to which it is 
entitled under law or equity, without posting a bond. 
 

K.  Termination of Agreement  
 

1. If Contractor breaches its obligations under this Exhibit as determined by the Exchange, 
the Exchange may, at its option: 
 

a. Require Contractor to submit to a plan of monitoring and reporting, as the 
Exchange may deem necessary to maintain compliance with this Agreement; 
 

b. Provide Contractor with an opportunity to cure the breach; or  
 

c. After giving Contractor an opportunity to cure the breach, or upon breach of a 
material term of this Exhibit, terminate this Agreement for Cause pursuant to 
Exhibit C.  

 
A failure of the Exchange to exercise any of these options shall not constitute a waiver of 
its rights under this section. 
 

2. Upon completion of this Agreement, or upon termination of this Agreement, at the 
Exchange’s direction Contractor shall either return all PII to the Exchange, or shall 
destroy all PII in a manner consistent with applicable State and Federal laws, 
regulations, and agency guidance on the destruction of PII. If return or destruction of PII 
is not feasible, Contractor shall explain in writing to the Exchange’s Chief Privacy Officer 
why return or destruction is not feasible. The obligations of Contractor under this 
Agreement to protect PII and to limit its use or disclosure shall continue and shall survive 
until all PII is either returned to the Exchange or destroyed.   
 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract with

California Department of Community Services and Development, including a modified indemnification language, to

pay County an amount not to exceed $3,760,243 for Low Income Home Energy Assistance Programs for a term

January 1, 2015 through January 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State funds

California Department of Community Services and Development

Pension costs: $318,491

County match: $0

State: 15B-3005 / CCC: 39-806-27 

BACKGROUND: 

Contra Costa County has received funding from the State Department of Community Services and Development for

20 years wherein the county provides energy bill assistance payments 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  J. Bhambra, 925-681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Sam Mendoza   

C. 23

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program funding



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

and weatherization services to county residents who are income-eligible to receive said services. The funding sources

include Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP), the Energy Crisis Intervention Program (ECIP),

and the Department of Energy (DOE).

The county receives the money via the Employment & Human Services Department (EHSD). EHSD, in turn, partners

with the county Department of Conservation and Development to provide energy saving home improvements to

low-income families throughout unincorporated Contra Costa County, as well as the County’s nineteen cities. 

The energy savings measures may provide homes with hot water heaters, furnaces, refrigerators, microwaves, doors,

windows, fluorescent light bulbs, weather stripping, ceiling fans, and attic insulation. Homes receive a blower door

test (a diagnostic tool to locate and correct air infiltration), and homes with gas appliances receive a combustion

appliance safety test that checks for carbon monoxide gas leakage. Homes with gas appliances are provided with a

carbon monoxide alarm.

This funding also includes the Home Energy Assistance Program (HEAP) where residents of the County can qualify

for a credit on their energy bills.

Both programs use income based eligibility. The income levels are based on the Federal Fiscal Year 2014 Poverty

Guidelines. Once eligibility is determined, clients with no hot water, no heat, or are in danger of having their power

shut off are served as emergencies. Service is then based on clients with the lowest income, highest energy burden

and families with at least one resident who is considered vulnerable population.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County may not receive funding to operate LIHEAP.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department, Community Services Bureau energy program supports one Contra

Costa County community outcome - Outcome #4: "Families that are Safe, Stable and Nurturing." This outcome is

supported by the provision of home energy assistance to keep households warm in winter and to increase household

energy efficiency.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Department Director, or designee, to execute

contract amendment from California Department of Education, to increase the payment limit by $148,611 to a new

limit of $3,497,960 for childcare and development programs (CalWORKS Stage 2) with no change to the term July 1,

2013 through June 30, 2014. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% State funding

No County match

State: C2AP-3009 / Amend 5 

County: 29-213-23b 

BACKGROUND: 

The Board approved receipt of funds on June 25, 2013 from California Department of Education (CDE) for the

2013-14 funding allocation for alternative payment / CalWORKS Stage 2 childcare services. This State program

provides funding to reimburse a portion of the childcare costs incurred by CalWORKS Stage 2 participants 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  J. Bhambra, (925)
681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Haydee Ilan,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 24

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher, Employment & Human Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2013/14 Calif. Dept. of Educ. CalWORKS Stage 2 childcare revenue contract, amendment 5



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

through their participation in the CalWORKS program. The State routinely amends these contracts throughout the

program year as more funding becomes available and school calendars are set. The board accepted additional

funding (amendment #1) from CDE on October 15, 2013. Further additional funding (amendment #2) was also

accepted by the board on March 11, 2014. On April 22, 2014, the Board approved another amendment #3 to

change the days of operation from 251 to 250 days. Amendment #4 was approved by the Board on June 3, 2014 to

accept additional funding.

This amendment #5 is to add funds to the contract so that the County may be able to seek further reimbursement

for 2013-2014 program operation. This is an allowable action according to CDE guidelines, Item 6110-194-001 of

the Budget Act of 2013 for CalWORKS Amendment Authority. If not approved, the Department will not receive

the additional funds.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, County will not be able to seek reimbursement for CalWORKS Stage 2 childcare program costs.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3:

“Families that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.”

These outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood

education, nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.

ATTACHMENTS

CDE Stage 2 contract 







RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to execute a contract

amendment with California Department of Community Services and Development, including modified

indemnification language, to extend the term end date to February 28, 2015 with no change to the payment limit of

$790,619 for Community Services Block Grant program services. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Federal funding via

California Department of Community Services & Development

Pass through of Federal funds / CFDA # 93.569

No County match

State: 14F-3007 / Amend 3

County: 39-813-37 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  J. Bhambra, (925)
681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Sam Mendoza,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 25

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2014 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) revenue contract, amendment #3



BACKGROUND:

The Department received notification of funding from California Department of Community Services and

Development on November 25, 2013. As the County's Community Action Agency, the Department's Community

Services Bureau regularly receives Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) funding to operate self-sufficiency

programs under the advisement of the County's Economic Opportunity Council (EOC). The funding amount is based

on the County’s low-income population which meets federal poverty guidelines. This initial award for the 2014

program year is a partial allocation based on the partial grant award received by the State from the federal

government for CSBG. During the course of the program year, as more funds are released by the federal Department

of Health and Human Services to California, the state routinely amends contracts to increase funding. The Board

approved a contract amendment to accept additional funds from the State on June 3, 2014. This amendment is to

extend the term end date from December 31, 2014 to February 28, 2015. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the Department will be hampered in its ability to meet the needs of the community and to establish

partnerships with community based agencies and public organizations.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3: “Families

that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.” These

outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood education,

nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Employment & Human Services Director, or designee, to accept funding from

California Department of Community Services and Development, including a modified indemnification language, in

an amount not to exceed $213,583, for Community Services Block Grant program services during the term January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Federal funding via

California Department of Community Services & Development

Pass through of Federal funds / CFDA # 93.569

No County match

State: 15F-2007

County: 39-813-38 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  J. Bhambra, (925)
681-6304

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: Jagjit Bhambra,   Sam Mendoza,   Cassandra Youngblood   

C. 26

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Kathy Gallagher

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: 2015 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) revenue contract



BACKGROUND:

The Department received notification of funding from California Department of Community Services and

Development on December 2, 2014. As the County's Community Action Agency, the Department's Community

Services Bureau regularly receives Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) funding to operate self-sufficiency

programs under the advisement of the County's Economic Opportunity Council (EOC). The funding amount is based

on the County’s low-income population which meets federal poverty guidelines. This initial award for the 2015

program year is a partial allocation based on the partial grant award received by the State from the federal

government for CSBG. The County will receive its remaining allocation once the State receives the funding from the

federal department of Health and Human Services.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If not approved, the Department will be hampered in its ability to meet the needs of the community and to establish

partnerships with community based agencies and public organizations.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

The Employment & Human Services Department Community Services Bureau supports three of Contra Costa

County’s community outcomes - Outcome 1: “Children Ready for and Succeeding in School,” Outcome 3: “Families

that are Economically Self-sufficient,” and, Outcome 4: “Families that are Safe, Stable, and Nurturing.” These

outcomes are achieved by offering comprehensive services, including high quality early childhood education,

nutrition, and health services to low-income children throughout Contra Costa County.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the Sheriff-Coroner, or designee, to execute Agreements with the City of Concord and

Town of Danville for the period of April 1, 2015 through March 31, 2017, for the Support Services Bureau,

Background Unit to perform pre-employment screenings. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Estimated Revenue. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Support Service Bureau, Background Unit performs pre-employment screenings for job applicants. The City of

Concord and Town of Danville will use our Background Unit's services to perform these screenings for job applicants

in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.

The County will act solely in an investigative capacity, for the purpose of providing information to the Agency for

employment decisions. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

The Office of the Sheriff would not be able to provide our background services to the City of Concord and Town of

Danville Police Departments. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Sandra Brown
925-335-1553

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc:

C. 27

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: David O. Livingston, Sheriff-Coroner

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Pre-Employment Screening



CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

None



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-897-1 with Women’s Health Partners of California, Inc, a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $580,000, to

provide Obstetrics and Gynecology (OB-GYN) services for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31,

2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund III. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

The Health Plan has an obligation to provide certain specialized professional health care services for its members

under the terms of their Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County. On February 26,

2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #27-897 with Women’s Health Partners of California, Inc., for the

provision of OB-GYN services for the period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract #27-897-1 will allow Contractor to continue providing OB-GYN services through December

31, 2016. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary
313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   C Rucker   

C. 28

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-897-1 with Women’s Health Partners of California, Inc.



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, certain specialized health care services for its members under the terms of their

Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County will not be provided.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

NOT APPLICABLE



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Novation

Contract #24-958-22, with Rubicon Programs Incorporated, a non-profit organization, in an amount not to exceed

$110,000, to provide mental health services for CalWORKs clients, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June

30, 2015. This contract includes a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2015, in an amount not to

exceed $55,000. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% CalWORKs funds. (Rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

In February 2014, County Administrator approved and Purchasing Services Manager executed Contract #24-958-20,

(as amended by Contract Amendment #24-958-21), with Rubicon Programs Incorporated, for the period from July 1,

2013 through June 30, 2014, which included a six-month automatic extension through December 31, 2014, for the

provision of mental health services to 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: E Suisala ,   C Rucker   

C. 29

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Novation Contract #24-958-22 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

recipients of the CalWORKs Program and their children, including individual, group and family collateral

counseling, case management, and medication management services to reduce barriers to employment.

Approval of Novation Contract #24-958-22 will replace the automatic extension under prior contract and allow the

Contractor to continue to provide mental health services to CalWORKs recipients through June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, CalWORKs recipients will not have sufficient access to the children’s mental health

services they need. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Amendment Agreement #74-432-4 with Vincent S. Perez, M.D., a self-employed individual, effective October 1,

2014, to amend Contract #74-432-3, to increase the Contract Payment Limit by $1,000 from $313,600 to a new total

payment limit of $314,600 with no change in the original term of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This amendment is funded 100% by Mental Health Realignment. This amendment adds a reimbursable amount to

expenses, to allow Contractor to travel on behalf of the County, to other County sites while performing services, with

no change in his current hourly rate. 

BACKGROUND: 

On August 12, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #74-432-3 with Vincent S. Perez, to provide

outpatient psychiatric services to adults in Central County, for the period from July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon, 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: J Pigg,   C Rucker   

C. 30

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment Agreement #74-432-4 with Vincent S. Perez, M.D.



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

County requested and Contractor agreed to provide psychiatric services in other locations throughout Central County.

Approval of Contract Amendment Agreement #74-432-4, will allow the Contractor to be reimburse for additional

travel on behalf of the County, while performing psychiatric services in other County mental health facilities, through

June 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved, County’s clients will not have access to Contractor’s professional outpatient

psychiatric services at other County facilities. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director or designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Standard

Agreement (Amendment) #29-765-38 (State #14-90289, A01), with the Department of Health Care Services,

effective September 29, 2014, to amend Standard Agreement #29-765-10 (as amended by Amendment Agreements

#29-765-11 through #29-765-37), to increase the amount payable to County by $296,920 from $7,890,751, to a new

total Payment Limit of $8,187,671 to make technical adjustments to the budget, and to extend the term of the

agreement from September 30, 2014 through September 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Approval of this (Amendment) Agreement will result in an increase in funds to County from the State of California

Managed Risk Medical Insurance Board, (now known as the Department of Health Care Services) for fiscal year

2014-2015. No County match is required. 

BACKGROUND: 

The County has participated in the State-funded AIM Program since January 1992. This Program provides increased

access to maternity, delivery and infant care services for 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary
(313-6004)

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors

on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   C Rucker   

C. 31

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Amendment #29-765-38 with Department of Health Care Services 



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

low income women who have neither Medi-Cal nor private health insurance coverage. Under the Agreement, the

Contra Health Plan (CCHP) provides comprehensive medical care during a woman’s pregnancy and delivery, and for

sixty days post-partum. The AIM Program also provides com-prehensive medical care to the baby during their first

two years of life.

Approval of Standard Amendment (Agreement) #29-765-38 will allow continuous funding and extend services to

Contra Costa Health Plan members and County recipients through September 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this amendment is not approved the County will not be able to receive funds to support continuation of the Contra

Costa Health Plan-Community Plan.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#25–046–15 with Shelter, Inc. of Contra Costa County, a non-profit corporation, in an amount not to exceed

$268,724, to provide support services for County residents in the Supportive Housing Program, for the period from

September 1, 2014 through November 30, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% McKinney-Vento Homeless funds. The County must provide a 25% cash match for

supportive services. 

BACKGROUND: 

This Contract meets the social needs of County’s population by providing support services to County residents that

are homeless and have a diagnosis of mental illness or a dual-diagnosis of mental illness and substance abuse. On

November 12, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #25-046-14 with Shelter, Inc., of Contra Costa

County, for the provision of support services for County residents in the Supportive Housing Program., for the period

from September 1, 2013 through August 31, 2014. 

It 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Cynthia Belon 957-5201

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: J PIGG,   C Rucker   

C. 32

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #25-046-15 with Shelter, Inc. of Contra Costa County



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

was the intent of the department to renew the contract in a timely manner with no disruption in the service; therefore

the Division is requesting a start date of September 1, 2014.

Approval Contract #25-046-15, will allow the Contractor to continue to provide support services to County residents

that are homeless and have a diagnosis of mental illness or dual-diagnosis of mental illness and substance abuse,

through November 30, 2015.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, County’s residents who are homeless with a disability and are receiving services in

the Support Housing Program will not receive services from this contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-569-6 with William W. Chen, M. D. , a professional corporation, in an amount not to exceed $410,000, to

provide professional Primary Care services for Contra Costa Health Plan members, for the period from January 1,

2015 through December 31, 2016.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Funds. (No rate increase)

BACKGROUND: 

On January 23, 2013, the County Administrator approved and Purchasing Services Manager executed Contract

#27-569-5 with William W. Chen, M. D., for the provision of professional Primary Care services, for the period from

January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2015.

Approval 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary,
313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 33

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-569-6 with William W. Chen, M. D



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

of Contract #27-569-6 will allow Contractor to continue providing services through December 31, 2016.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this contract is not approved, professional health care services for Contra Costa Health Plan members will not be

provided by this contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

#27-662-5 with Yaron Friedman, M.D., Inc., a corporation, in an amount not to exceed $400,000, to provide

Obstetrics and Gynecology (OB-GYN) services for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2016. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

This Contract is funded 100% by Contra Costa Health Plan Enterprise Fund III. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On March 12, 2013, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract #27-662-4 with Yaron Friedman, M.D., Inc., for the

provision of OB-GYN services, for the period from January 1, 2013 through December 31, 2014. Approval of

Contract #27-662-5 will allow Contractor to continue providing OB-GYN services through December 31, 2016. 

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

If this contract is not approved, certain specialized professional health care services for its members under the terms

of their Individual and Group Health Plan membership contracts with the County will not be provided. 

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT: 

NOT APPLICABLE 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary
313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: K Cyr,   C Rucker   

C. 34

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Contract #27-662-5 with Yaron Friedman, M.D., Inc. 



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Purchasing Agent on behalf of the Health Services Department, to renew the Purchase

Order with Hyland Software in an amount of $132,712.07 for annual software maintenance and licensing for OnBase

Document Management and Image Scanning Software for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31,

2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

100% Funding is included in the Enterprise Fund I Budget. 

BACKGROUND: 

OnBase software maintenance is a critical component of our enterprise-wide EMR solution. OnBase facilitates the

capture, management, archive, storage, and retrieval of electronic and paper documents including all Electronic

Health Record (EHR)-related documents integrated with our ccLink (Epic) application, reports used by Finance and

Patient Accounting, and archived records for other Health Services divisions including Behavioral Health Services,

Contracts & Grants, Health Plan, Environmental Health, and HazMat. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Patrick Godley 957-5405

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: J Pigg,   T Scott,   S McDonald,   C Rucker   

C. 35

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Hyland Software, Inc. Purchase Order 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this Purchase Order is not approved, the workflows associated with the above-stated functions would be adversely

impacted. Hyland provides real-time OnBase application support to CCHS Information Technology department for

ccLink (Epic) scanning, workflow management, and reporting solutions. If that support ceases, the integrity of data

from integration of internal scanning and printing hardware interfaced to the EHR application via web services and

other interfaces could be compromised. Connectivity failures in any of these areas could potentially result in incorrect

or incomplete data capture and management, loss of critical archived data due to inability to perform system

functions, and non-compliance with future Epic releases.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve and authorize the Health Services Director, or his designee, to execute, on behalf of the County, Contract

Extension Agreement #27-277-16,with Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc., a non-profit corporation, to amend

Contract #27-277-15, with no change in the payment limit of $80,000,000 and to extend the term from December 31,

2014 through March 31, 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None, there is no change in the Contract Payment Limit of $80,000,000. This Contract is funded 100% by Contra

Costa Health Plan member premiums. (No rate increase) 

BACKGROUND: 

On July 8, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved Contract Amendment #27-277-15, with Kaiser Foundation

Health Plan, Inc., for the provision of health care services for Medi-Cal recipients enrolled in the Kaiser Foundation

Health Plan, for the period from June 30, 2014 through December 31, 2014.

Approval of Contract Extension Agreement #27-277-16 will allow the Contractor to continue providing health care

services for Medi-Cal recipients enrolled in the Kaiser Foundation Health Plan through March 31, 2015. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II

Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III

Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV

Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V

Supervisor

Contact:  Patricia Tanquary
313-6004

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of Supervisors on

the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 

By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc: A Floyd,   C Rucker   

C. 36

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: William Walker, M.D., Health Services Director

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Extension #27-277-16 with Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. 



CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If this extension is not approved, County Medi-Cal recipients will not receive continuous services provided by this

Contractor.

CHILDREN'S IMPACT STATEMENT:

Not Applicable.



RECOMMENDATION(S): 

APPROVE and AUTHORIZE the County Treasurer to enter into a financial services agreement with PFM Asset

Management, LLC (“PFMAM”), for the purpose of managing the investment of bond proceeds for the Contra Costa

County Community College District.

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Service fees and costs will be paid for out of earnings from the bond proceeds of the Contra Costa County

Community College District.

BACKGROUND: 

The County Treasurer manages and invests the funds of County agencies, including 21 special districts, 19 school

districts and one community college district. The Contra Costa County Community College District has requested

that County Treasurer permit its two bond proceeds, $140,500,000.00 from the 2006 Measure A General Obligation

Bond Election and $120,000,000.00 from the 2014 Measure E General Obligation Bond Election, to be invested by

an external investment manager. 

APPROVE OTHER 

RECOMMENDATION OF CNTY

ADMINISTRATOR 

RECOMMENDATION OF BOARD

COMMITTEE 

Action of Board On:   01/13/2015 APPROVED AS

RECOMMENDED 
OTHER 

Clerks Notes:

VOTE OF SUPERVISORS

AYE: John Gioia, District I Supervisor

Candace Andersen, District II
Supervisor

Mary N. Piepho, District III
Supervisor

Karen Mitchoff, District IV
Supervisor

Federal D. Glover, District V
Supervisor

Contact:  Brice Bins, 925 957-2848

 
I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Supervisors on the date shown. 

ATTESTED:    January  13, 2015 

David J. Twa, County Administrator and Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

 
By: Chris Heck, Deputy

cc:

C. 37

  

To: Board of Supervisors

From: Russell Watts, Treasurer-Tax Collector

Date: January  13, 2015

Contra 
Costa 
County 

Subject: Financial Services Agreement with PFM Asset Management



BACKGROUND: (CONT'D)

Specifically, it has requested that the Treasurer authorize the investment of the above-mentioned bond proceeds

with PFMAM. Pursuant to the financial services agreement between PFMAM and the County, PFMAM will

invest the bond proceeds in exchange for a fee.

CONSEQUENCE OF NEGATIVE ACTION:

If the agreement is not authorized, PFMAM will not be authorized to invest the bond proceeds of Contra Costa

County Community College District.

ATTACHMENTS


	Agenda
	PR.3_Presentation Proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month
	D.3_RESCISSION OF SALARY ORDINANCE NO. 2014-10 FOR BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
	D.3_ATT_Ordinance No. 2015-04 BOS Salary Ordinance Repeal
	D.4_Westborough Condominiums Final Development Plan and Rezone, Tice Valley Boulevard, Saranap
	D.4_ATT_CPC Resolution No. 15-2014
	D.4_ATT_CPC Approved Conditions
	D.4_ATT_CPC Staff Report
	D.4_ATT_Ordinance No. 2015-01 Map
	D.4_ATT_Maps
	D.4_ATT_Initial Study and MMP
	D.4_ATT_Westborough Final Development Plan
	D.5_Stone Valley Center Rezoning from PNB- S2 to RB- S2 Alamo, County File _RZ14-3227
	D.5_ATT_General Plan Map
	D.5_ATT_Existing Zoning Map
	D.5_ATT_Aerial Photo
	D.5_ATT_Assessor's Maps
	D.5_ATT_Ordinance Map _2015-02
	D.5_ATT_CPC Resolution _16-2014
	D.5_ATT_CPC Approved COA's
	D.5_ATT_CPC Staff Report
	D.5_ATT_Initial Study - CEQA
	D.5_ATT_P-N-B, R-B, and N-B Ordinance References
	D.5_ATT_Table 1. - Ordinance Comparison
	D.5_ATT_Table 3-5, General Plan and Zoning Consistency
	D.6_Emergency Ambulance Request for Proposal (RFP) for Exclusive Response Areas (ERA) I, II and V 
	D.6_ATT_EMS RFP Draft 12-31-14
	D.6_ATT_EMS RFP Draft 12-31-14 - Redlined version
	D.6_ATT_Power Point Presentation EMS RFP
	D.7_Cost confirmation hearing for real property located at 3010 Del Hombre Lane, Walnut Creek, CA
	D.7_ATT_Itemized costs
	D.7_ATT_Before and After Photos
	D.8_Revised Management Benefits Resolution No. 2015_3, which Supersedes Resolution No. 2014_2005
	D.8_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_3
	D.8_ATT_Management Resolution No. 2015_3
	C.  1_ADOPT Resolution No. 2015_19 vacating a portion of excess County road right of way, Port Costa area. 
	C.  1_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_19
	C.  1_ATT_Exhibit A
	C.  2_2015_2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project _ Central County
	C.  2_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_20
	C.  2_ATT_Attachment A
	C.  3_2015_2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pedestrian Crossing Enhancements Project _ East County
	C.  3_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_21
	C.  3_ATT_Attachment A
	C.  4_2015_2016 Transportation Development Act (TDA) Grant Application for the Pomona Street Pedestrian Safety Improvement Project.
	C.  4_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_22
	C.  4_ATT_Attachment A
	C.  5_ACCEPT the 2014 Status Report on Street Light Maintenance by Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PGandE).
	C.  6_APPROVE a contract with A.S. Dutchover and Associates for On-Call Landscape Architect Services, Countywide. 
	C.  7_Approve extension to a contract with LSA Associates, Inc., Concord area. (100% Flood Control District Zone 3B Funds) Project No. 7520-6D8333
	C.  8_claims
	C.  9_In the Matter of Proclaiming January 2015 as Eligibility Workers' Month
	C.  9_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_12
	C. 10_Proclaiming January, 2015 as Slavery and Human Trafficking Prevention Month in Contra Costa County
	C. 10_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_15
	C. 11_Accepting Contra Costa Regional Medical Centers Designation as National Leader LGBT Healthcare Equality Index 2013-2014 by the Human Rights Campaign 
	C. 11_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_14
	C. 12_Reappointments to the Contra Costa Centre Municipal Advisory Council
	C. 13_Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association Workers Compensation Coverage
	C. 14_ Add one Sheriff_s Specialist position and  cancel one Sheriff_s Director of Support Services position in the Support Services Bureau.
	C. 14_ATT_P300 No. 21590
	C. 15_Add one Lead Detention Services Worker position and cancel one Detention Services Worker position _ Custody Services Bureau. 
	C. 15_ATT_P300 No. 21591
	C. 16_Resolution No. 2015_16 to Provide a Salary Increase Adjustment for County Counsel and Public Defender Classes
	C. 16_ATT_Resolution No. 2015_16
	C. 17_California Dept of Education General Childcare and Development restoration grant
	C. 18_County Provision of Subject Matter Expert Consultant Services to the State of California Office of Systems Integration
	C. 19_Grant Award _29-396-15 County_s Comprehensive Tobacco Control Plan (CTCP) and Budget for FY 2014-2017 with California Department of Public Health 
	C. 20_Grant Award _28-869 from the California Department of Public Health, Office of Health Equity 
	C. 21_Grant Award _29-338-19 from the Department of Health Care Services, Children Medical Services 
	C. 22_Contract for Operations of the Covered California Call Center
	C. 22_ATT_DRAFT Covered California Contract
	Exhibit A - Scope of Work Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit B - Attachment 1 - Approved Line Item Budget - final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit B - Attachment 2 Budget Detail & Metrics file - final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit B - Attachment 3 - Sample Monthly Invoice Template - final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit B - Budget Detail  Payment Provisions Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit C General Terms Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit D - Special Terms and Conditions Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit E - Additional Provisions Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit F  - Performance Standards Final to CAO 1-7-15
	Exhibit G Privacy Addendum Final to CAO 1-7-15
	12-E9053 A2  Contra Costa  Std  213A.pdf
	Pages


	C. 23_2015 Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program funding
	C. 24_2013_14 Calif. Dept. of Educ. CalWORKS Stage 2 childcare revenue contract, amendment 5
	C. 25_2014 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) revenue contract, amendment _3
	C. 26_2015 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) revenue contract
	C. 27_Pre-Employment Screening
	C. 28_Contract _27-897-1 with Women_s Health Partners of California, Inc.
	C. 29_Novation Contract _24-958-22 with Rubicon Programs Incorporated
	C. 30_Amendment Agreement _74-432-4 with Vincent S. Perez, M.D.
	C. 31_Amendment _29-765-38 with Department of Health Care Services 
	C. 32_Contract _25-046-15 with Shelter, Inc. of Contra Costa County
	C. 33_Contract _27-569-6 with William W. Chen, M. D
	C. 34_Contract _27-662-5 with Yaron Friedman, M.D., Inc. 
	C. 35_Hyland Software, Inc. Purchase Order 
	C. 36_Extension _27-277-16 with Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. 
	C. 37_Financial Services Agreement with PFM Asset Management

